

 


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL  
AND WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT AGENDA 


 
OCTOBER 13, 2021 


 
5:00 P.M. – CLOSED SESSION   


6:00 P.M. – REGULAR MEETING 
 


Council Chambers 
23873 Clinton Keith Road Ste 106 


Wildomar, CA 92595 
 


OR 
 


Join Zoom Meeting:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84801699357 


 
OR 


Dial in: 1 (669) 900 6833 | Webinar ID: 848 0169 9357  
 
 
 
 


 
 


Dustin Nigg, Mayor/Chair, District 2 
Ben J. Benoit, Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair, District 1 
Bridgette Moore, Council Member/Trustee, District 4 
Joseph Morabito, Council Member/Trustee, District 3 
Marsha Swanson, Council Member/Trustee, District 5 


 
Gary Nordquist              Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager /General Manager         City Attorney/District Counsel 



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84801699357





 


 


The City of Wildomar encourages your 
participation in the meeting; however, to 
minimize the spread of the COVID-19 
virus, this meeting is being conducted in 
person and via video and 
teleconferencing with the following 
options available for participating: 
 
1. You may view the Regular Session 
meeting live on the City of Wildomar’s 
website at http://www.cityofwildomar.org or 
on cable TV through Frontier Channel 36 or 
AT&T channel 99. To view from the website, 
select the live stream link on the top of the 
front page. 
 
2. You may participate via the ZOOM 
Webinar Telephone and Videoconferencing.  
 
3. You may participate in person; however, 
masks are recommended for all individuals, 
and seating may be limited as the City is still 
participating in the 6-foot social distancing 
seating procedure. 
 
Instructions for Electronic Participation  


 
Please Note: During the meeting all 
participants videos will be turned off 
during the entire meeting and you will be 
placed on Mute by the host. You will not 
be able to mute or unmute your lines 
manually. The host will unmute your line 
when you are called to speak.  
 
1. Log in or call into ZOOM via 
desktop/laptop, smartphone or telephone. 
You must download the ZOOM app to access 
the link from an Apple smartphone or IPAD. 
 
2. During Public Comment not on the agenda 
and after each Agenda Item, the Mayor will 
announce Public Comment. If you would like 
to speak, please raise your hand virtually to 
be placed in the queue.  
 
3. When your name or the last 3 digits of your 
phone number are called, the host will 
unmute you. Public Comments will be limited 


to 3 minutes or such other time as the Council 
may provide.    
Directions to virtually raise hand on a 
DESKTOP/LAPTOP: 
• At the bottom of the list, please click on the 
grey “Raise Hand” button. 
 
Directions to virtually raise hand on a 
SMARTPHONE: 
• Look for the “Raise Hand” button on the 
screen and click the button. 
 
Directions to virtually raise hand on a 
TELEPHONE line only: 
• Dial *9 on your keypad to signal that you 
would like to comment. When the Host 
unmutes you, Dial *6 to unmute. 
 


Instructions for In Person Participation  
 
During Public Comment not on the agenda 
and after each Agenda Item, the Mayor will 
announce Public Comment. If you would like 
to speak on that item, please line up on the 
marked spaces in the center of the 
Chambers. 
 
When it is your turn to speak, please state 
your name for the record. Public Comments 
are limited to 3 minutes or such other time as 
the Council may provide.  
 
In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, you 
should contact the City Clerk’s Office at 951-
677-7751 x210. 
 
The City of Wildomar thanks you in advance 
for taking all precautions to prevent 
spreading the COVID 19 virus.  
  
NOTICE: City Council meetings may be 
live-streamed, photographed and/or 
videotaped. Participation at the meeting 
constitutes consent by members of the 
public to the City’s and any third party’s 
use in any media, without compensation 
or further notice, of audio, video, and/or 
pictures of meeting attendees. 
 


 
 
 
 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/





  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
October 13, 2021 


3 


  
 


 


CALL TO ORDER – CLOSED SESSION - 5:00 P.M. 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
1. The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code section 54957(b) regarding Public Employee Appointment. 
Title:  City Manager. 
 
2. The City Council will meet in closed session to hold a conference with its 
Labor Negotiator regarding Unrepresented Employee pursuant to Government 
Code 54957.6. 
 
Agency representative:  Dustin Nigg 
 
Unrepresented employee:  City Manager 
 
3. The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) to confer with legal counsel with 
regard to two matters of potential initiation of litigation. 
 
4. The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1) to confer with legal counsel with regard 
to the following matter of pending litigation: 
 
 A. City of Wildomar v. Lisa Marie Davis and Daniel Celaya; Case No. 
      MCC2001484 
 
5. The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code Section 54956.8 to confer with legal counsel and conference 
with real property negotiators as follows: 
 
Project: Palomar Street and Clinton Keith Road Widening Project (CIP 059) 
Right-of-Way Acquisition 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
October 13, 2021 


4 


  
 


 


Properties:   See table below. 
Agency negotiator:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager. 
Negotiating parties:  See table below. 
Under Negotiation:   Instruction regarding price and term of payment. 
 


APN Property Owner Property Address 


380-130-007 John & Mary Emmerling 22470 Palomar Street 


380-130-008 Raymond and Patricia Dain 22590 Palomar Street 


380-130-009 Nadi & Mary Abdelsayed Vacant Lot, Palomar Street 


380-130-010 Tari Broderick Vacant Lot, Palomar Street 


380-130-011 Tari Broderick 32405 Windsong Lane 


380-400-042 Shadow Canyon Homeowners Association Common Area - SE corner 
Palomar/Shadow Canyon Trail 


380-140-004 IRA Services Trust Company 22651Palomar Street 


380-140-005 Kenneth and Janet Matsuda 22691 Palomar Street 


380-120-005 Chang, et al 32140 Clinton Keith Road 


380-120-012 Crazy Eights 32150 Clinton Keith Road 


 
 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION 


CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR SESSION - 6:00 P.M. 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
October 13, 2021 


5 


  
 


 


PRESENTATIONS 
1. New City Employee Recognition – Code Enforcement 
2. Other City Recognitions/ Presentations 
 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. Police Department Update 
2. Fire Department Update 
3. Wildomar Library Update 
4. Code Enforcement Department Update 
5. Public Works/Engineering Department Update 
6. Other Department Updates 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This is the time when the Council receives general public comments regarding any 
items or matters within the jurisdiction that do not appear on the agenda.   
 
 
COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 
1. Community events 
2. Regional events 
3. Chamber of Commerce 
4. Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) 
5. Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA) 
6. Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
7. League of California Cities 
8. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
9. Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) 
10. Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
11. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
12. Southwest Community Financing Authority (Animal Shelter) 
13. Western Community Energy (WCE) 
14. Ad Hoc & Subcommittees 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
The City Council to approve the agenda as it is herein presented, or, if it is the 
desire of the City Council, the agenda can be reordered, added to, or have items 
tabled at this time. 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
October 13, 2021 


6 


  
 


 


1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless members of the Council, the Public, or Staff request to have specific items 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 
 
1.1 Reading of Ordinances 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the reading by title only of all ordinances on this agenda. 
 


1.2 Minutes- July 14, 2021 Regular Meeting 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the minutes as presented. 
 


1.3 Minutes- August 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the minutes as presented. 
 


1.4 Warrant and Payroll Registers 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the following: 
 
For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
1. Warrant Register dated 09-02-2021 in the amount of $408,113.24. 
2. Warrant Register dated 09-09-2021 in the amount of $485.73. 
3. Warrant Register dated 09-16-2021 in the amount of $4,765.46. 
4. Warrant Register dated 09-23-2021 in the amount of $1,073,697.03. 
5. Warrant Register dated 09-29-2021 in the amount of $1,969.91. 
 
For Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
6. Warrant Register dated 09-02-2021 in the amount of $85,735.86. 
7. Warrant Register dated 09-09-2021 in the amount of $94,675.54. 
8. Warrant Register dated 09-16-2021 in the amount of $94,582.54. 
9. Warrant Register dated 09-23-2021 in the amount of $185,636.44. 
10. Warrant Register dated 09-29-2021 in the amount of $977,621.09. 
11. Payroll Register dated 10-01-2021 in the amount of $270,140.77.
  


1.5 Treasurer’s Report 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the Treasurer’s Report for August 2021. 
 
 


 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
October 13, 2021 


7 


  
 


 


1.6 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 203 – Wildomar Trail Town Center 
Project  
RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Commission recommends that 
the City Council adopt the following Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 203 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 20-
0039 TO: 1) REMOVE THE MIXED-USE OVERLAY ZONE 


DESIGNATION FOR THE ENTIRE WILDOMAR TRAIL TOWN CENTER 
PROJECT SITE, AND CHANGE THE EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION 


FOR THE 6.07-ACRE RESIDENTIAL PORTION OF PROJECT SITE 
FROM C-P-S (SCENIC HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL) TO R-3 (GENERAL 


RESIDENTIAL) LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 
WILDOMAR TRAIL AND THE I-15 FREEWAY (APN: 376-180-006 AND 


376-190-002); AND 2) CHANGE THE EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION 
FOR THE NORTHERLY 10-ACRES OF THE JAMES CARTER 


PROPERTY FROM I-P (INDUSTRIAL PARK) TO R-3 (GENERAL 
RESIDENTIAL) LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF YAMAS 
DRIVE AND PRIELIPP ROAD (APN: 380-250-019) TO COMPLY WITH 


THE PROVISIONS OF SB 166 
 


1.7 First Amendment to Information Technology Services Agreement with 
Infinity Technologies 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Council authorize the 
City Manager to execute the First Amendment to the Information 
Technology Services Agreement with Infinity Technologies. 
 


1.8 Consideration of annual reporting of completed State mandated fire 
and life safety inspections by the City of Wildomar in compliance with 
SB 1205 for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021- ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF A REPORT MADE BY 
THE FIRE CHIEF OF THE RIVERSIDE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 


REGARDING THE INSPECTION OF CERTAIN OCCUPANCIES 
REQUIRING ANNUAL INSPECTIONS IN SUCH OCCUPANCIES 


PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 13146.2 AND 13146.3 OF THE CALIFORNIA 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
October 13, 2021 


8 


  
 


 


1.9 Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) Program Agreements 
for CIP 70 Bundy Canyon Road/I-15 Interchange, CIP 74 Wildomar 
Trail/I-15 Interchange and Amendment No. 3 for CIP 28-1 Palomar 
Street between Mission Trail and Jefferson Avenue 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council 
Authorize the City Manager to execute the following: 
 
1. Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement between Western Riverside Council 
of Governments (WRCOG) and the City of Wildomar for the Planning, 
Engineering, Right of Way and Construction Phases, as required for the 
widening of Palomar Street between Mission Trail and Jefferson Avenue. 
 
2. Agreement for the Project Approval and Environmental Document 
(PA&ED) Phase for the improvement of the Bundy Canyon/I-15 
Interchange. 
 
3. Agreement for the Project Approval and Environmental Document 
(PA&ED) Phase for the improvement of the Wildomar Trail/I-15 
Interchange. 
 


1.10 Third Amendment of the Use Permit for COVID-19 Testing and 
Vaccines 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
and authorize the City Manager to sign the third amendment to the Use 
Permit for RUHS through CURATIVE to provide COVID-19 testing and 
vaccinations. 
 


1.11 Villa Siena Apartment Project (PP 13-0089): Park Grading Agreement, 
Overall Grading Agreement and BMP Facilities Agreement 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council 
authorize the City Manager to execute the Park Grading Agreement, the 
Overall Grading Agreement, and the BMP Facilities Agreement (Privately 
Maintained BMPs) with Villa Siena Property, LLC. 
 


1.12 Award of Construction Contract – House Demolition for the Bundy 
Canyon Road Improvement Project, Segment 2 (CIP 026-2A) 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council take the 
following actions: 
 
1. Authorize the City Manager to execute a construction contract with 
Beckco, Inc. in the amount of $206,000.00 for the House Demolition for the 
Bundy Canyon Road Improvement Project, Segment 2 (CIP 026-2A). 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
October 13, 2021 


9 


  
 


 


2. Authorize the City Engineer to approve change orders not to exceed 10% 
of the contract amount (contingency). 
 
3. Approve a Budget Adjustment to increase TUMF Funding to the Right-
of-Way Phase of CIP 026-2 by $91,000. 
 


1.13 Palomar Street and Clinton Keith Road Widening Project (CIP 059) 
Right-of-Way Acquisition 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
Resolution entitled:  
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OR ASSISTANT 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENTS 


AND OTHER RELATED DOCUMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF REAL 
PROPERTY REQUIRED FOR THE PALOMAR STREET AND CLINTON 


KEITH ROAD WIDENING PROJECT (CIP 059) 
 
 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
2.1 Consideration of Territory to be Annexed to  Community Facilities 


District No. 2013-1 (Services), Calling an Election, Ordering the Levy 
and Collection of Special Taxes, and Declaring the Election Results 
for CFD 2013-1 (Services), Annexation No. 21 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 
1. Open the public hearing; 
2. Take testimony; 
3. Close the public hearing; 
4. Adopt Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, CALLING AN ELECTION TO SUBMIT TO THE 
QUALIFIED ELECTORS THE QUESTION OF LEVYING A SPECIAL TAX 


WITHIN THE AREA PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED TO COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) (ANNEXATION NO. 21) 
 
5. Hold the election; 
6. Canvass the election; and 
7. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
October 13, 2021 


10 


  
 


 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ELECTION RESULTS FOR COMMUNITY 


FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) (ANNEXATION NO. 21) 
 


2.2 Consideration of Territory to be Annexed to  Community Facilities 
District No. 2013-1 (Services), Calling an Election, Ordering the Levy 
and Collection of Special Taxes, and Declaring the Election Results 
for CFD 2013-1 (Services), Annexation No. 22 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 
1. Open the public hearing; 
2. Take testimony; 
3. Close the public hearing; 
4. Adopt Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, CALLING AN ELECTION TO SUBMIT TO THE 
QUALIFIED ELECTORS THE QUESTION OF LEVYING A SPECIAL TAX 


WITHIN THE AREA PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED TO COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) (ANNEXATION NO. 22) 
 
5. Hold the election; 
6. Canvass the election; and 
7. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ELECTION RESULTS FOR COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) (ANNEXATION NO. 22) 
 


2.3 General Plan Amendment No. 2021-03 – The 2021/2029 Housing & 
Safety Element Update 
RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Commission recommends the 
City Council take the following actions: 
 
1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-____ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING AN ADDENDUM TO THE 2013/2021 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
October 13, 2021 


11 


  
 


 


HOUSING ELEMENT PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
(SCH# 2013051001) CERTIFIED ON DECEMBER 11, 2013 IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15164 OF THE CALIFORNIA 


ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) GUIDELINES 
 
2. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 2021-
03 ADOPTING THE 2021/2029 HOUSING ELEMENT IN ACCORDANCE 


WITH CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 65580 
THROUGH 65589, AND ADOPTING THE 2021/2029 SAFETY ELEMENT 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 


65302(G) 
 


2.4 Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-02: A proposed amendment 
to Section 17.188 (Off-Street Vehicle Parking Standards) related to off-
street parking standards for single-family, multi-family and 
commercial developments 
RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Commission recommends that 
the City Council introduce and approve the first reading of an Ordinance 
entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A GENERAL RULE EXEMPTION 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15061(B)(3) OF THE CALIFORNIA 


ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) GUIDELINES, AND 
APPROVAL OF ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. 2021-02 TO 


MODIFY SECTION 17.188 (OFF-STREET VEHICLE PARKING 
STANDARDS) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO 
PARKING STANDARDS FOR SINGLE-FAMILY, MULTI-FAMILY AND 


COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 


2.5 Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the Abatement of all Weeds Declared 
as a Public Nuisance 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
AUTHORIZING THE ABATEMENT OF WEEDS AND/OR CAUSING THE 


REMOVAL OF RUBBISH, REFUSE OR DIRT DECLARED TO BE A 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
October 13, 2021 


12 


  
 


 


PUBLIC NUISANCE, TO KEEP AN ACCOUNT OF THE COSTS OF 
ABATING SUCH NUISANCE, AND TO FILE SUCH ACCOUNT IN A 


REPORT AND ASSESSMENT LIST WITH THE CITY COUNCIL 
 


3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  
 
3.1 COVID-19 Update  


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council receive 
and file the COVID-19 update and provide direction as desired. 


 
3.2 FY 2021-22 1st Quarter Budget Report  


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council review 
and consider approval of the Fiscal Year 2021-22 First Quarter Report, and 
adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE FY 2021-22 
BUDGETED REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND UPDATE THE FY 2021-


22 AUTHORIZED POSITION SCHEDULE 
 
3.3 Ordinance Repealing and Replacing Chapter 8.48 (Hazardous 


Vegetation) of the Wildomar Municipal Code 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council 
introduce and waive further reading of an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, REPEALING CHAPTER 8.48 (HAZARDOUS 
VEGETATION) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE, AND ADDING 


CHAPTER 8.48 (HAZARDOUS VEGETATION AND RUBBISH 
ABATEMENT PROGRAM) TO THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 


 
3.4 Ordinance amending and restating Chapter 8.104 (Solid Waste 


Collection and Disposal) of the City of Wildomar Municipal Code 
 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council 


introduce and waive further reading of an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA AMENDING AND RESTATING CHAPTER 
8.104 (SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL) OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
October 13, 2021 


13 


  
 


 


CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Title- Councilmember-Anticipated Date 
1. SFR/MFR Parking Code Update - Moore – September 2021 October 2021 
2. Weed Abatement Process- Benoit – September 2021 October 2021 
3. Salary and Benefits Survey- Benoit – March 2022 
4. Litter/illegal Dumping Fees and related signage- Moore – December 2021 
5. Campaign Contribution Limits- Nigg – October 2021 November 2021 
6. Appoint Subcommittee to discuss Homeowner Associations – Swanson -  
7. Update from MSJC College regarding 2014 Bond Funding -Morabito 
 
 
ADJOURN THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING   







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
October 13, 2021 


14 


  
 


 


In accordance with Government Code Section 54952.3, I, Janet 
Morales, City of Wildomar City Clerk, do hereby declare that the 
Board of Trustees will receive no compensation or stipend for the 
convening of the following regular meeting of the Wildomar 
Cemetery District. 
 
 
 


 


Dustin Nigg, Chair 
Ben J. Benoit, Vice Chair 
Bridgette Moore, Trustee 
Joseph Morabito, Trustee 
Marsha Swanson, Trustee 


 
 
 
 
 
 
Gary Nordquist               Thomas D. Jex 
General Manager              District Counsel 
 


  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
October 13, 2021 


15 


  
 


 


CALL TO ORDER THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 
BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
The Board of Trustees to approve the agenda as it is herein presented, or if it is 
the desire of the Board, the agenda can be reordered at this time. 
 
 
4.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless members of the Board, the Public, or Staff request that specific items are 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 
 
4.1 Minutes – September 8, 2021 Regular Meeting 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 
approve the Minutes as presented. 


 
4.2 Warrant Register 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 
approve the following: 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 09-02-2021 in the amount of $1,432.91. 
2. Warrant Register dated 09-09-2021 in the amount of $6,009.47. 
3. Warrant Register dated 09-16-2021 in the amount of $250.15. 
4. Warrant Register dated 09-29-2021 in the amount of $789.10. 
 


4.3 Treasurer’s Report 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 
approve the Treasurer’s Report for August 2021. 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
October 13, 2021 


16 


  
 


 


4.4 Third Amendment of the Use Permit for COVID-19 Testing and 
Vaccines 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 
approve and authorize the General Manager to sign the third amendment 
to the Use Permit for RUHS through CURATIVE to provide COVID-19 
testing and vaccinations. 
 
 


5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 There are no items scheduled. 
 
 
6.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 


There are no items scheduled. 
 
 


GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT MEETING   
 
 
REPORTS:  All agenda items and reports are available for review at City Hall, 
23873 Clinton Keith Road and on the City’s website at the following address: 
http://www.cityofwildomar.org/government/agendas___minutes.  Any writings or 
documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda (other than writings legally exempt from public disclosure) will be made 
available by appointment for public inspection at City Hall during regular business 
hours.   
 
If requested, the agenda and backup materials will be made available in 
appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 
202 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and 
the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. 
 
Any person that requires a disability-related modification or accommodation, 
including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the public meeting, 
may request such modification, accommodation, aid or service by contacting the 
City Clerk either in person or by phone at 951-677-7751.  



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/government/agendas___minutes





City of Wildomar 
City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 


October 13, 2021 


17 


I, Janet Morales, Wildomar City Clerk, do certify that at least 72 hours prior to the 
meeting, a true and correct copy of this agenda was posted at Wildomar City Hall, 
23873 Clinton Keith Road; U.S. Post Office, 21392 Palomar Street; Wildomar 
Library, 34303 Mission Trail Blvd; and on the City’s website at 
www.cityofwildomar.org. 


______________________________ 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 
Dated: October 8, 2021 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/





Agenda Item #1.2 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


JULY 14, 2021 


CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR SESSION - 5:00 P.M. 
The Regular meeting of July 14, 2021 of the Wildomar City Council was conducted 
in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 
106, Wildomar, California, and electronically pursuant to the provisions of 
Governor’s Executive Orders N-08-21 and was called to order by Mayor Pro Tem 
Benoit at 5:00 p.m. 
 
City Council Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Council Member Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
 
Members absent: None 
 
Staff in attendance: City Manager Nordquist, Assistant City Manager York, City 
Attorney Jex, City Clerk Morales, Planning Director Bassi, Administrative Services 
Director Howell, Project Consultant Riley, Economic Development Director 
Davidson, Associate Engineer Luna and Parks, Community Services and 
Cemetery District Manager Torres. 
 
The flag salute was led by Councilmember Moore. 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
1. Mayor Pro Tem Benoit presented a Certificate to LEUSD Retired Teacher and 


Board Member Stan Crippen.  
 
2. Mayor Pro Tem Benoit presented a Proclamation for Parks Make Life Better 


Month. 
 
3. Mayor Pro Tem Benoit presented a Proclamation to Ty Davis for serving as the 


Wildomar Fire Chief between 2020-2021 and in recognition of his promotion. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. Lt. Mack introduced Community Service Officer Deputy Chambers and 


presented the Police Department Update. 
 
2. Library Manager Brautigam presented the Library Update. 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
July 14, 2021 


2 


  
 
3. Building Official Hadley introduced new City Employees: Raul Berroteran II, 


Code Enforcement Supervisor, and John Parker, Code Enforcement Officer. 
 
4. Battalion Chief Roberts presented the Fire Department Update. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The following residents provided public comment on items not on the agenda: Albia 
Miller, Kenny Mayes, Monty Goddard, and Jen. 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 
The City Council Members spoke regarding the various committees, commissions, 
and boards that they serve on locally and regionally and community events, 
including: 
 
1. Community events 
2. Regional events 
3. Chamber of Commerce 
4. Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) 
5. Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA) 
6. Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
7. League of California Cities 
8. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
9. Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) 
10. Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
11. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
12. Southwest Community Financing Authority (Animal Shelter) 
13. Western Community Energy (WCE) 
14. Ad Hoc & Subcommittees 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
There were no changes to the agenda as presented. 
 
 
1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
Agenda Items #1.8 and 1.12 were pulled for separate action.  
Gina Castanon, resident, provided public comment on Agenda Items #1.10 and 
1.11. 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by Mayor Nigg to 
approve all Agenda Items except #1.8 and #1.12 on the Consent Calendar. 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
July 14, 2021 


3 


  
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
1.1 Reading of Ordinances 


Approved the reading by title only of all ordinances on this agenda. 
 


1.2 Minutes- April 19, 2021 Special Meeting 
Approved the minutes as presented. 
 


1.3 Minutes- May 12, 2021 Regular Meeting 
Approved the minutes as presented. 
 


1.4 Warrant and Payroll Registers 
Approved the following: 
  
1. Warrant Register dated 06-03-2021 in the amount of $78,254.69. 
2. Warrant Register dated 06-10-2021 in the amount of $165,072.28. 
3. Warrant Register dated 06-17-2021 in the amount of $882,957.69. 
4. Warrant Register dated 06-24-2021 in the amount of $1,074,944.98. 
5. Warrant Register dated 06-30-2021 in the amount of $289,076.99. 
6. Payroll Register dated 07-01-2021 in the amount of $159,823.75. 
     


1.5 Treasurer’s Report 
Approved the Treasurer’s Report for May 2021. 
 


1.6 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 199 – Amending Section 3.32.050 of the 
Wildomar Municipal Code for Contract Retention for Public Projects 
Adopt an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 199 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA ADOPTING A CODE UPDATE PURSUANT 
TO PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 7201(B), AND AMENDING 


TITLE 3 (REVENUE AND FINANCE) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL 
CODE TO REVISE SECTION 3.32.050 


 
 
 


 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
July 14, 2021 


4 


  
 
1.7 Levy and Collection of Special Taxes within Community Facilities 


District No. 2013-1 (Services) for Fiscal Year 2021-22 
Adopted a Resolution entitled: 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 34 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ORDERING THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF SPECIAL 


TAXES WITHIN COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 
(SERVICES) FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 


 
1.8 Baxter Village Medical Office Building Site – Parcel 1 of Parcel Map 


No. 37941 –Grading Agreement and BMP Agreement 
 
Councilmember Morabito recused himself due to a conflict of interest. 
 
Assistant City Manager York presented the report and recommended 
changes. 
 
Albia Miller and Gina Castanon, resident, provided public comment. 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to amend the form of security from a bond to a 
letter of credit per the application’s request and authorize the City Manager 
to execute the Grading Agreement and the BMP Agreement with Strata 
Baxter, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company for the Baxter Village 
Medical Office Building Site – Parcel 1 of Parcel Map No. 37941. 
 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  Morabito 
ABSENT:  None 
 


1.9 Partnership with Riverside County Sheriff in the National Night Out 
Event 
Approved to participate and partner in the Riverside County Sheriff 
Department 2021 National Night Out event. 
 
 
 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
July 14, 2021 


5 


  
 
1.10 Palomar Street Widening Project (CIP 028-1) Initial Study/Mitigated 


Negative Declaration 
Adopted a Resolution entitled:  
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 35 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
(MND) AND MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM (MMP) FOR THE 
PALOMAR STREET WIDENING PROJECT (CIP 028-1) CONSISTING 


OF FILLING IN SIDEWALK/TRAIL GAPS AND ADDING BICYCLE 
LANES ALONG PALOMAR STREET AND CLINTON KEITH ROAD 


 
1.11 Vehicle Use Policy 


Approved the Vehicle Use Policy.  
 


1.12 COVID-19 Prevention Program Update 
 


City Attorney Jex presented the report and recommended changes. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mayor Nigg seconded by Councilmember 
Morabito to approve the updated COVID-19 Prevention Policy with the 
modification on page 6, stating that the City will investigate and respond to 
all COVID cases, not just for unvaccinated employees.  
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
2.1 Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No. 89 1-Consolidated 


& Street Lighting Zones 
 


Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Project Consultant Riley presented the staff report. 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
July 14, 2021 


6 


  
 


There being no testimony, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit closed the Public Hearing. 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by Mayor Nigg 
to adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 36 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, CONFIRMING THE DIAGRAM AND ASSESSMENT FOR 


ALL ZONES, OF LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE 
DISTRICT NO. 89-1-CONSOLIDATED OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
AND LEVYING ASSESSMENTS ON ALL LOTS AND PARCELS OF 


LAND THEREIN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22; AND AUTHORIZING THE 
ADMINISTRATION OF THE LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING 


MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 89-1-CONSOLIDATED FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2021-22 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 


2.2 County Service Area Charges for FY 2021-22 
 


Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Project Consultant Riley presented the staff report. 
 
There being no testimony, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit closed the Public Hearing. 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Morabito to adopt a Resolution entitled: 
: 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 37 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING COUNTY SERVICE AREA CHARGES 
WITHIN THE CITY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 


 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
July 14, 2021 


7 


  
 


MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
 


3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  
 


3.1 Santa Rosa Plateau Nature Education Foundation (SRPNEF) Special 
Event Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 


 
 Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 


 
Councilmember Moore recused herself due a potential conflict of interest. 
 
Parks, Community Services and Cemetery District Manager Torres 
presented the staff report. 
 
Gina Castanon, resident, provided public comment.  
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Swanson seconded by Mayor 
Nigg to authorize the City Manager to sign the MOU with SRPNEF. 
 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  Moore 
ABSENT:  None 
 


3.2 COVID-19 Update 
 


Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title.  
 
 City Manager Nordquist presented the staff report. 
 
 It was the consensus of the City Council to receive and file the COVID-19 


update.  
  
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
July 14, 2021 


8 


  
 
3.3 Resolution Designating the Time, Date and Location of City Council 


Meetings effective September 1, 2021 
  
 Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
 City Clerk Morales presented the staff report. 
 
 Residents Kenny Mayes, Gina Castanon and Monty Goddard provided 


public comment. 
 
 A MOTION was made by Councilmember Swanson seconded by 


Councilmember Moore to Repeal Resolution No. 2019-63 and Resolution 
No. 2020-56 and adopt a Resolution entitled:   


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 38 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, REPEALING AND REPLACING RESOLUTION NO. 2019-
63 AND RESOLUTION NO. 2020-56 DESIGNATING THE TIME, DATE 


AND LOCATION OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS; and 
 


Amending Section 2 to include a 3:00 p.m. afternoon open session (if 
needed). 
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 


3.4 Ordinance adding Chapter 2.50 (Electronic Filing) to Title 2 
(Administration and Personnel) to the Wildomar Municipal Code 
Relating to Electronic Filing of Campaign Statements and Statements 
of Economic Interests 


 
 Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
 City Clerk Morales presented the staff report. 
 
 A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by Mayor Pro 


Tem Benoit to introduce and approve first reading of an Ordinance entitled: 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
July 14, 2021 


9 


  
 


ORDINANCE NO. 200 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADDING CHAPTER 2.50 (ELECTRONIC 
FILING) TO TITLE 2 (ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL) TO THE 
WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO ELECTRONIC FILING 
OF CAMPAIGN STATEMENTS AND STATEMENTS OF ECONOMIC 


INTERESTS 
 


MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 


3.5 Measure AA Oversight Advisory Committee Appointments 
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
 City Clerk Morales presented the staff report. 
 
 A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 


Councilmember Swanson to appoint Kathleen Kovich for a term ending 
June 2022 and appointed Charles (Ken) Herrera and Sheila Urlaub for 
terms ending June 2023. 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 


3.6 Establishment of an Ad-Hoc Re-Districting Subcommittee 
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
 City Clerk Morales presented the staff report. 
 
 Residents Gina Castanon, Kenny Mayes and Monty Goddard provided 


public comment. 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
July 14, 2021 


10 


  
 
 A MOTION was made by Councilmember Swanson seconded by 


Councilmember Moore to select and approve Mayor Nigg and Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit to serve on a temporary ad-hoc Redistricting Subcommittee 
providing guidance to staff in establishing updated electoral districts. 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 


3.7 Approval of Master Equity Lease Agreement and Maintenance 
Agreement with Enterprise Fleet Management 


 
 Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
 Project Consultant Riley presented the staff report. 
 
 Residents Gina Castanon, Monty Goddard and Kenny Mayes provided 


public comment. 
 
 A MOTION was made by Councilmember Swanson seconded by 


Councilmember Moore to approve and authorize the City Manager to sign 
the Master Equity Lease Agreement and the Maintenance Agreement with 
Enterprise Fleet Management and recommends $170,000 in expenditures 
be placed into a Fleet Management Fund from General Fund, Measure AA, 
Gas Tax, Measure A, and Measure Z fund balances, and the ARPA funding 
for use for use in leasing and maintaining the needed vehicles. 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
 


CITY MANAGER REPORT 
City Manager Nordquist presented the report. 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
July 14, 2021 


11 


  
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Added: Litter/illegal dumping fines/signs – Moore 
  Campaign Contribution Limits – Nigg  


ADJOURN THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
There being no further business, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit declared the meeting 
adjourned at 7:51 p.m.  
 
 
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Janet Morales    Dustin Nigg 
City Clerk     Mayor 
 


 
 







Agenda Item #1.3 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


AUGUST 11, 2021 


 
CALL TO ORDER – CLOSED SESSION - 4:00 P.M. 
The Closed Session of August 11, 2021 of the Wildomar City Council was 
conducted in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith 
Road, Suite 106, Wildomar, California, and electronically pursuant to the 
provisions of Governor’s Executive Orders N-08-21 and was called to order by 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit at 4:00 p.m. 
 
City Council Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Council Member Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem 
Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
 
Councilmember Moore arrived at 4:03 p.m.  
 
Members absent: None. 
 
Staff in attendance: City Attorney Jex, City Clerk Morales, Assistant City Manager 
York and Associate Engineer Luna. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
City Clerk Morales read the following: 
 
1. The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code section 54957(b) regarding Public Employee Appointment. 
 
Title:  City Manager. 
 
2. The City Council will meet in closed session to hold a conference with its 
Labor Negotiator regarding Unrepresented Employee pursuant to Government 
Code 54957.6. 
 
Agency representative:  Dustin Nigg 
Unrepresented employee:  City Manager 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
August 11, 2021 


2 


  
 
3. The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1) to confer with legal counsel with regard 
to the following matters of pending litigation:  
 
In re: National Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804 (N.D. Ohio) 
 
The City Council convened into closed session at 4:03 p.m. 
 
 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 
The City Council reconvened into open session with all members present at 5:03 
p.m. 
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
City Attorney Jex stated that the City Council met in Closed Session and there is 
no reportable action.  
 
 
ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION 
There being no further business, Mayor Nigg adjourned the closed session at 5:03 
p.m. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR SESSION - 5:00 P.M. 
The Regular meeting of August 11, 2021 of the Wildomar City Council was 
conducted in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith 
Road, Suite 106, Wildomar, California, and electronically pursuant to the 
provisions of Governor’s Executive Orders N-08-21 and was called to order by 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit at 5:03 p.m. 
 
City Council Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Council Member Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
 
Members absent: None 
 
Staff in attendance: Assistant City Manager York, City Attorney Jex, City Clerk 
Morales, Planning Director Bassi, Administrative Services Director Howell, Project 
Consultant Riley, Economic Development Director Davidson, Associate Engineer 
Luna, Associate Engineer Farag, and Parks, Community Services and Cemetery 
District Manager Torres. 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
August 11, 2021 


3 


  
 
 
The flag salute was led by Councilmember Swanson 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
1. The presentation of a Proclamation for Eagle Scout Ethan Woodfin was 
postponed. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. Assistant City Manager York introduced new City Employees: Emily Stadnik, 
Senior Engineer, and Ninette Eva, Associate Engineer. 
 
2. City Clerk Morales presented the City Clerk Department update. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The following individuals provided public comment on items not on the agenda: 
Veronica Langworthy, resident, Mona Davis, Community Outreach Minisitry, 
Kenny Mayes, resident,  and Don Saunders, resident. 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 
The City Council Members spoke regarding the various committees, commissions, 
and boards that they serve on locally and regionally and community events, 
including: 
 
1. Community events 
2. Regional events 
3. Chamber of Commerce 
4. Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) 
5. Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA) 
6. Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
7. League of California Cities 
8. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
9. Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) 
10. Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
11. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
12. Southwest Community Financing Authority (Animal Shelter) 
13. Western Community Energy (WCE) 
14. Ad Hoc & Subcommittees 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
August 11, 2021 


4 


  
 
There were no changes to the agenda as presented. 
 
1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
A MOTION was made by Mayor Nigg seconded by Councilmember Morabito to 
approve the Consent Calendar. 
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
1.1 Reading of Ordinances 


Approved the reading by title only of all ordinances on this agenda. 
 


1.2 Minutes- May 26, 2021 Special Meeting 
Approved the minutes as presented. 
 


1.3 Warrant and Payroll Registers 
Approved the following: 
 
For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 07-08-2021 in the amount of $802,032.80; 
2. Warrant Register dated 07-15-2021 in the amount of $37,134.46; 
3. Warrant Register dated 07-22-2021 in the amount of $307,278.54; 
4. Warrant Register dated 07-29-2021 in the amount of $475,480.12; 
 
For Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
 
5. Warrant Register dated 07-08-2021 in the amount of $10,678.71; 
6. Warrant Register dated 07-15-2021 in the amount of $12,133.64; 
7. Warrant Register dated 07-20-2021 in the amount of $2,530.25; 
8. Warrant Register dated 07-22-2021 in the amount of $17,445.28; 
9. Warrant Register dated 07-29-2021 in the amount of $228,896.92; 
10. Payroll Register dated 08-01-2021 in the amount of $205,636.13. 
      


1.4 Treasurer’s Report 
Approved the Treasurer’s Report for June 2021. 


 
1.5 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 200 - Ordinance adding Chapter 2.50 


(Electronic Filing) to Title 2 (Administration and Personnel) to the 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
August 11, 2021 


5 


  
 


Wildomar Municipal Code Relating to Electronic Filing of Campaign 
Statements and Statements of Economic Interests 
Adopted an Ordinance entitled:  
 


ORDINANCE NO. 200 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADDING CHAPTER 2.50 (ELECTRONIC 
FILING) TO TITLE 2 (ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL) TO THE 
WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO ELECTRONIC FILING 
OF CAMPAIGN STATEMENTS AND STATEMENTS OF ECONOMIC 


INTERESTS 
 


1.6 Homeless Encampment Cleanup Services Agreement with Discount 
Approved and authorized the City Manager to sign a contract with Discount 
Hauling & Cleanup Service to provide homeless encampment cleanup 
services related to the abatement of homeless transient camps located 
throughout various parts of the City of Wildomar. The term of the contract 
will be until June 30, 2022.  The contract costs are not to exceed $30,000. 
 


1.7 Resolution Designating Custodian of Records for Live Scan Services 
Adopted a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION  NO. 2021 - 39 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, AUHORIZING DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES TO SERVE 
AS THE CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS FOR LIVE SCAN SERVICES 


 
1.8 Award of Construction Contract – Road Maintenance and 


Rehabilitation Project (CIP 057-1) and Slurry Seal Project (CIP 058) 
1. Adopted a Categorical Exemption pursuant to Section 15301(c) of the 
CEQA Guidelines. 
 
2. Authorized the City Manager to execute a construction contract with All 
American Asphalt in the amount of $664,622.50 for construction of the Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Project (CIP 057-1) and Slurry Seal Project 
(CIP 058). 
 
3. Authorized the City Engineer to approve change orders not to exceed 
25% of the contract amount (contingency). 
  


1.9 Emergency Management Services Agreement for FY 2021/22 to FY 
2023/24 
Adopted a Resolution entitled: 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
August 11, 2021 


6 


  
 


 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 40 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF 


RIVERSIDE AND THE CITY OF WILDOMAR FOR EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES FROM JULY 1, 2021 TO JUNE 30, 2024 


 
1.10 Second Amendment of the Use Permit for COVID-19 Testing and 


Vaccines 
Approved and authorized the City Manager to sign the second amendment 
to the Use Permit for RUHS through CURATIVE to provide COVID-19 
testing and vaccinations. 


 
 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
2.1 Oak Springs Ranch Phase 2 Apartment Project (PA 20-0044): City 


Council review of a Supplemental EIR, General Plan Amendment, 
Specific Plan Amendment, Zoning Ordinance Amendment and Plot 
Plan for a proposed 288-unit apartment project 


 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Planning Director Bassi presented the staff report. 
 
Albia Miller and Veronica Langworthy, resident, provided public comment. 
 
There being no further testimony, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit closed the Public 
Hearing. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mayor Nigg seconded by Councilmember Moore 
to adopt a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 41 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, CERTIFYING A SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT REPORT (SCH# 2004071076), INCLUDING ADOPTION OF 


FINDINGS OF FACT AND A MITIGATION MONITORING AND 
REPORTING PROGRAM (MMRP) FOR THE OAK SPRINGS RANCH 


SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT PROJECT (SPA NO. 340) LOCATED ON 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
August 11, 2021 


7 


  
 


THE WEST SIDE OF INLAND VALLEY DRIVE APPROXIMATELY 550 
FEET SOUTH OFF CLINTON KEITH ROAD (APN: 380-250-038) 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 


 
A MOTION was made by Mayor Nigg seconded by Councilmember Moore 
to adopt a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 42 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 20-


0044 TO CHANGE THE EXISTING LAND USE DESIGNATIONS FROM 
MEDIUM HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MHDR) TO HIGHEST 


DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (HHDR) AND FROM LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (LI) 
TO OPEN SPACE-CONSERVATION HABITAT (OS-CH) LOCATED ON 
THE WEST SIDE OF INLAND VALLEY DRIVE APPROXIMATELY 550 


FEET SOUTH OFF CLINTON KEITH ROAD (APN: 380-250-038) 
 


MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 


 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to introduce and approve the first reading of an 
Ordinance entitled: 


 
ORDINANCE NO. 202 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA APPROVING SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT 


NO. 20-0044 FOR THE OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN NO. 
340 LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF INLAND VALLEY DRIVE 


APPROXIMATELY 550 FEET SOUTH OFF CLINTON KEITH ROAD 
(APN: 380-250-038) 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
August 11, 2021 


8 


  
 


 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 


 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to introduce and approve the first reading of an 
Ordinance entitled: 


 
ORDINANCE NO. 202 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA APPROVING ZONING ORDINANCE 


AMENDMENT NO. 2021-05 (PA 20-0044) DELETING IN ITS ENTIRETY 
CHAPTER 17.110 (SP ZONE REQUIREMENTS AND STANDARDS FOR 


SPECIFIC PLAN NO. 340) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 
 


MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 


 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by Mayor Nigg 
to adopt a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 43 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING PLOT PLAN NO. 20-0044, SUBJECT TO 
CONDITIONS, TO DEVELOP A 288-UNIT APARTMENT PROJECT 
WITHIN THE OAK SPRINGS RANCH PHASE II PROJECT AREA, 


INCLUDING ON-SITE OPEN SPACE/RECREATIONAL AMENITIES 
LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF INLAND VALLEY DRIVE 


APPROXIMATELY 550 FEET SOUTH OFF CLINTON KEITH ROAD 
(APN: 380-250-038) 


 
 


3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  
 


3.1 COVID-19 Update  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title.  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
August 11, 2021 


9 


  
 
 
 Assistant City Manager York presented the staff report. 
 
 Veronica Langworthy, resident, provided public comment. 
 
 It was the consensus of the City Council to receive and file the COVID-19 


update.  
 


3.2 False Fire Alarm (Morabito) 
 


Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
Parks, Community Services and Cemetery District Manager Torres 
presented the staff report. 
 
The City Council discussed and provided direction to staff to do more 
research on the false fire alarms occurring in Wildomar and provide an 
update on the Riverside County’s false fire alarm data.  
 


3.3 Re-districting and City’s Five District Election System 
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
 City Attorney Jex presented the staff report. 
 
 It was the consensus of the Council to receive and file the report and to not 


change the City’s five district election system at this time. 
 


3.4 League of California Cities Annual General Business Meeting Voting 
Delegate and Alternate(s) 


 
 Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
 City Clerk Morales presented the staff report. 
 
 A MOTION was made by Councilmember Morabito seconded by Mayor Pro 


Tem Benoit to Ratify Mayor Nigg as the Voting Delegate and Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit as one alternate and appointed Council Member Morabito as 
another Alternate for the League of California Cities Annual General 
Business Meeting. 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
August 11, 2021 


10 


  
 


YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 


3.5 Business Registration Fees/Penalties for Unregistered Businesses 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
Project Consultant Riley presented the staff report. 
 
Residents Andy Morris and Kenny Mayes provided public comment. 
 


 A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Benoit seconded by 
Councilmember Morabito to waive late fees for businesses registered 
between 2008-2019 and forgave Business Registration Fees for years 2021 
and 2022 using American Rescue Plan Act Funding.  


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 


 
3.6 RCTC Funding Agreements No. 21-62-117-00 and 21-62-118-00 SB 821 


Project Grant Funding 
 


Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
Associate Engineer Farag presented the staff report.  
 
Kenny Mayes, resident, provided public comment.  


 
 A MOTION and second to 
 


1. Accept $381,325 from the Riverside County Transportation Commission 
(RCTC) in SB 821 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Program funding for the 
Bundy Canyon Road Sidewalk and Bike Lane Connectivity Project from 
Almond St. to Monte Vista Dr. 
 
2. Accept $432,500 from the Riverside County Transportation Commission 
(RCTC) in SB 821 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Program funding for the 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
August 11, 2021 


11 


  
 


Palomar St. Sidewalk, Trail and Bike Lane Connectivity Project on Palomar 
St. from Gruwell St. to Wildomar Trail and Gruwell St. from Palomar St. to 
550’ North; 
 
3. Authorize the City Manager to execute Funding Agreement No. 21-62-
117-00 and 21-62-118-00 with RCTC. 
 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 
 
 


CITY MANAGER REPORT 
Assistant City Manager York presented the report. 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Added: Subcommittee to discuss Homeowners Associations - Swanson 
  Update from MSJC regarding 2014 Measure AA Bond Funding - Morabito 


ADJOURN THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
There being no further business, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit declared the meeting 
adjourned at 7:02 p.m.  
 
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Janet Morales    Dustin Nigg 
City Clerk     Mayor 


 







  


CITY OF WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.4 


  CONSENT CALENDAR  
 Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________  
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Warrant and Payroll Registers 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the following: 
 
 
 For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 


1. Warrant Register dated 09-02-2021 in the amount of $408,113.24. 
2. Warrant Register dated 09-09-2021 in the amount of $485.73. 
3. Warrant Register dated 09-16-2021 in the amount of $4,765.46. 
4. Warrant Register dated 09-23-2021 in the amount of $1,073,697.03. 
5. Warrant Register dated 09-29-2021 in the amount of $1,969.91. 


 
 For Fiscal Year 2021-2022 


6. Warrant Register dated 09-02-2021 in the amount of $85,735.86. 
7. Warrant Register dated 09-09-2021 in the amount of $94,675.54. 
8. Warrant Register dated 09-16-2021 in the amount of $94,582.54. 
9. Warrant Register dated 09-23-2021 in the amount of $185,636.44. 
10. Warrant Register dated 09-29-2021 in the amount of $977,621.09. 
11. Payroll Register dated 10-01-2021 in the amount of $270,140.77. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
The City of Wildomar requires that the City Council audit payments of demands and direct 
the City Manager to issue checks. The Warrant and Payroll Registers are submitted for 
approval.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
These Warrant, Wire Transfer and Payroll Registers will have a budgetary impact in the 
amount and fiscal year noted in the recommendation section of this report.  These costs 
are included in the Fiscal Year 2020/21 and 2021/22 Budgets. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director              City Manager 







  
 


 2  


 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Voucher List 09/02/2021 (2)   Voucher List 09/23/2021 (2) 
Voucher List 09/09/2021 (2)       Voucher List 09/29/2021 (2) 
Voucher List 09/16/2021 (2)   Payroll Register 10/01/2021  
   







09/02/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:45:12AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214078 9/2/2021 001692  AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 19WK-FGNY-37Y1 CITY CLERK OFFICE SUPPLIES  45.07


Total :  45.07


 214079 9/2/2021 000047  RIVERSIDE COUNTY, SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENTSH0000039394 CONTRACT LAW ENFORCEMENT 


THROUGH 06/30/2


 408,068.17


Total :  408,068.17


Bank total :  408,113.24 2 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 408,113.24Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 2







09/09/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:17:58AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214107 9/9/2021 001621  AVENU MUNISERVICES INV-06-012275 SALES & USE TAX REPORTING SYS STARS 


SVC


 485.73


Total :  485.73


Bank total :  485.73 1 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 485.73Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 1







09/16/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:44:54AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214141 9/16/2021 000035  COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, TLMA tl0000015959 JUNE 2021 SLF COSTS FY20-21  1,122.22


Total :  1,122.22


 214142 9/16/2021 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER62321 COVID MAILING TO RESIDENTS  3,503.25


 14.99PAYPAL SAMSUNG (K DAVIDSON TO 


REIMBURSE)


62521


 25.00PAYPAL PROFESSIONAL PWR MEETING62821


Total :  3,543.24


 214143 9/16/2021 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER62821 MURRIETA CHAMBER  100.00


Total :  100.00


Bank total :  4,765.46 3 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 4,765.46Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 3







09/23/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


11:12:01AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214173 9/23/2021 000034  BIO-TOX LABORATORIES 41470 RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES  198.00


 46.00RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES41471A


Total :  244.00


 214174 9/23/2021 000068  COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, FIRE DEPARTMENT233976 04/01/21-06/30/21 FIRE PROTECTION 


SERVIC


 687,752.15


-5,085.7704/01/21-06/30/21 FIRE PROTECTION 


SERVIC


CR233976


Total :  682,666.38


 214175 9/23/2021 000941  FRONTIER 60121A 06/01/21-06/30/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


 407.04


 52.9306/01/21-06/30/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


60121B


 62.3906/07/21-07/06/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


60721


Total :  522.36


 214176 9/23/2021 001640  JAMES MCMINN INC 92121A BUNDY CANYON RD WIDENING CIP 026-1 


PROG.


 328,150.19


Total :  328,150.19


 214177 9/23/2021 001167  RRM DESIGN GROUP 1064-01-0621 PROF. SVCS. 27 ACRE PARK CIP 062-1  45,183.60


Total :  45,183.60


 214178 9/23/2021 000215  THE PRESS-ENTERPRISE 11466371 PUBLIC NOTICE - ORD 198  275.20


 292.80PUBLIC NOTICE - ORD 19811469768


Total :  568.00


 214179 9/23/2021 000918  TKE ENGINEERING INC 2021-278 03/01/21-03/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS  16,362.50


Total :  16,362.50


Bank total :  1,073,697.03 7 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 1,073,697.03Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 7







09/29/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 1:40:46PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214197 9/29/2021 001621  AVENU MUNISERVICES INV06-12551 SALES & USE TAX REPORT SYSTEM SUTA 


SVC T


 1,025.41


 944.50SALES & USE TAX REPORT SYSTEM SUTA 


DISTR


INV06-12552


Total :  1,969.91


Bank total :  1,969.91 1 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 1,969.91Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 1







09/02/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:46:11AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214080 9/2/2021 001692  AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 111J-PF74-VTX3 CITY COUNCIL DEPT. SUPPLIES  93.80


Total :  93.80


 214081 9/2/2021 001627  AMERICAN EAGLE TROPHIES 5928 PLAQUES FOR COUNCIL CHAMBERS  156.60


Total :  156.60


 214082 9/2/2021 001662  ANOTHER BRILLIANT IDEA, INC. 140707 COVID-19 FRONT COUNTER TI STE 109/110 


PO


 1,497.00


Total :  1,497.00


 214083 9/2/2021 000029  APPLEONE 01-6021119 RECALL ELECTION SUPPORT DUE TO 


COVID-19


 1,522.56


Total :  1,522.56


 214084 9/2/2021 001693  BROCK, RODNEY 511 COVID-19 FRONT COUNTER TI STE 109 - 


PAIN


 700.00


 700.00COVID-19 FRONT COUNTER TI STE 110 - 


PAIN


512


Total :  1,400.00


 214085 9/2/2021 001622  COMMERCIAL BUILDING MANAGEMENT, SERVICES INC68295 0000362 WILDOMAR PARK CLEANING SVC FY21/22 


AS PE


 4,205.00


 242.76JULY 2021 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES - MARNA 


OB


68296


 1,800.00JULY 2021 CITY HALL DISINFECT - 


COVID-19


68297


0000362  4,005.00WILDOMAR PARK CLEANING SVC FY21/22 


AS PE


68368


 242.76AUG 2021 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES - MARNA 


OBR


68369


 2,250.00AUG 2021 CITY HALL DISINFECT - COVID-1968370


Total :  12,745.52


 214086 9/2/2021 001694  COSTAR REALTY INFORMATION INC 114387310-1 CONTRACTUAL SVCS  1,104.13


Total :  1,104.13


 214087 9/2/2021 000037  DATA TICKET, INC. 127523 JULY 2021 DAILY CITE PROCESSING  200.00


 222.55JULY 2021 ONLINE/SSN CITATION 


PROCESSING


128103







09/02/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 9:46:11AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  422.55 214087 9/2/2021 000037 000037  DATA TICKET, INC.


 214088 9/2/2021 001338  DEANZA TERMITE & PEST CONTROL, INC578396A PEST CONTROL (08/26/21)  25.00


Total :  25.00


 214089 9/2/2021 000022  EDISON 80321 07/01/21-07/31/21 ELECTRIC  5,216.55


 9.4307/19/21-08/16/21 WILDOMAR 31160 CK LS381721A


 18.5207/19/21-08/16/21 32975 WILLOW BAY RD81721B


 64.6207/19/21-08/16/21 32975 WILLOW BAY RD 


TC


81721C


Total :  5,309.12


 214090 9/2/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT11233754 07/08/21-08/07/21 WATER ZONE 52 LOC 01  131.70


 39.3007/08/21-08/07/21 WATER ZONE 29 LOC 0211233810


 377.9707/08/21-08/07/21 WATER ZONE 71 LOC 0111234089


 83.5807/08/21-08/07/21 WATER 32637 GRUWELL -11234289


 5,017.4007/08/21-08/07/21 WATER MARNA OBRIEN11234370


 84.7807/11/21-08/11/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 7 M111239043


 162.3007/11/21-08/11/21 WATER HERITAGE PARK 


(A


11239056


 1,039.4207/12/21-08/12/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 25 


M1


11242196


 2,367.0307/12/21-08/12/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 25 


M2


11242197


 985.9607/12/21-08/12/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 24 


M1


11243971


 334.6207/12/21-08/12/21 WATER CFD 2013-1 ZONE11245143


 918.3807/12/21-08/12/21 WATER MALAGA 


GATEWAY P


11245304


Total :  11,542.44


 214091 9/2/2021 000342  FENCE MASTERS 1202628 INSTALL TENSION BAR & RESTRETCH 


CHAINLIN


 390.00


Total :  390.00


 214092 9/2/2021 001666  INFINITY TECHNOLOGIES 103 0000351 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT 


SERVICES


 8,629.59


Total :  8,629.59


 214093 9/2/2021 001530  LOGO JOE'S 11232 CODE ENFORCEMENT DEPT SUPPLIES  443.53







09/02/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


 9:46:11AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  443.53 214093 9/2/2021 001530 001530  LOGO JOE'S


 214094 9/2/2021 001046  MUNICIPAL CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC 83121 08/01/21-08/31/21 PROJECT CONSULTANT  9,597.50


Total :  9,597.50


 214095 9/2/2021 001683  PARKER, JOHN 83121 REIMBURSE: CACEO CODE WEBINAR  38.00


Total :  38.00


 214096 9/2/2021 001696  PELLENS, KERRI 83121 REFUND: FIELD LIGHT HOURS LOWERED  610.00


Total :  610.00


 214097 9/2/2021 001107  PLACEWORKS 76016 JULY 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - ZONE 


CONSIST


 5,349.90


 380.00JULY 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - COUNTER76045


 2,192.50JULY 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


76046


 470.50JULY 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


76047


 2,822.00JULY 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


76048


 3,179.75JULY 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


76049


 5,526.75JULY 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - HOUSING76050


 1,540.75JULY 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


76051


 1,003.96JULY 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - CIP 028-176092


Total :  22,466.11


 214098 9/2/2021 000186  RIGHTWAY 288898 08/19/21-09/15/21 PORTA/WASHSTN - 


WINDSO


 402.00


Total :  402.00


 214099 9/2/2021 001695  SHARP, RICHARD 63021 REFUND OF UNUSED DEVELOPERS 


DEPOSIT #20-


 982.38


Total :  982.38


 214100 9/2/2021 001241  SIEMENS MOBILITY, INC. 5610278052 JULY 2021 TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE  1,494.50


 2,349.62JULY 2021 TRAFFIC SIGNAL RESPONSE 


CALL O


5620036883


Total :  3,844.12







09/02/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


 9:46:11AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214101 9/2/2021 000378  TEMECULA VALLEY PIPE & SUPPLY 612716A MARNA OBRIEN DEPT SUPPLIES  800.46


 588.45BASEBALL FIELD DEPT SUPPLIES612717


Total :  1,388.91


 214102 9/2/2021 001571  THE OFFICE FURNITURE EXPERT INV-11070 DISASSEMBLE & MOVE CUBICLES - COVID 


19


 1,125.00


Total :  1,125.00


Bank total :  85,735.86 23 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 85,735.86Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 23







09/09/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:18:38AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214108 9/9/2021 000088  ACE HARDWARE 306080/3 MARNA OBRIEN DEPT SUPPLIES  134.30


Total :  134.30


 214109 9/9/2021 000007  ANIMAL FRIENDS OF THE VALLEY,, INC. JULY.2021 JULY 2021 ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICE  7,000.00


Total :  7,000.00


 214110 9/9/2021 001002  ARCHITERRA DESIGN GROUP 28676 07/25/21-08/24/21 LANDSCAPE DESIGN 


GUIDE


 4,540.00


 743.5007/25/21-08/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC - SITE28689


 250.0007/25/21-08/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC - 2ND C28690


 312.5007/25/21-08/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC - 3RD P28691


Total :  5,846.00


 214111 9/9/2021 001468  BANKS, ARRIN 81921 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 08/18/21  75.00


 75.00PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 09/01/2190221


Total :  150.00


 214112 9/9/2021 001419  BERNARD, BRIANNA 81921 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 08/18/21  75.00


 75.00PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 09/01/2190221


Total :  150.00


 214113 9/9/2021 000022  EDISON 72821 06/28/21-07/27/21 ELECTRIC 21400 


PALOMAR


 200.42


 85.9606/01/21-07/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00182421A


 154.5606/01/21-07/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00182421B


 497.8106/01/21-07/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00182421C


 71.7106/01/21-07/31/21 ELECTRIC CSA 10382421D


 309.1806/01/21-07/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00182421E


 401.9206/01/21-07/31/21 ELECTRIC WILDOMAR 


CITY


82421F


 592.3806/01/21-07/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00182421G


 81.1806/01/21-07/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00182421H


 309.1606/01/21-07/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00182421I


 566.7606/01/21-07/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00182421J


 525.5906/01/21-07/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00182421K


 204.0007/28-08/25/21 ELECTRIC 21400 PALOMAR 


ST


82621A


 78.8507/28-08/25/21 ELECTRIC BASEBALL FIELD82621B


 944.7407/22/21-08/25/21 ELECTRIC82621C







09/09/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 9:18:38AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  5,024.22 214113 9/9/2021 000022 000022  EDISON


 214114 9/9/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT11246014 07/15/21-08/14/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 01 


M


 1,978.80


 284.2107/15/21-08/14/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 03 


M


11246265


 473.8607/15/21-08/14/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 02 


M


11246266


 264.2607/18/21-08/17/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 23 


M1


11248941


 94.7307/18/21-08/17/21 WATER ZONE 30 LOC 211249149


 91.4307/18/21-08/17/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 49 


M1


11249189


 155.3507/18/21-08/17/21 WATER ZONE 51 LOC 111249443


 573.5407/18/21-08/17/21 WATER BASEBALL FIELD11249609


 1,129.4207/18/21-08/17/21 WATER WINDSONG PARK11249649


 474.9107/18/21-08/17/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 29 


M1


11250158


 239.8607/18/21-08/17/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 29 


M2


11250236


 266.3307/18/21-08/17/21 WATER ZONE 30 LOC 111250239


 289.0707/18/21-08/17/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 42 &11250338


 163.7707/18/21-08/17/21 WATER 22450 1/2 


CERVER


11250734


 189.7907/18/21-08/17/21 WATER 22450 CERVERA11250972


 243.2307/18/21-08/17/21 WATER ZONE 62 - 2293311252070


 106.1107/18/21-08/17/21 WATER ZONE 67 - 


ARNNET


11252156


 298.0407/19/21-08/19/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 35 


M1


11252717


Total :  7,316.71


 214115 9/9/2021 001266  ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS RESEARCH, INSTITUTE (ESRI)94081469 ARCGIS ONLINE 


GIS/CREAT0R/FIELD/VIEWER R


 3,900.00


Total :  3,900.00


 214116 9/9/2021 001343  FILAR, ERIC 81921 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 08/18/21  75.00


 75.00PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 09/01/2190221


Total :  150.00







09/09/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


 9:18:38AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214117 9/9/2021 001222  FOBRO CONSULTING LLC 119 0000348 CONTRACTUAL SVCS 07/01/21-06/30/22 AS 


PE


 3,355.00


Total :  3,355.00


 214118 9/9/2021 000941  FRONTIER 82221 08/22/21-09/21/21 FIOS INTERNET 


CHARGES


 175.98


Total :  175.98


 214119 9/9/2021 000634  HEYDAY RECORDS AND EVENTS 82321 09/18/21 EVENT  3,150.00


Total :  3,150.00


 214120 9/9/2021 001153  INTELLI-TECH 14873 0000361 FORTIGATE 100E 1-YR 24X7 UTM BUNDLE 


RENE


 1,371.00


Total :  1,371.00


 214121 9/9/2021 000879  LLOYD, JOHN 90221 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 09/01/21  75.00


Total :  75.00


 214122 9/9/2021 001530  LOGO JOE'S 11267 CODE ENFORCEMENT DEPT SUPPLIES  78.26


Total :  78.26


 214123 9/9/2021 001398  LUNA, CAMERON 83021 PW/ENG OFFICE SUPPLY 


REIMBURSEMENT


 31.74


Total :  31.74


 214124 9/9/2021 001543  NPPW SERVICES 11825 0000345 COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


 606.03


0000345  606.03COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


11826


0000345  606.03COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


11827


Total :  1,818.09


 214125 9/9/2021 001697  OMNI FINANCIAL 1821 REFUND: OVERPAYMENT OF CFD ANNEX 


DEPOSIT


 6,000.00


Total :  6,000.00


 214126 9/9/2021 001262  PEST OPTIONS INC 385835 SPECIAL SERVICE RIFA IN PARK  145.00


Total :  145.00


 214127 9/9/2021 000526  PRINT POSTAL 16031 MARIACHI NIGHT FLYERS  70.69


 94.52CITY CLERK DEPT SUPPLIES16067







09/09/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


 9:18:38AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  165.21 214127 9/9/2021 000526 000526  PRINT POSTAL


 214128 9/9/2021 001422  SOLORIO, TRAVIS 83021 08/14/21-08/27/21 MILEAGE 


REIMBURSEMENT


 32.48


Total :  32.48


 214129 9/9/2021 000790  SPARKLETTS 82121 CITY HALL DRINKING WATER THROUGH 


08/21/2


 100.65


Total :  100.65


 214130 9/9/2021 001021  SPICER CONSULTING GROUP 875 FY 21/22 ANNUAL ADMIN LLMD89-1-C/CSA 


22/


 2,791.67


 5,000.00CFD 2013-1 ANNEX 21 (OMNI 50%)886


 5,000.00CFD 2013-1 ANNEX 21 (BEAZER 50%)887


Total :  12,791.67


 214131 9/9/2021 000919  STANTON, SHERRI 90721 REIMBURSEMENT FOR HR OFFICE 


SUPPLIES


 114.82


Total :  114.82


 214132 9/9/2021 000995  STRONG, KIM 81921 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 08/18/21  75.00


Total :  75.00


 214133 9/9/2021 000918  TKE ENGINEERING INC 2021-654 07/01/21-07/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS  10,653.00


 1,121.0007/01/21-07/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-655


 501.9807/01/21-07/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-656


 520.0007/01/21-07/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-659


 3,453.0007/01/21-07/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-660


 164.0007/01/21-07/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-661


 5,793.0007/01/21-07/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-662


 10,867.5007/01/21-07/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-663


 630.0007/01/21-07/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-664


 1,155.0007/01/21-07/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-665


Total :  34,858.48


 214134 9/9/2021 000437  VERIZON WIRELESS 9886820994 08/23/21-09/22/21 DATA INTERNET CHARGE  589.91


 76.0208/23/21-09/22/21 DATA INTERNET CHARGE9886820995


Total :  665.93


Bank total :  94,675.54 27 Vouchers for bank code : wf







09/09/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


5


 9:18:38AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 94,675.54Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 27







09/16/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:45:25AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214144 9/16/2021 000031  AFLAC, REMITTANCE PROCESSING, CENTER844338 AUGUST 2021 MEDICAL INSURANCE 


BENEFIT


 2,026.38


Total :  2,026.38


 214145 9/16/2021 000029  APPLEONE 01-6034548 RECALL ELECTION SUPPORT DUE TO 


COVID-19


 1,522.56


Total :  1,522.56


 214146 9/16/2021 000554  AT & T 82821 TELEPHONE LONG DISTANCE P/E 08/28/21  44.63


Total :  44.63


 214147 9/16/2021 000785  CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS, LLC 82094563 AUGUST 2021 CODE ENFORCEMENT 


SOFTWARE


 189.50


Total :  189.50


 214148 9/16/2021 001292  CRISP IMAGING 143249 CIP 057-1  27.19


Total :  27.19


 214149 9/16/2021 001433  DAVIDSON, KIMBERLY 91521A REIMBURSE: ECON DEV DEPT GIFT CARD  25.00


 40.71REIMBURSE: MEETING LUNCH91521B


Total :  65.71


 214150 9/16/2021 000058  DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 528092 JULY 2021 FINGERPRINT APPS  96.00


Total :  96.00


 214151 9/16/2021 001690  GALLS, LLC 18882306 CODE ENFORCEMENT DEPT SUPPLIES  147.88


Total :  147.88


 214152 9/16/2021 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 29980267 CANON COLOR COPIER SYST. #25-1249376  254.81


Total :  254.81


 214153 9/16/2021 000499  INLAND EMPIRE LANDSCAPE INC 36726 JULY 2021 LANDSCAPE INSPECTION - 


ZONE 3


 180.00


 2,794.42JULY 2021 LANDSCAPE REPAIR/REPLACE36813


 14,735.66JULY 2021 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE36814


 45.00JULY 2021 LANDSCAPE INSPECTION - CSA 


103


36831


Total :  17,755.08







09/16/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 9:45:25AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214154 9/16/2021 000272  INLAND URGENT CARE 70670 08/19/21 PRE-EMPLOYMENT - Y 


MAGDALENO


 95.00


Total :  95.00


 214155 9/16/2021 000016  INNOVATIVE DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS 233579 08/01/21-08/31/21 CONTRACT COPIER SVC 


MA


 903.12


Total :  903.12


 214156 9/16/2021 001153  INTELLI-TECH 14875 0000363 ESET ENDPOINT PROTECTION STANDARD 


CLOUD


 1,380.00


Total :  1,380.00


 214157 9/16/2021 001337  MPS SECURITY 0808-14237 0000357 WILDOMAR PARKS PATROL SVC - FY21/22 


AS D


 5,652.50


Total :  5,652.50


 214158 9/16/2021 001555  NBS 721000175 AUGUST 2021 PROFESSIONAL SVCS  1,835.00


Total :  1,835.00


 214159 9/16/2021 000185  PITNEY BOWES 1018877838 09/16/21-12/15/21 POSTAGE METER RENTAL  97.88


Total :  97.88


 214160 9/16/2021 000606  RING CENTRAL CD-000286246 NEW DIGITAL LINE  397.72


Total :  397.72


 214161 9/16/2021 001241  SIEMENS MOBILITY, INC. 5610278213 INSTALLATION OF 80 SAFETY LIGHTS  51,506.82


Total :  51,506.82


 214162 9/16/2021 001422  SOLORIO, TRAVIS 91321 08/28/21-09/10/21 MILEAGE 


REIMBURSEMENT


 27.26


Total :  27.26


 214163 9/16/2021 001615  THE HOWARD E NYHART COMPANY, INC 169922 PROFESSIONAL SVC - GASB 75 REPORT 


THROUG


 2,000.00


Total :  2,000.00


 214164 9/16/2021 000215  THE PRESS-ENTERPRISE 90321 NEWSPAPER SUBSCRIPTION  366.87


Total :  366.87


 214165 9/16/2021 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER70521 LEAGUE OF CA CITIES  3,300.00


-475.00CREDIT: LEAGUE OF CA CITIES72221







09/16/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


 9:45:25AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214165 9/16/2021 (Continued)000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER


 250.00VIDEO HOSTING SOFTWARE73121


 3,348.78LEAGUE OF CA CITIES - AIRFARE80321


 83.37BANK FEES81721


Total :  6,507.15


 214166 9/16/2021 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER70221 LEAGUE OF CA CITIES  550.00


 175.00EVENT PHOTOS70221


 79.99MARKETING PLATFORM SUBSCRIPTION71621


 5.99NEWSPAPER MEMBERSHIP71821


 81.43MEETING - LUNCH72821


 49.99FACEBOOK BOOST MARKETING73121


 100.00ICSC MEETING80321


 30.00MURRIETA CHAMBER80921


 15.00MURRIETA CHAMBER81121


 123.40ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPT 


SUPPLIES - COV


81221


 134.95ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  DEPT 


SUPPLIES - CO


81521


 79.99MARKETING PLATFORM SUBSCRIPTION81621


 134.85ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPT 


SUPPLIES - COV


81721


 116.90BANK FEES81721KD


 5.99NEWSPAPER MEMBERSHIP81821


Total :  1,683.48


Bank total :  94,582.54 23 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 94,582.54Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 23







09/23/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


11:12:38AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214180 9/23/2021 000033  AMERICAN FORENSIC NURSES 74822 BLOOD DRAW (6) DRY RUN (1)  360.00


Total :  360.00


 214181 9/23/2021 000034  BIO-TOX LABORATORIES 41471B RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES  141.00


 554.00RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES41604


 785.00RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES41605


Total :  1,480.00


 214182 9/23/2021 001437  CENTER AGAINST SEXUAL ASSAULT 1224 POLICE DEPT - SEXUAL ASSAULT EXAM 


7/31/2


 1,200.00


 300.00POLICE DEPT - FOLLOW UP EXAM 8/04/21 


#WI


1228


 1,200.00POLICE DEPT - SEXUAL ASSAULT EXAM 


8/26/2


1249


 1,400.00POLICE DEPT - SEXUAL ASSAULT EXAM 


9/04/2


1253


Total :  4,100.00


 214183 9/23/2021 001273  COMFORT ELECTRIC INC. 99854 COVID-19: FRONT COUNTER TI STE 109/110 


-


 525.00


Total :  525.00


 214184 9/23/2021 000011  CR&R INC. 2716 08/01/21-08/31/21 STREET & BIKE LANE 


SWE


 603.08


 930.2308/24/21 DUMP 40 YD BOX & DISPOSAL FEE339601


 166.5209/01/21   3 YD BOX - BASEBALL FIELD339627


 166.5209/01/21   3 YD BOX - FIRE STATION #61339684


Total :  1,866.35


 214185 9/23/2021 000058  DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 529152 JULY 2021 POLICE BLOOD ALCOHOL  35.00


 32.00AUGUST 2021 FINGERPRINT APPS534080


Total :  67.00


 214186 9/23/2021 000022  EDISON 82721 06/15/21-08/26/21 ELECTRIC - ZONE  691.76


 203.4608/01/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC WILDOMAR 


CITY


90121-0828


 287.8008/01/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00190121-0962


 253.1908/01/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00190121-1757


 5,251.8108/01/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC90121-4293


 78.2508/01/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00190121-4845







09/23/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


11:12:38AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214186 9/23/2021 (Continued)000022  EDISON


 59.3008/01/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00190121-7504


 265.8908/01/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00190121-7694


 156.5108/01/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00190121-8975


 300.3308/01/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00190121-9127


-714.70CREDIT: ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001 ZONE 290221-0962


-627.40CREDIT: ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001 ZONE 390221-1757


-507.25CREDIT: ELECTRIC WILDOMAR CITY 


LAMPS


90321-0828


 729.07REBILL 06/15/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2090321-0962


 641.35REBILL 06/15/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2090321-1757


-195.03CREDIT: ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00190321-4845


S -146.99CREDIT: ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001  ZONE 890321-7504


-663.20CREDIT: ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001 ZONE 1/290321-7694


-390.28CREDIT: ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001 ZONE 390321-8975


-747.26CREDIT: ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001 ZONE 590321-9127


 515.38REBILL 06/15/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC 


WILDOM


90721-0828


 198.17REBILL 06/15/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2090721-4845


 150.36REBILL 06/15/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2090721-7504


 673.82REBILL 06/15/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2090721-7694


 396.51REBILL 06/15/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2090721-8975


 760.71REBILL 06/15/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2090721-9127


Total :  7,621.56


 214187 9/23/2021 001222  FOBRO CONSULTING LLC 120 0000348 CONTRACTUAL SVCS 07/01/21-06/30/22 AS 


PE


 3,355.00


Total :  3,355.00


 214188 9/23/2021 001700  FORENSIC NURSE SPECIALISTS INC 4846 POLICE DEPT - SEXUAL ASSAULT EXAM 


7/25/2


 800.00


Total :  800.00


 214189 9/23/2021 000941  FRONTIER 70121A 07/01/21-07/31/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


 405.41


 53.1807/01/21-07/31/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


70121B


 62.3907/07/21-08/06/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


70721







09/23/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


11:12:38AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214189 9/23/2021 (Continued)000941  FRONTIER


 405.4108/01/21-08/31/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


80121A


 53.1808/01/21-08/31/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


80121B


 62.4908/07/21-09/06/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


80721


 405.4109/01/21-09/30/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


90121A


 53.1809/01/21-09/30/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


90121B


 62.6109/07/21-10/06/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


90721


Total :  1,563.26


 214190 9/23/2021 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 29861007 CANON COLOR COPIER SYST. 


#015-1472515


 359.97


 254.81CANON COLOR COPIER SYST. #13-122858830024599


 473.00CANON COLOR COPIER SYST. 


#015-1472515


30041474


 297.26CANON COLOR COPIER SYST. 


#003-1585799


30063603


Total :  1,385.04


 214191 9/23/2021 000072  INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP 71277 JULY 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - CIP -  63,293.75


 93,499.19JULY 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC -71293


Total :  156,792.94


 214192 9/23/2021 001398  LUNA, CAMERON 92021 PW/ENG OFFICE SUPPLY 


REIMBURSEMENT


 46.00


Total :  46.00


 214193 9/23/2021 001107  PLACEWORKS 76132 AUGUST 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - CIP 


028-1


 460.00


Total :  460.00


 214194 9/23/2021 001701  QUINTERO, BONNIE 33021 REFUND OF UNUSED DEVELOPERS 


DEPOSIT 21-0


 3,165.36


Total :  3,165.36


 214195 9/23/2021 000415  RIVERSIDE COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL, & WATER CONSERVATION DIST92121 RELOCATION: LATERAL CONNECT TO 


STORM DRA


 2,000.00







09/23/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


11:12:38AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  2,000.00 214195 9/23/2021 000415 000415  RIVERSIDE COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL, & WATER CONSERVATION DIST


 214196 9/23/2021 001393  SOCALGAS 91021 08/09/21-09/08/21 GAS - FIRE DEPT 32637  48.93


Total :  48.93


Bank total :  185,636.44 17 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 185,636.44Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 17







09/29/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 1:41:19PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214198 9/29/2021 000031  AFLAC, REMITTANCE PROCESSING, CENTER239127 SEPTEMBER 2021 MEDICAL INSURANCE 


BENEFIT


 2,026.38


Total :  2,026.38


 214199 9/29/2021 001662  ANOTHER BRILLIANT IDEA, INC. 663529 08/02/21-09/01/21 FRONT COUNTER TOUCH 


FR


 8.80


Total :  8.80


 214200 9/29/2021 000029  APPLEONE 01-6043394 RECALL ELECTION SUPPORT DUE TO 


COVID-19


 1,141.92


Total :  1,141.92


 214201 9/29/2021 000760  ARMADA ADMINISTRATORS 168665 OCTOBER 2021 PREMIUM  3,152.00


Total :  3,152.00


 214202 9/29/2021 001330  BMW MOTORCYCLES OF RIVERSIDE 6028333/1 BMW MOTORCYCLE MAINTENANCE - 


SHERIFF


 698.43


Total :  698.43


 214203 9/29/2021 000002  CRYSTAL CLEAN MAINTENANCE 903I SEPTEMBER 2021 JANITORIAL SERVICES - 


CIT


 2,380.00


Total :  2,380.00


 214204 9/29/2021 000027  DIRECT TV 082317220X210913 09/12/21-10/11/21 CABLE SERVICES - CITY  160.99


Total :  160.99


 214205 9/29/2021 000022  EDISON 91321A 08/12/21-09/12/21 ELECTRIC - CITY HALL #  232.21


 117.7208/12/21-09/12/21 ELECTRIC - CITY HALL #91321B


 76.7608/12/21-09/12/21 ELECTRIC - CITY HALL #91321C


 15.7708/12/21-09/12/21 ELECTRIC - CFD 2013-0091321D


 9.3608/17/21-09/15/21 ELECTRIC - WILDOMAR 


31


91621A


 23.2508/17/21-09/15/21 ELECTRIC - 32975 WILLO91621B


 67.1008/17/21-09/15/21 ELECTRIC - 32975 WILLO91621C


Total :  542.17


 214206 9/29/2021 000941  FRONTIER 92221 09/22/21-10/21/21 FIOS INTERNET 


CHARGES


 175.98


Total :  175.98







09/29/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 1:41:19PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214207 9/29/2021 000499  INLAND EMPIRE LANDSCAPE INC 36906 AUGUST 2021 LANDSCAPE 


REPAIR/REPLACE - Z


 134.42


 875.00AUGUST 2021 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 


- BASE


36916


 14,735.66AUGUST 2021 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE36956


Total :  15,745.08


 214208 9/29/2021 001640  JAMES MCMINN INC 92121B BUNDY CANYON WIDENING CIP 026-1 


PROGRESS


 167,609.87


 272,556.32BUNDY CANYON WIDENING CIP 026-1 


PROGRESS


92121C


Total :  440,166.19


 214209 9/29/2021 001398  LUNA, CAMERON 92721 09/11/21-09/24/21 MILEAGE 


REIMBURSEMENT


 17.92


Total :  17.92


 214210 9/29/2021 001107  PLACEWORKS 76264 AUGUST 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


COUNTER


 474.98


 142.50AUGUST 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - CIP 


025-1


76265


 522.50AUGUST 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


PROJECT R


76266


 407.50AUGUST 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


PROJECT R


76267


 12,321.08AUGUST 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


PROJECT R


76268


 2,134.00AUGUST 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


PROJECT R


76269


 300.00AUGUST 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


PROJECT R


76270


 6,895.25AUGUST 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


HOUSING


76271


 21.25AUGUST 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


PROJECT R


76272


 2,045.00AUGUST 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


PROJECT R


76273


 5,651.70AUGUST 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - ZONE 


CONS


76342


Total :  30,915.76







09/29/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


 1:41:19PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214211 9/29/2021 000042  PV MAINTENANCE, INC. 005-245 AUGUST 2021 - CITYWIDE MAINTENANCE 


CONTR


 44,058.50


Total :  44,058.50


 214212 9/29/2021 000186  RIGHTWAY 289927 09/16/21-10/13/21 - PORTA/WASHSTN - 


WIND


 402.00


Total :  402.00


 214213 9/29/2021 000047  RIVERSIDE COUNTY, SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENTSH0000039520 CONTRACT LAW ENFORCEMENT 


THROUGH 07/28/2


 432,022.86


Total :  432,022.86


 214214 9/29/2021 001241  SIEMENS MOBILITY, INC. 5610278278 AUGUST 2021 TRAFFIC SIGNAL 


MAINTENANCE


 1,494.50


 2,360.77AUGUST 2021 TRAFFIC SIGNAL RESPONSE 


CALL


5620037310


Total :  3,855.27


 214215 9/29/2021 001422  SOLORIO, TRAVIS 92721 09/11/21-09/24/21 MILEAGE 


REIMBURSEMENT


 29.00


Total :  29.00


 214216 9/29/2021 000790  SPARKLETTS 91821 CITY HALL DRINKING WATER THROUGH 


09/18/2


 116.52


Total :  116.52


 214217 9/29/2021 001495  TIME WARNER CABLE 2318090821 CABLE THROUGH 10/07/21 - FS61  5.32


Total :  5.32


Bank total :  977,621.09 20 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 977,621.09Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 20







ACH Date Payee Description Amount


9/2/2021 Heartland Payroll 08/14/2021-08/27/2021 89,264.95$    
9/16/2021 Heartland Payroll 08/28/2021-09/10/2021 91,633.40
9/30/2021 Heartland Payroll 09/11/2021-09/24/2021 87,551.67
10/1/2021 Heartland Payroll 09/01/2021-09/30/2021 1,690.75


TOTAL 270,140.77$  


City of Wildomar
Payroll Warrant Register


10/1/2021







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.5 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 


 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, City Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:  Treasurer’s Report 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Treasurer’s Report for August 2021. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for Cash and Investments for the month of August 
2021. The City utilizes both the California State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF) and the California Asset Management Program (CAMP) for its city 
investments. Utilizing the two investment programs allows the City to potentially increase 
the interest earned on the money held.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
City Treasurer      City Manager   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 


 







BEGINNING + (-) ENDING
FUND ACCOUNT INSTITUTION BALANCE DEPOSITS WITHDRAWALS BALANCE RATE


All All WELLS FARGO # 14,508,152.32  $ 1,967,359.17 (1,828,904.39)  $ 14,646,607.10 0.000%


TOTAL  $ 14,508,152.32  $ 1,967,359.17  $ (1,828,904.39)  $ 14,646,607.10


PERCENT
OF DAYS STATED


FUND BOOK VALUE FACE VALUE MARKET VALUE PORTFOLIO TO MAT. RATE


All  $ 3,662,540.25  $ 3,662,540.25  $ 3,662,540.25 100.00% 0 0.221%
All  $ 5,592,713.16  $ 5,592,713.16  $ 5,592,713.16 100.00% 0 0.050%


TOTAL  $ 9,255,253.41  $ 9,255,253.41  $ 9,255,253.41 100.00%


CITY $ 23,901,860.51


(-)
+ WITHDRAWALS/


BEGINNING DEPOSITS/ SALES/ ENDING STATED
FUND BALANCE PURCHASES MATURITIES BALANCE RATE


All  $ 3,662,540.25  $ 0.00  $ 0.00  $ 3,662,540.25 0.221%
All  $ 5,592,466.98  $ 246.18  $ 0.00  $ 5,592,713.16 0.050%


TOTAL  $ 9,255,007.23  $ 246.18  $ 0.00  $ 9,255,253.41


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR
TREASURER'S REPORT FOR


CASH AND INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
August 2021


TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENT


CITY INVESTMENT


In compliance with the California Code Section 53646, as City Treasurer for the City of Wildomar, I hereby certify that sufficient investment liquidity and anticipated revenues 
are available to meet the City's expenditure requirements for the next six months, and that all investments are in compliance with the City's Statement of Investment Policy.


I also certify that this report reflects all Government Agency pooled investments and all of the City's Bank Balances.


CITY CASH


ISSUER


CALIFORNIA ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM


CALIFORNIA ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM


CITY INVESTMENT (Continued)


LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND


LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUNDS


ISSUER


Robert Howell
Robert Howell
City Treasurer


Date


10/6/2021







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.6 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 


 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Matthew C. Bassi, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 203 – Wildomar Trail Town Center Project 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council adopt the following 
Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 203 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 
20-0039 TO: 1) REMOVE THE MIXED-USE OVERLAY ZONE 
DESIGNATION FOR THE ENTIRE WILDOMAR TRAIL TOWN 


CENTER PROJECT SITE, AND CHANGE THE EXISTING ZONING 
DESIGNATION FOR THE 6.07-ACRE RESIDENTIAL PORTION OF 
PROJECT SITE FROM C-P-S (SCENIC HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL) 


TO R-3 (GENERAL RESIDENTIAL) LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF WILDOMAR TRAIL AND THE I-15 FREEWAY (APN: 
376-180-006 AND 376-190-002); AND 2) CHANGE THE EXISTING 


ZONING DESIGNATION FOR THE NORTHERLY 10-ACRES OF THE 
JAMES CARTER PROPERTY FROM I-P (INDUSTRIAL PARK) TO R-


3 (GENERAL RESIDENTIAL) LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST 
CORNER OF YAMAS DRIVE AND PRIELIPP ROAD (APN: 380-250-


019) TO COMPLY WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SB 166 


DISCUSSION: 
The City Council approved the first reading of Ordinance No. 203 at the September 8, 
2021 City Council meeting for the Wildomar Trail Town Center Mixed-Use Project (PA 
20-0039).  At this time, it would be appropriate for the City Council to adopt Ordinance 
No. 203. 
 


Submitted by:     Approved by: 
Matthew Bassi     Gary Nordquist 
Planning Director     City Manager 


 
ATTACHMENT: 
A. Ordinance No. 203 







ATTACHMENT A 
 


Ordinance No. 203 
 







ORDINANCE NO. 203 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 
20-0039 TO: 1) REMOVE THE MIXED-USE OVERLAY ZONE 
DESIGNATION FOR THE ENTIRE WILDOMAR TRAIL TOWN 
CENTER PROJECT SITE, AND CHANGE THE EXISTING ZONING 
DESIGNATION FOR THE 6.07-ACRE RESIDENTIAL PORTION 
OF PROJECT SITE FROM C-P-S (SCENIC HIGHWAY 
COMMERCIAL) TO R-3 (GENERAL RESIDENTIAL) LOCATED AT 
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF WILDOMAR TRAIL AND THE I-
15 FREEWAY (APN: 376-180-006 AND 376-190-002); AND 2) 
CHANGE THE EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION FOR THE 
NORTHERLY 10-ACRES OF THE JAMES CARTER PROPERTY 
FROM I-P (INDUSTRIAL PARK) TO R-3 (GENERAL 
RESIDENTIAL) LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 
YAMAS DRIVE AND PRIELIPP ROAD (APN: 380-250-019) TO 
COMPLY WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SB 166  


THE WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 


SECTION 1. CEQA 
The approval of Change of Zone No. 20-0039 is in compliance with requirements 


of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), in that on September 8, 2021, at a 
duly noticed public hearing, the City Council certified an Environmental Impact Report 
(SCH#: 2020090408), including the Statement of Facts and Findings, Overriding 
Considerations, Response to Comments and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program, reflecting its independent judgment and analysis and documenting the 
environmental impacts and mitigation measures related to the proposed Change of Zone 
No. 20-0039 for the Wildomar Trail Town Center project. The documents comprising the 
City’s environmental review for the project are on file and available for public review at 
Wildomar City Hall, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201, Wildomar, CA 92595. 


SECTION 2. Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP) 
 The City Council hereby finds the Wildomar Trail Town Center project to be 
consistent with the MSHCP, as the project is located outside of any MSHCP criteria area 
cell, and mitigation is provided through payment of the MSHCP Mitigation Fee. 


SECTION 3. Change of Zone Findings 
In accordance with Government Code 65856 and 65857 and Chapter 17.280 of 


the Wildomar Zoning Ordinance, the City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning 
Commission, in light of the whole record before it, including but not limited to the Planning 
Department’s staff report and all documents incorporated by reference herein, the City’s 
General Plan and any other evidence within the record or provided at the public hearing 
of this matter, finds and determines as follows: 







A. The proposed change of zone is in conformance with the adopted General Plan for 
the City of Wildomar. 


 
Evidence:  The existing general plan land use designation for the Wildomar Trail 
Town Center project site is Mixed Use Planning Area (MUPA) which is designated 
for mixed use the development projects consisting of residential, commercial/retail 
office, etc.  The entire 25.8-acre project site has an existing zoning designation of 
C-P-S (Scenic Highway Commercial) which would not allow the proposed 109-unit 
townhome/condominium community.  Thus, it is appropriate to change the zoning 
on the 6.07-acre residential portion of project site from C-P-S (Scenic Highway 
Commercial) to R-3 (General Residential).  The R-3 zoning designation is consistent 
with the MUPA land use designation and the proposed 109-unit 
townhome/condominium community is consistent with the R-3 zone use and 
development standards as outlined in Section 17.44 of the WMC.  Further, the 
potential environmental impacts were evaluated in the DEIR, and it was determined 
that the change of zone did not create any impacts, and therefore, did not require 
any mitigation. Given this, the proposed zone change from C-P-S to R-3 to 
accommodate the 6.07-acre residential portion of project site is consistent with the 
General Plan.  
 
The Applicant is also proposing a change of zone to remove the existing MU-Overlay 
(Mixed-Use) zoning designation for entire 25.8-acre project site to accommodate the 
mixed-use project.  The MU zone overlay district was approved for this site as part 
of the 2013 Housing Element Update (GPA 2013-01), along with the accompanying 
zone changes approved by City Council at that time.  The site was also designated 
in the Housing Element to meet the City’s Regional Housing Needs Allocation 
(RHNA) with approximately 227 low income units.  The action by the Commission 
and Council to remove the MU-Overlay zoning is consistent with the underlying 
General Plan land use designation; however, the requirements of SB 166 (“No Net 
Loss”) apply.  SB 166 essentially states that if the approval of a development project 
results in fewer units by income category than identified in the jurisdiction’s housing 
element for that parcel, the jurisdiction shall identify and make available additional 
adequate sites to accommodate the jurisdiction’s remaining share of the regional 
housing need.  In other words, the City is required to find a “replacement site” within 
180 days after a projects approved that removes the RHNA units.   
 
As part of the development review of the Wildomar Trial Town Center project, staff 
was able to negotiate with a local property owner (Mr. James Carter) who owns 20 
acres at the northeast corner of Yamas Drive and Prielipp Road (APN: 380-250-
019).  Mr. Carter was agreeable to receive the 227 replacement units on the 
northerly 10 acres of his property, provided the City processed the required general 
plan amendment from BP to HHDR (PC Resolution No. 2021-11), as well as the 
required zone change from I-P to R-3 (PC Resolution No. 2021-12).  By 
accomplishing this task, as approved by City Council, the City will not be in violation 
of SB 166, nor will we be out of compliance with our Housing Element RHNA 
numbers.  Further, the potential environmental impacts of this action was evaluated 







in the project DEIR, and it was determined that the general plan amendment and 
change of zone did not create any impacts, and therefore, did not require any 
mitigation at this time.  Development of the Carter site will undergo additional CEQA 
review when the site is developed in the future.  Lastly, this action is addressed in 
the 2021/2029 Housing Element Update that has been reviewed by the Housing and 
Community Development Department (HCD).  Based on staff’s analysis of the 
replacement units, it was determined that the City would not impact (or reduce) our 
RHNA numbers with this action, thus, HCD was very supportive of this. 
 
With the accompanying general plan amendment from BP to HHDR as proposed in 
PC Resolution No. 2021-11, the zone change from I-P to R-3 on the Carter property 
(APN: 380-250-019), and the zone change to remove the MU-Overlay zoning 
designation on the 25.8-acre Wildomar Town Center project site is consistent with 
the General Plan and meets this finding. 


SECTION 4: Amendment to the Zoning Map 
The City Council, based on the finding above, hereby adopts an Ordinance 


approving Change of Zone No. 20-0039 to: 1) remove the Mixed-Use Overlay Zone 
designation for the entire WIldomar Trail Town Center project site, and change the 
existing zoning designation for the 6.07-acre residential portion of project site from C-P-
S (Scenic Highway Commercial) to R-3 (General Residential) located at the southwest 
corner of Wildomar Trail and the I-15 Freeway (APN: 376-180-006 and 376-190-002); 
and 2) change the existing zoning designation for the northerly 10-acres of the James 
Carter property (APN: 380-250-019) from I-P (Industrial Park) to R-3 (General 
Residential) located at the northeast corner of Yamas Drive and Prielipp Road, as 
illustrated herein as Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2 of this resolution. 


SECTION 5. Effective Date of the Ordinance. 
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and operation thirty (30) days 


after its second reading and adoption. 


SECTION 6  Severability. 
If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 


Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted 
this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or 
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, 
subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
  







SECTION 7.  City Clerk Action 
The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published 


within fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation and 
circulated within the City in accordance with Government Code Section 36933(a) or, to 
cause this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law using the alternative 
summary and pasting procedure authorized under Government Code Section 39633(c). 


PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED, this 13th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 


Dustin Nigg 
Mayor 


 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________   ________________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk 


 
  







Exhibit 1 
Zone Change Exhibit / WTTC Project Site 


(APN: 376-180-006 and 376-190-002) 


  


Zone Change Subject Site 







Exhibit 2 
Zone Change Exhibit / Carter Property 


(APN: 380-250-019) 


 
 


Zone Change Subject Site 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
                                                                                     Agenda Item # 1.7 


 CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  First Amendment to Information Technology Services Agreement 


with Infinity Technologies 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute the First 
Amendment to the Information Technology Services Agreement with Infinity 
Technologies. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City Council awarded an agreement for Information Technology services to Infinity 
Technologies on May 21, 2021, in the amount of $96,000.  
 
In addition to the awarded agreement the city waived the Request for Proposal 
requirement, per Section 3.28.040 of the Municipal Code and deemed the proposed 
Professional Services Agreement with Infinity Technologies as advantageous to the City.  
The key finding for the waiver was that the staff under the former Interwest Consulting 
Agreement left the company after the acquisition by Safe Built, Inc.  Safe Built, Inc. no 
longer offers the Information Technology services. 
 
Similarly, the staff providing Geographic Information System (GIS) Services has left Safe 
Built, Inc. and joined Infinity Technologies.  
 
Exhibit ‘A’ to the First Amendment is the proposal from Infinity Technologies proposing 
an additional scope of services for GIS at a cost of $2,000 per month to bring the contract 
total to $120,000 per year.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
The services associated with the First Amendment are currently included in the Operating 
Budget.   
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
 
Daniel A. York      Gary Nordquist 







Assistant City Manager     City Manager 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 


A. First Amendment  
Exhibit A GIS Proposal 


B. Agreement (May 26, 2021) 
 







ATTACHMENT A 







RIV #4844-0876-1400 v1  


 
 
 
 
 
 


FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 


FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICE 
PROVIDER 


 
 


by and between 
 


the 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 


and 
 


INFINITY TECHNOLOGIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Dated October 13, 2021







RIV #4844-0876-1400 v1 -2- 


FIRST AMENDMENT AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES FOR INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY SERVICE PROVIDER 


 
This First Amendment to Agreement for Services (“First Amendment”), which is 


dated for reference as indicated on the cover page, is hereby entered into by and 
between the CITY OF WILDOMAR, a California general law city (“City”), and Infinity 
Technologies, an Information Technology Service Provider (“Service Provider”), as 
follows: 


RECITALS 


A. City and Service Provider entered in an agreement for Information 
Technology Services on May 26, 2021 (“Agreement”).  The Agreement provides that 
Service Provider will perform Information Technology services. 


B. Section 2 of the Agreement provides that Scope and Cost for the 
performance of the services. 


C. This First Amendment amends Section 2 to provide Geographic 
Information System (GIS) services. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises made and recited herein, 
the parties do hereby enter into this First Amendment which modifies and amends the 
Agreement as follows: 


1. AMENDMENT.  The Agreement is hereby modified and amended as 
follows: 


Exhibit A Scope of Services is hereby modified to add the following: 


Scope of Services are outlined in the attached Exhibit A proposal from 
Infinity Technologies dated August 24, 2021, for Monthly Geographic 
Information System (GIS) Support. 


The following monthly services include: 


• Quarterly updates of parcel, address, and street GIS data 


• As-needed data updates Public Works asset layers, planning 
layers, and districts 


• Custom hardcopy/digital mapping requests 


• Analysis and report creation 


• Maintenance of the existing WebGIS applications for staff and 
public use 


• ArcGIS Online administration 







RIV #4844-0876-1400 v1 -3- 


• Fulfilling GIS Data requests. 


Exhibit B Compensation is hereby modified to add as follows: 


I. Service Provider Shall use the following rates of pay in the 
performance of the Services: 


The monthly flat fee for the Geographic Information System support is 
$2,000 


II. The hourly rates for GIS Staff for Special Project Requests follow: 


Project Manager $160 


Sr. GIS Analyst $125 


GIS Analyst  $105 


GIS Tech  $95   


III. This section is blank 


IV. The Compensation for the added Services shall not exceed $2,000 
per month, in addition to as provided in Section 4 Compensation and 
Method of Payment of this Agreement.  The Total Compensation amount 
listed in Section 4 (a) of the original agreement plus the added Services 
associated with this First Amendment shall now reflect $120,000. 


 


2.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 


V. Remainder Unchanged.  Except as specifically modified and 
amended in this First Amendment, the Agreement remains in full force and effect and 
binding upon the parties. 


VI. Integration.  This First Amendment consists of pages 1 through 4 
inclusive, which constitute the entire understanding and agreement of the parties and 
supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the parties with respect to 
all or any part of the transaction discussed in this First Amendment. 


VII. Effective Date.  This First Amendment shall not become effective 
until the date it has been formally approved by the City Council and executed by the 
appropriate authorities of the City and Service Provider. 


VIII. Applicable Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern 
the interpretation and enforcement of this First Amendment. 







RIV #4844-0876-1400 v1 -4- 


IX. References.  All references to the Agreement include all their 
respective terms and provisions.  All defined terms utilized in this First Amendment have 
the same meaning as provided in the Agreement, unless expressly stated to the 
contrary in this First Amendment. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this First 


Amendment to the Agreement on the date and year first written above. 
 


      CITY 


   CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 
 
 


 By:_________________________________ 
 Gary Nordquist, City Manager 


 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Janet Morales, City Clerk 
 
 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


 


    ______ 
Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney 
 
 


SERVICE PROVIDER 


Infinity Technologies 
 
 
 


By:__________________________________ 
 


 Its:  
 







A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 


RIV #4845-1206-0416 v1 


ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT NOTARY FOR CALIFORNIA 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 


COUNTY OF ) 


On __________, 200___,  before me, __________________, Notary Public, personally appeared _______________ 
__________________________, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose 
names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in 
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity 
upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


__________________________________________ 
(SIGNATURE OF NOTARY) 


OPTIONAL 
Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alternation of the document or fraudulent 
reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 


CAPACIT(IES) CLAIMED BY SIGNER(S) 


Signer's Name:  ___________________________ 


DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 


INDIVIDUAL 
CORPORATE OFFICER 
_______________________________ 


TITLE(S) 


PARTNER(S) LIMITED 
GENERAL 


ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 
TRUSTEE(S) 
GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 
OTHER_______________________________ 


SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 
(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 
_____________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________ 


___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 


___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 







EXHIBIT A 







 


 


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR, CA August 24, 2021 


DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES AND COST QUOTE FOR: 


MONTHLY GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) SUPPORT 


Introduction 


Infinity Technologies would like to thank the City of Wildomar for the opportunity to provide a quote for 


services to continue to support your GIS needs. Infinity Technologies has extensive experience in 


implementing and supporting a city-wide GIS from the ground up, as well as maintaining a high level of 


service for ongoing day-to-day of City GIS requests. 


Infinity Technologies is submitting this quote that will provide the City of Wildomar with a reliable set of GIS 


services. Infinity Technologies will offer the following GIS services under a flat monthly fee:


▪ Quarterly updates of parcel, address, 


and street GIS data 


▪ As-needed data updates Public Works 


asset layers, planning layers, and 
districts 


▪ Custom hardcopy/digital mapping 


requests. 


▪ Analysis and report creation. 


▪ Maintenance of the existing WebGIS 


applications for staff and public use. 


▪ ArcGIS Online administration. 


▪ Fulfilling GIS Data requests.


Additionally, we have a broad set of experience and expertise to offer GIS support services beyond the scope 


outlined below for any new or special projects. In these instances, we will work with you to develop a task 


order and budget to ensure they meet your time and cost expectations. The task order work items will be 


billed on time and materials basis. Examples of special projects include new public mapping applications, 


new staff mapping applications, new GIS data development, and GIS support of new business systems 


(permitting, asset management, code enforcement).  


Monthly Support - Scope of Services 


A benefit to selecting Infinity Technologies GIS to provide your monthly GIS support is that we provide a 


complimentary onsite GIS assessment and recommendation. This involves our team working with you to 


discover any GIS needs and we will identify opportunities to follow best practices. We will conduct and 


inventory GIS data, software, application, and system integration needs. During our audit, we will 


document our findings and meet with you to ensure you are aware of our findings and any 


recommendations. 


The services listed below are included in our flat monthly fee: 


1. Quarterly updates and publication of parcel, address, and street GIS data. 


2. As-needed data updates and publication PW asset layers, planning layers, and districts. 







3. Custom hardcopy or digital mapping requests.


4. Analysis and report creation.


5. Fulfilling GIS Data requests.


6. Maintenance of the existing WebGIS applications for staff and public use.


▪ Staff Engineering and Planning Viewers


▪ Staff Public Works Workforce Application


▪ Public Parcel Information and Voting District Viewers


7. ArcGIS Online administration.


Infinity Technologies Monthly GIS Support 


Flat fee for monthly GIS services $2,000 


Infinity Technologies GIS Staff/Hourly Rates (Special Project Requests) 


Name Title Rate Primary Task Responsibility 


Mark Dumford Project Manager $160 Project Management, Quality Control, GIS Review and Needs 


Todd Lighthizer Sr. GIS Analyst $125 GIS Review and Needs 


Jared Schuckert Sr. GIS Analyst $125 WebGIS Maintenance, ArcGIS Online Admin, 


Nicholas Hansen Sr. GIS Analyst $125 WebGIS Maintenance, ArcGIS Online Admin 


Abby Thornton GIS Analyst $105 WebGIS Maintenance, Data Maintenance, Mapping, Analysis/Reports 


Ryan Gonzalez GIS Tech $95 Data Maintenance, Mapping, New WebGIS Applications, Data Requests 


Diego Gonzalez GIS Tech $95 Data Maintenance, Mapping, New WebGIS Applications, Data Requests 


Infinity Technologies GIS Service Level Agreement (SLA) 


1. One reach local phone number and email address for GIS support


2. Provide 24 x 7 x 365 support


3. Respond to requests for GIS support within (4) hours during business hours


4. Trouble Tickets will be acknowledged within (30) minutes during normal business hours


a. Report of WebGIS issues


b. Report of GIS data issues


5. Provide on-site GIS training/workshops twice per year.







ATTACHMENT B 







  


 


AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 


 


By and Between 


 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR,  


a municipal corporation 


 


and 


 


INFINITY TECHNOLOGIES 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 - 1 -  


 


AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
BETWEEN 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA 
AND 


INFINITY TECHNOLOGIES 


 
This Agreement for Services (“Agreement”) is entered into as of this First day of 


June, 2021 by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation (“City”) and 
Infinity Technologies, an Information Technology Service Provider (“Service Provider”).  
City and Service Provider are sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as “Party” 
and hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 
A. City has sought, by Council Approval, the performance of the services 


defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement.   


B. Service Provider, following submission of a Professional Services 
Agreement for the performance of the services defined and described particularly in 
Section 2 of this Agreement, was selected by the City to perform those services. 


C. Pursuant to the City of Wildomar’s Municipal Code, City has authority to 
enter into this Services Agreement and the City Manager has authority to execute this 
Agreement. 


D. The Parties desire to formalize the selection of Service Provider for 
performance of those services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this 
Agreement and desire that the terms of that performance be as particularly defined and 
described herein. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made 
by the Parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 


SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 


Subject to the provisions of Section 20 "Termination of Agreement" of this 
Agreement, the Term of this Agreement is for three years - with the option of two, one 
year renewals commencing on the date first ascribed above.  


SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE. 


(a) Scope of Services.  Service Provider agrees to perform the services set 
forth in Exhibit “A” “Scope of Services” (hereinafter, the “Services”) and made a part of 
this Agreement by this reference. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 - 2 -  


 


(b) Schedule of Performance.  The Services shall be completed pursuant to the 
schedule specified in Exhibit “A.”  Should the Services not be completed pursuant to that 
schedule, the Service Provider shall be deemed to be in Default of this Agreement.  The 
City, in its sole discretion, may choose not to enforce the Default provisions of this 
Agreement and may instead allow Service Provider to continue performing the Services. 


SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. 


Service Provider shall not be compensated for any work rendered in connection 
with its performance of this Agreement that are in addition to or outside of the Services 
unless such additional services are authorized in advance and in writing in accordance 
with Section 26 “Administration and Implementation” or Section 28 “Amendment” of this 
Agreement.  If and when such additional work is authorized, such additional work shall 
be deemed to be part of the Services. 


SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 


(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay 
Service Provider the amounts specified in Exhibit “B” “Compensation” and made a part of 
this Agreement by this reference.  The total compensation, including reimbursement for 
actual expenses, shall not exceed Ninety Six Thousand dollars ($96,000.00) per year, 
unless additional compensation is approved in writing in accordance with Section 26 
“Administration and Implementation” or Section 28 “Amendment” of this Agreement. In 
accordance with California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the Not to Exceed 
Amount exceeds TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), this Agreement and the 
Service Provider's books and records related to this Agreement shall be subject to the 
examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of City or as part of any audit 
of the City, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under the Agreement. 


(b) Each month Service Provider shall furnish to City an original invoice for all 
work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice shall 
detail charges by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, materials, 
equipment, supplies, and sub-Service Provider contracts.  Sub-Service Provider charges 
shall be detailed by the following categories: labor, travel, materials, equipment and 
supplies.   If the compensation set forth in subsection (a) and Exhibit “B” include payment 
of labor on an hourly basis (as opposed to labor and materials being paid as a lump sum), 
the labor category in each invoice shall include detailed descriptions of task performed 
and the amount of time incurred for or allocated to that task.  City shall independently 
review each invoice submitted by the Service Provider to determine whether the work 
performed and expenses incurred are in compliance with the provisions of this 
Agreement.  In the event, that no charges or expenses are disputed, the invoice shall be 
approved and paid according to the terms set forth in subsection (c).  In the event any 
charges or expenses are disputed by City, the original invoice shall be returned by City 
to Service Provider for correction and resubmission. 


(c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by 
Service Provider which are disputed by City, City will use its best efforts to cause Service 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 - 3 -  


 


Provider to be paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Service Provider’s correct and 
undisputed invoice. 


(d) Payment to Service Provider for work performed pursuant to this Agreement 
shall not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Service Provider. 


SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE. 


City may inspect and accept or reject any of Service Provider’s work under this 
Agreement, either during performance or when completed.  City shall reject or finally 
accept Service Provider’s work within sixty (60) days after submitted to City.  City shall 
reject work by a timely written explanation, otherwise Service Provider’s work shall be 
deemed to have been accepted.  City’s acceptance shall be conclusive as to such work 
except with respect to latent defects, fraud and such gross mistakes as amount to fraud.  
Acceptance of any of Service Provider’s work by City shall not constitute a waiver of any 
of the provisions of this Agreement including, but not limited to, Section 16 
“Indemnification” and Section 17 “Insurance.” 


SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 


All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, 
reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other documents prepared, developed or 
discovered by Service Provider in the course of providing the Services pursuant to this 
Agreement shall become the sole property of City and may be used, reused or otherwise 
disposed of by City without the permission of the Service Provider.  Upon completion, 
expiration or termination of this Agreement, Service Provider shall turn over to City all 
such original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, 
data, notes, computer files, files and other documents. 


If and to the extent that City utilizes for any purpose not related to this Agreement 
any maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, 
notes, computer files, files or other documents prepared, developed or discovered by 
Service Provider in the course of providing the Services pursuant to this Agreement, 
Service Provider’s guarantees and warranties in Section 9 “Standard of Performance” of 
this Agreement shall not extend to such use of the maps, models, designs, drawings, 
photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files or other 
documents. 


All Final Work Product developed by Service Provider in the course of providing 
the Services pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of City and may 
be used, reused or otherwise disposed of by City without the permission of the Service 
Provider.  Upon completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, Service Provider 
shall turn over to City all such Final Work Product if paid for by the City.  This provision 
specifically excludes Service Providers’ work notes and drafts, which are owned by 
Service Provider, not City. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 - 4 -  


 


SECTION 7. SERVICE PROVIDER'S BOOKS AND RECORDS. 


(a) Service Provider shall maintain any and all documents and records 
demonstrating or relating to Service Provider’s performance of the Services.  Service 
Provider shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, 
canceled checks, or other documents or records evidencing or relating to work, services, 
expenditures and disbursements charged to City pursuant to this Agreement.  Any and 
all such documents or records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and shall be sufficiently complete and detailed so as to permit an 
accurate evaluation of the services provided by Service Provider pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Any and all such documents or records shall be maintained for three (3) 
years from the date of execution of this Agreement and to the extent required by laws 
relating to audits of public agencies and their expenditures. 


(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this 
section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during 
regular business hours, upon request by City or its designated representative.  Copies of 
such documents or records shall be provided directly to the City for inspection, audit and 
copying when it is practical to do so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed 
upon, such documents and records shall be made available at Service Provider’s address 
indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement. 


(c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records 
required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to 
dissolution or termination of Service Provider’s business, City may, by written request, 
require that custody of such documents or records be given to the City.  Access to such 
documents and records shall be granted to City, as well as to its successors-in-interest 
and authorized representatives. 


SECTION 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 


(a) Service Provider is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent 
contractor and not an officer, employee or agent of City.  Nothing in this Agreement may 
be construed to be inconsistent with this relationship or status.  Service Provider shall not 
at any time or in any manner represent that it or any of its agents or employees are agents 
or employees of City.  Service Provider shall have no authority to bind City in any manner, 
nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of or against City, whether 
by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred under this 
Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred in writing by City. 


(b) Service Provider shall perform all Services as an independent contractor of 
City and shall remain at all times as to City a wholly independent contractor with only such 
obligations as are consistent with that role.  Service provider shall be solely responsible 
for the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures in performance of 
Services.  The personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of 
Service Provider shall at all times be under Service Provider’s exclusive direction and 
control.  Any terms within this Agreement regarding City directives apply to an concern 
the result of Service Provider’s provision of service and not the means, methods, or 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 - 5 -  


 


scheduling of the Service Provider’s work.  Neither City, nor any elected or appointed 
boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of City, shall have control over the conduct 
of Service Provider or any of Service Provider’s officers, employees, or agents except as 
set forth in this Agreement.  Service Provider shall not at any time or in any manner 
represent that Service Provider or any of Service Provider’s officers, employees, or 
agents are in any manner officials, officers, employees or agents of City. 


(c) Neither Service Provider, nor any of Service Provider’s officers, employees 
or agents, shall obtain any privileges or rights to retirement, health care or any other 
benefits which may otherwise accrue to City’s employees.  Service Provider expressly 
waives any claim Service Provider may have to any such benefits, privileges or rights. 


SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. 


Service Provider represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, experience 
and facilities necessary to properly perform the Services required under this Agreement 
in a thorough, competent and professional manner.  Service Provider shall at all times 
faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all 
Services.  In meeting its obligations under this Agreement, Service Provider shall employ, 
at a minimum, generally accepted standards and practices utilized by persons engaged 
in providing services similar to the Services required of Service Provider under this 
Agreement.  In addition to the general standards of performance set forth this section, 
additional specific standards of performance and performance criteria may be set forth in 
Exhibit “A” “Scope of Work” that shall also be applicable to Service Provider’s work under 
this Agreement.  Where there is a conflict between a general and a specific standard of 
performance or performance criteria, the specific standard or criteria shall prevail over the 
general. 


SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND LICENSES. 


Service Provider shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect 
during the term of this Agreement.  Service Provider shall obtain any and all licenses, 
permits and authorizations necessary to perform the Services set forth in this Agreement.  
Neither City, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents 
of City, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of Service Provider to 
comply with this section. 


SECTION 11. PREVAILING WAGE LAWS 


It is the understanding of City and Service Provider that California prevailing wage 
laws do not apply to this Agreement because the Agreement does not involve any of the 
following services subject to prevailing wage rates pursuant to the California Labor Code 
or regulations promulgated thereunder: Construction, alteration, demolition, installation, 
or repair work performed on public buildings, facilities, streets or sewers done under 
contract and paid for in whole or in part out of public funds.  In this context, “construction" 
includes work performed during the design and preconstruction phases of construction 
including, but not limited to, inspection and land surveying work. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 - 6 -  


 


SECTION 12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 


Service Provider shall not discriminate, in any way, against any person on the 
basis of race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical handicap, 
medical condition or marital status in connection with or related to the performance of this 
Agreement. 


SECTION 13. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS. 


Service Provider hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions 
of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. §§ 1101, et seq., as amended, 
and in connection therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein.  
Should Service Provider so employ such unauthorized aliens for the performance of the 
Services, and should the any liability or sanctions be imposed against City for such use 
of unauthorized aliens, Service Provider hereby agrees to and shall reimburse City for the 
cost of all such liabilities or sanctions imposed, together with any and all costs, including 
attorneys' fees, incurred by City. 


SECTION 14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 


(a) Service Provider covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its 
firm, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any 
manner with the interests of City or which would in any way hinder Service Provider’s 
performance of the Services.  Service Provider further covenants that in the performance 
of this Agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed by it as an 
officer, employee, agent or subcontractor without the express written consent of the City 
Manager. Service Provider agrees to at all times avoid conflicts of interest or the 
appearance of any conflicts of interest with the interests of City in the performance of this 
Agreement. 


(b) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider is, as of the date 
of execution of this Agreement, independently involved in the performance of non-related 
services for other governmental agencies and private parties.  Service Provider is 
unaware of any stated position of City relative to such projects.  Any future position of City 
on such projects shall not be considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 


(c) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider will perform non-
related services for other governmental agencies and private Parties following the 
completion of the Services under this Agreement.  Any such future service shall not be 
considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 


SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION. 


(a) All information gained or work product produced by Service Provider in 
performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information 
is in the public domain or already known to Service Provider.  Service Provider shall not 
release or disclose any such information or work product to persons or entities other than 
City without prior written authorization from the City Manager, except as may be required 
by law. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 - 7 -  


 


(b) Service Provider, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall 
not, without prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the 
City Attorney of City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at 
depositions, response to interrogatories or other information concerning the work 
performed under this Agreement.  Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be 
considered "voluntary" provided Service Provider gives City notice of such court order or 
subpoena.  


(c) If Service Provider, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of 
Service Provider, provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, 
then City shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Service Provider for 
any damages, costs and fees, including attorney's fees, caused by or incurred as a result 
of Service Provider’s conduct. 


Service Provider shall promptly notify City should Service Provider, its officers, 
employees, agents or subcontractors, be served with any summons, complaint, 
subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for 
admissions or other discovery request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding 
this Agreement and the work performed thereunder.  City retains the right, but has no 
obligation, to represent Service Provider or be present at any deposition, hearing or 
similar proceeding.  Service Provider agrees to cooperate fully with City and to provide 
City with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by 
Service Provider.  However, this right to review any such response does not imply or 
mean the right by City to control, direct, or rewrite said response. Service Provider shall 
not be held criminally or civilly liable under any Federal or State trade secret law for the 
disclosure of a trade secret that is made in confidence to a Federal, State, or local 
government official or to an attorney solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a 
suspected violation of law or for the disclosure of a trade secret that is made in a complaint 
or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal. 


SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION. 


(a) Indemnification for Professional Liability.  Where the law establishes a 
professional standard of care for Service Provider’s services, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless 
City and any and all of its officials, employees and agents (“Indemnified Parties”) from 
and against any and all liability (including liability for claims, suits, actions, arbitration 
proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or 
costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including attorney’s fees and 
costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees) arise out of, are a 
consequence of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in part, any negligent or 
wrongful act, error or omission of Service Provider, or by any individual or entity for which 
Service Provider is legally liable, including but not limited to officers, agents, employees 
or sub-contractors of Service Provider, in the performance of professional services under 
this Agreement.  


(b) Indemnification for Other than Professional Liability.  Other than in the 
performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Service 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 - 8 -  


 


Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of its 
employees, officials and agents from and against any liability (including liability for claims, 
suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory 
proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or 
threatened, including attorney’s fees and costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and 
expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, are a consequence of, or are in any 
way attributable to, in whole or in part, the performance of this Agreement by Service 
Provider, or by any individual or entity for which Service Provider is legally liable, including 
but not limited to officers, agents, employees or sub-contractors of Service Provider. 


(c) Indemnification from Sub-Service Providers.  Service Provider agrees to 
obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth in this 
section from each and every sub-Service Provider or any other person or entity involved 
by, for, with or on behalf of Service Provider in the performance of this Agreement naming 
the Indemnified Parties as additional indemnitees.  In the event Service Provider fails to 
obtain such indemnity obligations from others as required herein, Service Provider agrees 
to be fully responsible according to the terms of this section.  Failure of City to monitor 
compliance with these requirements imposes no additional obligations on City and will in 
no way act as a waiver of any rights hereunder.  This obligation to indemnify and defend 
City as set forth herein is binding on the successors, assigns or heirs of Service Provider 
and shall survive the termination of this Agreement or this section. 


(d) City’s Negligence.  The provisions of this section do not apply to claims 
occurring as a result of City’s sole negligence. The provisions of this section shall not 
release City from liability arising from gross negligence or willful acts or omissions of City 
or any and all of its officials, employees and agents.   


SECTION 17. INSURANCE. 


Service Provider agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the 
term of this Agreement the insurance policies set forth in Exhibit “C” “Insurance” and made 
a part of this Agreement.  All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by City as to 
form and content.  These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved 
in writing by the City Manager.  Service Provider agrees to provide City with copies of 
required policies upon request. 


SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT. 


The expertise and experience of Service Provider are material considerations for 
this Agreement.  City has an interest in the qualifications and capability of the persons 
and entities who will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon Service Provider under 
this Agreement.  In recognition of that interest, Service Provider shall not assign or 
transfer this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the performance of any of 
Service Provider’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of the City.  Any attempted assignment shall be ineffective, null and void, and 
shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling City to any and all remedies 
at law or in equity, including termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 20 
“Termination of Agreement.”  City acknowledges, however, that Service Provider, in the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 - 9 -  


 


performance of its duties pursuant to this Agreement, may utilize sub-contractors. 


SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL. 


Service Provider shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the stability and 
continuity of Service Provider’s staff and sub-contractors, if any, assigned to perform the 
Services.  Service Provider shall notify City of any changes in Service Provider’s staff and 
sub-contractors, if any, assigned to perform the Services prior to and during any such 
performance. 


SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 


(a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Service Provider.  In the event such 
notice is given, Service Provider shall cease immediately all work in progress. 


(b) Service Provider may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time upon 
thirty (30) days written notice of termination to City. 


(c) If either Service Provider or City fail to perform any material obligation under 
this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Service Provider, or City 
may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice. 


(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Service Provider or City, all 
property belonging exclusively to City which is in Service Provider’s possession shall be 
returned to City.  Service Provider shall furnish to City a final invoice for work performed 
and expenses incurred by Service Provider, prepared as set forth in Section 4 
“Compensation and Method of Payment” of this Agreement.  This final invoice shall be 
reviewed and paid in the same manner as set forth in Section 4 “Compensation and 
Method of Payment” of this Agreement. 


SECTION 21. DEFAULT. 


In the event that Service Provider is in default under the terms of this Agreement, 
the City shall not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating Service Provider 
for any work performed after the date of default.  Instead, the City may give notice to 
Service Provider of the default and the reasons for the default.  The notice shall include 
the timeframe in which Service Provider may cure the default.  This timeframe is 
presumptively thirty (30) days, but may be extended, though not reduced, if 
circumstances warrant.  During the period of time that Service Provider is in default, the 
City shall hold all invoices and shall, when the default is cured, proceed with payment on 
the invoices.  In the alternative, the City may, in its sole discretion, elect to pay some or 
all of the outstanding invoices during the period of default.  If Service Provider does not 
cure the default, the City may take necessary steps to terminate this Agreement under 
Section 20 “Termination of Agreement.”  Any failure on the part of the City to give notice 
of the Service Provider’s default shall not be deemed to result in a waiver of the City’s 
legal rights or any rights arising out of any provision of this Agreement. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 - 10 -  


 


SECTION 22. EXCUSABLE DELAYS. 


Service Provider shall not be liable for damages, including liquidated damages, if 
any, caused by delay in performance or failure to perform due to causes beyond the 
control of Service Provider.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts 
of the public enemy, acts of federal, state or local governments, acts of City, court orders, 
fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, embargoes, and unusually severe weather.  The term 
and price of this Agreement shall be equitably adjusted for any delays due to such causes. 


SECTION 23. COOPERATION BY CITY. 


All public information, data, reports, records, and maps as are existing and 
available to City as public records, and which are necessary for carrying out the Services 
shall be furnished to Service Provider in every reasonable way to facilitate, without undue 
delay, the Services to be performed under this Agreement. 


SECTION 24. NOTICES. 


All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be personally delivered, or sent by telecopier or certified mail, postage 
prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 


 


To City:    City of Wildomar 
 Attn:  Gary Nordquist, City Manager  
 23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 
 Wildomar, CA  92595 


 


To Service Provider: Infinity Technologies 
 Attn: Mohammad Ahmed 
 316 Tejon Pl. 
 Palos Verdes Estates, CA 90274 


 
Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted 


by facsimile or, if mailed, three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the 
United States Postal Service. 


SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. 


Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent 
and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she 
purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including necessary 
expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims 
that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to execute this Agreement.  


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 - 11 -  


 


SECTION 26. ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION. 


This Agreement shall be administered and executed by the City Manager or his or 
her designated representative.  The City Manager shall have the authority to issue 
interpretations and to make amendments to this Agreement, including amendments that 
commit additional funds, consistent with Section 28 “Amendment” and the City Manager’s 
contracting authority under the Wildomar Municipal Code. 


SECTION 27. BINDING EFFECT. 


This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 


SECTION 28. AMENDMENT. 


No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 
writing and approved by the Service Provider and by the City.  The City Manager shall 
have the authority to approve any amendment to this Agreement if the total compensation 
under this Agreement, as amended, would not exceed the City Manager’s contracting 
authority under the Wildomar Municipal Code.  The Parties agree that the requirement for 
written modifications cannot be waived and that any attempted waiver shall be void. The 
City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affecting 
substantive terms without further authorization from the City Council. The City Council 
hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute any such amendments as required by this 
Agreement or that do not otherwise reduce City’s rights under this Agreement.  All other 
amendments shall be approved by the City Council. 


SECTION 29. WAIVER. 


Waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant of this 
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant.  Waiver 
by any Party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a 
waiver of any other provision nor a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any 
provision of this Agreement.  Acceptance by City of any work or services by Service 
Provider shall not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 


SECTION 30. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE. 


This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed according to the 
laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the Parties, venue in 
state trial courts shall lie exclusively in the County of Riverside, California.  In the event 
of litigation in a U.S. District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of 
California, in Riverside. 


SECTION 31. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES. 


In the event litigation or other proceeding is required to enforce or interpret any 
provision of this Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation or other proceeding 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 - 12 -  


 


shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses, in 
addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled. 


SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 


This Agreement, including the attached Exhibits "A" through "C", is the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed therein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between Service Provider and City prior to the execution of this 
Agreement.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, 
made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid and binding.   


SECTION 33. SEVERABILITY. 


If any term, condition or covenant of this Agreement is declared or determined by 
any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and the Agreement shall be 
read and construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision(s). 


SECTION 34. CONFLICTING TERMS. 


Except as otherwise stated herein, if the terms of this Agreement conflict with the 
terms of any Exhibit hereto, or with the terms of any document incorporated by reference 
into this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall control.    


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 
date and year first-above written. 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 


ATTEST: 


___________________________ 
Janet Morales 
City Clerk 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 - 13 -  


 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


_______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 


___________________________________ 


Infinity Technologies:  


By: __________________________         By: _______________________________ 
  
Name:___________________________   Name: ____________________________ 
 
Its (Title):_________________________   Its (Title): __________________________ 


NOTE: SERVICE PROVIDER’S SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, 
AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY 
BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, 
OR OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO SERVICE 
PROVIDER’S BUSINESS ENTITY.


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B


President


Mohammad Ahmed







 


 


EXHIBIT "A" 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 


 
I.  Service Provider will perform the following Services: 
 
Scope of services are outlined in the attachment proposal from Infinity Technologies. 
 
II.  As part of the Services, Service Provider will prepare and deliver the following 
tangible work products to the City: 
 


A. One reach local phone number and email address for emergency support 
B. Provide 24 x 7 x 365 support 
C. Respond to emergency outages (1) hour during normal business hours 
D. Respond to emergency outages (2) hours during non-business hours 
E. In case of an emergency, be onsite within (4) hours 
F. Provide unlimited technical phone support 
G. Trouble Tickets will be acknowledged within (30) minutes during normal 


business hours 
H. Typical response time during normal business hours 
I. Password reset (15) minutes 
J. Create new user (1) hour 
K. Installing desktop application (1) hour 
L. Troubleshoot/Desktop repair (30) minutes 
M. Adding desktop printer (15) minutes 
 


III.  During performance of the Services, Service Provider will keep the City 
appraised of the status of performance by delivering the following status reports: 
 


A. Identify and report on technology challenges within the City using email 
and teleconference/video  


B. Identify and report opportunities to follow best practices within the City 
using email and teleconference/video  


C. Conduct an inventory and report applicable IT equipment issues within the 
City using email and teleconference/video  


 
IV.  The tangible work products and status reports will be delivered to the City 
pursuant to the following schedule: 
 


A. Reporting on March 31st for: January, February, and March (Q1)  
B. Reporting on June 30th for: April, May, and June (Q2)  
C. Reporting on September 30th for: July, August, and September (Q3)  
D. Reporting on December 31st for: October, November, and December (Q4) 


 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 


 


V.  Service Provider will utilize the following personnel to accomplish the 
Services: 
 
A. Mohammad Ahmed 
 
B. Hector Martinez 
 
C. Patrick Lopez 
 
D. Ceasar Vasquez 
 
VI.  Service Provider will utilize the following subcontractors to accomplish the 
Services: 
 
None. 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 


 


EXHIBIT "B" 
COMPENSATION 


 
I.  Service Provider shall use the following rates of pay in the performance of the 
Services: 
 
The monthly flat fee for information technology services is $8,000. 
 
II.  Service Provider may utilize sub-contractors as indicated in this Agreement.  
The hourly rate for any subcontractor is not to exceed $100.00 per hour without 
written authorization from the City Manager or designee. 
 
IV.  The total compensation for the Services shall not exceed $8,000.00 per 
month, as provided in Section 4 “Compensation and Method of Payment” of this 
Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 


 


Exhibit C 
Insurance Requirements 


Service Provider shall procure and maintain, for the duration of the Agreement, insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Service Provider, its 
agents, representatives, or employees. 


MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 


Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 


1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 
covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, 
property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general 
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or 
the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 


2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 
1 (any auto), or if Service Provider has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-
owned), with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage. 


3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory 
Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per 
accident for bodily injury or disease. 


(Not required if Service Provider provides written verification it has no employees) 


4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriate to the Service 
Provider’s profession, with limit no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, 
$2,000,000 aggregate.  The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the 
date of the Agreement or the beginning of Agreement work.  Insurance must be 
maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after 
completion of the Agreement of work.  If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not 
replaced with another claims-made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the 
Agreement effective date, the Service Provider must purchase “extended reporting” 
coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of Agreement work.  A copy of 
the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to the City for review. 


If the Service Provider maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the 
minimums shown above, the City requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage 
and/or higher limits maintained by the Service Provider. Any available insurance proceeds 
in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to 
the City. 


Other Insurance Provisions 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 


 


The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 


The City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional 
insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Service Provider including materials, parts, or equipment 
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be 
provided in the form of an endorsement to the Service Provider’s insurance (at least as 
broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 
38; and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used). 


Primary Coverage 


For any claims related to this Agreement, the Service Provider’s insurance coverage shall 
be primary insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the 
City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the City, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of 
the Service Provider’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 


Notice of Cancellation 


Service Provider shall provide immediate written notice if (1) any of the required insurance 
policies is terminated; (2) the limits of any of the required polices are reduced; (3) or the 
deductible or self-insured retention is increased.  In the event of any cancellation or 
reduction in coverage or limits of any insurance, Service Provider shall forthwith obtain 
and submit proof of substitute insurance.   


Waiver of Subrogation 


Service Provider hereby grants to City a waiver of any right to subrogation which any 
insurer of said Service Provider may acquire against the City by virtue of the payment of 
any loss under such insurance. Service Provider agrees to obtain any endorsement that 
may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies 
regardless of whether or not the City has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement 
from the insurer.  However, the Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a 
waiver of subrogation in favor of the City for all work performed by the Service Provider, 
its employees, agents and subcontractors. 


Self-Insured Retentions 


Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City. The City may 
require the Service Provider to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related 
investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The 
policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention 
may be satisfied by either the named insured or City. 


 


 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







 


 


Acceptability of Insurers 


Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a 
current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the City. 


Verification of Coverage 


Service Provider shall furnish the City with original Certificates of Insurance including all 
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting 
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page 
of the CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to City before work begins. However, 
failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the 
Service Provider’s obligation to provide them. The City reserves the right to require 
complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
required by these specifications, at any time. 


Subcontractors 


Service Provider shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance 
meeting all the requirements stated herein, and Service Provider shall ensure that City is 
an additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors. 


Special Risks or Circumstances 


City reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature 
of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 


 


 


 


 


 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0702E813-E734-419F-BD4A-94E452B85B5B







Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 0702E813E734419FBD4A94E452B85B5B Status: Completed


Subject: Please DocuSign: Infinity Technologies.docx


Source Envelope: 


Document Pages: 20 Signatures: 4 Envelope Originator: 


Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0 Janet Morales


AutoNav: Enabled


EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled


Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)


jmorales@cityofwildomar.org


IP Address: 47.181.135.151 


Record Tracking
Status: Original


             6/2/2021 8:53:24 AM


Holder: Janet Morales


             jmorales@cityofwildomar.org


Location: DocuSign


Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Gary Nordquist


gnordquist@cityofwildomar.org


City Manager


Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style


Using IP Address: 47.181.135.151


Sent: 6/2/2021 8:58:37 AM


Viewed: 6/2/2021 8:59:04 AM 


Signed: 6/2/2021 8:59:12 AM


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 5/14/2020 10:47:44 AM
      ID: 52defbea-cdaa-403e-a6f3-f4b603b57c2f


Janet Morales


jmorales@cityofwildomar.org


City of Wildomar


Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Uploaded Signature Image


Using IP Address: 47.181.135.151


Sent: 6/2/2021 8:58:36 AM


Viewed: 6/2/2021 8:58:46 AM 


Signed: 6/2/2021 8:58:52 AM


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign


Mohammad Ahmed


mahmed@inftechnologies.com


President


Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style


Using IP Address: 73.235.205.6


Sent: 6/2/2021 8:58:37 AM


Viewed: 6/2/2021 9:57:16 AM 


Signed: 6/2/2021 9:59:01 AM


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 6/2/2021 9:57:16 AM
      ID: e4f73248-47ed-4fdd-bd5f-cf9b056ef821


Tom Jex


tjex@bwslaw.com


Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)


Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style


Using IP Address: 172.250.132.11


Sent: 6/2/2021 8:58:37 AM


Viewed: 6/2/2021 10:17:19 AM 


Signed: 6/2/2021 10:17:36 AM


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 6/2/2021 10:17:19 AM
      ID: 1c945ab8-af1d-4857-8e0e-7de85b63790b


In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp







Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp


Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp


Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp


Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp


Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp


Witness Events Signature Timestamp


Notary Events Signature Timestamp


Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 6/2/2021 8:58:37 AM


Certified Delivered Security Checked 6/2/2021 10:17:19 AM


Signing Complete Security Checked 6/2/2021 10:17:36 AM


Completed Security Checked 6/2/2021 10:17:36 AM


Payment Events Status Timestamps


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure







ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  


From time to time, City of Wildomar (we, us or Company) may be required by law to provide to 
you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and conditions for 
providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the DocuSign system. 
Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this 
information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and Signature 
Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to 
use electronic records and signatures’ before clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign 
system. 


 
Getting paper copies  


At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 
electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send 
to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you 
elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time 
(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to 
send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a 
$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the 
procedure described below. 


 
Withdrawing your consent  


If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 
change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 
only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 
disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 
electronically is described below. 


 
Consequences of changing your mind  


If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 
speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 
you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 
and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 
paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to 
receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents 
from us. 


 
All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 4/1/2020 2:40:32 PM
Parties agreed to: Gary Nordquist, Mohammad Ahmed, Tom Jex







Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 
electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, 
authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 
available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 
inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 
notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 
us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 
the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 
described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 
consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 
electronically from us. 


 
How to contact City of Wildomar:  


You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 
to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 
receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 
To contact us by email send messages to: jmorales@cityofwildomar.org 


 
To advise City of Wildomar of your new email address  


To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures 
electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at jmorales@cityofwildomar.org and 
in the body of such request you must state: your previous email address, your new email 
address.  We do not require any other information from you to change your email address.  


If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your 
account preferences.  


 
To request paper copies from City of Wildomar  


To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 
by us to you electronically, you must send us an email to jmorales@cityofwildomar.org and in 
the body of such request you must state your email address, full name, mailing address, and 
telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any. 


 
To withdraw your consent with City of Wildomar  


To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 
format you may: 







i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page, 
select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; 


ii. send us an email to jmorales@cityofwildomar.org and in the body of such request you must 
state your email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need any other 
information from you to withdraw consent..  The consequences of your withdrawing consent for 
online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process.. 


 
Required hardware and software  


The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The 
current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-
signing-system-requirements.  


 
Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically  


To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 
other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have 
read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for 
your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address 
where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further, 
if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described 
herein, then select the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’ before 
clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system. 


By selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’, you confirm 
that: 


 You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and 
 You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send 


this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future 
reference and access; and 


 Until or unless you notify City of Wildomar as described above, you consent to receive 
exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations, 
acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 
available to you by City of Wildomar during the course of your relationship with City of 
Wildomar. 



https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements

https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements





CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.8 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
PREPARED:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
FROM:  Steve Payne, Assistant Fire Marshal 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of annual reporting of completed State mandated fire 


and life safety inspections by the City of Wildomar in compliance 
with SB 1205 for Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021- ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF A REPORT MADE BY THE FIRE 
CHIEF OF THE RIVERSIDE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT REGARDING THE 


INSPECTION OF CERTAIN OCCUPANCIES REQUIRING ANNUAL INSPECTIONS IN 
SUCH OCCUPANCIES PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 13146.2 AND 13146.3 OF THE 


CALIFORNIA HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
 
DISCUSSION: 
On September 27, 2018, Senate Bill 1205 became effective, and added a new section 
to the California Health and Safety Code that affects every fire department or fire district 
in the State.  Existing state law requires every fire department or district providing fire 
protection services to inspect every building used as a public or private school annually.  
This same annual inspection requirement is applicable to hotels, motels, lodging 
houses, and apartment houses. This bill requires every fire department or district to 
annually report to its administering authority their compliance with the annual inspection 
requirements of the California Health and Safety Code.  The bill also requires the 
administering authority, in this case the City Council, to formally acknowledge receipt of 
the compliance report in a resolution or a similar formal document. 
 
The responsibility for conducting the required inspections falls to the Fire Division as 
directed by the Assistant Fire Marshal. In conducting these inspections, Fire Division 
staff evaluate compliance with such items as fire sprinkler and fire alarm maintenance, 
safe exiting, fire extinguisher maintenance, conducting fire drills, and safe storage of 
combustibles.  







 
In review of all completed inspections, the Assistant Fire Marshal has determined that 
all required inspections have been completed for Fiscal Year 2020-2021. Adoption of 
the recommended resolution and transmittal to the appropriate State Agency will meet 
the City’s obligation under SB 1205. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact related to this action and all costs of the inspection processes 
are included in the adopted fee resolution. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Steve Payne       Gary Nordquist 
Assistant Fire Marshal     City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 


A. List of Properties 
 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021-_____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF A 
REPORT MADE BY THE FIRE CHIEF OF THE RIVERSIDE COUNTY 
FIRE DEPARTMENT REGARDING THE INSPECTION OF CERTAIN 
OCCUPANCIES REQUIRING ANNUAL INSPECTIONS IN SUCH 
OCCUPANCIES PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 13146.2 AND 13146.3  OF 
THE CALIFORNIA HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


 WHEREAS, California Health & Safety Code Section 13146.4 was added in 
2018, and became effective on January 1, 2019; and  


 WHEREAS, California Health & Safety Code Section 13146.4 requires all fire 
departments, including the Riverside County Fire Department, that provide fire 
protection services to report annually to its administering authority on its compliance 
with Health & Safety Code sections 13146.2 and 13146.3; and 


 WHEREAS, California Health & Safety Code Section 13146.2 and 13146.3 
requires all fire departments, including the Riverside County Fire Department, that 
provide fire protection services to perform annual inspections in every building used as 
a public or private school, hotel, motel, lodging house, apartment house, and certain 
residential care facilities for compliance with building standards, as provided; and 


 WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Wildomar intends this Resolution to fulfill 
the requirements of the California Health & Safety Code 13146.4 regarding 
acknowledgment of the Riverside County Fire Department’s compliance with California 
Health and Safety Code Sections 13146.2 and 13146.3. 


 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Wildomar, California: expressly acknowledges the measure of compliance of the 
Riverside County Fire Department with Health and Safety Code sections 13146.2 and 
13146.3 for the properties identified in Attachment A in the City of Wildomar for the time 
period of July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021, as follows: 
 


Section 1.  Educational Group E occupancies, for the purposes of this 
Resolution, are generally those public and private schools, used by more than six 
persons at any one time for educational purposes through the 12th grade.  The 
Riverside County Fire Department completed 100% of the annual inspections of the 
identified Group E occupancies, buildings, structures and/or facilities in the City of 
Wildomar.   


 
Section 2.  Residential Group R occupancies, for the purposes of this 


Resolution, are generally those occupancies containing sleeping units, and include 
hotels, motels, apartments (three units or more), etc. as well as other residential 
occupancies (including a number of residential care facilities).  These residential care 
facilities have a number of different sub-classifications, and they may contain residents 
or clients that have a range of needs, including those related to custodial care, mobility 
impairments, cognitive disabilities, etc.  The residents may also be non-ambulatory or 







bedridden.  The Riverside County Fire Department completed 100% of the annual 
inspections of the identified Group R occupancies, buildings, structures and/or facilities 
in the City of Wildomar. 


 
 


PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of October, 2021 
 
 


_____________________ 
Dustin Nigg, Mayor 


 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Thomas D. Jex      Janet Morales 
City Attorney       City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Number Street Site Name
23411 Bundy Canyon Rd Bundy Canyon Christian School
23411 Bundy Canyon Rd Bundy Canyon Christian School- Preschool
21800 Canyon Dr. Elsinore High School
31970 Central Ave. California Lutheran High School
24055 Clinton Keith Rd. Oak Springs
35450 Frederick St. Donald Graham Elementary
35450 Frederick St. Donald Graham Preschool
21861 Grand Ave. David A. Brown Middle School
33122 Grape St. Ready Set Grow Preschool
21591 Lemon St St. Francis of Rome Preschool
20150 Mayhall Dr. William Collier Elementary
34570 Monte Vista Dr. All Aboard Preschool
34570 Monte Vista Dr. Cornerstone Christian School
34878 Monte Vista Dr. Grace Christian Schools
21575 Palomar Rd. Wildomar Elementary
21776 Palomar St. Ann Sullivan Nursery
23151 Palomar St. Ortega Trails Youth Center
23151 Palomar St. Sycamore Academy
35445 Porras Rd. Ronald Regan Elementary
24875 Prielipp Rd. Gables Oak Creek
32365 South Pasadena St. Wildomar Senior Assisted Living R2.1
32325 South Pasadena St. Wildomar Senior Living Community
32477 Starbuck Cir. Murrieta Springs Adventist Christian Academy
21220 Walnut St. Faith Baptist Academy
36491 Yamas Dr. Santa Rosa


ATTACHMENT A







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item 1.9 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 


 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED BY: Warren Repke, Capital Projects Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) Program Agreements for 


CIP 70 Bundy Canyon Road/I-15 Interchange, CIP 74 Wildomar Trail/I-15 
Interchange and Amendment No. 3 for CIP 28-1 Palomar Street between 
Mission Trail and Jefferson Avenue 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council Authorize the City Manager to execute the following: 
 


1. Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement between Western Riverside Council of 
Governments (WRCOG) and the City of Wildomar for the Planning, Engineering, Right 
of Way and Construction Phases, as required for the widening of Palomar Street 
between Mission Trail and Jefferson Avenue. 


2. Agreement for the Project Approval and Environmental Document (PA&ED) Phase for 
the improvement of the Bundy Canyon/I-15 Interchange. 


3. Agreement for the Project Approval and Environmental Document (PA&ED) Phase for 
the improvement of the Wildomar Trail/I-15 Interchange. 


DISCUSSION: 
On October 1, 2012, WRCOG and the City entered into an agreement titled “Transportation 
Uniform Mitigation Fee Program Agreement” establishing the terms and conditions, scope of 
work, schedule and funding amount for the widening of Palomar Street between Mission Trail 
and Jefferson Avenue.  The agreement appropriated funds totaling $95,680 and covered the 
initial phase: Project Approvals & Environmental Document (PA&ED). 
 
Amendment No. 1 
 
On October 14, 2020, WRCOG and the City executed Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement that 
revised project funding as follows: 
 


1. Added another Phase: Right of Way (ROW) in the amount of $422,000. 
2. Amendment No. 2 increased the total project funding to a not to exceed amount of 


$1,320,517. 







Amendment No. 3 
 
The recommended Amendment No. 3 consists of the following: 
 


1. The funding amount contained in the Agreement will add a Construction Phase in 
the amount of $1,941,000. 


2. The amounts for the PA&ED, PS&E and ROW Phases remain unchanged. 
3. Amendment No. 3 will increase the total funding from $1,320,517 to a not to 


exceed amount of $3,261,517. 
 
Funding summary 
 


Phase Phase Total 


PA&ED $507,000 
PS&E $391,517 
RIGHT OF WAY $422,000 
CONSTRUCTION $1,941,000 
Funding Total $3,261,517 


 
 
Included in the 5-year Capital Improvement Program is the improvement of the Bundy Canyon 
Road and Wildomar Trail I-15 Interchanges (CIP 70 & 74). The initial phase of these projects 
is to develop a Project Study Report and Environmental Document using Caltrans procedures. 
The Project Study Report will identify project requirements and determine the required 
improvements and costs as well identify environmental issues and mitigation measures.  
Funding for this initial phase of the project has been included in the TUMF Transportation 
Improvement Program. The agreements provide funding in the amount of $1,000,000 for each 
Interchange. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Amendment No. 3 will increase the total TUMF funding from $1,320,517 to a not to exceed 
amount of $3,261,517 
 
TUMF funding in the amount of $2,000,000 will be provided by the Agreements for the two 
Interchanges. 
 
No City funding is required at this time. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Dan York       Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager     City Manager 
 
 
 
 







ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A; 


1. Palomar Street Amendment No. 3 
2. Bundy Canyon Road/I-15 Agreement 
3. Wildomar Trail/I-15 Agreement 


 
 







ATTACHMENT A-1 







































ATTACHMENT A-2 











































9/14/21































































ATTACHMENT A-3 











































9/14/21































































CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.10  


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Daniel Torres, Community Services Director 
  
SUBJECT: Third Amendment of the Use Permit for COVID-19 Testing and Vaccines 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends that the City Council approve and authorize the City Manager to sign 
the third amendment to the Use Permit for RUHS through CURATIVE to provide 
COVID-19 testing and vaccinations. 
 
BACKGROUND/ DISCUSSION: 
The Riverside University Health System had entered in an agreement with CURATIVE to 
provide COVID-19 testing services within the County of Riverside. RUHS had requested 
that the County of Riverside to locate and host sites throughout Riverside County. The 
County had determined the City of Wildomar as a location to fulfill the agreement. The 
permit was first presented during the January 2021 council meeting to allow these 
services to be conducted at the Wildomar Little League parking lot and Marna O’Brien as 
a possible secondary location. 
 
Throughout the timeframe of the agreement, Curative has transition from solely providing 
testing to providing vaccination in phases are they became more readily available. 
Currently, the city location is not being utilized by the Curative team as they have 
transition to testing to limited location within this area. Continuing this agreement with 
RUHS will allow for this site to be readily available when Curative expands services. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
CURATIVE staff conducts all services per their agreement with the RUHS. City staff 
manages the unlocking and locking of gates to the site parking lot during normal business 
hours. If additional staff hours are needed to fulfil these services, ARPA funds will be used 
to cover the cost. 
 
Submitted by: Approved by: 
Daniel Torres Gary Nordquist 
Community Services Director  City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
COVID-19 Use Permit - City of Wildomar - Curative – AATF 































CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.11 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED: Emily Stadnik, Land Development Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Villa Siena Apartment Project (PP 13-0089): Park Grading Agreement, 


Overall Grading Agreement and BMP Facilities Agreement  
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute the Park 
Grading Agreement, the Overall Grading Agreement, and the BMP Facilities Agreement 
(Privately Maintained BMPs) with Villa Siena Property, LLC. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Villa Siena Apartment Project (Plot Plan No. 13-0089) (Project) is an approved plot 
plan for multi-family residential purposes located north of Prielipp Road, between 
Elizabeth Lane and Jana Lane, within the City of Wildomar. The Project was approved by 
the City’s Planning Commission on November 4, 2020 for the construction of 170 
apartment dwelling units.   The planned development will consist of 28 apartment 
buildings, pool and club house.  On November 7, 2018, an extension of time was 
approved by the Planning Commission.  With the approval of extension of time, the new 
deadline to begin construction on the project is November 12, 2021.  An aerial image of 
the project site and the surrounding area is provided in Attachment A and the project site 
plan is provided in Attachment B. The grading and improvement plans for Villa Siena 
Apartment Project are currently being processed with the City.  The project also involves 
the development of a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP) to mitigate impacts to 
water quality from the project site. The WQMP includes the construction of Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) to meet water quality requirements. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Grading Agreement 
The Developer is processing two separate grading plans for the project.  Park Precise 
Grading Plan which includes the park located in the Villa Sienna entrance, pool and 
clubhouse portions and Overall Precise Grading Plan which includes the rest of the 
project.  In order to complete on-site grading activities, the Developer is required to enter 
into a Park Grading Agreement (Attachment C) and Overall Grading Agreement 
(Attachment D) which identify the Developer’s obligations to the City in performing and 







completing the grading construction. The agreement also provides the City with bonds to 
secure the grading activities. If the Developer fails to fulfill their obligations, the bonds 
provide a mechanism for the City to ensure that the construction site is brought to a safe 
and acceptable condition. The bonds are based on the Developer’s engineer’s grading 
bond estimates and are included in Attachments C and D. 
 
BMP Agreement 
The Developer is also required to enter into a Stormwater Management/BMP Facilities 
Agreements for privately maintained BMPs (Attachment E) with the City. The BMP 
Agreements identify the maintenance responsibilities of the Developer to ensure that the 
WQMP BMPs that are constructed with this development continue to be maintained in 
the future. 
 
Staff is requesting that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute the Park 
Grading Agreement, the Overall Grading Agreement, and the BMP Facilities Agreement 
(Privately Maintained BMPs) for Villa Siena Apartment Project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal impacts to the City at this time. All costs related to this process are 
covered by developer deposits. In compliance with the City’s NPDES/MS4 Permit, the 
City will be required to perform inspections of the BMPs for the project during the lifetime 
of the development and also receive and/or process verifications from the landowner 
indicating that the BMPs are being maintained. These inspections and processing 
activities are not paid for by the landowner and require that the City use its own funds 
from the ‘General Fund – Stormwater’ account. If the landowner(s) fails to maintain any 
BMPs that they are required to maintain and the City expends funds to maintain the BMPs 
to ensure the City’s MS4/Storm Drain System is protected, the BMP Agreement obligates 
the landowner to pay the City for all associated costs incurred. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Daniel A. York      Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager,     City Manager 
Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 


A. Aerial Image of Villa Siena Apartment Project 
B. Villa Siena Apartment Project Site Plan 
C. Park Grading Agreement, Bond, and Grading Bond Estimate 
D. Overall Grading Agreement, Bond and Grading Bond Estimate 
E. BMP Facilities Agreement (Privately Maintained BMPs) 







ATTACHMENT A


Aerial Image of Villa Siena Apartment Project
(highlighted in yellow)







ATTACHMENT B


Tract Map No. 31667 
McVicar Culvert Cooperative Agreement


Villa Siena Apartment Project
Site Plan







DW


S







ATTACHMENT B


Tract Map No. 31667 
McVicar Culvert Cooperative Agreement



Neva

Text Box

Park Grading Agreement, Bond, and Grading Bond Estimate



Neva

Text Box

ATTACHMENT C







RIV #4849-0958-0384 v2 


AGREEMENT
FOR GRADING PROJECTS


This Agreement, made and entered into by and between the City of Wildomar, Riverside County, State of California, 
hereinafter called City, and VILLA SIENA PROPERTY, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, hereinafter called 
Landowner.


WITNESSETH
FIRST: Landowner, for and in consideration of the approval of a grading plan and the issuance of a grading permit on 
that certain land division known as APN 380-290-029 (the “Property”) agrees, at Landowner's own cost and expense, to 
furnish all labor, equipment, and material necessary to perform and complete in a good and workmanlike manner, 
within 12 months from the date this agreement is executed,  said grading and all work incidental thereto (the “Work”) in 
accordance with the grading plans for the development of the Property which have been approved by the City Engineer, 
and are on file in the Office of the City of Wildomar, Public Works/Engineering Department, and the standards set forth 
in Wildomar Municipal Code Chapter 15, as it may be amended from time to time, which are expressly made a part of 
this agreement. Landowner further agrees to comply with any and all laws, regulations and permits pertaining to water 
quality applicable to the Work, including but not limited to the Clean Water Act, the Porter-Cologne Water Quality 
Control Act, and all permits and regulations issued pursuant thereto. All of the above required work shall be done under 
the inspection of and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and shall not be deemed complete until approval of the 
Work is made by the City Engineer. The estimated cost of said Work is the sum of
Nineteen Thousand Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($19,500.00 ), which covers precise (fine) grading for park.


SECOND: Landowner agrees to pay to the City the actual cost of such inspections of the Work as may be required by the 
City Engineer. Landowner further agrees that if suit is brought upon this agreement or any security guaranteeing the 
completion of the Work, all costs and reasonable expenses and fees incurred by the City in successfully enforcing such 
obligations shall be paid by Landowner, including reasonable attorney's fees, and that upon entry of judgment, such 
costs, expenses, and fees shall be taxed as costs and included in any judgment rendered.


THIRD: City shall not, nor shall any officer or employee of City, be liable or responsible for any accident, loss or damage 
happening or occurring to the Work specified in this agreement prior to the completion and approval hereof, nor shall 
City or any officer or employee thereof be liable for any persons or property injured by reason of the acts or omissions 
of Landowner, his agents or employees in the performance of the Work, and all of said liabilities are assumed by 
Landowner. Landowner agrees to protect, defend and hold harmless City and the officers and employees thereof from 
all loss, liability or claim because of, or arising out of the acts or omissions of Landowner, his agents and employees, in 
the performance of this Agreement.  Separately, and not as a limitation on the foregoing duty to protect, defend, and 
indemnify City, Landowner agrees, as required by Section 13.12.090 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, to protect, defend 
and indemnify City, or any officer or employee thereof, in any administrative or judicial enforcement action by the State 
Water Board, Regional Water Quality Control Board, or any other federal, state or local agency, as well as in any action 
brought against the City by a non-governmental organization relating to one or more alleged violations of the NPDES 
permit or other federal, state or local water quality requirements by Landowner, his agents or employees, including but 
not limited to any and all costs, attorneys’ fees, fines or penalties. 


FOURTH: The Landowner hereby grants to the City, and to any agent or employee of the City, the irrevocable permission 
to enter upon the Property for the purpose of inspecting or completing the Work. This permission shall terminate in the 
event that Landowner has completed the Work within the time specified or any extension thereof granted by the City 
Engineer.


FIFTH: Landowner agrees at all times, up to the completion and approval of the Work by the City Engineer, to give good 
and adequate warning to the traveling public of each and every dangerous condition caused by the Work, and to protect 
the traveling public from such defective or dangerous conditions.







RIV #4849-0958-0384 v2 


SIXTH: The Landowner, or his agents and employees shall give notice to the City Engineer at least 48 hours before 
beginning the Work and shall furnish the City Engineer all reasonable facilities for obtaining full information respecting 
the progress and manner of the Work.


SEVENTH: If the Landowner, or his agents or employees, neglects, refuses, or fails to prosecute the Work with such 
diligence as to insure its completion within the specified time, or within such extensions of time as have been granted by 
the City Engineer, or if the Landowner violates, neglects, refuses, or fails to perform satisfactorily any of the provisions of 
the plans and specifications for the Work, the Landowner shall be in default of this agreement. The City Engineer shall 
have the power to terminate all rights of the Landowner because of such default. The determination of the City Engineer 
of the question as to whether any of the terms of this agreement or the plans and specifications for the Work have been 
violated or have not been performed satisfactorily shall be conclusive upon the Landowner, and any and all parties who 
may have any interest in the agreement or any portion thereof. The foregoing provisions of this section shall be in 
addition to all rights and remedies available to the City under law.


EIGHTH: The Landowner agrees to file with City prior to the date this agreement is executed a good and sufficient 
security as provided in subsections (1), (2) and (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 66499 of the Government Code in any 
amount not less than the estimated cost of the Work for the faithful performance of the terms and conditions of this 
agreement, except that when the estimated cost of said Work is $2,500 or less, the security shall be a deposit of cash or 
its equivalent as determined acceptable by the City Engineer. Landowner further agrees that if in the opinion of the City 
Engineer the security becomes insufficient, Landowner agrees to renew each and every security with good and sufficient 
sureties or increase the amount of the security, within ten days after being notified by the City Engineer that the sureties 
or amounts are insufficient. 


Notwithstanding any other provision herein, if landowner fails to take such action as is necessary to comply with said 
notice, he shall be in default of this agreement unless the Work is completed within 90 days of the date on which the 
City Engineer notifies the Landowner of the insufficiency of the sureties or the amount of the bonds or both.


NINTH: It is further agreed by and between the parties hereto, including the surety or sureties on the bonds or the 
issuers of any instruments or letters or credit securing this agreement that, in the event it is deemed necessary to 
extend the time of completion of the Work, extensions of time may be granted from time to time by the City Engineer 
either at his own option or upon request of the Landowner, and such extensions shall in no way affect the validity of this 
agreement or release the surety or sureties on said bonds. Landowner further agrees to maintain the aforesaid bond or 
bonds or the issuance of any instruments or letters of credit in full force and effect during the terms of this agreement, 
including any extensions of time as may be granted thereon.


TENTH: When the Work described in the first paragraph of this agreement consists of only rough or precise grading, 
upon the satisfactory completion and final approval of said Work by the City Engineer, the entire amount of the security 
applicable thereto shall be released or returned by City to the Landowner.


ELEVENTH: This agreement shall be binding upon the Landowner and his heirs, executors, administrators, successors or 
assigns, all and each both jointly and severally.


TWELFTH: It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that if any part, term or provision of this agreement is 
determined by the courts to be unlawful and void, the validity of the remaining portions shall not be affected and the 
rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the agreement did not contain the particular 
part, term or provision held to be invalid.


THIRTEENTH: The City's City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affecting substantive 
terms without further authorization from the City Council. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to 







RIV #4849-0958-0384 v2 


execute any such amendments as required by this Agreement or that do not otherwise reduce City's rights under this 
Agreement.


FOURTEENTH: Any notice or notices required or permitted to be given pursuant to this agreement shall be served on the 
other party by mail, postage prepaid, at the following addresses:


City Landowner
City of Wildomar Villa Siena Property, LLC
Public Works/Engineering Department Developer (Owner)
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 27271 Las Ramblas, Suite 100
Wildomar, CA 92595 Mission Viejo, CA 92601
(951) 677-7751 Phone Number: (949) 348-8162
(951) 698-1463 Email address: rgrexton@woodbridgepacific.com


FIFTEENTH:  Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent and authorized to enter 
into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless the other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including 
necessary expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims that its signatory was 
not competent or so authorized to sign this Agreement.


[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]







RIV #4849-0958-0384 v2 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF LANDOWNER HAS AFFIXED HIS NAME, ADDRESS AND SEAL.


____________________________________


By __________________________________
__________________________________


Date ________________________________


By __________________________________
__________________________________


Date ________________________________


City of Wildomar


    By __________________________________
     __________________________________


        Date _________________________________


Approved as to Form:
Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney


By: ____________________________


(SIGNATURES OF LANDOWNER(S) MUST BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY A NOTARY AND EXECUTED IN DUPLICATE, WITH THE
NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGMENT ATTACHED HERETO. ALL SIGNATURES TO BE INCLUDED ON THIS DOCUMENT OR IDENTIFY
THIS DOCUMENT WHEN INCLUDING A SIGNATURE PAGE.)







RIV #4835-2284-7769 v1 


FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND


CITY OF WILDOMAR, RIVERSIDE COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA


(Park Grading)


FOR: 


Park Grading
$ _19,500.00______________________________ 


Tract No.
________________________________________ 


Premium
$ ________________________________________


Parcel Map No.
________________________________________ 


Bond No.
________________________________________ 


Surety
________________________________________ 


Principal
__Villa Siena Property, LLC___________________ 


Address
________________________________________ 


Address
__27271 Las Ramblas, Suite 100______________ 


City/State
________________________________________ 


City/State
__Mission Viejo, CA ________________________ 


Zip
________________________________________ 


Zip
__92601_________________________________ 


Phone
________________________________________ 


Phone
__(949) 348-8162_________________________ 


WHEREAS, the City of Wildomar, Riverside County, State of California, and 
______________________________ (hereinafter designated as ("principal") have entered into, or are about to 
enter into, the attached agreement(s) whereby principal agrees to complete the above on-site grading relating 
to (Tract/Parcel Map) ________________________________________, which agreement(s) is/are hereby 
referred to and made a part hereof; and,  


WHEREAS, said principal is required under the terms of said agreement(s) to furnish bond(s) for the faithful 
performance of said agreement(s); 


NOW, THEREFORE, we the principal and ________________________________________, as surety, are held 
and firmly bound unto the City of Wildomar in the penal sum of 
________________________________________ Dollars ($ ________________) lawful money of the United 
States, for the payment of which sum will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, successors, 
executors and administrators, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.  


The condition of this obligation is such that if the above bonded principal, his or its heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep and 
perform the covenants, conditions and provisions in the said agreement and any alteration thereof made as 
therein provided, on his or their part, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein specified, 
and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall indemnify and save harmless the City of 
Wildomar, its officers, agents and employees, as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and 
void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect.  







RIV #4835-2284-7769 v1 


As a part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified therefore, there shall be 
included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred by the City in 
successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any judgment rendered. 


The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of 
the agreement or to the work to be performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in 
anywise affect its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of 
time, alteration or addition. 


Surety further stipulates and agrees that the provisions of Section 2845 of the Civil Code and commencement of 
construction are not conditions precedent to surety's obligations hereunder and are hereby waived by 
surety.  When the work covered by the agreement is complete as determined by the City of Wildomar, the City 
will release the obligation of this bond. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the principal and surety above named, on 
________________________________________. 


NAME OF PRINCIPAL ________________________________________


________________________________________ 


AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE(S): 
By: 


______________________________ 


______________________________ 


______________________________ 


______________________________ 
Title


______________________________ 
Title


______________________________ 
Title


(If Corporation, Affix Seal) 


NAME OF SURETY: ________________________________________ 


AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: ______________________________ 
Its Attorney-in-Fact


______________________________ 
Title


(If Corporation, Affix Seal) 


Attach Notarial Acknowledgment Of Signatures Of Principal And Attorney-In-Fact. 











ATTACHMENT B


Tract Map No. 31667 
McVicar Culvert Cooperative Agreement



Neva

Text Box

Overall Grading Agreement,Bond and Grading Bond Estimate



Neva

Text Box

ATTACHMENT D







RIV #4849-0958-0384 v2 


AGREEMENT
FOR GRADING PROJECTS


This Agreement, made and entered into by and between the City of Wildomar, Riverside County, State of California, 
hereinafter called City, and Villa Siena Property, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, hereinafter called 
Landowner.


WITNESSETH
FIRST: Landowner, for and in consideration of the approval of a grading plan and the issuance of a grading permit on 
that certain land division known as APN 380-290-029 (the “Property”) agrees, at Landowner's own cost and expense, to 
furnish all labor, equipment, and material necessary to perform and complete in a good and workmanlike manner, 
within 12 months from the date this agreement is executed,  said grading and all work incidental thereto (the “Work”) in 
accordance with the grading plans for the development of the Property which have been approved by the City Engineer, 
and are on file in the Office of the City of Wildomar, Public Works/Engineering Department, and the standards set forth 
in Wildomar Municipal Code Chapter 15, as it may be amended from time to time, which are expressly made a part of 
this agreement. Landowner further agrees to comply with any and all laws, regulations and permits pertaining to water 
quality applicable to the Work, including but not limited to the Clean Water Act, the Porter-Cologne Water Quality 
Control Act, and all permits and regulations issued pursuant thereto. All of the above required work shall be done under 
the inspection of and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and shall not be deemed complete until approval of the 
Work is made by the City Engineer. The estimated cost of said Work is the sum of
Eight Hundred Ninety-Eight Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($898,000.00), which covers overall precise (fine) grading.


SECOND: Landowner agrees to pay to the City the actual cost of such inspections of the Work as may be required by the 
City Engineer. Landowner further agrees that if suit is brought upon this agreement or any security guaranteeing the 
completion of the Work, all costs and reasonable expenses and fees incurred by the City in successfully enforcing such 
obligations shall be paid by Landowner, including reasonable attorney's fees, and that upon entry of judgment, such 
costs, expenses, and fees shall be taxed as costs and included in any judgment rendered.


THIRD: City shall not, nor shall any officer or employee of City, be liable or responsible for any accident, loss or damage 
happening or occurring to the Work specified in this agreement prior to the completion and approval hereof, nor shall 
City or any officer or employee thereof be liable for any persons or property injured by reason of the acts or omissions 
of Landowner, his agents or employees in the performance of the Work, and all of said liabilities are assumed by 
Landowner. Landowner agrees to protect, defend and hold harmless City and the officers and employees thereof from 
all loss, liability or claim because of, or arising out of the acts or omissions of Landowner, his agents and employees, in 
the performance of this Agreement.  Separately, and not as a limitation on the foregoing duty to protect, defend, and 
indemnify City, Landowner agrees, as required by Section 13.12.090 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, to protect, defend 
and indemnify City, or any officer or employee thereof, in any administrative or judicial enforcement action by the State 
Water Board, Regional Water Quality Control Board, or any other federal, state or local agency, as well as in any action 
brought against the City by a non-governmental organization relating to one or more alleged violations of the NPDES 
permit or other federal, state or local water quality requirements by Landowner, his agents or employees, including but 
not limited to any and all costs, attorneys’ fees, fines or penalties. 


FOURTH: The Landowner hereby grants to the City, and to any agent or employee of the City, the irrevocable permission 
to enter upon the Property for the purpose of inspecting or completing the Work. This permission shall terminate in the 
event that Landowner has completed the Work within the time specified or any extension thereof granted by the City 
Engineer.


FIFTH: Landowner agrees at all times, up to the completion and approval of the Work by the City Engineer, to give good 
and adequate warning to the traveling public of each and every dangerous condition caused by the Work, and to protect 
the traveling public from such defective or dangerous conditions.







RIV #4849-0958-0384 v2 


SIXTH: The Landowner, or his agents and employees shall give notice to the City Engineer at least 48 hours before 
beginning the Work and shall furnish the City Engineer all reasonable facilities for obtaining full information respecting 
the progress and manner of the Work.


SEVENTH: If the Landowner, or his agents or employees, neglects, refuses, or fails to prosecute the Work with such 
diligence as to insure its completion within the specified time, or within such extensions of time as have been granted by 
the City Engineer, or if the Landowner violates, neglects, refuses, or fails to perform satisfactorily any of the provisions of 
the plans and specifications for the Work, the Landowner shall be in default of this agreement. The City Engineer shall 
have the power to terminate all rights of the Landowner because of such default. The determination of the City Engineer 
of the question as to whether any of the terms of this agreement or the plans and specifications for the Work have been 
violated or have not been performed satisfactorily shall be conclusive upon the Landowner, and any and all parties who 
may have any interest in the agreement or any portion thereof. The foregoing provisions of this section shall be in 
addition to all rights and remedies available to the City under law.


EIGHTH: The Landowner agrees to file with City prior to the date this agreement is executed a good and sufficient 
security as provided in subsections (1), (2) and (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 66499 of the Government Code in any 
amount not less than the estimated cost of the Work for the faithful performance of the terms and conditions of this 
agreement, except that when the estimated cost of said Work is $2,500 or less, the security shall be a deposit of cash or 
its equivalent as determined acceptable by the City Engineer. Landowner further agrees that if in the opinion of the City 
Engineer the security becomes insufficient, Landowner agrees to renew each and every security with good and sufficient 
sureties or increase the amount of the security, within ten days after being notified by the City Engineer that the sureties 
or amounts are insufficient. 


Notwithstanding any other provision herein, if landowner fails to take such action as is necessary to comply with said 
notice, he shall be in default of this agreement unless the Work is completed within 90 days of the date on which the 
City Engineer notifies the Landowner of the insufficiency of the sureties or the amount of the bonds or both.


NINTH: It is further agreed by and between the parties hereto, including the surety or sureties on the bonds or the 
issuers of any instruments or letters or credit securing this agreement that, in the event it is deemed necessary to 
extend the time of completion of the Work, extensions of time may be granted from time to time by the City Engineer 
either at his own option or upon request of the Landowner, and such extensions shall in no way affect the validity of this 
agreement or release the surety or sureties on said bonds. Landowner further agrees to maintain the aforesaid bond or 
bonds or the issuance of any instruments or letters of credit in full force and effect during the terms of this agreement, 
including any extensions of time as may be granted thereon.


TENTH: When the Work described in the first paragraph of this agreement consists of only rough or precise grading, 
upon the satisfactory completion and final approval of said Work by the City Engineer, the entire amount of the security 
applicable thereto shall be released or returned by City to the Landowner.


ELEVENTH: This agreement shall be binding upon the Landowner and his heirs, executors, administrators, successors or 
assigns, all and each both jointly and severally.


TWELFTH: It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that if any part, term or provision of this agreement is 
determined by the courts to be unlawful and void, the validity of the remaining portions shall not be affected and the 
rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the agreement did not contain the particular 
part, term or provision held to be invalid.


THIRTEENTH: The City's City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affecting substantive 
terms without further authorization from the City Council. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to 







RIV #4849-0958-0384 v2 


execute any such amendments as required by this Agreement or that do not otherwise reduce City's rights under this 
Agreement.


FOURTEENTH: Any notice or notices required or permitted to be given pursuant to this agreement shall be served on the 
other party by mail, postage prepaid, at the following addresses:


City Landowner
City of Wildomar Villa Siena Property, LLC
Public Works/Engineering Department Developer (Owner)
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 27271 Las Ramblas, Suite 100
Wildomar, CA 92595 Mission Viejo, CA 92601
(951) 677-7751 Phone Number: (949) 348-8162
(951) 698-1463 Email address: rgrexton@woodbridgepacific.com


FIFTEENTH:  Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent and authorized to enter 
into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless the other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including 
necessary expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims that its signatory was 
not competent or so authorized to sign this Agreement.


[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]







RIV #4849-0958-0384 v2 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF LANDOWNER HAS AFFIXED HIS NAME, ADDRESS AND SEAL.


____________________________________


By __________________________________
__________________________________


Date ________________________________


By __________________________________
__________________________________


Date ________________________________


City of Wildomar


    By __________________________________
     __________________________________


        Date _________________________________


Approved as to Form:
Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney


By: ____________________________


(SIGNATURES OF LANDOWNER(S) MUST BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY A NOTARY AND EXECUTED IN DUPLICATE, WITH THE
NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGMENT ATTACHED HERETO. ALL SIGNATURES TO BE INCLUDED ON THIS DOCUMENT OR IDENTIFY
THIS DOCUMENT WHEN INCLUDING A SIGNATURE PAGE.)







RIV #4835-2284-7769 v1 


FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND


CITY OF WILDOMAR, RIVERSIDE COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA


(Overall Grading)


FOR: 


Overall Grading
$ _898,000.00______________________________ 


Tract No.
________________________________________ 


Premium
$ ________________________________________


Parcel Map No.
________________________________________ 


Bond No.
________________________________________ 


Surety
________________________________________ 


Principal
__Villa Siena Property, LLC__________________ 


Address
________________________________________ 


Address
__27271 Las Ramblas, Suite 100______________ 


City/State
________________________________________ 


City/State
__Mission Viejo, CA ________________________ 


Zip
________________________________________ 


Zip
__92601_________________________________ 


Phone
________________________________________ 


Phone
__(949) 348-8162_________________________ 


WHEREAS, the City of Wildomar, Riverside County, State of California, and 
______________________________ (hereinafter designated as ("principal") have entered into, or are about to 
enter into, the attached agreement(s) whereby principal agrees to complete the above on-site grading relating 
to (Tract/Parcel Map) ________________________________________, which agreement(s) is/are hereby 
referred to and made a part hereof; and,  


WHEREAS, said principal is required under the terms of said agreement(s) to furnish bond(s) for the faithful 
performance of said agreement(s); 


NOW, THEREFORE, we the principal and ________________________________________, as surety, are held 
and firmly bound unto the City of Wildomar in the penal sum of 
________________________________________ Dollars ($ ________________) lawful money of the United 
States, for the payment of which sum will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, successors, 
executors and administrators, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.  


The condition of this obligation is such that if the above bonded principal, his or its heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep and 
perform the covenants, conditions and provisions in the said agreement and any alteration thereof made as 
therein provided, on his or their part, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein specified, 
and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall indemnify and save harmless the City of 
Wildomar, its officers, agents and employees, as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and 
void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect.  







RIV #4835-2284-7769 v1 


As a part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified therefore, there shall be 
included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred by the City in 
successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any judgment rendered. 


The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of 
the agreement or to the work to be performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in 
anywise affect its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of 
time, alteration or addition. 


Surety further stipulates and agrees that the provisions of Section 2845 of the Civil Code and commencement of 
construction are not conditions precedent to surety's obligations hereunder and are hereby waived by 
surety.  When the work covered by the agreement is complete as determined by the City of Wildomar, the City 
will release the obligation of this bond. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the principal and surety above named, on 
________________________________________. 


NAME OF PRINCIPAL ________________________________________


________________________________________ 


AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE(S): 
By: 


______________________________ 


______________________________ 


______________________________ 


______________________________ 
Title


______________________________ 
Title


______________________________ 
Title


(If Corporation, Affix Seal) 


NAME OF SURETY: ________________________________________ 


AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: ______________________________ 
Its Attorney-in-Fact


______________________________ 
Title


(If Corporation, Affix Seal) 


Attach Notarial Acknowledgment Of Signatures Of Principal And Attorney-In-Fact. 











ATTACHMENT B


Tract Map No. 31667 
McVicar Culvert Cooperative Agreement



Neva

Text Box

BMP Facilities Agreement(Privately Maintained BMPs)



Neva

Text Box

ATTACHMENT E







RIV #4813-1696-2656 v2 


STORMWATER MANAGEMENT/BMP
FACILITIES AGREEMENT


THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 13th day of October, 2021 , by and 
between Villa Siena Property, LLC,  a Delaware limited liability company (the 
"Landowner"), and the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation (the "City"). 


RECITALS 


WHEREAS, the Landowner is the owner of certain real property described as APN 380-
290-029  as recorded by deed in the land records of Riverside County, California, Deed Book 
25, Page 62, (the "Property"). 


WHEREAS, the Landowner is proceeding to build on and develop the Property; and 


WHEREAS, the Site Plan/Subdivision Plan known as Villa Siena Apartments Precise 
Grade Plan, as approved or to be approved by the City (the "Plan"), which is incorporated 
herein by reference, provides for stormwater quality treatment within the confines of the 
property; and 


WHEREAS, the City and the Landowner, its successors and assigns, including any 
homeowners association, agree that the health, safety, and welfare of the residents of Wildomar, 
California, require that the Landowner, its successors and assigns, including but not limited to 
any homeowners association, construct and maintain stormwater management/Best Management 
Practices facilities (the “Facilities”) on the Property. 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the mutual covenants 
contained herein, and the following terms and conditions, the parties hereto agree as follows:


1. The Facilities shall be constructed by the Landowner, its successors and assigns, in 
accordance with the plans and specifications identified in the Plan.


2. The Landowner, its successors and assigns, including any homeowners association, shall 
adequately maintain the Facilities, including all pipes and channels built to convey stormwater to 
the Facilities, as well as all structures, improvements, and vegetation provided to control the 
quantity and quality of the stormwater.  Adequate maintenance is herein defined as good 
working condition so that the Facilities are performing their designed functions.


3. The Landowner, its successors and assigns, shall inspect the Facilities and submit an 
inspection report annually to the City. The purpose of the inspection is to assure safe and proper 
functioning of the Facilities. The inspection shall cover the entire Facilities, including but not 
limited to berms, outlet structures, pond areas, and access roads.  Deficiencies in the Facilities 
shall be noted in the inspection report.


4. The Landowner, its successors and assigns, hereby grant permission to the City, its 
authorized agents and employees, to enter upon the Property and to inspect the Facilities 
whenever the City deems necessary.  The City shall provide the Landowner, its successors and 
assigns, copies of the inspection findings and a directive to commence repairs, if necessary.


5. In the event the Landowner, its successors and assigns, fails to adequately maintain the 
Facilities in good working condition acceptable to the City, the City may enter upon the Property 







RIV #4813-1696-2656 v2 


and take whatever steps necessary to correct deficiencies identified in the inspection report and 
to charge the costs of such repairs to the Landowner, its successors and assigns. This provision 
shall not be construed to allow the City to erect any structure of permanent nature on the land of 
the Landowner outside of the easement for the Facilities. It is expressly understood and agreed 
that the City is under no obligation to routinely maintain or repair the Facilities, and in no event 
shall this Agreement be construed to impose any such obligation on the City.


6. The Landowner, its successors and assigns, will perform the work necessary to keep the 
Facilities in good working order. In the event a maintenance schedule for the Facilities 
(including sediment removal) is contained in the Plans, Landowner will follow that schedule.


7. In the event the City, pursuant to this Agreement, performs work of any nature, or 
expends any funds in performance of said work for labor, use of equipment, supplies, materials, 
and the like, the Landowner, its successors and assigns, shall reimburse the City upon demand, 
within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof for all actual costs incurred by the City hereunder.


8. This Agreement imposes no liability of any kind whatsoever on the City and the 
Landowner agrees to hold the City harmless, defend and indemnify from any liability 
whatsoever, including negligence, in the event the Facilities fail to operate properly.


9. This Agreement shall be recorded among the land records of Riverside County, 
California, and shall constitute a covenant running with the land, and shall be binding on the 
Landowner, its administrators, executors, assigns, heirs and any other successors in interests, 
including any homeowners association.


10. The City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not 
affecting substantive terms without further authorization from the City Council. The City 
Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute any such amendments as required 
by this Agreement or that do not otherwise reduce City’s rights under this Agreement.


11. Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent 
and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she 
purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including necessary 
expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims 
that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to sign this Agreement.


WITNESS the following signatures and seals:


Villa Siena Property, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Company (Seal)


By:____________________________________


Name:__________________________________


Title:____________________________________







RIV #4813-1696-2656 v2 


_______________________________________
Company/Corporation/Partnership Name


By:____________________________________


Name:__________________________________


Title:____________________________________


NOTE: SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, AND APPROPRIATE 
ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY 
THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, OR OTHER RULES 
OR REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO THE BUSINESS ENTITY.


CITY OF WILDOMAR


______________________________ _________________
Gary Nordquist Date
City Manager


ATTEST


______________________________ _________________
Janet Morales Date
City Clerk


APPROVED AS TO FORM


______________________________ _________________
Thomas D. Jex Date
City Attorney







 1 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item 1.12  


CONSENT CALENDAR 
 Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED BY: Jason Farag, Associate Engineer 
  
SUBJECT:  Award of Construction Contract – House Demolition for the Bundy 


Canyon Road Improvement Project, Segment 2 (CIP 026-2A) 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council take the following actions: 


 
1. Authorize the City Manager to execute a construction contract with Beckco, Inc. 


in the amount of $206,000.00 for the House Demolition for the Bundy Canyon 
Road Improvement Project, Segment 2 (CIP 026-2A). 


2. Authorize the City Engineer to approve change orders not to exceed 10% of the 
contract amount (contingency). 


3. Approve a Budget Adjustment to increase TUMF Funding to the Right-of-Way 
Phase of CIP 026-2 by $91,000. 
 


BACKGROUND: 
In 2019, the City of Wildomar (City) purchased three properties on Bundy Canyon Road 
as part of the right-of-way acquisition process for the Bundy Canyon Road 
Improvement/Widening Project. The properties are located just northwest of Oak Circle 
Dr. and Bundy Canyon Rd. (Attachment A). It was necessary for the City to acquire these 
properties to accommodate the future roadway widening. 
 
Since that time, the existing structures on the properties have been vacant and the 
structures on the properties have been vandalized, damaged, and looted. In addition, the 
properties have become subject to illegal dumping. To discourage unpermitted use of the 
properties and to eliminate the potential safety risks and liabilities associated with these 
unpermitted uses, the City has decided to demolish the existing structures now instead 
of waiting until the road widening which is currently planned for construction in Fiscal Year 
2023-2024. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
A combined bid package for the House Demolition for the Bundy Canyon Road 
Improvement Project, Segment 2 (CIP 026-2A) which included construction plans, 







  
 


 
 


technical specifications, and bid documents was prepared and advertised for construction 
bids. The project includes the removal and disposal of existing structures, surface 
improvements, and certain vegetation; abandonment of septic systems; capping of wells; 
installation of chain link fencing and gates and all items not mentioned but indicated in 
the Plans, Specifications, and the Technical Specifications within the Contract 
Documents. The Project Plans are included as Attachment B. 
 
The project was advertised for bids on September 9, 2021. An optional pre-bid job 
walk/meeting was held at the project site on September 20, 2021. Bids were accepted 
until 3:00 pm on September 29, 2021. The City Clerk received two timely bids as provided 
in the Table below. 
 


Contractor Name Bid Amount 
Beckco, Inc. $206,000.00 


Balandra Demolition $350,000.00 
 
Staff has reviewed the bid packages submitted by the bidders, checking the bid packages 
for compliance with the contract documents and has determined that Beckco, Inc. is the 
responsible bidder submitting the lowest responsive bid. The second lowest bidder’s bid 
proposal was determined to be non-responsive. The bid proposal received by Beckco, 
Inc. is included as Attachment C. 
 
Beckco, Inc. holds a valid Class C-21 Contractor’s license in the State of California, with 
no enforcement actions listed. Their license expires on February 28, 2022. The 
Experience/Qualifications Statement that was submitted with the bid documents indicate 
that Beckco, Inc. has engaged in contracting under the current name for 18 years and 
has not failed to satisfactorily complete a contract. A list of 3 completed projects were 
listed for reference ranging in value from $72,000 to $204,000 and were all completed in 
2021. The projects listed were completed for private construction companies, but all of 
the projects included structure demolition. 
 
The construction contract allows 20 working days to complete the required work. Based 
on a Notice to Proceed being issued to the contractor on November 15, 2021, the contract 
completion is projected to be December 14, 2021 (barring time extensions due to change 
orders or inclement weather). The contract is included as Attachment D. 
 
CEQA DETERMINATION: 
The work included in this project is part of the Bundy Canyon Road Improvement Project 
and is therefore covered by the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) that was prepared 
and approved for the Bundy Canyon Road/Scott Road Improvement Project. The work is 
in conformance with the EIR, and no separate or further California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) evaluation is necessary. 
 
 
 







  
 


 
 


FISCAL IMPACTS: 
Project expenditures for this demolition project are all assigned to the Right-of-Way phase 
of the Bundy Canyon Road Improvement Project, Segment 2 (CIP 026-2). All project 
expenditures are funded by TUMF funds (Fund 503). 
 
The currently approved Project budget and the current expenditure summary is 
provided in Table 1 below. 
 


Table 1 - Existing FY 21/22 Project Budget 


Project Phase/Task Budget Expenditures 
to Date 


Budget 
Remaining 


Right-of-Way $164,000 $12,135 $151,865 
 
As shown in Table 1, the originally budgeted right-of-way cost was $164,000. However, 
based on the lowest bid of $206,000 and accounting for a 10% change order contingency, 
the total construction cost estimate is now $220,600. Accounting for costs for 
Construction Administration and prior expenditures to date, additional TUMF funds will be 
necessary. A revised Project expenditure summary is provided below. Staff requests that 
the City Council approve a Budget Adjustment to increase TUMF funding for CIP 026-2 
by $91,000, to adequately fund the project as shown in Table 2 below. 
 


Table 2 – Proposed FY 21/22 Project Budget 


Project Phase/Task Budget Expenditures 
to Date 


Budget 
Remaining 


Right-of-Way (primary task) 
Design/PS&E/Admin (sub-task) $10,000 $10,000 $0 
Construction (sub-task) $226,600 $0 $226,600 
Construction Admin/Inspection 
(sub-task) $19,000 $2,135 $17,675 


Total $255,000 $12,135 $242,865 
 
As shown in Table 2, the total project cost in FY 21/22 is now estimated to be $255,000. 
There is no fiscal impact to the City’s General Fund. 
 
 
Submitted by:   Approved by: 
Dan York   Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Director/  City Manager 
City Engineer 
   
ATTACHMENTS: 


A. Exhibit of Project Properties 
B. Project Plans 
C. Beckco, Inc. Bid Proposal 
D. Construction Contract







 


ATTACHMENT A 
 


 
Figure 1 - Project Properties (highlighted in yellow) 







ATTACHMENT B 







 


PLANS DRAWN BY: JF 
REVISED: 9/23/2021 - PRINTED: 9/23/2021 


CONSTRUCTION NOTES 


NO. DESCRIPTION 


1 REMOVE/DEMOLISH EXISTING STRUCTURE AND ASSOCIATED IMPROVEMENTS PER PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS 


2 REMOVE EXISTING SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS AS SHOWN HEREON AND AS FURTHER DETAILED IN PROJECT 


SPECIFICATIONS 


3 INSTALL CHAIN LINK FENCE OR DRIVE GATE (TYPE PER PLAN) UPON PROJECT COMPLETION 


PROPERTY DETAILS 


ID ADDRESS WATER SEWER GAS 


A 23302 BUNDY CANYON RD., WILDOMAR, CA 92595 WELL SEPTIC DISCONNECTED 


B 23400 BUNDY CANYON RD., WILDOMAR, CA 92595 WELL SEPTIC DISCONNECTED 


C 23456 BUNDY CANYON RD., WILDOMAR, CA 92595 WELL SEPTIC PROPANE - REMOVED 


NOTES 
• UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, REMOVE ALL PERIMETER FENCING ALONG THE FRONT OF THE PROPERTIES AND REMOVE ALL INTERIOR FENCING BETWEEN THE PROPERTIES. 


• SIGNIFICANT REMOVAL AREAS ARE SHOWN HEREON. HOWEVER, CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL FLATWORK AND DECORATIVE IMPROVEMENTS (WHETHER LABELED OR NOT).  


• ALL SHRUBS, BUSHES, DECORATIVE LANDSCAPING AND SIMILAR LANDSCAPING SHALL BE REMOVED. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH ENGINEER TO IDENTIFY LANDSCAPING TO BE REMOVED AND LANDSCAPING TO 
BE PROTECTED, PRIOR TO REMOVAL. 


• DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS (E.G. V-DITCHES, ETC…) SHALL BE PROTECTED IN PLACE, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED OR INSTRUCTED. 


• CONTRACTOR SHALL PROPERLY REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF ALL MISCELLANEOUS TRASH, DEBRIS, AND OTHER WASTE MATERIAL ON THE SITES. 


• KNOWN LOCATIONS OF WELLS AND SEPTIC SYSTEMS ARE SHOWN IN THEIR APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS, FOR REFERENCE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO LOCATE ALL UTILITIES, INCLUDING THOSE NOT 
SHOWN HEREON, IN THE FIELD. APPROXIMATE FUTURE CUTS AT WELL LOCATIONS ARE SHOWN FOR REFERENCE. ACTUAL CUTS SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE CITY WHEN THE CONTRACTOR LOCATES THE WELL VIA GPS. 


LEGEND 


LABEL DESCRIPTION 


 PROJECT LIMITS 


 REMOVAL LIMITS 


1 


1 


1 


2 STRUCTURE PREVIOUSLY REMOVED. 


REMOVE FOUNDATION IMPROVEMENTS. 


2 


2 


EXIST. VINYL FENCE 


(PROTECT IN PLACE) 


EXIST. DRIVEWAY 


(PROTECT IN PLACE) 


2 


REAR/NORTHERLY FENCE LINE (PROTECT IN PLACE) 


WESTERLY FENCE (PROTECT IN PLACE) 
EX. V-DITCH (PROTECT IN PLACE) 


N 


C 
2 


2 


B 


2 


2 2 


3 
A 


BUNDY CANYON RD. HOUSE DEMOLITION 


CIP 026-2A: HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE  


BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT - SEGMENT 2 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


2 GATE AND PILASTERS 


3 DRIVE GATE 


CHAIN LINK FENCE 


SEPTIC SYSTEM 


(TO BE REMOVED) 


WELLS (2 EA) (PROTECT IN PLACE) 


PER SPECIFICATIONS) 


WELL (PROTECT IN PLACE) 


PER SPECIFICATIONS) 


SEPTIC SYSTEM 


(TO BE REMOVED) 


CHANGED WELLS TO BE PROTECTED IN PLACE - JF - 9/23/2021 
 1 


 1 


 1 


 1 WELL (PROTECT IN PLACE) 


PER SPECIFICATIONS) 







ATTACHMENT C 



















































































ATTACHMENT D 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 1 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 


This contract (“Contract”) is effective as of October 13, 2021, and is between the CITY 
OF WILDOMAR, a California municipal corporation (“Owner”), and Beckco, Inc., a California 
corporation (“Contractor”), collectively referred to as the “Parties” and individually a “Party.” 


Section 1. Recitals.  This Contract is entered into with respect to the following facts: 


1.1 Owner received Contractor’s Proposal for the Work involved in the House 
Demolition for the Bundy Canyon Road Improvement Project, Segment 2 
(CIP 026-2A) (“Project”), which is more fully described in the Contract 
Documents. 


1.2 Contractor represents and warrants that it is fully qualified to perform all of the 
Work required to complete the Project. 


1.3 Contractor agrees to perform all such Work in the time and manner set forth in 
the Contract Documents. 


1.4 The City Council has awarded the Contract to Contractor. 


Section 2. Contract Documents.  To the extent they exist, this Contract consists of the 
following documents (“Contract Documents”), all of which are made a part of 
this Contract: 


2.1 Notice of Inviting Bids 


2.2 Instructions to Bidders, and any Addenda or Bulletins 


2.3 Bid Documents 


2.4 Contractor’s Proposal (for reference purposes only) 


2.5 Notice to Proceed 


2.6 This Contract 


2.7 Bid Schedules 


2.8 Approved Change Orders 


2.9 General Conditions 


2.10 Verification of California Contractor’s License 


2.11 Contractor’s Certificate Regarding Workers’ Compensation 


2.12 Security for payment (labor and materials) 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 2 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


2.13 Security for performance 


2.14 Certificate(s) of Insurance 


2.15 Technical Specifications (including attached plans and drawings) 


2.16 Other documents (list here) 


Exhibit A – Compensation   


Exhibit B – Insurance    


Section 3. The Work. 


3.1 The Work (“Work”) to be performed by Contractor is described in the Contract 
Documents. 


3.2 In completing the Work, Contractor must employ, at a minimum, the applicable 
generally accepted professional standards of its industry in existence at the time 
of performance as utilized by persons engaging in similar Work. 


3.3 Except as specifically provided in the Contract Documents, Contractor must 
furnish, at its sole expense, all of the labor, materials, tools, equipment, services 
and transportation necessary to perform all of the Work, including any incidental 
Work that is not expressly shown or described in the Contract Document but is 
required for the successful completion of the Work. 


3.4 Contractor must perform all of the Work in strict accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 


3.5 Warranty.  Contractor warrants all Work under the Contract (which for purposes 
of this provision shall be deemed to include unauthorized work which has not 
been removed and any non-conforming materials incorporated into the Work) to 
be of good quality and free from any defective or faulty material and 
workmanship.  Contractor agrees that for a period of one year (or the period of 
time specified elsewhere in the Contract or in any guarantee or warranty 
provided by any manufacturer or supplier of equipment or materials incorporated 
into the Work, whichever is later) after the date of final acceptance, Contractor 
shall within ten (10) Days after being notified in writing by the City of any defect in 
the Work or non-conformance of the Work to the Contract, commence and 
prosecute with due diligence all Work necessary to fulfill the terms of the 
warranty at his sole cost and expense.  Contractor shall act sooner as requested 
by the City in response to an emergency.  In addition, Contractor shall, at its sole 
cost and expense, repair and replace any portions of the Work (or work of other 
contractors) damaged by its defective Work or which becomes damaged in the 
course of repairing or replacing defective Work.  For any Work so corrected, 
Contractor's obligation hereunder to correct defective Work shall be reinstated for 
an additional one year period, commencing with the date of acceptance of such 
corrected Work.  Contractor shall perform such tests as the City may require 
verifying that any corrective actions, including, without limitation, redesign, 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 3 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


repairs, and replacements comply with the requirements of the Contract.  All 
costs associated with such corrective actions and testing, including the removal, 
replacement, and reinstitution of equipment and materials necessary to gain 
access, shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor.  All warranties and 
guarantees of subcontractors, suppliers and manufacturers with respect to any 
portion of the Work, whether express or implied, are deemed to be obtained by 
Contractor for the benefit of the City, regardless of whether or not such 
warranties and guarantees have been transferred or assigned to the City by 
separate agreement and Contractor agrees to enforce such warranties and 
guarantees, if necessary, on behalf of the City.  In the event that Contractor fails 
to perform its obligations under this Section, or under any other warranty or 
guaranty under this Contract, to the reasonable satisfaction of the City, the City 
shall have the right to correct and replace any defective or non-conforming Work 
and any work damaged by such work or the replacement or correction thereof at 
Contractor's sole expense.  Contractor shall be obligated to fully reimburse the 
City for any expenses incurred hereunder upon demand. 


3.6 Standard of Performance.  Contractor shall perform all Work under this Contract 
in a skillful and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally 
recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the 
State of California.  Contractor represents and maintains that it is skilled in the 
professional calling necessary to perform the Work.  Contractor warrants that all 
employees and subcontractors shall have sufficient skill and experience to 
perform the Work assigned to them.  Finally, Contractor represents that it, its 
employees and its subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications and 
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Work, and 
that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this 
Contract.  Any employee who is determined by the City to be uncooperative, 
incompetent, a threat to the safety of persons or the Work, or any employee who 
fails or refuses to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be 
promptly removed from the Project by the Contractor and shall not be 
re-employed on the Work. 


3.7 Inspection and Acceptance of Work.  Owner may inspect and accept or reject 
any of Contractor’s work under this Agreement, either during performance or 
when completed.  Owner shall reject or finally accept Contractor’s work within 
forty-five (45) days after submitted to Owner.  Owner shall accept work by a 
timely written acceptance, otherwise work shall be deemed to have been 
rejected.  Owner’s acceptance shall be conclusive as to such work except with 
respect to latent defects, fraud and such gross mistakes as to amount to fraud.  
Acceptance of any work by Owner shall not constitute a waiver of any of the 
provisions of this Agreement including, but not limited to, provisions pertaining to 
warranty, indemnification and insurance. 


Section 4. Time to Perform the Work. 


4.1 Commencement Date will be on the date established in the Notice to Proceed.  
Owner reserves the right to modify or alter the Commencement Date of the 
Work. 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 4 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


4.2 Final Completion Date: Within twenty (20) working days of date of Notice to 
Proceed. 


4.3 Time is of the essence with respect to Contractor’s Work.  Contractor agrees to 
diligently pursue performance of the Work within the time specified by the 
Contract Documents. 


4.4 Contractor will be excused from any delay in performance or failure to perform 
due to causes beyond the control of Contractor and not reasonably anticipated 
by the parties.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts of 
terrorism, acts of federal, state or local governments, acts of Owner, court orders, 
fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, embargoes, and unusually severe weather. 


4.5 If Contractor is delayed by any cause beyond Contractor’s control, Owner may, 
but is not required to, grant a time extension for the completion of the Work.  If 
delay occurs, Contractor must notify Owner in writing within 48 hours of the 
cause and identify the extent of the delay, how such delay interferes with 
Contractor’s performance of the Work, and the impact of the delay on the 
Project’s schedule’s critical path through the submission of a “Time Impact 
Evaluation” (TIE). 


4.6 TIE Format and Contents.  Each TIE must include a written narrative and a 
schedule diagram depicting how the delay or other impact affects other schedule 
activities.  The schedule diagram must show how Contractor proposes to 
incorporate and mitigate the delay or other impact in the schedule and how it 
impacts the current schedule update critical path or otherwise.  Contractor is also 
responsible for establishing time extensions based on the TIE’s impact on the 
critical path.  The diagram must be tied to the main sequence of scheduled 
activities to enable Owner to evaluate the impact of the delay, including any 
impacted Work activities, to the scheduled critical path. 


4.7 Contractor is responsible for all costs associated with preparing TIE’s, and the 
process of incorporating TIE’s into the current schedule update. 


4.8 Liquidated Damage Amounts. 


4.8.1 As liquidated damages for delay Contractor must pay Owner five 
hundred dollars ($500.00) for each calendar day that expires after the 
time specified for Contractor to achieve Final Completion of the entire 
Work, until achieved. 


4.9 Scope of Liquidated Damages. 


4.9.1 Contractor and Owner agree that because of the nature of the Project, 
it would be impractical or extremely difficult to fix the amount of such 
actual damages incurred by Owner because of a delay in completion 
of all or any part of the Work.  Contractor and Owner agree that 
specified measures of liquidated damages will be presumed to be the 
amount of such damages actually sustained by Owner, and that 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 5 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


because of the nature of the Project, it would be impracticable or 
extremely difficult to fix the actual damages. 


4.9.2 Liquidated damages for delay will cover administrative, overhead, 
interest on bonds, and general loss of public use damages suffered by 
Owner as a result of delay.  Liquidated damages will not cover the 
cost of completion of the Work, damages resulting from Defective 
Work, lost revenues or costs of substitute facilities, or damages 
suffered by others who then seek to recover their damages from 
Owner (for example, delay claims of other contractors, 
subcontractors, tenants, or other third-parties), and defense costs 
thereof. Owner may deduct from any money due or to become due to 
Contractor subsequent to time for completion of entire Work and 
extensions of time allowed pursuant to this Contract, a sum 
representing then-accrued liquidated damages. 


 


Section 5. Compensation and Payment. 


5.1 Subject to any limitations provided in the Contract Documents, Owner agrees to 
pay Contractor, as full consideration for the faithful performance and successful 
completion of all Work under the Contract Documents, including all labor, 
materials, equipment furnished in connection therewith, the compensation set 
forth in Exhibit A (“Compensation”), which is made a part of this Contract. 


5.2 Contractor must furnish to Owner a Pay Estimate for the Work performed in 
accordance with the Contract Documents.  Contractor may not submit a Pay 
Estimate more often than once every 30 days. 


5.3 Owner will review each Pay Estimate and determine whether the Work 
performed is in accordance with the Contract Documents.  Owner may require 
Contractor to provide a release of all undisputed Contract amounts contained in 
the Pay Estimate. 


5.4 If Owner disputes any item on a Pay Estimate, Owner will give Contractor notice 
stating the reasons for the dispute.  The Parties will meet and confer in good faith 
to attempt to resolve the dispute. 


5.5 Except as to any charges for the Work performed that Owner disputes and 
excluding the Owner’s standard five percent (5%) retention on all approved 
progress payments, Owner will cause Contractor to be paid within 30 days of the 
date of the Pay Estimate or the date that Contractor furnishes Owner with a 
release of all undisputed Contract amounts, whichever occurs later.  If the Project 
is paid for in whole or in part with federal funds, progress payments made to 
Contractor will not be subject to the five-percent retention noted above. 


5.6 In the event there is any claim specifically excluded by Contractor from the 
operation of any release, Owner may retain an amount not to exceed the amount 
of the excluded claim. 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 6 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


Section 6. Labor Code and Prevailing Wage Requirements. 


6.1 Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of California Labor Code 
sections 1810 through 1815.  Eight hours of labor constitutes a legal day’s Work 
per Labor Code section 1810.  Contractor will forfeit the statutory penalty to 
Owner for each Worker employed in the execution of this Contract by Contractor 
or any subcontractor for each calendar day during which such Worker is required 
or permitted to Work more than eight hours in any one calendar day and 40 
hours in any one calendar week in violation of the provisions of Labor Code 
sections 1810 through 1815.   


6.2 Copies of the determination of the Director of the Department of Industrial 
Relations of the prevailing rate of per diem wages for each craft, classification or 
type of Worker needed to execute this Contract are available for download from 
the State website: http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/dprewagedetermination.htm. 


6.3 Contractor must post at the Work site, or if there is no regular Work site then at 
its principal office, for the duration of the Contract, a copy of the determination by 
the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations of the specified prevailing 
rate of per diem wages.  (Labor Code § 1773.2.)  When applicable, copies of the 
prevailing rate of per diem wages will be on file at Owner’s main office and 
available to Contractor and any other interested party upon request. 


6.4 Contractor, and any subcontractor engaged by Contractor, must pay not less 
than the specified prevailing rate of per diem wages to all Workers employed in 
the execution of the contract.  (Labor Code § 1774.)  Contractor is responsible for 
compliance with Labor Code section 1776 relative to the retention and inspection 
of payroll records. 


6.5 Contractor must comply with all provisions of Labor Code section 1775.  Under 
Section 1775, Contractor will forfeit the statutory penalty to Owner for each 
Worker employed in the execution of the Contract by Contractor or any 
subcontractor for each calendar day, or portion thereof, in which the Worker is 
paid less than the prevailing rates.  Contractor may also be liable to pay the 
difference between the prevailing wage rates and the amount paid to each 
Worker for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for which each Worker was 
paid less than the prevailing wage rate. 


6.6 Nothing in this Contract prevents Contractor or any subcontractor from employing 
properly registered apprentices in the execution of the Contract.  Contractor is 
responsible for compliance with Labor Code section 1777.5 for all apprenticeable 
occupations.  This statute requires that contractors and subcontractors must 
submit contract award information to the applicable joint apprenticeship 
committee, must employ apprentices in apprenticeable occupations in a ratio of 
not less than one hour of apprentice’s Work for every five hours of labor 
performed by a journeyman (unless an exception is granted under § 1777.5), 
must contribute to the fund or funds in each craft or trade or a like amount to the 
California Apprenticeship Council, and that contractors and subcontractors must 
not discriminate among otherwise qualified employees as apprentices solely on 
the ground of sex, race, religion, creed, national origin, ancestry or color.  Only 



http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/dprewagedetermination.htm





(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 7 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


apprentices defined in Labor Code section 3077, who are in training under 
apprenticeship standards and who have written apprentice contracts, may be 
employed on public Works in apprenticeable occupations. 


6.7 Contractor has reviewed and agrees to comply with any applicable provisions for 
any public Work subject to Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) Monitoring 
and Enforcement of prevailing wages, including the registration requirements of 
Labor Code Section 1771.1(a).  Owner hereby notifies Contractor that Contractor 
is responsible for submitting certified payroll records directly to the State 
Compliance Monitoring Unit (CMU).  For further information concerning 
compliance monitoring please visit the website location at: 
http://www.dir.ca.gov/dlse/cmu/cmu.html.   


6.8 Contractor must comply with Labor Code section 1771.1(a), which provides that 
Contractor may award any contracts and subcontracts for Work that qualifies as 
a “public Work” only to subcontractors which are at that time registered and 
qualified to perform public Work pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5.  
Contractor must obtain proof of such registration from all such subcontractors.  
Where the prime contract is less than $15,000 for maintenance Work or less than 
$25,000 for construction, alternation, demolition or repair Work, such registration 
is not required. 


6.9 In addition to submitting the certified payrolls and related documentation to the 
City, the contractor and all subcontractors are required to submit certified payroll 
and related documents electronically to the California Department of Industrial 
Relations (DIR). Failure to submit payrolls to the DIR when mandated by the 
Project parameters will also result in the withholding of progress, retention and 
final payment. Certified payroll information for this project must be submitted 
electronically through LCPtracker. No hard copy payrolls will be accepted. 


6.10 If the Compensation exceeds $25,000 and if the Work governed by this Contract 
entails excavation of any trench or trenches five (5) feet or more in depth, 
Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Labor Code, 
including Section 6705.  To this end, Contractor shall submit for Owner’s review 
and approval a detailed plan showing the design of shoring, bracing, sloping, or 
other provisions to be made for worker protection from the hazard of caving 
ground during the excavation of such trench or trenches.  If such plan varies from 
the shoring system standards, the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or 
structural engineer.  As required by Public Contract Code Section 7104, if this 
Contract involves digging trenches or other excavations that extend deeper than 
four (4) feet below the surface, Contractor shall promptly, and prior to 
disturbance of any conditions, notify Owner of:  (1) any material discovered in 
excavation that Contractor believes to be a hazardous waste that is required to 
be removed to a Class I, Class II or Class III disposal site; (2) subsurface or 
latent physical conditions at the site differing from those indicated by Owner; and 
(3) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature at the site, significantly 
different from those ordinarily encountered in such contract work.  Upon 
notification, Owner shall promptly investigate the conditions to determine whether 
a change order is appropriate.  In the event of a dispute, Contractor shall not be 
excused from any scheduled completion date and shall proceed with all Work to 



http://www.dir.ca.gov/dlse/cmu/cmu.html





(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 8 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


be performed under the Contract, but shall retain all rights provided by the 
Contract or by law for making protests and resolving the dispute. 


6.11 No contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal for a public Works 
project unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to 
Labor Code section 1725.5 [with limited exceptions from this requirement for bid 
purposes only under Labor Code section 1771.1(a)]. 


Section 7. Non-Discrimination. Contractor, its officers, agents, employees, and 
subcontractors may not discriminate in the employment of persons to perform the 
Work in violation of any federal or state law prohibiting discrimination in 
employment, including based on the race, religious creed, color, national origin, 
ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic 
information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, 
sexual orientation, of any person, except as provided under California 
Government Code section 12940.  Contractor is responsible for compliance with 
this section, and must include these non-discrimination provisions in all 
subcontracts for performance of the Work. 


Section 8. General Legal Compliance. 


8.1 In performing the Work, Contractor must comply with all applicable federal, state, 
and local statutes, laws, regulations, and ordinances including, but not limited to, 
OSHA requirements.   


8.2 Contractor must, at Contractor’s sole expense, obtain all necessary permits and 
licenses required for the Work, and give all necessary notices and pay all fees 
and taxes required by law. 


8.3 Contractor must maintain a valid California Contractor’s License throughout the 
term of this Contract. 


Section 9. Clayton and Cartwright Act Assignments.  In entering into this Contract or a 
contract with a subcontractor to supply goods, services, or materials pursuant to 
this Contract for the Project, Contractor and any subcontractor will be deemed to 
have offered and agreed to assign to Owner all rights, title, and interest in and to 
all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. 
Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2, commencing with Section 16700 
of Part 2 of Division 7 of the California Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, services, or materials for the Project.  This assignment 
will be deemed made and will become effective at the time Owner tenders final 
payment to Contractor, without further acknowledgement by the Parties. 


Section 10. Independent Contractor.  Contractor is and will at all times remain as to Owner 
a wholly independent contractor.  Neither Owner nor any of its officers, 
employees, or agents will have control over the conduct of Contractor or any of 
Contractor’s officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, except as expressly 
set forth in the Contract Documents.  Contractor may not at any time or in any 
manner represent that it or any of its officers, employees, agents, or 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 9 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


subcontractors are in any manner officers, employees, agents or subcontractors 
of Owner. 


Section 11. Indemnification. 


11.1 Contractor agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law (including, without 
limitation, California Civil Code section 2782) to (1) immediately defend, (2) 
indemnify, and (3) hold harmless Owner and its officers, directors, employees, 
agents, contractors, consultants, and other parties Working on Owner’s behalf 
(collectively, “Owner indemnified parties”) from and against, any and all claims 
and liabilities, regardless of the nature or type, that directly or indirectly arise out 
of, pertain to, or relate to performance of the Work under this Contract by 
Contractor, or its officers, employees, agents, or subcontractors committed in 
performing any Work under this Contract or the failure to comply with any of the 
obligations of this Contract, resulting from any cause whatsoever except for the 
sole negligence, active negligence, of willful misconduct of Owner (collectively, 
“Claims”). The Claims subject to Contractor’s duties to defend and indemnify 
include, without limitation, all claims, actions, causes of action, proceedings, 
suits, losses, damages, penalties, fines, judgments, liens, levies, and associated 
investigation and administrative expenses.  Such Claims also include defense 
costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements, expert fees, court 
costs, and costs of alternative dispute resolution.  


11.2 Contractor’s duty to defend is a separate and distinct obligation from Contractor’s 
duty to indemnify.  Contractor is obligated to defend Owner in all legal, equitable, 
administrative, or special proceedings, with counsel approved by Owner, 
immediately upon tender to Contractor of the Claim in any form or at any stage of 
an action or proceeding, whether or not liability is established. An allegation or 
determination that persons other than Contractor are responsible for the Claim 
does not relieve Contractor from its separate and distinct obligation to defend 
under this section. The obligation to defend extends through final judgment, 
including exhaustion of any appeals. The defense obligation includes an 
obligation to provide independent defense counsel if Contractor asserts that 
liability is caused in whole or in part by the negligence or willful misconduct of 
any Owner indemnified party.  If it is finally adjudicated that liability was caused 
by the sole negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct of any Owner 
indemnified party, then Contractor may submit a claim to Owner for 
reimbursement of reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs in proportion to 
the established comparative liability of the Owner indemnified party. 


11.3 Contractor agrees that its defense and indemnification obligation under this 
section, includes the reasonable costs of attorneys’ fees incurred by the Owner’s 
legal counsel to monitor and consult with Contractor regarding the defense of any 
Claims, including providing direction with regard to strategy, preparation of 
pleadings, settlement discussions, and attendance at court hearings, mediations, 
or other litigation related appearances. Owner will use its best efforts to avoid 
duplicative attorney Work or appearances in order to keep defense costs to a 
reasonable minimum.   







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 10 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


11.4 Contractor agrees that settlement of any Claim will require the consent of Owner.  
Owner agrees that its consent will not be unreasonably withheld provided that 
Contractor is financially able (based on demonstrated assets) to fulfill its 
obligation to indemnify Owner for the costs of any such settlement as required 
under this Contract. 


11.5 Contractor’s obligation to indemnify Owner applies unless it is finally adjudicated 
that the liability was caused by the sole, negligence, active negligence, or willful 
misconduct of a Owner indemnified party.  If a Claim is finally adjudicated and a 
determination made that liability was caused by the sole negligence, active 
negligence, or willful misconduct of an Owner indemnified party, then 
Contractor’s indemnification obligation will be reduced in proportion to the 
established comparative liability. 


11.6 For the purposes of this section, “Owner” includes the City of Wildomar’s officers, 
officials, board members, employees and agents. 


11.7 The provisions of this section will survive the expiration or earlier termination of 
this Contract. 


Section 12. Insurance.  Contractor agrees to have and maintain in full force and effect during 
the term of this Contract the insurance coverages listed in Exhibit B 
(“Insurance”), which is made a part of this Contract.  


Section 13. Notice. 


13.1 All written notices required or permitted to be given under this Contract will be 
deemed made when received by the other Party at its respective address as 
follows: 


To Owner:   City of Wildomar 
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 210 
Wildomar, CA 92595 
Attention: Daniel A. York, Assistant City Manager 
Phone: (951) 677-7751 ext. 216 
Fax: (951) 698-1463 
Email: dyork@cityofwildomar.org 


 
To Contractor: Beckco, Inc. 
 972 S. Reservoir St. 
 Pomona, CA 91766 
 Attention: Jim Beck, President 
 Phone: (909) 868-0883 
 Email: brent@beckco.com 


13.2 Notice will be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted by 
facsimile, or such other electronic means as may be agreed to by the parties.  If 
the notice is mailed, notice will be deemed given three days after deposit of the 
same in the custody of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, for first 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 11 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


class delivery, or upon delivery if using a major courier service with tracking 
capabilities. 


13.3 Any Party may change its notice information by giving notice to the other Party in 
compliance with this section, before the change in notice information becomes 
effective. 


Section 14. Owner Rights of Termination and to Complete the Work. 


14.1 Termination for Cause (Default).  The occurrence of any of the following is a 
default by Contractor under this Contract: 


14.1.1 Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the Work or any part thereof 
with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 
specified or any permitted extension. 


14.1.2 Contractor fails to complete the Work on time. 


14.1.3 Contractor is adjudged bankrupt, or makes a general assignment for 
the benefit of creditors, or a receiver is appointed on account of 
Contractor’s insolvency. 


14.1.4 Contractor fails to supply enough properly skilled Workers or proper 
materials to complete the Work in the time specified. 


14.1.5 Contractor fails to make prompt payment to any subcontractor or for 
material or labor. 


14.1.6 Contractor fails to abide by any applicable laws, ordinances or 
instructions of Owner in performing the Work. 


14.1.7 Contractor breaches or fails to perform any obligation or duty under 
the Contract and such breach or failure remains uncorrected following 
Owner’s notice to Contractor of the breach. 


14.2 Upon the occurrence of a default by Contractor, Owner will serve a written notice 
of default on Contractor specifying the nature of the default and the steps needed 
to correct the default.  Unless Contractor cures the default within 10 days after 
the service of such notice of default, or makes satisfactory arrangements 
acceptable to Owner for the correction or elimination of such default, as 
determined by Owner, Owner may thereafter terminate this Contract by serving 
written notice termination on Contractor.  In such case, Contractor will not be 
entitled to receive any further payment, except for Work actually completed prior 
to such termination in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents. 


14.3 In event of any such termination, Owner will also immediately serve written notice 
of the termination upon Contractor’s surety.  The surety will have the right to take 
over and perform pursuant to this Contract; provided, however, that if the surety 
does not give Owner written notice of its intention to take over and perform this 
Contract within five days after service of the notice of termination or does not 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 12 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


commence performance within 10 days from the date of such notice, Owner may 
take over the Work and prosecute the same to completion by separate contract 
or by any other method Owner may deem advisable, at the sole cost and 
expense of Contractor.  Contractor and the surety will be liable to Owner for any 
and all excess costs or other damages incurred by Owner in completing the 
Work. 


14.4 If Owner takes over the Work as provided in this Section, Owner may, without 
liability for so doing, take possession of, and utilize in completing the Work, such 
materials, appliances, plant, and other property belonging to Contractor as may 
be on the site of the Work and necessary for the completion of the Work.  


14.5 If Owner takes over the Work, Owner may also take possession of outstanding 
materials on order for the completion of the project, upon payment to the vendor.  
All excess costs incurred by Owner in obtaining such materials, will be the 
responsibility of the Contractor.   


14.6 Termination for Convenience.  Owner may terminate performance of the Work 
under the Contract in accordance with this clause in whole, or from time to time 
in part, if Owner determines that termination is in Owner’s best interest.  
Termination will be effected by Owner delivering to Contractor notice of 
termination specifying the extent to which performance of the Work under the 
Contract is terminated, and the effective date of the termination. 


14.7 Contractor must comply with Owner’s direction regarding the effective date of the 
termination, the extent of the termination, and must stop Work on the date and to 
the extent specified. 


14.8 Contractor will be entitled to a total payment on account of the Contract Work so 
terminated, measured by (i.) the actual cost to Contractor for Work actually 
performed, up to the date of the termination, with profit and overhead limited to 
twelve percent (12%) of actual cost of Work performed, and (ii.) offset by 
payments made and other Contract credits.  In connection with any such 
calculation; provided, however, Owner retains all rights and remedies under the 
Contract including, without limitation, claims, indemnities, setoffs/offsets, or back 
charges. 


14.9 Under no circumstances may Contractor recover legal costs of any nature, nor 
may Contractor recover costs incurred after the date of the termination. 


Section 15. Project Documents.  All product/material data sheets, shop drawings, 
submittals, submittal logs, samples, invoices, purchase orders, operation and 
maintenance manuals and instructions, RFIs, RFI logs,  maps, models, notes, 
photographs, reports, studies and other documents (collectively, “Project 
Documents”) prepared, developed or discovered by Contractor in the course of 
performing any of the Work under this Contract will become the sole property of 
Owner.  Upon the expiration or termination of this Contract, Contractor must turn 
over all original Project Documents to Owner in its possession, but may retain 
copies of any of the Project Documents it may desire. 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 13 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


Section 16. Change Orders and Claims 


16.1 The Public Contract Code including, without limitation, Section 7105(d)(2), and 
Government Code section 930.2 and following, apply to all procedures for 
changes, time extensions, change orders (time or compensation) and claims.  


16.2 Any change, waiver, or omission to implement the contract change order and 
claim procedures will have no legal effect unless expressly permitted in a fully 
executed change order approved by Contractor and Owner. 


Section 17. Resolution of Construction Claims (PCC § 20104 and following) 


17.1 Public Contract Code section 20104 and following, specifies required provisions 
on resolving contract claims less than $375,000, which are set forth below, and 
constitute a part of this Contract. 


17.2 For the purposes of this section, “claim” means a separate demand by Contractor 
of $375,000 or less for (1) a time extension, (2) payment or money or damages 
arising from Work done by or on behalf of Contractor arising under the Contract 
Documents and payment of which is not otherwise expressly provided for or the 
Contractor is not otherwise entitled to, or (3) an amount the payment of which is 
disputed by Owner.  In order to qualify as a claim, the written demand must state 
that it is a claim submitted under Section 17 of the Contract and be submitted in 
compliance with all requirements of this Section. Separate Contractor claims that 
together total more than $375,000 do not qualify as a “separate demand of 
$375,000 or less,” as referenced above, and are not subject to this Section. 


17.3 A voucher, invoice, payment application, or other routine or authorized form of 
request for payment is not a claim for purposes of this section.  If such request is 
disputed as to liability or amount, then the disputed portion of the submission 
may be converted to a claim under this section by submitting a separate claim in 
compliance with Contract Documents claim submission requirements. 


17.4 This section does not apply to tort claims, and nothing in this section is intended 
nor may it be construed to change the time periods for filing tort claims or actions 
specified by Chapter 1 and Chapter 2 of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the 
Government Code. 


17.5 Claims Procedure under Public Contract Code § 20104 and following: 


17.5.1 The claim must be in writing, submitted in compliance with all 
requirements of the Contract including, without limitation, the time 
prescribed by and including the documents necessary to substantiate 
the claim.  Claims must be filed on or before the day of final payment.  
Nothing in this section is intended to extend the time limit or 
supersede notice requirements for the filing of claims under the 
Contract. 


17.5.2 For claims of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) or less, Owner will 
respond in writing within 45 days of receipt of the claim, or Owner may 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 14 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


request in writing within 30 days of receipt of the claim, any additional 
documentation supporting the claim or relating to any defenses or 
claims Owner may have against Contractor. If additional information is 
thereafter required, it must be requested and provided in accordance 
with this section upon mutual agreement of Owner and Contractor. 
Owner’s written response to the claim, as further documented, must 
be submitted to Contractor within 15 days after receipt of further 
documentation or within a period of time no greater than taken by 
Contractor in producing the additional information, whichever is 
greater. 


17.5.3 For claims over Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) and less than or 
equal to $375,000: Owner will respond in writing within 60 days of 
receipt of the claim, or Owner may request in writing within 30 days of 
receipt of the claim, any additional documentation supporting the 
claim or relating to any defenses or claims Owner may have against 
Contractor. If additional information is thereafter required, it must be 
requested and provided in accordance with this section, upon mutual 
agreement of Owner and Contractor; Owner’s written response to the 
claim, as further documented, must be submitted to Contractor within 
30 days after receipt of further documentation or within a period of 
time no greater than taken by Contractor in producing the additional 
information, whichever is greater. 


17.5.4 Meet and Confer: If Contractor disputes Owner’s written response, or 
Owner fails to respond within the time prescribed above, Contractor 
must notify Owner, in writing, either within 15 days of receipt of 
Owner’s response or within 15 days of Owner’s failure to timely 
respond, and demand an informal conference to meet and confer for 
settlement of the issues in dispute.  Upon demand Owner will 
schedule a meet and confer conference within 30 days for settlement 
of the dispute. Following the meet and confer conference, if the claim 
or any portion remains in dispute, Contractor may file a claim as 
provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of 
the Government Code.  For purposes of those provisions, the running 
of the period of time within which a claim must be filed will be tolled 
from the time Contractor submits its written claim as set forth in this 
section, until the time that claim is denied as a result of the meet and 
confer process, including any period of time utilized by the meet and 
confer process. 


17.6 Claims Process under Public Contract Code § 9204: 


17.6.1 Upon receipt of a claim pursuant to this section, Owner must conduct 
a reasonable review of the  and, within a period not to exceed 45 
days, must provide the Contractor a written statement identifying what 
portion of the claim is disputed and what portion is undisputed. Upon 
receipt of a claim, Owner and Contractor may, by mutual agreement, 
extend the time period provided in this subsection. 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 15 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


17.6.2 The Contractor must furnish reasonable documentation to support the 
claim. 


17.6.3 If Owner needs approval from its governing body to provide the 
Contractor a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the 
undisputed portion of the claim, and the governing body does not 
meet within the 45 days or within the mutually agreed to extension of 
time following receipt of a claim sent by registered mail or certified 
mail, return receipt requested, Owner will have up to three days 
following the next duly publicly noticed meeting of the governing body 
after the 45-day period, or extension, expires to provide the 
Contractor a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the 
undisputed portion. 


17.6.4 Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim will be 
processed and made within 60 days after Owner issues its written 
statement. If Owner fails to issue a written statement, subsection 
17.6.3 above will apply. 


17.6.5 If the Contractor disputes Owner's written response, or if Owner fails 
to respond to a claim issued pursuant to this section within the time 
prescribed, the Contractor may demand in writing an informal 
conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. 
Upon receipt of a demand in writing sent by registered mail or certified 
mail, return receipt requested, Owner will schedule a meet and confer 
conference within 30 days for settlement of the dispute. 


17.6.6 Within 10 business days following the conclusion of the meet and 
confer conference, if the claim or any portion of the claim remains in 
dispute, Owner must provide the Contractor a written statement 
identifying the portion of the claim that remains in dispute and the 
portion that is undisputed. Any payment due on an undisputed portion 
of the claim will be processed and made within 60 days after Owner 
issues its written statement. Any disputed portion of the claim, as 
identified by the Contractor in writing, will be submitted to nonbinding 
mediation, with Owner and the Contractor sharing the associated 
costs equally. Owner and Contractor must mutually agree to a 
mediator within 10 business days after the disputed portion of the 
claim has been identified in writing. If the parties cannot agree upon a 
mediator, each party will select a mediator and those mediators will 
select a qualified neutral third party to mediate with regard to the 
disputed portion of the claim. Each party will bear the fees and costs 
charged by its respective mediator in connection with the selection of 
the neutral mediator. If mediation is unsuccessful, the parts of the 
claim remaining in dispute will be subject to applicable procedures 
outside this section. 


17.6.7 For purposes of this section, mediation includes any nonbinding 
process, including, but not limited to, neutral evaluation or a dispute 
review board, in which an independent third party or board assists the 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 16 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


parties in dispute resolution through negotiation or by issuance of an 
evaluation. Any mediation utilized must conform to the timeframes in 
this section. 


17.6.8 This section does not preclude a public entity from requiring 
arbitration of disputes under private arbitration or the Public Works 
Contract Arbitration Program, if mediation under this section does not 
resolve the parties' dispute. 


17.6.9 Failure by Owner to respond to a claim from contractor within the time 
periods described in this section or to otherwise meet the time 
requirements of this section will result in the claim being deemed 
rejected in its entirety. A claim that is denied by reason of Owner's 
failure to have responded to a claim, or its failure to otherwise meet 
the time requirements of this section, will not constitute an adverse 
finding with regard to the merits of the claim or the responsibility or 
qualifications of the Contractor. 


17.6.10 Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by this section will 
bear interest at seven percent per annum. 


17.6.11 If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to 
assert a claim against Owner because privity of contract does not 
exist, the contractor may present to Owner a claim on behalf of a 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor. A subcontractor may 
request in writing, either on its own behalf or on behalf of a lower tier 
subcontractor, that the Contractor present a claim for Work which was 
performed by the subcontractor or by a lower tier subcontractor on 
behalf of the subcontractor. The subcontractor requesting that the 
claim be presented to Owner must furnish reasonable documentation 
to support the claim. Within 45 days of receipt of this written request, 
the Contractor must notify the subcontractor in writing as to whether 
the Contractor presented the claim to Owner and, if the Contractor did 
not present the claim, provide the subcontractor with a statement of 
the reasons for not having done so. 


Section 18. General Provisions. 


18.1 Authority to Execute.  Each Party represents and warrants that all necessary 
action has been taken by such Party to authorize the undersigned to execute this 
Contract and to bind it to the performance of its obligations. 


18.2 Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Contract without the prior written 
consent of Owner, which consent may be withheld in Owner’s sole discretion 
since the experience and qualifications of Contractor were material 
considerations for this Contract. 


18.3 Third Party Beneficiaries.  Contractor’s subcontractor must agree to be bound to 
the terms of the Contract Documents to the extent of their scope of Work, 
including but not limited to, terms regarding indemnity and dispute resolution, and 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 17 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


must agree that Owner is deemed an express third party beneficiary of their 
subcontracts.  Nothing in this Contract, however, shall operate to confer such or 
similar rights or benefits on persons or entities not party to this Contract. 


18.4 Binding Effect. This Contract is binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and permitted assigns of the Parties. 


18.5 Integrated Contract.  This Contract, including the Contract Documents, is the 
entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the 
Work to be performed under this Contract and supersedes all other agreements 
or understandings, whether oral or written, between Contractor and Owner prior 
to the execution of this Contract. 


18.6 Modification of Contract.  No amendment to or modification of this Contract will 
be valid unless made in writing and approved by Contractor and by the Board of 
Directors of Owner or Owner Manager, as applicable.  The Parties agree that this 
requirement for written modifications cannot be waived and that any attempted 
waiver will be void. 


18.7 Audit/Inspection Of Records.  Contractor shall maintain all documents and 
records prepared by or furnished to Contractor during the course of performing 
the Work for at least three (3) years following completion of the Work.  Such 
records include, but are not limited to, correspondence, internal memoranda, 
calculations, books and accounts, accounting records and job cost reports/data 
documenting all labor, materials, equipment and Work furnished under this 
Contract, and invoices, payrolls, records and all other data related to matters 
covered by this Contract.  Contractor shall permit Owner to audit, examine and 
make copies, excerpts and transcripts from any such records, and Contractor 
shall in no event dispose of, destroy, alter, or mutilate said books, records, 
accounts, and data in any matter whatsoever for three (3) years after Owner 
makes the final or last payment or within three (3) years after any pending issues 
and disputes between Owner and Contractor regarding this Contract Agreement 
are resolved, whichever is later. 


18.8 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If either party commences an action against the 
other party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in 
connection with this Contract, the prevailing party in such action shall be entitled 
to have and recover from the losing party reasonable attorneys' fees and all other 
costs of such action. 


18.9 Risk of Loss.  Contractor shall be responsible for all loss and damage which may 
arise out of the nature of the Work agreed to herein, or from the action of the 
elements, or from any unforeseen difficulties which may arise or be encountered 
in the prosecution of the Work until the same is fully completed and accepted by 
City.   


18.10 Counterparts, Electronic Signatures.  This Contract may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, and all of which, when 
taken together, constitute one and the same instrument.  This Contract and any 
amendments will be considered executed when the signature of a party is 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 18 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


delivered by electronic transmission.  Such electronic signature will have the 
same effect as an original signature. 


18.11 Waiver.  Waiver by any Party of any term, condition, or covenant of this Contract 
will not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant.  Waiver by 
any Party of any breach of the provisions of this Contract will not constitute a 
waiver of any other provision, or a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation 
of any provision of this Contract.  Acceptance by Owner of any Work performed 
by Contractor will not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Contract. 


18.12 Interpretation.  This Contract will be interpreted, construed and governed 
according to the laws of the State of California.  Each party has had the 
opportunity to review this Contract with legal counsel.  The Contract will be 
construed simply, as a whole, and in accordance with its fair meaning.  It will not 
be interpreted strictly for or against either party. 


18.13 Severability.  If any term, condition or covenant of this Contract is declared or 
determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or 
unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Contract will not be affected and 
the Contract will be read and construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable 
provision. 


18.14 Governing Law and Venue.  This Contract shall be deemed to have been 
executed in the City where the Project is located.  Enforcement of this Agreement 
shall be governed by the laws of the State where the Project is located, excluding 
its conflict of laws rules.  In the event of litigation between the parties, venue in 
state trial courts will be in the County of Riverside.   


The Parties have caused this Contract to be executed by their undersigned authorized 
agents as follows: 


OWNER: CITY OF WILDOMAR 


  
Gary Nordquist, City Manager 


ATTEST: 


  
Janet Morales, City Clerk 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


  
Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney 
 







(01-2021)   


  
HOUSE DEMOLITION FOR THE BUNDY CANYON RD. IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, SEGMENT 2 CONTRACT 


  PROJECT NO. CIP 026-2A 
 Page 19 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


 
CONTRACTOR: BECKCO, INC. 
 
 
(If not an individual, two signatures are required) 
 


 


  
Name and Title 
 
 
 
   
Name and Title 







(01-2021)   


  CONTRACT 
 A-1 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


EXHIBIT A 


COMPENSATION 


The total compensation under this Contract may not exceed: 
 


 The sum of Two Hundred Six Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($206,000.00). 


 


 







(01-2021)   


  CONTRACT 
 B-1 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


EXHIBIT B 


INSURANCE 


1. General Requirements. Contractor must procure and maintain in full force and effect 
during the term of this Contract the following types of insurance with coverage limits 
complying, at a minimum, with the limits set forth below: 


Type of Insurance  Limits (combined single) 
 Commercial General Liability  $2,000,000 
 Business Automobile Liability  $1,000,000 
 Workers’ Compensation  Statutory Requirements 
 Pollution Liability Insurance  As stated below 


2. Commercial General Liability Insurance.  This policy must meet or exceed the 
requirements of Insurance Services Office (ISO) CGL Form No. CG 00 01.  The amount 
of insurance set forth above will be a combined single limit per occurrence for bodily 
injury, personal injury, and property damage for the policy coverage.  The insurance 
must be on an “occurrence” not a “claims-made” basis.  Defense costs must be paid in 
addition to limits.  There must be no cross-liability exclusion for claims or suits by one 
insured against another.  Limits may be no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence for all 
covered losses, and no less than $4,000,000 general aggregate. 


Liability policies must be endorsed to name Owner, its officials, employees and 
agents as “additional insureds” under the insurance coverage. 
 
Additional Insured 
The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as 
additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or 
operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or 
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations and automobiles 
owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by or on behalf of the Contractor. General liability 
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance 
(at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, 
or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used). 
 
Primary Insurance 
For any claims related to this project, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the 
Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the Entity, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess 
of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 
 
Coverage must be applicable to Owner for injury to employees of Contractor, 
subcontractors, agents or others performing any part of the Work required under this 
Contract.  Each policy must be endorsed to provide a separate limit applicable to this 
Project. 
 







(01-2021)   


  CONTRACT 
 B-2 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


The Commercial General Liability policy must not contain any endorsements limiting 
coverage beyond the basic policy coverage for any of the following: 


1. Explosion, collapse or underground hazard (XCU); 
2. Products and completed operation; 
3. Public liability; 
3. Pollution liability; or 
4. Contractual liability. 


3. Business Auto Coverage.  This policy must be on ISO Business Auto Coverage Form 
CA 00 01 including symbol 1 (Any Auto) and Endorsement CA 0025, or equivalent forms 
approved in writing by Owner.  Limits must not be less than $1,000,000 per accident, 
combined single limit, or if Contractor neither leases nor owns vehicles, this requirement 
may be satisfied by a non-owned auto endorsement to the general liability policy 
described above.  If Contractor or Contractor’s employees will use personal autos in any 
way on this Project, Contractor must provide evidence of personal auto liability coverage 
for each such person. 


4. Workers Compensation.  Contractor must have a State of California approved policy 
form providing the statutory benefits required by law with employer’s liability limits of no 
less than $1,000,000 per accident for all covered losses, or Contractor must provide 
evidence of an approved self-insurance program. 


5. Pollution Liability Insurance. Pollution/Environmental Impairment Liability Insurance 
must be written on a Contractor’s Pollution Liability form or other form acceptable to 
Agency providing coverage for liability arising out of sudden, accidental and gradual 
pollution and remediation. The policy limit must be no less than $5,000,000 per claim 
and in the aggregate. All activities contemplated in this Contract must be specifically 
scheduled on the policy as “covered operations.” The policy must provide coverage for 
the hauling of waste from the project site to the final disposal location, including non-
owned disposal sites. 


6. Other Insurance; Revisions to Insurance.  Contractor may be required to obtain such 
other insurance coverage as may be required by applicable law or by Owner.  Owner 
reserves the right at any time during the term of the Contract to change the amounts and 
types of insurance required by giving Contractor 60 days advance written notice of such 
change.  If such change results in substantial additional cost to Contractor, Owner and 
Contractor may renegotiate Contractor’s compensation. 


7. Acceptable Insurers.  All required insurance policies must be issued by an insurance 
company currently authorized by the California Insurance Commissioner to transact the 
business of insurance in the State of California, with an assigned policyholders’ Rating of 
A- (or higher) and Financial Size Category Class VII (or larger) in accordance with the 
latest edition of Best’s Key Rating Guide, unless otherwise approved by the Owner’s 
Risk Manager or General Counsel. 


8. Excess or Umbrella Liability Insurance (Over Primary).  If an excess or umbrella 
liability policy is used to meet limit requirements, the insurance must provide coverage at 
least as broad as specified for the underlying coverages.  Any such coverage provided 







(01-2021)   


  CONTRACT 
 B-3 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


under an excess or umbrella liability policy must include a “drop-down provision” 
providing primary coverage above a maximum $25,000 self-insured retention for liability 
not covered by primary but covered by the umbrella.  Coverage must be provided on a 
“pay-on-behalf” basis, with defense costs payable in addition to policy limits.  There may 
be no cross-liability exclusion precluding coverage for claims or suits by one insured 
against another.  Coverage must be applicable to Owner for injury to employees of 
Contractor, its subcontractors or others performing Work to satisfy Contractor’s 
obligations under this Contract.  The scope of coverage provided is subject to approval 
of Owner following receipt of proof of insurance as required herein.  Limits are subject to 
review, but in no event may be less than $4,000,000 per occurrence and aggregate. 


9. Certificates of Insurance and Endorsements.  Prior to commencing any Work under 
this Contract, Contractor must file with the Owner Certificates of Insurance and 
Endorsements evidencing the existence of all insurance required by this Contract, along 
with such other evidence of insurance or copies of policies as may reasonably be 
required by Owner.  Such Certificates of Insurance and Endorsements must be in a form 
approved by Owner’s legal counsel.  Contractor must maintain current certificates and 
endorsements on file with Owner during the term of this Contract reflecting the existence 
of all required insurance.  Each of the certificates must expressly provide that no 
material change in the policy, or termination thereof, will be effective except upon 30 
days’ prior written notice to Owner. 


10. Failure to Maintain Required Insurance.  If Contractor, for any reason, fails to have in 
place at all times during the term of this Contract all of the required insurance coverage, 
Owner may obtain such coverage at Contractor’s expense and deduct the cost from the 
sums due Contractor. 


11. Effect of Coverage.  The existence of the required insurance coverage under this 
Contract will not be deemed to satisfy or limit Contractor’s indemnity obligations under 
this Contract.   


 
12. Higher Limits of Insurance.  If the contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher 


limits than the minimums shown above for all policies, the Entity requires and shall be 
entitled to the broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the contractor. Any 
available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and 
coverage shall be available to the Entity. 


 
13. Waiver of Subrogation.  Contractor hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation which 


any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any 
loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this 
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity 
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  However, the 
Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of 
the Entity for all work performed by the Contractor, its employees, agents and 
subcontractors. 


 







(01-2021)   


  CONTRACT 
 1 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


VERIFICATION OF CALIFORNIA 


CONTRACTOR’S LICENSE 
 
 


I certify, under penalty of perjury, that I have a valid California Contractor’s 


license issued pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 7000 and following, and was 


so licensed at the time that the bid was awarded: 


 
 


California Contractor’s License: 
 
 
 
 
License Number Class Expiration Date 
 
 
 
  
 CONTRACTOR (PRINT OR TYPE) 
 
 
   
Date Signature  
 
 


(Public Contract Code § 6100) 







(01-2021)   


  CONTRACT 
 1 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


CERTIFICATE REGARDING 


WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 
 
 
 


I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require 


every employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ compensation or to undertake self-


insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions 


before commencing the performance of the Work of this contract. 


 
 
  
 Name (print or type) 
 
 
 
   
Date Signature







(01-2021)   


  CONTRACT 
 1 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


PERFORMANCE BOND 


On _____________________________, the City of Wildomar, a California 
municipal corporation (“OWNER”), awarded a contract (“Contract”) to 
__________________________________________________________ (“CONTRACTOR” or 
“PRINCIPAL”), for the Work (“Work”) identified as 
____________________________________________________________________________  


The Contract and related documents (“Contract Documents”) are incorporated 
and made a part of this performance bond. 


Under the Contract, CONTRACTOR is required to furnish this bond providing for 
the faithful performance of the Work 


NOW, THEREFORE, we, CONTRACTOR, as PRINCIPAL, and 
____________________________________________________________________________, 
a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
________________________ and duly authorized to transact business under the laws of the 
State of California, as SURETY, are held and firmly bound unto OWNER, in the sum of 
_______________________________________________________________________dollars 
($_________________________), lawful money of the United States of America, this sum 
being not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the estimated amount payable by OWNER 
under the terms of the Contract , PRINCIPAL and SURETY, bind ourselves and our heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, by this instrument. 


BOND CONDITIONS 


1. PRINCIPAL will perform the Work the identified in the Contract.  OWNER has estimated 
the required amount of the bond as shown above. 


2. PRINCIPAL’s performance of the Work will be done in accordance with the Contract 
Documents.  Should PRINCIPAL fail to satisfactorily complete all required Work within 
the time allowed, OWNER may, at its sole discretion, either (1) cause all required Work 
to be done and the parties executing this bond will be firmly bound for the payment of all 
necessary costs for the performance of this Work or (2) make demand upon the 
SURETY to complete the required Work in which event the SURETY will commence 
completion of the Work within 30 days of the OWNER’S demand unless otherwise 
agreed in a writing signed by the parties. 


3. PRINCIPAL will guarantee the Work against any defective Work, labor or materials for a 
period of one year following the completion and acceptance of the Work by OWNER. 


4. This bond is conditioned upon and guarantees due compliance with all applicable law. 


5. SURETY agrees that no changes, extensions of time, alteration or modification of the 
Contract or of the obligations to be performed thereunder will in any way affect its 
obligation on this bond, and waives notice of any such change, extension of time, 
alteration or modification of the Contract or of the obligations to be performed.  







(01-2021)   


  CONTRACT 
 2 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


Furthermore, SURETY expressly waives the provisions of California Civil Code sections 
2845 and 2849. 


6. This bond consists of this instrument, the Contract and Contract Documents referenced 
above, and the following two attached exhibits, all of which are incorporated herein by 
reference: 


A. A certified copy of the appointment, power of attorney, bylaws or other instrument 
entitling or authorizing the persons executing this bond to do so; and 


B. A certificate issued by the county clerk for the county in which SURETY’s 
representative is located conforming with California Code of Civil Procedure 
§ 995.640 and stating that SURETY’s certificate of authority has not been 
surrendered, revoked, cancelled, annulled, or suspended, or in the event that it 
has, that renewed authority has been granted. 


7. In case suit is brought upon this bond, the court will award and SURETY must pay, in 
addition to the face amount of this bond, all costs and reasonable attorney’s fees 
incurred by OWNER in successfully enforcing any obligation under this bond. 


IN WITNESS THEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals this 
_______ day of ____________________, 20____. 


PRINCIPAL 


By   


Title   


Address   


  


  
Telephone Number 


  
Signature 







(01-2021)   


  CONTRACT 
 3 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


SURETY 


By   


Title   


Address   


  


  
Telephone Number 


  
Signature 
 
 
 
* ALL SIGNATURES ON THIS PERFORMANCE BOND MUST BE NOTARIZED USING 


APPROPRIATE 8½” x 11” NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM. 
 
** Appropriate modifications will be made to this form if the bond is being furnished 


for the performance of an act not provided for by agreement. 
 
*** Corporations must affix corporate seal. 
 







(01-2021)   


Page 1 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


PAYMENT BOND 


On _____________________________, the City of Wildomar, a California 
municipal corporation (“OWNER”), awarded a contract (“Contract”) to 
__________________________________________________________ (“CONTRACTOR” or 
“PRINCIPAL”), for the Work (“Work”) identified as 
____________________________________________________________________________  


 
 PRINCIPAL is required to furnish a bond under the Contract to secure the 
payment of claims of laborers, mechanics, material persons, and other persons as provided by 
law. 


 PRINCIPAL and __________________________________________________ 
___________________________________, a corporation incorporated under the laws of the 
State of _______________________________ and licensed by the State of California to 
execute bonds and undertakings as sole surety (“SURETY”), are held and firmly bound unto 
OWNER in the sum of ___________________________________________________  
______________________________________ dollars ($_________________________), 
lawful money of the United States, which may be increased or decreased by a rider hereto 
executed in the same manner as this bond, for the payment of which sum PRINCIPAL and 
SURETY bind themselves, their successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, by this 
instrument. 


BOND CONDITIONS 


1. PRINCIPAL will construct the Work identified in the Contract.  Such performance will be 
in accordance with the Contract Documents identified in the Contract, which are hereby 
incorporated and made a part of this bond.  OWNER has estimated the required amount 
of the bond as shown above. 


2. If PRINCIPAL, its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, assigns or 
subcontractors fail to pay any of the persons named in California Civil Code section 
3181, or any amounts due under the California Unemployment Insurance Code with 
respect to Work or labor performed under the Contract, or any amounts required to be 
deducted, withheld, and paid over to the Employment Development Department from the 
wages of employees of the Contractor and its subcontractors under Unemployment 
Insurance Code section 13020, with respect to Work or labor performed under the 
Contract, SURETY will pay for the same in an amount not exceeding the penal sum 
specified in this bond. 


3. This bond inures to the benefit of any of the persons named in Civil Code section 3181 
so as to give a right of action to such persons or their assigns in any suit brought upon 
this bond.  In case suit is successfully brought upon this bond, SURETY further agrees 
to pay all reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs in an amount fixed by the court. 


4. This bond is conditioned upon and guarantees due compliance with all applicable law. 


5. SURETY agrees that no changes, extensions of time, alteration or modification of the 
Contract or of the obligations to be performed thereunder will in any way affect its 







(01-2021)   


Page 2 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


obligation on this bond, and waives notice of any such change, extension of time, 
alteration or modification of the Contract or of the obligations to be performed.  
Furthermore, SURETY expressly waives the provisions of California Civil Code sections 
2845 and 2849. 


6. This bond consists of this instrument, the Contract and Contract Documents referenced 
above, and the following two attached exhibits, all of which are incorporated herein by 
reference: 


A. A certified copy of the appointment, power of attorney, bylaws or other instrument 
entitling or authorizing the persons executing this bond to do so; and 


B. A certificate issued by the county clerk for the county in which SURETY’s 
representative is located conforming with California Code of Civil Procedure 
§ 995.640 and stating that SURETY’s certificate of authority has not been 
surrendered, revoked, cancelled, annulled, or suspended, or in the event that it 
has, that renewed authority has been granted. 


IN WITNESS THEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals this 
_______ day of ____________________, 20____. 


PRINCIPAL 


By   


Title   


Address   


  


  
Telephone Number 


  
Signature 







(01-2021)   


Page 3 
RIV #4811-1983-9958 v1  


SURETY 


By   


Title   


Address   


  


  
Telephone Number 


  
Signature 
 
 
 
* ALL SIGNATURES ON THIS PAYMENT BOND MUST BE NOTARIZED USING 


APPROPRIATE 8½” x 11” NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM. 
 
** Appropriate modifications will be made to this form if the bond is being furnished 


for the performance of an act not provided for by agreement. 
 
*** Corporations must affix corporate seal. 
 







 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.13 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 


TO: Mayor and Council Members 


 
FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Palomar Street and Clinton Keith Road Widening Project (CIP 059) Right-


of-Way Acquisition  
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution entitled:  
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
OR ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE PURCHASE 


AND SALE AGREEMENTS AND OTHER RELATED 
DOCUMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY 


REQUIRED FOR THE PALOMAR STREET AND CLINTON KEITH 
ROAD WIDENING PROJECT (CIP 059) 


BACKGROUND: 
To complete the bike trail on Clinton Keith Road and provide bike and pedestrian facilities 
on Palomar Street from Mc Vicar Street to Clinton Keith Rd. the City applied for and 
received an SB 821 Grant to assist with the project funding. The project (CIP 059) was 
included in the FY 20/21 Capital Improvement Program and approved by the City Council, 
see Attachment A. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The construction documents are nearing 100% completion.  Right of way appraisals are 
complete, and property acquisition negotiations are currently underway.  The next step in 
the right of way acquisition involves making formal offers to purchase, execution of formal 
purchase agreements, and documenting property transfer between affected property 
owners and the city.  The attached Resolution authorizes the City Manager or Assistant 
City Manager to execute the necessary agreements and documents to acquire the 
needed right of way to support the road widening project. 
 







 


FISCAL IMPACTS: 
The Palomar Street and Clinton Keith Road Widening Project (CIP 059) has been 
approved as part of the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) by the City Council.  
Acquisition of required right of way on Palomar Street will be funded through the existing 
WRCOG TUMF agreement for the Palomar Street project.  SB-821 funds will be used to 
acquire the necessary right of way from the properties on Clinton Keith Road. 
 
 
Submitted by:       Approved by: 
Daniel A. York   Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager   City Manager  
Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
A. Project Exhibit 
B. Exhibit Showing Affected Properties 
 


 
  







 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-____ 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
OR ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE PURCHASE AND 
SALE AGREEMENTS AND OTHER RELATED DOCUMENTS FOR 
ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY REQUIRED FOR PALOMAR 
STREET AND CLINTON KEITH ROAD WIDENING PROJECT (CIP 
059)  


 
 


WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, the City Council approved the terms of and 
directed the City Manager to execute an agreement with CPSI, an Interwest company 
(“Consultant”) for right of way acquisition services related to the Palomar Street and 
Clinton Keith Road Widening Project (“Project”), and; 
 


WHEREAS, the Project will widen Palomar Street from Meadow Ridge Lane to 
Clinton Keith Road to a full four lanes with bike lanes and will include the construction of 
curbs, gutters, and sidewalks; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the design for the Project identified 10 parcels which are necessary 
to acquire in part, via either acquisition of fee title or an easement; and 
 


WHEREAS, the Consultant is actively engaged in performing the acquisitions 
required to move the Project forward; and 
 


WHEREAS, prior to acquisition, each parcel or interest to be acquired is appraised 
so that the City can offer a purchase price consistent with the law regarding expenditures 
of public funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after appraisal the City makes an offer to the owner of the parcel or 
interest and if agreement is reached on price, then it is usually the case that the parties 
want to expeditiously proceed to the execution of a formal agreement documenting the 
transaction; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is within the authority of the City Council to delegate to the City 
Manager or Assistant City Manager the authority to execute purchase and sale 
agreements for real property interests required for the Project; and 
 


WHEREAS, by defining the scope of the City Manager or Assistant City Manager’s 
authority in executing purchase and sale agreements, the City Council will retain ultimate 
control over the acquisition process. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the 
City Council of the City of Wildomar, California as follows: 
 







 


1. The City Council delegates to the City Manager or Assistant City Manager the 
authority to execute purchase and sale agreements for fee title, temporary easements, 
and permanent easements required for the Palomar Street and Clinton Keith Road 
Widening Project.  This delegation of authority shall allow the City Manager or 
Assistant City Manager to negotiate terms for each purchase and sale, including price, 
in accordance with the direction provided by the City Council. 


 
2. If in the course of negotiating for fee title and/or easement interests the Consultant 


and the owner reach agreement, the City Manager or Assistant City Manager may 
execute such agreements as are necessary to conclude the purchase.  The City 
Manager or Assistant City Manager may, subsequent to execution of the agreements, 
take any other actions necessary to complete the purchase of fee title, temporary 
easements, and permanent easements necessary for the Palomar Street and Clinton 
Keith Road Widening Project including, but not limited to, execution of certificates of 
acceptance and recordation of documents. 


 
3. The City Council finds that this delegation of authority is in the best interests of the 


City and the Project because it will allow acquisitions to be timely processed while still 
allowing the City Council to retain final approval over exceptional cases. 


 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of October 2021. 
 
 


 
_____________________________ 
Dustin Nigg 
Mayor 


 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk  







 


ATTACHMENT A 
 


List of Affected Properties 
 


COPY ATTACHED 
  







 


 
ATTACHMENT B 


 
Exhibit Showing Affected Properties 


 
COPY ATTACHED 







ATTACHMENT A 
 


 


AREAS OF ROAD WIDENING, 


SIDEWALK/TRAIL AND BIKE 


LANE ADDITION 







Attachment B


Acquisition Parcels – City Council Meeting 


Clinton Keith/ Palomar Sidewalk and Bike Path Project 


Parcel ID Property Address APN ROW ACQ. TYPE 
1 22470 Palomar Street 380-130-007 Slope Easement, TCE 


2 22590 Palomar Street 380-130-008 Slope Easement, TCE 


3 Vacant Land, Palomar Street 380-130-009 Slope Easement, TCE 


4 Vacant Land, Palomar Street 380-130-010 Slope Easement, TCE 


5 32405 Windsong Lane 380-130-011 Slope Easement, TCE 


6 Common Area, Palomar Street 380-400-042 Slope Easement, TCE 


7 22651 Palomar Street 380-140-004 Permanent Easement, Slope Easement, TCE 


8 22691 Palomar Street 380-140-005 Permanent Easement, Slope Easement, TCE 


9 32150 Clinton Keith Road 380-120-012 TCE 


10 32140 Clinton Keith Road 380-120-005 Permanent Easement, Slope Easement, TCE 







  


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #2.1 


PUBLIC HEARING 
 Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and Council Members 
 
FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager/City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of Territory to be Annexed to  Community Facilities 


District No. 2013-1 (Services), Calling an Election, Ordering the Levy 
and Collection of Special Taxes, and Declaring the Election Results 
for CFD 2013-1 (Services), Annexation No. 21 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 


1. Open the public hearing; 
2. Take testimony; 
3. Close the public hearing; 
4. Adopt Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, CALLING AN ELECTION TO SUBMIT 
TO THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS THE QUESTION OF LEVYING A 
SPECIAL TAX WITHIN THE AREA PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED 
TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
(ANNEXATION NO. 21) 
 


5. Hold the election; 
6. Canvass the election; and 
7. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ELECTION RESULTS 
FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 
(SERVICES) (ANNEXATION NO. 21) 
 
 







  
 


  


 
BACKGROUND: 
On September 8, 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2021-49, declaring its 
intention to annex territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (the 
“CFD No. 2013-1” or “CFD”) and commence the annexation proceedings for the territory 
to be annexed, also known as Annexation No. 21. A public hearing has been set for 
October 13, 2021 to conduct an election for the landowners and to declare the results of 
that election.   
 
As required by the Resolution of Intention, an annexation map was recorded on 
September 15, 2021, at 10:52 a.m. in Book 87, Page 60, Document No. 2021-0549420 
and the potential annexation area boundary map was recorded on February 18, 2014, 
at 1:17 p.m. in Book 76 Page 68, Document No. 2014-0062326 of Maps of Assessment 
and Community Facilities Districts with the Riverside County Recorder.   
 
The Resolution of Intention was adopted by the City Council in response to a petition 
filed by the property owners, Omni Financial LLC, et al, of a residential TR 32035 
containing 18.81 acres within the City and has requested that the City assist them in 
annexing territory into CFD No. 2013-1 (Services) to cover the costs associated with the 
maintenance of public improvements.  The improvements proposed to be maintained 
include items such as landscaping, lighting, street maintenance, drainage, parks, trails 
maintenance and graffiti abatement.  
 
In addition to maintaining public improvements the CFD No. 2013-1 will include a special 
tax to provide for financing of certain public services to meet increased demands of police 
and fire protection services as a result of the new developments that annex into the CFD. 
 
The area proposed within Annexation No. 21 will encompass 48 residential units in TR 
32035, with a maximum annual tax of $2,173.36 per unit, per year.  The parcel map 
proposed to be annexed into CFD No. 2013-1 will be included in Tax Zone 23.  This tax 
rate includes a Maximum Special Tax A of $1,830.03 per unit per year for maintenance 
services of public facilities, and Maximum Special Tax B of $343.33 per unit per year for 
safety services.  Both of these tax rates are proposed to escalate each year. Maximum 
Special Tax A will increase by the greater of Consumer Price Index (CPI) or 2% and 
Special Tax B will increase by the greater of CPI or 5%. Omni Financial LLC, et al, has 
agreed to the annexation into the CFD and submitted a "Consent and Waiver" form on 
file in the City Clerk's Office, to initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-
Roos Act in 1982, requesting the annexation of property to CFD No. 2013-1 (Services) 
and consenting to the shortening of election time requirements, waiving analysis and 
arguments, and waiving all notice requirements relating to the conduct of the election.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The projected levy for FY 2021-22 is $87,841.57 for the first year of maintenance services. 
Special Tax B will generate $16,479.84 once all 48 units are developed.  
  







  
 


  


Submitted by: Approved by: 
Dan York Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager/City Engineer City Manager 
 
Attachments:  
Resolution Calling an Election 
Resolution Declaring Results 
 
 
 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021-_________ 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, CALLING AN ELECTION 
TO SUBMIT TO THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS THE 
QUESTION OF LEVYING A SPECIAL TAX WITHIN THE 
AREA PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED TO COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
(ANNEXATION NO. 21) 
 


WHEREAS, on February 12, 2014, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of 
Wildomar (the “City”) approved Resolution No. 2014-07 declaring the City’s intention to 
establish Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) of the City of Wildomar, 
County of Riverside, State of California (the "CFD No. 2013-1") for the purpose of 
levying special taxes on parcels of taxable property therein for the purpose of providing 
certain services which are necessary to meet increased demands placed upon the City 
as a result of the development of said real property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council set a public hearing for March 12, 2014, after which the 
Council adopted Resolution No. 2014-09 forming the CFD No. 2013-1 and calling a 
special election at which the questions of levying a special tax and establishing an 
appropriations limit with respect to the CFD No. 2013-1 were submitted to the qualified 
electors within the CFD No. 2013-1; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 12, 2014, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2014-16 
declaring the results of the special election and finding that more than two-thirds (2/3) of 
all votes cast at the special election were cast in favor of the proposition presented, and 
such proposition passed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized by Article 3.5 (commencing with Section 
53339) of Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code as 
amended (the "Act"), to annex territory into an existing community facilities district by 
complying with the procedures set forth in said Article 3.5; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council on September 8, 2021, duly adopted Resolution No. 2021-
49 (the “Resolution of Intention”) declaring its intention to annex certain territory to CFD 
No. 2013-1 (Services) and to levy a special tax within that territory to pay for certain 
services and setting a time and place for the public hearing on the proposed annexation 
for October 13, 2021; and  
 
WHEREAS, the territory proposed to be annexed is identified in the map entitled 
"Annexation Map No. 21 Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services)" a copy of 
which was recorded, on September 15, 2021, in Book 87 of Maps of Assessment and 
Community Facilities Districts at Page 60, in the office of the Riverside County 
Recorder; and 
 







WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act and the Resolution of Intention, a notice of public 
hearing was convened by the City Council on October 13, 2021, not earlier than the 
hour of 6:00 p.m. at the City Hall located at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Wildomar, 
California 92595, relative to the proposed annexation of said territory to CFD No. 2013-
1; and  
 
WHEREAS, written protests have not been filed by fifty percent (50%) or more of the 
registered voters residing within the CFD No 2013-1, or by fifty percent (50%) or more 
of the registered voters residing within the territory to be annexed, or by the owners of 
one-half (1/2) or more of the area within the CFD No. 2013-1, or by the owners of one-
half (1/2) or more of the territory to be annexed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that there are fewer than twelve registered 
voters residing in the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1 and that 
the qualified electors in such territory are the landowners; and 
 
WHEREAS, on the basis of all of the foregoing, the City Council has determined at this 
time to call an election to authorize the annexation of territory to the CFD No. 2013-1 
and the levying of a special tax as described in Exhibit A hereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has received a written instrument from each landowner in 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1 consenting to the 
shortening of election time requirements, waiving analysis and arguments, and waiving 
all notice requirements relating to the conduct of the election; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk has concurred in the election date set forth herein. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, ACTING EX OFFICIO AS THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT 2013-1 (SERVICES) OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1  Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 


Section 2. Conformation of Finding in Resolution of Intention.  The City Council 
reconfirms all of its findings and determinations as set forth in the Resolution of 
Intention.  


Section 3. Findings Regarding Protests.  The City Council finds and determines that 
written protests to the proposed annexation of territory to the CFD No. 2013-1 and the 
levy of the special tax within such territory are insufficient in number and in amount 
under the Act, and the City Council hereby further orders and determines that all such 
protests are hereby overruled. 


Section 4. Findings Regarding Prior Proceedings.  The City Council finds and 
determines that all prior proceedings had and taken by the City Council with respect to 
the annexation of territory to CFD No. 2013-1 are valid and in conformity with the 
requirements of the Act. 







Section 5.   Levy of Special Tax.  As stated in the Resolution of Intention, except 
where funds are otherwise available, subject to the approval of the qualified electors of 
territory proposed to be annexed to CFD No. 2013-1, a special tax sufficient to pay the 
costs of the Services (including incidental expenses as described in the Resolution of 
Intention), secured by recordation of a continuing lien against all nonexempt real 
property in CFD No. 2013-1, will be levied annually in CFD No. 2013-1.  The rate and 
method of apportionment, and manner of collection of the special tax are specified in 
Exhibit A hereto. 


Section 6.   Apportionment of Tax.  The special tax as apportioned to each parcel is 
based on the cost of making the Services available to each parcel, or other reasonable 
basis, and is not based on or upon the ownership of real property. 


Section 7. Tax Roll Preparation.  The office of the Public Works Director, 23873 
Clinton Keith Road., City of Wildomar, is hereby designated as the office that will be 
responsible for annually preparing a current roll of special tax levy obligations by 
assessor’s parcel number and that will be responsible for estimating future special tax 
levies pursuant to Government Code section 53340.2.  The Public Works Director may 
cause these functions to be performed by his or her deputies, assistants, or other 
designated agents. 


Section 8.  Accountability Measures.  Pursuant to Section 50075.1 of the California 
Government Code, the City shall create a separate account into which tax proceeds will 
be deposited; and the Public Works Director annually shall file a report with the City 
Council that will state (a) the amount of funds collected and expended and (b) the status 
of the Services financed in CFD No. 2013-1. 


Section 9.  Special Election; Voting Procedures.  The City Council hereby submits the 
questions of levying the special tax within the territory proposed to be annexed to the 
qualified electors, in accordance with and subject to the Act.  The special election shall 
be held on October 13, 2021, and shall be conducted as follows: 


(a) Qualified Electors.  The City Council hereby determines that the 
Services are necessary to meet increased demands placed upon the City as a result of 
development occurring within the boundaries of CFD No. 2013-1.  Because fewer than 
twelve registered voters resided within the territory proposed to be annexed to CFD No. 
2013-1 on August 11, 2021 (a date within the 90 days preceding the close of the public 
hearing on the territory proposed to be annexed to CFD No. 2013-1), the qualified 
electors shall be the landowners within territory proposed to be annexed, and each 
landowner who was the owner of record at the close of the hearing shall have one vote 
for each acre or portion of an acre of land that such landowner owns within the territory 
proposed to be annexed to CFD No. 2013-1. 


(b) Consolidation of Elections; Combination of Propositions on Ballot.  The 
election on the question of levying the special tax and establishing an appropriations 
limit for CFD No. 2013-1 shall be consolidated, and the two proportions shall be 
combined into a single ballot proposition for submission to the voters, as authorized by 
Government Code Section 53353.5. 







(c) Mail Ballot Election.  Pursuant to Government Code section 53327.5, 
the election shall be conducted as a mail ballot election.  The City Council hereby 
ratifies the City Clerk’s delivery of a ballot to each landowner within the territory 
proposed to be annexed to CFD No. 2013-1.  The City Council hereby ratifies the form 
of the ballot, which is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 


(d) Return of Ballots.  The City Clerk shall accept the ballots of the 
landowners up to 6:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021.  The City Clerk shall have available 
ballots that may be marked at the City Clerk’s office on the election day by voters.  
Once all qualified electors have voted, the City Clerk may close the election. 


(e) Canvass of Election.  The City Clerk shall commence the canvass of 
the returns of the special election as soon as the election is closed (on October 13, 
2021, or when all qualified electors have voted) at the City Clerk’s office.  At the 
conclusion of the canvass, the City Clerk shall declare the results of the election. 


(f) Declaration of Results.  The City Council shall declare the results of the 
special election following the completion of the canvass of the returns and shall cause 
to be inserted into its minutes a statement of the results of the special election as 
ascertained by the canvass of the returns. 


Section 10.  Filing of Resolution and Map with City Clerk.  The City Council hereby 
directs the City Clerk to file a copy of this resolution and the annexation map of the 
boundaries of CFD No. 2013-1 in his/her office. 


 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of October, 2021. 
  
 
 
    
 Dustin Nigg  
 Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Thomas D. Jex  Janet Morales 
City Attorney  City Clerk 
 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021-_________ 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ELECTION 
RESULTS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 
2013-1 (SERVICES) ANNEXATION NO. 21 
 


 
WHEREAS, the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Wildomar (the "City") has 
heretofore conducted proceedings for the area proposed to be annexed to Community 
Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (the "CFD No. 2013-1") of the City of Wildomar, 
including conducting a public hearing pursuant to Section 53339.5 of the Government 
Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, at the conclusion of said public hearing, the City Council adopted a 
resolution calling a special election for October 13, 2021, and submitting to the qualified 
electors of the territory to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1 the question of levying 
special taxes on parcels of taxable property therein for the purpose of providing certain 
services which are necessary to meet increased demands placed upon the City as a 
result of the development of said real property as provided in the form of special 
election ballot; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Certificate of Election Results, attached thereto as Exhibit A, dated 
October 13, 2021, executed by the City Clerk (or, in the absence of the City Clerk, the 
Acting City Clerk – in either case, the “Clerk”), has been filed with this Council, certifying 
that a completed ballot has been returned to the Clerk for each landowner-voter(s) 
eligible to cast a ballot in said special election, with all votes cast as “Yes” votes in favor 
of the ballot measure, and further certifying on said basis that the special mailed-ballot 
election was closed; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Council has received, reviewed and hereby accepts the Clerk’s 
Certificate of Election Results and wishes by this resolution to declare the results of the 
special mailed-ballot election; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR: 
 
Section 1. Recitals.  This Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are 
true and correct.  
 
Section 2. Ballot Measure.  This Council hereby finds, determines and declares that 
the ballot measure submitted to the qualified electors of the territory to be annexed to 
CFD No. 2013-1 has been passed and approved by those qualified electors in 
accordance with Sections 53328 and 53329 of the Government Code. 
 
Section 3. Annexation.  This Council hereby finds, determines and declares that 
pursuant to Section 53339.8 of the Government Code, the City Council is authorized to 
determine that the territory to be annexed has been added to and become a part of the 
CFD No. 2013-1 with full legal effect, and the City Council is also authorized, pursuant 
to said Section 53339.8, to annually levy special taxes within the territory to be annexed 







to pay the costs of the services to be provided by the CFD No. 2013-1 as specified in 
Resolution No. 2021-49 adopted by the City Council on September 8, 2021.  The 
boundaries of the territory annexed are shown on the map entitled, "Annexation Map 
No. 21 Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services)" a copy of which was 
recorded, on September 15, 2021, in Book 87 of Maps of Assessment and Community 
Facilities Districts at Page 60, in the office of the Riverside County Recorder. 
  
Section 4. Notice of Special Tax Lien.  Pursuant to Section 53339.8 of the 
Government Code and Section 3117.5 of the Streets and Highways Code, the City 
Clerk shall cause to be filed with the County Recorder of the County of Riverside an 
amendment of the notice of special tax lien and a map of the amended boundaries of 
the CFD No. 2013-1 including the annexed territory. 
 
Section 5. Effect. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption. 
  


 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
 
    
 Dustin Nigg 
 Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Thomas D. Jex      Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk 


 







 


City of Wildomar    1 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


RATES AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES) 


OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 


A Special Tax  (the “Special Tax”) shall be  levied on and collected  from each Assessor’s Parcel 
(defined below) in Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) (the “CFD No. 2013‐1” or 
“CFD”;  defined  below),  in  each  Fiscal  Year,  (defined  below),  commencing  in  the  Fiscal  Year 
beginning July 1, 2014,  in an amount determined by the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 
acting ex officio as the legislative body of CFD No. 2013‐1, by applying the rates and method of 
apportionment set forth below. All of the real property in CFD No. 2013‐1, unless exempted by 
law or by the provisions herein, shall be taxed to the extent and in the manner provided herein. 


 
A. DEFINITIONS 


 
“Acre” or “Acreage” means the land area of an Assessor’s Parcel as shown on any Assessor’s 
Parcel Map, or if the land area is not shown on the Assessor’s Parcel Map, the land area as 
shown on the applicable Final Map, or if the area is not shown on the applicable Final Map, 
the land area shall be calculated by the Administrator. 


 
“Administrative Expenses” means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related 
to the formation, annexation, and administration of CFD No. 2013‐1 including, but not limited 
to: the costs of computing the Special Taxes and preparing the annual Special Tax collection 
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs to the City, CFD No. 
2013‐1,  or  any  designee  thereof  associated with  fulfilling  the  CFD No.  2013‐1  disclosure 
requirements; the costs associated with responding to public inquiries regarding the Special 
Taxes; the costs of the City, CFD No. 2013‐1 or any designee thereof related to an appeal of 
the  Special  Tax;  and  the  City's  annual  administration  fees  and  third  party  expenses. 
Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts estimated or advanced by  the City or CFD 
No. 2013‐1 for any other administrative purposes of CFD No. 2013‐1, including attorney's fees 
and  other  costs  related  to  commencing  and  pursuing  to  completion  any  foreclosure  of 
delinquent Special Taxes. 


 
“Administrator” means the City Manager of the City of Wildomar, or his or her designee. 


 
“Approved Property” means all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property that are included in a 
Final Map that was recorded prior to the March 1 of preceding the Fiscal Year in which the 
Special Tax is being levied. 


 
“Assessor’s Parcel” means a lot or parcel of land that is identifiable by an Assessor’s Parcel 
Number by the County Assessor of the County of Riverside. 


 
“Assessor’s Parcel Map” means an official map of the Assessor of the County designating 
parcels by Assessor’s Parcel Number. 


 







 


City of Wildomar    2 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


“Assessor’s Parcel Number” means that  identification number assigned to a parcel by the 
County Assessor of the County. 


 
“Building Square Footage” or “BSF” means the floor area square footage reflected on the 
original construction building permit issued for construction of a building of Non‐Residential 
Property and any Building Square Footage subsequently added to a building of such Taxable 
Property after issuance of a building permit for expansion or renovation of such building. 


 
“CFD” or “CFD No. 2013‐1” means  the City of Wildomar Community Facilities District No. 
2013‐1 (Services). 


 
“City” has the meaning set forth in the preamble. 


 
“County” means the County of Riverside. 


 
“Developed Property” means all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property for which a building 
permit for new construction has been issued on or prior to March 1 preceding the Fiscal Year 
in which the Special Tax is being levied. 


 
“Exempt Property” means all Assessors’ Parcels designated as being exempt from the Special 
Tax as provided for in Section G. 


 
“Final Map” means a subdivision of property by recordation of a final map, parcel map, or lot 
line adjustment, pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act (California Government Code Section 
66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan pursuant to California Civil Code 1352 
that  creates  individual  lots  for  which  building  permits  may  be  issued  without  further 
subdivision. 


 
“Fiscal Year” means the period from and including July 1st of any year to and including the 
following June 30th. 


 
“Land Use Category” means, any of the categories contained in Section B. hereof to which an 
Assessor’s Parcel is assigned consistent with the land use approvals that have been received 
or proposed for the Assessor’s Parcel as of March 1 preceding the Fiscal Year  in which the 
Special Tax is being levied. 


 
“Maximum Special Tax” means the Maximum Special Tax A and/or Maximum Special Tax B, 
as applicable. 


 
“Maximum Special Tax A” means the Maximum Special Tax A, as determined in accordance 
with Section C., below, that can be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel within 
CFD No. 2013‐1. 


 
 
 


 







 


City of Wildomar    3 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


“Maximum Special Tax B” means the Maximum Special Tax B, as determined in accordance 
with Section C., below, that can be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel within 
CFD No. 2013‐1. 


 
“Multi‐Family Residential Property” means any Assessor’s Parcel of residential property that 
consists of a building or buildings comprised of attached Residential Units available for rental, 
but not purchase, by the general public and under common management. 


 
“Non‐Residential Property” means, all Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property  for which a 
building permit(s) was  issued  for a non‐residential use. The Administrator  shall make  the 
determination if an Assessor’s Parcel is Non‐Residential Property. 


 
“Proportionately” means for Taxable Property that is: (i) Developed Property, that the ratio 
of  the  actual  Special  Tax  levy  to  the Maximum  Special  Tax  is  the  same  for  all Parcels of 
Developed Property, (ii) Approved Property, that the ratio of the actual Special Tax  levy to 
the  Maximum  Special  Tax  is  the  same  for  all  Parcels  of  Approved  Property,  and  (iii) 
Undeveloped Property that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levy per acre to the Maximum 
Special Tax per acre is the same for all Parcels of Undeveloped Property. 


 
“Residential Unit” or "RU" means a residential unit that is used or intended to be used as a 
domicile by one or more persons, as determined by the Administrator. 


 
“Residential  Property”  means  all  Assessor’s  Parcels  of  Taxable  Property  upon  which 
completed Residential Units have been constructed or for which building permits have been 
or may be issued for purposes of constructing one or more Residential Units. 


 
“Service(s)” means  services permitted under  the Mello‐Roos Community  Facilities Act of 
1982 including, without limitation, those services authorized to be funded by CFD No. 2013‐ 
1 as set forth in the documents adopted by the City Council at the time the CFD was formed. 


 
“Single  Family  Residential  Property”  means  any  residential  property  that  consists  of  a 
building comprised of attached or detached residential units available for purchase or rent by 
the general public. 


 
“Special Tax(es)” means the Special Tax A and/or Special Tax B to be levied in each Fiscal Year 
on each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property. 


 
“Special  Tax  A”  means  the  annual  special  tax  to  be  levied  in  each  Fiscal  Year  on  each 
Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Special Tax A Requirement. 


 
“Special  Tax  B”  means  the  annual  special  tax  to  be  levied  in  each  Fiscal  Year  on  each 
Assessor’s Parcel of Developed Property to fund the Special Tax B Requirement. 


 
 







 


City of Wildomar    4 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


"Special Tax A Requirement" means that amount to be collected in any Fiscal Year to pay for 
certain costs as required to meet the needs of CFD No. 2013‐1 in both the current Fiscal Year 
and the next Fiscal Year. The costs to be covered shall be the direct costs for (i) maintenance 
services including but not limited to (i) maintenance and lighting of parks, parkways, streets, 
roads and open space, (ii) maintenance and operation of water quality  improvements, (iii) 
public street sweeping, (iv) fund an operating reserve for the costs of Services as determined 
by  the Administrator,  and  (v) Administrative  Expenses. Under no  circumstances  shall  the 
Special Tax A Requirement include funds for Bonds. 


 
"Special Tax B Requirement" means that amount to be collected in any Fiscal Year to pay for 
certain costs as required to meet the needs of CFD No. 2013‐1 in both the current Fiscal Year 
and  the  next  Fiscal  Year.  The  costs  to  be  covered  shall  be  the  direct  costs  for  (i)  police 
protection  services,  (ii)  fire  protection  and  suppression  services,  (iii)  fund  an  operating 
reserve for the costs of Services as determined by the Administrator, and (iv) Administrative 
Expenses. Under no  circumstances  shall  the  Special Tax B Requirement  include  funds  for 
Bonds. 


 
"Taxable Property" means all Assessor’s Parcels within CFD No. 2013‐1, which are not Exempt 
Property. 


 
"Tax Zone" means a mutually exclusive geographic area, within which particular Special Tax 
rates may be  levied pursuant  to  this Rate  and Method of Apportionment of  Special Tax. 
Exhibit "C" identifies the Tax Zone in CFD No. 2013‐1 at formation; additional Tax Zones may 
be created when property is annexed into the CFD. 


 
"Tax Zone 1" means the geographic area the specific area  identified on the CFD Boundary 
Map as Tax Zone 1. 


 
"Tax Zone 2" means the geographic area the specific area  identified on the CFD Boundary 
Map as Tax Zone 2. 


 
"Tract(s)" means an area of land within a subdivision identified by a particular tract number 
on a Final Map approved for the subdivision. 


 
“Undeveloped Property” means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as 
Developed Property or Approved Property. 


 
B. ASSIGNMENT TO LAND USE CATEGORIES 


 
For each Fiscal Year, all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property within CFD No. 2013‐1 shall be 
classified as Developed Property, Approved Property, or Undeveloped Property, and shall be 
subject  to  the  levy  of  Special  Taxes  as  determined  pursuant  to  Sections C  and D  below. 
Assessor’s Parcels of Developed Property and Approved Property shall be classified as either 
Residential Property or Non‐Residential Property. 
 
 







 


City of Wildomar    5 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


C. MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX RATES 
 


1. Special Tax A 
 


For purposes of determining the applicable Maximum Special Tax A for Assessor’s Parcels 
of  Developed  Property  and  Approved  Property  which  are  classified  as  Residential 
Property, all such Assessor’s Parcels shall be assigned the number of Residential Unit(s) 
constructed  or  to  be  constructed  thereon  as  specified  in  or  shown  on  the  building 
permit(s)  issued  or  Final  Map  as  determined  by  the  Administrator.  For  Parcels  of 
undeveloped property zoned for development of single family attached or multi‐family 
units,  the  number  of  Residential  Units  shall  be  determined  by  referencing  the 
condominium plan, apartment plan, site plan or other development plan, or by assigning 
the maximum allowable units permitted based on the underlying zoning for the Parcel. 
Once a single family attached or multi‐family building or buildings have been built on an 
Assessor's Parcel, the Administrator shall determine the actual number of Residential 
Units contained within the building or buildings, and the Special Tax levied against the 
Parcel  in  the next Fiscal Year shall be calculated by multiplying  the actual number of 
Residential Units by the Maximum Special Tax A per Residential Unit identified for the 
Tracts in Table 1 below. 


 
a. Developed Property 


 


(i) Maximum Special Tax A 
 


The Maximum Special Tax A for each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property is shown 
in Table 1 is shall be specific to each Tract within the CFD. When additional property 
is  annexed  into  CFD  No.  2013‐1,  the  rate  and  method  adopted  for  the  annexed 
property shall reflect the Maximum Special Tax for the Tract or Tracts annexed. The 
Maximum Special Tax A  for Fiscal Year 2014‐2015  for a Residential Unit within the 
Tracts are identified in Table 1 below: 


 
TABLE 1 


Maximum Special Tax A Rates 
 


Tax Zone  Tracts  Maximum Special Tax A 


1  32535  $346.00 per Residential Unit 
2  31479  $346.00 per Residential Unit 


 


(ii) Increase in the Maximum Special Tax A 
 


On each July 1, commencing on July 1, 2015 the Maximum Special Tax A for Developed 
Property shall increase by i) the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) since the beginning 
of the preceding Fiscal Year, or ii) by two percent (2.0%), whichever is greater. 


 







 


City of Wildomar    6 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


(iii) Multiple Land Use Categories 


In some instances an Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property may contain more 
than one Land Use Category. The Maximum Special Tax A that can be levied on an 
Assessor's Parcel shall be the sum of the Maximum Special Tax A that can be levied 
for each Land Use Category  located on that Assessor's Parcel. For an Assessor's 
Parcel that contains more than one land use, the Acreage of such Assessor's Parcel 
shall  be  allocated  to  each  type  of  property  based  on  the  amount  of  Acreage 
designated for each land use as determined by reference to the site plan approved 
for such Assessor's Parcel. The Administrator's allocation to each type of property 
shall be final. 


b. Approved Property 
 


The Maximum Special Tax A for each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property is shown 
in Table 2 is shall be specific to each Tract within the CFD. When additional property 
is  annexed  into  CFD  No.  2013‐1,  the  rate  and  method  adopted  for  the  annexed 
property shall reflect the Maximum Special Tax for the Tract or Tracts annexed. The 
Maximum  Special Tax A  for  Fiscal  Year 2014‐2015 per Residential Unit within  the 
Tracts is identified in Table 2 below: 


 
TABLE 2 


Maximum Special Tax A Rates 
 


Tax Zone  Tracts  Maximum Special Tax A 


1  32535  $346.00 per Residential Unit 
2  31479  $346.00 per Residential Unit 


 


On each July 1, commencing on July 1, 2015 the Maximum Special Tax A for Approved 
Property shall increase by i) the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) since the beginning 
of the preceding Fiscal Year, or ii) by two percent (2.0%), whichever is greater. 


 
c. Undeveloped Property 


 


The Maximum Special Tax A for each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property is shown 
in Table 3 shall be specific to each Tract within the CFD. When additional property is 
annexed into CFD No. 2013‐1, the rate and method adopted for the annexed property 
shall reflect the Maximum Special Tax A for the Tract or Tracts annexed. The Maximum 
Special Tax A  for Fiscal Year 2014‐2015 per acre within  the Tracts are  identified  in 
Table 3 below: 


 
 
 
 







 


City of Wildomar    7 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


TABLE 3 
Maximum Special Tax A Rates 


 


Tax Zone  Tracts  Maximum Special Tax A 


1  32535  $1,762 per Acre 
2  31479  $1,541 per Acre 


 


On  each  July  1,  commencing  on  July  1,  2015  the  Maximum  Special  Tax  A  for 
Undeveloped Property shall increase by i) the percentage increase in the Consumer 
Price  Index (All  Items)  for Los Angeles  ‐ Riverside  ‐ Orange County  (1982‐84 = 100) 
since  the  beginning  of  the  preceding  Fiscal  Year,  or  ii)  by  two  percent  (2.0%), 
whichever is greater. 


 
2. Special Tax B 


 


The Special Tax B is an annual Special Tax that shall be levied on Developed Property 
to fund the Special Tax Requirement B. 


 
a. Developed Property 


 


(i) Maximum Special Tax B 
 


The Maximum Special Tax B for Fiscal Year 2014‐2015 for each Land Use Class is 
shown in Table 4. When additional property is annexed into CFD No. 2013‐1, the 
rate and method adopted  for  the annexed property shall reflect  the Maximum 
Special Tax B for the Tract or Tracts annexed. 


 
TABLE 4 


Maximum Special Tax B Rates 
 


Land Use Class  Description  Unit  Maximum Special Tax B 
1  Single Family Residential  RU  $244.00 
2  Multi‐Family Residential  RU  $173.00 


 


On each July 1, commencing on July 1, 2015 the Maximum Special Tax B for Developed 
Property  shall  increase by  i)  the percentage  increase  in  the Consumer Price  Index  (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) since the beginning of 
the preceding Fiscal Year, or ii) by five percent (5.0%), whichever is greater. 


 
No Special Tax shall be levied on property which, at the time of adoption of the Resolution 
of Formation for CFD No. 2013‐1, is an Exempt Property. 


 
 
 
 
 
 







 


City of Wildomar    8 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


D. METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX 
 


1. Special Tax A 
 


Commencing  with  Fiscal  Year  2014‐2015  and  for  each  following  Fiscal  Year,  the 
Council shall determine the Special Tax A Requirement and shall levy the Special Tax 
A on all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property until the aggregate amount of Special 
Tax A equals the Special Tax A Requirement. The Special Tax A shall be levied for each 
Fiscal Year as follows: 


 
First: The Special Tax A shall be  levied Proportionately on all Assessor’s Parcels of 
Developed Property up to 100% of the applicable Maximum Special Tax A to satisfy 
the Special Tax A Requirement; 


 
Second:  If additional moneys are needed to satisfy the Special Tax A Requirement 
after  the  first  step  has  been  completed,  the  Special  Tax  shall  be  levied 
Proportionately on each Parcel of Approved Property at up to 100% of the Maximum 
Special Tax A for Approved Property; 


 
Third: If additional monies are needed to satisfy the Special Tax A Requirement after 
the  first  two  steps  has  been  completed,  the  Special  Tax  A  shall  be  levied 
Proportionately on all Assessor’s Parcels of Undeveloped Property up to 100% of the 
Maximum Special Tax A for Undeveloped Property. 


 
2. Special Tax B 


 


Commencing  with  Fiscal  Year  2014‐2015  and  for  each  following  Fiscal  Year,  the 
Council shall determine the Special Tax B Requirement and shall levy the Special Tax 
B until the aggregate amount of Special Tax B equals the Special Tax B Requirement. 


 
The  Special  Tax  B  shall  be  levied  Proportionately  on  all  Assessor’s  Parcels  of 
Developed Property up to 100% of the applicable Maximum Special Tax B to satisfy 
the Special Tax B Requirement. 


 
E. FUTURE ANNEXATIONS 


 
It is anticipated that additional properties will be annexed to CFD No. 2013‐1 from time 
to time. As each annexation is proposed, an analysis will be prepared to determine the 
annual cost for providing Services. Based on this analysis, the property to be annexed, 
pursuant  to California Government Code section 53339 et seq. will be assigned  to  the 
appropriate Maximum Special Tax rate for the Tract or Tracts when annexed. 


 
 
 
 
 







 


City of Wildomar    9 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


F. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX 
 


For each Fiscal Year, the Special Taxes shall be  levied as  long as the Services are being 
provided. 


 
G. EXEMPTIONS 


 


The City shall classify as Exempt Property within CFD No. 2013‐1, any Assessor’s Parcel in 
any of  the  following categories;  (i) Assessor’s Parcels which are owned by,  irrevocably 
offered  for  dedication,  encumbered  by  or  restricted  in  use  by  any  public  entity;  (ii) 
Assessor’s Parcels with public or utility easements making impractical their utilization for 
other  than  the  purposes  set  forth  in  the  easement;  (iii) Assessor’s  Parcels which  are 
privately owned but are encumbered by or restricted solely for public uses; or (iv) any 
Assessor’s Parcel which is in use in the performance of a public function as determined by 
the Administrator. 


 
H. APPEALS 


 
Any property owner claiming that the amount or application of the Special Taxes are not 
correct may file a written notice of appeal with the City not later than twelve months after 
having paid the first installment of the Special Tax(es) that is disputed. A representative(s) 
of CFD No. 2013‐1  shall promptly  review  the appeal, and  if necessary, meet with  the 
property owner, consider written and oral evidence regarding the amount of the Special 
Tax, and rule on the appeal. If the representative’s decision requires that the Special Tax 
for an Assessor’s Parcel be modified or changed  in favor of the property owner, a cash 
refund shall not be made, but an adjustment shall be made to the Special Tax on that 
Assessor’s Parcel in the subsequent Fiscal Year(s). 


 
I. MANNER OF COLLECTION 


 


The Special Tax(es) shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary 
ad  valorem  property  taxes,  provided,  however,  that  CFD No.  2013‐1 may  collect  the 
Special Tax at a different time or in a different manner if necessary to meet its financial 
obligations. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


City of Wildomar    10 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


EXHIBIT A 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES)  


COST ESTIMATE 


Maintenance  Services  ‐  The  estimate  breaks  down  the  costs  of  providing  one  year's 
maintenance services for FY 2021‐2022. These services are being funded by the levy of Special 
Tax A for Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1. 


TAX ZONE 23 – Annexation 21 
TR 32035 


 


Item  Description  Estimated Cost 


1    Landscaping                        $25,653  
2  Lighting  $6,413 


3  Streets  $3,587 


4  Drainage   $23,775 


5  Parks  $8,592 


6  Trails  $5,943 


7  Graffiti  $87 


8  Reserves  $6,387 


9  Administration  $7,405 


Total   $87,842 


 
Safety Services ‐ It is estimated that the cost of providing police and fire protection services 
being funded by Special Tax B for the Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) as 
outlined in Exhibit “B” hereto, will be as follows for the first year: 


 $343.33 per residential unit 







 


City of Wildomar    11 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


TAX ZONE SUMMARY 
 


 
Annexation 


Tax 
Zone 


 
Tract 


Fiscal 
Year 


Maximum 
Special Tax A 


Maximum 
Special Tax 


B 


 
Subdivider 


Original  1  32535  2014‐15  $346.00 / RU  $244.00 / RU  CV Communities LLC 


Original  2  31479  2014‐15  $346.00 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Rancon Equity 
Partners III 


1  3  25122/ 
32078  2015‐16  $346.00 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Rancho Fortunado 


Inv, LLC 


2  4  PM 16803  2015‐16  $51.41 / Acre  N/A  Moralez Enterprises, 
LLC 


3  5  36497  2015‐16  $522.27 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Lennar Homes of 
California, Inc. 


4  6  PM 36492  2015‐16  $766.14 / Acre  N/A  Rancon Medical and 
Education Center, LLC 


5  7  29476  2016‐17  $688.60 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Alta Colina, LLC 


6  8  36519  2016‐17  $777.35 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Keusder, LLC / MSL 
Orange, Inc. 


7  9  PP 10‐0222  2016‐17  $7,650.78 / RU  N/A  Plaza de Bundy 
Canyon, LLC 


8  10  32206  2016‐17  $633.51 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Wildomar Land, LLC 


9  11  PM 36080  2018‐19  $3,302.61 / Acre  N/A  CK‐HS Partners, LLC / 
SNDH Partners, LLC 


10  12  PM 32833  2017‐18  $1,418.22 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Wildomar Housing 
Partners, LLC 


11  13  PM 36653  2017‐18  $333.00 / RU  $282.46 / RU  Benson Residential 


12  14  LLA 2016‐
005  2018‐19  $2,325.03 / Acre  N/A  Sunbelt Rentals 


13  15 
CUP/PP 15‐


0013  2019‐20  $3,330.26/Acre  N/A  Clinton Keith Village 


14  16  CUP 16‐
0095 


2019‐20  $1,513.72/Acre  N/A 
Big Easy RV Boat 


Storage 


15  17  TR 32726  2019‐20  $1,012.37 / RU  $311.41 / RU 
Hacienda Properties, 


LLC 


16  18  PM 32257  2019‐20  $3,301.26/Acre  N/A 
Tesoro Refining & 
Marketing Co LLC 


17  19  TR 32024  2019‐20  $1,073.91/RU  $311.41/RU 
KB Home Coastal 


 Inc. 


18  20  PM 36492  2019‐20  $2,503.60/ 
Acre 


N/A 
Rancon Medical and 


Education Center, LLC 


19  21  PA 16‐0138  2019‐20  $253.39/ Acre  N/A 
Smith Ranch Storage., 


 LLC 


20  22  PM 37276  2020‐21  $1,253.44 / RU  $326.98 / RU  Thanh T. Tran 


21  23  TR 32035  2021‐22  $1,830.03 / RU  $343.33 / RU 
Omni Financial, LLC,  


et al 
 
 







 


City of Wildomar    12 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


APPROVED PROPERTY 
 


 
Annexation 


Tax 
Zone 


 
Tract 


Fiscal 
Year 


Maximum 
Special Tax A 


Subdivider 


21  23  TR 32035  2021‐22  $1,830.03 / RU 
Omni Financial, LLC,  


et al 
 
UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY 


 


 
Annexation 


Tax 
Zone 


 
Tract 


Fiscal 
Year 


Maximum 
Special Tax A 


Subdivider 


21  23  TR 32035  2021‐22  $9,621.20 / Acre 
Omni Financial, LLC,  


et al 
 


 


ESCALATION OF MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES 
 


Maximum  Special  Tax A  ‐ On each  July 1,  the Maximum  Special  Tax A  for Developed 
Property,  Approved  Property  and  Undeveloped  Property  shall  increase  by  i)  the 
percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (All Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ 
Orange County (1982‐84  = 100) for the calendar year ending in March of the prior Fiscal 
Year, or ii) by two percent (2.0%), whichever is greater. 


 
Maximum  Special  Tax B  ‐ On  each  July  1,  the Maximum  Special  Tax B  for Developed 
Property  shall  increase by  i)  the percentage  increase  in  the Consumer Price  Index  (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) for the calendar year 
ending in March of the prior Fiscal Year, or ii) by five percent (5.0%), whichever is greater. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


City of Wildomar    13 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


EXHIBIT B 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES) 


DESCRIPTION OF AUTHORIZED SERVICES 


The services which may be funded with proceeds of the special tax of CFD No. 2013‐1, as provided by 
Section  53313  of  the  Act,  will  include  all  costs  attributable  to  maintaining,  servicing,  cleaning, 
repairing and/or replacing landscaped areas (may include reserves for replacement) in public street 
right‐of‐ways, public  landscaping, public open  spaces and other  similar  landscaped areas officially 
dedicated for public use. In addition, the services which may include some or all costs attributable to 
police protection, and fire services. These services including the following: 
 


(a) maintenance and lighting of parks, parkways, streets, roads and open space, which 
maintenance and lighting services may include, without limitation, furnishing of electrical power to 
street lights; repair and replacement of damaged or inoperative light bulbs, fixtures and standards; 
maintenance (including irrigation and replacement) of landscaping vegetation situated on or adjacent 
to parks, parkways,  streets,  roads and open  space; maintenance and  repair of  irrigation  facilities; 
maintenance of public signage; graffiti removal from and maintenance and repair of public structures 
situated on parks, parkways, streets, roads and open space; maintenance and repair of playground or 
recreation program equipment or facilities situated on any park; and 
 


(b) maintenance  and  operation  of  water  quality  improvements  which  include  storm 
drainage  and  flood protection  facilities,  including, without  limitation, drainage  inlets,  catch basin 
inserts, infiltration basins, flood control channels, fossil fuel filters, and similar facilities. Maintenance 
services may include but is not limited to the repair, removal or replacement of all or part of any of 
the water quality improvements, fossil fuel filters within the public right‐of‐way including the removal 
of petroleum hydrocarbons and other pollutants from water runoff, or appurtenant facilities, clearing 
of  inlets and outlets; erosion repairs; and cleanup to  improvements, and other  items necessary for 
the maintenance, servicing; or both of  the water quality basin  improvements within  flood control 
channel improvements; and 
 


(c) public street sweeping, on the segments of the arterials within the boundaries of CFD 
No. 2013‐1; as well as local roads within residential subdivisions located within CFD No. 2013‐1; and 
any portions adjacent to the properties within CFD No. 2013‐1; and 
 


(d) police protection services, including but not limited to criminal justice services, and 
fire protection and suppression services. 
 
In addition to payment of the cost and expense of the forgoing services, proceeds of the special tax 
may be expended to pay “Administrative Expenses,” as said term is defined in the Rate and Method 
of Apportionment. 
 
The above services shall be limited to those provided within the boundaries of CFD No. 2013‐1 or for 
the benefit of the properties within the boundaries of CFD No. 2013‐1, as the boundary is expanded 
from time to time by anticipated annexations, and said services may be financed by proceeds of the 
special tax of CFD No. 2013‐1 only to the extent that they are  in addition to those provided  in the 
territory of CFD No. 2013‐1 before CFD No. 2013‐1 was created. 


 
 







 


City of Wildomar    14 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


  EXHIBIT C 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES) 


                PROPOSED BOUNDARIES 
 
 































SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 


ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 


      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Ronald Auerbacher, Trustee 0.063 0.063 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 


City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 


Ronald Auerbacher, Trustee 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


380-040-005 Por. 
380-040-007 Por. 


 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Ronald Auerbacher, Trustee 
Owners  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 


 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 


ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 


      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Myra J. Ekrem 4.333 4.333 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 


City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 


Myra J. Ekrem 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


380-040-029 Por. 
 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Myra J. Ekrem 
Owner  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 


 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 


ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 


      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Harry L. Keays 0.054 0.054 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 


City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 


Harry L. Keays 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


380-040-005 Por. 
380-040-007 Por. 


 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Harry L. Keays 
Owner  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 


 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 


ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 


      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Joan Maresca 0.013 0.013 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 


City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 


Joan Maresca 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


   380-040-005 Por. 
   380-040-007 Por. 
 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Joan Maresca 
Owner  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 


 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 


ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 


      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Pensco Trust Company FBO M. Kenneth 
Mudge 


4.333 4.333 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 


City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 


Pensco Trust Company FBO M. Kenneth Mudge 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


380-040-029 Por. 
 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Pensco Trust Compacy FBO M. Kenneth Mudge 
Owner  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 


 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 


ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 


      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Omni Financial, LLC 10.170 10.170 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 


City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 


Omni Financial, LLC 
Attn: Martin Boone  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


380-040-005 Por. 
380-040-007 Por. 
380-040-029 Por. 


 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Omni Financial, LLC 
Martin Boone 
Manager  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 


 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 


ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 


      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Orbis Financial, LLC 0.853 0.853 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 


City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 


Orbis Financial, LLC 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors 
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


380-040-005 Por.


380-040-007 Por.


ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 


ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


YES  


NO   


Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


Orbis Financial, LLC 
Martin Boone 
Manager


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 


ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 


      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Louis E. and Elaine Polakoff 0.090 0.090 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 


City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 


Louis E. and Elaine Polakoff 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


   380-040-005 Por. 
   380-040-007 Por. 
 
 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Louis E. and Elaine Polakoff 
Owners  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 


 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 


ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 


      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


David P. Wolske and Leslie S. Lanes 0.090 0.090 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 


City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 


David P. Wolske and Leslie S. Lanes 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


380-040-005 Por. 
380-040-007 Por. 


 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
David P. Wolske  
Owner 
  


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 


Leslie S. Lanes 
Owner 


 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 


 







CITY OF WILDOMAR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 


ANNEXATION NO. 21 


CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION RESULTS 


       I, the undersigned, being the Deputy City Clerk or the Acting City Clerk, as the 
case may be, hereby certify:  


In connection with the special mailed-ballot election called by the City Council 
(the “City Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”) on this same date in the proceedings of 
the City Council for the annexation of territory to the above-entitled community facilities district, I 
personally received (a) a signed and dated waiver and consent form and (b) a signed, dated 
and marked election ballot(s) on behalf of the owner(s) listed below, the entity named as the 
sole landowner of the land within the boundary of the above-entitled community facilities district 
in the Certificate Regarding Registered Voters and Landowners, dated August 11, 2021, and on 
file in the office of the City Clerk of the City in connection with the City Council actions on that 
date. Copies of the completed waiver and consent form and the completed ballot received by 
me and on file in my office are attached hereto.   


Following such receipt, I have personally, and in the presence of all persons 
present, reviewed the ballot to confirm that it is properly marked and signed, and I hereby certify 
the result of that count to be that the ballot was cast in favor of the measure. 


Based upon the foregoing, all votes that were cast having been cast “Yes”, in 
favor of the ballot measure, the measure has therefore passed.  


Landowner 
Qualified 


Landowner Votes Votes Cast YES NO 


David P. Wolske and Leslie S. Lanes 
Louis E. and Elaine Polakoff 


Harry L. Keays 
Omni Financial, LLC 
Orbis Financial, LLC 
Ronald Auerbacher 


Joan Maresca 
Pensco Trust Company 


Myra J. Ekrem 


20 20 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that 
the foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on ____________, 2021. 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk      
City of Wildomar 


By: 


(Attach completed copies of Waiver/Consent and Ballots) 







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 694FDDA0-48B0-461D-941E-4E345A85395C







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
       MYRA J. EKREM 
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Myra J. Ekrem 


Title: Landowner 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  
City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 694FDDA0-48B0-461D-941E-4E345A85395C


13


21


july







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: C8857CC8-9632-4C7F-AFBE-088794C780F4







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
       Harry L. Keays 
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Harry L. Keays 


Title: Landowner 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  
City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: C8857CC8-9632-4C7F-AFBE-088794C780F4


13
21


July







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: DE8741B0-9518-4ED8-8D67-719D356D47AB







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
      Joan Maresca 
 
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Joan Maresca 


Title: Landowner 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  
City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: DE8741B0-9518-4ED8-8D67-719D356D47AB


July


21


12th







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 012C0C5A-D6E4-47DA-9370-52E67DF8F48D







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
      M. Kenneth Mudge 
 
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: M. Kenneth Mudge 


Title: Landowner 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  
City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 012C0C5A-D6E4-47DA-9370-52E67DF8F48D


July


21


13







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: B30441D7-7F32-43EF-A22C-91F32A8F93C5







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
       Orbis Financial, LLC 
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Martin Boone 


Title: Manager 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  
City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: B30441D7-7F32-43EF-A22C-91F32A8F93C5


12th July


21







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: E4FBB009-1251-4068-B9E0-36F96379F0B9







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
       Louis E. Polakoff  
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Louis E. Polakoff 


Title: Landowner 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Elaine Polakoff 


Title: Landowner 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: E4FBB009-1251-4068-B9E0-36F96379F0B9


JULY


21


13







Petition Form 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  
City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: E4FBB009-1251-4068-B9E0-36F96379F0B9







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: E3016208-491C-4638-93A0-A17664118C0A







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
       David P. Wolske and Leslie S. Lanes 
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: David P. Wolske 


Title: Landowner 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Leslie S. Lanes 


Title: Landowner 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: E3016208-491C-4638-93A0-A17664118C0A


21


13 july







Petition Form 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  
City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: E3016208-491C-4638-93A0-A17664118C0A







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 42A7FF1B-3034-4931-BA55-5668BF63C251







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
      Ronald Auerbacher, Trustee of the Ronald   
      Auerbacher Trust Agreement  Dated August 26, 2015 
 
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Ronald Auerbacher 


Title: Trustee 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  


DocuSign Envelope ID: 42A7FF1B-3034-4931-BA55-5668BF63C251


21


12 July







Petition Form 


City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 42A7FF1B-3034-4931-BA55-5668BF63C251























  


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #2.2 


PUBLIC HEARING 
 Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and Council Members 
 
FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager/City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of Territory to be Annexed to  Community Facilities 


District No. 2013-1 (Services), Calling an Election, Ordering the Levy 
and Collection of Special Taxes, and Declaring the Election Results 
for CFD 2013-1 (Services), Annexation No. 22 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council 
 


1. Open the public hearing; 
2. Take testimony; 
3. Close the public hearing; 
4. Adopt Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, CALLING AN ELECTION TO SUBMIT 
TO THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS THE QUESTION OF LEVYING A 
SPECIAL TAX WITHIN THE AREA PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED 
TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
(ANNEXATION NO. 22) 
 


5. Hold the election; 
6. Canvass the election; and 
7. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ELECTION RESULTS 
FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 
(SERVICES) (ANNEXATION NO. 22) 


 
BACKGROUND: 
On September 8, 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2021-45, declaring its 
intention to annex territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (the 
“CFD No. 2013-1” or “CFD”) and commence the annexation proceedings for the territory 
to be annexed, also known as Annexation No. 22. A public hearing has been set for 







  
 


  


October 13, 2021 to conduct an election for the landowners and to declare the results of 
that election.   
 
As required by the Resolution of Intention, an annexation map was recorded on 
September 15, 2021, at 10:52 a.m. in Book 87, Page 61, Document No. 2021-0549421 
and the potential annexation area boundary map was recorded on February 18, 2014, 
at 1:17 p.m. in Book 76 Page 68, Document No. 2014-0062326 of Maps of Assessment 
and Community Facilities Districts with the Riverside County Recorder.   
 
The Resolution of Intention was adopted by the City Council in response to a petition 
filed by the property owners, Beazer Homes Holdings Corp., of a residential TR 31667 
containing 37 acres within the City and has requested that the City assist them in 
annexing territory into CFD No. 2013-1 (Services) to cover the costs associated with the 
maintenance of public improvements.  The improvements proposed to be maintained 
include items such as landscaping, lighting, street maintenance, drainage, parks, trails 
maintenance and graffiti abatement.  
 
In addition to maintaining public improvements the CFD No. 2013-1 will include a special 
tax to provide for financing of certain public services to meet increased demands of police 
and fire protection services as a result of the new developments that annex into the CFD. 
 
The area proposed within Annexation No. 22 will encompass 108 residential units in TR 
31667, with a maximum annual tax of $2,175.44 per unit, per year.  The parcel map 
proposed to be annexed into CFD No. 2013-1 will be included in Tax Zone 24.  This tax 
rate includes a Maximum Special Tax A of $1,832.11 per unit per year for maintenance 
services of public facilities, and Maximum Special Tax B of $343.33 per unit per year for 
safety services.  Both of these tax rates are proposed to escalate each year. Maximum 
Special Tax A will increase by the greater of Consumer Price Index (CPI) or 2% and 
Special Tax B will increase by the greater of CPI or 5%. Beazer Homes Holdings Corp., 
has agreed to the annexation into the CFD and submitted a "Consent and Waiver" form 
on file in the City Clerk's Office, to initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-
Roos Act in 1982, requesting the annexation of property to CFD No. 2013-1 (Services) 
and consenting to the shortening of election time requirements, waiving analysis and 
arguments, and waiving all notice requirements relating to the conduct of the election.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The projected levy for FY 2021-22 is $197,867.72 for the first year of maintenance 
services. Special Tax B will generate $37,080 annually once all 108 units are developed.  
 
 
Submitted by: Approved by: 
Dan York Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager/City Engineer City Manager 
 
Attachments:  
Resolution Calling an Election 
Resolution Declaring Results 
 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021-_________ 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, CALLING AN ELECTION 
TO SUBMIT TO THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS THE 
QUESTION OF LEVYING A SPECIAL TAX WITHIN THE 
AREA PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED TO COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
(ANNEXATION NO. 22) 
 


WHEREAS, on February 12, 2014, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of 
Wildomar (the “City”) approved Resolution No. 2014-07 declaring the City’s intention to 
establish Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) of the City of Wildomar, 
County of Riverside, State of California (the "CFD No. 2013-1") for the purpose of 
levying special taxes on parcels of taxable property therein for the purpose of providing 
certain services which are necessary to meet increased demands placed upon the City 
as a result of the development of said real property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council set a public hearing for March 12, 2014, after which the 
Council adopted Resolution No. 2014-09 forming the CFD No. 2013-1 and calling a 
special election at which the questions of levying a special tax and establishing an 
appropriations limit with respect to the CFD No. 2013-1 were submitted to the qualified 
electors within the CFD No. 2013-1; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 12, 2014, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2014-16 
declaring the results of the special election and finding that more than two-thirds (2/3) of 
all votes cast at the special election were cast in favor of the proposition presented, and 
such proposition passed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized by Article 3.5 (commencing with Section 
53339) of Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code as 
amended (the "Act"), to annex territory into an existing community facilities district by 
complying with the procedures set forth in said Article 3.5; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council on September 8, 2021, duly adopted Resolution No. 2021-
45 (the “Resolution of Intention”) declaring its intention to annex certain territory to CFD 
No. 2013-1 (Services) and to levy a special tax within that territory to pay for certain 
services and setting a time and place for the public hearing on the proposed annexation 
for October 13, 2021; and  
 
WHEREAS, the territory proposed to be annexed is identified in the map entitled 
"Annexation Map No. 22 Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services)" a copy of 
which was recorded, on September 15, 2021, in Book 87 of Maps of Assessment and 
Community Facilities Districts at Page 61, in the office of the Riverside County 
Recorder; and 
 







WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act and the Resolution of Intention, a notice of public 
hearing was convened by the City Council on October 13, 2021, not earlier than the 
hour of 6:00 p.m. at the City Hall located at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Wildomar, 
California 92595, relative to the proposed annexation of said territory to CFD No. 2013-
1; and  
 
WHEREAS, written protests have not been filed by fifty percent (50%) or more of the 
registered voters residing within the CFD No 2013-1, or by fifty percent (50%) or more 
of the registered voters residing within the territory to be annexed, or by the owners of 
one-half (1/2) or more of the area within the CFD No. 2013-1, or by the owners of one-
half (1/2) or more of the territory to be annexed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that there are fewer than twelve registered 
voters residing in the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1 and that 
the qualified electors in such territory are the landowners; and 
 
WHEREAS, on the basis of all of the foregoing, the City Council has determined at this 
time to call an election to authorize the annexation of territory to the CFD No. 2013-1 
and the levying of a special tax as described in Exhibit A hereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has received a written instrument from each landowner in 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1 consenting to the 
shortening of election time requirements, waiving analysis and arguments, and waiving 
all notice requirements relating to the conduct of the election; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk has concurred in the election date set forth herein. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, ACTING EX OFFICIO AS THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT 2013-1 (SERVICES) OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1  Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 


Section 2. Conformation of Finding in Resolution of Intention.  The City Council 
reconfirms all of its findings and determinations as set forth in the Resolution of 
Intention.  


Section 3. Findings Regarding Protests.  The City Council finds and determines that 
written protests to the proposed annexation of territory to the CFD No. 2013-1 and the 
levy of the special tax within such territory are insufficient in number and in amount 
under the Act, and the City Council hereby further orders and determines that all such 
protests are hereby overruled. 


Section 4. Findings Regarding Prior Proceedings.  The City Council finds and 
determines that all prior proceedings had and taken by the City Council with respect to 
the annexation of territory to CFD No. 2013-1 are valid and in conformity with the 
requirements of the Act. 







Section 5.   Levy of Special Tax.  As stated in the Resolution of Intention, except 
where funds are otherwise available, subject to the approval of the qualified electors of 
territory proposed to be annexed to CFD No. 2013-1, a special tax sufficient to pay the 
costs of the Services (including incidental expenses as described in the Resolution of 
Intention), secured by recordation of a continuing lien against all nonexempt real 
property in CFD No. 2013-1, will be levied annually in CFD No. 2013-1.  The rate and 
method of apportionment, and manner of collection of the special tax are specified in 
Exhibit A hereto. 


Section 6.   Apportionment of Tax.  The special tax as apportioned to each parcel is 
based on the cost of making the Services available to each parcel, or other reasonable 
basis, and is not based on or upon the ownership of real property. 


Section 7. Tax Roll Preparation.  The office of the Public Works Director, 23873 
Clinton Keith Road., City of Wildomar, is hereby designated as the office that will be 
responsible for annually preparing a current roll of special tax levy obligations by 
assessor’s parcel number and that will be responsible for estimating future special tax 
levies pursuant to Government Code section 53340.2.  The Public Works Director may 
cause these functions to be performed by his or her deputies, assistants, or other 
designated agents. 


Section 8.  Accountability Measures.  Pursuant to Section 50075.1 of the California 
Government Code, the City shall create a separate account into which tax proceeds will 
be deposited; and the Public Works Director annually shall file a report with the City 
Council that will state (a) the amount of funds collected and expended and (b) the status 
of the Services financed in CFD No. 2013-1. 


Section 9.  Special Election; Voting Procedures.  The City Council hereby submits the 
questions of levying the special tax within the territory proposed to be annexed to the 
qualified electors, in accordance with and subject to the Act.  The special election shall 
be held on October 13, 2021, and shall be conducted as follows: 


(a) Qualified Electors.  The City Council hereby determines that the 
Services are necessary to meet increased demands placed upon the City as a result of 
development occurring within the boundaries of CFD No. 2013-1.  Because fewer than 
twelve registered voters resided within the territory proposed to be annexed to CFD No. 
2013-1 on September 8, 2021 (a date within the 90 days preceding the close of the 
public hearing on the territory proposed to be annexed to CFD No. 2013-1), the qualified 
electors shall be the landowners within territory proposed to be annexed, and each 
landowner who was the owner of record at the close of the hearing shall have one vote 
for each acre or portion of an acre of land that such landowner owns within the territory 
proposed to be annexed to CFD No. 2013-1. 


(b) Consolidation of Elections; Combination of Propositions on Ballot.  The 
election on the question of levying the special tax and establishing an appropriations 
limit for CFD No. 2013-1 shall be consolidated, and the two proportions shall be 
combined into a single ballot proposition for submission to the voters, as authorized by 
Government Code Section 53353.5. 







(c) Mail Ballot Election.  Pursuant to Government Code section 53327.5, 
the election shall be conducted as a mail ballot election.  The City Council hereby 
ratifies the City Clerk’s delivery of a ballot to each landowner within the territory 
proposed to be annexed to CFD No. 2013-1.  The City Council hereby ratifies the form 
of the ballot, which is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 


(d) Return of Ballots.  The City Clerk shall accept the ballots of the 
landowners up to 6:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021.  The City Clerk shall have available 
ballots that may be marked at the City Clerk’s office on the election day by voters.  
Once all qualified electors have voted, the City Clerk may close the election. 


(e) Canvass of Election.  The City Clerk shall commence the canvass of 
the returns of the special election as soon as the election is closed (on October 13, 
2021, or when all qualified electors have voted) at the City Clerk’s office.  At the 
conclusion of the canvass, the City Clerk shall declare the results of the election. 


(f) Declaration of Results.  The City Council shall declare the results of the 
special election following the completion of the canvass of the returns and shall cause 
to be inserted into its minutes a statement of the results of the special election as 
ascertained by the canvass of the returns. 


Section 10.  Filing of Resolution and Map with City Clerk.  The City Council hereby 
directs the City Clerk to file a copy of this resolution and the annexation map of the 
boundaries of CFD No. 2013-1 in his/her office. 


 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of October, 2021. 
  
 
 
    
 Dustin Nigg  
 Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Thomas D. Jex  Janet Morales 
City Attorney  City Clerk 
 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021-_________ 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ELECTION 
RESULTS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 
2013-1 (SERVICES) ANNEXATION NO. 22 
 


 
WHEREAS, the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Wildomar (the "City") has 
heretofore conducted proceedings for the area proposed to be annexed to Community 
Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (the "CFD No. 2013-1") of the City of Wildomar, 
including conducting a public hearing pursuant to Section 53339.5 of the Government 
Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, at the conclusion of said public hearing, the City Council adopted a 
resolution calling a special election for October 13, 2021, and submitting to the qualified 
electors of the territory to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1 the question of levying 
special taxes on parcels of taxable property therein for the purpose of providing certain 
services which are necessary to meet increased demands placed upon the City as a 
result of the development of said real property as provided in the form of special 
election ballot; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Certificate of Election Results, attached thereto as Exhibit A, dated 
October 13, 2021, executed by the City Clerk (or, in the absence of the City Clerk, the 
Acting City Clerk – in either case, the “Clerk”), has been filed with this Council, certifying 
that a completed ballot has been returned to the Clerk for each landowner-voter(s) 
eligible to cast a ballot in said special election, with all votes cast as “Yes” votes in favor 
of the ballot measure, and further certifying on said basis that the special mailed-ballot 
election was closed; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Council has received, reviewed and hereby accepts the Clerk’s 
Certificate of Election Results and wishes by this resolution to declare the results of the 
special mailed-ballot election; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR: 
 
Section 1. Recitals.  This Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are 
true and correct.  
 
Section 2. Ballot Measure.  This Council hereby finds, determines and declares that 
the ballot measure submitted to the qualified electors of the territory to be annexed to 
CFD No. 2013-1 has been passed and approved by those qualified electors in 
accordance with Sections 53328 and 53329 of the Government Code. 
 
Section 3. Annexation.  This Council hereby finds, determines and declares that 
pursuant to Section 53339.8 of the Government Code, the City Council is authorized to 
determine that the territory to be annexed has been added to and become a part of the 
CFD No. 2013-1 with full legal effect, and the City Council is also authorized, pursuant 
to said Section 53339.8, to annually levy special taxes within the territory to be annexed 







to pay the costs of the services to be provided by the CFD No. 2013-1 as specified in 
Resolution No. 2021-45 adopted by the City Council on September 8, 2021.  The 
boundaries of the territory annexed are shown on the map entitled, "Annexation Map 
No. 22 Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services)" a copy of which was 
recorded, on September 15, 2021, in Book 87 of Maps of Assessment and Community 
Facilities Districts at Page 61, in the office of the Riverside County Recorder. 
  
Section 4. Notice of Special Tax Lien.  Pursuant to Section 53339.8 of the 
Government Code and Section 3117.5 of the Streets and Highways Code, the City 
Clerk shall cause to be filed with the County Recorder of the County of Riverside an 
amendment of the notice of special tax lien and a map of the amended boundaries of 
the CFD No. 2013-1 including the annexed territory. 
 
Section 5. Effect. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption. 
  


 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of October 2021: 
 
 
 
    
 Dustin Nigg 
 Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Thomas D. Jex      Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk 


 







City of Wildomar    1 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


RATES AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES) 


OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 


A Special Tax  (the “Special Tax”) shall be  levied on and collected  from each Assessor’s Parcel 
(defined below) in Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) (the “CFD No. 2013‐1” or 
“CFD”;  defined  below),  in  each  Fiscal  Year,  (defined  below),  commencing  in  the  Fiscal  Year 
beginning July 1, 2014,  in an amount determined by the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 
acting ex officio as the legislative body of CFD No. 2013‐1, by applying the rates and method of 
apportionment set forth below. All of the real property in CFD No. 2013‐1, unless exempted by 
law or by the provisions herein, shall be taxed to the extent and in the manner provided herein. 


 
A. DEFINITIONS 


 
“Acre” or “Acreage” means the land area of an Assessor’s Parcel as shown on any Assessor’s 
Parcel Map, or if the land area is not shown on the Assessor’s Parcel Map, the land area as 
shown on the applicable Final Map, or if the area is not shown on the applicable Final Map, 
the land area shall be calculated by the Administrator. 


 
“Administrative Expenses” means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related 
to the formation, annexation, and administration of CFD No. 2013‐1 including, but not limited 
to: the costs of computing the Special Taxes and preparing the annual Special Tax collection 
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs to the City, CFD No. 
2013‐1,  or  any  designee  thereof  associated with  fulfilling  the  CFD No.  2013‐1  disclosure 
requirements; the costs associated with responding to public inquiries regarding the Special 
Taxes; the costs of the City, CFD No. 2013‐1 or any designee thereof related to an appeal of 
the  Special  Tax;  and  the  City's  annual  administration  fees  and  third  party  expenses. 
Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts estimated or advanced by  the City or CFD 
No. 2013‐1 for any other administrative purposes of CFD No. 2013‐1, including attorney's fees 
and  other  costs  related  to  commencing  and  pursuing  to  completion  any  foreclosure  of 
delinquent Special Taxes. 


 
“Administrator” means the City Manager of the City of Wildomar, or his or her designee. 


 
“Approved Property” means all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property that are included in a 
Final Map that was recorded prior to the March 1 of preceding the Fiscal Year in which the 
Special Tax is being levied. 


 
“Assessor’s Parcel” means a lot or parcel of land that is identifiable by an Assessor’s Parcel 
Number by the County Assessor of the County of Riverside. 


 
“Assessor’s Parcel Map” means an official map of the Assessor of the County designating 
parcels by Assessor’s Parcel Number. 


 







City of Wildomar    2 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


“Assessor’s Parcel Number” means that  identification number assigned to a parcel by the 
County Assessor of the County. 


 
“Building Square Footage” or “BSF” means the floor area square footage reflected on the 
original construction building permit issued for construction of a building of Non‐Residential 
Property and any Building Square Footage subsequently added to a building of such Taxable 
Property after issuance of a building permit for expansion or renovation of such building. 


 
“CFD” or “CFD No. 2013‐1” means  the City of Wildomar Community Facilities District No. 
2013‐1 (Services). 


 
“City” has the meaning set forth in the preamble. 


 
“County” means the County of Riverside. 


 
“Developed Property” means all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property for which a building 
permit for new construction has been issued on or prior to March 1 preceding the Fiscal Year 
in which the Special Tax is being levied. 


 
“Exempt Property” means all Assessors’ Parcels designated as being exempt from the Special 
Tax as provided for in Section G. 


 
“Final Map” means a subdivision of property by recordation of a final map, parcel map, or lot 
line adjustment, pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act (California Government Code Section 
66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan pursuant to California Civil Code 1352 
that  creates  individual  lots  for  which  building  permits  may  be  issued  without  further 
subdivision. 


 
“Fiscal Year” means the period from and including July 1st of any year to and including the 
following June 30th. 


 
“Land Use Category” means, any of the categories contained in Section B. hereof to which an 
Assessor’s Parcel is assigned consistent with the land use approvals that have been received 
or proposed for the Assessor’s Parcel as of March 1 preceding the Fiscal Year  in which the 
Special Tax is being levied. 


 
“Maximum Special Tax” means the Maximum Special Tax A and/or Maximum Special Tax B, 
as applicable. 


 
“Maximum Special Tax A” means the Maximum Special Tax A, as determined in accordance 
with Section C., below, that can be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel within 
CFD No. 2013‐1. 


 
 
 


 







City of Wildomar    3 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


“Maximum Special Tax B” means the Maximum Special Tax B, as determined in accordance 
with Section C., below, that can be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel within 
CFD No. 2013‐1. 


 
“Multi‐Family Residential Property” means any Assessor’s Parcel of residential property that 
consists of a building or buildings comprised of attached Residential Units available for rental, 
but not purchase, by the general public and under common management. 


 
“Non‐Residential Property” means, all Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property  for which a 
building permit(s) was  issued  for a non‐residential use. The Administrator  shall make  the 
determination if an Assessor’s Parcel is Non‐Residential Property. 


 
“Proportionately” means for Taxable Property that is: (i) Developed Property, that the ratio 
of  the  actual  Special  Tax  levy  to  the Maximum  Special  Tax  is  the  same  for  all Parcels of 
Developed Property, (ii) Approved Property, that the ratio of the actual Special Tax  levy to 
the  Maximum  Special  Tax  is  the  same  for  all  Parcels  of  Approved  Property,  and  (iii) 
Undeveloped Property that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levy per acre to the Maximum 
Special Tax per acre is the same for all Parcels of Undeveloped Property. 


 
“Residential Unit” or "RU" means a residential unit that is used or intended to be used as a 
domicile by one or more persons, as determined by the Administrator. 


 
“Residential  Property”  means  all  Assessor’s  Parcels  of  Taxable  Property  upon  which 
completed Residential Units have been constructed or for which building permits have been 
or may be issued for purposes of constructing one or more Residential Units. 


 
“Service(s)” means  services permitted under  the Mello‐Roos Community  Facilities Act of 
1982 including, without limitation, those services authorized to be funded by CFD No. 2013‐ 
1 as set forth in the documents adopted by the City Council at the time the CFD was formed. 


 
“Single  Family  Residential  Property”  means  any  residential  property  that  consists  of  a 
building comprised of attached or detached residential units available for purchase or rent by 
the general public. 


 
“Special Tax(es)” means the Special Tax A and/or Special Tax B to be levied in each Fiscal Year 
on each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property. 


 
“Special  Tax  A”  means  the  annual  special  tax  to  be  levied  in  each  Fiscal  Year  on  each 
Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Special Tax A Requirement. 


 
“Special  Tax  B”  means  the  annual  special  tax  to  be  levied  in  each  Fiscal  Year  on  each 
Assessor’s Parcel of Developed Property to fund the Special Tax B Requirement. 


 
 







City of Wildomar    4 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


"Special Tax A Requirement" means that amount to be collected in any Fiscal Year to pay for 
certain costs as required to meet the needs of CFD No. 2013‐1 in both the current Fiscal Year 
and the next Fiscal Year. The costs to be covered shall be the direct costs for (i) maintenance 
services including but not limited to (i) maintenance and lighting of parks, parkways, streets, 
roads and open space, (ii) maintenance and operation of water quality  improvements, (iii) 
public street sweeping, (iv) fund an operating reserve for the costs of Services as determined 
by  the Administrator,  and  (v) Administrative  Expenses. Under no  circumstances  shall  the 
Special Tax A Requirement include funds for Bonds. 


 
"Special Tax B Requirement" means that amount to be collected in any Fiscal Year to pay for 
certain costs as required to meet the needs of CFD No. 2013‐1 in both the current Fiscal Year 
and  the  next  Fiscal  Year.  The  costs  to  be  covered  shall  be  the  direct  costs  for  (i)  police 
protection  services,  (ii)  fire  protection  and  suppression  services,  (iii)  fund  an  operating 
reserve for the costs of Services as determined by the Administrator, and (iv) Administrative 
Expenses. Under no  circumstances  shall  the  Special Tax B Requirement  include  funds  for 
Bonds. 


 
"Taxable Property" means all Assessor’s Parcels within CFD No. 2013‐1, which are not Exempt 
Property. 


 
"Tax Zone" means a mutually exclusive geographic area, within which particular Special Tax 
rates may be  levied pursuant  to  this Rate  and Method of Apportionment of  Special Tax. 
Exhibit "C" identifies the Tax Zone in CFD No. 2013‐1 at formation; additional Tax Zones may 
be created when property is annexed into the CFD. 


 
"Tax Zone 1" means the geographic area the specific area  identified on the CFD Boundary 
Map as Tax Zone 1. 


 
"Tax Zone 2" means the geographic area the specific area  identified on the CFD Boundary 
Map as Tax Zone 2. 


 
"Tract(s)" means an area of land within a subdivision identified by a particular tract number 
on a Final Map approved for the subdivision. 


 
“Undeveloped Property” means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as 
Developed Property or Approved Property. 


 
B. ASSIGNMENT TO LAND USE CATEGORIES 


 
For each Fiscal Year, all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property within CFD No. 2013‐1 shall be 
classified as Developed Property, Approved Property, or Undeveloped Property, and shall be 
subject  to  the  levy  of  Special  Taxes  as  determined  pursuant  to  Sections C  and D  below. 
Assessor’s Parcels of Developed Property and Approved Property shall be classified as either 
Residential Property or Non‐Residential Property. 
 
 







City of Wildomar    5 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


C. MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX RATES 
 


1. Special Tax A 
 


For purposes of determining the applicable Maximum Special Tax A for Assessor’s Parcels 
of  Developed  Property  and  Approved  Property  which  are  classified  as  Residential 
Property, all such Assessor’s Parcels shall be assigned the number of Residential Unit(s) 
constructed  or  to  be  constructed  thereon  as  specified  in  or  shown  on  the  building 
permit(s)  issued  or  Final  Map  as  determined  by  the  Administrator.  For  Parcels  of 
undeveloped property zoned for development of single family attached or multi‐family 
units,  the  number  of  Residential  Units  shall  be  determined  by  referencing  the 
condominium plan, apartment plan, site plan or other development plan, or by assigning 
the maximum allowable units permitted based on the underlying zoning for the Parcel. 
Once a single family attached or multi‐family building or buildings have been built on an 
Assessor's Parcel, the Administrator shall determine the actual number of Residential 
Units contained within the building or buildings, and the Special Tax levied against the 
Parcel  in  the next Fiscal Year shall be calculated by multiplying  the actual number of 
Residential Units by the Maximum Special Tax A per Residential Unit identified for the 
Tracts in Table 1 below. 


 
a. Developed Property 


 


(i) Maximum Special Tax A 
 


The Maximum Special Tax A for each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property is shown 
in Table 1 is shall be specific to each Tract within the CFD. When additional property 
is  annexed  into  CFD  No.  2013‐1,  the  rate  and  method  adopted  for  the  annexed 
property shall reflect the Maximum Special Tax for the Tract or Tracts annexed. The 
Maximum Special Tax A  for Fiscal Year 2014‐2015  for a Residential Unit within the 
Tracts are identified in Table 1 below: 


 
TABLE 1 


Maximum Special Tax A Rates 
 


Tax Zone  Tracts  Maximum Special Tax A 


1  32535  $346.00 per Residential Unit 
2  31479  $346.00 per Residential Unit 


 


(ii) Increase in the Maximum Special Tax A 
 


On each July 1, commencing on July 1, 2015 the Maximum Special Tax A for Developed 
Property shall increase by i) the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) since the beginning 
of the preceding Fiscal Year, or ii) by two percent (2.0%), whichever is greater. 


 







City of Wildomar    6 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


(iii) Multiple Land Use Categories 


In some instances an Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property may contain more 
than one Land Use Category. The Maximum Special Tax A that can be levied on an 
Assessor's Parcel shall be the sum of the Maximum Special Tax A that can be levied 
for each Land Use Category  located on that Assessor's Parcel. For an Assessor's 
Parcel that contains more than one land use, the Acreage of such Assessor's Parcel 
shall  be  allocated  to  each  type  of  property  based  on  the  amount  of  Acreage 
designated for each land use as determined by reference to the site plan approved 
for such Assessor's Parcel. The Administrator's allocation to each type of property 
shall be final. 


b. Approved Property 
 


The Maximum Special Tax A for each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property is shown 
in Table 2 is shall be specific to each Tract within the CFD. When additional property 
is  annexed  into  CFD  No.  2013‐1,  the  rate  and  method  adopted  for  the  annexed 
property shall reflect the Maximum Special Tax for the Tract or Tracts annexed. The 
Maximum  Special Tax A  for  Fiscal  Year 2014‐2015 per Residential Unit within  the 
Tracts is identified in Table 2 below: 


 
TABLE 2 


Maximum Special Tax A Rates 
 


Tax Zone  Tracts  Maximum Special Tax A 


1  32535  $346.00 per Residential Unit 
2  31479  $346.00 per Residential Unit 


 


On each July 1, commencing on July 1, 2015 the Maximum Special Tax A for Approved 
Property shall increase by i) the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) since the beginning 
of the preceding Fiscal Year, or ii) by two percent (2.0%), whichever is greater. 


 
c. Undeveloped Property 


 


The Maximum Special Tax A for each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property is shown 
in Table 3 shall be specific to each Tract within the CFD. When additional property is 
annexed into CFD No. 2013‐1, the rate and method adopted for the annexed property 
shall reflect the Maximum Special Tax A for the Tract or Tracts annexed. The Maximum 
Special Tax A  for Fiscal Year 2014‐2015 per acre within  the Tracts are  identified  in 
Table 3 below: 


 
 
 
 







City of Wildomar    7 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


TABLE 3 
Maximum Special Tax A Rates 


 


Tax Zone  Tracts  Maximum Special Tax A 


1  32535  $1,762 per Acre 
2  31479  $1,541 per Acre 


 


On  each  July  1,  commencing  on  July  1,  2015  the  Maximum  Special  Tax  A  for 
Undeveloped Property shall increase by i) the percentage increase in the Consumer 
Price  Index (All  Items)  for Los Angeles  ‐ Riverside  ‐ Orange County  (1982‐84 = 100) 
since  the  beginning  of  the  preceding  Fiscal  Year,  or  ii)  by  two  percent  (2.0%), 
whichever is greater. 


 
2. Special Tax B 


 


The Special Tax B is an annual Special Tax that shall be levied on Developed Property 
to fund the Special Tax Requirement B. 


 
a. Developed Property 


 


(i) Maximum Special Tax B 
 


The Maximum Special Tax B for Fiscal Year 2014‐2015 for each Land Use Class is 
shown in Table 4. When additional property is annexed into CFD No. 2013‐1, the 
rate and method adopted  for  the annexed property shall reflect  the Maximum 
Special Tax B for the Tract or Tracts annexed. 


 
TABLE 4 


Maximum Special Tax B Rates 
 


Land Use Class  Description  Unit  Maximum Special Tax B 
1  Single Family Residential  RU  $244.00 
2  Multi‐Family Residential  RU  $173.00 


 


On each July 1, commencing on July 1, 2015 the Maximum Special Tax B for Developed 
Property  shall  increase by  i)  the percentage  increase  in  the Consumer Price  Index  (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) since the beginning of 
the preceding Fiscal Year, or ii) by five percent (5.0%), whichever is greater. 


 
No Special Tax shall be levied on property which, at the time of adoption of the Resolution 
of Formation for CFD No. 2013‐1, is an Exempt Property. 


 
 
 
 
 
 







City of Wildomar    8 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


D. METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX 
 


1. Special Tax A 
 


Commencing  with  Fiscal  Year  2014‐2015  and  for  each  following  Fiscal  Year,  the 
Council shall determine the Special Tax A Requirement and shall levy the Special Tax 
A on all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property until the aggregate amount of Special 
Tax A equals the Special Tax A Requirement. The Special Tax A shall be levied for each 
Fiscal Year as follows: 


 
First: The Special Tax A shall be  levied Proportionately on all Assessor’s Parcels of 
Developed Property up to 100% of the applicable Maximum Special Tax A to satisfy 
the Special Tax A Requirement; 


 
Second:  If additional moneys are needed to satisfy the Special Tax A Requirement 
after  the  first  step  has  been  completed,  the  Special  Tax  shall  be  levied 
Proportionately on each Parcel of Approved Property at up to 100% of the Maximum 
Special Tax A for Approved Property; 


 
Third: If additional monies are needed to satisfy the Special Tax A Requirement after 
the  first  two  steps  has  been  completed,  the  Special  Tax  A  shall  be  levied 
Proportionately on all Assessor’s Parcels of Undeveloped Property up to 100% of the 
Maximum Special Tax A for Undeveloped Property. 


 
2. Special Tax B 


 


Commencing  with  Fiscal  Year  2014‐2015  and  for  each  following  Fiscal  Year,  the 
Council shall determine the Special Tax B Requirement and shall levy the Special Tax 
B until the aggregate amount of Special Tax B equals the Special Tax B Requirement. 


 
The  Special  Tax  B  shall  be  levied  Proportionately  on  all  Assessor’s  Parcels  of 
Developed Property up to 100% of the applicable Maximum Special Tax B to satisfy 
the Special Tax B Requirement. 


 
E. FUTURE ANNEXATIONS 


 
It is anticipated that additional properties will be annexed to CFD No. 2013‐1 from time 
to time. As each annexation is proposed, an analysis will be prepared to determine the 
annual cost for providing Services. Based on this analysis, the property to be annexed, 
pursuant  to California Government Code section 53339 et seq. will be assigned  to  the 
appropriate Maximum Special Tax rate for the Tract or Tracts when annexed. 


 
 
 
 
 







City of Wildomar    9 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


F. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX 
 


For each Fiscal Year, the Special Taxes shall be  levied as  long as the Services are being 
provided. 


 
G. EXEMPTIONS 


 


The City shall classify as Exempt Property within CFD No. 2013‐1, any Assessor’s Parcel in 
any of  the  following categories;  (i) Assessor’s Parcels which are owned by,  irrevocably 
offered  for  dedication,  encumbered  by  or  restricted  in  use  by  any  public  entity;  (ii) 
Assessor’s Parcels with public or utility easements making impractical their utilization for 
other  than  the  purposes  set  forth  in  the  easement;  (iii) Assessor’s  Parcels which  are 
privately owned but are encumbered by or restricted solely for public uses; or (iv) any 
Assessor’s Parcel which is in use in the performance of a public function as determined by 
the Administrator. 


 
H. APPEALS 


 
Any property owner claiming that the amount or application of the Special Taxes are not 
correct may file a written notice of appeal with the City not later than twelve months after 
having paid the first installment of the Special Tax(es) that is disputed. A representative(s) 
of CFD No. 2013‐1  shall promptly  review  the appeal, and  if necessary, meet with  the 
property owner, consider written and oral evidence regarding the amount of the Special 
Tax, and rule on the appeal. If the representative’s decision requires that the Special Tax 
for an Assessor’s Parcel be modified or changed  in favor of the property owner, a cash 
refund shall not be made, but an adjustment shall be made to the Special Tax on that 
Assessor’s Parcel in the subsequent Fiscal Year(s). 


 
I. MANNER OF COLLECTION 


 


The Special Tax(es) shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary 
ad  valorem  property  taxes,  provided,  however,  that  CFD No.  2013‐1 may  collect  the 
Special Tax at a different time or in a different manner if necessary to meet its financial 
obligations. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







City of Wildomar    10 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


EXHIBIT A 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES)  


COST ESTIMATE 


Maintenance  Services  ‐  The  estimate  breaks  down  the  costs  of  providing  one  year's 
maintenance services for FY 2021‐2022. These services are being funded by the levy of Special 
Tax A for Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1. 


TAX ZONE 24 – Annexation 22 
TR 31667 


 


Item  Description  Estimated Cost 


1    Landscaping                        $78,584  
2  Lighting  $10,301 


3  Streets  $20,490 


4  Drainage   $7,577 


5  Parks  $23,170 


6  Trails  $10,794 


7  Graffiti  $14,838 


8  Reserves  $15,539 


9  Administration  $16,575 


Total   $197,868 


 
Safety Services ‐ It is estimated that the cost of providing police and fire protection services 
being funded by Special Tax B for the Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) as 
outlined in Exhibit “B” hereto, will be as follows for the first year: 


 $343.33 per residential unit 







City of Wildomar    11 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


TAX ZONE SUMMARY 
 


 
Annexation 


Tax 
Zone 


 
Tract 


Fiscal 
Year 


Maximum 
Special Tax A 


Maximum 
Special Tax 


B 


 
Subdivider 


Original  1  32535  2014‐15  $346.00 / RU  $244.00 / RU  CV Communities LLC 


Original  2  31479  2014‐15  $346.00 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Rancon Equity 
Partners III 


1  3  25122/ 
32078  2015‐16  $346.00 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Rancho Fortunado 


Inv, LLC 


2  4  PM 16803  2015‐16  $51.41 / Acre  N/A  Moralez Enterprises, 
LLC 


3  5  36497  2015‐16  $522.27 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Lennar Homes of 
California, Inc. 


4  6  PM 36492  2015‐16  $766.14 / Acre  N/A  Rancon Medical and 
Education Center, LLC 


5  7  29476  2016‐17  $688.60 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Alta Colina, LLC 


6  8  36519  2016‐17  $777.35 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Keusder, LLC / MSL 
Orange, Inc. 


7  9  PP 10‐0222  2016‐17  $7,650.78 / RU  N/A  Plaza de Bundy 
Canyon, LLC 


8  10  32206  2016‐17  $633.51 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Wildomar Land, LLC 


9  11  PM 36080  2018‐19  $3,302.61 / Acre  N/A  CK‐HS Partners, LLC / 
SNDH Partners, LLC 


10  12  PM 32833  2017‐18  $1,418.22 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Wildomar Housing 
Partners, LLC 


11  13  PM 36653  2017‐18  $333.00 / RU  $282.46 / RU  Benson Residential 


12  14  LLA 2016‐
005  2018‐19  $2,325.03 / Acre  N/A  Sunbelt Rentals 


13  15 
CUP/PP 15‐


0013  2019‐20  $3,330.26/Acre  N/A  Clinton Keith Village 


14  16  CUP 16‐
0095 


2019‐20  $1,513.72/Acre  N/A 
Big Easy RV Boat 


Storage 


15  17  TR 32726  2019‐20  $1,012.37 / RU  $311.41 / RU 
Hacienda Properties, 


LLC 


16  18  PM 32257  2019‐20  $3,301.26/Acre  N/A 
Tesoro Refining & 
Marketing Co LLC 


17  19  TR 32024  2019‐20  $1,073.91/RU  $311.41/RU 
KB Home Coastal 


 Inc. 


18  20  PM 36492  2019‐20  $2,503.60/ 
Acre 


N/A 
Rancon Medical and 


Education Center, LLC 


19  21  PA 16‐0138  2019‐20  $253.39/ Acre  N/A 
Smith Ranch Storage., 


 LLC 


20  22  PM 37276  2020‐21  $1,253.44 / RU  $326.98 / RU  Thanh T. Tran 


21  23  TR 32035  2021‐22  $1,830.03 / RU  $343.33 / RU 
Omni Financial, LLC,  


et al 


22  24  TR 31667  2021‐22  $1,832.11 / RU  $343.33 / RU 
Beazer Homes Holding 


Corp. 







City of Wildomar    12 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


 
 
APPROVED PROPERTY 


 


 
Annexation 


Tax 
Zone 


 
Tract 


Fiscal 
Year 


Maximum 
Special Tax A 


Subdivider 


22  24  TR 31667  2021‐22  $1,832.11 / RU  Beazer Homes Holding Corp. 


 
UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY 


 


 
Annexation 


Tax 
Zone 


 
Tract 


Fiscal 
Year 


Maximum 
Special Tax A 


Subdivider 


22  24  TR 31667  2021‐22  $5,347.78 / Acre  Beazer Homes Holding Corp. 


 


 


ESCALATION OF MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES 
 


Maximum  Special  Tax A  ‐ On each  July 1,  the Maximum  Special  Tax A  for Developed 
Property,  Approved  Property  and  Undeveloped  Property  shall  increase  by  i)  the 
percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (All Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ 
Orange County (1982‐84  = 100) for the calendar year ending in March of the prior Fiscal 
Year, or ii) by two percent (2.0%), whichever is greater. 


 
Maximum  Special  Tax B  ‐ On  each  July  1,  the Maximum  Special  Tax B  for Developed 
Property  shall  increase by  i)  the percentage  increase  in  the Consumer Price  Index  (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) for the calendar year 
ending in March of the prior Fiscal Year, or ii) by five percent (5.0%), whichever is greater. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   







City of Wildomar    13 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


EXHIBIT B 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES) 


DESCRIPTION OF AUTHORIZED SERVICES 


The services which may be funded with proceeds of the special tax of CFD No. 2013‐1, as provided by 
Section  53313  of  the  Act,  will  include  all  costs  attributable  to  maintaining,  servicing,  cleaning, 
repairing and/or replacing landscaped areas (may include reserves for replacement) in public street 
right‐of‐ways, public  landscaping, public open  spaces and other  similar  landscaped areas officially 
dedicated for public use. In addition, the services which may include some or all costs attributable to 
police protection, and fire services. These services including the following: 
 


(a) maintenance and lighting of parks, parkways, streets, roads and open space, which 
maintenance and lighting services may include, without limitation, furnishing of electrical power to 
street lights; repair and replacement of damaged or inoperative light bulbs, fixtures and standards; 
maintenance (including irrigation and replacement) of landscaping vegetation situated on or adjacent 
to parks, parkways,  streets,  roads and open  space; maintenance and  repair of  irrigation  facilities; 
maintenance of public signage; graffiti removal from and maintenance and repair of public structures 
situated on parks, parkways, streets, roads and open space; maintenance and repair of playground or 
recreation program equipment or facilities situated on any park; and 
 


(b) maintenance  and  operation  of  water  quality  improvements  which  include  storm 
drainage  and  flood protection  facilities,  including, without  limitation, drainage  inlets,  catch basin 
inserts, infiltration basins, flood control channels, fossil fuel filters, and similar facilities. Maintenance 
services may include but is not limited to the repair, removal or replacement of all or part of any of 
the water quality improvements, fossil fuel filters within the public right‐of‐way including the removal 
of petroleum hydrocarbons and other pollutants from water runoff, or appurtenant facilities, clearing 
of  inlets and outlets; erosion repairs; and cleanup to  improvements, and other  items necessary for 
the maintenance, servicing; or both of  the water quality basin  improvements within  flood control 
channel improvements; and 
 


(c) public street sweeping, on the segments of the arterials within the boundaries of CFD 
No. 2013‐1; as well as local roads within residential subdivisions located within CFD No. 2013‐1; and 
any portions adjacent to the properties within CFD No. 2013‐1; and 
 


(d) police protection services, including but not limited to criminal justice services, and 
fire protection and suppression services. 
 
In addition to payment of the cost and expense of the forgoing services, proceeds of the special tax 
may be expended to pay “Administrative Expenses,” as said term is defined in the Rate and Method 
of Apportionment. 
 
The above services shall be limited to those provided within the boundaries of CFD No. 2013‐1 or for 
the benefit of the properties within the boundaries of CFD No. 2013‐1, as the boundary is expanded 
from time to time by anticipated annexations, and said services may be financed by proceeds of the 
special tax of CFD No. 2013‐1 only to the extent that they are  in addition to those provided  in the 
territory of CFD No. 2013‐1 before CFD No. 2013‐1 was created. 


   







City of Wildomar    14 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


 
 


  EXHIBIT C 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES) 


                PROPOSED BOUNDARIES 
 
 



















SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 


ANNEXATION NO. 22 


 


      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 22 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Beazer Homes Holdings Corp 37 37 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 6:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 


City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 


Beazer Homes Holdings, Corp 
Attn: Christopher Courtney 
310 Commerce, Suite 150 
Irvine, CA  92602 


380-060-007 
380-060-008 


 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 22 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 22 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Beazer Homes Holdings, Corp. 
Christopher Courtney 
Senior Project Manager  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 


 







 


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 


ANNEXATION NO. 22 
 


 
CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION RESULTS 


 
                         I, the undersigned, being the Deputy City Clerk or the Acting City Clerk, as the 
case may be, hereby certify:  


In connection with the special mailed-ballot election called by the City Council 
(the “City Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”) on this same date in the proceedings of 
the City Council for the annexation of territory to the above-entitled community facilities district, I 
personally received (a) a signed and dated waiver and consent form and (b) a signed, dated 
and marked election ballot(s) on behalf of the owner(s) listed below, the entity named as the 
sole landowner of the land within the boundary of the above-entitled community facilities district 
in the Certificate Regarding Registered Voters and Landowners, dated September 8, 2021, and 
on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City in connection with the City Council actions on that 
date. Copies of the completed waiver and consent form and the completed ballot received by 
me and on file in my office are attached hereto.   


Following such receipt, I have personally, and in the presence of all persons 
present, reviewed the ballot to confirm that it is properly marked and signed, and I hereby certify 
the result of that count to be that the ballot was cast in favor of the measure. 


Based upon the foregoing, all votes that were cast having been cast “Yes”, in 
favor of the ballot measure, the measure has therefore passed.  


Landowner 
Qualified 


Landowner Votes Votes Cast YES NO 


Beazer Homes Holdings Corp. 37 37   


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that 
the foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on ____________, 2021. 


      Janet Morales 
 City Clerk 
      City of Wildomar 
 
 By:    


               
 


(Attach completed copies of Waiver/Consent and Ballots) 







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING ANNEXATION OF 
PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY 
THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
 


1.  The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, initiate 
and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 (the 
“Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property described 
below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the annual levy of 
special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by Community 
Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services). 


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide any 


services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition.   


 
3.  The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite their 


signatures, the landowner listed herein is the owner of all the property within the proposed 
boundaries of the property described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 
 


4.  The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 
authorize the special taxes for the community facilities district.  The undersigned waives any 
requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly agrees that said 
election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned as quickly as 
possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and the 
undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5.  Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot. The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 
California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 
 







Petition Form 


6.  The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all claims 
based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or other 
laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no step or 
action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community facilities 
district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special election 
therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___. 
  
 BEAZER HOMES HOLDING CORP.,  
 a Delaware corporation 
 


   
       
  By:_____________________ 


  Name:   
  Title:   


 
  
  
 OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
 TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 
 or PROJECT NO. 31667   


  
 OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 


  
 310 Commerce, Suite 150  
 Irvine, CA 92602     
  
  


FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___. 


 
 


 ______________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk of the City Council 
of the City of Wildomar 


 


Christopher P. Courtney


Authorized Signatory - West Region







Acknowledgement Form 


ACKNOWLEDGMENT REGARDING PROPERTY TO BE INCLUDED INTO  
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES)  


OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 


The developer/property owner of (Assessor’s Parcel Nos.) 380-060-007 and -008 hereby 
acknowledges that: 
 


If the landscaping, drainage, lighting and eligible public improvements within the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) the maintenance areas of (Assessor’s Parcel 
Nos.) 380-060-007 and -008, which is to be included in the Community Facilities District of the 
City of Wildomar, are completed prior to the levy and collection of special taxes upon property 
within said tract for the maintenance of such landscape and improvements, the developer/property 
owner will continue to be responsible for and will maintain the landscaping, drainage, lighting, 
and eligible public improvements within such maintenance areas at its sole expense, and the City 
will not assume responsibility for the maintenance of such landscaping, drainage, lighting and 
eligible public improvements until such time as the City is able to collect such special taxes to pay 
the costs of the maintenance of such landscaping, drainage, lighting, and eligible public 
improvements. 


 
 


DATED:   OWNER(S): 
___________________   
 ______________________________ 


 (Print Name) 
 


 
 ______________________________ 


 (Signature) 
 


 ______________________________ 
 (Title) 


 


   
 ______________________________ 


 (Print Name) 
 


 
 ______________________________ 


 (Signature) 
 


 ______________________________ 
 (Title) 


 


Christopher P. Courtney


Authorized Signatory - West Region


6/4/2021















kelly chiene

Typewritten Text

Exhibit B







































CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #2.3 


PUBLIC HEARING 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 


 


TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council  
 
FROM: Matthew Bassi, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: General Plan Amendment No. 2021-03 – The 2021/2029 Housing & Safety 


Element Update 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission recommends the City Council take the following actions: 
 


1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING AN ADDENDUM TO THE 
2013/2021 HOUSING ELEMENT PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL 


IMPACT REPORT (SCH# 2013051001) CERTIFIED ON 
DECEMBER 11, 2013 IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15164 
OF THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) 


GUIDELINES 
 


2. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING GENERAL PLAN 


AMENDMENT NO. 2021-03 ADOPTING THE 2021/2029 
HOUSING ELEMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH CALIFORNIA 


GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 65580 THROUGH 65589, AND 
ADOPTING THE 2021/2029 SAFETY ELEMENT IN 


ACCORDANCE WITH CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTION 65302(G) 


BACKGROUND: 


Planning Commission Action: 
The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed Addendum to the 2013/2021 Housing 
Element EIR (SCH# 2013051001) and 2021/2029 Housing Element and Safety Element 
update at its August 18, 2021 meeting.  Staff provided a detailed power point presentation 







for the Commission and general public.  There was one (1) public speaker (Mr. George 
Taylor) expressing concerns about fire safety in the Farm Community and whether the 
Safety Element addressed this.  Staff responded in the affirmative and stressed the 
importance of fire safety and emergency access in this specific plan area and the 
proposed policy of pursuing the Sunset Road extension through the Farm community 
southwards to Clinton Keith Road.  
 
The Planning Commission did not have any comments about the Housing Element or 
Safety Element documents except to say both elements were well written and 
comprehensive.  Thus, the Commission voted 4-0-1 (Lloyd Absent) to adopt PC 
Resolution No. 2021-15 and 2021-16 recommending City Council adoption of the 
Addendum to the 2013/2021 Housing Element EIR (SCH# 2013051001) and approval of 
General Plan Amendment No. 2021-03 adopting the 2021/2029 Housing Element in 
accordance with California Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589, and the 
2021/2029 Safety Element Update in accordance with California Government Code 
Section 65302(G). 


Housing Element 
The Housing Element is one of seven (7) State-mandated elements that comprise the 
City’s General Plan and that serves as a policy document to assess housing 
characteristics, community needs and establishes programs to meet those needs. 
California State law requires cities to update the Housing Element periodically.  The City’s 
current Housing Element was adopted in December 2013 by City Council, and is required 
to adopt an updated version for the 2021-2029 HCD planning period (i.e., 6th Cycle) by 
October 15, 2021.   


Safety Element  
In addition to the regularly-scheduled update to the Housing Element, state law requires 
all cities to include climate adaptation and resiliency strategies in the Safety Element of 
the General Plan.  The Safety Element, unlike the objectives of the Housing Element, 
focuses on the comprehensive strategy to reduce both short-term and long-term potential 
for harm from various threats to community health and safety.  While the City has adopted 
a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP), the Safety Element has not been updated since 
the City incorporated. The Safety Element must be updated to include more information 
about wildfire risks in the community, how to improve wildfire safety and to 
comprehensively address the short-term and long-term threats posed by climate change. 
Issues associated with flooding, wildfire, and climate adaptation are required to be 
addressed in the Safety Element. State law requires the Safety Element to be reviewed 
and revised, as necessary, in conjunction with each update to the Housing Element. 


Environmental Justice 
In 2016, the Legislature passed, and Governor Brown signed Senate Bill 1000 (Leyva, 
Chapter 587), requiring cities and counties that have disadvantaged communities to 
incorporate environmental justice (EJ) policies into their General Plans, either in a 
separate EJ element or by integrating related goals, policies, and objectives throughout 
the other elements.  This update, or revision if the local government already has EJ goals, 
policies, and objectives, must happen “upon the adoption or next revision of two or more 







elements of the general plan concurrently on, or after, January 1, 2018.”  The Housing 
and Safety Element updates trigger the requirements of SB 1000. 


DISCUSSION / ANALYSIS: 
The City’s first Housing Element update was approved by the City Council, upon 
recommendation of the Planning Commission, on December 11, 2013.  The Housing 
Element was reviewed by HCD and certified in January 2014.  Adoption of the 2021/2029 
Housing Element is required in accordance with California Government Code Sections 
65580 through 65589, while the 2021/2029 Safety Element is required in accordance with 
California Government Code Section 65302(g).   
 
Housing Element Discussion: 
The purpose of the Housing Element is to identify housing solutions for our local housing 
problems and to meet or exceed the City’s regional housing needs allocation. The City 
recognizes that housing is a need that is met through many resources and interest groups. 
This Housing Element establishes the local goals, policies, and actions (programs) the 
City will implement and/or facilitate to help address our identified housing issues. 
 
State Housing Element law requires the Housing Element to be consistent and compatible 
with other General Plan elements. The Housing Element should provide clear policy 
direction for making decisions pertaining to zoning, subdivision approval, housing 
allocations, and capital improvements. State law (California Government Code Sections 
65580 through 65589) mandates the content of the Housing Element and requires an 
analysis of: 


• Population and employment trends 
• The City’s fair share of the regional housing needs 
• Household characteristics 
• An inventory of land suitable for residential development 
• Governmental and non-governmental constraints on the improvement, 


maintenance, and development of housing 
• Special housing needs 
• Opportunities for energy conservation 
• Publicly assisted housing developments that may convert to non-assisted housing 


developments 


The purpose of these requirements is to develop an understanding of the existing and 
projected housing needs within the community and to set forth policies and schedules 
promoting the preservation, improvement, and development of diverse housing types 
available at a range of costs in Wildomar. 
 
State law requires that “the general plan and elements and parts thereof comprise an 
integrated, internally consistent, and compatible statement of policies.” The purpose of 
requiring internal consistency is to avoid policy conflict and provide a clear policy guide 
for the future maintenance, improvement, and development of housing within the city. All 







elements of the Wildomar General Plan have been reviewed for consistency in 
coordination with the update to the Housing Element. The City will continue to review and 
revise the Housing Element as necessary, to maintain General Plan consistency.   
 
Concurrently with the Housing Element update the City is evaluating and amending as 
needed the Safety Element of the General Plan to include analysis and policies regarding 
flood hazard and management information, per Assembly Bill (AB) 162 (California 
Government Code Section 65302). Additionally, the City is aware of Government Code 
Section 65302(h) requirements related to environmental justice and are addressing the 
requirements along with the Housing Element update. 
 
The first step in addressing state housing needs is the Regional Housing Needs Plan, 
which is mandated by the State of California (California Government Code Section 65584) 
and requires cities and counties to plan for housing across all income categories based 
on future growth projections for the area. The California Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HCD) allocates regional housing needs numbers to regional 
councils of governments throughout the state. The Regional Housing Needs Plan for 
Riverside County is developed by the Southern California Association of Governments 
(SCAG) and allocates to cities and the unincorporated county their “fair share” of the 
region’s projected housing needs, also known as the Regional Housing Needs Allocation 
(RHNA). 
 
The Regional Housing Needs Plan allocates the RHNA based on household income 
groupings over the five-year planning period for each specific jurisdiction’s Housing 
Element.  On March 4, 2021, SCAG adopted the Final RHNA Plan for the 2021-2029 
planning period. The allocation for the City of Wildomar is a total of 2,715 housing units. 
The City must identify sites to accommodate these units in the Housing Element.  While 
the Housing Element contains numerous policies designed to encourage housing at all 
income levels, it’s the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) that is the core of the 
element.  The City is required to show adequate sites of sufficient density to 
accommodate the RHNA for the 2021-2029 period.  The RHNA for the City is allocated 
by SCAG and is shown in Table 1 below. 
 


Table 1 – Regional Housing Needs Allocation and Income Groups 
 


Income Group Income Range RHNA 
Very Low Income: 
(<50% of Median Income) Less than $37,650 796 units 


Low Income: 
(50-80% of Median Income) $37,651 – $60,250 449 units 


Moderate Income: 
(81-120% of Median Income) $60,251 – $90,350 433 units 


Above Moderate Income: 
(>120% of Median Income) $90,351 or more 1,031 units 


Total  2,709 units 







Our review of the vacant land for the City shows that there are adequate sites at the 
required density to meet the City’s RHNA for this 6th cycle housing element update.  Unlike 
many cities in the area, the City will not need to rezone land to meet the housing 
obligations in this Housing Element update.  A copy of the proposed Housing Element 
document, which has been thoroughly reviewed by HCD, is provided for Council 
consideration in Attachment B, Exhibit 1. 


Safety Element Discussion: 
The Safety Element conveys the City of Wildomar’s (City’s) goals, policies, and actions 
to minimize the hazards to safety in and around Wildomar. This Safety Element will 
replace the 2003 County/City Safety Element upon adoption. It identifies the natural and 
human-caused hazards that affect existing and future development and provides 
guidelines for protecting residents, employees, visitors, and other community members 
from injury and death. It describes present and expected future conditions and sets 
policies and standards for improved public safety. The Safety Element also seeks to 
minimize physical harm to the buildings and infrastructure in and around Wildomar to 
reduce damage to local economic systems, community services, and ecosystems.  
 
Some degree of risk is inevitable because the potential for many disasters cannot be 
completely eliminated and the ability to predict such disasters is limited. The goal of the 
Safety Element is to reduce the risk of injury, death, property loss, and other hardships to 
acceptable levels.  One of the fundamental values of the Vision for Wildomar, as adopted 
by the City Council on April 12, 2017 (via Resolution No. 2017-12), highlights the 
importance of safety to the people of Wildomar: 
 


“The City of Wildomar will be a safe and active community with responsible 
growth and quality infrastructure while keeping a hometown feel.” 


 
This “value” underlies the policy direction of the Safety Element and is further defined by 
the following Vision statement: 
 


“Considerable protection from natural hazards such as earthquakes, fire, 
flooding, slope failure, and other hazardous conditions is now built into the 
pattern of development authorized by the General Plan.” 


 
Based on the direction provided by the Vision, and in compliance with state law, the 
primary objective of the Safety Element is to “reduce death, injuries, property damage, 
and economic and social impact from hazards.”  The Safety Element serves the following 
functions: 


• Develops a framework by which safety considerations are introduced into the land use 
planning process. 


• Facilitates the identification and mitigation of hazards for new development, and thus 
strengthens existing codes, project review, and permitting processes. 


• Presents policies directed at identifying and reducing hazards in existing development. 







• Strengthens earthquake, flood, inundation, and wildland fire preparedness planning 
and post-disaster reconstruction policies. 


• Identifies how hazards are likely to increase in frequency and intensity in the future 
and provides policies to increase community resilience.  


 
Under state law, all counties and incorporated communities in California must prepare a 
General Plan, which must address several topics, one of which is public health and safety. 
The Safety Element addresses this topic in accordance with state requirements, which 
are laid out in California law, particularly Section 65302(g) of the California Government 
Code. State law requires that the Safety Element address the following:  


• Protect the community from risks associated with a variety of hazards, including 
seismic activity, landslides, flooding, and wildfire, as required by the California 
Government Code Section 65302(g)(1). 


• Map and assess the risk associated with flood hazards, develop policies to minimize 
the flood risk to new development and essential public facilities, and establish effective 
working relationships among agencies with flood protection responsibilities, as 
required by California Government Code Section 65302(g)(2). 


• Map and assess the risk associated with wildfire hazards, develop policies to reduce 
the wildfire risk to new land uses and essential facilities, ensure there is adequate 
road and water infrastructure to respond to wildfire emergencies, and establish 
cooperative relationships between wildfire protection agencies, as required by 
California Government Code Section 65302(g)(3). 


• Assess the risks associated with climate change on local assets, populations, and 
resources. Note existing and planned development in at-risk areas and identify 
agencies responsible for providing public health and safety and environmental 
protection. Develop goals, policies, and objectives to reduce the risks associated with 
climate change impacts, including locating new public facilities outside of at-risk areas, 
providing adequate infrastructure in at-risk areas, and supporting natural infrastructure 
for climate adaptation, as required by California Government Code Section 
65302(g)(4). 


• Identify residential developments in any hazard area identified that do not have at 
least two emergency evacuation routes, as required by California Government Code 
Section 65302(g)(5). 


 
Because the City has adopted a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP), much of the 
information and direction about safety can be brought directly into the updated Safety 
Element.  Other regulatory items will also be addressed such as including flooding and 
wildfire maps.  The City’s existing safety element includes policies that cover nearly every 
potential hazard.  All existing policies will be reviewed, edits recommended, and the draft 
element submitted to CalFire for review prior to adoption.  A copy of the proposed Safety 
Element document, which has been thoroughly reviewed by Cal Fire, is provided for 
Council consideration in Attachment B, Exhibit 2. 







FINDINGS OF FACT: 


General Plan Amendment No. 2021-03 Findings: 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65350 – 65362 and Chapter 17.08 of the 
Wildomar Municipal Code, the Planning Commission has recommended City Council 
make the following findings to approve General Plan Amendment No. 2021-03 for the 
2021/2029 Housing Element and Safety Element project. 
 
A. The proposed general plan amendment does not involve a change in or conflict 


with the City of Wildomar Vision; any planning principles set forth in General Plan 
(Appendix B); or any foundation component designation in the General Plan. 
 
Evidence:  Adoption of the GPA 2021-03 for the 2021/2029 Housing and Safety 
Element updates does not involve any land use changes to any properties in the 
City of Wildomar.  Further, GPA 2021-03 will not result in a change in or conflict 
with the City of Wildomar Vision in that adoption of the 2021/2029 Housing and 
Safety Element updates further the goals of the General Plan Vision requiring 
housing opportunities for all residents of the City regardless of economic or income 
status.  Further, adoption of the Housing Element and the proposed land use 
amendments will not change any foundation component designation as the 
proposed changes fall within the “Community Development” Foundation category.  


 
B. The proposed general plan amendment would either contribute to the purpose of 


the General Plan or, at a minimum, would not be detrimental to them. 
 


Evidence:  Adoption of the GPA 2021-03 for the 2021/2029 Housing and Safety 
Element updates contributes to the purpose of the General Plan in that 
implementation of the propose Housing and Safety Element goals, policies and 
programs will create housing opportunities in a safe environment for all residents 
of the City regardless of economic or income status.  The proposed GPA also 
furthers, and maintains, the following land use and housing element policies 
related to the proposed project: 
 
H-1.1 The proposed Adoption of the GPA 2021-03 for the 2021/2029 Housing 


Element updates will help ensure a sufficient supply of properly planned 
land to meet and maintain housing needs identified in the City’s Regional 
Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) required in the 2021/2029 Housing 
Element.  


 
C. The proposed general plan amendment is required to comply with an update to the 


Housing Element or change in state housing element law. 
 


Evidence:  Adoption of the GPA 2021-03 for the 2021/2029 Housing and Safety 
Element updates are a direct result of the state mandate requiring an update to the 
City’s Housing and Safety Elements in accordance with California Government 
Code Sections 65580 through 65589, and California Government Code Section 







65302(G), respectively. In summary, Programs Nos. H-9.1, H-13.3 and H-1.1, are 
outlined in Zoning Ordinance Amendments No. 13-04, 13-05 and 13-06, 
respectively.  The remaining programs are being proposed under Zoning 
Ordinance Amendment No. 13-03.  By adopting these amendments 
simultaneously along with the Housing Element, no further amendments will have 
to be completed.  Further, as part of the draft Housing Element review by HCD, 
they were supportive of this approach. 


CEQA/Environmental Analysis & Findings 
The City Council originally adopted Council Resolution No. 2013-46 on December 11, 
2013 certifying the final Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2013051001) and Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program for the 2013/2021 Housing Element Update project. 
As the 2021/2029 Housing and Safety Elements are an update to the project evaluated 
in the 2013 EIR, the City evaluated the scope of these updates to determine what 
subsequent environmental review, if any, would be needed. 
 
The Planning Department has determined that the 2021/2029 Housing Element and 
Safety Element meets the criteria for an Addendum to the 2013/2021 Housing Element 
EIR in accordance with Sections 15162 and 15164 of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) Guidelines.  The Planning Department has further concluded that the EIR for 
the original 2013/2021 Housing Element Update project fully analyzed and mitigated, 
where feasible, all potentially significant environmental impacts that could result from 
approval of the 2021/2029 Housing Element and Safety Element updates.  Therefore, it 
was determined that no subsequent EIR would be required, and adoption of an 
Addendum to the 2013 Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2013051001) for the 
2013/2021 Housing Element is appropriate for the 2021/2029 Housing Element and 
Safety Element. 
 
Therefore, the Planning Commission has recommended the City Council, in light of the 
whole record before it, including but not limited to, the Addendum to the 2013/2021 
Housing Element project Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2013051001) for the 
2021/2029 Housing Element and Safety Element updates and all documents incorporated 
by reference therein, any comments received and responses provided, and other 
substantial evidence (within the meaning of Public Resources Code § 21080(e) and § 
21082.2) within the record and/or provided at the public hearing, finds and determines 
that subsequent EIR is not required under CEQA Guideline Section 15162 based upon 
the following: 


(1) Substantial changes are not proposed in the 2021/2029 Housing Element 
and Safety Element updates which would require major revisions of the 
previous 2013/2021 Housing Element project Environmental Impact Report 
(SCH# 2013051001) due to the involvement of new significant environmental 
effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified 
significant effects. 


(2) Substantial changes have not occurred in the 2021/2029 Housing Element 
and Safety Element updates with respect to the circumstances under which 







the original 2013/2021 Housing Element project Environmental Impact 
Report (SCH# 2013051001) was undertaken which would require major 
revisions of this original EIR due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 
identified significant effects. 


(3) No new information for the 2021/2029 Housing Element and Safety Element 
updates of substantial importance has come to light, which was not known 
and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at 
the time the 2013/2021 Housing Element project Environmental Impact 
Report (SCH# 2013051001) was certified showing any of the following: 
(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the 


previous EIR; 
(B) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more 


severe than shown in the previous EIR; 
(C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible 


would in fact be feasible, and would substantially reduce one or more 
significant effects of the project, but the project proponents decline to 
adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or 


(D) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different 
from those analyzed in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one 
or more significant effects on the environment, but the project 
proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 


PUBLIC NOTICING: 
in accordance with Section 17.192.040 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, the Planning 
Department on October 1, 2021 published a legal notice in the “Press Enterprise”, a local 
newspaper of general circulation, notifying the general public of the of the October 13, 
2021 City Council meeting at which time the City Council would consider the Planning 
Commission’s recommendation to approve General Plan Amendment No. 2021-03 
adopting the 2021/2029 Housing Element in accordance with California Government 
Code Sections 65580 through 65589, and the 2021/2029 Safety Element Update in 
accordance with California Government Code Section 65302(G).  As this project is not a 
developer project, the provisions of Ordinance No. 135 requiring public hearing sign board 
does not apply.   


CONCLUSION: 
The proposed 2021/2029 Housing Element and Safety Element update project is a big 
step for the City in its efforts to comply with new state housing laws.  The proposed goals, 
policies and programs in both documents are a key component to successfully 
implementing the programs required by the State of California related to Housing and 
Safety.  With the ultimate adoption of the project and all resolutions, the City will not be 
required to update its Housing Element again until the 7th cycle process which is estimated 
to begin the year 2029. 
 







Respectfully Submitted,   Reviewed By, 
Gary Nordquist    Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager     City Attorney 


ATTACHMENTS: 
A. City Council Resolution for EIR Addendum 


Exhibit 1  -  Housing/Safety Element EIR Addendum 
B. PC Resolution No. 2021-16 – GPA No. 2021-03 Resolution 


Exhibit 1 – 2021 / 2029 Housing Element Document  
Exhibit 2 – 2021 / 2029 Safety Element Document 


INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE THE FOLLOWING: 
• City of Wildomar General Plan and General Plan EIR 
• City of Wildomar 2013/2021 Housing Element EIR 
• City of Wildomar 2013/2021 Housing Element  







ATTACHMENT A 
 


Council Resolution 
Addendum to 2013 Housing Element EIR 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021-____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING AN ADDENDUM 
TO THE 2013/2021 HOUSING ELEMENT PROJECT 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (SCH# 2013051001) 
CERTIFIED ON DECEMBER 11, 2013 IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH SECTION 15164 OF THE CALIFORNIA 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) GUIDELINES 


WHEREAS, the City Council, upon recommendation from the Planning 
Commission, adopted Council Resolution No. 2013-46 on December 11, 2013 certifying 
the final Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2013051001) and Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program for the 2013 / 2021 Housing Element Update project; and 


WHEREAS, the Planning Department has determined that the 2021/2029 Housing 
Element and Safety Element updates meet the criteria for an Addendum to the 2013/2021 
Housing Element EIR in accordance with Section 15164 of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines; and 


WHEREAS, based on that evaluation, the Planning Commission has concluded, 
based on staff’s recommendation, that the EIR for the 2013/2021 Housing Element 
Update project fully analyzed and mitigated, where feasible, all potentially significant 
environmental impacts, if any, that could result from approval of the 2021/2029 Housing 
Element and Safety Element updates; and therefore, determined that no subsequent EIR 
is required under CEQA Guideline 15162 and approval of the Addendum in accordance 
with CEQA Guideline 15164 is appropriate; and 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on 
August 18, 2021 to discuss the Addendum to the 2013/2021 Housing Element EIR  (SCH# 
2013051001) for the 2021/2029 Housing Element and Safety Element updates in 
accordance with Section 15164 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines, at which time the Planning Commission received public testimony and then 
adopted PC Resolution No. 2021-15 recommending City Council adoption of an 
Addendum to the 2013/2021 Housing Element EIR for the 2021/2029 Housing Element 
and Safety Element updates; and  


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.192.040 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code, the Planning Department on October 1, 2021 published a legal notice (1/8 page 
ad) in the “Press Enterprise”, a local newspaper of general circulation, notifying the 
general public of the of the October 13, 2021 City Council meeting at which time the City 
Council would consider an Addendum to the 2013/2021 Housing Element project 
Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2013051001) for the 2021/2029 Housing Element 
and Safety Element updates; and  
  







WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 17.08 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, 
the City Council conducted the duly noticed public hearing on October 13, 2021 to receive 
public testimony and discuss the proposed Addendum to the 2013/2021 Housing Element 
project Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2013051001) for the 2021/2029 Housing 
Element and Safety Element updates.  


NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Wildomar, does hereby resolve, 
determine and order as follows: 


SECTION 1 CEQA FINDINGS.   
The City Council, upon recommendation from the Planning Commission, in light of 


the whole record before it, including but not limited to, the Addendum to the 2013/2021 
Housing Element project Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2013051001) for the 
2021/2029 Housing Element and Safety Element updates and all documents incorporated 
by reference therein, any comments received and responses provided, and other 
substantial evidence (within the meaning of Public Resources Code § 21080(e) and § 
21082.2) within the record and/or provided at the public hearing, finds and determines 
that subsequent EIR is not required under CEQA Guideline Section 15162 based upon 
the following: 


(1) Substantial changes are not proposed in the 2021/2029 Housing Element 
and Safety Element updates which would require major revisions of the 
previous 2013/2021 Housing Element project Environmental Impact Report 
(SCH# 2013051001) due to the involvement of new significant environmental 
effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified 
significant effects. 


(2) Substantial changes have not occurred in the 2021/2029 Housing Element 
and Safety Element updates with respect to the circumstances under which 
the original 2013/2021 Housing Element project Environmental Impact 
Report (SCH# 2013051001) was undertaken which would require major 
revisions of this original EIR due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 
identified significant effects. 


(3) No new information for the 2021/2029 Housing Element and Safety Element 
updates of substantial importance has come to light, which was not known 
and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at 
the time the 2013/2021 Housing Element project Environmental Impact 
Report (SCH# 2013051001) was certified showing any of the following: 
(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the 


previous EIR; 
(B) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more 


severe than shown in the previous EIR; 
(C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible 


would in fact be feasible, and would substantially reduce one or more 







significant effects of the project, but the project proponents decline to 
adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or 


(D) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different 
from those analyzed in the previous EIR would substantially reduce 
one or more significant effects on the environment, but the project 
proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 


SECTION 2. CITY COUNCIL ACTION. 
Based on the foregoing findings, and on substantial evidence in the whole of the 


record, the City Council hereby adopts this Council Resolution adopting an Addendum to 
the 2013/2021 Housing Element project Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 
2013051001) for the 2021/2029 Housing Element and Safety Element project. 


 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
 
 


_____________________________ 
Dustin Nigg 
Mayor 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk 


 
  







Exhibit 1 
 


Addendum to the 2013/2021 Housing Element project 
Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2013051001)  


 
 
 







August 2021 | Housing Element EIR Addendum 


ADDENDUM TO THE HOUSING ELEMENT EIR 
 SCH No. 2013051001 


FOR THE 


2021–2029 HOUSING ELEMENT AND 
2021 SAFETY ELEMENT UPDATE 


City of Wildomar 


Prepared for: 


City of Wildomar 
Contact: Matthew Bassi 


Planning Director 
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 


Wildomar, California 92595 
951.677.7751 


Prepared by: 


PlaceWorks 
Contact: Miles Barker, Project Planner 


101 Parkshore Drive, Suite 112 
Folsom, California 95630 


916.276.0616 
info@placeworks.com 
www.placeworks.com 







This page intentionally left blank. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


Table of Contents 


August 2021 Page i 


Section Page 


1. ADDENDUM TO THE ADOPTED HOUSING ELEMENT EIR ........................................................ 1 


1.1 BACKGROUND .................................................................................................................................................... 1 


1.2 HOUSING ELEMENT EIR............................................................................................................................... 2 


1.3 PROJECT SUMMARY ......................................................................................................................................... 3 


1.4 PURPOSE OF AN EIR ADDENDUM ......................................................................................................... 31 


2. CEQA ANALYSIS .......................................................................................................................... 34 


2.1 ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS ................................................................................................................... 34 


2.2 FINDING .............................................................................................................................................................. 37 


Table Page 


TABLE 1-1 SUMMARY OF PROGRAM CHANGES BETWEEN EXISTING HOUSING ELEMENT AND 
2021–2029 HOUSING ELEMENT ....................................................................................................................... 4 


TABLE 1-2 NEW AND AMENDED SAFETY ELEMENT GOALS AND POLICIES ............................................. 11 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


Page ii PlaceWorks 


This page intentionally left blank. 







 


August 2021 Page 1 


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 


1.1 BACKGROUND 


The proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element and 2021 Safety Element (proposed project) will replace the 
existing 2013–2021 Housing Element, 2019 Safety Element, and serve as the City of  Wildomar’s (City’s) guiding 
policy document that meets future needs of  housing for all the City’s economic levels as well as on safety and 
climate adaptation. The Housing Element and Safety Element are two of  eight elements of  the City’s General 
Plan. 


The General Plan is the foundation development policy document of  Wildomar. It defines the framework by 
which the physical, economic, and human resources of  the City are to be managed and used over time. The 
General Plan acts to clarify and articulate the intentions of  the City with respect to the rights and expectations 
of  the public, property owners, and prospective investors and business interests. The General Plan informs 
these citizens of  the goals, objectives, policies, and standards for development of  the City and the 
responsibilities of  all sectors in meeting these.  


As a policy document, the Housing Element does not result in physical changes to the environment but 
encourages the provision of  affordable housing within the housing development projected within the existing 
land use designations in the Land Use Element of  the General Plan. Moreover, the Safety Element does not 
result in physical changes to the environment but requires the implementation of  safety and emergency 
measures in future development. None of  the policies in the proposed project would change the existing land 
use pattern, as established by the General Plan and evaluated in the Housing Element EIR. All future 
construction within Wildomar must comply with the General Plan, zoning ordinance, state and federal permits, 
and local development standards. In addition, future discretionary actions (i.e., use permits, site plan review) 
require independent and project-specific environmental review to comply with the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA).  


This document serves as the environmental documentation for the City’s proposed 2021–2029 Housing 
Element and 2021 Safety Element update. Wildomar’s Housing Element EIR, certified in December 2013 (State 
Clearinghouse Number 2013051001), was prepared in conjunction with the City’s 2013–2021 Housing Element 
and analyzed the environmental impacts stemming from housing development in Wildomar. The Housing 
Element does not change any land use designations but rather identifies sites with existing residential land use 
designations to accommodate residential development at a variety of  income levels. The 2021–2029 Housing 
Element would not result in any change from the impacts that were assumed and analyzed by the Housing 
Element EIR. The Safety Element includes important information in the General Plan regarding the potential 
for hazards to occur in and around the city and establishes policies for coordination during emergency events. 
While the Housing Element EIR did not address the existing Safety Element, the proposed Safety Element 
update would have no physical impact on the environment, as it consists of  updates to goals and policies. 
Consequently, the proposed project would not cause any new significant environmental impacts or substantially 
increase the severity of  significant environmental impacts disclosed in the Housing Element EIR and no change 
to the Housing Element EIR would be required.  







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 


Page 2 PlaceWorks 


This addendum demonstrates that the analysis in that EIR adequately addresses the potential physical impacts 
associated with implementation of  the proposed project and the proposed project would not trigger any of  the 
conditions described in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 calling for the preparation of  a subsequent EIR or 
negative declaration. 


1.2 HOUSING ELEMENT EIR 


The Housing Element EIR identifies potentially significant impacts related to biological resources, cultural and 
paleontological resources, geology, soils, and mineral resources, hydrology and water quality, and land use and 
planning. The Housing Element EIR found that EIR mitigation measures would reduce potentially significant 
impacts to a less than significant level for the following environmental topic areas: biological resources, cultural 
and paleontological resources, geology, soils, and mineral resources, hydrology and water quality, and land use 
and planning. 


The Housing Element EIR determined that implementation of  the Housing Element would result in significant 
and unavoidable impacts to the following environmental topics:  


• Air Quality 


o Impact 3.1.1: Subsequent land use activities associated with implementation of  the proposed 
project would not conflict with or obstruct implementation of  the 2012 Air Quality 
Management Plan. 


o Impact 3.1.2: Subsequent land use activities associated with implementation of  the proposed 
project could result in short-term construction emissions that could violate or substantially 
contribute to a violation of  federal and state standards for ozone and coarse and fine 
particulate matter. 


o Impact 3.1.3: Subsequent land use activities associated with implementation of  the proposed 
project could result in long-term operational emissions that could violate or substantially 
contribute to a violation of  federal and state standards for ozone and coarse and fine 
particulate matter. 


o Impact 3.1.7: Implementation of  the proposed project, in combination with cumulative 
development in the SoCAB, would result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of  criteria 
air pollutants for which the SoCAB is designated nonattainment. 


• Transportation and Circulation 


o Impact 3.10.1: The project will not conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance, or policy 
establishing measures of  effectiveness for the performance of  the circulation system, taking 
into account all modes of  transportation including mass transit and nonmotorized travel and 
relevant components of  the circulation system, including but not limited to intersections, 
streets, highways and freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass transit. The proposed 
project would result in no new impacts over what has already been identified. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 


August 2021 Page 3 


1.3 PROJECT SUMMARY 


CEQA requires the City to evaluate the environmental impacts associated with changes to the environment. In 
this instance, most of  the goals, policies, and programs from the previous Housing Element and Safety Element 
are continued through to the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element and 2021 Safety Element. Table 1-1 
includes the changes in goals or policies between the existing 2013–2021 Housing Element and the proposed 
2021–2029 Housing Element. Modifications to the existing policies are identified in the text following Table 1-
1. 


Table 1-2 includes the changes in goals or policies between the existing 2019 Safety Element and the proposed 
2021 Safety Element. The following new and amended goals and policies are included in the proposed Safety 
Element. As shown in Table 1-2, Italic underlined text is used to depict additions to the proposed Safety Element 
and strikethrough text is used to indicate deletions. 


 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


August 2021 Page 4 


Table 1-1 Summary of Program Changes Between Existing Housing Element and 2021–2029 Housing Element 


Programs Progress Continue/Modify/Delete 


PROGRAM H-1.1: General Plan Land Use Change to Provide Additional Sites. To 
ensure there is enough land available for the development of housing affordable to lower-
income households, the City will amend its General Plan Land Use and Zoning maps to 
redesignate and rezone sites 22, 23, 24, and 25 (see Table HNA-25 in the Housing Needs 
Assessment), a total of 25.96 acres to the Highest Density Residential (HHDR) land use 
designation and with R-4 zoning to allow for at least 30 units to the acre by right. Additionally, 
to comply with state law, the City has identified and will re-zone sites to accommodate the 
City’s housing needs, with at least 50 percent of the 4th cycle unmet need coming from sites 
that are zoned for residential uses only.  The City had an unaccommodated need of 538 units 
and has re-zoned 25.96 acres to HHDR to accommodate 623 units at 20 to 40 dwelling unit 
per acre. All sites will accommodate a minimum of 20 units per acre, allow up to 30 units per 
acre and at least 16 units per site, per state law requirements. 


All rezoned sites will permit owner-occupied and rental multi-family developments by right 
with a minor plot plan to verify development standards (i.e., setbacks) and will not require a 
conditional use permit, a planned unit development permit, or any other discretionary review. 


In addition, the City is creating a mixed-use overlay zone to apply to 20 sites, totaling 117 
acres within the inventory. The mixed-use overlay will have a 30 percent residential 
requirement. 


In 2013, the City completed all necessary rezones consistent with 
Government Code Section 65583.2, (resolutions 2013-45 and 2013-46) 
to ensure there were sufficient sites available to meet the City’s lower-
income Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA). The City continues 
to ensure there is sufficient capacity to meet its regional housing need. 


This program has been completed. 
Delete. 


PROGRAM H-1.2: Large Sites. The City will provide for the inclusion of mixed-income 
housing in future new growth areas of the city through development agreements, specific 
plans, and other mechanisms. To facilitate the development of affordable housing on parcels 
(50 to 150 units in size), the City will routinely give high priority to processing subdivision 
maps that include affordable housing units. Also, an expedited review process will be 
available for the subdivision of larger sites into buildable lots where the development 
application can be found consistent with the General Plan, applicable Specific Plan, and 
master environmental impact report. 


No affordable housing projects have come forward, but the City continues 
to encourage mixed-income housing for future projects. This is a priority 
moving forward. The program will be revised to include proactive efforts 
in hopes of making this program more successful. 


Modify and continue as Program H-
1.2: Large Sites. 


PROGRAM H-2.1: Assistance with Affordable Projects. Where feasible and/or necessary 
and as funding is available, the City shall offer assistance with land acquisition and off-site 
infrastructure improvements, as well as assistance in securing federal or state housing 
financing resources for developers, (for and non-profit) for projects affordable to extremely 
low-, very low-, low-, and moderate-income households within the planning period. 


The City provides fair housing educational brochures in English and 
Spanish at City Hall and the City library and provides a link to these 
services on the City's website. Due to limited funding and lack of 
developer interest, the City did not provide assistance with land 
acquisition and/or off-site infrastructure improvements, or assistance 
securing federal or state housing financial resources, in the previous 
planning period. The City is committed to providing this assistance to 
interested developers during the 2021-2029 planning period. 


Combine with Programs H-4.1: 
Funding Opportunities and H-4.2: 
Available Housing Programs and 
Assistance and continue as Program 
H-3.2: Assistance with Affordable 
Projects. 


PROGRAM H-3.1: Updated Land Inventory. The City will establish a Land Inventory that 
provides the mechanism to monitor acreage and location, by General Plan designation, of 
vacant and underutilized land, as well as buildout of approved projects, utilizing the City’s 
GIS. 


The City uses GIS to maintain a current land inventory. This is done as 
projects are submitted to, and approved by, the Planning Department. 


Modify and continue as Program H-
1.1: Updated Available Sites 
Inventory. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


August 2021 Page 5 


Programs Progress Continue/Modify/Delete 


PROGRAM H-3.2: Strategic Planning Opportunities. Utilize the City’s GIS to facilitate 
preliminary strategic planning studies to identify vacant or underutilized commercial 
properties for infill construction or adaptive reuse in high-density areas. 


Due to limited funding, the City has not taken action to identify vacant or 
commercial properties for infill construction or adaptive reuse. This is a 
priority moving forward. The program will be revised to include proactive 
efforts in hopes of making this program more successful. 


Modify and continue as Program H-
2.1: Strategic Planning Opportunities. 


PROGRAM H-4.1: Funding Opportunities. Use, to the greatest extent possible, a portion 
of available funds for the production and subsidization of low- and moderate-income housing 
including persons with special needs and developmental disabilities. All projects receiving 
public assistance will be required to remain affordable in compliance with the requirements 
of the program in which they participate. These actions are not limited to density bonus, but 
are offered above and beyond. 


Due to limited funding, the City has not taken action to identify vacant or 
commercial properties for infill construction or adaptive reuse. This is a 
priority moving forward. The program will be revised to include proactive 
efforts in hopes of making this program more successful. 


Combine with Programs H-2.1: 
Assistance with Affordable Projects 
and H-4.2 and continue as Program 
H-3.2: Assistance with Affordable 
Projects. 


PROGRAM H-4.2: Available Housing Programs and Assistance. To ensure that the 
development community (both nonprofit and for-profit) is aware of the housing programs, 
technical assistance, and funding available, the City will publish and make available, to 
developers, housing development agencies, and City residents, the City’s Housing Element 
and updates and annual reports. 


All Housing Element updates and the annual reports (2014, 2015, 2016, 
2017, 2018, 2019) are posted on the City’s website. 


Combine with Programs H-2.1: 
Assistance with Affordable Projects 
and H-4.1: Funding Opportunities 
and continue as Program H-3.2: 
Assistance with Affordable Projects. 


PROGRAM H-4.3: Multi-Family Development. To assist in the development of affordable 
housing, the City will offer density bonuses as well as assist interested developers to apply 
for government financing and/or other government subsidies, assist interested developers in 
acquiring surplus government land suitable for multi-family development, expedite permit 
processing, consider reducing parking standards and lot sizes, and consider waiving impact 
fees for extremely low-, very low-, and low-income dwelling units (these actions identified are 
not limited to density bonuses). 


In 2018-2019, the City reviewed three possible affordable housing 
projects that plan to use the City's 25-percent density bonus provisions. 
As of February 2021, the City is reviewing the Tres Lagos Affordable 
Housing project (PA 21-0006) that has requested a 7.5-percent density 
bonus permitted under Section 17.290.050 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code.  This density bonus also includes allowable concessions to parking, 
and expedited processing under Senate Bill 35 requirements.  The project 
will yield 180 housing units affordable to extremely low-, very low-, and 
low-income households and 42 housing units affordable to moderate-
income households. 


Continue as Program H-3.1: 
Multifamily Development. 


PROGRAM H-5.1: Homeownership Opportunities. Explore opportunities to work with local 
nonprofits in an effort to provide homeownership opportunities. 


The City met with nonprofit developers in 2018 and 2019, but developers 
have not decided to move forward with any proposals. One developer was 
interested in developing manufactured affordable units with covenants. 
The developer met with several Council members but has not yet 
submitted an application. 


Combine with Program H-12.1: 
Special Needs Housing and continue 
as Program H-4.1: Expand Housing 
Opportunities. 


PROGRAM H-6.1: Annual Review of the Housing Element. The City will review the 
Housing Element on an annual basis to determine the effectiveness of the Housing Element 
in achieving goals and objectives. The City will provide annual reports to the Planning 
Commission and City Council as to the effectiveness of the Housing Element. The City will 
take actions necessary to correct any inconsistencies. A copy of this report will be sent to the 
California Department of Housing and Community Development (as required by state law). 


The City completes its Housing Element annual reports annually and 
submits them to HCD by April 1 each year. Prior to submittal to HCD, the 
Housing Element annual reports are presented to the Planning 
Commission and City Council at public meetings where citizens have an 
opportunity to ask questions. 


Continue as Program H-5.1: Annual 
Review of the Housing Element. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


Page 6 PlaceWorks 


Programs Progress Continue/Modify/Delete 


PROGRAM H-7.1: Development Review and Processing Procedures. The City will 
continually seek to improve its development review/processing procedures to minimize, to 
the extent possible, the time required for review of development projects. This reduction in 
time will reduce the cost to developers and may increase the housing production in the city. 


The City is constantly seeking ways to streamline development review 
and processing procedures. The City has a pre-application review 
process that has decreased review time for the formal application. 


Continue as Program H-6.1: 
Development Review and Processing 
Procedures.  


PROGRAM H-7.2: Building Code.  As new uniform building codes are adopted, the City will 
review its building codes for current compliance and adopt the necessary revisions so as to 
further local development objectives. 


The building code was updated in 2010, 2013, 2016, and in 2019 per 
State law. 


Continue as Program H-6.2: Building 
Code. 


PROGRAM H-8.1: Incentives for Development of Housing. The City will offer fast 
track/priority processing, density bonuses, and fee subsidies (when feasible) to developers 
proposing new housing, mixed-use, or infill projects affordable to lower-income households, 
farmworkers, seniors, and other special needs groups including persons with physical and 
developmental disabilities. 


In 2018-2019, the City reviewed two preliminary review proposals for two 
affordable housing projects totaling approximately 315 low- income family 
housing units. The City is currently reviewing the Tres Lagos Affordable 
Housing project (PA 21-0006) that has requested a 7.5-percent density 
bonus permitted under Section 17.290.050 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code.  This density bonus also includes allowable concessions to parking 
and expedited processing under Senate Bill (SB) 35 requirements.  The 
project will yield 180 housing units affordable to extremely low-, very low-
, and low-income households and 42 housing units affordable to 
moderate-income households. 


Modify and continue as Program H-
7.1: Incentives for Development of 
Housing.  


PROGRAM H-9.1: Density Bonus. In an effort to comply with Government Code Section 
65915 and Senate Bill (SB) 1818, the City of Wildomar will amend its Zoning Ordinance to 
be consistent with state density bonus law. 


This program was completed in December 2013. The City is undergoing 
an update to its density bonus ordinance to comply with the newly adopted 
state changes to density bonus laws in 2019/2020. 


Continue as Program H-8.1: Density 
Bonus. 


PROGRAM H-10.1: Second Units. In order to comply with AB 1866, the City will permit 
secondary dwelling units via a ministerial action (by right) in all single-family residential 
zones. 


This program was completed in December 2013. Mandatory State 
changes from 2016 and 2017 and 2020 have been addressed and new 
city ordinances adopted to address Accessory Dwelling Units. 


Modify as needed to meet future 
changes in State law and continue as 
Program H-9.1: Accessory Dwelling 
Units. 


PROGRAM H-11.1: Priority for Affordable Projects. Give priority to permit processing for 
projects providing affordable housing when requested. Expand application of processing 
priority to projects providing housing for seniors and other special needs groups including 
persons with physical and developmental disabilities. 


In 2018, the City reviewed two preliminary review proposals for two 
affordable housing projects totaling approximately 315 low-income family 
housing units. The City is currently reviewing the Tres Lagos Affordable 
Housing project (PA 21-0006) that has requested a 7.5-percent density 
bonus permitted under Section 17.290.050 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code.  This density bonus also includes allowable concessions to parking, 
and expedited processing under SB 35 requirements.  The project will 
yield 180 housing units affordable to extremely low-, very low-, and low-
income households and 42 housing units affordable to moderate-income 
households. 


No projects providing senior or special-needs housing have been 
proposed due to difficulty securing financing for affordable senior housing. 
The City will implement this program as projects are proposed.  


Continue as Program H-10.1: Priority 
for Affordable Projects. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


August 2021 Page 7 


Programs Progress Continue/Modify/Delete 


PROGRAM H-12.1: Special Needs Housing.  Work with public or private sponsors to 
identify candidate sites for new construction of rental housing for special needs including 
persons with physical and developmental disabilities, and take all actions necessary to 
expedite processing of such projects. 


No public or private sponsors have requested to identify candidate sites. 
The City has not been proactive in recruiting public or private sponsors 
due to limited staffing and financial resources but is open to this proposal 
if a request was submitted. 


Combine with Program H-5.1 and 
continue as Program H-4.1: Expand 
Housing Opportunities. 


PROGRAM H-13.1: Extremely Low-Income Households. AB2634 requires the City to 
identify zoning to encourage and facilitate housing suitable for extremely low-income 
households, such as supportive housing and single-room occupancy units. The City will 
encourage the development of housing for extremely low-income households through a 
variety of activities such as performing outreach to housing developers on at least an annual 
basis, providing financial (when feasible) or in-kind technical assistance or land write-downs, 
providing expedited processing, identifying grant and funding opportunities, applying for or 
supporting applications for funding on an ongoing basis, reviewing and prioritizing local 
funding at least twice in the planning period, and/or offering additional incentives beyond the 
density bonus.  


In addition, the City will allow single-room occupancy units to be permitted in the R-4 and R-
6 residential designations with a conditional use permit. 


This program was completed in December 2013. Modify and continue as Program H-
11.1: Extremely Low-Income 
Households.  


PROGRAM H-13.2: Farmworkers. The City will amend its Zoning Ordinance in an effort to 
comply with Sections 17021.5 and 17021.6 of the Health and Safety Code. In addition, the 
City will allow for farmworker housing in the A-1, A-2, and R-A zones by right. 


The City amended the Zoning Ordinance in December 2013 but to ensure 
compliance with Health and Safety Code Sections 17021.5 and 17021.6 
this program will be continued. 


Modify and continue as Program H-
11.4: Farmworker Housing.   


PROGRAM H-13.3: Reasonable Accommodation. Develop and formalize a general 
process for reasonable accommodation requests in order to accommodate the needs of 
persons with physical as well as development disabilities and streamline the permit review 
process (Sections 4450–4460 of the California Government Code and Title 24 of the 
California Code of Regulations). The City will provide information to individuals with 
disabilities regarding reasonable accommodation policies, practices, and procedures based 
on the guidelines from HCD. This information will be available through postings and 
pamphlets at the City and on the City’s website.   


In addition, the City will encourage housing developers to include mobility-impaired 
accessibility in their project designs.  


The City will include accessibility considerations in the preparation of the City’s capital 
improvement plan and the allocation of funding for capital improvements in support of 
housing and residential neighborhoods for persons with physical and developmental 
disabilities. 


The City will provide exceptions in zoning and land use for housing for persons with physical 
and developmental disabilities. This procedure will be ministerial process, with minimal or no 
processing fee, subject to approval by the Planning Director by applying the following criteria: 


1. The request for reasonable accommodation will be used by an individual with a 
physical or developmental disability or their representative protected under fair 
housing laws. 


This program was completed in December 2013. This program has been completed. 
Delete. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


Page 8 PlaceWorks 


Programs Progress Continue/Modify/Delete 


2. The requested accommodation is necessary to make housing accessible and 
suitable to an individual with a physical or developmental disability protected 
under fair housing laws. 


3. The requested accommodation would not impose an undue financial or 
administrative burden on the City. 


4. The requested accommodation would not require a fundamental alteration in the 
nature of the City’s land use and zoning program. 


PROGRAM H-13.4: Residential Care Facilities. SB 520 requires residential care facilities 
of six or fewer persons to be permitted in all residential zones. Currently, residential care 
homes with six or fewer persons are permitted in some zones with a conditional use permit. 


The City will revise the current regulations to meet state law requirements. The City will 
amend the Zoning Ordinance to allow for residential care facilities with six or fewer persons 
by right in all residential zones subject only to the same restriction in that zone, and will allow 
larger licensed residential care facilities of seven or more persons in the R-2 and R-3 zones 
with a conditional use permit. Additionally, the City will amend the Zoning Ordinance to 
update its definition of family to be consistent with current housing law. 


In December 2013 the Zoning Ordinance was updated to allow for 
residential care facilities consistent with state law and comply with state 
law and the definition of family was updated to state -- “Family” shall mean 
one or more persons living together in a dwelling unit, with common 
access to and common use of all living, kitchen, and eating areas within 
the dwelling unit 


Modify to reflect current State 
guidance and continue as Program 
H-11.2: Residential Care Facilities. 


PROGRAM H-14.1: Child Care Program. In cooperation with private developers, the City 
will evaluate on a case-by-case basis the feasibility of pairing a childcare center with 
affordable, multi-family housing developments or nearby major residential subdivisions. 


Private developers have not expressed any interest in this program to 
date. 


Delete.  


PROGRAM H-15.1: Regional Homeless Issues. The City shall cooperate with the other 
cities, the County, and other agencies in the development of programs aimed at providing 
homeless shelters and related services. 


Along with the Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG), five 
southwest cities in Riverside County have created a partnership to 
address homelessness in the region. This alliance will be meeting 
regularly to discuss a regional plan for homeless aid. 


Continue as Program H-12.1: 
Regional Homeless Issues. 


PROGRAM H-16.1: Emergency Shelters. Pursuant to SB 2, the City will allow emergency 
shelters as a permitted use (by right) in the Industrial Park (I-P) zone without a conditional 
use permit or other discretionary review. The I-P zone is close to services and future transit 
as development occurs. In addition, the City will evaluate adopting development and 
managerial standards that will be consistent with Government Code Section 65583(a)(4). 
These standards may include such items as: 


• Lighting 


• On-site management 


• Maximum number of beds or persons to be served nightly by the facility 


• Off-street parking based on demonstrated need  


•  Security during hours that the emergency shelter is in operation 


In December 2013 Chapter 17.88 of the Wildomar Municipal Code was 
amended to permit emergency shelters in the I-P zone and managerial 
standards were adopted. The City does required a plot plan review, which 
is a ministerial process and it used to verify that the proposed project 
meets the City’s development standards as part of a plan check review.  
No public hearing is required.  


Completed. Modify to address state 
law concerning low barrier navigation 
centers and continue as Program H-
13.1: Homeless Housing.  







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


August 2021 Page 9 


Programs Progress Continue/Modify/Delete 


PROGRAM H-16.2: Transitional and Supportive Housing. Pursuant to SB 2, the City must 
explicitly allow both supportive and transitional housing types in all zones allowing residential 
uses exclusively. The City shall amend the Zoning Ordinance to provide separate definitions 
of transitional and supportive housing as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 50675.2 
and 50675.14, and both transitional and supportive housing types will be allowed as a 
permitted use subject to only the same restrictions on residential uses contained in the same 
type of structure. 


This program was completed in December 2013. 


 


Delete. Supportive housing is 
permitted in all zones that allow 
multifamily development. 


PROGRAM H-17.1: Rehabilitation Program. The City will pursue grant opportunities to 
create a rehabilitation program. The City will apply for HOME funding for this program and 
will work with the County to obtain available redevelopment agency funds. 


Due to limited staffing and financial resources, the City has not applied for 
HOME funding to create a housing rehabilitation program. 


Modify and continue as Program H-
14.1: Rehabilitation Program. 


PROGRAM H-18.1: Code Enforcement. The City’s Code Enforcement staff is responsible 
for ensuring compliance with building and property maintenance codes. Code Enforcement 
handles complaints on a reactive basis and deals with a variety of issues, including property 
maintenance, abandoned vehicles, and housing conditions. The City will continue to use 
Code Enforcement, as well as Building Division, staff to ensure compliance with building and 
property maintenance codes. The Code Enforcement program is complaint-based.   


The City continues to use the Code Enforcement and Building Division 
staff to ensure compliance. 


Modify and continue as Program H-
15.1: Code Enforcement.  


PROGRAM H-19.1: Preservation of At-Risk Housing Units. State law requires jurisdictions 
to provide a program in their Housing Elements to preserve publicly assisted affordable 
housing projects at risk of converting to market-rate housing. The City will monitor the status 
of all affordable housing projects and, as their funding sources near expiration, will work with 
owners and other agencies to consider options to preserve such units. The City will also 
provide technical support to property owners and tenants regarding proper procedures 
related to noticing and options for preservation. 


The City did not have any units at risk of converting to market rate during 
the planning period. 


Modify to reflect new State law and 
continue as Program H-16.1: 
Preservation of At-Risk Housing 
Units. 


PROGRAM H-20.1: Fair Housing. The City will assign a point person to refer individuals, 
developers, landlords, and any other interested persons to the Fair Housing Council of 
Riverside County, which provides a number of programs including (1) audits of lending 
institutions and rental establishments, and (2) education and outreach to apartment owners, 
associations, management companies, lending institutions, building industry associations, 
homebuyers, and residents in emergency shelters and transitional housing facilities. The City 
will also post a link on its website to direct interested parties to the Fair Housing Council’s 
website and any other important information regarding fair housing. 


The City's Planning Director is the assigned point person for this program. 
No complaints have been received to date. The City's website includes a 
link to the Fair Housing Council's website. 


Modify to reflect new State law, 
combine with Program H-21.1: Fair 
Housing Education and continue as 
Program H-17.1: Fair Housing. 


PROGRAM H-21.1: Fair Housing Education. The City will make fair housing educational 
brochures available at City Hall, the City library, and will post a link on its website referring 
interested persons to the Fair Housing Council’s website as well as to the Fair Housing 
Council, which provides education and outreach services to the public in both Spanish and 
English. 


The City provides fair housing educational brochures in English and 
Spanish at City Hall and the City library and has a link on the City's 
website. 


Combine with Program H-20.1: Fair 
Housing Program and continue as 
Program H-17.1: Fair Housing. 


PROGRAM H-22.1: Mortgage Credit Certificate Program. Refer eligible residents to the 
Riverside County Mortgage Credit Certificate Program for assistance. 


There has been no interest within the City regarding the Riverside County 
Mortgage Credit Certificate Program to date. 


Continue as Program H-18.1: 
Mortgage Credit Certificate Program. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


Page 10 PlaceWorks 


Programs Progress Continue/Modify/Delete 


PROGRAM H-22.2: First-Time Homebuyer Program. Consider the implementation of a 
First-Time Homebuyer Program to provide down payment assistance and closing cost 
assistance to low-income first-time homebuyers. 


Due to lack of financial resources and the loss of Redevelopment Agency 
(RDA) monies, the City has not yet implemented a First-Time Homebuyer 
Program. 


Continue as Program H-18.2: First-
Time Homebuyer Program. 


PROGRAM H-22.3: Foreclosures. Investigate the feasibility of acquiring foreclosure homes 
and offering them to residents at prices affordable to low- and moderate-income households. 


Due to a lack of financial resources and the current economic conditions 
of the housing market, the City has not investigated the feasibility of 
acquiring foreclosure homes. 


Delete.  


PROGRAM H-23.1: Acquisition/Rehabilitation. Work with public or private sponsors to 
encourage acquisition/rehabilitation of existing multi-family units to be converted to senior 
housing and housing for persons with disabilities, with a portion of the units required to be 
reserved for households with lower income. 


The City has not worked with public or private sponsors to encourage 
acquisition/rehabilitation of multifamily housing units. The County offers 
similar opportunities through Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funding to the low- and moderate-income areas of the City but 
there has been little success.  


Continue as Program H-19.1: 
Acquisition/Rehabilitation. 


PROGRAM H-24.1: Promote Energy Conservation. The City will partner with Southern 
California Edison (SCE) and the Southern California Gas Company (SoCalGas) to promote 
energy-saving programs, such as the residential Multifamily Energy Efficiency Rebate 
program and the heating and cooling rebate program, available to SCE and SoCalGas 
residential customers. 


The City partners with WRCOG and SCE as part of the HERO Program 
created by the WRCOG. This program has been successful in saving 
costs and providing solar energy solutions. 


Continue as Program H-20.1: 
Promote Energy Conservation.  


PROGRAM H-24.2: Ensure Consistency with Green Building Standards. The City 
annually ensure that local building codes are consistent with state-mandated green building 
standards. 


The City is diligent in implementing State-mandated green building 
standards on development projects as part of its development review 
process. 


Delete.   


PROGRAM H-24.3: Implement State Energy Conservation Standards. The City’s Building 
and Safety Department will be responsible for implementing the state’s energy conservation 
standards (e.g., Title 24 Energy Standards). This includes checking building plans and other 
written documentation showing compliance and inspecting construction to ensure that the 
dwelling units are constructed according to those plans. Applicants for building permits must 
show compliance with the state’s energy conservation requirements at the time building plans 
are submitted. 


The City implements the State's energy conservation standards through 
standard operating procedures. 


Delete.  







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


Page 11 PlaceWorks 


Table 1-2 New and Amended Safety Element Goals and Policies 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


Goal S-1. To provide development regulations consistent with State of California requirements and best practices.  


Policy S-1.1 Enforce state laws aimed at identification, inventory, and retrofit of existing vulnerable structures and Mmitigate hazard impacts through adoption and strict enforcement of current building 
codes, which will be amended as necessary when local deficiencies are identified. 


Policy S-1.32 Continue to enforce penalties against grading without permits, and ensure the restoration of land thus damaged or degraded from grading activities. Continue to educate the public about 
the benefits of grading with permits and the penalties for grading without them. If the penalties are later determined to not be effective ineffective, explore whether the levying of greater 
penalties would be more effective in deterring illegal grading and ensuring the proper restoration of damaged lands. 


Policy S-1.43 Implement- Incorporate the County current City of Riverside Multi-Jurisdictional Wildomar Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (as approved into this Safety Element by FEMA, the latest approved 
version is available online at planning.rctlma.org/LHMP). reference, as permitted by California Government Code Section 65302.6. 


Policy S-1.54 Require structural and nonstructural non-structural assessment and, when necessary, mitigation of other types of potentially hazardous buildings that:  


(1)  Are undergoing substantial repair or improvements resulting in more than half of the assessed property value, or 2) are considered an element of blight in a redevelopment 
district. Potential implementation measures could include: (AI 81, 88, 89, 90, 100) 


(2)  Are considered an element of blight in a redevelopment district. Potential implementation measures may include: 


(a) Use of variances, tax rebates, fee waivers, credits, or public recognition as incentives.  


(b) Inventory and structural assessment of potentially hazardous buildings based on screening methods developed by the Federal Emergency Management Agency.  


(c) Development of a mandatory retrofit program for hazardous, high-occupancy, essential, dependent, or high-risk facilities. 


(d) Development of a mandatory program requiring public posting of seismically vulnerable buildings. 


Goal S-2. To avoid the loss of life and injury and minimize property damage from seismic and related geological hazards. 


Policy S-2.15 Minimize fault rupture hazards through enforcement of Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act provisions and the following policies: (AI 80, 91). 


(1) Require geologic studies or analyses for critical structures, and lifeline, high-occupancy, schools, and high-risk structures, within 0.5 miles of all Quaternary to historic faults 
shown on the Earthquake Fault Studies Zones map. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


Page 12 PlaceWorks 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


(2) Require geologic trenching studies within all designated Earthquake Fault Studies Zones, unless adequate evidence, as determined and accepted by the Riverside County City 
of Wildomar Engineering Geologist, is presented. The County City of Riverside Wildomar may require geologic trenching of non-zoned faults for especially critical or vulnerable 
structures or lifelines. 


(3) Require that lifelines infrastructure systems, such as energy, communications, and transportation infrastructure, be designed to resist, without failure, their crossing of a fault, 
should fault rupture occur. 


(4) Support efforts by the California Department of Conservation, California Geological Survey, to develop geologic and engineering solutions in areas of ground deformation due 
to faulting and seismic activity, in those areas where a through-going fault cannot be reliably located. 


(5) Encourage and support efforts by the geologic research community to better define better the locations and risks of Riverside County faults in and around the City of Wildomar. 
Such efforts could include data sharing and database development with regional entities, other local governments, private organizations, utility agencies or companies, and local 
universities. 


Policy S-6  Require automatic natural gas shutoff earthquake sensors in high-occupancy industrial and commercial facilities, as well as new homes, and encourage them for all existing residences. 


Policy S-2.27 Require geological and geotechnical investigations in areas with potential for earthquake-induced liquefaction, landsliding landslides, or settlement, for any building proposed for human 
occupancy and any structure whose damage would cause harm, except for accessory buildings. (AI 81) 


Policy S-2.38 Require that a state-licensed professional civil engineer investigate the potential for liquefaction in areas designated as underlain by “Susceptible Sediments” and/or “Shallow Ground Water 
Groundwater” for all general construction projects and proposed critical facilities, except for accessory buildings(Figure S-3).  


Policy S 2.59 Require that engineered slopes be designed to resist seismically-induced failure, as appropriate. For lower-risk projects, this may include requiring slope design could to be based on 
pseudo-static stability analyses using soil engineering parameters that are established on a site-specific basis. For higher-risk projects, appropriate standards may include requiring the 
stability analyses should to factor in the intensity of expected ground-shaking, using a Newmark-type deformation analysis. 


Policy S-2.710  Within landslide susceptibility areas or liquefaction zones shown in Figure 2.0 and Figure 3-0, require that cut-and-fill transition lots be over-excavated to mitigate the potential of seismically-
induced differential settlement.  


Policy S-3.111 Require the following in landslide potential hazard management zones susceptibility classes III and above, or when deemed necessary by the California Environmental Quality Act: (AI 
104), prior to the issuance of development permits or approval of project designs:  


Preliminary geotechnical and geologic investigations, including certification regarding the stability of the site against adverse effects of earthquake and subsidence. 


Evaluations of site stability, including any possible impact on adjacent properties, before final project design is approved. 


Consultant reports, investigations, and design recommendations required for grading permits, building permits, and subdivision applications be, prepared by state-licensed professionals. 


Policy S-3.212 Require that stabilized new development in areas prone to geologic hazards (e.g., landslides be provided with redundant drainage systems. Provisions for the maintenance of subdrains 
must be designed into the system., steep topography, slope instability) to be designed to adequately reduce these hazards and loss of native vegetation. Grading plans, environmental 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


August 2021 Page 13 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


assessments, engineering and geologic technical reports, irrigation and landscaping plans, including ecological restoration and revegetation plans, shall be required as appropriate, to 
ensure the adequate demonstration of a project’s ability to mitigate these potential impacts. Any development in hillside areas shall prepare drainage plans to direct runoff and drainage 
away from potentially unstable slopes.     


Policy S-13 During permit review, identify and require mitigation of on-site slope instability, debris flow, and erosion hazards on lots undergoing substantial improvements. “Substantial improvements” 
means any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of the structure before the start 
of construction of the improvement. 


Policy S-3.714 Support mitigation on existing public and Conduct slope stabilization practices on existing public property and support slope stabilization activities on private property located on unstable 
hillside areas, especially slopes with recurring failures where Riverside County City property or public right-of-way is threatened from slope instability, or where considered appropriate and 
urgent by the Riverside County City of Wildomar Engineer, Fire Department, or Sheriff Department. (AI 100) 


Policy S-15  Encourage building retrofits that improve resiliency to geologic and seismic hazards.  


Policy S-3.816 Require geotechnical studies within documented subsidence zones, as shown in Figure 4-0, as well as zones that may be susceptible to subsidence, as identified in Figure S-7 and the 
Technical Background Report, prior to the issuance of development permits. Within the documented subsidence zones of the Coachella, San Jacinto, and Elsinore valleys Valley, the 
studies must address the potential for reactivation of these zones, consider the potential impact on the project, and provide adequate and acceptable mitigation measures. 


Policy S-3.917 Coordinate with the County of Riverside and the Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District to develop a liaison program with all Riverside County water districts to prevent water extraction-
induced subsidence (AI 4). 


Policy S-3.1018 Encourage and support efforts for long-term, permanent monitoring of topographic subsidence in all producing groundwater basins the Elsinore Valley Groundwater Basin, irrespective of 
past subsidence. 


Goal S-3. To avoid the risk of loss of life and injury, a n d  m i n i m i z e  t h e  r i s k  o f  damage to property, and economic and social dislocations resulting from flooding and inundation 
hazards. 


Policy S-4.119 For new construction and proposals for substantial improvements to residential and nonresidential development within 100-year floodplains as mapped by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) or as determined by site-specific hydrologic studies for areas not mapped by FEMA, Riverside County Wildomar shall apply a minimum level of acceptable 
risk; and disapprove projects that cannot mitigate the hazard to the satisfaction of the Building Official or other responsible agency. (AI 25)  


Policy S-4.220 The county shall enforce provisions of the Building Code in conjunction with the following guidelines: (AI 25)  


(a) All residential, commercial, and industrial structures shall be flood-proofed from the mapped 100-year storm flow, or to an appropriate level determined by site-specific hydrologic 
studies for areas mapped by the Federal Emergency Management Agency. This may require that the finished floor elevation be constructed at such a height as to meet this 
requirement.  







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


Page 14 PlaceWorks 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


 Non-residential Nonresidential (commercial or industrial) structures may be allowed with a “flood-proofed” finished floor below the Base Flood Elevation (i.e., 100-year flood 
surface) to the extent permitted by state, federal, and local regulations. New critical facilities shall be constructed above-grade to the satisfaction of the Building Official, based 
on federal, state, or other reliable hydrologic studies. To the extent that residential, commercial, or industrial structures cannot meet these standards, they shall not be approved.  


(b) Critical facilities shall not be permitted in floodplains unless the project design ensures that there are two routes for emergency egress and regress, and minimizes 


(c) Development using, storing, or otherwise involved with substantial quantities of onsite hazardous materials shall not be permitted within a 100-year floodplain or dam inundation 
zone, unless all standards for evaluation, anchoring, and flood-proofing have been satisfied; and hazardous materials are stored in watertight containers, not capable of floating, 
to the extent required by state and federal laws and regulations. 


(d) Specific flood-proofing measures may require: use of paints, membranes, or mortar to reduce water seepage through walls; installation of water tight doors, bulkheads, and 
shutters; installation of flood water pumps in structures; and proper modification and protection of all electrical equipment, circuits, and appliances so that the risk of electrocution 
or fire is eliminated. However, fully enclosed areas that are below finished floors shall require openings to equalize the forces on both sides of the walls. 


Policy S-21 Prohibit alteration of floodways and channelization unless alternative methods of flood control are not technically feasible or alternative methods are used to the maximum extent practicable. 
The intent is to balance floodway protection with prudent land use solutions, recreational needs, and habitat requirements, and as applicable to provide incentives for natural watercourse 
preservation.  


(1)  Prohibit the construction, location, or substantial improvement of structures in areas designated as floodways, except upon approval of a plan that provides that the proposed 
development will not result in any significant increase in flood levels during the occurrence of a 100-year flood discharge. 


(2) Prohibit the filling or grading of land for nonagricultural purposes and for non-authorized flood-control purposes in areas designated as floodways, except upon approval of a plan 
that provides that the proposed development will not result in any significant increase in flood levels during the occurrence of a 100-year flood discharge. 


Policy S-22  Prohibit substantial modification to watercourses, unless the modification does not adversely affect adjacent wetlands or riparian habitat or become detrimental to adjacent property as a 
result of increased erosion, sedimentation, or water velocity.  Modifications to watercourses shall be done in the least environmentally damaging manner practicable and shall restore natural 
conditions to the greatest extent possible, to maintain adequate wildlife corridors and linkages and maximize groundwater recharge.  


Policy S-4.823 Allow dDevelopment within the floodway fringe, shall only be allowed if the proposed structures can be adequately flood-proofed and will not contribute to property damage or risks to public 
safety. (AI 25, 60) Such developments shall be required to be capable of withstanding flooding and minimize the use of fill. Compatible uses shall not, however, obstruct flows or adversely 
affect upstream or downstream properties with increased velocities, erosion backwater effects, or concentrations of flows.  


Policy S-4.1024 Require all proposed projects anywhere in the county Wildomar to address and mitigate any adverse impacts that it may have on to the carrying capacity of local and regional storm drain 


systems. 


Policy S-25 Collaborate with neighboring jurisdictions to mitigate the impacts of new development in the City of Wildomar that could increase runoff onto parcels downstream in a neighboring jurisdiction 
and encourage neighboring jurisdictions to require development occurring adjacent to the city to consider the impact of flooding and flood-control measures on properties within Wildomar. 


Policy S-26 Ensure that new development and infrastructure projects do not create or exacerbate flood risks elsewhere in Wildomar or in neighboring communities.  







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


August 2021 Page 15 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


Policy S-27 Update stormwater infrastructure design requirements as needed to maintain consistency with federal, state, and local regulatory requirements, prioritizing vulnerable communities.  


Policy S-28 Ensure that new development projects and retrofits to existing large-scale projects incorporate design strategies and features to reduce the area of impervious surfaces and flood risks with 
natural drainage, as well as groundwater replenishment. 


Policy S-29 Identify areas of poor drainage and install new or upgrade existing drainage systems to accommodate drainage needs. Use natural infrastructure to the extent possible. 


Policy S-30 Projects, including public facilities and other facilities essential for emergencies and large public assembly, within the area mapped as the City Regulatory Floodplain by the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency, shall not be approved unless the project is adequately protected from flood hazards, incorporates all required flood protection specific to that area in 
accordance with City ordinances and guidelines, and will not result in any increase in flood levels during the occurrence of a flood event. Such facilities shall have at least two routes for 
emergency egress and ingress, and the project design shall minimize the potential for debris or flooding to block emergency routes, either through the construction of dikes, bridges, or 
large-diameter storm drains under roads used for primary access.  


Policy S-31 Existing essential, dependent-care, and high-risk facilities not in conformance with provisions of the City of Wildomar zoning shall be required to upgrade or modify building use to a level 
of safety consistent with the inundation risk. 


Policy S-32 Development using, storing, or otherwise involved with substantial quantities of on-site hazardous materials shall not be permitted within a 100-year floodplain or dam inundation zone, 
unless all standards for evaluation, anchoring, and flood-proofing have been satisfied. Hazardous materials shall be stored in watertight containers, not capable of floating, to the extent 
required by state and federal laws and regulations. Facilities storing substantial quantities of hazardous materials within inundation zones shall be adequately flood-proofed and hazardous 
materials containers shall be anchored and secured to prevent flotation and contamination.  


Policy S-4.14733 Require that dependent Dependent-care facilities shall be required to have all flood-vulnerable electrical circuitry flood-proofed. (AI 101) 


Policy S-4.15734 Require that High-risk facilities, such as essential public and quasi-public facilities and hazardous materials sites, shall be required to maintain and rehearse inundation response plans.  


Policy S-4.16735 Utilize power of public land acquisition and other land use measures to create open space zoning of inundation zones in areas that are destined for redevelopment; when this is not feasible, 
low density land uses should be employed. (AI 25) Utilize Use power of public land acquisition and other land use measures to create open space zoning of inundation zones in non-
developed areas subject to flooding, as mapped by the Federal Emergency Management Agency. In areas that are destined for redevelopment; when this is not feasible and subject to 
flooding, low-density land uses should be employed. (AI 25)encouraged and developers shall be required to meet Wildomar’s minimum level of acceptable risk and incorporate mitigation 
measures, where feasible.  


Policy S-4.1736 Continue to assess the flood risk within Wildomar and upgrade inundation risk facilities and protection in the County. (AI 83, 88)infrastructure at risk, prioritizing vulnerable communities.  


Policy S-4.1837 Require that the design-Designs and upgrade upgrades of street storm drains shall be based on the depth of inundation, relative risk to public health and safety, the potential for hindrance 
of emergency access and regress from excessive flood depth, and the threat of contamination of the storm drain system with sewage effluent. In general, the 10-year flood flows shall be 
contained within the top of curbs and the 100-year flood flows within the street right-of-way. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


Page 16 PlaceWorks 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


Policy S-4.1938 Encourage periodic reevaluation of During updates to the Safety Element, the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, or at other times as appropriate, review the 500-year, 100-year, and 10-year 
flood hazard in the county city by state, federal, county, and other sources standards, and use such studies sources to improve existing protection, to review protection standards proposed 
for new development and redevelopment, and to update emergency response plans. (AI 59, 60, 83, 88), and evaluate how low-income areas may be disproportionately affected.  


Policy S-39 Promote flood-control measures that maintain natural conditions within Wildomar’s regulatory floodplain of rivers and streams.  


Policy S-4.2140 Encourage the use of Specific Plans to allow increased densities in certain areas of a proposed development; or apply Transfer of Development Credits to encourage the placement of 
appropriate land uses in natural hazard areas, including open space, passive recreational uses, or other development capable of tolerating better adapting to these hazards. (AI 25)  


Policy S-4.2241 Take an active role in acquiring property in high-risk flood zones and designating the land as open space for public use or wildlife habitat. (AI 59) 


Goal S-4. To avoid the risk of loss of life and injury and minimize risk of property damage, community disruption, and economic loss resulting from urban and wildland fires. 


Policy S-5.144 Develop and enforce construction and design standards that ensure that proposed development incorporates fire prevention features through the following: 


(a) All proposed development and construction within Fire Hazard Severity Zones shall be reviewed by the Riverside County Fire Department and Wildomar Building and Safety 
departments. Department for consistency with the following requirements before the issuance of any building permits: 


(b) (1) All proposed development and construction shall meet minimum state, county, and local standards for fire safety as defined in the Riverside County City of Wildomar Building 
or County Fire Codes, or by County zoning, or as dictated by the Building Official or the Transportation Land Management Agency based on building type, design, occupancy, 
and use. 


(c) (2) In addition to the standards and guidelines of the California Building Code, and California Fire Code, the Wildomar Municipal Code, and other appropriate fire safety provisions, 
continue to implement developments shall incorporate additional standards for high-risk, high- occupancy, and dependent, and essential facilities where appropriate under the 
Riverside County City of Wildomar Fire Code (Ordinance No. 787) Protection Ordinance. These shall include assurance that structural and nonstructural architectural elements 
of the building will not impede emergency egress for fire safety staffing/personnel, equipment, and apparatus; nor hinder evacuation from fire, including potential blockage of 
stairways or fire doors. 


(d) (3) Proposed development and construction in Very Fire Hazard Severity Zones shall provide secondary public access, in accordance with Riverside County Ordinances City of 
Wildomar ordinances. There shall be multiple points of ingress and egress that allow for emergency response vehicle access. Points of access shall also include visible street 
signs and sufficient water supplies and infrastructure for structural fire suppression. 


(e) (4) Proposed development and construction in Very Fire Hazard Severity Zones shall use single loaded roads to enhance fuel modification areas, unless otherwise determined 
by the Riverside County Fire Chief. 


(f) (5) Proposed development and construction in Very Fire Hazard Severity Zones shall provide a defensible space or fuel modification zones to be located, designed, and 
constructed that and maintained to provide adequate defensibility from wildfires. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


August 2021 Page 17 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


 (6) Prior to the approval of all parcel maps and tentative maps, the City shall require as a condition of approval, the developer meet or exceed the California Fire and Building 
Code, including Title 14 Regulations, particularly those regarding road standards for ingress, egress, and fire equipment access (see California Government Code, Section 
66474.02.).  


Policy S-5.345 Monitor fire-prevention measures (such as e.g., fuel reduction) required through a site specific fire-prevention plan to reduce long-term fire risks in the Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones. 


Policy S-5.546 Encourage Require proposed development in Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones to develop be located where fire and emergency services are available or planned. 


S 5.6 Demonstrate that will be constructed as part of the proposed development can provide fire activities. These services that shall meet the minimum travel times identified in Riverside County 


Fire Department Fire Protection and EMS Emergency Management Services’ Strategic Master Plan. 


Policy S-5.747 Minimize pockets of flammable vegetation that increase likelihood of fire spread through Require that conceptual landscaping plans to for development in Very High Fire Hazard Severity 
Zones Identified by CAL FIRE and shown in Figure 7-0 be reviewed by Planning and Fire Departments in prior to the Fire Hazard Severity Zones issuance of development permits. The 


conceptual landscaping plan of the proposed development shall, at a minimum, include: 


a. (1) Plant Site plan, planting plan, planting palette, suitable for high fire hazard areas and irrigation plan to reduce the risk of fire hazards with consideration to site conditions, including 
slope, structures, and adjacencies. 


b. Retention of existing natural vegetation to the maximum extent feasible.  


c. Removal of onsite combustible plants. 


(2) Defensible space maintenance plan. 


Policy S-5.848 Design Site design for development in Very Fire Hazard Severity Zones shall be required to account for topography of a site topographical conditions and reduce the increased risk from 


fires in the Fire Hazard Severity Zones for sites located near ridgelines, plateau escarpments, saddles, hillsides, peaks, or other areas where the terrain or topography affect its susceptibility 


to wildfires by: 


a. (1) Providing fuel modification zones with removal of combustible vegetation, but while minimizing visual impacts and limiting soil erosion. 


b. (2) Replacing combustible vegetation with fire resistant vegetation to stabilize slopes. 


c. (3) Submitting topographic map with site specific slope analysis. 


d. (4) Submitting erosion and sedimentation control plans. 


e. (5) Providing a minimum 30- foot of setback from the edge of the fuel modification zones. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


Page 18 PlaceWorks 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


f. (6) Minimizing disturbance of 25% percent or greater natural slopes. 


Policy S-49 Locate new critical public facilities outside of Fire Hazard Severity Zones. Critical facilities include emergency shelters, emergency command and communication facilities, and hospital and 
healthcare centers. If no feasible alternative site exists, ensure that these facilities incorporate all necessary protections to allow them to continue to serve community needs during and 
after disaster events. 


Policy S-50 Site all new non-critical public facilities in areas outside of identified fire hazard severity zones and wildland-urban interface or fire threat areas, as feasible.  


Policy S-5.1151 Utilize Use ongoing brush clearance fire inspections to educate homeowners and residents on fire prevention tips by implementing an annual countywide citywide weed abatement program. 
(AI 96), especially in vulnerable communities. 


Policy S-52 Coordinate with the County of Riverside Fire Department and CAL FIRE to develop high-visibility fire prevention programs, including those offering voluntary home inspections and promoting 
awareness of home fire prevention measures. 


Policy S-54 Continue to work cooperatively with CAL FIRE to strengthen fire-fighting capabilities and successfully respond to multiple fires.  


Policy S-55 Maintain inter-jurisdictional cooperation and coordination, including automatic aid agreements with fire protection/suppression agencies in Riverside County. 


Policy S-5.1356 Develop a program to utilize use existing nearby reservoirs, such as Railroad Canyon, tanks, and water wells in the county city for emergency fire suppression water sources. 


Policy S-5.1457 When updating the Safety Element, the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, or at other times as appropriate, review inter-jurisdictional fire response agreements, and improve firefighting resources 


as recommended in the Riverside County Fire Department Fire Protection Plan and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Strategic Master Plan to keep pace with development, including 


construction of additional high-rises, mid-rise business parks, increasing numbers of facilities housing immobile populations, and the risk posed by multiple ignitions, to ensure that (AI 4, AI 


88): 


• Fire reporting and response times do not exceed the goals listed in the Riverside County Fire Department Fire Protection Plan and EMS Strategic Master Plan identified for each of 


the development densities described. 


• Fire-flow requirements (e.g., water for fire protection) are consistent with Riverside County Ordinance 787City of Wildomar Fire Code. 


• The planned deployment and height of aerial ladders and other specialized equipment and apparatus are sufficient for the intensity of development desired. 


Policy S-5.1558 Continue to utilize use the Riverside County Fire Department Fire Protection Plan and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Strategic Master Plan as the base foundational document to 


implement the Safety Element’s goals and objectives of the Safety Element. 


Policy S-5.1659 Encourage property owners to utilize use clustering and Transfer of Development Rights (TDR) program when developing lands within Fire Hazard Severity Zones by: 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


August 2021 Page 19 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


• Restricting the development of a property through placement of conservation easement. 


• Acquiring the conservation easements similar to that of the Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP Program.). 


Policy S-5.1760 Identify, map, and update on an as-needed continual basis, the Fire Hazard Severity Zone maps. (Figure on an ongoing and as-needed basis. 


Policy S-5.1861 Coordinate with the Riverside County Fire Department to ensure that the Fire Department has appropriate municipal staffing and fire protection planning Office of the Fire Marshal staff that 


meet the needs of to address development pressure and adequately respond to long-range fire safety planning. 


Policy S-5.1962 Implement a coordination program with fire protection and emergency service providers to reassess fire hazards after wildfire events and to adjust fire prevention and suppression needs, 


as necessary. 


Policy S-5.2063 Coordinate with the Riverside County Fire Department to increase support for coordination among fire protection and emergency service providers. 


S 5.21 implement a long-term fire protection training and education program among government agencies and communities about fire protection. (AI 93) for the City of Wildomar and its 
citizens. 


Goal S-5. Equitable and healthy air quality so that no community bears the disproportionate burden of environmental hazards and health risks.   


Policy S-65 Require a cumulative health risk assessment, including consideration of truck traffic impacts, when a project potentially affects sensitive receptors in vulnerable communities, and require 
appropriate mitigation based on the findings of the assessment. 


Policy S-66 Require new development to locate sensitive receptors, such as homes, schools, playgrounds, sports fields, childcare centers, senior centers, and long-term health care facilities as far 
away as possible from significant pollution sources. 


Policy S-67 When evaluating air quality impacts of projects in vulnerable communities, use thresholds of significance that match or are more stringent than the air quality thresholds of significance 
identified in the current South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) Air Quality Guidelines. 


Policy S-68 Preserve, restore, and enhance natural landscapes in and near vulnerable communities for their role in improving air quality and community health. 


Policy S-69 Prioritize new street tree plantings and increase the tree canopy in vulnerable communities, in particular areas with high elevated concentration levels of diesel particulate, ozone, and 
PM2.5. 


Goal S-6. To avoid the risk of loss of life, injury, and serious illness and minimize damage to property and economic and social dislocations resulting from the use, transport, treatment, 
and disposal of hazardous materials and hazardous materials wastes. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


Page 20 PlaceWorks 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


Policy S-6.170 Enforce the land use policies and siting criteria related to hazardous materials and wastes through continued ongoing implementation of the programs identified in the County of Riverside 


Hazardous Waste Management Plan including the following: (AI 98) (CHWMP). 


 a. Ensure county businesses comply with federal, state and local laws pertaining to the management of hazardous wastes and materials including all Certified Unified Program Agency 


(CUPA) programs. 


 b. Ensure active public participation in hazardous waste and hazardous materials management decisions in Riverside County through the County’s land use and planning processes.  


 c. Encourage and promote the programs, practices, and recommendations contained in the Riverside County Hazardous Waste Management Plan, giving the highest waste management 


priority to the reduction of hazardous waste at its source. 


Policy S-71 Review all proposed development projects that manufacture, use, or transport hazardous materials for compliance with the CHWMP. Such projects shall provide a buffer zone, to be 
determined by the City, between the installation and property boundaries sufficient to protect public safety. 


Policy S-72 Require that applications for discretionary development projects that will generate hazardous wastes or use hazardous materials include detailed information on hazardous waste reduction, 
recycling, and storage. 


Policy S-73 Ensure that industrial facilities are constructed and operated in accordance with current safety and environmental protection standards. 


Policy S-74 Regulate the storage of hazardous materials and wastes and require secondary containment and period examination for all such materials. 


Policy S-75 Require that any business that handles a hazardous material prepare a plan for emergency response to a release or threatened release of a hazardous material, including providing updated 
information to emergency responders on the type and quantity of hazardous materials kept on-site. 


Policy S-76 Identify sites that are inappropriate for hazardous material storage, maintenance, use, and disposal facilities due to potential impacts on adjacent land uses and the surrounding natural 
environment. Prohibit the siting of new or expanded hazardous material sites on such sites, including areas identified as vulnerable communities. 


Policy S-77 Ensure that the use and disposal of hazardous materials in Wildomar complies with local, state, and federal safety standards. 


Policy S-78 Require commercial businesses, utilities, and industrial facilities that handle hazardous materials to install automatic fire and hazardous materials detection, reporting, and shut-off devices, 
and install an alternative communication system in the event power is out or telephone service is saturated following an earthquake, as required by the Wildomar Fire Code. 


Policy S-79 Prohibit any new facilities using, storing, or producing hazardous materials from being located directly adjacent to existing residential or school uses. 


Policy S-80 Encourage use of on-site green infrastructure to protect and enhance community water quality with landscape design (e.g., berms, grasslands, plantings) to either contain released 
hazardous materials or to process and/or absorb pollutants from infiltrating the soil or watershed. 


Policy S-81 Advocate for and coordinate with local, regional, and state agencies in efforts to remediate or treat contaminated surface water, groundwater, or soils in or affecting vulnerable communities. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


August 2021 Page 21 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


Policy S-82 Coordinate with state and federal agencies to ensure community safety from any radioactive material transported on Interstate 15. 


Goal S-7. To ensure the maintenance of an Emergency Management Response Plan to effectively prepare for, respond to, recover from, and mitigate the effects of natural and human-
caused disasters. 


Policy S-7.183 Continually strengthen Implement the Riverside County Emergency Management Department’s Response Plan and Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (as approved by FEMA, 


the latest approved version is available online at planning.rctlma.org/LHMP) and maintain mutual aid agreements with federal, state, local agencies and the private sector to assist in: 


 a. (1) Clearance of debris in the event of widespread slope failures, collapsed buildings or structures, or other circumstances that could result in blocking emergency access or regress. 


 a. (2) Heavy search and rescue. 


 a. (3) Fire suppression. 


 a. (4) Hazardous materials response. 


 a. (5) Temporary shelter. 


 a. (6) Geologic and engineering needs. 


 a. (7) Traffic and crowd control. 


 a. (8) Building inspection. 


Policy S-84 Provide alerts about potential, developing, and ongoing emergency situations through extensive early-warning and notification systems that convey information to all residents, in multiple 
languages and formats to ensure it is widely accessible. 


Policy S-85 Ensure residents that speak languages other than English have access to communication, educational materials, and assistance in evacuation, short-term, and long-term recovery activities. 


Policy S-7.486 Use incentives and disincentives to persuade encourage private businesses, consortiums, and neighborhoods to be self-sufficient in an emergency by maintaining a fire control plan, 


including an onsite fire fighting on-site firefighting capability and volunteer fire response teams to respond to and extinguish small fires;, and identifying medical personnel or residents 
capable and certified in first-aid and CPR. 


• identifying medical personnel or local residents who are capable and certified in first aid and CPR. 


Policy S-7.587 Conduct regional earthquake citywide drills and, where for earthquakes and other hazards as appropriate: (AI 82)  







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


Page 22 PlaceWorks 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


• utilize Use the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s HAZUS results in the Technical Background Report Program to develop internal scenarios for emergency response; and  


• test back-up power generators in public facilities and other critical facilities taking part in the earthquake drill. During emergency drills, encourage communication and cooperation 
between emergency response staff and designated contacts at hospitals, high-occupancy buildings, and dependent-care facilities.  


Policy S-88 Develop a system to respond to short-term increases in hazard on the southern San Andreas Fault, based on probabilities associated with foreshocks.  


Policy S-89 As feasible, install solar energy and battery backup systems at critical public and private facilities to ensure continuation of services if the power grid is disrupted. 


Policy S-7.690 Maintain and continue to improve management and emergency dissemination of information using portable computers with geographic information systems (GIS) and disaster-resistant 


Internet access, to obtain: (AI 86) 


• Hazardous Materials Disclosure Program Business Plans regarding the location and type of hazardous materials; 


• Real-time information on seismic, geologic, or flood hazards; and 


• The locations of high-occupancy, immobile populations, potentially hazardous building structures, utilities, and other lifelines. 


Policy S-91 Continue to improve information sharing, coordination, and collaboration among public agencies, disadvantaged and vulnerable communities, and community-based organizations. 


Policy S-92 Regularly review and clarify emergency evacuation plans for dam failure, flood inundation, fire, and hazardous materials releases. The City shall also continue to maintain, periodically 
update, and test the effectiveness of the Emergency Operations Plan and develop plans for short-term and long-term post-disaster recovery. 


Policy S-93 Maintain a City Emergency Operations Plan to include the National Incident Management System (N.I.M.S.). 


Policy S-94 Coordinate with local and State Emergency Management agencies using the Standardized Emergency Management System (S.E.M.S.) and National Incident Management System 
(N.I.M.S.) to facilitate multi-agency emergency response. 


Policy S-95 Monitor the effectiveness of public safety, preparedness, and hazard mitigation policies under changing climate conditions to continue to protect the community as local and regional 
conditions change.  


Policy S-96 Regularly update all appropriate planning documents, including the Safety Element, the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, emergency operations plans, and other public safety plans, and 
ensure these updates integrate adaptation considerations for climate-related hazards.  


Policy S-97 Develop a blueprint for managing evacuation plans, including allocation of buses, designation and protection of disaster routes to maximize capacity and redundancy, and creation of traffic-
control contingencies. Ensure that evacuation transportation services are available for those with limited mobility or lacking access to a personal vehicle.  







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


August 2021 Page 23 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


Policy S-98 Coordinate with utility companies to minimize service interruptions, such as Public Safety Power Shutoffs, before, during, and after hazardous conditions, including options to harden and 
underground utility lines.  


Policy S-99 Adopt inundation alert and readiness levels corresponding with official forecasts by the State Office of Emergency Services, regarding earthquake prediction and potential for dam failure. 


Policy S-7.9102 Find alternatives that improve site safety for the protection of Identify critical facilities. Property acquisition for open space, change in building use or occupancy, or other appropriate 
measures can be employed hazard-prone areas and work to reduce risks posed by hazards. (AI 101) relocate or harden these facilities to reduce risk of damage and loss of service.  


Policy S-7.11103 Coordinate with the Public Utilities Commission (PUC) and/or utilize use the Capital Improvement Program, to strengthen, relocate, or take other appropriate measures to safeguard high-
voltage lines, water, sewer, natural gas and petroleum pipelines, and trunk electrical and telephone conduits that (AI 4):. 


• Extend through areas of high liquefaction potential. 


• Cross active faults. 


• Traverse earth cracks or landslides. 


Policy S-7.12104 Require extra additional design considerations for lifelines across within subsidence areas. 


Policy S-105 Communicate climate risks to energy utilities and request they ensure that new and upgraded infrastructure is climate resilient. 


Policy S-106 During the development review process, when developing alternatives and adaptation projects for consideration, the city shall require applicants to identify natural infrastructure that may 
be used through the conservation, preservation, or sustainable management of open space to reduce climate change hazards, where feasible.  


Policy S-107 Establish a network of equitably located resilience hubs throughout Wildomar and ensure that resilience hubs are situated outside of areas at risk from hazard impacts to the extent possible, 
offer refuge from extreme heat and extreme weather events, as well as poor air quality and disasters, and are equipped with renewable energy generation and backup power supplies. 
Such facilities should be in easily accessible locations and be available to all community members, including vulnerable communities, as needed. Resilience hubs consist of well‐used, 
existing community‐serving facilities that are upgraded to provide local communities with shelter, water, and electricity during these events or disasters. 


Policy S-108 Ensure that all public services, municipal operations, and critical facilities can continue operating during and after a hazard or emergency event to meet community needs to the greatest 
extent possible. 


Policy S-109 Prohibit development of critical facilities that are proposed in dam failure, inundation, fire and areas unless no feasible alternative exists and apply hazardous materials releases. (AI 88) 
safety guidelines within such zones. 


Policy S-110 Conduct public outreach and education efforts to inform people in Wildomar of the hazard risks, vulnerabilities, and threats in the community, especially in vulnerable communities, and 
what steps community members should take to reduce their risks and provide all materials and information in both English and Spanish by default, as well as any other languages, as 
requested. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


Page 24 PlaceWorks 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


Policy S-7.20111 Forge assertive liaisons productive working relationships and foster good communication with researchers, other government agencies, and providers of mitigation services. 


Policy S-7.21112 The City shall coordinate and share data, experience, and strategies with other emergency management agencies in state or regional efforts on disaster preparedness coordination and 
disaster response procedures. 


Policy S-7.22113 Maximize use of technology and the Internet. (AI 94, 99) 


S 7.23 Make the County of Riverside Hazard Management web site into a knowledge resource for Riverside County officials, educators, developers, builders, and the general to effectively distribute 
emergency communications and alerts to members of the public. (AI 94, 95, 99) to improve resiliency. 


Policy S-114 Ensure that communication systems used by emergency responders and key City staff have sufficient redundancy and resiliency to meet City needs during and after a hazard event. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 
 


August 2021 Page 25 


Proposed Goals and Policies 


Goal S-8. To ensure a resilient community able to adapt to climate-related hazards. 


Policy S-115 Collaborate with local governments and special districts in western Riverside County as well as with Inland Southern California Climate Collaborative to develop and implement regional 
climate change adaptation and resilience initiatives. 


Policy S-116 Support implementation of the Resilient IE project to foster increased community resilience to climate-related hazards in Wildomar and across the wider region. 


Policy S-117 Use the reported data and findings of applicable local, regional, or state documents or plans pertaining to climate-related hazards that could impact the City of Wildomar, including the 
California Climate Change Assessment, the California Adaptation Planning Guide, and the Safeguarding California Plan. 


Policy S-118 Prepare for a reduced, long-term water supply resulting from more frequent and severe drought events, including working with regional water providers to implement extensive water 
conservation measures and ensure sustainable water supplies.  


Policy S-119 Renovate existing City-owned assets and design future facilities to incorporate renewable energy generation systems, battery storage systems, and energy-efficient design and features, 
as feasible. 


Policy S-120 Coordinate with water agencies and irrigation districts to explore ways to improve and increase storage capacity and generation efficiency. 


Policy S-121 Work with healthcare providers to support free or reduced-cost vaccinations for vector-borne diseases that are widely available for Wildomar residents. 


Policy S-122 Coordinate with local governments and Riverside Transit Agency to increase shading and heat-mitigating materials on pedestrian walkways and transit stops. 


Policy S-123 Ensure that unhoused persons or groups in the City of Wildomar have access to temporary and/or emergency housing, food, and other essential living materials to keep them safe during 
anticipated hazard events. 


Policy S-124 Encourage new developments and existing property owners to incorporate sustainable, energy-efficient, and environmentally regenerative features into their facilities, landscapes, and 
structures to reduce energy demands and improve on-site resilience. Support financing efforts to increase community access to these features. 


Policy S-125 Ensure that lower-income households have access to low-cost programs (e.g., subsidies for National Flood Insurance Program participation, air-conditioning, low-cost healthcare) to protect 
their homes and wellbeing from climate-related hazards.  


Policy S-126 Promote and expand the use of drought‐tolerant green infrastructure, including street trees and landscaped areas, as part of cooling strategies in public and private spaces.  


Policy S-127 Use natural resources and infrastructure to absorb the impacts of climate-related hazards and associated natural hazards, as feasible. 


Policy S-128 Ensure that workers in outdoor industries have the training and resources to be adequately protected from environmental hazards, including extreme heat, poor air quality, and diseases. 


Policy S-129 Encourage the use of high-reflectivity pavement in new or significantly retrofitted large-scale paving projects, such as parking lots. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 


Page 26 PlaceWorks 


As shown in Table 1-1 and Table 1-2, the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element and 2021 Safety Element 
consolidate many programs from the previous Housing Element and Safety Element to aid in implementation 
and eliminate redundancy. Except as shown in Table 1-2, all existing Safety Element goals and policies will 
remain in place. In response to potential impacts of  wildfires and climate change, the City is proposing to 
update its Safety Element to ensure adequate emergency response and preventative measures are in place. These 
goals and policies will help increase the climate change resiliency of  the population, built environment, 
economy, and natural environment within the city. 


The following 19 amended programs are included in the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element (Note: the 
following programs are modified using italic underline or strikeout to indicate changes to the amended programs): 


 Program H-1.2: Large Sites. The City will provide for the inclusion of  mixed-income housing in future 
new growth areas of  the city through development agreements, specific plans, and other mechanisms. To 
facilitate the development of  affordable housing on parcels (that can accommodate 50 to 150 units in size), the 
City will routinely give high priority to processing subdivision maps that include affordable housing units. 
Also, an expedited review process will be available for the subdivision of  larger sites into buildable lots 
where the development application can be found consistent with the General Plan, applicable Specific Plan, 
and master environmental impact report. 


The City will offer the following incentives for the development of  affordable housing on large sites, which may include, but is 
not limited to: 
 Streamlining and expediting the approval process for land division for projects that include affordable housing units,   
 Ministerial review of  lot line adjustments,  
 Deferral of  fees related to the subdivision for projects affordable to lower-income households, and 
 Providing technical assistance to acquire funding. 


 Program H-31.1: Updated Land Available Sites Inventory. The City will establish a Land monitor the 
Available Sites Inventory that provides the mechanism to monitor acreage and location, by General Plan 
designation, of  vacant and underutilized land, annually as well as buildout of  approved projects, utilizing 
projects are processed through the Planning Department to ensure sufficient capacity is maintained to accommodate the City’s 
GIS remaining RHNA numbers. 


 Program H-3.22.1: Strategic Planning Opportunities. Utilize Use the City’s GIS to facilitate preliminary 
strategic planning studies to identify vacant or underutilized commercial properties for infill construction 
or adaptive reuse in high-density areas. The City will identify the sites with GIS and do a visual assessment to confirm 
their current use. 


 Program H-8.17.1: Incentives for Development of  Housing. The City will offer fast track/priority 
processing, density bonuses, and fee subsidies (when feasible) to developers proposing new housing, mixed-
use, or infill projects affordable to lower-income households, farmworkers, seniors, and other special needs 
groups including persons with physical and developmental disabilities. The intent of  these incentives is to increase 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 


August 2021 Page 27 


the supply of  affordable housing in areas with lower median incomes to reduce displacement risk for these residents and in 
high resource areas to promote housing mobility through affordable housing near areas of  opportunity. 


 Program H-10.1: Second Units H-9.1: Accessory Dwelling Units. In order to comply with AB 1866, 
the City will permit secondary dwelling units via a ministerial action (by right) in all single-family residential 
zones. The City will amend the Wildomar Municipal Code to allow Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) in all non-
residential zones that permit single-family or multifamily uses, in accordance with California Government Code Section 
65852.150. The City will promote ADU development by providing guidance and educational materials on the City’s website 
and will promote these materials in high resource areas to encourage affordable housing in areas of  high opportunity to reduce 
displacement risk and improve access to opportunity and services. Information will include the advantages of  building ADUs, 
including permitting procedures and construction resources. The City will also work with City Council to identify possible 
incentives for the development of  ADUs. 


 Program H-1311.1: Extremely Low-Income Households. AB2634 California Government Code Section 
65583(a) requires the City to identify zoning to encourage and facilitate housing suitable for extremely low-
income households, such as supportive housing and single-room occupancy units. Housing for extremely low-
income households will provide affordable housing for persons at risk of  homelessness to minimize displacement risk. The 
City will encourage encourages the development of  housing for extremely low-income households through 
a variety of  activities, such as performing outreach to housing developers on at least an annual basis, 
providing financial (when feasible) or in-kind technical assistance or land write-downs, providing expedited 
processing, identifying grant and funding opportunities, applying for or supporting applications for funding 
on an ongoing basis, reviewing and prioritizing local funding at least twice in the planning period, and/or 
offering additional incentives beyond the density bonus.  


In addition, the City will allow single-room occupancy units to be permitted in the R-4 and R-6 residential 
designations with a conditional use permit. 


 Program H-13.2: Farmworkers H-11.4: Farmworker Housing. The City will amend its Zoning 
Ordinance in an effort to comply with Sections 17021.5 and 17021.6 of  the Health and Safety Code. In 
addition, the City will allow for farmworker housing in the A-1, A-2, and R-A zones by right. the Wildomar 
Municipal Code to treat employee/farmworker housing that serves six or fewer persons as a single-family structure and permit 
it in the same manner as other single-family structures of  the same type within the same zone across all zones that allow single-
family residential uses. The amendment will also treat employee/farmworker housing consisting of  no more than 12 units or 
36 beds as an agricultural use and permit it in the same manner as other agricultural uses in the same zone, in compliance 
with the California Employee Housing Act (Health and Safety Code Sections 17021.5 and 17021.6). The City will also 
remove the Farm Labor Camp, Migrant Agricultural Workers Mobile Home Park, and Agricultural Mobile Home uses 
from the Wildomar Municipal Code as employee/farmworker housing will replace the Farm Labor Camp and mobile homes 
and mobile home parks for farmworkers are treated the same as any other mobile home or mobile home park in the City. 


 Program H-13.411.2: Residential Care Facilities. SB 520 requires residential care facilities of  six or 
fewer persons to be permitted in all residential zones. Currently, residential care homes with six or fewer 
persons are permitted in some zones with a conditional use permit. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 


Page 28 PlaceWorks 


The City will revise the current regulations to meet state law requirements. The City will amend the Zoning 
Ordinance to allow for residential care facilities with six or fewer persons by right in all residential zones 
subject only to the same restriction in that zone, and will allow larger explore amending provisions in the Wildomar 
Municipal Code to allow State-licensed residential care facilities of for seven or more persons in the R-2 and R-
3 zones with a conditional use permit. Additionally, the City will amend the Zoning Ordinance to update 
its definition of  family to be consistent with current housing law only subject to those restrictions that apply to 
residential uses in the same zone or otherwise amending the Wildomar Municipal Code to make it easier to locate a State-
licensed residential care facility for seven or more persons in the City. Residential care facilities would still be subject to state 
licensing. Increasing the areas in which large residential care facilities are allowed would assist in creating housing for special 
needs groups near services; the City will encourage developers to site residential care facilities near high resource areas to improve 
access to services for this population. 


 Program H-16.1: Emergency Shelters H-13.1: Homeless Housing . Pursuant to SB 2, the City will 
allow emergency shelters as a permitted use (by right) in the Industrial Park (I-P) zone without a conditional 
use permit or other discretionary review. The I-P zone is close to services and future transit as development 
occurs. In addition, the City will evaluate adopting development and managerial standards by right. The City 
will amend the Wildomar Municipal Code to allow low-barrier navigation centers for the homeless by right in zones that will 
be consistent with allow for mixed-use and nonresidential zones permitting multifamily uses, per California Government 
Code Section 65583(a)(4). These standards may include such items as: 65662 to improve access to services for 
persons experiencing, or at risk of, homelessness. The City will also allow sufficient parking to accommodate all staff  working 
in the emergency shelter, provided that the standards do not require more parking for emergency shelters than other residential 
or commercial uses within the same zone, in compliance with Government Code Section 65583(a)(4)(A)(ii)). The City will 
work with developers to identify potential sites for emergency shelters and low barrier navigation centers in high resource areas 
to improve access to services and mobility for persons experiencing homelessness. 


 Lighting 
 On-site management 
 Maximum number of  beds or persons to be served nightly by the facility 
 Off-street parking based on demonstrated need  
 Security during hours that the emergency shelter is in operation 


 Program H-17.114.1: Rehabilitation Program. The City will pursue grant opportunities to create a 
rehabilitation program. The City will apply for HOME funding for this program and will work with the 
County to obtain available redevelopment agency funds to be used, as available, for place-based revitalization in 
areas with concentrated poverty or rehabilitation need. 


 Program H-18.115.1: Code Enforcement. The City’s Code Enforcement staff  is responsible for ensuring 
compliance with building and property maintenance codes. Code Enforcement handles complaints on a 
reactive basis and deals with a variety of  issues, including property maintenance, abandoned vehicles, and 
housing conditions. The City will continue to use Code Enforcement, as well as Building Division, staff  to 
ensure compliance with building and property maintenance codes. The Code Enforcement program is 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 


August 2021 Page 29 


complaint-based. The City will also develop an enforcement program to prevent displacement or mitigate through assistance 
with relocation costs for lower-income households. 


 Program H-19.1: Preservation of  At-Risk Housing Units. State law requires jurisdictions to provide a 
program in their Housing Elements to preserve publicly assisted affordable housing projects at risk of  
converting to market-rate housing. The City will monitor contact property owners of  units at risk of  converting to 
market-rate housing within one year of  affordability expiration to discuss the status of  all City’s desire to preserve complexes 
as affordable housing projects. Participation from agencies interested in purchasing and, as their funding sources 
near expiration, /or managing at-risk units will work be sought. Coordinate with owners of  expiring subsidies to 
ensure tenants receive the required notices at 3 years, 6 months, and other agencies to consider options to preserve 
such units. 12 months, per California law. The City will also work with tenants to provide technical support to 
property owners and tenants education regarding proper tenant rights and conversion procedures related to 
noticing and options for preservation pursuant to California law. The City shall contact the Fair Housing Council of  
Riverside County to assist renters. 


Program H-2.1: Assistance with Affordable Projects, Program H-4.1: Funding Opportunities, and 
Program H-4.2: Available Housing Programs and Assistance, were combined and amended as one 
program – Program H-3.2: Assistance with Affordable Projects. 


 Program H-3.2: Assistance with Affordable Projects. To assist with the development of  affordable 
housing, when funding is available, the City shall: 


 Offer assistance with land acquisition and off-site infrastructure improvements, 
 Provide assistance with securing federal or state housing financing resources for affordable 


housing projects, and 
 As funding is available, provide financial support for production and subsidization of  low- and 


moderate-income housing, including housing for persons with special needs and developmental 
disabilities, with affordability requirements. 


Additionally, the City will publish and make available, to developers, housing development agencies, and 
City residents, the City’s Housing Element and updates and annual reports to ensure that the development 
community (both nonprofit and for-profit) is aware of  the housing programs, technical assistance, and 
available funding. The purpose of  these actions will be to increase the supply of  affordable housing both 
in areas with lower-median incomes and concentrated poverty to reduce displacement risk due to cost and 
in high resource areas to promote housing mobility opportunities. 


Program H-5.1: Homeownership Opportunities and Program H-12.1: Special Needs Housing were 
combined and amended as one program – Program H-4.1: Expand Housing Opportunities. 


 Program H-4.1: Expand Housing Opportunities. Work with local nonprofits and public and private 
sponsors to expand housing opportunities for lower-income households and special-needs persons to 
reduce displacement risk for these residents due to overpayment and overcome a shortage of  accessible 
housing and possible overcrowding by increasing housing mobility options. To encourage developers to 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 


Page 30 PlaceWorks 


provide affordable homeownership opportunities, the City will offer incentives, which may include, but are 
not limited to, fee waivers or deferrals, expedited permit processing, and/or reduced parking requirements 
based on the bedroom mix of  the project. Additionally, the City will offer similar incentives for the 
construction of  new rental housing for special-needs groups, including persons with physical and 
developmental disabilities. 


Program H-20.1: Fair Housing Program and Program H-21.1: Fair Housing Education were combined 
and amended as one program – Program H-17.1: Fair Housing. 


 Program H-17.1: Fair Housing. To comply with California Government Code Sections 8899.50, 
65583(c)(5), 65583(c)(10), 65583.2(a) (AB 686), the City will develop a plan to Affirmatively Further Fair 
Housing (AFFH). The AFFH Plan shall take actions to address significant disparities in housing access and 
needs for all persons regardless of  race, color, religion, sex, gender, sexual orientation, marital status, 
national origin, ancestry, familial status, source of  income, or disability, and any other characteristic 
protected by the California Fair Employment and Housing Act (Part 2.8, commencing with Section 12900, 
of  Division 3 of  Title 2), California Government Code Section 65008, and any other state and federal fair 
housing and planning law. 


Specific actions include: 
 Implement Programs H-4.1, H-7.1, and H-11.2 to affirmatively further fair housing, including 


targeting community revitalization through place-based programs, enhancing mobility between 
neighborhoods, and developing strategies to reduce displacement risk in areas with a higher 
concentration of  lower-income households and overpayment (e.g. Programs H-4.1 and H-14.1), 
and facilitating affordable housing in high opportunity areas (e.g. Programs H-9.1 and H-11.1). 


 By December 2021, the City will assign a point person to refer individuals, developers, landlords, 
and any other interested persons to the Fair Housing Council of  Riverside County. Promote the 
availability of  this service and other fair housing information on the City’s website. 


 Meet annually with fair housing service providers and enforcement organizations to track issues 
and identify patterns in Wildomar. 


 Meet with developers within one year of  Housing Element adoption to identify mechanisms to 
encourage construction of  housing units with three or more bedrooms. Strategies may include 
incentives such as fee waivers, parking reductions, or density bonuses. 


 Ensure that public outreach is accessible to all people by offering translation services at all public 
meetings and workshops, in addition to bilingual written materials.  


 Conduct targeted outreach to underrepresented groups by recruiting them to participate in the 
public outreach process and apply to committees through coordinating with service providers and 
posting information in grocery stores and public buildings. 


 Provide biannual training for landlords on fair housing responsibilities, discriminatory practices, 
and the benefits of  marketing their housing units to Housing Choice Voucher program 
participants. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 


August 2021 Page 31 


 Meet with disability service providers, including the Inland Regional Center, to identify whether 
there is unmet demand anywhere in the city by March 2022. If  an unmet demand is realized, work 
with providers to secure funding to expand services by March 2023. 


 Meet with school districts by June 2022 to assess whether existing and projected need can be 
accommodated with existing facilities. If  not, work with developers in underserved areas to identify 
sites for new school facilities. 


 Meet annually with the Riverside Transit Agency to assess unmet transit needs in the city and 
expand routes and frequency as needed. 


 By December 2022, develop a targeted program to connect lower-income residents with affordable 
homeownership and rental opportunities within the city. 


 Within one year of  Housing Element adoption, review open space requirements for new 
developments and revise as necessary to ensure all new units have access to outdoor spaces. 


 Within 6 months of  housing element adoption, provide a link on the City’s website to Riverside 
County’s CalWORKs program to assist lower-income households to enter or reenter the 
workforce. 


The following two programs are new to the City and are included in the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element: 


 Program H-1.3: Mixed-Use Development. To promote mixed-use development, the City will provide 
regulatory and financial incentives to increase the probability that residences will be constructed on mixed-
use sites. The City will offer the following regulatory and financial incentives, including, but not limited to, 
financial assistance (based on availability of  federal, state, local, and private housing funds), expedited 
development review, streamlined development application processing, modification of  development 
requirements, such as reduced parking standards for seniors and special-needs housing on a case-by-case 
basis. 


 Program H-11.3: Persons with Developmental Disabilities. The City will work with the Inland 
Regional Center to implement an outreach program that informs families within the City about housing 
and services available for persons with developmental disabilities. The program could include developing 
an informational brochure, posting information about services on the City’s website, and/or providing 
housing-related training for individuals/families through workshops. 


1.4 PURPOSE OF AN EIR ADDENDUM 


According to CEQA Guidelines Section 15164(a), an addendum shall be prepared if  some changes or additions 
to a previously adopted EIR are necessary, but none of  the conditions enumerated in CEQA Guidelines 
Sections 15162(a)(1)–(3) calling for the preparation of  a subsequent EIR have occurred. As stated in CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15162 (Subsequent EIRs and Negative Declarations): 


When an EIR has been certified or negative declaration adopted for a project, no subsequent EIR shall be 
prepared for that project unless the lead agency determines, on the basis of  substantial evidence in the light 
of  the whole record, one or more of  the following: 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 


Page 32 PlaceWorks 


(1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions of the 
previous EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant environmental 
effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; 


(2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is 
undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration due 
to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the 
severity of previously identified significant effects; or 


(3) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been 
known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as 
complete or negative declaration was adopted, shows any of the following: 


(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR or 
negative declaration; 


(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in 
the previous EIR; 


(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be 
feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but 
the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or 


(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed 
in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the 
environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or 
alternative. 


The proposed project would not result in any of  the conditions outlined in CEQA Guidelines Sections 
15162(a)(1)-(3) as the proposed changes would not result in new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of  previously identified significant effects requiring major revisions to the 
2013 Housing Element EIR. Accordingly, this checklist provides the substantial evidence required by CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15164(e) to support the finding that a subsequent EIR is not required and an addendum to 
the Housing Element EIR is the appropriate environmental document to address changes associated with the 
proposed project. 


As stated in CEQA Guidelines Section 15164 (Addendum to an EIR): 


(a) The lead agency or responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously certified 
EIR if some changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions described in 
Section 15162 calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred. 


(b) An addendum to an adopted negative declaration may be prepared if only minor technical 
changes or additions are necessary or none of the conditions described in Section 15162 
calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR or negative declaration have occurred. 


(c) An addendum need not be circulated for public review but can be included in or attached 
to the final EIR or adopted negative declaration. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR 


August 2021 Page 33 


(d) The decision-making body shall consider the addendum with the final EIR or adopted 
negative declaration prior to making a decision on the project. 


(e) A brief explanation of the decision not to prepare a subsequent EIR pursuant to Section 
15162 should be included in an addendum to an EIR, the lead agency’s findings on the 
project, or elsewhere in the record. The explanation must be supported by substantial 
evidence. 


A copy of  this addendum, and all supporting documentation, may be reviewed or obtained at the City of  
Wildomar Planning Department, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Wildomar, California 92595.  


 







 


August 2021 Page 34 


2. CEQA Analysis 


2.1 ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS 


The General Plan contains policies related to land use, circulation and infrastructure, housing, open space and 
conservation, community design, economic development, noise, and safety. The General Plan is largely 
designed to be self-mitigating by incorporating policies and implementation measures that address and mitigate 
related environmental impacts, such as zoning codes and design standards.  


As previously described in Section 1.2, the Housing Element EIR addresses potentially significant impacts 
related to biological resources; cultural and paleontological resources; geology, soils, and mineral resources; 
hydrology and water quality; and land use and planning. Table 1-1 shows that most of  the existing Housing 
Element policies will remain unchanged with the proposed project. The two new programs are either 
informative or would result in no physical change to the environment. The programs were modified to comply 
with California law, combine programs with similar intent to aid in implementation, or eliminate programs 
where the City has already completed the identified task. Municipal Code updates called for in these programs 
will bring the Municipal Code into conformity with State Law requirements that are already in effect in the city. 
Because these programs are already allowed under State law, the changes to the Housing Element programs 
would not change development potential in the city. In addition, as noted previously, the Housing Element does 
not change any land uses in the city; all sites identified in the Housing Element are designated for residential 
development and could be developed with residential uses without the 2021-2029 Housing Element. 


Program H-1.2: Large Sites, involves informational changes that include a reference to a set of  incentives 
offered by the City for the development of  affordable housing on large sites. Program H-3.1: Updated Land 
Inventory, involves informational changes that include a reference to the City monitoring the Available Sites 
Inventory annually as projects are processed and removes a reference to the City establishing a land inventory. 
Program H-3.2: Strategic Planning Opportunities, involves informational changes that include a reference to 
the City identifying vacant or underutilized commercial sites with GIS and conducting a visual assessment to 
confirm their current use. Program H-8.1: Incentives for Development of  Housing involves informational 
changes that include a reference to the intent of  incentives.  


Program H-10.1: Second Units, involves informational changes that include a reference to the City amending 
the Municipal Code to allow ADUs in all non-residential zones that permit single-family or multifamily uses 
and promoting ADU development by providing guidance and educational materials on the City’s website; it 
removes a reference to permitting secondary dwelling units by right in all single-family residential zones. 
Program 11.4: Farmworker Housing involves informational changes that include a reference to treating 
employee/farmworker housing that serves six or fewer persons as a single-family structure and permitting it in 
the same manner as other single-family structures of  the same type within the same zone across all zones that 
allow single-family residential uses, as well as treating employee/farmworker housing consisting of  no more 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


2. CEQA Analysis 


August 2021 Page 35 


than 12 units or 36 beds as an agricultural use and permitting it in the same manner as other agricultural uses 
in the same zone. 


Program H-13.1: Extremely Low-Income Households, involves informational changes that include a reference 
to housing for extremely low-income households that will provide affordable housing for persons at risk of  
homelessness to minimize displacement risk and removes a reference to the City allowing single-room 
occupancy units to be permitted in the R-4 and R-6 residential designations with a conditional-use permit. 
Program H-13.4: Residential Care Facilities, involves informational changes that remove a reference to the City 
amending the Zoning Ordinance to allow for residential care facilities with six or fewer persons by right in all 
residential zones subject only to the same restriction in that zone, and amending the Zoning Ordinance to 
update its definition of  family to be consistent with current housing law; and include a reference to explore 
amending provisions in the Municipal Code to allow State-licensed residential care facilities for seven or more 
persons subject to the restrictions applied to residential uses in the same zone. Program H-16.1: Emergency 
Shelters, involves informational changes that include a reference to the City amending the Municipal Code to 
allow low-barrier navigation centers for the homeless by right in zones that allow for mixed-use and 
nonresidential zones permitting multifamily uses and allow sufficient parking to accommodate all staff  working 
in the emergency shelter.  


Program H-17.1: Rehabilitation Program involves informational changes that include a reference to place-based 
revitalization in areas with concentrated poverty or rehabilitation need. Program H-18.1: Code Enforcement 
involves informational changes that include a reference to the City developing an enforcement program to 
prevent displacement or mitigate through assistance with relocation costs for lower-income households. 
Program H-19.1: Preservation of  At-Risk Housing Units, involves informational changes that include a 
reference to the City contacting property owners of  units at risk of  converting to market-rate housing within 
one year of  affordability expiration to discuss the City’s desire to preserve complexes as affordable housing, 
coordinating with tenants to provide education on tenant rights and conversion procedures, and contacting the 
Fair Housing Council of  Riverside County to assist renters. These changes would not result in a physical 
environmental effect. 


The following programs were combined and amended as one program to aid in their implementation as they 
were similar in intent: Program H-2.1: Assistance with Affordable Projects, Program H-4.1: Funding 
Opportunities, and Program H-4.2: Available Housing Programs and Assistance; Program H-5.1: 
Homeownership Opportunities and Program H-12.1: Special Needs Housing; and Program H-20.1: Fair 
Housing Program and Program H-21.1: Fair Housing Education. As such, these modifications to the existing 
programs would not result in any physical impacts on the environment. The proposed Housing Element 
consolidates many programs from the existing Housing Element to aid in implementation and eliminate 
redundancy. These changes would not result in a physical environmental effect. 


The two new programs represent changes that allow the City to amend the Wildomar Municipal Code to 
provide regulatory and financial incentives to promote mixed-use development; work with the Inland Regional 
Center to implement an outreach program that informs families within the City about housing and services 
available for persons with developmental disabilities. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


2. CEQA Analysis 


Page 36 PlaceWorks 


Moreover, the City maintains a thorough building permit review process that would ensure compliance with 
federal, state, and local regulations, such as dust control, stormwater runoff, and water quality prior to the 
issuance of  any building permit. Additionally, prior to issuance of  any building permit, a project applicant is 
required to pay development impact fees (Chapter 3.44 of  the municipal code), which would address potential 
impacts to public services. Although these amendments would allow development of  some facilities without a 
discretionary review, policies identified in the Housing Element EIR to reduce physical environmental effects 
would continue to apply to future development and would reduce impacts to the same significance level as 
identified in the Housing Element EIR. 


The proposed Housing Element establishes targets for the income accessibility of  future housing; however, the 
ability to construct the housing is based on designations in the Land Use Element. As the City can meet its 
RHNA without changing any land use designation, the Land Use Element remains unchanged from the 
document evaluated in the Housing Element EIR. The proposed Housing Element does not change the 
development pattern for the City, as shown in the Land Use Element of  the General Plan and the zoning map 
for the City. Physical change to the environment would occur from implementation of  the Land Use Element 
of  the General Plan, not the proposed Housing Element. Therefore, development of  housing as considered in 
the proposed Housing Element would be consistent with that analyzed in the Housing Element EIR.  


The proposed Safety Element would ensure compliance with SB 1241 (Government Code 65302(g)(3)), SB 379 
(Government Code 65302(g)(4)), and SB 99 (Government Code 65302(g)(5)). The proposed project consists 
of  updates to General Plan goals and policies, which by themselves will have no physical effect on the 
environment.  


As the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element and 2021 Safety Element do not change the existing land use 
pattern of  the city, or result in any physical change to the environment, and as the Housing Element EIR 
evaluated the existing land use pattern and includes policies and programs to address environmental impacts, 
the update to the Housing Element and Safety Element would not result in any new environmental impacts or 
increase the severity of  any environmental impacts previously evaluated in the Housing Element EIR.  


All future development in the city would be required to comply with local regulations, including the General 
Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and subdivision standards. These local regulations guide future development and 
would address potential physical impacts resulting from development. Moreover, the City’s Zoning Ordinance 
contains a list of  permitted uses for each respective zoning district. The Housing Element EIR evaluated 
permitted uses and anticipated physical impacts associated with development and would therefore result in no 
new impact as part of  development. As the proposed project does not change the permitted uses allowed by 
the Zoning Ordinance, there would be no new impact. Building regulations are applied as part of  the building 
permit process and are independent of  CEQA. Therefore, this process would be unaffected by the change to 
by-right zoning. Furthermore, significant impacts identified in the Housing Element EIR are mitigated through 
the incorporation of  policies and implementation measures, such as zoning codes and design standards. Future 
by-right development would still be subject to federal, state, and local policies regarding land use, such as the 
Migratory Bird Treaty Act, wetland conservation, and construction air quality permitting. These policies apply 
to all projects regardless of  whether a project is a discretionary action. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


2. CEQA Analysis 


August 2021 Page 37 


As the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element and 2021 Safety Element do not change any land use designation 
or zone district, the impacts of  the proposed project would be no more substantial than analyzed in the Housing 
Element EIR. No new mitigation measures are necessary. 


2.2 FINDING  


The discussion in this addendum confirms that the proposed project has been evaluated for significant impacts 
pursuant to CEQA. The discussion is meaningfully different than a determination that a project is “exempt” 
from CEQA review, because the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element and 2021 Safety Element update are 
not exempt. Rather, the determination here is that the 2013 Housing Element EIR evaluated the physical 
impacts likely to result from future development. As the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element does not 
change any land use designation or approve any development, the Housing Element EIR provides a sufficient 
and adequate analysis of  the environmental impacts of  the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element.  


There are no substantial changes in the circumstances or new information that was not known and could not 
have been known at the time of  the adoption of  the Housing Element EIR. The proposed project consists 
entirely of  land uses permitted by project sites’ existing General Plan land use designation and zoning and 
represents no change from the impacts that were assumed and analyzed by the Housing Element EIR.  


As a result, and for the reasons explained in this addendum, the project would not cause any new significant 
environmental impacts or substantially increase the severity of  significant environmental impacts disclosed in 
the Housing Element EIR. Thus, the proposed project does not trigger any of  the conditions in CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15162 allowing the preparation of  a subsequent EIR, and the appropriate environmental 
document as authorized by CEQA Guidelines Section 15164(b) is an addendum. Accordingly, this EIR 
addendum has been prepared.  


The following identifies the standards set forth in Section 15162 of  the CEQA Guidelines as they relate to the 
proposed project. The text that follows the provisions of  the law relates to the proposed 2021–2029 Housing 
Element and 2021 Safety Element. 


1. No substantial changes are proposed in the project which would require major revisions of the 
EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in 
the severity of previously identified significant effects. 


As discussed previously, the program changes included in the proposed Housing Element are limited to 
complying with State law, combining programs with similar intent to aid in implementation, or elimination 
of  programs where the City has already completed the identified task. The policy changes included in the 
proposed Safety Element are limited to complying with State law; ensuring adequate evacuation routes; and 
helping increase the climate change resiliency of  the population, built environment, economy, and natural 
environment within the city. As with the existing Safety Element, this document does not result in the 
approval of  any development project. The proposed project would not result in the rezoning of  land or 
approval of  any development project. All development in the city must be consistent with the General 
Plan, and if  a discretionary action, would also be subject to CEQA.  







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


2. CEQA Analysis 


Page 38 PlaceWorks 


The proposed changes to the Zoning Ordinance identified in Table 1-1 represent modification of  existing 
policy to either streamline development that is already allowed or make the code consistent with State law 
or implement new programs. As all the sites that these modified programs would affect are currently 
designated for development in the Land Use Element of  the General Plan, there would be no change in 
the physical impact associated with future development. Therefore, policies identified in the Housing 
Element EIR to reduce physical environmental effects would continue to apply to future development and 
would reduce impacts to the same significance level as identified in the Housing Element EIR.  


2. The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR. 


As discussed previously, the proposed Housing Element programs and Safety Element policies are similar 
to the existing policies of  the General Plan. The proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element includes 19 
amended programs and 2 new programs. As stated previously, these amended and new programs would 
not result in new significant environmental impacts. Because a development project must be consistent 
with the General Plan, zoning, and development standards of  the City, and the proposed Housing Element 
and Safety Element would not affect land use patterns in the city or result in any physical changes to the 
environment, the resulting impacts would be identical to the previously certified Housing Element EIR. 
There would be no new environmental impacts, or an increase in the severity of  any previously identified 
environmental impacts. 


3. Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in the 
previous EIR. 


The proposed project would have the same significant impacts as those disclosed in the certified Housing 
Element EIR. The Housing Element EIR identified potentially significant impacts for biological resources; 
cultural and paleontological resources; geology, soils, and mineral resources; hydrology and water quality; 
and land use and planning. The policies identified in the Housing Element EIR to reduce physical 
environmental effects would also apply to the proposed project. Because the proposed project does not 
include land use changes and the new and amended programs and policies identified in Table 1-1 and Table 
1-2 would not affect land use patterns in the city or result in physical changes to the environment, there are 
no new or more severe significant impacts associated with the proposed project. 


4. Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible, 
and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but the project 
proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 


The proposed project includes policy-level changes that are limited to complying with State law and would 
not result in physical changes to the environment that were not disclosed in the Housing Element EIR. As 
discussed previously, the proposed project would not create new impacts or the need for additional 
mitigation measures. As with the existing Housing Element evaluated in the Housing Element EIR, the 
proposed project would not result in significant environmental impacts; therefore, there is no need for new 
mitigation measures.   







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T   
A N D  2 0 2 1  S A F E T Y  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  


C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


2. CEQA Analysis 


August 2021 Page 39 


5. Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed in the 
previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but 
the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative.  


The proposed project would have the same significant impacts as the previously certified Housing Element 
EIR and all associated policies identified in the Housing Element EIR to reduce physical environmental 
effects would continue to apply. As stated in the response to Standard 4, there are no new significant 
impacts resulting from adoption of  the 2021–2029 Housing Element and 2021 Safety Element; therefore, 
there are no new mitigation measures or alternatives to the proposed project.  







ATTACHMENT B 
 


Council Resolution 
General Plan Amendment No. 2021-03 


(Housing Element / Safety Element) 
 
 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021-____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING GENERAL PLAN 
AMENDMENT NO. 2021-03 ADOPTING THE 2021/2029 
HOUSING ELEMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 65580 
THROUGH 65589, AND ADOPTING THE 2021/2029 
SAFETY ELEMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH CALIFORNIA 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65302(G) 


WHEREAS, the Planning Department has processed General Plan Amendment 
No. 2021-03 to adopt the 2021/2029 Housing Element in accordance with California 
Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589, and the 2021/2029 Safety Element 
Update in accordance with California Government Code Section 65302(G); and 


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.04 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, 
the Planning Commission has the authority to review 2021/2029 Housing Element and 
Safety Element update project as part of General Plan Amendment No. 2021-03; and 


WHEREAS, any minor amendments to the final Housing and Safety Element 
documents based on review by the state department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) or Board of Forestry and Fire Protection are allowed to be made by 
the Planning Department prior to final certification submittal. 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on 
August 18, 2021 to discuss the 2021/2029 Housing Element and Safety Element updates, 
and at which time the Planning Commission received public testimony and adopted PC 
Resolution No. 2021-16 recommending City Council approval 2021/2029 Housing 
Element in accordance with California Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589, 
and the 2021/2029 Safety Element Update in accordance with California Government 
Code Section 65302(G); and   


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.192.040 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code, the Planning Department on October 1, 2021 published a legal notice (1/8 page 
ad) in the “Press Enterprise”, a local newspaper of general circulation, notifying the 
general public of the of the October 13, 2021 City Council meeting at which time the City 
Council would consider the Planning Commission’s recommendation to approve General 
Plan Amendment No. 2021-03 adopting the 2021/2029 Housing Element in accordance 
with California Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589, and the 2021/2029 
Safety Element Update in accordance with California Government Code Section 
65302(G); and  


WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 17.08 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, 
the City Council conducted the duly noticed public hearing on October 13, 2021 to receive 
public testimony and to discuss the proposed the 2021/2029 Housing Element and 
2021/2029 Safety Element Update. 







NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Wildomar, does hereby resolve, 
determine and order as follows: 


SECTION 1. CEQA:   
The approval of General Plan Amendment No. 2021-03 for the 2021/2029 Housing 


and Safety Element updates is in compliance with requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), in that on October 13, 2021, at a duly noticed public 
hearing, the City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning Commission, adopted 
the Addendum to the 2013/2021 Housing Element project Environmental Impact Report 
(SCH# 2013051001) for the 2021/2029 Housing Element and Safety Element updates. 
The documents comprising the City’s environmental review for the project are on file and 
available for public review at Wildomar City Hall, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201, 
Wildomar, CA 92595. 


SECTION 2. GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT FINDINGS: 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65580 through 65589, Government Code 


Section 65302(G) and Chapter 17.08 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, the City Council 
hereby makes the following findings to approve General Plan Amendment No. 2021-03 
adopting the 2021/2029 Housing Element and 2021/2029 Safety Element:  
 
A. The proposed general plan amendment does not involve a change in or conflict 


with the City of Wildomar Vision; any planning principles set forth in General Plan 
(Appendix B); or any foundation component designation in the General Plan. 
 
Evidence:  Adoption of the GPA 2021-03 for the 2021/2029 Housing and Safety 
Element updates does not involve any land use changes to any properties in the 
City of Wildomar.  Further, GPA 2021-03 will not result in a change in or conflict 
with the City of Wildomar Vision in that adoption of the 2021/2029 Housing and 
Safety Element updates further the goals of the General Plan Vision requiring 
housing opportunities for all residents of the City regardless of economic or income 
status.  Further, adoption of the Housing Element and the proposed land use 
amendments will not change any foundation component designation as the 
proposed changes fall within the “Community Development” Foundation category.  


 
B. The proposed general plan amendment would either contribute to the purpose of 


the General Plan or, at a minimum, would not be detrimental to them. 
 


Evidence:  Adoption of the GPA 2021-03 for the 2021/2029 Housing and Safety 
Element updates contribute to the purpose of the General Plan in that 
implementation of the propose Housing and Safety Element goals, policies and 
programs will create housing opportunities in a safe environment for all residents 
of the City regardless of economic or income status.  The proposed GPA also 
furthers, and maintains, the following land use and housing element policies 
related to the proposed project: 
 







H-1.1 The proposed Adoption of the GPA 2021-03 for the 2021/2029 Housing 
Element updates will help ensure a sufficient supply of properly planned 
land to meet and maintain housing needs identified in the City’s Regional 
Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) required in the 2021/2029 Housing 
Element.  


 
C. The proposed general plan amendment is required to comply with an update to the 


Housing Element or change in state housing element law. 
 


Evidence:  Adoption of the GPA 2021-03 for the 2021/2029 Housing and Safety 
Element updates are a direct result of the state mandate requiring an update to the 
City’s Housing and Safety Elements in accordance with California Government 
Code Sections 65580 through 65589, and California Government Code Section 
65302(G), respectively. 


SECTION 3. CITY COUNCIL ACTION: 
Based on the foregoing findings, and on substantial evidence in the whole of the 


record, the City Council hereby adopts this Council Resolution approving General Plan 
Amendment No. 2021-03 adopting the 2021/2029 Housing Element in accordance with 
California Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589, and the 2021/2029 Safety 
Element Update in accordance with California Government Code Section 65302(G) 
illustrated herein and attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and 2 of this Resolution. 


 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
 


_____________________________ 
Dustin Nigg 
Mayor 


 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 
  







EXHIBIT 1 
 


2021 / 2029  Housing Element Document 
 
 
 
  







EXHIBIT 2 
 


2021 / 2029  Safety Element Document 
 
 







CITY OF 


WILDOMAR


2021-2029 
HOUSING 
ELEMENT 


Adoption Draft  
October 2021











O R A N G E  C O U N T Y    •    B AY  A R E A    •    S A C R A M E N TO    •    C E N T R A L  C O A S T    •    L O S  A N G E L E S    •    I N L A N D  E M P I R E    •    S A N  D I E G O


www.placeworks.com


CITY OF WILDOMAR
2021-2029 HOUSING ELEMENT 


Adoption Draft | October 2021


Prepared By: PlaceWorks


101 Parkshore Drive, Suite 112 
Folsom, California 95630 


t 916.245.7500











 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HE-i 
 
 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Introduction ................................................................................................................................... HE-1 


Purpose .................................................................................................................................................................. HE-1 
General Plan Consistency ................................................................................................................................... HE-2 
Regional Housing Needs Allocation ................................................................................................................. HE-2 


Housing Goals, Policies, and Programs ....................................................................................... HE-4 
Adequate Housing ............................................................................................................................................... HE-4 
Governmental Constraints ................................................................................................................................. HE-8 
Special Needs Groups ....................................................................................................................................... HE-11 
Conservation and Improvement of Housing Stock ...................................................................................... HE-15 
Equal Housing Opportunities .......................................................................................................................... HE-17 
Energy Conservation ......................................................................................................................................... HE-21 


Quantified Objectives ................................................................................................................ HE-22 


APPENDICES 
Appendix A – Housing Needs Assessment 


  







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


HE-ii Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank. 


 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HE-1 
 
 


INTRODUCTION 
The City of Wildomar’s Housing Element identifies and establishes the City’s policies with respect to 
meeting the needs of existing and future residents in the city. It establishes policies that will guide City 
decision-making and sets forth an action plan to implement its housing goals. The commitments are in 
furtherance of the statewide housing goal of early attainment of decent housing and a suitable living 
environment for every California family, as well as a reflection of the concerns unique to the City of 
Wildomar. 


PURPOSE 
The purpose of the Housing Element is to identify housing solutions that solve our local housing problems 
and to meet or exceed the regional housing needs allocation. The City recognizes that housing is a need that 
is met through many resources and interest groups. This Housing Element establishes the local goals, 
policies, and actions (programs) the City will implement and/or facilitate to solve our identified housing 
issues. 


State Housing Element law requires the Housing Element to be consistent and compatible with other 
General Plan elements. The Housing Element should provide clear policy direction for making decisions 
pertaining to zoning, subdivision approval, housing allocations, and capital improvements. State law 
(California Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589) mandates the content of the Housing 
Element and requires an analysis of: 


 Population and employment trends 


 The City’s fair share of the regional housing needs 


 Household characteristics 


 An inventory of land suitable for residential development 


 Governmental and non-governmental constraints on the improvement, maintenance, and 
development of housing 


 Special housing needs 


 Opportunities for energy conservation 


 Publicly assisted housing developments that may convert to non-assisted housing developments 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


HE-2 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


The purpose of these requirements is to develop an understanding of the existing and projected housing 
needs within the community and to set forth policies and schedules promoting the preservation, 
improvement, and development of diverse housing types available at a range of costs in Wildomar. 


GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY  
State law requires that “the general plan and elements and parts thereof comprise an integrated, internally 
consistent, and compatible statement of policies.” The purpose of requiring internal consistency is to avoid 
policy conflict and provide a clear policy guide for the future maintenance, improvement, and development 
of housing within the city. All elements of the Wildomar General Plan have been reviewed for consistency 
in coordination with the update to the Housing Element. The City will continue to review and revise the 
Housing Element as necessary, to maintain General Plan consistency.   


Concurrently with the Housing Element update the City is evaluating and amending as needed the Safety 
and Conservation Elements of the General Plan to include analysis and policies regarding flood hazard and 
management information, per Assembly Bill (AB) 162 (California Government Code Section 65302). 
Additionally, the City is aware of Government Code Section 65302(h) requirements related to 
environmental justice and are addressing the requirements along with the Housing Element update. 


REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ALLOCATION 
The first step in addressing state housing needs is the Regional Housing Needs Plan, which is mandated by 
the State of California (California Government Code Section 65584) and requires regions to address housing 
issues and needs based on future growth projections for the area. The California Department of Housing 
and Community Development (HCD) allocates regional housing needs numbers to regional councils of 
governments throughout the state. The Regional Housing Needs Plan for Riverside County is developed by 
the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) and allocates to cities and the unincorporated 
county their “fair share” of the region’s projected housing needs, also known as the Regional Housing 
Needs Allocation (RHNA). The Regional Housing Needs Plan allocates the RHNA based on household 
income groupings over the five-year planning period for each specific jurisdiction’s Housing Element.  


On March 4, 2021, SCAG adopted the Final RHNA Plan for the 2021-2029 planning period. The allocation 
for the City of Wildomar is a total of 2,715 housing units. The City must identify sites to accommodate 
these units in the Housing Element. The breakdown of this allocation by income category is shown in 
Table H-1.   







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HE-3 
 
 


TABLE H-1: 2021-2029 REGIONAL HOUSING NEED  
Income Category Income Range 1 2021-2029 RHNA 


Extremely Low 2 $0–$26,200 399 


Very Low $26,201–$37,650 399 


Low $37,651–$60,250 450 


Moderate $60,251–$90,350 434 


Above Moderate $90,351 or more 1,033 


Total – 2,715 


Source: SCAG, March 2021 
1. Based on a four-person household.  
2. It is assumed that 50% of the very low-income unit allocation will be for extremely low-income households. 


  











 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


HE-4 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


HOUSING GOALS, POLICIES, AND PROGRAMS 
An important component of the Housing Element is the City’s description of what it hopes to achieve 
during the current planning period. This is accomplished with a statement of the City’s goals, policies, 
programs, and quantified objectives relative to the maintenance, preservation, improvement, and 
development of housing to meet the present and future needs of all economic segments of the 
population.  


GOAL H-1: Assist in the development of adequate housing to meet the city’s fair 
share of the region’s housing needs for all economic segments of the population.  


ADEQUATE HOUSING 
POLICY H-1: Ensure there is a sufficient supply of multifamily and single-family zoned land to 


meet the housing needs identified in the Regional Housing Needs Allocation 
(RHNA). 


PROGRAM H-1.1: Updated Available Sites Inventory. The City will monitor the 
Available Sites Inventory annually as projects are processed through the Planning 
Department to ensure sufficient capacity is maintained to accommodate the City’s 
remaining RHNA numbers. 


Responsible Agency: Planning Department 


Time Frame: Update the Available Sites Inventory on an annual basis 


Funding Source: General Fund 


PROGRAM H-1.2: Large Sites. The City will provide for the inclusion of mixed-
income housing in future new growth areas of the city through development agreements, 
specific plans, and other mechanisms. To facilitate the development of affordable 
housing on parcels (that can accommodate 50 to 150 units), the City will routinely give 
high priority to processing subdivision maps that include affordable housing units. Also, 
an expedited review process will be available for the subdivision of larger sites into 
buildable lots where the development application can be found consistent with the 
General Plan, applicable Specific Plan, and master environmental impact report. 


  







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HE-5 
 
 


The City will offer the following incentives for the development of affordable housing 
on large sites, which may include, but is not limited to: 


 Streamlining and expediting the approval process for land division for projects 
that include affordable housing units,   


 Ministerial review of lot line adjustments,  


 Deferral of fees related to the subdivision for projects affordable to lower-
income households, and 


 Providing technical assistance to acquire funding. 


Responsible Agency: Planning and Public Works Departments 


Time Frame: Develop incentive program by April 2022 and provide incentives as 
projects are submitted. 


Funding Source: General Fund, developer fees 


PROGRAM H-1.3: Mixed-Use Development. To promote mixed-use 
development, the City will provide regulatory and financial incentives to increase the 
probability that residences will be constructed on mixed-use sites. The City will offer the 
following regulatory and financial incentives, including, but not limited to, financial 
assistance (based on availability of federal, state, local, and private housing funds), 
expedited development review, streamlined development application processing, 
modification of development requirements, such as reduced parking standards for 
seniors and special needs housing on a case-by-case basis. 


Responsible Agency: Planning Department 


Time Frame: The City will work with developers to provide regulatory incentives, 
including fee deferments and flexible development standards as projects are submitted to 
the Planning Department. 


Funding Source: General Fund 


PROGRAM H-1.4: Zoning Consistency. The City will review and rezone sites 
assumed to meet the moderate and above moderate RHNA (Table HNA-24) to ensure 
zoning and general plan designations are compatible.   


Responsible Agency: Planning Department 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


HE-6 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Time Frame: Concurrent with the Housing Element update and continue to review and 
rezone as needed by October 2023 


Funding Source: General Fund, SB2 


POLICY H-2: Establish and maintain accurate planning and demographic data using GIS 
(geographic information systems).  


PROGRAM H-2.1: Strategic Planning Opportunities. Use the City’s GIS to 
facilitate preliminary strategic planning studies to identify vacant or underutilized 
commercial properties for infill construction or adaptive reuse in high-density areas. The 
City will identify the sites with GIS and do a visual assessment to confirm their current 
use. 


Responsible Agency: Planning Department 


Time Frame: Identify vacant or underutilized commercial land by June 2022, update 
annually thereafter. 


Funding Source: General Fund 


POLICY H-3: Facilitate the development of affordable housing by providing, when feasible, 
appropriate financial and regulatory incentives. 


PROGRAM H-3.1: Multifamily Development. To assist in the development of 
affordable housing, the City will continue to offer density bonuses (consistent with State 
Law) as well as assist interested developers to apply for government financing and/or 
other government subsidies, assist interested developers in acquiring surplus government 
land suitable for multifamily development, expedite permit processing, consider reducing 
parking standards and lot sizes, and consider waiving impact fees for extremely low-, 
very low-, and low-income dwelling units (these actions identified are not limited to 
density bonuses). 


Responsible Agency: Planning, Public Works, and Building and Safety Departments 


Time Frame: Publish informational materials on density bonuses to be distributed to 
developers annually and posted on the City’s website. Allow density bonuses on an 
ongoing basis as eligible projects are proposed. 


Funding Source: General Fund 


Quantified Objective: 150 lower-income units, 50 of these in highest resource areas 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HE-7 
 
 


PROGRAM H-3.2: Assistance with Affordable Projects. To assist with the 
development of affordable housing, when funding is available, the City shall: 


 Offer assistance with land acquisition and off-site infrastructure improvements, 


 Provide assistance with securing federal or state housing financing resources for 
affordable housing projects, and 


 As funding is available, provide financial support for production and 
subsidization of low- and moderate-income housing, including housing for 
persons with special needs and developmental disabilities, with affordability 
requirements. 


Additionally, the City will publish and make available, to developers, housing 
development agencies, and City residents, the City’s Housing Element and updates and 
annual reports to ensure that the development community (both nonprofit and for-
profit) is aware of the housing programs, technical assistance, and available funding. The 
purpose of these actions will be to increase the supply of affordable housing both in 
areas with lower-median incomes and concentrated poverty to reduce displacement risk 
due to cost and in high resource areas to promote housing mobility opportunities. 


Responsible Agency: Planning Department 


Time Frame: Meet with developers and non-profits annually to discuss affordable 
housing opportunities and assist with recommendation letters, regulatory assistance, or 
other appropriate actions as projects are processed through the Planning Department. 
Make the Housing Element and associated information available to developers within 
two months of adoption. 


Funding Source: Utilize public financing tools when available, including, but not 
limited to, multifamily revenue bonds, the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Housing Loan Fund, and HOME funds, to provide low-interest loans, and 
where feasible, leverage other state and federal financing obtained by the developer (e.g., 
Low-Income Housing Tax Credits, California Housing Finance Agency (CalHFA) 
multifamily housing assistance programs, HCD Multifamily Housing Loans), and other 
available financing. 


Quantified Objective: 200 units, encourage half of these in highest resource areas, near 
schools north of I-15, and near transit and 50 in areas with higher rates of poverty near 
the City of Lake Elsinore-City of Wildomar boundary 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


HE-8 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


POLICY H-4: To the extent resources are available, assist in the provision of homeownership 
assistance for lower- and moderate-income households. 


Program H-4.1:  Expand Housing Opportunities. Work with local nonprofits 
and public and private sponsors to expand housing opportunities for lower-income 
households and special needs persons to reduce displacement risk for these residents due 
to overpayment and overcome a shortage of accessible housing and possible 
overcrowding by increasing housing mobility options. To encourage developers to 
provide affordable homeownership opportunities, the City will offer incentives, which 
may include, but are not limited to, fee waivers or deferrals, expedited permit processing, 
and/or reduced parking requirements based on the bedroom mix of the project. 
Additionally, the City will offer similar incentives for the construction of new rental 
housing for special needs groups, including persons with physical and developmental 
disabilities. 


Responsible Agency: Planning and Administrative Services Departments 


Time Frame: Apply for HOME funds annually, meet with developers annually to 
discuss the creation of low-income ownership units. Provide information on incentives 
for rental units to interested developers annually. 


Funding Source: HOME funds, other funding sources 


Quantified Objective: 20 units, encourage 10 of these in high resource areas and near 
services 


GOAL H-2: Where appropriate, mitigate governmental constraints to the 
maintenance, improvement, and development of housing. 


GOVERNMENTAL CONSTRAINTS 
POLICY H-5: Consistently monitor and review the effectiveness of the Housing Element 


programs and other City activities in addressing the housing need.  


PROGRAM H-5.1: Annual Review of the Housing Element. The City will review 
the Housing Element on an annual basis to determine the effectiveness of the Housing 
Element in achieving goals and objectives. The City will provide annual reports to the 
Planning Commission and City Council as to the effectiveness of the Housing Element. 
The City will take actions necessary to correct any inconsistencies. A copy of this report 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HE-9 
 
 


will be sent to the California Department of Housing and Community Development 
(HCD) and California’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) as required by state law. 


Responsible Agency: Planning Department 


Time Frame: Annually, complete by April 1 of each year (starting in April 2022) 


Funding Source: General Fund 


POLICY H-6: Periodically review the City’s regulations, ordinances, and development 
fees/exactions to ensure they do not unduly constrain the production, 
maintenance, and improvement of housing. 


PROGRAM H-6.1: Development Review and Processing Procedures. The City 
will continually seek to improve its development review/processing procedures to 
minimize, to the extent possible, the time required for review of development projects. 
This reduction in time will reduce the cost to developers and may increase the housing 
production in the city.  


Responsible Agency: Planning Department  


Time Frame: Annually review processing procedures and amend as needed.  


Funding Source: General Fund   


PROGRAM H-6.2: Building Code. As new uniform building codes are adopted by 
the State of California, the City will review its building codes for current compliance and 
adopt the necessary revisions to further local development objectives. 


Responsible Agency: Building and Safety Department 


Time Frame: Review and update the City’s building codes as new codes are adopted by 
the State of California. 


Funding Source: General Fund 


POLICY H-7: Provide streamlined processing of residential projects to minimize time and costs 
to encourage housing production. 


PROGRAM H-7.1: Incentives for Development of Housing. The City will offer 
fast track/priority processing, density bonuses, and fee subsidies (when feasible) to 
developers proposing new housing, mixed-use, or infill projects affordable to lower-
income households, farmworkers, seniors, and other special needs groups, including 
persons with physical and developmental disabilities. The intent of these incentives is to 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


HE-10 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


increase the supply of affordable housing in areas with lower median incomes to reduce 
displacement risk for these residents and in high resource areas to promote housing 
mobility through affordable housing near areas of opportunity. 


Responsible Agency: Planning and Public Works Departments 


Time Frame: Develop materials to market these incentives by December 2021, 
distribute annually to developers and post on the City’s website. 


Funding Source: Where feasible, leverage state and federal financing, including Low-
Income Housing Tax Credits, CalHFA multifamily housing assistance programs, HCD 
Multifamily Housing Loans, CDBG funds, HOME funds, and other available financing. 


Quantified Objective: 50 units, of these, 25 in areas with higher rates of poverty and 15 
in high resource areas 


POLICY H-8: Grant density bonuses to encourage the development of affordable housing. 


PROGRAM H-8.1: Density Bonus. To comply with California Government Code 
Section 65915, as revised, the City of Wildomar will amend its Wildomar Municipal Code 
to be consistent with state density bonus law.  


Responsible Agency: Planning Department 


Time Frame: Amend Wildomar Municipal Code by December 2022. 


Funding Source: General Fund 


POLICY H-9: Allow for the development of Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU’s) as an affordable 
housing option. 


PROGRAM H-9.1: Accessory Dwelling Units. The City will amend the Wildomar 
Municipal Code to clarify that Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU) are permitted in all 
zones that permit single-family or multi-family uses, in accordance with California 
Government Code Section 65852.2. The City will promote ADU development by 
providing guidance and educational materials on the City’s website and will promote 
these materials in high resource areas and areas dominated by low-density residential 
development to encourage affordable housing in areas of high opportunity to reduce 
displacement risk and improve access to opportunity and services. Information will 
include the advantages of building ADU’s, including permitting procedures and 
construction resources. The City will also work with City Council to identify possible 
incentives for the development of ADU’s. 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HE-11 
 
 


Responsible Agency: Planning Department 


Time Frame: Amend Wildomar Municipal Code by June 2022. 


Funding Source: General Fund 


Quantified Objective: 11 ADU’s, of these 5 in high resource areas to promote mobility 
options 


GOAL H-3: Address the housing needs of special needs population groups.  


SPECIAL NEEDS GROUPS 
POLICY H-10: Encourage housing developers to produce affordable units by providing 


assistance and incentives for projects that include new affordable units available 
to lower- and moderate-income households and/or special needs housing.  


PROGRAM H-10.1: Priority for Affordable Projects. Give priority to permit 
processing for projects providing affordable housing when requested. Expand 
application of processing priority to projects providing housing for seniors and other 
special needs groups, including persons with physical and developmental disabilities, 
large families, extremely low-income households, farmworker housing, and homeless. 


Responsible Agency: Planning and Building Departments 


Time Frame: As projects are approved through the Planning Department 


Funding Source: Where feasible, leverage state and federal financing, including Low-
Income Housing Tax Credits, CalHFA multifamily housing assistance programs, HCD 
Multifamily Housing Loans, CDBG funds, HOME funds, and other available financing. 


POLICY H-11: Promote the development of housing for special needs groups, such as housing 
for seniors, housing for persons with physical, developmental, or mental 
disabilities, farmworker housing, housing for extremely low-income persons, 
homeless, and housing for large households. 


PROGRAM H-11.1: Extremely Low-Income Households. California Government 
Code Section 65583(a) requires the City to identify zoning to encourage and facilitate 
housing suitable for extremely low-income households, such as supportive housing and 
single-room occupancy units. Housing for extremely low-income households will 
provide affordable housing for persons at risk of homelessness to minimize 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


HE-12 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


displacement risk. The City encourages the development of housing for extremely low-
income households through a variety of activities, such as performing outreach to 
housing developers on at least an annual basis, providing financial (when feasible) or in-
kind technical assistance or land write-downs, providing expedited processing, 
identifying grant and funding opportunities, applying for or supporting applications for 
funding on an ongoing basis, reviewing and prioritizing local funding at least twice in the 
planning period, and/or offering additional incentives beyond the density bonus.  


Responsible Agency: Planning Department 


Time Frame: Reach out to housing developers annually and as projects are processed 
through the Planning Department. 


Funding Source: General Fund 


Quantified Objective: 25 housing units for extremely low-income households in areas 
of concentrated poverty to reduce displacement risk 


PROGRAM H-11.2: Residential Care Facilities. The City will explore amending 
provisions in the Wildomar Municipal Code to allow State-licensed residential care 
facilities for seven or more persons only subject to those restrictions that apply to 
residential uses in the same zone or otherwise amending the Wildomar Municipal Code 
to make it easier to locate a State-licensed residential care facility for seven or more 
persons in the City. Residential care facilities would still be subject to state licensing. 
Increasing the areas in which large residential care facilities are allowed would assist in 
creating housing for special needs groups near services; the City will encourage 
developers to site residential care facilities near high resource areas to improve access to 
services for this population and to reduce displacement risk for these residents by 
increasing the supply of suitable housing options in the city. 


Responsible Agency: Planning and Building and Safety Departments 


Time Frame: Identify if barriers exist to development of residential care facilities for 
seven or more persons by December 2021 and amend the Wildomar Municipal Code by 
July 2022 if needed. 


Funding Source: General Fund 


Quantified Objective: 6 residential care facility units in high resource areas 


  







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HE-13 
 
 


PROGRAM H-11.3: Persons with Developmental Disabilities. The City will work 
with the Inland Regional Center to implement an outreach program that informs families 
within the City about housing and services available for persons with developmental 
disabilities. The program could include developing an informational brochure, posting 
information about services on the City’s website, and/or providing housing-related 
training for individuals/families through workshops. 


Responsible Agency: Planning and Building Administration 


Time Frame: The City will continue its current outreach program with a nonprofit 
homeless provider and will meet bi-annually.  The city will work with the Inland 
Regional Center to discuss opportunities for persons with developmental disabilities. 


Funding Source: General Fund, CDBG, ESG and Measure AA 


PROGRAM H-11.4: Farmworker Housing. The City will amend the Wildomar 
Municipal Code to treat employee/farmworker housing that serves six or fewer persons 
as a single-family structure and permit it in the same manner as other single-family 
structures of the same type within the same zone across all zones that allow single-family 
residential uses. The amendment will also treat employee/farmworker housing consisting 
of no more than 12 units or 36 beds as an agricultural use and permit it in the same 
manner as other agricultural uses in the same zone, in compliance with the California 
Employee Housing Act (Health and Safety Code Sections 17021.5 and 17021.6). The 
City will also remove the Farm Labor Camp, Migrant Agricultural Workers Mobile 
Home Park, and Agricultural Mobile Home uses from the Wildomar Municipal Code as 
employee/farmworker housing will replace the Farm Labor Camp and mobile homes 
and mobile home parks for farmworkers are treated the same as any other mobile home 
or mobile home park in the City. 


Responsible Agency: Planning and Building and Safety Departments 


Time Frame: Amend the Wildomar Municipal Code by June 2022. 


Funding Source: General Fund 


POLICY H-12: Participate regionally in addressing homeless issues.  


  







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


HE-14 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


PROGRAM H-12.1: Regional Homeless Issues. The City of Wildomar participates 
in a regional partnership with the Western Riverside Council of Governments and four 
other southwest cities in Riverside County to address homelessness in the region. The 
City will continue to participate and engage in this process to identify actions Wildomar 
can take to address the homelessness issue. 


Responsible Agency: Planning and Administrative Services Departments 


Time Frame: Meet quarterly with members of the regional homeless partnership. 


Funding Source: General Fund 


POLICY H-13: Allow transitional and supportive housing and emergency/homeless housing in 
appropriate zoning districts. 


PROGRAM H-13.1: Homeless Housing. The City will amend the Wildomar 
Municipal Code to allow low-barrier navigation centers for the homeless by right in 
zones that allow for mixed-use and nonresidential zones permitting multifamily uses, per 
California Government Code Section 65662, to improve access to services for persons 
experiencing, or at risk of, homelessness. The City will also allow sufficient parking to 
accommodate all staff working in the emergency shelter, provided that the standards do 
not require more parking for emergency shelters than other residential or commercial 
uses within the same zone, in compliance with Government Code Section 
65583(a)(4)(A)(ii)). The City will work with developers to identify potential sites for 
emergency shelters and low barrier navigation centers in high resource areas to improve 
access to services and mobility for persons experiencing homelessness. 


Responsible Agency: Planning and Administrative Services Departments 


Time Frame: Amend the Wildomar Municipal Code by January 2022. 


Funding Source: General Fund 


Quantified Objective: 1 low barrier navigation center in an area with concentrated 
poverty and/or homeless persons 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HE-15 
 
 


GOAL H-4: Conserve and improve the condition of the housing stock, particularly 
affordable housing. 


CONSERVATION AND IMPROVEMENT OF HOUSING STOCK 
POLICY H-14: Pursue all available federal and state funds to establish a housing rehabilitation 


program.  


PROGRAM H-14.1: Rehabilitation Program. The City will pursue grant 
opportunities to create a rehabilitation program. The City will apply for HOME, 
CalHome, and CDBG, as well as promote Section 504 Home Repair Program loans and 
grants to provide housing rehabilitation loans and weatherization services for lower-
income households and will work with the County to obtain available redevelopment 
agency funds to be used, as available, for place-based revitalization in areas with 
concentrated poverty or rehabilitation need. Targeted efforts to improve housing 
conditions in areas of need will assist in reducing displacement risk for these residents by 
improving living conditions and enabling them to stay in their home and community. 


Responsible Agency: Planning and Administrative Services Departments 


Time Frame: Starting in 2021, annually apply for funding as Notices of Funding 
Availability are released; meet with the County annually to assess availability of 
redevelopment agency funds. 


Funding Source: HOME 


Quantified Objective: Rehabilitation of 15 housing units, 8 of these in areas of 
concentrated poverty such as the area adjacent to the City of Lake Elsinore 


POLICY H-15: Concentrate rehabilitation assistance and code enforcement efforts in areas that 
have a concentration of older and/or substandard residential structures. 


PROGRAM H-15.1: Code Enforcement. The City’s Code Enforcement staff is 
responsible for ensuring compliance with building and property maintenance codes. 
Code Enforcement handles complaints on a reactive basis and deals with a variety of 
issues, including property maintenance, abandoned vehicles, and housing conditions. 
The City will continue to use Code Enforcement, as well as Building Department staff to 
ensure compliance with building and property maintenance codes. The Code 
Enforcement program is complaint-based.  The City will also develop an enforcement 
program to prevent displacement or mitigate through funding for rehabilitation 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


HE-16 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


assistance (Program H-15.1) and assistance with relocation costs for lower-income 
households.  


Responsible Agency: Building and Safety and Code Enforcement Departments 


Time Frame: Develop a program to reduce displacement risk as a result of code 
enforcement within one year of Housing Element adoption; conduct code enforcement 
on an ongoing basis. 


Funding Source: General Fund 


Quantified Objective: Conservation of 15 housing units, 8 of these in areas of 
concentrated poverty such as the area adjacent to the City of Lake Elsinore 


POLICY H-16: Preserve the affordability of federal- and state-subsidized units at risk of 
conversion to market rate or other affordable housing resources.  


PROGRAM H-16.1: Preservation of At-Risk Housing Units. State law requires 
jurisdictions to provide a program in their Housing Elements to preserve publicly 
assisted affordable housing projects at risk of converting to market-rate housing. The 
City will contact property owners of units at risk of converting to market-rate housing 
within one year of affordability expiration to discuss the City’s desire to preserve 
complexes as affordable housing. Participation from agencies interested in purchasing 
and/or managing at-risk units will be sought. Coordinate with owners of expiring 
subsidies to ensure tenants receive the required notices at 3 years, 6 months, and 12 
months, per California law. The City will work with tenants to provide education 
regarding tenant rights and conversion procedures pursuant to California law. The City 
shall contact the Fair Housing Council of Riverside County to assist renters. 


Responsible Agency: Planning Department 


Time Frame: Annually monitor units at risk of converting. Coordinate noticing as 
required per California law. 


Funding: General Fund 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HE-17 
 
 


GOAL H-5: Promote equal housing opportunities for all persons regardless of race, 
age, sexual orientation, religion, or gender. 


EQUAL HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES 
POLICY H-17: Continue to support fair housing laws and organizations that provide fair housing 


information and enforcement.  


PROGRAM H-17.1: Fair Housing. To comply with California Government Code 
Sections 8899.50, 65583(c)(5), 65583(c)(10), 65583.2(a) (AB 686), the City will develop a 
plan to Affirmatively Further Fair Housing (AFFH). The AFFH Plan shall take actions 
to address significant disparities in housing access and needs for all persons regardless of 
race, color, religion, sex, gender, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, 
ancestry, familial status, source of income, or disability, and any other characteristic 
protected by the California Fair Employment and Housing Act (Part 2.8, commencing 
with Section 12900, of Division 3 of Title 2), Government Code Section 65008, and any 
other state and federal fair housing and planning law. 


Specific actions include: 


 Implement Programs H-4.1, H-7.1, and H-11.2 to affirmatively further fair 
housing, including targeting community revitalization through place-based 
programs, enhancing mobility between neighborhoods, and developing strategies 
to reduce displacement risk in areas with a higher concentration of lower-income 
households and overpayment (e.g. Programs H-4.1 and H-14.1), and facilitating 
affordable housing in high opportunity areas (e.g. Programs H-9.1 and H-
11.1).By December 2021, the City will assign a point person to refer individuals, 
developers, landlords, and any other interested persons to the Fair Housing 
Council of Riverside County. Promote the availability of this service and other 
fair housing information on the City’s website. 


 Meet annually with fair housing service providers and enforcement organizations 
to track issues and identify patterns in Wildomar. Possible strategies to improve 
communication with the public on fair housing rights and resources may include 
inviting fair housing service providers to present annually at Planning 
Commission and City Council hearings, hold a resource fair for residents, hold a 
meeting to establish connections between fair housing providers and other 
community service providers and property managers and landlords, among other 
potential strategies. 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


HE-18 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


 Meet with developers within one year of Housing Element adoption to identify 
mechanisms to encourage construction of housing units with three or more 
bedrooms. Strategies may include incentives such as fee waivers, parking 
reductions, or density bonuses. Review and revise development standards and 
processes within two years of meeting with developers. 


 Ensure that public outreach is accessible to all people by offering translation 
services at all public meetings and workshops, in addition to bilingual written 
materials.  


 Conduct targeted outreach to underrepresented groups by recruiting them to 
participate in the public outreach process and apply to committees through 
coordinating with service providers and posting information in grocery stores 
and public buildings. 


 Provide biannual training for landlords on fair housing responsibilities, source of 
income discrimination and other discriminatory practices, and the benefits of 
marketing their housing units to Housing Choice Voucher program participants 
to encourage landlords in high opportunity areas to register their units with 
Section 8 providers and expand housing mobility opportunities throughout the 
City. 


 Meet with disability service providers, including the Inland Regional Center, to 
identify whether there is unmet demand anywhere in the City by March 2022. If 
an unmet demand is realized, work with providers to secure funding to expand 
services by March 2023. 


 Meet with school districts by June 2022 to assess whether existing and projected 
need can be accommodated with existing facilities. If not, work with developers 
in underserved areas to identify sites for new school facilities. 


 Meet annually with the Riverside Transit Agency to assess unmet transit needs in 
the city and expand routes and frequency as needed to connect residents with 
educational facilities (both for youth and adults), employment centers, medical 
centers, and other resources and services. If expansion needs are identified, 
provide technical support to RTA to apply for funding to support infrastructure 
improvements. Work with developers to encourage transit access be included in 
new projects. 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HE-19 
 
 


 By December 2022, develop a targeted program to connect lower-income 
residents with affordable homeownership and rental opportunities within the 
City. 


 Within one year of Housing Element adoption, review open space requirements 
for new developments and revise as necessary to ensure all new units have access 
to outdoor spaces. 


 Within 6 months of housing element adoption, provide a link on the City’s 
website to Riverside County’s CalWORKs program to assist lower-income 
households to enter or reenter the workforce. 


Responsible Agency: Planning Department 


Time Frame: Refer to each strategy in the AFFH program for specific timeframes. 


Funding Source: General Fund 


POLICY H-18: Support programs that offer low- and moderate-income households the 
opportunity for homeownership.  


PROGRAM H-18.1: Mortgage Credit Certificate Program. Refer eligible residents 
to the Riverside County Mortgage Credit Certificate Program for assistance. Promote the 
availability of this program by posting it on the City’s website and in City buildings as 
well as by providing materials with information on this and other programs to provide to 
affordable housing providers to distribute to lower-income households that they work 
with. 


Responsible Agency: County of Riverside Economic Development Agency, Planning 
Department 


Time Frame: Develop informational materials to distribute and post on the City’s 
website by October 2021. 


Funding Source: General Fund 


Quantified Objective: Connect 15 eligible residents with the Mortgage Credit 
Certificate Program 


  







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


HE-20 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


PROGRAM H-18.2: First-Time Homebuyer Program. Consider the 
implementation of a First-Time Homebuyer Program to provide down-payment and 
closing-cost assistance to low-income first-time homebuyers. In order to reduce 
displacement risk of prospective first-time homebuyers being priced out of the 
community, the City will promote the availability of this program in areas with 
concentrations of renters, particularly low-income renters. 


Responsible Agency: Planning Department 


Time Frame: Consider applying for funding annually to establish a program  


Funding Source: HOME funds 


Quantified Objective: Provide assistance to 6 low-income first-time homebuyers 


POLICY H-19: Expand the availability of affordable and/or special needs housing through 
acquisition or conversion.  


PROGRAM H-19.1: Acquisition/Rehabilitation. The City will meet with public 
and/or private sponsors to discuss creating a partnership for the 
acquisition/rehabilitation of existing multifamily units to be converted to senior housing 
and housing for persons with disabilities, with a portion of the units required to be 
reserved for households with lower incomes to increase the supply of units for these 
populations and thus reduce displacement that may occur due to a shortage of suitable 
housing.  


Responsible Agency: Planning Department 


Time Frame: Meet with sponsors within one year of Housing Element adoption to 
assess interest in creating a partnership. 


Funding Source: HOME, CDBG 


Quantified Objective: Acquire and/or rehabilitate 15 units in areas of with 
concentrated housing repair need 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HE-21 
 
 


GOAL H-6: Conserve energy in the development of new housing and the 
rehabilitation of existing housing. 


ENERGY CONSERVATION 
POLICY H-20: Encourage the use of energy conservation features in residential construction and 


remodeling. 


PROGRAM H-20.1: Promote Energy Conservation. The City will promote energy 
efficiency in existing housing and new development by: 


 Annually reviewing local building codes to ensure consistency with State-
mandated green buildings standards. 


 Partnering with Southern California Edison (SCE) and the Southern California 
Gas Company (SoCalGas) to promote energy-saving programs, such as the 
residential Multifamily Energy Efficiency Rebate program and the heating and 
cooling rebate program, available to SCE and SoCalGas residential customers. 


 Encouraging developers to be innovative in designing energy-efficient homes 
and improving the energy efficiency of new construction. 


 Promote the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) to 
assist low-income residents with one-time energy bill payments and home 
weatherization services for improved energy efficiency and health and safety.  


 Promote California’s Low-Income Weatherization Program which provides low-
income households with solar photovoltaic (PV) systems and energy efficiency 
upgrades at no cost to residents.  


Responsible Agency: Planning and Building Department, SCE, SoCalGas 


Time Frame: Make information available on the City’s website and in public places, 
such as the library and City Hall, by January 2022. 


Funding Source: General Fund, SCE, and SoCalGas funding sources 







 


  


WILDOMAR HOUSING ELEMENT 
 


   


HE-22 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


QUANTIFIED OBJECTIVES 
Quantified objectives estimate the number of units likely to be constructed, rehabilitated, or 
conserved/preserved by income level during the planning period. The quantified objectives do not represent 
a ceiling on development and do not require the City to construct these units, but rather set a target goal for 
the jurisdiction to achieve based on needs, resources, and constraints. Each quantified objective is detailed 
by income level, as illustrated in Table H-2. 


 The Construction objective refers to the number of new units that potentially may be 
constructed using public and/or private sources over the planning period of the Housing 
Element given the locality’s land resources, constraints, and proposed programs.  


 The Rehabilitation objective refers to the number of existing units expected to be rehabilitated 
during the Housing Element planning period. 


 The Conservation objective refers to the preservation of the existing affordable housing stock 
throughout the Housing Element planning period.  


TABLE H-2: QUANTIFIED OBJECTIVES SUMMARY 


Task 
Income Level 


Extremely 
Low Very Low Low Moderate Above 


Moderate 
RHNA 399 399 450 434 1,033 


New Construction 
Program H-3.1 50 50 50   
Program H-3.2  50 100 50  
Program H-4.1    10 10  
Program H-7.1  10 20 20  
Program H-9.1 2 2 2 5  
Program H-11.1 25     
Program H-11.2   3 3  


Rehabilitation 
Program H-14.1   15   
Program H-19.1  5 10   


Conservation 
Program H-15.1 4 4 7   
Total 75 120 194 83 0* 


Source: City of Wildomar, March 2021 
* It is assumed that the market will address the need for above moderate-income households. 











 


  


   


 
 


APPENDIX A 
Housing Needs Assessment 











 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-i 
 
 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Public Participation .................................................................................................................... HNA-1 


Planning Commission Study Session ............................................................................................................ HNA-1 
Agency Consultations ...................................................................................................................................... HNA-1 
Public Hearings ................................................................................................................................................ HNA-3 
Public Comment .............................................................................................................................................. HNA-3 
Noticing of the Draft Housing Element ...................................................................................................... HNA-3 


Evaluation of the Previous Housing Element ........................................................................... HNA-4 
Community Profile ................................................................................................................... HNA-26 


Population Characteristics ............................................................................................................................ HNA-26 
Household Characteristics ............................................................................................................................ HNA-28 
Employment By Industry ............................................................................................................................. HNA-33 
Housing Stock Characteristics ..................................................................................................................... HNA-34 
Special Needs Groups ................................................................................................................................... HNA-39 
Analysis of At-Risk Housing ........................................................................................................................ HNA-45 
Assessment of Fair Housing ........................................................................................................................ HNA-47 


Housing Opportunities and Resources ................................................................................... HNA-72 
Regional Housing Need ................................................................................................................................ HNA-72 
Availability of Land ....................................................................................................................................... HNA-73 
Financial Resources ....................................................................................................................................... HNA-92 
Opportunities for Energy Conservation .................................................................................................... HNA-94 


Constraints ............................................................................................................................... HNA-96 
Governmental Constraints ........................................................................................................................... HNA-96 
Non-Governmental Constraints ............................................................................................................. HNA-121 


 


LIST OF TABLES 
Table HNA-1: Population Growth ................................................................................................................. HNA-26 
Table HNA-2: Age Characteristics ................................................................................................................. HNA-27 
Table HNA-3: Race and Ethnicity .................................................................................................................. HNA-28 
Table HNA-4: Household Characteristics ..................................................................................................... HNA-29 
Table HNA-5: Overcrowded HousEholds .................................................................................................... HNA-29 
Table HNA-6: Maximum Household Income by Household Size, 2020 ................................................. HNA-31 
Table HNA-7: Household by Income Category, 2020 ................................................................................ HNA-31 
Table HNA-8: Housing Overpayment for Low Income Households ....................................................... HNA-32 
Table HNA-9: Housing Units by Housing Type .......................................................................................... HNA-34 







 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-ii Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Table HNA-10: Housing Tenure .................................................................................................................... HNA-35 
Table HNA-11: Occupancy Status of Housing Stock .................................................................................. HNA-36 
Table HNA-12: Median sales Prices, 2020 .................................................................................................... HNA-38 
Table HNA-13: Median Rental Cost by Housing Type, 2020 .................................................................... HNA-38 
Table HNA-14: Housing Affordability by Income Level (based on a Four-person Household) ......... HNA-39 
Table HNA-15: Disabilities by age ................................................................................................................. HNA-41 
Table HNA-16: Developmentally Disabled Residents, by Age .................................................................. HNA-42 
Table HNA-17: Homeless Shelter Resources ............................................................................................... HNA-45 
Table HNA-18: Assisted Units Inventory ..................................................................................................... HNA-46 
Table HNA-19: Fair Housing Issues in Wildomar ....................................................................................... HNA-61 
Table HNA-20: Regional Housing Need, 2021–2029 ................................................................................. HNA-72 
Table HNA-21: Pending Project ..................................................................................................................... HNA-75 
Table HNA-22: Comparison of Regional Housing Need  and Residential Sites ..................................... HNA-76 
Table HNA-23: Land Inventory – Mixed-Use Sites ..................................................................................... HNA-77 
Table HNA-24: Land Inventory – Residential Sites ..................................................................................... HNA-79 
Table HNA-25: General Plan Land Use Designations ................................................................................ HNA-97 
Table HNA-26: Residential Zoning Districts ................................................................................................ HNA-98 
Table HNA-27: Residential Compatibility Matrix .................................................................................... HNA-99 
Table HNA-28: Residential Zoning Criteria ................................................................................................ HNA-100 
Table HNA-29: Residential Parking Requirements .................................................................................... HNA-102 
Table HNA-30: Housing Types Permitted By Zone ................................................................................. HNA-103 
Table HNA-31: Local Development Processing TimeLines .................................................................... HNA-110 
Table HNA-32: Typical Processing Procedures by Project Type ............................................................ HNA-111 
Table HNA-33: Single-family design standards .......................................................................................... HNA-114 
Table HNA-34: Multi-family design standards ........................................................................................... HNA-114 
Table HNA-35: Typical Residential Development Cost ........................................................................... HNA-117 
Table HNA-36: Residential Planning and Building Fees ........................................................................... HNA-118 
Table HNA-37: Overall Construction Cost ................................................................................................. HNA-122 
 


LIST OF FIGURES 
FIGURE HNA-1: Employment by Occupation, 2018 ............................................................................. HNA-34 
FIGURE HNA-2: Age of Housing Stock ................................................................................................... HNA-37 
FIGURE HNA-3: Opportunity Areas ......................................................................................................... HNA-64 
FIGURE HNA-4: Diversity Index ............................................................................................................... HNA-65 
FIGURE HNA-5: Poverty Status ................................................................................................................. HNA-66 
FIGURE HNA-6: Familial Status ................................................................................................................. HNA-67 
FIGURE HNA-7: Educational Score .......................................................................................................... HNA-68 
FIGURE HNA-8: Proximity to Jobs ........................................................................................................... HNA-69 
FIGURE HNA-9: Renters Overpaying for Housing................................................................................. HNA-70 
FIGURE HNA-10: Homeowners Overpaying for Housing ...................................................................... HNA-71 
FIGURE HNA-11: Land Inventory Map ...................................................................................................... HNA-87 







 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-iii 
 
 


FIGURE HNA-12: Land Inventory, Detail 1 ............................................................................................... HNA-88 
FIGURE HNA-13: Land Inventory, Detail 2 ............................................................................................... HNA-89 
FIGURE HNA-14: Land Inventory, Detail 3 ............................................................................................... HNA-90 
FIGURE HNA-15: Land Inventory, Detail 4 ............................................................................................... HNA-91 
 
  







 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-iv Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank. 
 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-1 
 
 


PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
The California Government Code Section 65583(c)(6) requires that local governments make diligent efforts 
to solicit public participation from all economic segments of the community, especially low-income persons, 
in the development of the Housing Element. During the preparation of this Housing Element update, public 
input was actively encouraged in a variety of ways. The element was posted to the City of Wildomar’s website, 
and a hard copy was available for review at City Hall. The draft and final Housing Element were also provided 
to the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) for review and comment. 
The City offers translation services as requested. No services were requested as a part of this outreach program 


PLANNING COMMISSION STUDY SESSION 
On December 2, 2020, the City held a Planning Commission Study Session on the 2021-2029 Housing 
Element update and invited the public to attend and participate in this virtual event. The City sent a flyer with 
information about the workshop to local service providers, affordable housing developers, and other 
community organizations in an effort to reach special needs groups and lower-income households that may 
not have seen the information posted at City buildings or on the City’s website. City staff presented an 
overview of the Housing Element update process and required contents of the element, discussed early 
strategies to meet their regional housing need allocation, and solicited feedback from the Planning 
Commission and community members on these strategies and other housing needs in Wildomar. 
Commissioners expressed their support for increasing the availability of affordable housing and interest in 
considering a variety of units, including accessory dwelling units (ADU’s) to meet this need. No community 
members chose to participate during the open discussion and questions portion of the presentation; however, 
the event was held virtually and is available on the City’s website, so residents have ongoing access to this 
information. 


Summaries of the April 21 Planning Commission and May 21 City Council study sessions will be added following each meeting. 


AGENCY CONSULTATIONS 
To ensure that the City was soliciting feedback from all segments of the community, consultations were 
conducted with service providers and other stakeholders who represent different socio-economic groups. 
Between December 2020 and January 2021, the City of Wildomar reached out to 12 stakeholder organizations 
to offer the opportunity for each to provide on-on-one input on housing needs and programs. Of these 12 
organizations, 5 responded and provided input to the City. These included: 


 Inland Regional Center – December 15, 2020 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-2 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


 Affordable Housing Clearinghouse – December 16, 2020 


 Fair Housing Council of Riverside County – December 18, 2020 


 Habitat for Humanity-Inland Empire – December 23, 2020 


 Southern California Association of Non-Profit Housing – January 12, 2021 


In each consultation, the stakeholders were asked the following questions: 


1. What three top opportunities do you see for the future of housing in Wildomar? What are your three top 
concerns for the future of housing in Wildomar? 


2. What types of housing do your clients prefer? Is there adequate rental housing in the City? Are there 
opportunities for home ownership? Are there accessible rental units for seniors and persons with 
disabilities?   


3. Where have your clients been able to afford housing, if at all? What continues to be a struggle in allowing 
your clients/people you serve to find and keep affordable, decent housing? 


4. What are the biggest barriers to finding affordable, decent housing? Are there specific unmet housing 
needs in the community? 


5. How do you feel about the physical condition of housing in Wildomar? What opportunities do you see 
to improve housing in the future? 


Through these consultations, stakeholders identified several barriers to housing, especially for lower-income 
households. These included the cost of land and construction, as well as the availability of land at a reasonable 
price that is zoned to support the densities required for affordable housing, and the current limited availability 
of affordable housing options. Stakeholders noted that while there are available rental and homeownership 
opportunities in general, many of these are not accessible to lower-income households, persons with 
disabilities, and large households. Multiple stakeholders discussed the shortage of housing units with three or 
more bedrooms to accommodate larger households. Stakeholders identified opportunities to address barriers 
to housing as increased investment in transitional services for homeless individuals, down payment assistance 
programs, training opportunities on the homebuying process, and health inspections of units that residents 
report as having physical issues, such as insect infestations or mold. The City has included serval programs 
under Housing Element Goal H-4 -- Conserve and improve the condition of the housing stock, particularly 
affordable housing, to assist with these identified needs. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-3 
 
 


PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Tentative Dates: August 18, 2021 Planning Commission and September 8 City Council meetings. 


PUBLIC COMMENT 
This section will be updated after public comment is received. 


NOTICING OF THE DRAFT HOUSING ELEMENT 
The Draft Housing Element was released on April 21, 2021 for public review and was made available on the 
City’s website and noticed to residents through the same methods as the Planning Commission and City 
Council meetings. Additional direct noticing was sent to local housing advocate groups.  


  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-4 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


EVALUATION OF THE PREVIOUS HOUSING ELEMENT 
Per California Government Code Section 65588, “Each local government shall review its housing element as 
frequently as appropriate to evaluate all of the following: (1) The appropriateness of the housing goals, 
objectives, and policies in contributing to the attainment of the state housing goal. (2) The effectiveness of 
the housing element in attainment of the community’s housing goals and objectives. (3) The progress of the 
city, county, or city and county in implementation of the housing element. (4) The effectiveness of the housing 
element goals, policies, and related actions to meet the community’s needs, pursuant to paragraph (7) of 
subdivision (a) of Section 65583.”  


The following table describes the results and evaluates the effectiveness of 2013–2021 Housing Element 
programs. 


EFFORTS TO ADDRESS SPECIAL HOUSING NEEDS 
Government Code Section 65588 requires that local governments review the effectiveness of the housing 
element goals, policies, and related actions to meet the community’s special housing needs. As shown in the 
Review of Previous Housing Element matrix on page HNA-4, the 2013 Housing Element, the City worked 
diligently to continuously promote housing for special needs groups in a variety of ways by continuing to 
permit residential care facilities by right in specific zones, allowing for the development of ADUs consistent 
with state law, providing handouts and other materials on fair housing, and is currently working through the 
approval process of a 100 percent affordable housing project.   


 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-5 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


PROGRAM H-1.1: General Plan Land Use Change 
to Provide Additional Sites. To ensure there is 
enough land available for the development of 
housing affordable to lower-income households, 
the City will amend its General Plan Land Use and 
Zoning maps to redesignate and rezone sites 22, 
23, 24, and 25 (see Table HNA-25 in the Housing 
Needs Assessment), a total of 25.96 acres to the 
Highest Density Residential (HHDR) land use 
designation and with R-4 zoning to allow for at 
least 30 units to the acre by right. Additionally, to 
comply with state law, the City has identified and 
will re-zone sites to accommodate the City’s 
housing needs, with at least 50 percent of the 4th 
cycle unmet need coming from sites that are 
zoned for residential uses only.  The City had an 
unaccommodated need of 538 units and has re-
zoned 25.96 acres to HHDR to accommodate 623 
units at 20 to 40 dwelling unit per acre. All sites 
will accommodate a minimum of 20 units per acre, 
allow up to 30 units per acre and at least 16 units 
per site, per state law requirements. 
All rezoned sites will permit owner-occupied and 
rental multi-family developments by right with a 
minor plot plan to verify development standards 
(i.e., setbacks) and will not require a conditional 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: By December 2013 
Funding Source: General Fund 


In 2013, the City completed all 
necessary rezones consistent 
with Government Code Section 
65583.2, (resolutions 2013-45 
and 2013-46) to ensure there 
were sufficient sites available to 
meet the City’s lower-income 
Regional Housing Needs 
Allocation (RHNA). The City 
continues to ensure there is 
sufficient capacity to meet its 
regional housing need. 


Completed. Delete. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-6 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


use permit, a planned unit development permit, or 
any other discretionary review. 
In addition, the City is creating a mixed-use overlay 
zone to apply to 20 sites, totaling 117 acres within 
the inventory. The mixed-use overlay will have a 30 
percent residential requirement. 
PROGRAM H-1.2: Large Sites. The City will 
provide for the inclusion of mixed-income housing 
in future new growth areas of the city through 
development agreements, specific plans, and other 
mechanisms. To facilitate the development of 
affordable housing on parcels (50 to 150 units in 
size), the City will routinely give high priority to 
processing subdivision maps that include 
affordable housing units. Also, an expedited review 
process will be available for the subdivision of 
larger sites into buildable lots where the 
development application can be found consistent 
with the General Plan, applicable Specific Plan, and 
master environmental impact report. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Ongoing, as 
projects are processed through 
the Planning Department 
Funding Source: General Fund, 
developer fees 


No affordable housing projects 
have come forward, but the 
City continues to encourage 
mixed-income housing for 
future projects. This is a priority 
moving forward. The program 
will be revised to include 
proactive efforts in hopes of 
making this program more 
successful. 


Continue as a 
proactive program.  


PROGRAM H-2.1: Assistance with Affordable 
Projects. Where feasible and/or necessary and as 
funding is available, the City shall offer assistance 
with land acquisition and off-site infrastructure 
improvements, as well as assistance in securing 
federal or state housing financing resources for 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Meet with 
developers and non-profits 
annually to discuss affordable 
housing opportunities and assist 


The City provides fair housing 
educational brochures in 
English and Spanish at City Hall 
and the City library and 
provides a link to these services 
on the City's website. Due to 


Continue, combine 
with Programs H-4.1 
and H-4.2. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-7 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


developers, (for and non-profit) for projects 
affordable to extremely low-, very low-, low-, and 
moderate-income households within the planning 
period. 


with recommendation letters, 
regulatory assistance or other 
appropriate actions as projects 
are processed through the 
Planning Department 
Funding Source: Where feasible, 
leverage state and federal 
financing including Low Income 
Housing Tax Credits, CHFA 
multifamily housing assistance 
programs, HCD Multifamily 
Housing Loans, CDBG funds, 
HOME funds, and other available 
financing. 


limited funding and lack of 
developer interest, the City did 
not provide assistance with 
land acquisition and/or off-site 
infrastructure improvements, or 
assistance securing federal or 
state housing financial 
resources, in the previous 
planning period. The City is 
committed to providing this 
assistance to interested 
developers during the 2021-
2029 planning period. 


PROGRAM H-3.1: Updated Land Inventory. The 
City will establish a Land Inventory that provides 
the mechanism to monitor acreage and location, 
by General Plan designation, of vacant and 
underutilized land, as well as buildout of approved 
projects, utilizing the City’s GIS. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Update the Land 
Inventory on an annual basis 
Funding Source: General Fund 


The City uses GIS to maintain a 
current land inventory. This is 
done as projects are submitted 
to, and approved by, the 
Planning Department. 


Continue.  


PROGRAM H-3.2: Strategic Planning 
Opportunities. Utilize the City’s GIS to facilitate 
preliminary strategic planning studies to identify 
vacant or underutilized commercial properties for 
infill construction or adaptive reuse in high-density 
areas. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Annually 
Funding Source: General Fund 


Due to limited funding, the City 
has not taken action to identify 
vacant or commercial 
properties for infill construction 
or adaptive reuse. This is a 
priority moving forward. The 


Continue. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-8 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


program will be revised to 
include proactive efforts in 
hopes of making this program 
more successful. 


PROGRAM H-4.1: Funding Opportunities. Use, to 
the greatest extent possible, a portion of available 
funds for the production and subsidization of low- 
and moderate-income housing including persons 
with special needs and developmental disabilities. 
All projects receiving public assistance will be 
required to remain affordable in compliance with 
the requirements of the program in which they 
participate. These actions are not limited to density 
bonus, but are offered above and beyond. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Ongoing as projects 
are processed through the 
Planning Department 
Funding Source: Utilize public 
financing tools when available, 
including but not limited to 
multifamily revenue bonds, the 
CDBG Housing Loan Fund, and 
HOME funds, to provide low 
interest loans, and where 
feasible, leverage other state and 
federal financing obtained by the 
developer (e.g., Low Income 
Housing Tax Credits, CHFA 
multifamily housing assistance 
programs, HCD Multifamily 
Housing Loans), and other 
available financing. 


Due to limited funding, the City 
has not taken action to identify 
vacant or commercial 
properties for infill construction 
or adaptive reuse. This is a 
priority moving forward. The 
program will be revised to 
include proactive efforts in 
hopes of making this program 
more successful. 


Continue, combine 
with Programs H-
2.1, H-4.2. 


PROGRAM H-4.2: Available Housing Programs 
and Assistance. To ensure that the development 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
and Building Department 


All Housing Element updates 
and the annual reports (2014, 


Continue. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-9 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


community (both nonprofit and for-profit) is aware 
of the housing programs, technical assistance, and 
funding available, the City will publish and make 
available, to developers, housing development 
agencies, and City residents, the City’s Housing 
Element and updates and annual reports. 


Time Frame: Ongoing, as 
developers approach the City for 
assistance 
Funding Source: General Fund 


2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019) 
are posted on the City’s 
website. 


PROGRAM H-4.3: Multi-Family Development. To 
assist in the development of affordable housing, 
the City will offer density bonuses as well as assist 
interested developers to apply for government 
financing and/or other government subsidies, 
assist interested developers in acquiring surplus 
government land suitable for multi-family 
development, expedite permit processing, 
consider reducing parking standards and lot sizes, 
and consider waiving impact fees for extremely 
low-, very low-, and low-income dwelling units 
(these actions identified are not limited to density 
bonuses). 


Responsible Agency: Planning, 
Public Works, and Building and 
Safety Departments 
Time Frame: Ongoing, as 
applications are processed 
through the Planning and 
Building and Safety Departments 
Funding Source: General Fund 


Between 2017 and 2020, the 
City was contacted by several 
affordable housing developers 
expressing interest in 
developing affordable housing.  
In January 2021, Palm 
Communities, Inc. submitted to 
the City an SB 330 Pre-
Application Review (PAR) for a 
225-unit affordable housing 
project.  A formal SB 35 
application was submitted in 
May 2021 and is currently 
being processed. The project 
submittal includes a 7.5-
percent density bonus request 
as permitted under Section 
17.290 of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code, and in 
compliance with Sate Density 
bonus Laws.  This density 


Continue. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-10 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


bonus request also includes 
allowable concessions to 
parking, architectural design 
and expedited processing 
under SB 35 requirements.  The 
project could yield 180 housing 
units affordable to extremely 
low-, very low-, and low-
income households and 42 
housing units affordable to 
moderate-income households. 


PROGRAM H-5.1: Homeownership Opportunities. 
Explore opportunities to work with local nonprofits 
in an effort to provide homeownership 
opportunities.  


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Apply for HOME 
funds annually 
Funding Source: HOME funds, 
other funding sources 


The City met with nonprofit 
developers in 2018 and 2019, 
but developers have not 
decided to move forward with 
any proposals. One developer 
was interested in developing 
manufactured affordable units 
with covenants. The developer 
met with several Council 
members but has not yet 
submitted an application. 


Continue, combine 
with Program H-
12.1. 


PROGRAM H-6.1: Annual Review of the Housing 
Element. The City will review the Housing Element 
on an annual basis to determine the effectiveness 
of the Housing Element in achieving goals and 
objectives. The City will provide annual reports to 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Annually, starting in 
April 2014 


The City completes its Housing 
Element annual reports 
annually and submits them to 
HCD by April 1 each year. Prior 
to submittal to HCD, the 


Delete. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-11 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


the Planning Commission and City Council as to 
the effectiveness of the Housing Element. The City 
will take actions necessary to correct any 
inconsistencies. A copy of this report will be sent 
to the California Department of Housing and 
Community Development (as required by state 
law). 


Funding Source: General Fund Housing Element annual 
reports are presented to the 
Planning Commission and City 
Council at public meetings 
where citizens have an 
opportunity to ask questions. 


PROGRAM H-7.1: Development Review and 
Processing Procedures. The City will continually 
seek to improve its development 
review/processing procedures to minimize, to the 
extent possible, the time required for review of 
development projects. This reduction in time will 
reduce the cost to developers and may increase 
the housing production in the city. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Annually, starting in 
December 2014 
Funding Source: General Fund 


The City is constantly seeking 
ways to streamline 
development review and 
processing procedures. The 
City has a pre-application 
review process that has 
decreased review time for the 
formal application. 


Continue.  


PROGRAM H-7.2: Building Code.  As new uniform 
building codes are adopted, the City will review its 
building codes for current compliance and adopt 
the necessary revisions so as to further local 
development objectives. 


Responsible Agency: Building 
and Safety Department 
Time Frame: As new uniform 
codes are adopted 
Funding Source: General Fund 


The building code was updated 
in 2010, 2013, 2016, and in 
2019 per State law. 


Continue. 


PROGRAM H-8.1: Incentives for Development of 
Housing. The City will offer fast track/priority 
processing, density bonuses, and fee subsidies 
(when feasible) to developers proposing new 
housing, mixed-use, or infill projects affordable to 
lower-income households, farmworkers, seniors, 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
and Public Works Departments 
Time Frame: As projects are 
proposed to the Planning 
Department 


Between 2017 and 2020, the 
City was contacted by several 
affordable housing developers 
expressing interest in 
developing affordable housing.  
In January 2021, Palm 


Continue.  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-12 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


and other special needs groups including persons 
with physical and developmental disabilities. 


Funding Source: Where feasible, 
leverage state and federal 
financing including Low Income 
Housing Tax Credits, CHFA 
multifamily housing assistance 
programs, HCD Multifamily 
Housing Loans, CDBG funds, 
HOME funds, and other available 
financing. 


Communities, Inc. submitted to 
the City an SB 330 Pre-
Application Review (PAR) for a 
225-unit affordable housing 
project.  A formal SB 35 
application was submitted in 
May 2021 and is currently 
being processed. The project 
submittal includes a 7.5-
percent density bonus request 
as permitted under Section 
17.290 of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code, and in 
compliance with Sate Density 
bonus Laws.  This density 
bonus request also includes 
allowable concessions to 
parking, architectural design 
and expedited processing 
under SB 35 requirements.  The 
project could yield 180 housing 
units affordable to extremely 
low-, very low-, and low-
income households and 42 
housing units affordable to 
moderate-income households. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-13 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


PROGRAM H-9.1: Density Bonus. In an effort to 
comply with Government Code Section 65915 and 
Senate Bill (SB) 1818, the City of Wildomar will 
amend its Zoning Ordinance to be consistent with 
state density bonus law. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Comply by 
December 2013 
Funding Source: General Fund 


This program was completed in 
December 2013. The City is 
undergoing an update to its 
density bonus ordinance to 
comply with the newly adopted 
state changes to density bonus 
laws in 2019/2020. 


Continue. 


PROGRAM H-10.1: Second Units. In order to 
comply with AB 1866, the City will permit 
secondary dwelling units via a ministerial action 
(by right) in all single-family residential zones. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Comply by 
December 2013; ongoing, as 
projects are processed through 
the Planning Department 
Funding Source: General Fund 


This program was completed in 
December 2013. Mandatory 
State changes from 2016 and 
2017 and 2020 have been 
addressed and new city 
ordinances adopted to address 
Accessory Dwelling Units. 


Continue, modify as 
needed to meet 
future changes in 
State law. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-14 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


PROGRAM H-11.1: Priority for Affordable 
Projects. Give priority to permit processing for 
projects providing affordable housing when 
requested. Expand application of processing 
priority to projects providing housing for seniors 
and other special needs groups including persons 
with physical and developmental disabilities. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: As projects are 
approved through the Planning 
Department 
Funding Source: Where feasible, 
leverage state and federal 
financing including Low Income 
Housing Tax Credits, CHFA 
multifamily housing assistance 
programs, HCD Multifamily 
Housing Loans, CDBG funds, 
HOME funds, and other available 
financing. 


Between 2017 and 2020, the 
City was contacted by several 
affordable housing developers 
expressing interest in 
developing affordable housing.  
In January 2021, Palm 
Communities, Inc. submitted to 
the City an SB 330 Pre-
Application Review (PAR) for a 
225-unit affordable housing 
project.  A formal SB 35 
application was submitted in 
May 2021 and is currently 
being processed. The project 
submittal includes a 7.5-
percent density bonus request 
as permitted under Section 
17.290 of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code, and in 
compliance with Sate Density 
bonus Laws.  This density 
bonus request also includes 
allowable concessions to 
parking, architectural design 
and expedited processing 
under SB 35 requirements.  The 
project could yield 180 housing 
units affordable to extremely 
low-, very low-, and low-
income households and 42 


Continue. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-15 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


housing units affordable to 
moderate-income households. 
No projects providing senior or 
special needs housing have 
been proposed due to difficulty 
securing financing for 
affordable senior housing. The 
City will implement this 
program as projects are 
proposed.  


PROGRAM H-12.1: Special Needs Housing.  Work 
with public or private sponsors to identify 
candidate sites for new construction of rental 
housing for special needs including persons with 
physical and developmental disabilities, and take 
all actions necessary to expedite processing of 
such projects. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: As projects are 
approved through the Planning 
Department 
Funding Source: General Fund 


No public or private sponsors 
have requested to identify 
candidate sites. The City has 
not been proactive in recruiting 
public or private sponsors due 
to limited staffing and financial 
resources but is open to this 
proposal if a request was 
submitted. 


Continue, combine 
with Program H-5.1.  


PROGRAM H-13.1: Extremely Low-Income 
Households. AB2634 requires the City to identify 
zoning to encourage and facilitate housing 
suitable for extremely low-income households, 
such as supportive housing and single-room 
occupancy units. The City will encourage the 
development of housing for extremely low-income 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Comply by 
December 2013; ongoing, as 
projects are processed through 
the Planning Department and 


This program was completed in 
December 2013. 


Modify.  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-16 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


households through a variety of activities such as 
performing outreach to housing developers on at 
least an annual basis, providing financial (when 
feasible) or in-kind technical assistance or land 
write-downs, providing expedited processing, 
identifying grant and funding opportunities, 
applying for or supporting applications for funding 
on an ongoing basis, reviewing and prioritizing 
local funding at least twice in the planning period, 
and/or offering additional incentives beyond the 
density bonus.  
In addition, the City will allow single-room 
occupancy units to be permitted in the R-4 and R-
6 residential designations with a conditional use 
permit. 


annual outreach with local 
developers 
Funding Source: General Fund 


PROGRAM H-13.2: Farmworkers. The City will 
amend its Zoning Ordinance in an effort to comply 
with Sections 17021.5 and 17021.6 of the Health 
and Safety Code. In addition, the City will allow for 
farmworker housing in the A-1, A-2, and R-A zones 
by right. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
and Building and Safety 
Departments 
Time Frame: Comply by 
December 2013 
Funding Source: General Fund 


The City amended the Zoning 
Ordinance in December 2013 
but to ensure compliance with 
Health and Safety Code 
Sections 17021.5 and 17021.6 
this program will be continued. 


Modify and 
Continue.   


PROGRAM H-13.3: Reasonable Accommodation. 
Develop and formalize a general process for 
reasonable accommodation requests in order to 
accommodate the needs of persons with physical 
as well as development disabilities and streamline 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
and Building and Safety 
Departments 


This program was completed in 
December 2013. 


Completed. Delete. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-17 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


the permit review process (Sections 4450–4460 of 
the California Government Code and Title 24 of 
the California Code of Regulations). The City will 
provide information to individuals with disabilities 
regarding reasonable accommodation policies, 
practices, and procedures based on the guidelines 
from HCD. This information will be available 
through postings and pamphlets at the City and 
on the City’s website.   
In addition, the City will encourage housing 
developers to include mobility-impaired 
accessibility in their project designs.  
The City will include accessibility considerations in 
the preparation of the City’s capital improvement 
plan and the allocation of funding for capital 
improvements in support of housing and 
residential neighborhoods for persons with 
physical and developmental disabilities. 
The City will provide exceptions in zoning and land 
use for housing for persons with physical and 
developmental disabilities. This procedure will be 
ministerial process, with minimal or no processing 
fee, subject to approval by the Planning Director 
by applying the following criteria: 
1.  The request for reasonable accommodation 


will be used by an individual with a physical or 


Time Frame: Comply with SB 520 
by December 2013 
Funding Source: General Fund 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-18 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


developmental disability or their 
representative protected under fair housing 
laws. 


2.  The requested accommodation is necessary to 
make housing accessible and suitable to an 
individual with a physical or developmental 
disability protected under fair housing laws. 


3.  The requested accommodation would not 
impose an undue financial or administrative 
burden on the City. 


4.  The requested accommodation would not 
require a fundamental alteration in the nature 
of the City’s land use and zoning program. 


PROGRAM H-13.4: Residential Care Facilities. SB 
520 requires residential care facilities of six or 
fewer persons to be permitted in all residential 
zones. Currently, residential care homes with six or 
fewer persons are permitted in some zones with a 
conditional use permit. 
The City will revise the current regulations to meet 
state law requirements. The City will amend the 
Zoning Ordinance to allow for residential care 
facilities with six or fewer persons by right in all 
residential zones subject only to the same 
restriction in that zone, and will allow larger 
licensed residential care facilities of seven or more 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
and Building and Safety 
Departments 
Time Frame: Comply with SB 520 
by December 2013 
Funding Source: General Fund 


 In December 2013 the Zoning 
Ordinance was updated to 
allow for residential care 
facilities consistent with state 
law and comply with state law 
and the definition of family was 
updated to state -- “Family” 
shall mean one or more 
persons living together in a 
dwelling unit, with common 
access to and common use of 
all living, kitchen, and eating 
areas within the dwelling unit 


Modify to reflect 
current State 
guidance. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-19 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


persons in the R-2 and R-3 zones with a 
conditional use permit. Additionally, the City will 
amend the Zoning Ordinance to update its 
definition of family to be consistent with current 
housing law. 
PROGRAM H-14.1: Child Care Program. In 
cooperation with private developers, the City will 
evaluate on a case-by-case basis the feasibility of 
pairing a childcare center with affordable, multi-
family housing developments or nearby major 
residential subdivisions. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Ongoing 
Funding Source: General Fund 


Private developers have not 
expressed any interest in this 
program to date. 


Delete.  


PROGRAM H-15.1: Regional Homeless Issues. The 
City shall cooperate with the other cities, the 
County, and other agencies in the development of 
programs aimed at providing homeless shelters 
and related services. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Meet with 
neighboring cities and the 
County annually to discuss 
homeless issues 
Funding Source: General Fund 


Along with the Western 
Riverside Council of 
Governments (WRCOG), five 
southwest cities in Riverside 
County have created a 
partnership to address 
homelessness in the region. 
This alliance will be meeting 
regularly to discuss a regional 
plan for homeless aid. 
 


Continue.  


PROGRAM H-16.1: Emergency Shelters. Pursuant 
to SB 2, the City will allow emergency shelters as a 
permitted use (by right) in the Industrial Park (I-P) 
zone without a conditional use permit or other 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Comply with SB 2 by 
December 2013 


In December 2013 Chapter 
17.88 of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code was amended 
to permit emergency shelters 


Completed. 
Continue to address 
state law concerning 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-20 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


discretionary review. The I-P zone is close to 
services and future transit as development occurs. 
In addition, the City will evaluate adopting 
development and managerial standards that will 
be consistent with Government Code Section 
65583(a)(4). These standards may include such 
items as: 
• Lighting 
• On-site management 
• Maximum number of beds or persons to be 


served nightly by the facility 
• Off-street parking based on demonstrated need  
• Security during hours that the emergency 


shelter is in operation 


Funding Source: General Fund in the I-P zone and managerial 
standards were adopted.  The 
City does required a plot plan 
review, which is a ministerial 
process and it used to verify 
that the proposed project 
meets the City’s development 
standards as part of a plan 
check review.  No public 
hearing is required.  


low barrier 
navigation centers.  


PROGRAM H-16.2: Transitional and Supportive 
Housing. Pursuant to SB 2, the City must explicitly 
allow both supportive and transitional housing 
types in all zones allowing residential uses 
exclusively. The City shall amend the Zoning 
Ordinance to provide separate definitions of 
transitional and supportive housing as defined in 
Health and Safety Code Sections 50675.2 and 
50675.14, and both transitional and supportive 
housing types will be allowed as a permitted use 
subject to only the same restrictions on residential 
uses contained in the same type of structure. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Comply with SB 2 by 
December 2013 
Funding Source: General Fund 


This program was completed in 
December 2013. 


Delete. Supportive 
housing is permitted 
in all zones that 
allow multifamily 
development. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-21 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


PROGRAM H-17.1: Rehabilitation Program. The 
City will pursue grant opportunities to create a 
rehabilitation program. The City will apply for 
HOME funding for this program and will work with 
the County to obtain available redevelopment 
agency funds. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Starting in 2014, 
annually apply for HOME funds 
as Notices of Funding Availability 
are released 
Funding Source: HOME 


Due to limited staffing and 
financial resources, the City has 
not applied for HOME funding 
to create a housing 
rehabilitation program. 


Continue. 


PROGRAM H-18.1: Code Enforcement. The City’s 
Code Enforcement staff is responsible for ensuring 
compliance with building and property 
maintenance codes. Code Enforcement handles 
complaints on a reactive basis and deals with a 
variety of issues, including property maintenance, 
abandoned vehicles, and housing conditions. The 
City will continue to use Code Enforcement, as well 
as Building Division, staff to ensure compliance 
with building and property maintenance codes. 
The Code Enforcement program is complaint-
based.   


Responsible Agency: Building 
and Safety and Code 
Enforcement Departments 
Time Frame: Ongoing 
Funding Source: General Fund 


The City continues to use the 
Code Enforcement and 
Building Division staff to 
ensure compliance. 


Continue.  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-22 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


PROGRAM H-19.1: Preservation of At-Risk 
Housing Units. State law requires jurisdictions to 
provide a program in their Housing Elements to 
preserve publicly assisted affordable housing 
projects at risk of converting to market-rate 
housing. The City will monitor the status of all 
affordable housing projects and, as their funding 
sources near expiration, will work with owners and 
other agencies to consider options to preserve 
such units. The City will also provide technical 
support to property owners and tenants regarding 
proper procedures related to noticing and options 
for preservation. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Annually monitor 
starting October 2014 
Funding Source: General Fund 


The City did not have any units 
at risk of converting to market 
rate during the planning 
period. 


Continue, modify to 
reflect new State 
law. 


PROGRAM H-20.1: Fair Housing. The City will 
assign a point person to refer individuals, 
developers, landlords, and any other interested 
persons to the Fair Housing Council of Riverside 
County, which provides a number of programs 
including (1) audits of lending institutions and 
rental establishments, and (2) education and 
outreach to apartment owners, associations, 
management companies, lending institutions, 
building industry associations, homebuyers, and 
residents in emergency shelters and transitional 
housing facilities. The City will also post a link on 
its website to direct interested parties to the Fair 


Responsible Agency: Fair 
Housing Council of Riverside 
County, Planning Department 
Time Frame: Ongoing; assign a 
point person and post a link to 
the website by December 2013 
Funding Source: General Fund 


The City's Planning Director is 
the assigned point person for 
this program. No complaints 
have been received to date. 
The City's website includes a 
link to the Fair Housing 
Council's website. 


Continue, modify to 
reflect new State 
law, combine with 
Program H-21.1. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-23 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


Housing Council’s website and any other 
important information regarding fair housing. 
PROGRAM H-21.1: Fair Housing Education. The 
City will make fair housing educational brochures 
available at City Hall, the City library, and will post 
a link on its website referring interested persons to 
the Fair Housing Council’s website as well as to the 
Fair Housing Council, which provides education 
and outreach services to the public in both 
Spanish and English. 


Responsible Agency: Fair 
Housing Council of Riverside 
County, Planning Department 
Time Frame: Ongoing; assign a 
point person and post a link to 
the website by December 2013 
Funding Source: General Fund 


The City provides fair housing 
educational brochures in 
English and Spanish at City Hall 
and the City library and has a 
link on the City's website. 


Combine with 
Program H-20.1 


PROGRAM H-22.1: Mortgage Credit Certificate 
Program. Refer eligible residents to the Riverside 
County Mortgage Credit Certificate Program for 
assistance. 


Responsible Agency: County of 
Riverside Economic Development 
Agency, Planning Department 
Time Frame: Ongoing; assign a 
point person and post a link to 
the website by December 2013 
Funding Source: General Fund 


There has been no interest 
within the City regarding the 
Riverside County Mortgage 
Credit Certificate Program to 
date. 


Continue 


PROGRAM H-22.2: First-Time Homebuyer 
Program. Consider the implementation of a First-
Time Homebuyer Program to provide down 
payment assistance and closing cost assistance to 
low-income first-time homebuyers. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Consider applying 
for funding annually to establish 
a program 
Funding Source: HOME funds 


Due to lack of financial 
resources and the loss of 
Redevelopment Agency (RDA) 
monies, the City has not yet 
implemented a First-Time 
Homebuyer Program. 


Continue. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-24 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


PROGRAM H-22.3: Foreclosures. Investigate the 
feasibility of acquiring foreclosure homes and 
offering them to residents at prices affordable to 
low- and moderate-income households. 


Responsible Agency: 
Administration and Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Annually or as 
funding is available; consider 
applying for funding to establish 
a program. 
Funding Source: Neighborhood 
Stabilization Program funding 


Due to a lack of financial 
resources and the current 
economic conditions of the 
housing market, the City has 
not investigated the feasibility 
of acquiring foreclosure homes. 


Delete.  


PROGRAM H-23.1: Acquisition/Rehabilitation. 
Work with public or private sponsors to encourage 
acquisition/rehabilitation of existing multi-family 
units to be converted to senior housing and 
housing for persons with disabilities, with a portion 
of the units required to be reserved for households 
with lower income. 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
Department 
Time Frame: Ongoing as 
opportunities arise 
Funding Source: HOME, CDBG 


The City has not worked with 
public or private sponsors to 
encourage 
acquisition/rehabilitation of 
multifamily housing units. The 
County offers similar 
opportunities through CDBG 
funding to the low- and 
moderate-income areas of the 
City but there has been little 
success.  


Continue. 


PROGRAM H-24.1: Promote Energy Conservation. 
The City will partner with Southern California 
Edison (SCE) and the Southern California Gas 
Company (SoCalGas) to promote energy-saving 
programs, such as the residential Multifamily 
Energy Efficiency Rebate program and the heating 


Responsible Agency: Planning 
and Building Department, SCE, 
SoCalGas 
Time Frame: Ongoing as 
programs are available 
Funding Source: SCE and 
SoCalGas funding sources 


The City partners with WRCOG 
and SCE as part of the HERO 
Program created by the 
WRCOG. This program has 
been successful in saving costs 
and providing solar energy 
solutions. 


Continue.  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-25 
 
 


Program Implementation Status Continue-Modify-
Delete 


and cooling rebate program, available to SCE and 
SoCalGas residential customers. 
PROGRAM H-24.2: Ensure Consistency with 
Green Building Standards. The City annually ensure 
that local building codes are consistent with state-
mandated green building standards. 


Responsible Agency: Building 
Department 
Time Frame: Annually 
Funding Source: General Fund 


The City is diligent in 
implementing state-mandated 
green building standards on 
development projects as part 
of its development review 
process. 


Delete.   


PROGRAM H-24.3: Implement State Energy 
Conservation Standards. The City’s Building and 
Safety Department will be responsible for 
implementing the state’s energy conservation 
standards (e.g., Title 24 Energy Standards). This 
includes checking building plans and other written 
documentation showing compliance and 
inspecting construction to ensure that the dwelling 
units are constructed according to those plans. 
Applicants for building permits must show 
compliance with the state’s energy conservation 
requirements at the time building plans are 
submitted. 


Responsible Agency: Building 
Department 
Time Frame: Ongoing 
Funding Source: General Fund 


The City implements the state's 
energy conservation standards 
through standard operating 
procedures. 


Delete.  











 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-26 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


COMMUNITY PROFILE 
An accurate assessment of existing and future residents’ 
demographic characteristics and housing needs forms the 
basis for establishing program priorities and quantified 
objectives in the Housing Element. This section presents 
statistical information and analysis of demographic and 
housing factors that influence housing demand, availability, 
and cost. The focus of this section is on identifying the need 
for housing according to income level as well as by special 
needs groups. 


POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS  
Housing needs are largely determined by population and employment growth, coupled with various 
demographic variables. Characteristics such as age, household size, occupation, and income combine to 
influence the type of housing needed and its affordability. 


POPULATION TRENDS 
Between 2010 and 2020, Wildomar experienced a population growth of 15.6 percent and Riverside County as 
a whole grew by 11.5 percent. This shows that Wildomar’s population growth in the last 10 years was slightly 
higher compared to Riverside County (see Table HNA-1). 


TABLE HNA-1: POPULATION GROWTH 


Jurisdiction 
Total Population Growth 


2010 2020 Total Percentage 
Wildomar 32,176 37,183 5,007 15.6% 
Riverside County 2,189,641 2,442,304 252,663 11.5% 
Source: California Department of Finance (DOF) E-5 Population Estimates 


  


NOTE: The most current and relevant data 
sources were used in the preparation of 
this Housing Element. This document 
contains data from the 2010 Census, 
2014-2018 American Community Survey, 
Department of Finance, and Southern 
California Association of Governments, as 
well as from other sources. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-27 
 
 


AGE CHARACTERISTICS  
Although population growth strongly affects total demand for new housing, housing needs are also influenced 
by age characteristics. Typically, different age groups have distinct lifestyles, family characteristics, incomes, 
and housing preferences. As people move through each stage of life, their housing needs and preferences also 
change. Age characteristics are therefore important in planning for the changing housing needs of residents. 


Housing needs often differ by age group. For instance, most young adults (under 34) are single or starting 
families. Housing needs for younger adults are addressed through apartments or first-time homeownership 
opportunities. Middle-aged residents (34–64) may already be homeowners, are usually in the prime earning 
power of their careers, and thus tend to seek larger homes. Seniors often own a home but, due to limited 
income or disabilities, may need assistance to remain in their homes.  


The age distribution for the City of Wildomar and Riverside County is presented in Table HNA-2. 
According to the 2014–2018 American Community Survey (ACS), in the City of Wildomar more than half 
(59.6 percent) of the population was working age, between 20 and 64 years of age, and almost one-third 
(27.9 percent) of the population was school age or below, between 0 and 19 years of age. The population 
65 years and over represents the remaining 12.5 percent. When compared to Riverside County, the age 
distribution is similar, although Wildomar had a lower percentage of persons between the age of 45 to 54 
and 65 to 84 and a higher percentage of persons between the age 55 to 64 and 85 and over. 


TABLE HNA-2: AGE CHARACTERISTICS 


Jurisdiction Median 
Age 


Percentage of Age Groups* 


0–9 10–19 20-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-84 85 and 
over 


Wildomar 34.9 13.1% 14.8% 7.0% 15.3% 12.9% 11.6% 12.8% 10.3% 2.2% 
Riverside 
County 35.3 13.7% 14.9% 7.1% 13.8% 12.7% 12.8% 11.1% 12.1% 1.7% 


   Source: 2014-2018 ACS 
  * Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100%. 


  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-28 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


RACE AND ETHNICITY 
As shown in Table HNA-3, the largest racial group in Wildomar identified themselves as White (68.1 
percent). Riverside County as a whole had a lower percentage, 60.8 percent, in the White racial group. There 
was almost a 10-percent difference in the Hispanic population: 41.2 percent in Wildomar and 48.4 percent in 
Riverside County as a whole.  


TABLE HNA-3: RACE AND ETHNICITY 


Income 
Category 


Race/Ethnicity of Population 


White African 
American 


American 
Indian/ 
Alaska 
Native 


Asian 


Native 
Hawaiian/ 


Pacific 
Islander 


Other Two or 
More 


Hispanic 
or Latino 


Wildomar 68.1% 5.1% 0.9% 4.9% 0.8% 16.6% 3.7% 41.2% 
Riverside 
County 60.8% 6.4% 0.8% 6.4% 0.3% 20.8% 4.5% 48.4% 


Source: 2014-2018 ACS 


* Note: Hispanic is not including in the race percentage.  
Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100%. 


HOUSEHOLD CHARACTERISTICS 
Household type and size, income levels, and other household characteristics determine the type of 
housing needed by residents. This section details the various household characteristics affecting housing 
needs. 


HOUSEHOLDS TYPE AND SIZE 
A household refers to the people occupying a home, such as a family, a single person, or unrelated persons 
living together. Family households often prefer single-family homes or condominiums to accommodate 
children, while non-family households generally occupy smaller apartments or condominiums.  


Table HNA-4 displays household composition as reported by the 2014-2018 ACS. In the City of Wildomar, 
families made up 79.4 percent of all households, of which, 33.8 percent have children under 18 years of age. 
Riverside County as a whole has a lower percentage of families (72.0 percent) and slightly lower percentage 
of families with children under 18 years of age (30.3 percent).  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-29 
 
 


TABLE HNA-4: HOUSEHOLD CHARACTERISTICS 


Jurisdiction Households 
Average 


Household 
Size 


Percentage of Households 


Families Families with 
Children Under 18 Nonfamily 


Wildomar 10,109 3.57 79.4% 33.8% 20.6% 
Riverside County 728,103 3.31 72.0% 30.3% 28.0% 


Source: 2014-2018 ACS, Table S1101 


OVERCROWDING 
Overcrowding is often closely related to household income and the cost of housing. The U.S. Census Bureau 
considers a household to be overcrowded when there is more than one person per room, excluding bathrooms 
and kitchens, and to be severely overcrowded when there are more than 1.5 occupants per room. 
Overcrowded households are usually a reflection of the lack of affordable housing. 


According to the 2014–2018 ACS and as shown in Table HNA-5, 3.1 percent of Wildomar’s owner-occupied 
households were overcrowded and 0.6 percent were severely overcrowded, as compared to the county as a 
whole, where 3.2 percent of the households were overcrowded and 1.1 percent were severely overcrowded. 
In renter-occupied households, 7.2 percent of Wildomar households were overcrowded and 2.2 percent were 
severely overcrowded, as compared to the county, where 8.6 percent were overcrowded and 3.3 percent were 
severely overcrowded.  


TABLE HNA-5: OVERCROWDED HOUSEHOLDS 


Household Size 
Owner Households Renter Households Total Households 


Number Percentage Number Percentage Number Percentage 
City of Wildomar 


Less than 1.00 6,758 96.3% 2,799 90.6% 9,557 94.5% 
1.01–1.50 221 3.1% 223 7.2% 444 4.4% 
1.51 or more 39 0.6% 69 2.2% 108 1.1% 
Wildomar Total 7,018 100.0% 3,091 100.0% 10,109 100.0% 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-30 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Household Size 
Owner Households Renter Households Total Households 


Number Percentage Number Percentage Number Percentage 
Riverside County 


Less than 1.00 451,938 95.7% 216,825 88.2% 668,763 93.1% 
1.01–1.50 15,189 3.2% 21,040 8.6% 36,229 5.0% 
1.51 or more 5,274 1.1% 8,083 3.3% 13,357 1.9% 
Riverside County 
Total 472,401 100.0% 245,948 100.0% 718,349 100.0% 


Source: 2014-2018 ACS 


* Based on occupied housing units.  


HOUSEHOLD INCOME 
Along with housing prices and rents, household income is the most important factor affecting housing 
opportunities in Wildomar. Housing choices such as tenure (owning versus renting), housing type, and 
location are dependent on household income. On the other hand, household size and type often affect the 
proportion of income that can be spent on housing.  


For the purpose of evaluating housing affordability, housing need, and eligibility for housing assistance, 
income levels are defined by guidelines adopted each year by HCD. According to HCD’s 2020 State Income 
Limits, the area median income (AMI) for a family of four in Riverside County in 2020 was $75,300.  


 Extremely Low Income  Up to 30 percent of AMI ($0–$26,200)  


 Very Low Income    31–50 percent of AMI ($26,201–$37,650) 


 Low Income    51–80 percent of AMI ($37,651–$60,250) 


 Moderate Income    81–120 percent of AMI ($60,251–$90,350) 


 Above Moderate Income  Above  120 percent of AMI ($90,350 or more) 


Table HNA-6 shows the maximum annual income level for each income group adjusted for household size 
for Riverside County. The maximum annual income data is then used to calculate the maximum affordable 
housing payments for different households (varying by income level) and their eligibility for federal housing 
assistance.   


  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-31 
 
 


TABLE HNA-6: MAXIMUM HOUSEHOLD INCOME BY HOUSEHOLD SIZE, 2020 
Income 


Category 
Household Size 


1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
Extremely Low $15,850 $18,100 $21,720 $26,200 $30,680 $35,160 $39,640 $44,120 
Very Low $26,400 $30,150 $33,900 $37,650 $40,700 $43,700 $46,700 $49,700 
Low $42,200 $48,200 $54,250 $60,250 $65,100 $69,900 $74,750 $79,550 
Median $52,700 $60,250 $67,750 $75,300 $81,300 $87,350 $93,350 $99,400 
Moderate $63,250 $72,300 $81,300 $90,350 $97,600 $104,800 $112,050 $119,250 


Source: HCD State Income Limits 2020  


HOUSEHOLD INCOME 
Table HNA-7 provides a summary of Wildomar households in the extremely low-income, very low-income, 
and low-income range. As shown in Table HNA-7, 22.1 percent of Wildomar households are in the low-
income range, 7.7 percent are within the very low-income range, and 11.5 percent have an extremely low-
income range.  


TABLE HNA-7: HOUSEHOLD BY INCOME CATEGORY, 2020 


Income Range 
Renter Households Owner Households Total Households 


Number Percentage Number Percentage Number Percentage 
Extremely Low (0-30% AMI 615 19.9% 547 7.8% 1162 11.5% 
Very Low (30%-50% AMI) 276 8.9% 505 7.2% 781 7.7% 
Low (50%-80% AMI) 736 23.8% 1500 21.4% 2,236 22.1% 
Moderate (80-120% AMI) 666 21.5% 1162 16.6% 1828 18.1% 
Above Moderate (120% AMI 
or Greater) 799 25.8% 3305 47.1% 4104 40.6% 


Total Households 3,091 100.0% 7,018 100.0% 10,109 100.0% 
  Source: 2014-2018 ACS, Table S1901; HCD State Income Limits 2020  


  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-32 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


OVERPAYMENT 
State and federal housing law defines overpayment (or cost burdened) as a household paying more than 30 
percent of gross income for housing expenses. Severe cost burden occurs when a household pays more than 
50 percent of its income on housing. Housing overpayment is especially problematic for lower-income 
households that have limited resources for other living expenses and is an important measure of the 
affordability of housing within a city. Overpayment for housing is based on the total cost of shelter compared 
to a household’s ability to pay. Specifically, overpayment is defined as a household paying more than 30 
percent of their gross household income for shelter. According to the U.S. Census, shelter cost is the monthly 
owner costs (mortgages, deeds of trust, contracts to purchase or similar debts on the property, taxes, and 
insurance) or the gross rent (contract rent plus the estimated average monthly cost of utilities). 


A total of 2,060 owner households (20.7 percent of total households) were paying more than 30 percent of 
their income for housing between 2013 to 2017 (see Table HNA-8). In contrast, 1,660 renter households 
(16.7 percent of total households) were paying more than 30 percent of their income for housing.  


Of all owner-occupied households within Wildomar, 285 (2.9 percent) are considered extremely low-income; 
for 50 percent of those households, the cost of housing is greater than half of the gross household income. 
Out of all renter-occupied households within Wildomar, 450 (4.5 percent) are considered extremely low 
income; for 85 percent of those households, the cost of housing is greater than half of their household 
incomes. The City has included program 11-1 to assist with the  


TABLE HNA-8: HOUSING OVERPAYMENT FOR LOW INCOME HOUSEHOLDS 
Total Household Characteristics Number Percent of Total 


Households 
Total occupied units (households) 9,935 100.0% 
          Total Renter households 3,035 30.5% 
          Total Owner Households 6,900 69.5% 
Total lower income (0-80% of HAMFI) households 3,070 30.9% 
          Lower-income renters (0-80%) 1,430 14.4% 
          Lower-income owners (0-80%) 1,640 16.5% 
                    Extremely low-income renters (0-30%) 450 4.5% 
                    Extremely low-income owners (0-30%) 285 2.9% 
Lower-income households paying more than 50%  1,515 15.2% 
          Lower-income renter households severely overpaying 810 8.2% 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-33 
 
 


Total Household Characteristics Number Percent of Total 
Households 


          Lower-income owner households severely overpaying 700 7.0% 
          Extremely Low Income (0-30%) 735 7.4% 
                    ELI Renter HH severely overpaying 385 3.9% 
                    ELI Owner HH severely overpaying 145 1.5% 
          Income between 30%-50%  520 5.2% 
          Income between 50% -80% 460 4.6% 
Lower income households paying more than 30%  2,310 23.3% 
          Lower-income renter households overpaying 1,215 12.2% 
          Lower-income owner households overpaying 1,095 11.0% 
Extremely Low Income (0-30%) 625 6.3% 
          Income between 30%-50% 760 7.6% 
          Income between 50% -80% 925 9.3% 
Total Households Overpaying 3,720 37.4% 
Total Renter Households Overpaying 1,660 16.7% 
Total Owner Households Overpaying 2,060 20.7% 


Source: 2013-2017 CHAS Data Sets https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/cp.html 


EMPLOYMENT BY INDUSTRY 
The economy has an important impact on housing needs. Employment growth typically results in increased 
housing demand in areas that serve as regional employment centers. Moreover, the type of occupation and 
income levels for new employment also affect housing demand. This section describes the economic and 
employment patterns in Wildomar and how these patterns influence housing needs. As of 2018, the 
management economic sector was the largest employer of Wildomar residents, providing 4,920 jobs, or 31 
percent of the workforce. The second-largest sector was sales, which employed 3,721 Wildomar residents, or 
23 percent, of the workforce. Other large economic sectors include services (3,610 people, or 23 percent); 
production (1,956 people, or 12 percent); and natural resources (1,866 people, or 12 percent). Figure HNA-
1 shows the types of industries for residents working in the City of Wildomar in 2018 and the employment 
percentage per occupation. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-34 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


FIGURE HNA-1: EMPLOYMENT BY OCCUPATION, 2018 


 
Source: 2014-2018 ACS using groupings of Standard Occupational Classification (SOC) codes. 


HOUSING STOCK CHARACTERISTICS 
This section describes the housing characteristics and conditions that affect housing needs in Wildomar. 
Important housing stock characteristics include housing type, tenure, vacancy rates, age, condition, cost, and 
affordability. 


HOUSING TYPE 
According to California’s Department of Finance, 69.4 percent of the city’s housing stock consisted of single-
family homes and 5.0 percent were multifamily units, with the remaining 25.2 percent being mobile homes. 
Riverside County had almost the same proportion of single-family homes (68.4 percent) but had three times 
more multifamily units (16.0 percent) (Table HNA-9). Riverside County had a significantly lower proportion 
of mobile homes (9.4 percent) than Wildomar (25.2 percent). 


TABLE HNA-9: HOUSING UNITS BY HOUSING TYPE 


Housing Type 
City of Wildomar Riverside County 


Number Percentage Number Percentage 
Single-Family Detached 8,044 69.4% 585,544 68.4% 
Single-Family Attached 45 0.4% 52,844 6.2% 
Multifamily 2–4 Units 27 0.2% 39,044 4.6% 


4,920


3,610 3,721


1,866 1,956


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


Management Services Sales Natural Resources Production


 Wildomar







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-35 
 
 


Multifamily 5+ Units 552 4.8% 98,023 11.4% 
Mobile Homes 2,916 25.2% 80,669 9.4% 
Total Housing Units 11,584 100.0% 856,124 100.0% 


Source: CA DOF E-5 Population and Housing Unit Estimates 


HOUSING TENURE  
Housing tenure (owner versus renter) can be affected by many factors, such as housing cost (interest rates, 
economics, land supply, and development constraints), housing type, housing availability, job availability, and 
consumer preference. Table HNA-10 details housing tenure in Wildomar and Riverside County according 
to the 2014-2018 ACS. The City of Wildomar has a slightly higher owner-occupied household percentage 
(69.4 percent) than that of Riverside County (65.8 percent).  


TABLE HNA-10: HOUSING TENURE 


Housing Tenure 
City of Wildomar Riverside County 


Number Percentage Number Percentage 
Owner-Occupied Households 7,018 69.4% 472,401 65.8% 
Renter-Occupied Households 3,091 30.6% 245,948 34.2% 


  Source: 2014-2018 ACS 


VACANCY RATE 
Vacancy rates of 5 percent for rental housing and 1.5 percent for ownership housing are generally considered 
to be healthy. A higher vacancy rate may indicate an excess supply of units and a softer market, and result in 
lower housing prices. A lower vacancy rate may indicate a shortage of housing and high competition for 
available housing, which generally leads to higher housing prices and diminished affordability. 


Table HNA-11 shows the occupancy status of the housing stock according to the 2014-2018 ACS. The City 
of Wildomar had a total vacancy rate of 4.5 percent as compared to Riverside County as a whole, which had 
a vacancy rate of 13.8 percent. As shown in Table HNA-11, the City of Wildomar homeowner vacancy rate 
was 0.4 percent and the rental vacancy rate was 1.0 percent. For the county as a whole, the homeowner 
vacancy rate was 1.1 percent, and the rental vacancy rate was 1.7 percent. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-36 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


TABLE HNA-11: OCCUPANCY STATUS OF HOUSING STOCK 


Type 
City of Wildomar Riverside County 


Number Percentage Number Percentage 
Occupied 10,109 95.5% 718,349 86.2% 
Vacant 474 4.5% 115,253 13.8% 
For rent 109 1.0% 13,906 1.7% 
For sale 45 0.4% 9,184 1.1% 
Rented/sold, not occupied 88 0.8% 5,980 0.7% 
For seasonal/recreational or occasional use 83 0.8% 65,882 7.9% 
For migrant workers 0 0.0% 656 0.1% 
Other vacant 149 1.4% 19,645 2.4% 
Total Housing Units 10,583 100.0% 833,602 100.0% 


  Source: 2014-2018 ACS 


HOUSING CONDITIONS 
Housing conditions are an important indicator of quality of life in the City of Wildomar. Like any asset, 
housing ages and deteriorates over time. If not regularly maintained, structures can deteriorate and discourage 
reinvestment, depress neighborhood property values, and even become health hazards. Thus, maintaining and 
improving housing quality is an important goal for communities.  


An indication of the quality of the housing stock is its general age. Typically, housing over 30 years old is likely 
to have rehabilitation needs that may include plumbing, roof repairs, foundation work, and other repairs. 
Figure HNA-2 displays the age of Wildomar’s housing stock starting from before 1939 up until 2014 and 
later, per the 2014-2018 ACS. Among the housing stock, 51.4 percent of the housing units in Wildomar were 
built since 1990. The remaining 48.7 percent of the housing stock is over 30 years old, meaning rehabilitation 
needs could be necessary in certain homes. The City estimates that approximately 10 percent of the housing 
stock needs rehabilitation.  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-37 
 
 


FIGURE HNA-2: AGE OF HOUSING STOCK 


 
    Source: 2014-2018 ACS 


HOUSING COST AND AFFORDABILITY 
One of the major barriers to housing availability is the cost of housing. To provide housing to all economic 
levels in the community, a wide variety of housing opportunities at various prices should be made available. 
Housing affordability is dependent on income and housing costs.  


Housing affordability is based on the relationship between household income and housing expenses. 
According to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and HCD, housing is 
considered “affordable” if the monthly housing cost is no more than 30 percent of a household’s gross 
income. 


Sales Prices 
According to Realtor.com, the median sales price for homes in Wildomar as of December 2020 was $477,500 
(Table HNA-12). The median sales price in Wildomar is higher than Lake Elsinore and Menifee at $435,000 
and $426,000, respectively. However, the median sales price in Wildomar is slightly lower compared to 
Murrieta ($505,000).      


3.7% 2.2%


32.5%


13.0%


27.6%


11.0%


5.2%
2.0% 0.8% 2.1%


2014 &
Later


2010-2013 2000-2009 1990-1999 1980-1989 1970-1979 1960-1969 1950-1959 1940-1949 1939 &
Earlier


Pe
rc


en
t o


f T
ot


al
 U


ni
ts


Wildomar (%)







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-38 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


TABLE HNA-12: MEDIAN SALES PRICES, 2020 
Jurisdiction Median Sales Price 


Wildomar $477,500 
Lake Elsinore $435,000 
Menifee $426,000 
Murrieta $505,000 


      Source: Realtor.com, December 2020 


Rental Prices 
Table HNA-13 shows the rental costs in Wildomar by the number of bedrooms. Two-bedrooms homes had 
the highest number of listings and were available for rent at an average price of $2,039. One-bedroom homes 
had the second-highest number of listings at an average rental price of $1,965. As indicated by Table HNA-
13, Wildomar only had 12 rental homes listed during October 2020.  


TABLE HNA-13: MEDIAN RENTAL COST BY HOUSING TYPE, 2020   
Housing Type 1 Bedroom 2 Bedrooms 3 Bedrooms 4 Bedrooms 


Number of Listings 3 6 2 1 
Median Price $1,965 $2,039 $2,145 $2,745 
Price Range $1,786-1,970 $1,695-$2,369 $1,550-$2,740 - 


Source: Hotpads.com, Zillow.com, Realtor.com, October 2020 


 
Housing Affordability 
Table HNA-14 provides the affordable rents and maximum purchase price, based on the HCD income limits 
for Riverside County. As shown in Table HNA-14, the maximum affordable rent is $655 for an extremely 
low-income four-person household, $941 monthly for a very low-income household, $1,506 for a low-income 
household, and $2,259 for a moderate-income household. As shown in Table HNA-13, two- and three-
bedroom units were renting at median prices of $2,039 to $2,145, respectively, and therefore are out of the 
affordability range for extremely low-income, very low-income, and low-income households. The two- and 
three-bedroom units are within the price range for moderate-income households. As shown in Table 
HNA-13, some units on the lower end of the price range are only within the affordability range for low-
income and moderate-income households.  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-39 
 
 


As of December 2020, the median sales price for all single-family homes in the city was $477,500. The 
maximum affordable sales price for a four-person household is $163,536 for an extremely low-income 
household, $235,005 for a very low-income household, $376,070 for a low-income household, and $563,949 
for a moderate-income household. This indicates that only moderate-income households would be able to 
afford existing and newly constructed homes in Wildomar at a median sales price of $477,500.  


TABLE HNA-14: HOUSING AFFORDABILITY BY INCOME LEVEL 
(BASED ON A FOUR-PERSON HOUSEHOLD) 


  Income Level (Based on a 4-Person Household) 
Extremely Low Very Low Low Moderate 


Annual Income $26,200 $37,650 $60,250 $90,350 
Monthly Income $2,183 $3,138 $5,021 $7,529 
Maximum Monthly Gross Rent1 $655 $941 $1,506 $2,259 
Maximum Purchase Price2 $163,536 $235,005 $376,070 $563,949 


Source: California Department of Housing and Community Development 2020 State Income Limits 
Notes: 
1. Affordable cost 30 percent of gross household income spent on housing. 
2. Affordable housing sales price is based on conventional 30-year loan at 3 percent interest and a 5% down payment. 


SPECIAL NEEDS GROUPS  
Certain groups have greater difficulty in finding acceptable, affordable housing due to special circumstances 
relating to employment and income, household characteristics, and disabilities, among others. These “special 
needs” groups include seniors, persons with disabilities, large households, single-parent households (female-
headed households with children, in particular), homeless persons, and farmworkers.   


SENIORS 
Senior residents have many different housing needs, depending on their age, level of income, current tenure 
status, cultural background, and health status. Senior households may need assistance with personal and 
financial affairs, networks of care to provide services and daily assistance, and even possible architectural 
design features that could accommodate disabilities that would help ensure continued independent living. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-40 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


According to the 2014-2018 ACS, there were 4,534 seniors or 12.5 percent of the total population (age 65 and 
over) in the City of Wildomar. Riverside County as a whole had a slightly higher percentage of seniors with 
13.8 percent of persons ages 65 and over.   


Of the senior population, 2,366 seniors were householders in Wildomar, representing 23.2 percent of all 
households in the city. Of those senior householders, approximately 76.0 percent were owner-occupied and 
24.0 percent were renter-occupied. Riverside County’s breakdown was similar with 79.2 percent and 20.8 
percent, respectively.  


PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 
Physical, mental, and/or developmental disabilities may prevent a person from working, may restrict one’s 
mobility, or may make it difficult to care for oneself. Persons with disabilities have special housing needs often 
related to the limited ability to earn a sufficient income and a lack of accessible and affordable housing. Some 
residents have disabilities that require living in a supportive or institutional setting.  


The American Disabilities Act (ADA) defines an individual with a disability as “as a person who has a physical 
or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities, a person who has a history or 
record of such an impairment, or a person who is perceived by others as having such an impairment.”  


The City of Wildomar has a disabled population of 9,925 persons, approximately 27.6 percent of the total 
population, according to the 2014–2018 ACS. Table HNA-15 provides additional characteristics for the 
disabled population.  


To meet the special needs of disabled residents, the City supports the upgrade of existing buildings to conform 
to ADA requirements. The City has included Program H-5.1 to support development of housing accessible 
to persons with a disability.  


  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-41 
 
 


TABLE HNA-15: DISABILITIES BY AGE 


Type of Disability 
Age Group 


With 
Disability 


Total 
Population 


Percentage 
with a 


Disability 
Under 18 


Years 
18-64  
Years 


65+  
Years 


City of Wildomar 
Hearing Difficulty 17 376 920 1,313 


35,973 27.6% 


Vision Difficulty 27 589 340 956 
Cognitive Difficulty 548 879 630 2,057 
Ambulatory Difficulty 28 1,186 1,440 2,654 
Self-Care Difficulty 130 475 672 1,277 
Independent Living Difficulty --* 753 915 1,668 


Riverside County 
Hearing Difficulty 3,516 24,921 48,125 76,562 


2,361,744 22.5% 


Vision Difficulty 4,518 26,258 22,570 53,346 
Cognitive Difficulty 15,171 53,819 29,630 98,620 
Ambulatory Difficulty 2,433 63,836 76,195 142,464 
Self-Care Difficulty 4,472 26,019 29,419 59,910 
Independent Living Difficulty --* 50,110 51,241 101,351 
Source: 2014-2018 ACS 
* No data available for this age group with this disability. 


Persons with Developmental Disabilities (Senate Bill 812) 
Senate Bill (SB) 812 (Ashburn, 2010) requires the City to include in its analysis of “Special Needs Groups” 
the needs of those with a developmental disability within the community.  According to Section 4512 of the 
Welfare and Institutions Code, “developmental disability” means a disability that originates before an 
individual attains 18 years of age, continues, or can be expected to continue, indefinitely, and constitutes a 
substantial disability for that individual.  It includes intellectual disabilities, cerebral palsy, epilepsy, and autism.  
This term also includes disabling conditions found to be closely related to intellectual disability or to require 
treatment similar to that required for individuals with intellectual disabilities but does not include other 
conditions that are solely physical in nature. 


Many developmentally disabled persons can live and work independently within a conventional housing 
environment. More severely disabled persons require a group living environment where supervision is 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-42 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


provided. The most severely affected persons may require an institutional environment where medical aid and 
physical therapy are provided. Because developmental disabilities exist before adulthood, the first issue in 
supportive housing for the developmentally disabled is the transition from the person’s living situation as a 
child to an appropriate level of independence as an adult. 


The California Department of Developmental Services (CDDS) currently provides community-based services 
to approximately 330,000 with developmental disabilities and their families through a statewide system of 21 
regional centers, four developmental centers, and two community-based facilities. The Inland Regional Center 
is one of 21 regional centers in the State of California that provides point of entry to services for people with 
developmental disabilities. The center is a private, nonprofit community agency that contracts with local 
businesses to offer a wide range of services to individuals with developmental disabilities and their families. 


The information in Table HNA-16 is from the California Department of Developmental Services, charged 
by the State of California to oversee the coordination and care of people with developmental disabilities, 
provides a closer look at the disabled population by age. 


TABLE HNA-16: DEVELOPMENTALLY DISABLED RESIDENTS, BY AGE 
Zip Code Area 0-17 Years 18+Years Total 


92595 152 114 266 
 Source: California Department of Developmental Services, Quarterly Consumer Report, September 2020 


There are a number of housing types appropriate for people living with a development disability: rent-
subsidized homes, licensed and unlicensed single-family homes, inclusionary housing, Section 8 vouchers, 
special programs for home purchase, HUD housing, and SB 962 homes. The design of housing-accessibility 
modifications, the proximity to services and transit, and the availability of group living opportunities represent 
some of the types of considerations that are important in serving this need group.  


LARGE HOUSEHOLDS 
Large households are defined as households with five or more members. Large households comprise a special 
needs group because of the need for larger dwelling units, which are often in limited supply and therefore 
command higher prices. To save for other basic necessities, such as food, clothing, and medical care, it is 
common for lower-income large households to reside in smaller dwelling units, frequently resulting in 
overcrowding.   







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-43 
 
 


Based on estimates from the 2014-2018 ACS, 19.9 percent (2,012) of Wildomar’s households were large 
households, including 5.3 percent (537) that had six or more persons and 3.7 percent (376) that had seven or 
more persons.  


As previously mentioned, 2,012 households in Wildomar were occupied by five or more persons. Of those, 
1,323 were owner-occupied households and 689 were renter-occupied households.  


SINGLE-PARENT HOUSEHOLDS 
Single-parent households (which are predominantly female-headed) are one-parent households with children 
under the age of 18 living at home. For these households, living expenses generally require a larger proportion 
of income relative to two-parent households. Therefore, finding affordable, decent, and safe housing is often 
more difficult for single-parent households. Additionally, single-parent households have special needs 
involving access to daycare or childcare, healthcare, and other supportive services.  


According to the 2014-2018 ACS, 21.7 percent (2,190 households) of households in the city were single-
parent households. Of these households, approximately 64.0 percent (1,401 households) were female-headed 
and the remaining 36.0 percent (789 households) were male-headed.  


FARMWORKERS 
Farmworkers are generally considered to have special housing needs because of limited income and the 
unstable nature of employment (i.e., having to move throughout the year from one harvest to the next). The 
typical temporary nature of farm work is not the case in Wildomar. The only work of this nature is dairy work, 
which goes on year-round and is not seasonal. 


Based on the 2014–2018 ACS, it is estimated that there are approximately 127 persons employed in the 
agriculture, forestry, fishing, and hunting industry, representing only 0.8 percent of the total population. The 
demand for specific farmworker housing is estimated to be very minimal if at all and therefore housing is 
addressed through the current housing stock and through overall programs for affordability.  


When looking at Riverside County as a whole, according to the US Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) 2017 
Census of Agriculture, there were 11,365 farm workers in Riverside County. Of those farm workers, the 
majority (8,469 or 75 percent) were seasonal employees, working less than 150 days per year. The remaining 
one-quarter of farmworkers (3,714 persons) were permanent employees.  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-44 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


EXTREMELY LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS 
In 2020, the median income for a household of four in Riverside County was $75,300. Households that earn 
30 percent or less than the county’s median income are considered “extremely low-income”, making $26,200 
or less annually for a household of 4.  


Households and individuals with extremely low incomes may experience the greatest challenges in finding 
suitable, affordable housing. Extremely low-income households often have a combination of housing 
challenges related to income, credit status, disability or mobility status, family size, household characteristics, 
supportive service needs, or a lack of affordable housing opportunities. These households typically include 
seniors on Social Security, individuals with disabilities, single parents, farmworkers, and low-wage workers. 
Some extremely low-income individuals and households are homeless. Many extremely low-income 
households seek rental housing and most likely face overpayment, overcrowding, or substandard housing 
condition. Some extremely low-income households could have members with mental or other disabilities and 
special needs. 


Approximately 7.4 percent (or 735 households) of households in Wildomar fell into the extremely low-income 
range, according 2013–2017 Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy [CHAS]). Of those households, 
38.8 percent (285 households) were owner occupied households and 61.2 percent (450 households) were 
renter occupied households. Of the 735 extremely low-income households, 85 percent were overpaying 
(paying more than 30 percent of their income on housing costs) for housing and 72.8 percent were severely 
overpaying (paying more than 50 percent of their income on housing costs).  


To address the need for extremely low-income housing, the City has included Program 3.1, 10.1, and 11.1. 
Additionally, the City permits single-room occupancy units, in compliance with Government Code Section 
65583(c)(1). 


HOMELESS 
Homeless individuals and families have perhaps the most immediate housing need of any group. They also 
have one of the most difficult sets of housing needs to meet, due to both the diversity and the complexity of 
factors that lead to homelessness and to community opposition to the siting of facilities that serve homeless 
clients. California law requires that Housing Elements estimate the need for emergency shelter for homeless 
people.  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-45 
 
 


The County of Riverside completed a Point-in-Time Homeless Count in January 2020. According to this data, 
there are approximately six unsheltered persons within the City of Wildomar.  The Riverside County Sheriff’s 
Department and the Social Work Action Group estimated a total of 15 unsheltered persons living in Wildomar 
and the surrounding areas but did not have an estimate specific to the City of Wildomar available. Table 
HNA-17 shows some of the shelter resources available to the homeless in Riverside County.  


TABLE HNA-17: HOMELESS SHELTER RESOURCES 


Shelter Name Type of 
Shelter City Clientele or Needs 


Serviced 
Number 
of Beds 


Operation SafeHouse Emergency Riverside Runaway youth 17 
Operation SafeHouse Transitional Riverside Ages 18-22 years 15 
Path of Life Ministries Emergency Riverside General 135 
Project T.O.U.C.H. Transitional Temecula General 215 
Project T.O.U.C.H. Emergency Temecula Winter Shelter 25 
Valley Restart Shelter Emergency  Hemet Families 35 
Lutheran Social Services Permanent Riverside General 30 
Anchor in Christ  Transitional Lake Elsinore Substance Abuse 28 
The Hacienda (God’s Helping Hand)  Transitional Perris Substance Abuse 70 
Project Touch Transitional Temecula General 215 
Rancho Damacitas Project 
Independence  Transitional Temecula Former Foster Youth 19 


Set Free Ministry Transitional Lake Elsinore Substance Abuse 110 
Teen Challenge of Riverside Transitional Riverside Substance Abuse 140 


    Source: Dreamcenterle.org, Murrieta Community Resource Guide, 2018 


ANALYSIS OF AT-RISK HOUSING 
California Housing Element law requires the analysis of government-assisted housing units that are eligible to 
convert from low-income housing to market-rate housing during the next 10 years due to expiring subsidies, 
mortgage prepayments, or expiration of affordability restrictions and development of programs aimed at their 
preservation.  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-46 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


INVENTORY OF AFFORDABLE UNITS 
An inventory of assisted units in the City of Wildomar was compiled based on information gathered from 
the California Housing Partnership Corporation (Table HNA-18). According to the California Housing 
Partnership Corporation, there is one assisted property in Wildomar. This property is not at risk of opting out 
of programs that keep them affordable to very low- and low-income households over the Housing Element 
period (2021-2029).  


TABLE HNA-18: ASSISTED UNITS INVENTORY 
Projects Total 


Units 
Assisted 


Units Type Funding 
Source 


Earliest Date of 
Conversion 


Wildomar Senior Leisure Living 176 175 Senior LIHTC 2053 
Source: California Housing Partnership Corporation 2021 


Preservation Resources 
Efforts by the City to retain low-income housing must be able to draw upon two basic types of preservation 
resources: organizational and financial. Qualified nonprofit entities need to be made aware of the future 
possibilities of units becoming at risk. Should a property become at risk, the City maintains an active list of 
resources by which to preserve that property.   


In addition, the City of Wildomar will develop procedures for monitoring and preserving at-risk units, which 
will include the following: 


 Monitor the Risk Assessment report published by the California Housing Partnership 
Corporation. 


 Maintain regular contact with the local HUD office regarding early warnings of possible opt-outs. 


 Maintain contact with the owners and managers of existing affordable housing to determine if 
there are plans to opt out in the future and offer assistance in locating eligible buyers. 


 Develop and maintain a list of potential purchasers of at-risk units and act as a liaison between 
owners and eligible purchasers.  


 Ensure that all owners and managers of affordable housing are provided with applicable state and 
federal laws regarding notice to tenants of the owner’s desire to opt out or prepay. State law 
requires a 12-month notice. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-47 
 
 


Nonprofit Entities  


Nonprofit entities serving Riverside County, including Wildomar, can be contacted to gauge their interest 
and ability in acquiring and/or managing units at risk of conversion. A partial listing of entities with 
resources in the Riverside County area includes: 


 Alternatives for Domestic Violence 


 Shelter from the Storm 


 Nexus for Affordable Housing  


 Catholic Charities 


 Coachella Valley Housing Coalition 


 Fair Housing Council of Riverside County  


 Family Service Association of Riverside County  


 Habitat for Humanity 


 Lutheran Social Services 


 BUILD Leadership Development 


ASSESSMENT OF FAIR HOUSING 
Assembly Bill (AB) 686 requires that all housing elements due on or after January 1, 2021, must contain an 
Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) consistent with the core elements of the analysis required by the federal 
Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH) Final Rule of July 16, 2015. 


Under state law, AFFH means “taking meaningful actions, in addition to combating discrimination, that 
overcome patterns of segregation and foster inclusive communities free from barriers that restrict access to 
opportunity based on protected characteristics.” 


In order to comply with AB 686, the City has completed the following outreach and analysis. 


OUTREACH 
As discussed in the Public Participation section of the Housing Element, the City held a Planning Commission 
Study Session and invited the public to attend and participate. This study session was held in addition to the 
standard public hearing process and conducted individual consultations with stakeholders. A flyer with 
information about the workshop was sent to local service providers, affordable housing developers, and legal 
aid providers in an effort to reach lower-income residents and special needs groups. At this public outreach 
presentation, the Planning Commission discussed the need to address affordable housing issues in general. 
No community members elected to participate; however, the event was held virtually and is available on the 
City’s website, so residents have ongoing access to this information. The City has included Program H-17.1 
to conduct ongoing outreach to engage members of all socio-economic groups and recruit members of 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-48 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


underrepresented groups to participate in Planning Commission, City Council, and committees as they are 
formed. Members of the community were also encouraged to share input to ask questions before and after 
the workshop by emailing the Planning Director. 


The City also conducted one-on-one consultation meetings with housing advocates, housing and service 
providers, and community organizations who serve the general public and special needs groups. As with the 
workshop, the purpose of these consultations was to solicit direct feedback on housing needs, barriers to fair 
and affordable housing, and opportunities for development from all community groups, not just those who 
are able to attend the study session and public hearings. The primary concerns that stakeholders raised related 
to fair housing included: 


 Limited availability of appropriately zoned land to accommodate high-density affordable housing that 
limits mobility options for lower income households; 


 Lack of a varied housing supply that can result in occupants living in inaccessible housing for their 
needs or overcrowded situations;  


 Discriminatory practices by landlords against low-income persons and persons with disabilities; and 


 Community opposition to affordable, high-density housing in the City. 


The issues raised by stakeholders identified barriers to fair housing in the form of housing mobility 
opportunities and exclusionary behaviors that may result in displacement. In order to address these, the City 
has included Programs H-1.1 and H-1.2 to ensure there is a supply of high-density land available and 
Program H-17.1 to address discriminatory practices and community position on high-density housing. The 
collection process for this qualitative data is described in greater detail in the Public Participation section of 
this Housing Element. 


The primary fair housing issues identified by the Fair Housing Council of Riverside County (FHCRC) were 
refusal by landlords to grant reasonable accommodation requests and poor housing conditions, specifically 
pest infestations and mold that can create health problems for occupants. In both instances, FHCRC noted 
that these issues, and others, present barriers to safe and equal housing opportunities, particularly for lower-
income households that may have more limited housing options. The City will provide biannual training for 
landlords on their responsibilities to their tenants and fair housing laws (Program H-17.1) and will develop a 
code enforcement program to ensure owners are addressing building and maintenance issues without 
displacing occupants, or with relocation assistance (Program H-15.1). Additional data collected from the 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-49 
 
 


FHCRC on local and regional fair housing issues is described in the Enforcement and Outreach Capacity 
section of this assessment.  


The local data and knowledge gathered during these consultations was used to inform this assessment of fair 
housing issues, reveal barriers to fair housing, and identify factors that contribute to these issues (Table 
HNA-19). In an effort to gather ongoing local input and data and encourage all residents to participate in 
planning processes, the City has included Program H-17.1 to meet annually with fair housing providers to 
discuss local fair housing issues and concerns, offer translation services to improve accessibility for all 
residents, conduct targeted outreach to underrepresented groups, and meet with service providers for special 
needs and underrepresented groups.  


ASSESSMENT OF FAIR HOUSING ISSUES 
The California Government Code Section 65583 (10)(A)(ii) requires the City of Wildomar to analyze areas of 
segregation, racially or ethnically concentrated areas of poverty, disparities in access to opportunity, and 
disproportionate housing needs, including displacement risk. Since 2017, the California Tax Allocation 
Committee (TCAC) and HCD have developed annual maps of access to resources such as high-paying job 
opportunities, proficient schools, safe and clean neighborhoods, and other healthy economic, social, and 
environmental indicators to provide evidence-based research for policy recommendations. This effort has 
been dubbed “opportunity mapping” and is available to all jurisdictions to assess access to opportunities 
within their community.  According to the HCD/TCAC 2020 Opportunity Areas Map, the City of Wildomar 
is split between high/highest resource areas south of Wildomar Trail and moderate resource in most areas to 
the north of Wildomar Trail, except for high resource areas south of Palomar Street (Figure HNA-3). While 
there are no low resource areas or areas of high segregation and poverty in the City of Wildomar, all areas 
west of the City in Lake Elsinore are considered low resource. Although the City does not plan for housing 
for these areas, it is likely that many of these residents rely on Wildomar for services and it is possible that 
people that work in Wildomar live in these areas. As such, the City has taken a broader view than just the city 
limits when assessing fair housing issues. 


Some of the indicators identified by TCAC and HCD to determine the access to opportunity include high 
levels of employment and close proximity to jobs, access to effective educational opportunities for both 
children and adults, low concentration of poverty, and low levels of environmental pollutants, among others. 
These indicator scores decrease as the level of designation decreases until “Low Resource” areas, which 
typically have limited access to education and employment opportunities and may have poor environmental 
quality. The trends and factors that have resulted in these patterns of access to resources, and other fair 
housing issues, may have stemmed from historical patterns or from current practices. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-50 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Patterns of Integration and Segregation 
Diversity 


As shown in Figure HNA-4, in 2018 the City of Wildomar had a similar diversity index score to much of the 
surrounding areas. However, while the majority of residents in communities north of Wildomar identify as 
Hispanic, Wildomar is predominantly White and non-Hispanic, as described in the Community Profile of the 
Housing Element. In the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) region, northern areas in 
Los Angeles and San Bernardino Counties have a higher percentage of residents that identify as Hispanic than 
White. This trend differs from more southern areas of the SCAG region, including Wildomar. Wildomar more 
closely reflects the patterns of diversity found in urban areas of Riverside County, where the diversity index 
is consistent across communities, indicating that there are not concentrated areas of more or less diversity. 
While 68.1 percent of Wildomar residents identify as White, there do not appear to be any areas with 
significantly higher or lower levels of diversity than any other within the city or immediately adjacent areas 
(Figure HNA-4), suggesting that the community is well integrated in this regard. This trend is an increase in 
the distribution of diversity scores across the city since even 2010, when the diversity index scores were slightly 
lower in the southeastern portion of the city. 


Income and Race 


A racially or ethnically concentrated area of poverty (R/ECAPs) is an area in which 50 percent or more of the 
population identifies as non-White and 40 percent or more of residents are living in poverty. In the SCAG 
region, there are several R/ECAPs located in major cities and unincorporated areas. However, there are no 
R/ECAPs located in the City of Wildomar. The nearest R/ECAP is the community of Meadowbrook located 
northeast of Wildomar. While there are no R/ECAPs in Wildomar, there is a higher percent of the population 
living below the poverty line along the northwestern city limit adjacent to the City of Lake Elsinore. Across 
Lake Elsinore, there is a significantly higher rate of poverty than anywhere in Wildomar (Figure HNA-5). As 
shown in Figure HNA-5, there is a slightly higher rate of poverty southwest of I-15 in Wildomar than to the 
north of the freeway, which corresponds with a higher concentration of Housing Choice Voucher recipients 
living between Palomar Street, Central Avenue, Clinton Keith Road, and I-15. In this area, 5 to 15 percent of 
housing units are occupied by voucher holders, while there are no notable concentrations east of I-15.  
Beginning January 1, 2020, under California Government Code Section 12927(i), landlords must accept 
Housing Choice Vouchers as an acceptable source of income for tenants. Therefore, the concentration of 
voucher recipients may be due to the availability of housing that is affordable with a voucher, meets the 
condition requirements of the voucher, or that landlords in other areas of the city are unaware of the 
requirement to accept vouchers. While 12.4 percent of the population in Wildomar has an income at or below 
the poverty line, this is a decrease from 15 percent in 2015. Despite this slight decline, the City has included 
Program H-17.1 to provide regular training to landlords on requirements under fair housing law and 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-51 
 
 


Programs H-3.2, H-4.1, and H-7.1 to expand the supply of affordable housing so there are more options 
for lower-income households throughout the city.  


In contrast to a R/ECAP, a racially concentrated area of affluence (RCAA) is defined as a census tract in 
which 80 percent or more of the population is White and has a median income greater than $125,000 annually. 
While there is a higher median income in the southern portion of the City, south of Clinton Keith Road, these 
areas do not correspond with a White population that is 80 percent or more of the population in that area. 
Therefore, there are no areas of Wildomar that qualify as a RCAA. Most RCAAs in the SCAG region are 
located in coastal communities while inland suburban communities do not reflect this pattern. 


Persons with Disabilities 


As discussed in the Community Profile section of the Housing Element, approximately 27.6 percent of 
Wildomar’s population in 2018 had at least one disability, and 40.2 percent of those individuals were seniors, 
who are more likely to have an ambulatory, visual, or hearing disability. Since 2014, the percent of the 
population with a disability has increased slightly across the City, but still reflects the SCAG region and the 
rate of disability is even across the City. The rate of disability in Wildomar is similar to all incorporated 
jurisdictions in Riverside County and most suburban communities in the SCAG region. Disability rates are 
higher further inland in the region, indicating that the City of Wildomar does not have a disproportionate 
concentration of persons with disabilities when compared to the region or a smaller percentage of persons 
with disabilities that would indicate barriers to this population. In Wildomar, the senior population has 
increased since 2012, from 9.8 percent of the population to 12.5 percent in 2018, which may account for a 
large portion of the increase in the percentage of the population with a disability during this time period, from 
10.4 percent in 2012 to 13.9 percent in 2018. The City will explore amending the Wildomar Municipal Code 
to allow residential care facilities for seven or more persons in all residential zones to ensure that residents are 
able to age in place with access to the resources they need (Program H-11.2) and will work with disability 
service providers to identify whether there is unmet demand for services in any area of the city (Program H-
17.1). 


Familial Status 


Wildomar has historically been highly family-oriented, a pattern that exists today, and will in the future. As 
shown in Figure HNA-6, Wildomar and the surrounding areas are dominated by married-couple families 
and families with children. Given the low vacancy rate for both ownership units (0.4 percent) and rental units 
(1.0 percent) in 2018, this may suggest that there is a shortage of homes to meet the needs of existing family 
types in Wildomar. While many communities across the SCAG region are predominantly made up of married-
couple families, like Wildomar, the percentage of households with children decreases in more rural and 
unincorporated areas, especially in the eastern portion of the region. The City will work with developers to 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-52 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


promote and incentivize the development of a variety of housing types to meet the needs of all current and 
future residents (Programs H-4.1). 


Other Relevant Factors 


While not incorporated until 2008, development in the Wildomar area began in the 1880s with the 
introduction of train service to present day Lake Elsinore. In 1885, the first map of the Wildomar townsite 
was made by its founders and formal development began thereafter with the construction of a school, federal 
buildings, and a town center. The townsite was originally platted for large-lot, single-family construction, 
which was standard for the time but supported a lower-density downtown that persists today. While 
Wildomar’s growth originated with the construction of the Southern Pacific Railroad through the townsite, 
heavy rains in 1884 washed out the tracks which were never replaced. The following century of slow growth 
therefore, was not largely influenced by the presence of the railroad beyond a concentration of retail and 
commercial at the original center of town where which, in some jurisdictions, can result in significantly 
different land use patterns and segregation.  


With the opening of the Temecula Valley Freeway (Interstate [I-] 15) in 1985, Wildomar’s community was 
revitalized, and growth began again. Due to its historic foundation as a railroad community, Wildomar’s 
services are generally located along the in the original center of town where the railroad once was and have 
since stretched along the length of the I-15 corridor. Interstate 15 bisects the City in a north-south direction.  
Areas west of I-15 are typically smaller, older homes, indicative of the older nature of this part of the city, 
which tend to be more affordable than larger, newer homes east of I-15. West of I-15, poverty rates tend to 
be higher, ranging from approximately 6.5 percent to 13.4 percent, while east of I-15 rates range from 4.2 to 
10.0 percent. While these do not differ significantly, the presence of smaller, more affordable homes may be 
more accessible for lower-income households, resulting in a slightly higher rate of poverty. In order to address 
the disproportionate concentration of lower-income households, the City will employ several strategies to 
encourage the construction of affordable housing in high opportunity areas and throughout the city to 
facilitate housing mobility (Programs H-3.2, H-4.1, H-7.1, and H-9.1). 


The hillside arching through the eastern portion of the City present another barrier in Wildomar. The 
topography creates a barrier between the residential and commercial areas to the south of the mountains and 
the residential area to the north. Additionally, due to steeper topography adjacent to the hillside, development 
is more limited with regards to high density housing construction. Its historical ties to the railroad community 
and geographic location have resulted in the distribution of density Wildomar has today, with higher-density 
residential uses concentrated on the northern and southern areas of the City and lower-density uses in the 
historic areas. However, poverty rates, racial and ethnic concentrations, and other potential indicators of 
segregation do not exist between areas north and south of the topographic barrier. Housing north of the 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-53 
 
 


mountains reflect the development patterns south of the mountains, east of I-15, with larger homes in 
suburban development. Additionally, despite topographic factors and transportation routes that have 
influenced how the City of Wildomar has grown in the last 40 years, public investment in infrastructure has 
remained balanced throughout the city. There is no history of disproportionate investment in certain areas of 
the city, or lack of investment in others. Therefore, there are no patterns of disproportionate access to 
opportunity as a result of public investment. 


Zoning in Wildomar was, until 2008 upon incorporation, established as part of the greater Riverside County 
governmental agency. The area that is present day Wildomar was part of the urbanized western Riverside 
County, as opposed to the more agricultural eastern Riverside County. This distinction is part of what drove 
targeting commercial zoning and higher density and mixed-use zoning in the town center of Wildomar, along 
the interstate and other major transit routes. The County established Mixed Use Planning Areas which still 
exist today, emphasizing a shift toward denser, more integrated residential and commercial development. 
When the City of Wildomar incorporated, it inherited both the current and historic growth patterns that had 
resulted from being part of unincorporated Riverside County. Riverside County has no history of exclusionary 
zoning practices or land use policies that influenced the development of present-day Wildomar. Growth was 
dependent on access to transit and resources and resulted in a denser city core and more suburban exteriors 
that were not explicitly exclusionary. 


In the last decade, population growth has primarily occurred east of I-15, in newer areas of the city with 
available land. West of I-15 between Almond Street and Wildomar Trail, and west of Palomar Street, the 
population decreased slightly. The concentration of population growth is not surprising considering that most 
areas west of I-15 are built out, however the declining population in some neighborhoods west of I-15 may 
be a symptom of residents being drawn to other neighborhoods of Wildomar or elsewhere. To ensure that 
residents have access to a variety of affordable housing types to remain in their neighborhood if they choose 
to, the City will pursue funding to assist homeowners with securing rehabilitation funding (Program H-14.1), 
allow ADU’s in all residential zones (Program H-9.1), and will develop a program to connect lower-income 
residents with affordable housing opportunities. (Programs H-4.1 and H-17.1) 


Educational attainment may also indicate discrepancies in access to educational opportunities, or varying 
needs for types of employment based on education levels. In 2019, approximately 81.6 percent of Wildomar 
residents had earned a high school diploma while approximately 11.5 percent had a bachelor’s degree or 
higher. There are no neighborhoods in the City that have notably lower rates of attainment of a bachelor’s 
degree or higher; however, west of Palomar Street and west of Lost Road have high school educational 
attainment rates of 64.4 percent and 69.9 percent, respectively. However, despite areas with lower educational 
attainment levels, these areas do not have lower median incomes or other indicators of fair housing issues 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-54 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


beyond what is discussed throughout this assessment of fair housing. Educational attainment may still be a 
cause of fair housing issues; therefore, the City will promote the availability of the County’s CalWorks program 
to assist lower-income households to enter or re-enter the workforce and will work with the school district 
and developers to ensure all neighborhoods have equal access to strong educational opportunities (Program 
H-17.1). 


Access to Opportunity 
Educational Opportunities 


There are several schools located in Wildomar, including Wildomar Elementary School, Donald Graham 
Elementary School, David Brown Middle School, and Elsinore High School, among others. Of the 
approximately 11 schools located within city limits, 8 are located west of I-15. Due to geographical constraints, 
there are limited areas of development east of I-15 and, therefore, less need for schools in this area. However, 
there are no schools located in the developed northeast corner of Wildomar, reducing access to schools for 
residents of this area. As shown in Figure HNA-7, a more positive educational outcome is expected for 
students in the southern portion of the city, where there is greater access to resources, including schools. The 
access to strong educational opportunities decreases in the northern portion of the city, though remains higher 
than areas west of Wildomar. There is a significant discrepancy in expected educational outcome for residents 
between these two areas of the city, suggesting that there is more limited access to high-quality schools in the 
northwestern areas of the city due to the quality of schools or proximity to them. The City will work with 
school districts and developers to ensure residential development in the northern portion of the city can be 
accommodated by existing school capacity or will assist with identifying a site for a new school, if needed 
(Program H-17.1). Despite the differences in expected educational outcome between the northern and 
southern reaches of the city, Wildomar as a whole has a more positive educational outcome expected than 
many areas in the SCAG region and Riverside County. Wildomar reflects the educational scores in the nearby 
cities of Murrieta, Temecula, and Rancho Santa Margarita, and has a significantly higher score than the cities 
of Lake Elsinore, Perris, and Hemet. In the SCAG region, suburban communities tend to have higher 
educational scores than urban and rural, which reflects the score in Wildomar as a suburban city. 


Employment Opportunities 


According to HUD’s 2017 analysis of proximity to jobs, Wildomar, and most of western Riverside County, 
are located far from employment opportunities (Figure HNA-8). However, the mean commute times of 
residents, as reported by ACS, suggest that residents of Wildomar are located within a similar distance to jobs 
as residents of Temecula, which HUD identified as a job center. The mean commute time for residents of 
Wildomar was 37.4 minutes in 2019, which has not changed since 2010. This was only slightly higher than 
that for residents of the cities of Temecula (36.1 minutes) and Murrieta (35.7 minutes), and lower than other 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-55 
 
 


surrounding communities, including the cities of Lake Elsinore (45.5 minutes), Menifee (42.9 minutes), and 
Perris (37.7 minutes). In addition to having a stable commute time that is similar to surrounding communities, 
the unemployment rate in Wildomar is similar to, or lower than, all of these jurisdictions, as well as the County 
as a whole, according to the California Employment Development Department. Before the COVID-19 
pandemic resulted in a national spike in unemployment, the unemployment rate in the City of Wildomar in 
2020 was 3.9 percent, lower than the Riverside County rate of 4.2 percent. In December 2020, that rate had 
increased to 8.3 percent in the city, but remained lower than Riverside County rate of 9.1 percent. Therefore, 
given this data, the supply of jobs for Wildomar residents appears to meet demand and does not differ 
significantly from the region. 


Mobility 


Wildomar residents are served by Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) routes 8 and 23.  Route 8 operates on a 
loop between Lake Elsinore and Wildomar and Route 23 runs from Wildomar to Temecula, with a stop in 
Murrieta. Both routes operate seven days per week, approximately 12 hours per day, but have 60- to 75-minute 
headways. There are very limited fixed-route transit options within the City of Wildomar, with no transit 
available to residents in the northeast portion of the city. All Transit is a data tool that measures access to 
transit, connectivity, and service availability. According to All Transit, the City of Wildomar has a transit 
performance score of 1.9, compared to 3.3 for Riverside County and 5.5 for the SCAG region as a whole. 
Given the limited routes and frequency of public transit in Wildomar, the City will work with RTA to assess 
unmet transit needs and expand routes and frequency as needed (Program H-17.1).   


Housing for Persons with Disabilities 


To meet the needs of the population with disabilities in Wildomar, there is one licensed adult residential care 
facility and 10 licensed residential care facilities for the elderly. Additionally, residents are served by Dial-A-
Ride, an advanced reservation, origin-to-destination transportation option offered by RTA for seniors and 
persons with disabilities at locations within three-quarters of a mile of an RTA fixed route. The City also 
requires new developments to comply with Title 24 of the 2019 California Building Code to ensure that all 
new construction meets accessible design standards, thus ensuring that all new housing is accessible for all 
residents regardless of disability. Additionally, the City ensures that older housing that may not meet the same 
accessibility requirements can be adapted as needed through their reasonable accommodation process, 
discussed in the Governmental Constraints section of this Housing Element, and by seeking funding to assist 
with rehabilitations (Program H-17.1). 


  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-56 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Environmental Health 


In February 2021, the California Office for Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (COEHHA) released 
the fourth version of CalEnviroScreen, a tool that uses environmental, health, and socioeconomic indicators 
to map and compare community’s environmental scores. A community with a in the 75th percentile or above, 
is one with higher levels of pollution and other negative environmental indicators and is considered a 
disadvantaged community. There are no disadvantaged communities in the City of Wildomar. North of 
Lemon Street and west of Lost Road is in the highest percentile in the city (53rd percentile). Outside of that 
area, east of I-15 scores between the 29th and 37th percentile; west of I-15 scores between the 33rd and 46th 
percentile. While environmental conditions in Wildomar are similar to or lower than surrounding jurisdictions, 
and significantly lower than many dense urban areas in the SCAG region, there is a slight between 
neighborhoods on either side of the interstate within the City, despite not having any areas with considerably 
poor environmental conditions. In the SCAG region, many cities and communities in urban areas have poorer 
environmental conditions than are found in Wildomar while smaller communities are similar to Wildomar. 
To ensure residents across the City, regardless of location, have access to positive environmental conditions, 
the City will review open space requirements for new developments and will revise as necessary to ensure all 
residents have access to healthy outdoor spaces (Program H-17.1). 


Disproportionate Housing Need and Displacement Risk 
Overcrowding and Overpayment 


As discussed in the Community Profile of the Housing Element, overcrowding is an issue in the City of 
Wildomar, especially among renter households. While there are no areas with a higher concentration of 
overcrowded households, 9.4 percent of renter households live in overcrowded situations, compared to 3.7 
percent of owner households. Both rates are lower than overcrowding Riverside County overall (11.9 percent 
of renters, 4.3 percent of owners). Overcrowding typically means that either appropriately sized housing is 
unaffordable to current residents, or that the type of housing available does not meet the need  resulting in an 
increased risk of displacement for households living in overcrowded situations.  In either case, overcrowding 
means there is a disproportionate need for affordable, larger housing units in Wildomar. The City will meet 
with the developers to identify barriers to constructing larger housing (Program H-17.1) and has included 
several other programs to incentivize development of affordable housing. 


As with overcrowding, overpayment is a widespread issue in Wildomar, with 37.4 percent of households 
overpaying for housing. However, the issue is even more prominent among renter households than owner 
households, with approximately 53.7 percent of renters overpaying for housing. Figures HNA-9 and HNA-
10 demonstrate how persistent the issue is across Wildomar. This reflects patterns of overpayment across the 
SCAG region, where overpayment has remained an issue among renters in recent years while decreasing 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-57 
 
 


among homeowners. In Wildomar, the percent of the population overpaying for housing is relatively similar 
between owners and renters in the eastern portion of the City but is significantly higher among renters in the 
western portion. This may suggest that in the more urbanized western portion of the City, with closer access 
to resources, either there are fewer affordable rental options for the share of the population that lives here or 
that the cost of housing is higher overall. While low-density land use designations are more pervasive in the 
western portion of the City, there are also higher-density areas surrounding commercial uses and major 
thoroughfares, so the availability of land for higher-density housing is similar between the eastern and western 
areas of the City. Overpayment increases the risk of displacing residents who are no longer able to afford their 
housing costs. To address displacement risks due to overpayment, the City will provide incentives to 
encourage affordable development and will develop a targeted program to connect lower-income residents 
with affordable homeownership and rental opportunities within the City (Programs H-4.1 and H-17.1). 


Housing Condition 


In addition to extensive overpayment, just less than half of the housing stock in Wildomar is older than 30 
years and may need repairs. While it is likely that some homeowners have conducted ongoing maintenance to 
maintain the value of their homes, it is likely that many of these homes need some degree of repairs. In some 
cases, the cost of repairs can be prohibitive, resulting in the owner or renter living in substandard housing 
conditions or being displaced if the house is designated as uninhabitable or during rehabilitation. According 
to Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) data compiled by the U.S. Census Bureau, 
approximately 22 percent of Wildomar households which may include overcrowding, lack of a complete 
kitchen, lack of complete plumbing, or severe cost-burden. As identified above, many homeowners and 
renters in Wildomar are cost burden, and may represent a large percentage of the 22 percent of households 
with a severe housing problem identified in CHAS. The rate of housing programs for these four categories 
combined is lower than most jurisdictions in western Riverside with the exception of the cities of Murrieta 
and Temecula. Wildomar also has a lower rate of housing programs than most jurisdictions in the SCAG 
region, indicating that substandard housing may be a larger issue in other communities. However, to prevent 
residents occupying, or being displaced from, substandard housing, the City will seek funding to assist 
homeowners with rehabilitation costs and will develop a code enforcement process that will prevent 
displacement or assist with relocation costs for lower-income households (Programs H-14.1 and H-15.1). 


Homelessness 


As discussed in the Special Needs Group section of the Housing Needs Assessment, there are approximately 
15 unsheltered homeless persons living in the City of Wildomar and the surrounding area, according to the 
Riverside County Sheriff’s Department and the Social Work Action Group. Compared to the region, 
Wildomar has a smaller percentage of its population that is homeless than most Riverside County cities. The 
2020 point-in-time survey estimates that less than the homeless population in Wildomar makes up less than 1 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-58 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


percent of the total unsheltered population of District 1 in Riverside County, compared to the City of Lake 
Elsinore which makes up 4 percent of the homeless population in District 1. Persons experiencing 
homelessness, or at risk of becoming homeless, are typically extremely low-income and are displaced from 
housing due to inability to pay or other issues. While there are several shelters and homeless resources available 
to homeless residents of Wildomar (Table HNA-17), there are limited services available inside city limits. In 
order to facilitate the construction of emergency shelters, the City has included Program H-13.1 to allow low-
barrier navigation centers in all zones that allow mixed-use and non-residential zones that allow multifamily 
uses as well as permit emergency shelters in the I-P zone. The City also encourages development of housing 
for extremely low-income housing through outreach to developers, financial and technical assistance, 
expedited processing, and other incentives identified in Program H-11.1. 


Displacement Risk 


The annual rate of increase in average home value or rental prices compared with annual changes in the 
average income in the City also indicates an increased risk of displacement due to housing costs outpacing 
wage increase, a trend that is felt throughout the region, state, and nation. According to Zillow, the average 
home value in Wildomar has increased 13.4 percent annually since 2011, increasing from $221,000 which was 
affordable to a household earning approximately $35,500 annually to $546,000 in June 2021, a price that is 
affordable to a household earning approximately $87,500. The rate of increase in rental prices still outpaces 
wage increases but is less than that of home values. Between July 2018 and July 2021, the average rent in 
Wildomar increased 5.3 percent annually, from prices affordable to households earning $75,500 to those 
earning $88,800 or more. While housing costs have increased rapidly, wages have not kept pace. The average 
income in Wildomar has increased approximately 2 percent annually, from $76,357 in 2010 to $91,355 in 2019 
according to the American Community Survey. The difference in these trends indicates growing 
unaffordability of housing in Wildomar, as is the case throughout the region and state. In order to address 
affordability challenges, the City will encourage and incentivize development of affordable housing units, 
particularly in high opportunity areas and will develop a program to connect lower-income residents with 
affordable housing opportunities (see Table HNA-19).  


Displacement risk increases when a household is paying more for housing than their income can support, 
their housing condition is unstable or unsafe, and when the household is overcrowded. Each of these presents 
barriers to stable housing for the occupants. In Wildomar, overpayment is typically, but not always, linked to 
areas with a lower median income. As discussed under Patterns of Integration and Segregation, there are 
higher rates of poverty in the northern portion of the City (see Figure HNA-5). As shown in Figures HNA-9 
and HNA-10, the rate of overpayment among homeowners is slightly higher in this area of the city as well, 
while overpayment of renters is relatively constant across all populated areas of the city. As a result, 
displacement risk due to overpayment for low-income renter households is not significantly higher in any one 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-59 
 
 


area of the city but may be slightly higher for low-income homeowners in the northern portion of the city. 
The City has included Programs H-4.1 and H-17.1 to connect lower-income households with affordable 
housing opportunities, and will promote the availability of this program in the neighborhood with an increased 
risk of displacement due to a concentration of lower-income homeowners overpaying for housing.  


Enforcement and Outreach Capacity 
The City enforces fair housing and complies with fair housing laws and regulation through a twofold process: 
review of City policies and code for compliance with State law and referring fair housing complaints to 
appropriate agencies.  


At the time of this Housing Element update, the City is conducting a comprehensive review of the City’s 
zoning laws and policies for compliance with fair housing law and anticipates completing this review and 
update during the 2021 calendar year. In addition to assessing fair housing issues related to development 
standards, fair housing issues can include disproportionate loan rates by race, housing design that is a barrier 
to individuals with a disability, discrimination against race, national origin, familial status, disability, religion, 
or sex when renting or selling a housing unit, and more. To address issues not related to development 
standards, all discrimination and fair housing inquiries or complaints are handled by the City Planning 
Director, who works directly with the complainant to refer cases to the Fair Housing Council of Riverside 
County. While no cases have been received through this process to date, the City will continue to promote 
the availability of this referral service and other fair housing information on the City’s website (Program H-
17.1). 


The Fair Housing Council of Riverside County (FHCRC) provides services to residents of Riverside County 
and its incorporated cities to promote fair housing and protect the housing rights of all individuals. In 
December 2020, FHCRC reported that they receive an average of 60 to 90 calls per day from residents 
throughout the County regarding discrimination complaints and housing disputes. Where possible, FHCRC 
provides mediation services before submitting complaints to HUD. The most common type of complaint 
throughout Riverside County comes from people with disabilities requesting reasonable accommodations; 
however, since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic, FHCRC has seen an increase in complaints regarding 
discrimination and sexual harassment. The most common type of complaints received by FHCRC regarding 
the physical condition of homes are infestation of insects and cases of mold. FHCRC confirmed that these 
issues are not isolated to Wildomar and are experienced by residents across their service area. While they do 
not track the origin of complaints to Wildomar, FHCRC reported in their quarterly reports that they received 
a total of 1,549 complaints between January and September 2020 from residents of West County, which 
includes Wildomar. The data received from FHCRC supports many of the findings of this assessment of fair 
housing regarding housing condition and accessible housing near services for special needs groups. The local 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-60 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


and regional context of the information provided to the City was used to inform fair housing issues while the 
contributing factors were identified through the more local lens of this assessment. FHCRC’s feedback is 
reflected in the issues and factors identified in Table HNA-19. 


In their 2019 Annual Report, the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) reported 
that they received 36 housing complaints from residents of Riverside County, approximately 3.8 percent of 
the total number of cases in the state that year (934). As part of the Fair Housing Assistance Program (FHAP), 
DFEH dual-files fair housing cases with HUD’s Region IX Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity 
(FHEO); HUD FHEO reported that just four cases were filed by residents of the City of Wildomar between 
January 1, 2013, and February 8, 2021. Of these four cases, one resulted in a no-cause determination and three 
were closed through conciliation or settlement. One case alleged discrimination based on sex, two alleged 
discrimination based on race, and two alleged disability based on disability. The total alleged bases is higher 
than the number of cases due to one alleging two bases.  In addition to these cases, five inquiries of unknown 
bases were sent to HUD to determine whether a case would be valid. In reviewing these cases, one inquirer 
failed to respond to HUD’s follow-up, three resulted in a finding that there was no valid issue or basis, and 
one was not pursued for undisclosed reasons. 


FHCRC and DFEH were not able to provide specific location information for cases either because they do 
not track the geographic origin of complaints or due to confidentiality concerns. Therefore, the City was 
unable to conduct a spatial analysis of fair housing cases to identify any patterns or concentrations of fair 
housing issues in the city. Program H-17.1 has been included to work with fair housing enforcement 
organizations and agencies to track issues and identify patterns in the city.  


SITES INVENTORY ANALYSIS 
The City examined the opportunity area map prepared by HCD and TCAC (Figure HNA-3). The 
opportunity area map identifies areas in every region of the state whose characteristics have been shown by 
research to support positive economic, educational, and health outcomes for low-income families—
particularly long-term outcomes for children. 


Using the statewide opportunity area map and indicators of segregation, displacement risk, and access to 
opportunity as overlays to the City’s sites inventory, the City was able to identify if the sites identified in the 
inventory to accommodate the lower-income Regional Housing Need Allocation (RHNA) affirmatively 
further fair housing and combat any existing identified patterns. The sites identified to meet the lower-income 
RHNA are distributed across the city and are located primarily in areas of high or highest resource. The largest 
concentration of sites is located near the southeast boundary of the city where land uses are varied, and the 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-61 
 
 


mix of residential densities permitted promotes a variety of housing to meet all income needs. Sites, 2, 5, 6, 8, 
10, and 13 identified to meet the lower-income RHNA are in this area, where the median income is 
approximately $135,000 and the neighborhood is designated as a highest resource area. The integration of 
affordable housing into this neighborhood will promote mixed-income communities and will facilitate 
housing mobility and improve access to opportunity for lower-income households. There are no sites 
identified to meet the lower-income RHNA located in the area with a concentration of HCV holders, thus 
promoting integration of affordable housing with market-rate, and no lower-income sites are 
disproportionately concentrated in areas with overpayment, overcrowding, or known substandard housing 
conditions. The distribution of these sites in primarily high and highest resource areas, both north and south 
of I-15, will affirmatively further fair housing by promoting mobility opportunities and encouraging affordable 
housing in high opportunity areas. 


The remainder of the sites, identified to meet the moderate- and above moderate-income RHNA, are located 
throughout the city, as shown in figures HNA-12 through HNA-15. As with the lower-income sites, no 
moderate- or above moderate-income sites are located in areas with disproportionate rates of overpayment 
compared to the city or region or overcrowding. These sites are located in moderate, high, and highest 
resource areas along with the lower-income sites, thus affirmatively furthering fair housing through income 
integration and encouraging a variety of housing in all resource areas to stimulate investment through the 
development process. The City does not have any areas of high segregation and poverty, therefore no sites 
will be concentrated in an area such as this. The sites in Tables HNA-23 and HNA-24 will provide access 
to services, employment, and educational and recreational opportunities for future residents and are a 
mechanism of affirmatively furthering fair housing by promoting mixed-income neighborhoods, facilitating 
mobility to high opportunity areas, and reducing displacement risk for both tenants and homeowners.  


CONTRIBUTING FACTORS 
Through discussions with stakeholders, fair housing advocates, and the assessment of fair housing issues, the 
City identified several factors that contribute to fair housing issues in Wildomar, as shown in Table HNA-
19. 


TABLE HNA-19: FAIR HOUSING ISSUES IN WILDOMAR 
AFH Identified 
Fair Housing 


Issues 
Contributing Factors Meaningful Actions 


Disproportionate 
access to services. 


Concentration of schools southwest of 
I-15. 


Permit residential care facilities in all zones that 
allow single-family units (Program H-11.2). 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-62 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


AFH Identified 
Fair Housing 


Issues 
Contributing Factors Meaningful Actions 


Limited public transit connecting 
northern neighborhoods to resources. 
Limitations on where residential care 
facilities are permitted. 
Concentrations of individuals with 
lower educational attainment. 


Meet with the Regional Transit Authority to 
assess unmet transit needs and ensure all 
residents have access to schools, jobs, and 
services (Program H-17.1). 
Work with the school district to assess 
catchment areas and capacity for Wildomar 
residents (Program H-17.1). 
Meet with disability service providers to 
identify if there are unmet needs or gaps in 
service areas (Program H-17.1). 
Encourage construction of low-barrier 
navigation centers for residents experiencing, 
or at risk of, homelessness (Program H-13.1). 
Provide a link to Riverside County’s CalWORKs 
program to assist lower-income households 
entering the workforce (Program H-17.1) 


Displacement of 
residents due to 
economic 
pressures. 


Unaffordable rental and sales prices. 
Concentration of affordable housing 
for Housing Choice Voucher holders 
southwest of I-15. 
Cost of repairs or rehabilitation, 
especially for older housing units. 
 


Provide training to landlords on fair housing 
requirements, source of income discrimination, 
and benefits of marketing housing units for 
vouchers to expand the locations registered 
units in the city (Program H-17.1). 
Encourage development of ADUs in high 
opportunity areas (Program H-9.1). 
Incentivize development of affordable housing 
units (Programs H-3.2, H-4.1, H-7.1). 
Develop a program to connect lower-income 
residents with affordable housing 
opportunities. (Programs H-4.1, H-17.1) 
Pursue funding to assist homeowners with 
securing rehabilitation funding (Program H-
14.1). 


Displacement of 
residents due to 
availability of a 


Shortage of large housing units, 
especially for renters. 


Support the development of larger housing 
units (Program H-17.1). 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-63 
 
 


AFH Identified 
Fair Housing 


Issues 
Contributing Factors Meaningful Actions 


variety of housing 
types. 


Shortage of affordable housing 
without age restrictions. 
Dominance of lower-density land use 
designations. 


Allow ADU’s in all residential zones (Program 
H-9.1) 
Encourage the construction of ADUs in existing 
low-density neighborhoods (Program H-9.1) 
Increase the supply of housing for lower-
income households and special needs groups 
(Programs H-11.1) 
Incentivize construction of high-density 
housing, prioritizing high resource areas and 
neighborhoods dominated by low-density 
housing (Program H-3.1)  


 


The City has identified the shortage of larger housing units and mobility opportunities to access services, in 
addition to access to affordable housing in general, as the primary contributing factors to fair housing in 
Wildomar. The City has included actions to address these factors, as well as the other issues identified in this 
assessment, throughout the Housing Element programs and policies. Program H-17.1 has been included to 
affirmatively further fair housing, per AB 686, and take meaningful actions that address significant disparities 
in housing needs and access to opportunities for all groups protect by state and federal law. Regional 
coordination efforts outlined in several programs will ensure that the City furthers patterns of integration and 
development of affordable housing in such a way that it will have a positive impact on residents of the city 
and region. 


 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-64 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


FIGURE HNA-3: OPPORTUNITY AREAS 







  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-65 
 
 


 


 


FIGURE HNA-4: DIVERSITY INDEX 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-66 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


FIGURE HNA-5: POVERTY STATUS  







  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-67 
 
 


 


 


FIGURE HNA-6: FAMILIAL STATUS  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-68 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


FIGURE HNA-7: EDUCATIONAL SCORE  







  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-69 
 
 


 


 


FIGURE HNA-8: PROXIMITY TO JOBS  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-70 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


FIGURE HNA-9: RENTERS OVERPAYING FOR HOUSING  







  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-71 
 
 


 


 


FIGURE HNA-10: HOMEOWNERS OVERPAYING FOR HOUSING 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-72 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES AND RESOURCES 
This section includes an evaluation of the availability of land resources, the financial resources for future 
housing development, the City’s ability to satisfy its share of the region’s future housing needs, and the 
financial resources available to assist in implementing the City’s housing programs. Additionally, this section 
examines opportunities for energy conservation. 


REGIONAL HOUSING NEED 
The City of Wildomar falls under the jurisdiction of SCAG. SCAG is responsible for developing a Regional 
Housing Needs Plan (RHNP) allocating the region’s share of the statewide housing needs to lower-level 
councils of governments, which then allocate the needs to cities and counties in the region. The RHNA is a 
minimum projection of additional housing units needed to accommodate projected household growth of all 
income levels by the end of the Housing Element’s statutory planning period.  


In March 2021, the SCAG Regional Council adopted the final 6th Cycle RHNA, which assigned 2,715 units 
across all income categories for the City of Wildomar, as shown in Table HNA-20. This allocation includes 
399 extremely low-income units, 399 very low-income units, 450 low-income units, 434 moderate-income 
units, and 1,033 above moderate-income units. 


TABLE HNA-20: REGIONAL HOUSING NEED, 2021–2029 
Income Category 2021-2029 RHNA 


Extremely Low* 399 
Very Low 399 
Low 450 
Moderate 434 
Above Moderate 1,033 
Total 2,715 


Source: SCAG, 2021 
*Note: It is assumed that the extremely low-income unit need is 50 percent of the 
very low-income allocation. 
 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-73 
 
 


AVAILABILITY OF LAND 
To demonstrate the capacity to meet its 2021-2029 RHNA, the City compiled an inventory of adequate sites. 
The sites listed in Table HNA-23 are currently available and will allow for the development of a variety of 
housing types that will potentially meet the needs of all income groups as allocated by SCAG for the 2021-
2029 planning period.  


The inventory must identify adequate sites that will be made available through appropriate zoning and 
development standards and with public services and facilities needed to facilitate and encourage the 
development of a variety of housing types for households of all income levels. The analysis of the relationship 
of suitable sites to zoning provides a means for determining the realistic number of dwelling units that could 
actually be constructed on those sites within the current planning period. The analysis also identifies the zoning 
districts the City believes can accommodate its share of the regional housing needs for all income levels. 


REALISTIC CAPACITY 
The City considered and evaluated the implementation of its current multifamily development standards and 
on-site improvement requirements (e.g., setbacks, building height, parking, and open space requirements) 
which provided a realistic capacity of 80 percent. The City also looked at project examples to determine the 
appropriate realistic capacity. The City reviewed a project that includes 225 housing units on a 10.35 acre lot. 
This project has a land use designation of Very High Density Residential (VHDR), which allows for a 
maximum of 20 units per acre. Based on the allowable density and the acreage a maximum of 207 units would 
be permitted on this site.  Therefore, the realistic capacity of this project is over 100 percent.  


Although this project example shows that over 100 percent capacity could be assumed, the City took a 
conservative approach and assumed an 80 percent realistic capacity on solely residential sites. To determine 
the realistic capacity on mixed use sites, the City requires both residential and commercial uses to be developed 
on each site and requires that a minimum of 30 percent of the site capacity be used for residential uses. The 
City is assuming a mix of 30-percent and 50-percent residential will develop on the MUPA sites.   


It should be noted that each parcel’s density is determined by the land use designation and not the zoning. 
Therefore, all sites included in the inventory have been organized by land use designation and allocated to the 
category in which they will develop at maximum potential.  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-74 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


ZONING TO ACCOMMODATE THE DEVELOPMENT OF HOUSING AFFORDABLE 
TO LOWER-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS 
Housing Element law requires jurisdictions to provide a requisite analysis showing that zones identified for 
lower-income households are sufficient to encourage such development. The law provides two options for 
preparing the analysis: (1) describe market demand and trends, financial feasibility, and recent development 
experience; (2) utilize default density standards deemed adequate to meet the appropriate zoning test. 
According to state law, the default density standard for the City of Wildomar is 30 dwelling units per acre.  


Land use designations of Highest-Density Residential (HHDR) and Mixed-Use Planning Area (MUPA) both 
allow at least 30 units per acre. HHDR allows for 20–40 units per acre and MUPA allows for at least 30 units 
per acre. In 2013, the City of Wildomar adopted Ordinance 85 which applied the Mixed-Use Overlay zone to 
all sites with the MUPA land use designation to ensure consistency, and affordable housing opportunities. 
The Mixed-Use Overlay zone falls under the development standards of the R-4 zoning district. Development 
standards can be found in Table HNA-28. 


ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT POTENTIAL 
California Government Code Section 65583.1(a) states that a town, city, or county may identify sites for 
ADU’s based on the number of ADU’s developed in the prior housing element planning period, whether the 
units are permitted by right, the need for ADU’s in the community, the resources or incentives available for 
their development, and any other relevant factors. Based on recent changes in state law reducing the time to 
review and approve ADU applications, requiring ADU’s that meet requirements be allowed by right, 
eliminating discretionary review for most ADU’s, and removing other restrictions on ADU’s, it is anticipated 
that the production of ADU’s will increase in the 6th Cycle planning period. 


The City issued permits for one ADU per year from 2015 to 2017 and two in 2019. This analysis assumes that 
the number of ADU applications and permits will increase slightly during the 2021-2029 projection period, 
averaging 1.4 ADU’s per year, for a total of 11 ADU’s during the planning period. To promote ADU’s, the 
City has included Program H-9.1 to comply with state law and make construction of ADU’s feasible for 
more property owners. 


To determine assumptions on ADU affordability in the SCAG region, SCAG conducted a regional analysis 
of existing ADU rents in April and June 2020. The analysis resulted in affordability assumptions for Riverside 
County jurisdictions that allocate 57.6 percent of ADU’s to lower-income households, 34.8 percent to 
moderate-income households, and 7.7 percent to above moderate-income households.  Affordability of 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-75 
 
 


ADU’s projected to be built within the city during the planning period were based on the SCAG analysis. Of 
the 11 ADU’s projected to be built, it is estimated that 6 will be for lower-income households, 4 for moderate-
income households, and one for above moderate-income households. 


PROPOSED PROJECT 
In January 2021, Palm Communities, Inc. submitted to the City an SB 330 Pre-Application Review (PAR) for 
a 225-unit affordable housing project (Tres Lagos) on a 10.35 acre site located at the SEC of Catt Road and 
Arnett Road.  A formal SB 35 application was submitted in May 2021.  The proposed project includes 180 
housing units affordable to lower income households, 42 units affordable to moderate-income households, 
and three manager units (Table HNA-21). The funding for this project is still pending but the project will be 
100 percent affordable. Once funding is secured the affordability breakdown for the lower income units will 
be determined.  


It should also be noted, sites TL-1 through TL – 5 were originally purchased by Riverside County in 2007 
using redevelopment funds. These sites have a covenant agreement that contains affordability restrictions for 
any project on these sites. Units must be affordable to very low-, low-, a moderate household for a 55-year 
timeframe.  


TABLE HNA-21: PROPOSED PROJECT 
Site # APN Zoning GP Land Use Acreage GP Density Proposed Units 


TL-1 380100008 R-3 VHDR 1.82 20 225 units: 
180 low-income units 
42 moderate-income units 
3 above moderate-income 
units 


TL-2 380100009 R-3 VHDR 1.89 20 
TL-3 380100010 R-3 VHDR 1.9 20 
TL-4 380100011 R-3 VHDR 1.87 20 
TL-5 380100012 R-3 VHDR 2.85 20 


Source: City of Wildomar, 2021 
Sites TL-1 through TL-5 are also listed in Table HNA – 24 as sites 25 through 29. Capacity is only accounted for in Table 
HNA- 21.  


  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-76 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


SITE INVENTORY 
Table HNA-22 compares the City of Wildomar’s RHNA to the site inventory capacity. Table HNA-23 and Table 
HNA-24 provide the characteristics of the available sites for the development of single-family homes and 
multifamily units. Figure HNA-11 provides a Land Inventory Map showing all the available sites within the 
city. Figures HNA-12 through HNA-15 provide a close-up of each of the four quadrants of the city, again 
showing the available sites. The city has many sites available for the development of housing affordable to all 
income levels (Table HNA-23 and Table HNA-24). Although some of the sites listed do not include parcel-
specific information, the sites with parcel-specific data provide enough capacity to meet the above-moderate 
RHNA.  


Note: The City’s first adopted Housing Element was 2013-2021; therefore, no sites have been included in the 
inventory for two cycles.  


TABLE HNA-22: COMPARISON OF REGIONAL HOUSING NEED  
AND RESIDENTIAL SITES 


Income Group 2021-2029  
RHNA 


Vacant Site  
Capacity 


MUPA 
Capacity 


Pending  
Project 


Projected 
ADU’s 


Unit  
Surplus 


Extremely Low 399 
621 588 180 6 147 Very Low 399 


Low 450 
Moderate 434 533  42 4 103 
Above Moderate 1,033 2,062  3 1 1,030 
Total 2,715 3,216 588 225 11 1,280 


Source: City of Wildomar, SCAG, 2021 
 
Large Sites 
To facilitate the development of affordable housing on parcels 50 to 150 units in size, the City will routinely 
give high priority to processing subdivision maps that include affordable housing units. Also, an expedited 
review process is available for the subdivision of larger sites into buildable lots where the development 
application can be found consistent with the General Plan, applicable Specific Plan, and master environmental 
impact report. Through adoption of these mechanisms, the City can provide adequate sites to accommodate 
its share of the region’s housing needs (Program H-1.2). 


 







  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-77 
 
 


 


 


TABLE HNA-23: LAND INVENTORY – VACANT MIXED-USE SITES 
Site 


# APN Zoning GP Land 
Use Address Acreage GP 


Density 
30% Unit 
Potential 


50% Unit 
Potential Site Status1 Accommodating 


RHNA  


1 376190001 R-R/MU 
Overlay MUPA Intersection of Baxter Road 


and Wildomar Trail 2.99 30 26  
Vacant 
Assumes 30% 
MUPA 


Lower 


2 380160005 
C-1/C-
P/MU 


Overlay 
MUPA Intersection of Grand Avenue 


and Clinton Keith Road 1.74 30  26 
Vacant 
Assumes 50% 
MUPA 


Lower 


3 380160009 
C-1/C-
P/MU 


Overlay 
MUPA Adjacent to 23072 Rancho 


Mirlo Road 3.48 30  52 
Vacant 
Assumes 50% 
MUPA 


Lower 


4 376410021 
C-P-
S/MU 


Overlay 
MUPA 23980 Catt Road 1.6 30 14  


Vacant 
Assumes 30% 
MUPA 


Lower 


5 380160006 
C-1/C-
P/MU 


Overlay 
MUPA Intersection of Grand Avenue 


and Clinton Keith Road 1.54 30  23 
Vacant 
Assumes 50% 
MUPA 


Lower 


6 380160004 
C-1/C-
P/MU 


Overlay 
MUPA Intersection of Grand Avenue 


and Clinton Keith Road 3.73 30  56 
Vacant 
Assumes 50% 
MUPA 


Lower 


7 376410017 
C-P-
S/MU 


Overlay 
MUPA 23940 Catt Road 2.4 30 21  


Vacant 
Assumes 30% 
MUPA 


Lower 


8 380160007 
C-1/C-
P/MU 


Overlay 
MUPA Intersection of Grand Avenue 


and Clinton Keith Road 4.46 30  66 
Vacant 
Assumes 50% 
MUPA 


Lower 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-78 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Site 
# APN Zoning GP Land 


Use Address Acreage GP 
Density 


30% Unit 
Potential 


50% Unit 
Potential Site Status1 Accommodating 


RHNA  


9 367050068 R-R/MU 
Overlay MUPA Intersection of Canyon Drive 


and Mission Trail 6.48 30 58  
Vacant 
Assumes 30% 
MUPA 


Lower 


10 380160003 
C-1/C-
P/MU 


Overlay 
MUPA Intersection of Grand Avenue 


and Clinton Keith Road 4.83 30  73 
Vacant 
Assumes 50% 
MUPA 


Lower 


11 376410016 
C-P-
S/MU 


Overlay 
MUPA 29400 Catt Road 2.51 30 22  


Vacant 
Assumes 30% 
MUPA 


Lower 


12 362250029 R-R/MU 
Overlay MUPA Adjacent to 35760 Iodine 


Springs Road 2.63 30 23  
Vacant 
Assumes 30% 
MUPA 


Lower 


13 380160008 
C-1/C-
P/MU 


Overlay 
MUPA Adjacent to 23072 Rancho 


Mirlo Road 3.65 30  54 
Vacant 
Assumes 50% 
MUPA 


Lower 


14 367050064 R-R/MU 
Overlay MUPA Intersection of Walnut Street 


and Mission Trail 5.84 30 52  
Vacant 
Assumes 30% 
MUPA 


Lower 


15 376410015 
C-P-
S/MU 


Overlay 
MUPA 24850 Catt Road 2.46 30 22  


Vacant 
Assumes 30% 
MUPA 


Lower 


Total 50.34 --- 238 350    
Source: City of Wildomar 2021 
Notes: All sites included in the land inventory have water and sewer available and no known site constraints exist unless listed. 
 All Sites included were rezoned as a part of the 5th cycle Housing Element update process.  
1 A mix of 30% and 50% capacity is assumed for mixed-use sites.  







  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-79 
 
 


 


 


TABLE HNA-24: LAND INVENTORY – VACANT RESIDENTIAL SITES 
Site 


# APN Zoning GP Land Use Address Acreage GP 
Density 


Realistic 
Capacity 


Site 
Status1 


Accommodating 
RHNA  


Highest-Density Residential (HHDR; 20–40 du/acre) *assumes 30 du/acre 
16 380220002 R-4 HHDR Gateway Drive 5.06 20-40 121 Vacant Lower 
17 370400009 R-4 HHDR Adjacent to 32700 Corydon St 4.99 20-40 119 Vacant Lower 
18 380270013 R-4 HHDR Gateway Drive 5.91 20-40 141 Vacant Lower 


19 380250019 R-3 HHDR Intersection of Yamas Drive and 
Prielipp Road 10 20-40 240 Vacant Lower 


Total 25.96  621   
Very High-Density Residential (VHDR; 14–20 du/acre) *assumes 20 du/acre 


20 365113013 R-R VHDR Intersection of Tokay Boulevard and 
Wildomar Road 0.12 20 2 Vacant Moderate 


21 365093001 R-R VHDR 32505 Crescent Avenue 0.1 20 2 Vacant Moderate 


22 365113014 R-R VHDR Intersection of Tokay Boulevard and 
Wildomar Road 0.14 20 2 Vacant Moderate 


23 365062011 R-R VHDR Intersection of Elberta Road and 
Mission Trail 0.83 20 13 Vacant Moderate 


24 365053009 R-R VHDR 32394 Valley View Avenue 0.2 20 3 Vacant Moderate 
Total 1.39  22   


Very High Density Residential (VHDR; 14–20 du/acre) *assumes 20 du/acre 
25 380100008 R-3 VHDR 23345 Catt Road 1.82 20 


Proposed Affordable Project. Refer to Table 
HNA-21 for unit count and income 


breakdown 


26 380100009 R-3 VHDR 23365 Catt Road 1.89 20 
27 380100010 R-3 VHDR 23385 Catt Road 1.9 20 
28 380100011 R-3 VHDR Adjacent to 23385 Catt Road 1.87 20 
29 380100012 R-3 VHDR 36101 Fox Ridge Lane 2.85 20 


Total 10.33  225   







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-80 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Site 
# APN Zoning GP Land Use Address Acreage GP 


Density 
Realistic 
Capacity 


Site 
Status1 


Accommodating 
RHNA  


Medium High-Density Residential (MHDR; 5-8 du/acre) 
30 380170012 R-R MHDR Adjacent to 32600 Watkins Circle 1.19 8 8 Vacant Moderate 
31 380290017 R-R MHDR Adjacent to 24964 Prielipp Road 2.59 8 17 Vacant Moderate 


32 380160002 R-R MHDR Intersection of Grand Avenue and 
Clinton Keith Road 1.94 8 12 Vacant Moderate 


33 380270015 R-R MHDR 23475 Jefferson Avenue 1.32 8 8 Vacant Moderate 
34 365161005 R-R MHDR 32960 Mesa Drive 0.14 8 1 Vacant Moderate 
35 380170005 R-R MHDR Adjacent to 22871 Palomar Street 5.14 8 33 Vacant Moderate 
36 376060028 R-R MHDR Adjacent to 21405 Como Street 3.75 8 24 Vacant Moderate 
37 380170008 R-R MHDR Adjacent to 32650 Watkins Circle 2.2 8 14 Vacant Moderate 
38 380270017 R-R MHDR Gateway Drive 1.2 8 8 Vacant Moderate 
39 380220003 R-R MHDR Adjacent to 42002 Kodiak Court 25.9 8 166 Vacant Moderate 
40 380290026 R-R MHDR 24985 Cheyenne Circle 2.75 8 18 Vacant Moderate 


41 380170004 R-R MHDR Intersection of Robin Scott Road and 
Palomar Street 1.05 8 7 Vacant Moderate 


42 366330009 R-T MHDR Adjacent to 21482 Waite Street 8.01 8 51 Vacant Moderate 


43 380170003 R-R MHDR Intersection of Robin Scott Road and 
Palomar Street 1.25 8 8 Vacant Moderate 


44 380290016 R-R MHDR Adjacent to 24964 Prielipp Road 1.98 8 13 Vacant Moderate 
45 367110007 R-3 MHDR 22621 Bundy Canyon Road 7.16 8 46 Vacant Moderate 
46 367110007 R-1 MHDR 22621 Bundy Canyon Road 1.93 8 12 Vacant Moderate 


47 367110008 R-3 MHDR Intersection of Monte Vista Drive and 
Bundy Canyon Road 6.27 8 40 Vacant Moderate 







  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-81 
 
 


 


 


Site 
# APN Zoning GP Land Use Address Acreage GP 


Density 
Realistic 
Capacity 


Site 
Status1 


Accommodating 
RHNA  


48 367110008 R-1 MHDR Intersection of Monte Vista Drive and 
Bundy Canyon Road 1.16 8 7 Vacant Moderate 


49 367110008 R-5 MHDR Intersection of Monte Vista Drive and 
Bundy Canyon Road 1.2 8 8 Vacant Moderate 


50 366024010 R-R MHDR 33130 Wildomar Road 1.5 8 10 Vacant Moderate 
Total 79.63  511   


Medium-Density Residential (MDR; 2-5 du/acre) 


51 376410002 R-R MDR Intersection of Glazebrook Road and 
Depasquale Road 9.76 5 39 Vacant Above Moderate 


52 380110006 R-1 MDR 36211 Stable Lane Way 5.6 5 22 Vacant Above Moderate 


53 376471009 R-1 MDR Intersection of Depasquale Road and 
Wildomar Trail 2.71 5 11 Vacant Above Moderate 


54 366120041 R-R MDR Intersection of Grape Street and 
Lemon Street 1.22 5 5 Vacant Above Moderate 


55 380110005 R-1 MDR 36210 Stable Lane Way 4.63 5 19 Vacant Above Moderate 
56 380032037 R-1 MDR Adjacent to 21916 Amethyst Street 1.38 5 6 Vacant Above Moderate 
57 380080009 R-1 MDR 22425 Palomar Street 5.43 5 22 Vacant Above Moderate 
58 380210006 M-SC MDR Starbuck Circle 4.79 5 19 Vacant Above Moderate 
59 376350007 R-R MDR Adjacent to 23660 Peggy Lane 2.51 5 10 Vacant Above Moderate 
60 362130002 R-T MDR Pumpkin Patch Road 53.16 5 213 Vacant Above Moderate 
61 380080008 R-1 MDR 22425 Palomar Street 5.27 5 21 Vacant Above Moderate 


62 362090015 R-1 MDR Intersection of Harvest Way and 
Bundy Canyon Road 15.6 5 62 Vacant Above Moderate 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-82 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Site 
# APN Zoning GP Land Use Address Acreage GP 


Density 
Realistic 
Capacity 


Site 
Status1 


Accommodating 
RHNA  


63 366050003 R-R MDR Adjacent to 21403 Vine Street 3.79 5 15 Vacant Above Moderate 
64 380050011 R-1 MDR Adjacent to 21940 Palomar Street 3.23 5 13 Vacant Above Moderate 
65 380050012 R-R MDR Adjacent to 21940 Palomar Street 2.77 5 11 Vacant Above Moderate 
66 380200001 R-R MDR Adjacent to 23124 Wing Elm Circle 7.5 5 30 Vacant Above Moderate 
67 380210015 R-1 MDR 23351 Palomar Street 4.85 5 19 Vacant Above Moderate 


68 362090009 R-1 MDR Intersection of The Farm Road and 
Bundy Canyon Road 1.14 5 5 Vacant Above Moderate 


69 362070013 R-1 MDR Adjacent to 33240 Homestead Lane 8.98 5 36 Vacant Above Moderate 


70 376410003 R-R MDR Intersection of Glazebrook Road and 
Susan Drive 10.05 5 40 Vacant Above Moderate 


71 380060008 R-5 MDR 22060 Grand Avenue 3.45 5 14 Vacant Above Moderate 
72 380060008 R-1 MDR 22060 Grand Avenue 14.34 5 57 Vacant Above Moderate 
73 368030043 C-1/C-P MDR Adjacent to 34915 Mission Trail 1.35 5 5 Vacant Above Moderate 


74 362671036 R-1 MDR Intersection of Country Park Drive and 
Butchart Street 1.16 5 5 Vacant Above Moderate 


75 366320028 R-R MDR Bundy Canyon Road 1.37 5 5 Vacant Above Moderate 
76 366280032 R-R MDR 22183 Waite Street 0.56 5 2 Vacant Above Moderate 


77 376350005 R-R MDR Adjacent to 35321 Susan Drive 1.9 5 8 Underutil
ized Above Moderate 


78 382320019 R-1 MDR Adjacent to 21745 Grand Avenue 4.7 5 19 Underutil
ized Above Moderate 


79 368030033 R-R MDR Adjacent to 20550 Palomar Street 1.03 5 4 Vacant Above Moderate 







  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-83 
 
 


 


 


Site 
# APN Zoning GP Land Use Address Acreage GP 


Density 
Realistic 
Capacity 


Site 
Status1 


Accommodating 
RHNA  


80 376350019 R-R MDR Adjacent to Ronald Reagan 
Elementary 2.79 5 11 Vacant Above Moderate 


81 380210004 R-1 MDR 23235 Palomar Street 5.25 5 21 Vacant Above Moderate 
82 362581030 R-1 MDR 24755 La Estrella Street 1.3 5 5 Vacant Above Moderate 
83 362240033 R-R MDR Adjacent to 35541 Salida de Sol 3.64 5 15 Vacant Above Moderate 
84 380191022 R-1 MDR 32280 White Spruce Court 3.48 5 14 Vacant Above Moderate 
85 366070007 R-R MDR Adjacent to 33401 Orchard Street 1.86 5 7 Vacant Above Moderate 
86 366050002 R-R MDR Adjacent to 21251 Vine Street 4.65 5 19 Vacant Above Moderate 
87 380370034 R-1 MDR Mustang Spirit Lane 6.93 5 28 Vacant Above Moderate 


88 376330017 R-R MDR Adjacent to Donald Graham 
Elementary School 3.3 5 13 Vacant Above Moderate 


89 380130009 R-R MDR Adjacent to 22590 Palomar Street 1.99 5 8 Vacant Above Moderate 
90 362140040 R-T MDR 24920 Butterchurn Road 36.62 5 146 Vacant Above Moderate 


91 362080009 R-1 MDR Intersection of Harvest Way E and 
Bundy Canyon Road 2.65 5 11 Vacant Above Moderate 


92 367210018 R-R MDR Adjacent to 35440 Via Carnaghi Lane 15.34 5 61 Vacant Above Moderate 


93 376330003 R-R MDR Adjacent to Donald Graham 
Elementary School 1.37 5 5 Vacant Above Moderate 


94 362651038 R-T MDR Intersection of Edmiston Road and 
Sunset Avenue 1.88 5 8 Vacant Above Moderate 


95 362690022 R-5 MDR Intersection of David Lane and Via 
Sarah 2.31 5 9 Vacant Above Moderate 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-84 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Site 
# APN Zoning GP Land Use Address Acreage GP 


Density 
Realistic 
Capacity 


Site 
Status1 


Accommodating 
RHNA  


96 362681040 R-1 MDR Intersection of Smith Ranch Road and 
Clinton Keith Road 7.82 5 31 Vacant Above Moderate 


97 380140001 R-1 MDR 22459 Palomar Street 3.54 5 14 Vacant Above Moderate 
98 366060029 R-R MDR Adjacent to 21345 Apricot Lane 1.24 5 5 Vacant Above Moderate 
99 376170001 R-R MDR Adjacent to 31950 Central Street 1.07 5 4 Vacant Above Moderate 


100 362240005 R-R MDR Intersection of Trig Road and La 
Estrella Street 6.58 5 26 Vacant Above Moderate 


101 362330024 R-T MDR Plowshare Road 1.21 5 5 Vacant Above Moderate 
102 380160018 R-1 MDR 23491 Washington Avenue 11.28 5 45 Vacant Above Moderate 
103 380160018 W-1 MDR 23491 Washington Avenue 3.61 5 14 Vacant Above Moderate 
104 376043027 R-R MDR Adjacent to 32722 Gruwell Street 4.04 5 16 Vacant Above Moderate 
105 376350017 R-R MDR 35360 Susan Drive 6.89 5 28 Vacant Above Moderate 
106 380350035 R-1 MDR Horseshoe Court 10.3 5 41 Vacant Above Moderate 
107 382320017 R-R MDR West of 21745 Grand Avenue 3.73 5 15 Vacant Above Moderate 
108 362240032 R-1 MDR 35735 Iodine Springs Road 2.57 5 10 Vacant Above Moderate 


109 380060007 R-5 MDR Northeast of intersection of Leslie 
Street and Grand Avenue 1.59 5 6 Vacant Above Moderate 


110 380060007 R-1 MDR Northeast of intersection of Leslie 
Street and Grand Avenue 16.62 5 66 Vacant Above Moderate 


111 362080007 R-1 MDR Northeast of intersection of Leslie 
Street and Grand Avenue 1.12 5 4 Vacant Above Moderate 


112 380200002 R-R MDR Adjacent to 23190 Palomar Street 3.62 5 14 Vacant Above Moderate 
113 376350010 R-R MDR Adjacent to 23485 Peggy Lane 3.22 5 13 Vacant Above Moderate 







  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-85 
 
 


 


 


Site 
# APN Zoning GP Land Use Address Acreage GP 


Density 
Realistic 
Capacity 


Site 
Status1 


Accommodating 
RHNA  


114 366300001 R-R MDR Adjacent to 22301 Lemon Street 2.98 5 12 Vacant Above Moderate 


115 366280022 R-1 MDR Intersection of Waite Street and 
Cherry Street 2.34 5 9 Vacant Above Moderate 


116 382320018 R-1 MDR Southwest of intersection of Cameo 
Lane and Coral Rock Lane 4.31 5 17 Vacant Above Moderate 


117 370330017 R-R MDR 32397 Hallie Street 1.03 5 4 Vacant Above Moderate 
118 362720048 R-1 MDR Portica Court 1.82 5 7 Vacant Above Moderate 


119 362180043 R-5 MDR West of intersection of Via Sarah and 
Cornucopia Way 18.83 5 75 Vacant Above Moderate 


120 380210008 R-1 MDR 23249 Palomar Street 9.33 5 37 Vacant Above Moderate 
121 380210008 W-1 MDR 23249 Palomar Street 1.22 5 5 Vacant Above Moderate 


122 367140008 R-R MDR Northeast of Cornerstone Christian 
School 10.19 5 41 Vacant Above Moderate 


123 362190008 R-T MDR Hayfield Circle 1.97 5 8 Vacant Above Moderate 
124 366260012 R-R MDR Adjacent to 22101 Lemon Street 1.25 5 5 Vacant Above Moderate 


125 376470010 R-1 MDR Intersection of Depasquale Road and 
Poplar Crest Road 1.74 5 7 Vacant Above Moderate 


126 362080008 R-1 MDR Northeast of 33310 Homestead Lane 4.76 5 19 Vacant Above Moderate 


127 362240008 R-R MDR Adjacent to 35532 Iodine Springs 
Road 6.96 5 28 Vacant Above Moderate 


128 380040007 R-R MDR Adjacent to 22053 Palomar Street 5.68 5 23 Vacant Above Moderate 
129 362341019 R-T MDR Hayrake Circle 1.94 5 8 Vacant Above Moderate 
130 376132001 R-R MDR 21615 Front Street 1.41 5 6 Vacant Above Moderate 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-86 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Site 
# APN Zoning GP Land Use Address Acreage GP 


Density 
Realistic 
Capacity 


Site 
Status1 


Accommodating 
RHNA  


131 368080032 R-1-
11000 MDR 32625 Cert Street 3.03 5 12 Vacant Above Moderate 


132 368080032 R-A-
20000 MDR 32625 Cert Street 5.19 5 21 Vacant Above Moderate 


133 368080032 R-1-
8000 MDR 32625 Cert Street 9.98 5 40 Vacant Above Moderate 


134 362713001 R-5 MDR Intersection of Nutmeg Street and Via 
Sarah 5.36 5 21 Vacant Above Moderate 


135 362620022 R-1 MDR East of Devonshire Lane 4.49 5 18 Vacant Above Moderate 
136 376350009 R-R MDR North of Ronald Reagan Elementary 19.8 5 79 Vacant Above Moderate 
137 380182003 R-1 MDR 23068 Sweetbay Circle 1.96 5 8 Vacant Above Moderate 
138 366060027 R-R MDR 21340 Apricot Lane 1.33 5 5 Vacant Above Moderate 
139 380210003 R-1 MDR 23231 Palomar Road 4.83 5 19 Vacant Above Moderate 
140 368030057 C-1/C-P MDR 20580 Palomar Street 3.13 5 13 Vacant Above Moderate 
141 376462035 R-1 MDR Keane Court 1.73 5 7 Vacant Above Moderate 
142 362240023 R-1 MDR 35725 Iodine Springs Road 2.43 5 10 Vacant Above Moderate 
143 380100005 R-1 MDR 36160 Arnette Road 3.26 5 13 Vacant Above Moderate 
144 368030030 R-R MDR 32476 Bryant Street 2.62 5 10 Vacant Above Moderate 


Total 516.54  2,062   
Source: City of Wildomar 2021 
Notes: 
All sites included in the land inventory have water and sewer available and no known site constraints exist unless listed. 
Sites 16, 17 and 18 were rezoned as a part of the 5th cycle Housing Element update process. 
1 80% capacity is assumed for residential sites.  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-87 
 
 


FIGURE HNA-11: LAND INVENTORY MAP 


  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-88 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


FIGURE HNA-12: LAND INVENTORY, DETAIL 1 


 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-89 
 
 


FIGURE HNA-13: LAND INVENTORY, DETAIL 2 


 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-90 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


FIGURE HNA-14: LAND INVENTORY, DETAIL 3 


  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-91 
 
 


FIGURE HNA-15: LAND INVENTORY, DETAIL 4 


 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-92 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


FINANCIAL RESOURCES 


FEDERAL PROGRAMS 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) – This program is intended to enhance and preserve the 
affordable housing stock. Eligible activities include acquisition, rehabilitation, economic development, and 
public services. CDBG grants benefit primarily persons/households with incomes not exceeding 80 percent 
of the county AMI. The City receives annual grant monies for the County of Riverside as part of their CDBG 
program.   


HOME Investment Partnership – HOME funding is a flexible grant program that is awarded on a formula 
basis for housing activities that consider local market conditions, inadequate housing, poverty, and housing 
production costs. HOME funding is provided to jurisdictions to assist rental housing or homeownership 
through acquisition, construction, reconstruction, and/or rehabilitation of affordable housing. Funding is also 
provided for possible property acquisition, site improvements, and other expenses related to the provision of 
affordable housing and projects that serve a group identified as having special needs related to housing. 


Housing Choice Voucher (Section 8) Program – This program provides rental assistance payments to 
owners of private market-rate units on behalf of very low-income tenants. 


Section 811/202 Program – Nonprofit organizations and consumer cooperatives are eligible to receive 
no-interest capital advances from HUD for the construction of very low-income rental housing for senior 
citizens and persons with disabilities. Project-based assistance is also provided in conjunction with this 
program. Section 811 can be used to develop group homes, independent living facilities, and intermediate 
care facilities. Eligible activities include acquisition, rehabilitation, new construction, and rental assistance. 


HUD Low-Income Housing Preservation and Resident Homeownership Act (LIHPRHA) – 
LIHPRHA was enacted in response to concern over the prepayment of HUD-assisted housing. The 
legislation addresses the prepayment of units assisted under Section 221(d)(3) and Section 236 (Section 236 
replaced the Section 221(d)(3) program in 1968). Generally, the law facilitates the preservation of these low-
income units by providing incentives to property owners to either retain their units as low income or to sell 
the project to priority purchasers (tenants, nonprofits, or governmental agencies). Pursuant to LIHPRHA, 
HUD must offer a package of incentives to property owners to extend the low-income use restrictions. These 
incentives would ensure property owners an 8-percent return on the recalculated equity in their property, 
provided the rents necessary to yield this return fall within a specified federal cost limit. The cost limits are 
either 120 percent of the fair market rent or the prevailing rent in the local market. If HUD can provide the 
owner with this return, the owner cannot prepay the mortgage. The owner must either stay in the program or 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-93 
 
 


offer to sell the project (a voluntary sale) to a priority purchaser for a 12-month option period or to other 
purchasers for an additional three months. The owner is required to document this choice in a Plan of Action. 


If HUD cannot provide the owner with the 8-percent return, i.e., the rents required would exceed federal cost 
limits, the owner may prepay only after offering the sale to priority purchasers for 12 months or to other 
qualified buyers for an additional three months (a mandatory sale) and filing a Plan of Action that 
demonstrates that conversion will not adversely impact affordable housing or displace tenants. According to 
the California Housing Partnership Corporation, most projects in California will fall within federal cost limits, 
except those with exceptionally high rental value or condominium conversion potential. 


Projects that are preserved under either of these methods are required to maintain affordability restrictions 
for the remaining useful life of the project, which is defined minimally as 50 years. Despite these requirements, 
property owners may still be able to prepay. First, the owner may prepay the property if no bona fide offer to 
purchase the property is made. Second, HUD may not provide some of the discretionary monies to priority 
purchasers in preservation sales. Finally, the overall success of the preservation efforts is contingent on 
congressional appropriation of sufficient funding to HUD. 


STATE PROGRAMS 
California Housing Finance Agency Multiple Rental Housing Programs – This program provides 
below-market-rate financing to builders and developers of multiple-family and elderly rental housing. Tax-
exempt bonds provide below-market mortgage money. Eligible activities include new construction, 
rehabilitation, and acquisition of properties with 20–150 units. 


Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) – This program provides tax credits to individuals and 
corporations that invest in low-income rental housing. Tax credits are sold to corporations and people with 
high tax liability, and proceeds are used to create housing. Eligible activities include new construction, 
rehabilitation, and acquisition. 


California Community Reinvestment Corporation – This private, nonprofit mortgage banking 
consortium provides long-term debt financing for affordable multifamily rental housing. Eligible activities 
include new construction, rehabilitation, and acquisition. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-94 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


LOCAL PROGRAMS  
Nonprofit Entities – Nonprofit entities serving Riverside County, including Wildomar, can be contacted to 
gauge their interest and ability in acquiring and/or managing units at risk of conversion. A partial listing of 
entities with resources in the Riverside County area includes: 


 Alternatives for Domestic Violence 


 Shelter from the Storm 


 Catholic Charities 


 Coachella Valley Housing Coalition 


 Fair Housing Council of Riverside County  


 Family Service Association of Riverside County  


 Habitat for Humanity 


 Lutheran Social Services 


OPPORTUNITIES FOR ENERGY CONSERVATION 
The cost of housing includes not only rent but also utility costs. Higher utility expenses reduce affordability. 
Building affordable homes is not the same as making homes affordable to live in. Cheaply built homes invite 
callbacks, complaints, and discomfort, and they waste energy. Therefore, additional first costs to improve 
energy efficiency do not make housing less affordable in the long run. Energy efficiency in affordable housing, 
more than any other building sector, makes a critical impact on the lives of tenants. According to HUD, utility 
bills burden the poor and can cause homelessness. The following is a list of available programs related to 
energy conservation that can be considered and engaged in the production of affordable housing: 


 241(a) Rehabilitation Loans for Multifamily Projects – HUD-funded program that provides 
mortgage insurance for improvements, repairs, or additions to multifamily projects. Energy 
conservation improvements are an eligible activity for mortgage financing. 


 Department of Energy (DOE) Energy Weatherization Assistance Program – Reduces the 
heating and cooling costs for low-income families by improving energy efficiency of their homes. 
Focuses on low-income seniors, individuals with disabilities, and families with children. Assistance 
includes (1) in-home energy education; (2) energy-related home repairs; (3) blower door guided air 
sealing; (4) heat system safety tests, repair, and tune; (5) duct insulation and sealing; (6) attic 
insulation; and (7) hot water savings measures. The program is funded by the California 
Department of Community Services and Development. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-95 
 
 


 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) – The LIHEAP block grant is 
funded by the Department of Health and Human Services and provides financial assistance and 
home weatherization. This is accomplished through three components: (1) The Weatherization 
Program, which provides free weatherization services to improve the energy efficiency of homes 
including attic insulation, weatherstripping, minor housing repairs, and related conservation 
measures; (2) the Home Energy Assistance Program (HEAP), which provides financial assistance 
to eligible households to offset the costs of heating or cooling dwellings; and (3) the Energy Crisis 
Intervention Program, which provides payments for weather-related emergencies. Funding for the 
program is provided by the California Department of Community Services and Development.  


 Neighborhood Housing Services (NHS) – NHS is a three-way partnership funded among 
neighborhood residents, local government, and local businesses. Neighborhood Reinvestment 
Group funds the program and provides direct technical assistance, expendable grants, and capital 
grants to NHS, which makes loans for rehabilitation.  


 Rural Housing Preservation Grants – Supports the rehabilitation and repair of homeownership 
and rental housing for very low- and low-income households living in rural substandard housing. 
The program is funded by the Rural Housing Service.  


 Weatherization Program – Provides weatherization services and assistance through grants and 
financial assistance. Activities may include energy conservation measures, weatherization such as 
weatherstripping, water heater wrap, insulation of various home components, and financial 
assistance. The program is funded by Southern California Gas, Weatherization and Energy-
Efficient Rehabilitation Program, DOE, and LIHEAP.  


  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-96 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


CONSTRAINTS 
Various interrelated factors can constrain the ability of the private and public sectors to provide adequate 
housing and meet the housing needs for all economic segments of the community. These factors can be 
divided into two categories: (1) governmental constraints and (2) non-governmental constraints. 
Governmental constraints consist of land use controls, development standards, processing fees, development 
impact fees, code enforcement, site improvement costs, development permit and approval processing, and 
provisions for a variety of housing. Non-governmental constraints consist of land availability, the 
environment, vacancy rates, land cost, construction costs, and availability of financing. 


GOVERNMENTAL CONSTRAINTS 
Governmental constraints are policies, standards, requirements, or actions imposed by the various levels of 
government upon land and housing ownership and development. Although federal and state agencies play a 
role in the imposition of governmental constraints, these agencies are beyond the influence of local 
government and are therefore not addressed in this document. 


LAND USE CONTROLS 
General Plan Land Use Designations 
Each city and county in California must prepare a comprehensive, long-term General Plan to guide its future. 
The Land Use Element of the General Plan establishes the basic land uses and density of development within 
each jurisdiction. Under state law, the General Plan elements must be internally consistent, and each 
jurisdiction’s zoning must be consistent with its General Plan. Thus, the Land Use Element must provide 
suitable locations and densities to implement the policies of the Housing Element. 


Table HNA-25 shows the residential General Plan land use designations for the City of Wildomar. The land 
use designations support a variety of housing types, ranging from very low-density development, which 
generally includes single-family homes on large lots, to high-density development, which includes multifamily 
development. 


  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-97 
 
 


TABLE HNA-25: GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATIONS  
Land Use  


Designation 
Allowed  
Density General Uses 


AG Agriculture 10 ac min. 
Agricultural land including row crops, groves, nurseries, dairies, 
poultry farms, processing plants, and other related uses 
One single-family residence allowed  


RR Rural Residential 5 ac min. 
Single-family residences  
Allows limited animal-keeping, agricultural uses, and 
recreational uses  


RM Rural 
Mountainous 10 ac min. 


Single-family residential uses  
Allows limited animal-keeping, agriculture, and recreational 
uses 


RD Rural Desert 10 ac min. 
Single-family residential  
Allows limited animal-keeping, agriculture, recreational and 
renewable energy uses 


EDR 
EDR-RC 


Estate Density 
Residential 2 ac min. Single-family detached residences  


Limited agriculture and animal-keeping  
VLDR 
VLD-RC 


Very Low Density 
Residential 1 ac min. Single-family detached residences  


Limited agriculture and animal-keeping   
LDR 
LDR-RC 


Low Density 
Residential 1/2 ac min. Single-family detached residences  


Limited agriculture and animal-keeping   


MDR Medium Density 
Residential 2–5 du/ac Single-family detached and attached residences  


Limited agriculture and animal-keeping is permitted 


MHDR 
Medium High 
Density 
Residential 


5–8 du/ac Single-family attached and detached residences  


HDR High Density  
Residential 8–14 du/ac 


Single-family attached and detached residences, including 
townhouses, stacked flats, courtyard homes, patio homes, and 
zero lot line homes 


VHDR Very High Density 
Residential 14–20 du/ac Single-family attached residences and multifamily dwellings 


HHDR Highest Density 
Residential 20+ du/acre Multifamily dwellings, includes apartments and condominiums; 


multistoried (3+) structures are allowed. 


MUPA Mixed Use  
Planning Area 30 du/ac 


The intent of the designation is not to identify a particular 
mixture or intensity of land uses, but to designate areas where 
a mixture of residential, commercial, office, entertainment, 
educational, and/or recreational uses, or other uses is planned. 


Source: City of Wildomar 2017 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-98 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Zoning Districts 
Zoning, unlike the General Plan, is regulatory. Under Wildomar’s Municipal Code, development must 
comply with specific, enforceable standards, such as minimum lot requirements, minimum setbacks, 
maximum building heights, and a list of allowable uses (Table HNA-26). 


TABLE HNA-26: RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 
Zone General Uses 


R-1 One-Family Dwelling  One-family dwellings, accessory dwelling units, planned residential 
developments, mobile home parks  


R-1A One-Family Dwelling 
Mountain Resort 


One-family dwellings, accessory dwelling units, mobile home parks, 
planned residential developments 


R-2 Multiple-Family  
Dwelling 


One-family dwellings, multiple-family dwellings, accessory dwelling units, 
congregate care residential, single-family subdivisions, two-family 
dwellings, mobile home parks, boarding, rooming and lodging houses, 
bungalow courts, apartment houses 


R-2A Limited Multiple-
Family Dwelling 


One-family dwellings, multiple-family dwellings, two-family dwellings, 
accessory dwelling units, mobile home parks, apartment houses, planned 
residential developments 


R-3 General Residential  


One-family dwellings, multiple-family dwellings, accessory dwelling units, 
congregate care facilities, two-family dwellings, bungalow courts, 
apartment houses, boarding, rooming and lodging houses, mobile home 
parks 


R-3A Village Tourist  
Residential 


One-family dwellings, accessory dwelling units, apartments, hotels, RV 
parks, bungalow courts, planned residential developments, mobile home 
parks 


R-4 Planned Residential  One-family dwellings, multiple-family dwellings, accessory dwelling units, 
mobile home parks  


R-6 Residential Incentive  
One-family dwellings, mobile homes on permanent foundations, two-
family dwellings, multiple-family dwellings, accessory dwelling units, 
planned residential developments, apartments 


A-1 Light Agriculture One-family dwellings, mobile homes, farm labor camps, mobile home 
parks 


A-2 Heavy Agriculture One-family dwellings, agricultural mobile homes, farm labor camps 


R-A Residential 
Agriculture  


One-family dwellings, planned residential developments, accessory 
dwelling units, agricultural mobile homes, mobile home parks 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-99 
 
 


Zone General Uses 


R-D Regulated 
Development Areas 


One-family dwellings, apartment houses and hotels, mobile home parks, 
two-family dwellings, multiple-family dwellings, bungalow courts, boarding 
and rooming houses, congregate care facilities, RV parks, agricultural 
mobile homes  


R-R 
R-R-O Rural Residential  One-family dwellings, accessory dwelling units, mobile home parks, RV 


parks, farm labor camps, guest ranches, planned residential developments 


R-T 
Mobile Home  
Subdivisions and  
Mobile Home Parks  


One-family dwellings, accessory dwelling units, mobile homes, mobile 
home parks, mobile home subdivisions, community recreation facilities 


R-T-R Mobile Home  
Subdivision Rural 


One-family dwellings, accessory dwelling units, mobile homes, agricultural 
uses 


S-P Specific Plan  Residential, commercial, manufacturing, open space, public facilities, 
health, and community facilities, agricultural uses 


Source: City of Wildomar Municipal Code 2020 
Note: Density established by the Wildomar General Plan Land Use Map 


Table HNA-27 shows the associated zoning that is consistent with the General Plan land use 
designation densities. As previously mentioned, density in the City of Wildomar is determined by the 
land use designation and not the zoning.  


TABLE HNA-27: RESIDENTIAL COMPATIBILITY MATRIX 
General Plan Land Use Associated Zoning District* 


Low Density Residential (LDR) R-1, R-1A, R-3A, R-4, R-5, R-6, R-A, R-D, R-R, R-T, R-T-R, SP, 
W-1 


Medium Density Residential (MDR) 
R-1, R-1A, R-2, R-2A, R-3, R-3A, R-4, R-5, R-6, R-A, R-D, R-R, R-
T,  
S-P, W-1 


Medium High Density Residential (MHDR) R-1, R-2, R-2A, R-3, R-3A, R-4, R-5, R-6, R-D, R-T, S-P, W-1 
High Density Residential (HDR) R-2, R-2A, R-3, R-3A, R-4, R-5, R-6, R-D, R-T, SP, W-1 
Very High Density Residential (VHDR) R-2, R-2A, R-3, R-3A, R-5, R-6, R-D, R-T, SP, W-1 
Highest Density Residential (HHDR) R-3, R-5, R-6, R-D, SP, W-1 


Mixed Use Planning Area (MUPA) 


All zoning districts located on parcels with the MUPA (Mixed 
Use Planning Area) general plan land use designation is 
consistent. Per state law (GP Guidelines), the general plan land 
use designations take precedence over zoning designations.  
Rezoning is not required to develop multifamily on any MUPA 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-100 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


General Plan Land Use Associated Zoning District* 
land use designation site as density is always dictated by the 
General Plan land use designation and not the Zoning 
Ordinance.  


Source: City of Wildomar 2020 
*Includes zone districts that are Highlight Consistent or Conditionally Consistent with each land use designation. 


DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
The City of Wildomar regulates the type, location, density, and scale of residential development primarily 
through its Municipal Code. Zoning regulations are designed to protect and promote the health, safety, and 
general welfare of residents, as well as preserve the character and integrity of neighborhoods. The Wildomar 
Municipal Code sets forth the specific residential development standards summarized in Table HNA-28. 
The City’s development standards are also available on the City’s website. 


TABLE HNA-28: RESIDENTIAL ZONING CRITERIA 


Development  
Standards A-1 A-2 R-A* R-R* R-1* R-2* R-3* 


R-4* 
MU 


Overlay 
R-6* R-T 


Lot Dimensions 
Minimum Lot 
Size (sf) 20,000 20,000 20,000 21,780 7,200 7,200 7,200 3,500 5,000 7,200/3,600 


Minimum Lot 
Width  100 ft 100 ft 100 ft 80 ft 60 ft  60 ft 40 ft  60 ft/40 ft 


Frontage     60 ft    30 ft 45 ft/30 ft 
Minimum Lot 
Depth 150 ft 150 ft 150 ft  100 ft  100 ft 80 ft  100 ft/0 ft 


Setbacks 
Front 20 ft 20 ft 20 ft 20 ft 20 ft 20 ft 10 ft 20 ft 10 ft 20 ft 


Side – Interior 5 ft 10 ft  5 ft/ 
10 ft 10% 10% 5 ft 5 ft  5 ft 


Side – Street 5 ft 10 ft  10 ft 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft  5 ft 
Rear 10 ft 10 ft  20 ft 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft 5 ft 
Lot Coverage – – – – 50% 60% 50% – – – 


Height 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-101 
 
 


Primary 
Building 40 ft 40 ft 40 ft 40 ft 40 ft/ 


3 stories 
40 ft/3 
stories 50 ft 40 ft/3 


stories 
35 ft/3 
stories 


40 ft/ 
3 stories 


Source: Wildomar Municipal Code 2020 
Note: Please see the Wildomar Municipal Code for specific footnotes regarding this table. Also, a blank in the table means there 
is no specified standard.  
* Please see Tables HNA-33 and HNA-34 for City of Wildomar’s Single-Family Residential Design Standards & 
Guidelines and Multi-Family Residential Objective Design Standards.  
* The R-2 zoning district has a separation requirement of 15 feet between two-story buildings and 10 feet between one-story 
buildings on the same lot.  
*The R-5 zone is an open space combining zone and residential is not permitted.  


Typical Densities for Development 
The City of Wildomar is a small city in Riverside County with physical constraints to outward expansion, such 
as steep topography to the west and the boundaries of neighboring cities to the north, east, and south. Single-
family residential lots generally vary in size from approximately 7,200 to 20,000 square feet in the low-density 
to medium- and high-density residential zones.  Multifamily densities are typically between 8 to 20 units per 
acre depending on the land use designation. In the previous planning period, no sites identified to 
accommodate the lower-income RHNA in the inventory were developed below the minimum allowable 
density of the zone in which the site is located and the City did not receive any requests to develop below the 
assumed capacity in the sites inventory.  


Parking Requirements  
In Southern California, providing sufficient parking for vehicles is an essential part of good planning. At the 
same time, however, excessive parking requirements can detract from the feasibility of developing new 
housing at a range of densities necessary to facilitate affordable housing. The City’s Municipal Code establishes 
residential parking standards, as summarized in Table HNA-29. In addition to these standards, the City 
currently requires at least one parking space for every staff member in a multi-family building and for 
emergency shelters, in compliance with California Government Code Section 65583(a)(4)(A)(ii), and one 
parking space for every 10 temporary residents for emergency shelters. The parking standards included in 
Table HNA-29 have already factored in the need for guest parking. Additional guest parking is not required. 
Program H-13.1 specifically commits to reviewing parking standards for emergency shelters. 


Residential parking standards are not deemed to be a constraint to the development, improvement, and 
maintenance of housing. The current standards match current vehicle ownership patterns of residents and do 
not have an impact on the cost or supply of housing. To assist with the development of housing affordable 
to lower-income households, the City allows for parking reductions for affordable projects (see Programs 
H-1.3 and H-3.1) 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-102 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


TABLE HNA-29: RESIDENTIAL PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
Type of Residential Development Required Parking 


Single-Family 2 spaces/unit 
Multifamily 
One bedroom or studio  
Two bedrooms 
Three or more bedrooms 


1.25 spaces/unit  
2.25 spaces/unit  
2.75 spaces/unit and 1 space/employee 


Planned Residential Development 
One bedroom  
Two or more bedrooms  
Senior Housing  


 
1.5 spaces/unit  
2.5 spaces/unit 
Same as single- and multifamily requirements 


Accessory Dwelling Unit 1 space/unit or 1 space/bedroom whichever is less* 
Mobile Home Parks 2 spaces/unit* 


Source: City of Wildomar Municipal Code 
*Please refer to Section 17.204.040.D.5 of the Wildomar Municipal Code for exceptions to the ADU parking 
requirement.  
*Mobile Home Park spaces may be tandem but must provide one guest space for every eight mobile home spaces. 


Density Bonus  
The Wildomar Municipal Code currently provides a density bonus of up to 35 percent over the otherwise 
maximum allowable residential density under the municipal code and the Land Use Element of the General 
Plan (or bonuses of equivalent financial value) when builders agree to construct housing developments with 
units affordable to low- or moderate-income households. The City of Wildomar has included Program H-
8.1 to increase the density bonus allowance comply with current state law (Government Code Section 65915).  
Despite the need for an ordinance update, the City is currently complying with the applicable State density 
bonus law. 


PROVISIONS FOR A VARIETY OF HOUSING 
Housing Element law specifies that jurisdictions must identify adequate sites to be made available through 
appropriate zoning and development standards to encourage the development of various types of housing for 
all economic segments of the population. This includes single-family housing, multifamily housing, 
manufactured housing, mobile homes, emergency shelters, and transitional housing, among others. Table 
HNA-30 summarizes the permitted housing types by zone. 







  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


  


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-103 
 
 


 


 


TABLE HNA-30: HOUSING TYPES PERMITTED BY ZONE 


Land Use 


R-R 


R-R-O 


R-1 


R-1A 


R-A 


R-2 


R-2A 


R-3 


R-3A 


R-T 


RT R 


R-4 


 R-6 


R-D 


SP 


A-1 


A-P 


A-2 


A-D 


Apartment Houses      PP PP PP CUP     P PP A     
Boarding, Rooming, 
Lodging Houses       PP  PP       PP A     


Dwellings – Multiple, 
Apartment      PP PP PP CUP   P  P PP A     


Dwellings – One 
Family  P P P P P P P PP P P P P  P P A P P P P 


Farmworker Housing1     P            P  P  
Mobile Home – 
Single Family  P P P P P P P PP P P P P  P P A P P P P 


Mobile Home Parks CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP  CUP   CUP A CUP    
Planned Residential 
Development  P P P P P P P PP P     P  A     


Residential Care 
Facility (6 or less) P P P P P P P PP P P P P  P  A P  P  


Residential Care 
Facility (7 or more) 2      CUP  CUP        CUP     


Accessory Dwelling 
Units 3 P P P P P P P P P P P P  P  A     


Single-Room 
Occupancy            CUP  CUP       







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-104 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Land Use 


R-R 


R-R-O 


R-1 


R-1A 


R-A 


R-2 


R-2A 


R-3 


R-3A 


R-T 


RT R 


R-4 


 R-6 


R-D 


SP 


A-1 


A-P 


A-2 


A-D 


Transitional Housing P P P P P P P P P P P P  P       
Supportive Housing P P P P P P P P P P P P  P       
Emergency Shelters  Permitted in the IP zone district with a plot plan approval.  


Source: City of Wildomar Municipal Code 2020 
CUP = conditional use permit, P = permitted, PP = plot plan, PUP = public use permit, A = allowed 


1. The City has included Program H-11.4 amend the Wildomar Municipal Code to remove the Agricultural Mobile Home, Agricultural Workers Mobile 
Home Park, and Farm Labor Camp uses and will permit employee/farmworker housing that serves six or fewer persons as a single-family structure and 
permit it in the same manner as other single-family structures of the same type within the same zone across all zones that allow single-family residential uses 
and employee/farmworker consisting of no more than 12 units or 36 beds as an agricultural use and permit it in the same manner as other agricultural uses 
in the same zone, in compliance with the California Employee Housing Act (Health and Safety Code Sections 17021.5 and 17021.6). 


2. The City has included Program H-11.2 to explore amending provisions in the Wildomar Municipal Code to define and allow residential care facilities for 
seven or more persons only subject to those restrictions that apply to other residential uses of the same type in the same zone and would only be subject to the 
definition of family and occupancy standards. Residential care facilities are still subject to state licensing.  


3. The City has included Program H-9.1 to clarify ADUs are allowed as a permitted use in all zones, residential and non-residential, that allow single-
family or multi-family uses, in compliance with Government Code Section 65852.150. 


 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-105 
 
 


Emergency Shelters  
The California Health and Safety Code (Section 50801[e]) defines an emergency shelter as “housing with 
minimal supportive services for homeless persons that is limited to occupancy of six months or less by a 
homeless person. No individual or household may be denied emergency shelter because of an inability to 
pay.”  


The Wildomar Municipal Code currently allows emergency shelters with approval of a plot plan in the 
Industrial Park zoning district.  This In December 2013 Chapter 17.88 of the Wildomar Municipal Code was 
amended to permit emergency shelters in the I-P zone and managerial standards were adopted.  The required 
a plot plan review is a ministerial process and it used to verify that the proposed project meets the City’s 
development standards as part of a plan check review.  No public hearing is required.  


The City also adopted objective managerial standards to encourage and facilitate the development of or 
conversion to an emergency shelter. Development standards for emergency shelters in Wildomar include: 


 No emergency shelter shall be located within 250 feet of any other emergency shelter. 


 An emergency shelter shall not exceed 40 residents, excluding staff. 


 Any single resident’s stay shall not exceed six consecutive months. 


 Emergency shelters shall provide one parking space for every staff member and one parking space for 
every 10 temporary residents. 


Currently, there are approximately 83.84 acres (13 parcels ranging in size from 1.4 to 28.6 acres with a majority 
of the parcels being 2–5 acres) of vacant land available in Wildomar, which allows adequate capacity for an 
emergency shelter.  


These vacant sites are close to services and future transit as development occurs. The sites surrounding these 
available parcels are mainly business park-type uses, service commercial and light manufacturing companies 
(there is no heavy hazardous manufacturing). There are also such uses as an indoor golfing range, a hospital, 
medical office buildings, and even a few residential units.   


Low Barrier Navigation Centers 


Government Code section 65662 requires that the development of Low-Barrier Navigation Centers be 
developed as a use by right in zones where mixed-uses are allowed or in non-residential zones that permit 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-106 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


multifamily housing. For a navigation center to be considered “low barrier”, its operation should incorporate 
best practices to reduce barriers to entry, which may include, but is not limited to, the following:  


• Permitting the presence of partners if it is not a population-specific site, such as for survivors of 
domestic violence or sexual assault, women, or youth 


• Pets 


• Ability to store possessions 


• Providing privacy, such as private rooms or partitions around beds in a dormitory setting or in larger 
rooms with multiple beds 


Program 13.1 has been included to comply with State Law. 


Supportive and Transitional Housing  
Supportive housing is defined by Section 50675.14 of the Health and Safety Code as housing with linked on- 
or off-site services with no limit on the length of stay and which is occupied by a target population, as defined 
in Health and Safety Code Section 53260 (i.e., low-income person with mental disabilities, AIDS, substance 
abuse, or chronic health conditions, or persons whose disabilities originated before the age of 18). Services 
linked to supportive housing usually focuses on retaining housing, living and working in the community, 
and/or health improvement.  


Transitional housing is defined in Section 50675.2(h) of the Health and Safety Code as rental housing for stays 
of at least six months but where the units are recirculated to another program recipient after a set period. It 
may be designated for a homeless individual or family transitioning to permanent housing. This housing can 
take many structural forms, such as group housing and multifamily units, and may include supportive services 
to allow individuals to gain necessary life skills in support of independent living. 


Pursuant to Government Code Section 65583, transitional and supportive housing types are required to be 
treated as residential uses and subject only to those restrictions that apply to other residential uses of the same 
type in the same zone. Transitional and supportive housing as defined in the Health and Safety Code are 
permitted by right without a conditional use permit in residential zones.  


The Wildomar Municipal Code permits transitional and supportive housing, as defined by the Health and 
Safety Code. Supportive housing is also permitted by right in all non-residential and mixed-use zones that 
permit multifamily development, consistent with Government Code Sections 65583 and 65650. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-107 
 
 


Extremely Low-Income Households 
Extremely low-income households typically comprise persons with special housing needs, including, but not 
limited to, persons experiencing homelessness or at risk of homelessness, persons with substance abuse 
problems, and farmworkers. AB 2634 (Lieber 2006) requires the quantification and analysis of existing and 
projected housing needs of extremely low-income households. Housing Elements must also identify zoning 
to encourage and facilitate supportive housing and single-room occupancy units.  


Currently, Wildomar allows single-room occupancy units in the Planned Residential (R-4) and Residential 
Incentive (R-6) zones with approval of a conditional use permit. In addition, to encourage and facilitate the 
development of housing affordable to extremely low-income households, the City has included Programs 
H-3.1, H-10.1 and H-11.1.  


Residential Care Facilities 
Health and Safety Code Sections 1267.8, 1566.3, and 1568.08 require local governments to treat licensed group 
homes and residential care facilities with six or fewer residents no differently than other by-right single-family 
housing uses. “Six or fewer persons” does not include the operator, the operator’s family, or persons employed 
as staff. Local agencies must allow these licensed residential care facilities in any area zoned for residential use 
and may not require licensed residential care facilities for six or fewer persons to obtain conditional use permits 
or variances that are not required of other family dwellings. 


Currently, the Wildomar Municipal Code permits State-licensed residential care facilities with six or fewer 
residents by right in residential zones and permits residential care facilities with seven or more residents with 
a conditional use permit in the R-2 and R-3 zones. The City has included Program H-13.3 to explore allowing 
these facilities for seven or more persons only subject to those restrictions that apply to other residential uses 
of the same type in the same zone.  


Housing for Persons with Disabilities 
The City of Wildomar incorporates the Federal Fair Housing Act and the California Fair Employment and 
Housing Act of 1964 as a part of its building requirements. These two statutes address the fair housing 
practices adhered to by the City, which include practices against housing discrimination toward persons with 
disabilities. In compliance with SB 520, a complete evaluation of the City’s zoning laws, practices, and policies 
was initiated in late 2020 and is expected to be completed in 2021. No constraints to housing development 
for persons with disabilities were found at that time. However, Program H-20.1 has been incorporated into 
the Housing Element to address unmet housing needs for persons with a disability. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-108 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Procedures for Ensuring Reasonable Accommodations 


The City has adopted an ordinance establishing formal procedures to expeditiously review and process 
requests for reasonable accommodation for persons with disabilities. City staff is available via telephone, email, 
mail, and in person at City offices to discuss the process for providing reasonable accommodation from City 
zoning and building code requirements.  


 Reasonable Accommodations Procedure. The City will grant applications to provide relief from 
zoning standards or other City requirements that serve as a barrier to fair housing for persons with 
disabilities. The City streamlines reasonable accommodation requests by not requiring approval of a 
variance. Requests for reasonable accommodations are reviewed by the community development 
director or designee. There are no application fees and requests are processed within 30 days of a 
complete application for a reasonable accommodation. The community development director’s 
decision may be appealed to the Planning Commission at a public hearing. The City strives to make 
the permit process for reasonable accommodation as straightforward and expeditious as possible.  


 Separation requirements – The City’s Municipal Code does not impose any separation requirements 
between group homes or residential care facilities. 


 Site planning requirements – The site planning requirements for residential care facilities are no 
different than for other residential uses in the same zone. 


 Definition of Family. – The Wildomar Municipal Code defines family as: one or more persons living 
together in a dwelling unit, with common access to and common use of all living, kitchen, and eating 
areas within the dwelling unit. 


The written decision to approve, conditionally approve, or deny a request for a reasonable 
accommodation shall be based on the following findings, all of which are required for approval or conditional 
approval of a reasonable accommodation: 


 The requested accommodation is requested by or on the behalf of one or more disabled persons 
protected under the Acts. 


 The requested accommodation is necessary to provide one or more disabled persons an equal 
opportunity to use and enjoy a dwelling. 


 The requested accommodation will not impose an undue financial or administrative burden on the City 
as “undue financial or administrative burden” is defined in Acts. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-109 
 
 


 The requested accommodation will not result in a fundamental alteration in the nature of the City’s 
zoning program, as “fundamental alteration” is defined in the Acts. 


 The requested accommodation will not, under the specific facts of the case, result in a direct threat to 
the health or safety of other individuals or substantial physical damage to the property of others. 


LOCAL PROCESSING AND PERMIT PROCEDURES 
Development review procedures exist to ensure that proposals for new residential development comply with 
local regulations and are compatible with adjacent land uses. As shown in Table HNA-31, processing times 
for Wildomar are relatively quick: single-family and multifamily projects require two months (see Table 
HNA-32). Note: Review times differ on a case-by-case basis depending on the type and complexity of the 
project.    


The costs associated with development project review will vary between projects. Wildomar uses an efficient 
and comprehensive approach toward development review and permitting that allows for quick response to 
developer applications. The City uses many practices to expedite application processing, reduce costs, and 
clarify the process to developers and homeowners. Increased development costs resulting from delays in the 
City’s development review, public hearing, and permitting process are not considered a constraint on housing 
development. Therefore, the City’s development review process is not seen as a constraint to the development 
of housing.  


Senate Bill 330 Processing Procedure 
Senate Bill 330, the Housing Crisis Act of 2019, established specific requirements and limitations on 
development application procedures. The bill allows housing developments for which a preliminary 
application is submitted that complies with applicable general plan and zoning standards is subject only to the 
development standards and fees that were applicable at the time of submittal.  This applies to all projects 
unless the project square footage or unit count changes by more than 20 percent after the preliminary 
application is submitted.  The developer must submit a full application for the development project within 
180 days of submitting the preliminary application.  


Wildomar offers an optional pre-application review (PAR) for all development proposals to advise a 
prospective applicant of current City standards and requirements, shorten the length of time required to 
process a development proposal once it has been accepted for processing, provide a written record of staff’s 
assessment of a development proposal, and limit requests for special studies to those identified in the PAR 
letter. Pre-application meetings have helped to shorten the review process and allow for better communication 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-110 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


between applicants, City departments, and utility providers. The City has established an application process 
related to SB 330 in Chapter 17.214 of the City’s Zoning Code.  


Senate Bill 35 Approvals 
Senate Bill 35 requires jurisdictions that have failed to meet their RHNA to provide streamlined, ministerial 
entitlement process for housing developments that incorporate affordable housing. The City of Wildomar has 
a SB 35 application available to developers that includes specific requirements for the streamlining procedure. 
The application is available on the City’s website for developers interested in pursuing the streamlined process. 
This procedure aids in minimizing the review time required for development processes and, in turn, reducing 
costs to developers that may increase the housing production in the City. 


TABLE HNA-31: LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PROCESSING TIMELINES 


Item 
Approximate Length of 
Time from Submittal to 


Public Hearing 


Approval Body 


Conditional Use Permit 2-4 months Planning Director or 
Planning Commission 


Plot Plan 2–3 months Planning Director 
Specific Plan/Specific Plan Amendment 9–12 months Planning Commission 


Tentative Tract Map/Parcel Map/Subdivision 4–6 months Planning Director or 
Planning Commission 


Variance 2–3 months Planning Commission 


Zone Change 4–6 months Planning Commission and 
City Council 


General Plan Amendment 4–6 months Planning Commission / City 
Council 


Environmental Documentation (Environmental 
Impact Report) 9-12 months Planning Commission 


Source: City of Wildomar 2020 
Notes: All CEQA documents require at least Planning Commission review 
Legislative actions with Negative Declaration, Mitigated Negative Declaration or Environmental Impact Report require 
Planning Commission and City Council approval (i.e., General Plan Amendments, Zoning Change, Specific Plans)  
Non legislative actions with Negative Declaration, Mitigated Negative Declaration or Environmental Impact Report require 
Planning Commission approval (i.e., Plot Plan, Conditional Use Permit, Variance, TPM/TTM). If non legislative actions 
have Categorical Exemptions, only Planning Director approval is required. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-111 
 
 


Permit Processing Procedures  
Permit processing procedures and timelines are often cited by the development community as a primary 
contributor to housing costs.  However, the City has taken several steps to streamline the development review 
approval process. The City’s Planning Department processes planning permits and entitlement applications, 
including design review, use permits, variances, rezones, and general plan amendments in accordance with 
state law (i.e., permit streamlining act).  The City requires that construction drawings be submitted to the 
Community Development Department for plan review. Plans are reviewed to ensure that the project meets 
City requirements outlined in the Municipal Code and the California Building Code. If such requirements are 
not met, City staff notifies the applicant of the necessary revisions, and the applicant must re-submit for 
review. Once all requirements are met, the applicant must pay all remaining fees, upon which the City issues 
a building permit and construction can begin. 


The City offers pre-application meetings with applicants for all projects prior to submission of formal 
applications to better define the information needed to review a project. Pre-application meetings have helped 
to shorten the formal review process and allow for better communication between applicants, City 
departments and utility providers. The City currently defers to HCD for the required application process 
related to SB 330 but is developing a local process.   


There are different steps in the approval process a housing development must go through depending on the 
type and conditions of the development. Small single-family home construction which do not propose a 
general plan amendment or zone change only need building permits. Single-family subdivisions are required 
to conform to the City’s Design Guidelines and are subject to staff review and Planning Commission approval 
depending on the type of project. Multifamily developments (less than 3 units) require staff review and are 
subject to a Minor Plot Review by the Planning Director. Multifamily developments (more than 3 units) 
require both staff and Planning Commission review.  General Plan Amendments, Zone Changes, Specific 
Plans, require staff, Planning Commission, and City Council review. The permit processing procedures are 
consistent with the requirements of other surrounding jurisdictions and do not pose a constraint on the 
development of housing.  


Approval to Building Permit   
After a project is approved by the Planning Commission or City Council (refer to table HNA-31 for approval 
body), it becomes the applicant’s responsibility to initiate the steps to secure building permits and approvals 
and begin construction in accordance with the approved plans.  These steps include obtaining additional City 
clearances and paying fees as outlined in a project’s conditions of approval. Other necessary actions for the 
applicant include:   







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-112 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


 Completing construction drawings after project approval (city does not control this timeline)   


 Recording with the County Clerk subdivision (final) maps (applies to ownership projects)   


 Retaining contractors   


 Obtaining utility approvals (not owned by the city), required easements and rights of entry  


The length of time between a project’s approval and building permit issuance in many cases is determined by 
the applicant. Once a project begins the construction plan review process, the following general timelines can 
be achieved with responsive applicants: 


 Land Use Entitlement timelines and procedures generally take 3-6 months, but if they are 
considered major projects (projects requiring CEQA compliance), the process could take 6 – 12 
months. 


 Building permit approval timelines generally take 1-3 months (actual timeline depends on how fast 
an applicant can resubmit plans with corrections, etc.) 


TABLE HNA-32: TYPICAL PROCESSING PROCEDURES BY PROJECT TYPE 
Single-Family and Multifamily Process Time to Complete (days or months) 


Step 1: Entitlement/submittal of construction doc.  15-day review period; then 10-day, then 5-day 
Step 2: Plan check  Same as above 
Step 3: Submit revised construction plans 2 weeks* 
Estimated Total Processing Time  1–3 months*  


Source: City of Wildomar 2020 
*Note: Review times vary on a case-by-case basis and depend on whether the developer makes a timely submittal.  


Design Guidelines 
The City of Wildomar revised and adopted its design guidelines for single-family residential development in 
November 2018. The City also adopted objective design standards for multifamily development on September 
9, 2020. The purpose of the design standards and guidelines is to ensure that the design of proposed 
development and new land uses assists in maintaining and enhancing the character of the community. The 
goals and purposes of these procedures and requirements are to: 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-113 
 
 


 Ensure that new homes are constructed in neighborhoods that are interesting and varied in 
appearance.  


 Utilize building materials and enhanced landscaping to promote a look of quality, both at the time 
of initial occupancy and in future years.  


 Encourage efficient use of land while creating high-quality communities that will maintain their 
economic value and long-term desirability as places to live and work. 


 Incorporate conveniently located neighborhood parks, trails, and open space.   


 Provide developers with a clear statement of the desired architectural and site design characteristics 
for new multifamily residential development.  


 Ensure multifamily buildings contribute to creating high-quality neighborhoods and desirable 
places to live.  


Table HNA-33 summarizes the residential lot design standards for any single-family residential subdivision, 
as outlined in the adopted design guidelines. Table HNA-34 summarizes site design standards for multi-
family residential; additional details on form and massing, roof design, walls, windows, materials, colors and 
specific building types can be found in the City’s Multi-Family Residential Objective Design Standards. In 
general, the guidelines were prepared to address market-rate housing developments. 


Either the Planning Commission or City Council may be the final review authority of both single-family and 
multi-family projects in regards to design review based on the hearing processes. The approval, denial, or 
approval with conditions is based on the projects adherence to form, massing, roof design, and other aesthetic 
elements identified in the City’s Multi-Family Residential Objective Design Standards or the Single Family 
Residential Design Standards and Guidelines. Exceptions to these standards and guidelines may occur under 
three circumstances at the discretion of the Planning Director, Planning Commission, or City Council: 


 Other standards have been imposed upon an individual development project by the Planning 
Commission and/or the City Council. 


 Other standards have been adopted by the City Council relative to a particular designated area of a 
District (e.g., Community Plans / Specific Plans). 


 Physical constraints of an individual site make the application of a particular standard or guideline 
impractical. 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-114 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


To ensure the entitlement does not add any time constraints to a project, Design Review is typically conducted 
concurrently with the various required processes including improvement plan review, building permit 
application, and any requests for financial assistance from the City. 


TABLE HNA-33: SINGLE-FAMILY DESIGN STANDARDS 
Development Standards Lots 7,200 sf  


or greater 
Lots less than  


7,200 sf 
Minimum Net Usable Area (sf) 6,500 Not less than 85% of total area 
Minimum Lot Widths (Frontage) 65 ft* 50 ft* 
Lot Width at Frontage on Cul-de-sac Lots or Street 
Knuckle 40 ft* 40 ft* 


Minimum Front Yard for Side-Loaded 15 ft 10 ft 
Recommended Minimum Depth of Rear Yards 20 ft 15 ft 
Spacing Between Structures 10 ft 10 ft 


Source: City of Wildomar 2018 
Note: Please refer to the Single-Family Residential Design Standards for a complete list of the applicable design standards.  
* Refer to the design standards for notes on these standards and for specific footnotes regarding this table.  


TABLE HNA-34: MULTI-FAMILY DESIGN STANDARDS 
Development Standards Requirement 


Street Frontage Minimum 60% coverage by buildings* 
Ground Floor Elevation 21 in. 
Outdoor Recreation-Leisure Areas 400 sf. per dwelling unit 
Building Entrances Face primary public street 
Setback of Controlled Parking Facility Entrances 18 ft. 


Source: City of Wildomar 2020 
Note: Please refer to the Multi-Family Residential Objective Design Standards for a complete list of the applicable design 
standards. * Refer to the design standards for notes on these standards and for specific footnotes regarding this table.  


To facilitate the goals of the design guidelines, the City has a number of policies that may provide financial 
incentives, density bonuses fast-tracking, and fee waivers to those developers that include units in their 
projects that will be sold to low- and moderate-income households. Currently, design guidelines have had little 
or no effect on market-rate or affordable housing development and therefore the design guidelines are not 
seen as a constraint to the development of housing.  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-115 
 
 


CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROCESS 
The conditional use permit process is required for apartment housing in the R-3A zone. While no land is 
currently zoned as R-3A, should this zone district be applied to any land in the future the conditional use 
permit is required to review and address potential environmental impacts to hillsides. 


Applicability 


Whenever any section of this title requires that a conditional use permit be granted prior to the establishment 
of a use, the following provisions shall take effect.  


Application  


Every application for a conditional use permit shall be made in writing to the City’s Planning Director on the 
forms provided by the Planning Department and shall be accompanied by the filing fee set forth in the 
Municipal Code. Applications will include the following information: 


 Name and address of the applicant. 


 Evidence that he or she is the owner of the premises involved or that he or she has written permission 
of the owner to make such application. 


 A plot and development plan drawn in sufficient detail to clearly describe the following: 


o Physical dimensions of property and structures 


o Location of existing and proposed structures 


o Setbacks 


o Methods of circulation 


o Ingress and egress 


o Utilization of property under the requested permit 


 Such additional information as shall be required by the application form. 


 Dimensioned elevations, including details of proposed materials for elevations.  


Public Hearing 


A public hearing shall be held on the application for a conditional use permit in accordance with the provisions 
of Chapter 17.200 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, and all the procedural requirements and rights of appeal 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-116 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


as set forth therein shall govern the hearing. Notwithstanding the above, or any other provision herein to the 
contrary, the hearing on any conditional use permit that requires approval of a general plan amendment, a 
specific plan amendment, or a change of zone shall be heard in accordance with the provisions of Section 
17.08.050, 17.08.060, or 17.280.040 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, whichever is applicable, and all of the 
procedural requirements and rights of appeal as set forth shall govern the hearing.  


Conditions 


A conditional use permit shall not be granted unless the applicant demonstrates that the proposed use will 
not be detrimental to the health, safety, or general welfare of the community. Any permit that is granted shall 
be subject to such conditions as shall be necessary to protect the health, safety, or general welfare of the 
community.  


Use of Permit 


Any conditional use permit that is granted shall be valid for three years following the approval of the 
conditional use permit, unless the permit as granted specifies a shorter initial time period. If a permit has not 
been exercised within the three-year time period, the permittee may request an extension of time prior to the 
expiration date provided an application is filed with the City’s Planning Director along with the required fee. 
Upon receipt of a request for a time extension request, the Planning Director shall schedule the request for 
Planning Commission consideration. At least 10 days prior to the scheduled meeting, the Planning 
Department shall mail a public notice to all property owners of real property within a 600-foot radius of the 
project boundary. The Planning Commission may extend the first request for an extension of time by an 
additional three years, the second request for an extension of time can be granted for an additional two years, 
and the third extension request can only be extended for a final one-year period provided the findings outlined 
in Section 17.200.060(C) of the Municipal Code are met.  


Revocation of Permit  


Any conditional use permit granted may be revoked upon the findings and procedure contained in Chapter 
17.220 of the Municipal Code. 


BUILDING CODES AND ENFORCEMENT 
The City of Wildomar uses the 2019 California Building Code, which establishes standards and requires 
inspections at various stages of construction to ensure code compliance. Although these standards and the 
time required for inspections increase housing production costs and may impact the viability of rehabilitation 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-117 
 
 


of older properties that are required to be brought up to current code standards, the intent of the codes is to 
provide structurally sound, safe, and energy-efficient housing.  


The City has made one amendment to the local code, which was the inclusion of the 2019 California Green 
Building Code in 2019. 


The City’s Building and Safety Department is responsible for enforcing both state and city regulations 
governing maintenance of all buildings and property. Like most cities, Wildomar responds to code 
enforcement problems largely on a complaint basis. 


DEVELOPMENT FEES  
Like cities throughout California, Wildomar collects development fees to recover the capital costs of providing 
community services and the administrative costs associated with processing applications.  


Payment of fees is necessary to maintain an adequate level of services and facilities, and more generally, to protect 
public health, safety, and welfare. Based on a review of fees in neighboring jurisdictions and discussions with 
local developers, development fees in Wildomar are comparable to, and in some cases lower than, most other 
cities in the region.   


As a means of assessing the cost that fees contribute to development in Wildomar, the City has calculated the 
total fees associated with development of a single-family and multifamily development. As indicated in Table 
HNA-35, development impact fees for a single-family residential project are approximately $6,954, and 
development fees for a multifamily project are approximately $4,805. A full list of fees applicable to planning 
and building residential development fees is provided in Table HNA-36 and are also available on the City’s 
website or on the websites of the entities that impose the fee such as the school district or county. Fees such 
as school impact fees and transportation uniform mitigation fees are outside of the City’s control or influence. 
The fees are comparable to jurisdictions in the region and are not considered a constraint to the development 
of housing. 


TABLE HNA-35: TYPICAL RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT COST 
Development Cost for a Typical Unit* Single-Family Multifamily 


Transportation – Roads $3,088 $2,169 
Transportation – Signals $401 $281 
Police Facilities $227 $161 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-118 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Fire Protection $440 $312 
Park Land Acquisition $597 $423 
Park Improvements $3,926 $2,787 
Community Centers $474 $337 
Animal Shelter $250 $178 
City Hall $384 $272 
Corporation Yard $79 $56 
Drainage $1,381 $868 
Multi-Purpose Trails $754 $535 
County T.U.M.F. $9,418 $6,134 
School Impact Fee $4.08 per s.f. $4.08 per s.f. 
Total $29,579** $17,777** 


 Source: City of Wildomar 2015, Lake Elsinore Unified School District 2020, Riverside County 2016 
 *Includes 0.48 precent Admin Charge. 
 **School impact fees calculated for a 2,000 square foot single-family home and 800 square foot multi-family unit. 


TABLE HNA-36: RESIDENTIAL PLANNING AND BUILDING FEES 
Fee Category Fee Amount 
PLANNING  


Certificate of Zoning Compliance $500 
Certificate of Historical Appropriateness $750  
Certificate of Compliance $2,500  
Appeals $964 
Conditional Use Permit $9,500 
Development Agreement $5,000 
Public Use Permit $7,500 
Extensions of Time $4,500 
General Plan Amendment (General) $8,500 
General Plan Amendment (Circulation Section) $9,500 
Minor Change (Tract and Parcel Maps) $4,500 
Variance $3,500 
Substantial Conformance $3,500 
Change of Zone $7,000 
Plot Plan (Administrative) $4,000  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-119 
 
 


Fee Category Fee Amount 
Plot Plan (Hearing) $5,000  
Setback Adjustment $500  
Lot Line Adjustment $5,000  
Land Division $3,500  
Parcel Merger $5,000  
Tentative Parcel Map (Residential) $3,500-$5,511 
Tentative Tract Maps (Multifamily) $8,698-$8,718 
Tentative Tract Map Revised (Multifamily) $6,044-$6,362 
Tentative Tract Map (Single-Family) $8,827-$11,146 
Tentative Tract Map Revised (Single-Family) $3,880-$5,722 
Vesting Tentative Maps $8,391 
Specific Plan $20,000 
Specific Plan Amendment $10,000 
CEQA EIR $8,439  
CEQA ND or MND $8,439  
CEQA Exemption $8,439  
Pre-Application Approval $3,500 
Tree Removal Permit $250 


BUILDING  
Residential Addition $2,592.33  
Residential Addition to Guest House $3,198  
Mobile Home  
   Coach - Install $240.72 
   Earthquake Resistance Bracing $240.72 
   Manufactured Accessory Structure $240.72 
   Permanent Foundation $240.72 
   Replace Residential Coach $240.72 
   Site Preparation $507.96  
Multifamily Addition $677.59  
Multifamily Individual Residential Units $4,009.62  
New Residential $4,632.93  
Residential Rehabilitation $2,677.81  


  Source: City of Wildomar, 2020 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-120 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


ON- AND OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS 
Site improvement costs include the cost of providing access to the site, clearing the site, and grading the pad 
area. In the case of a subdivision, such costs may also include major improvements, such as building roads 
and installing sewer, water, and other utilities. As with land costs, several variables affect costs, including site 
topography and proximity to established roads, sewers, and water lines. Engineering and other technical 
assistance costs are usually included with site improvements as these services are required to ensure that 
development is constructed according to established codes and standards. 


The City requires residential project improvements to include curb/gutter and drainage facilities, sidewalks, 
paved streets, landscaping, and water and sewer service. The standard street section includes 60 feet of right-
of way, with 40 feet dedicated for street improvements, and 10 feet on each side for sidewalk and parkway 
improvements. These and other site improvement costs are typical of all cities in California and do not impose 
a significant constraint on the development of housing in Wildomar. The City does not impose any unusual 
requirements as conditions of approval for new development.   


AVAILABLE DRY UTILITIES 
Dry utilities, including cable, electricity, and telephone service, are available to all areas within the City. There 
is sufficient capacity to meet the current need and any future need. Service providers are as follows: 


 Cable: Verizon and Spectrum 


 Electricity: Southern California Edison 


 Telephone: Verizon  


 Internet Service: Verizon, Spectrum, and Frontier Communications 


REVIEW OF LOCAL ORDINANCES 
The City does not have any locally adopted ordinances that hinder the development of housing.   







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-121 
 
 


NON-GOVERNMENTAL CONSTRAINTS 


LAND COSTS 
Land costs are one of the major components of housing development costs. Land prices vary to such an 
extent that it is difficult to give average prices within small geographic regions. Factors affecting the costs 
of land include overall availability within a given subregion; environmental site conditions and 
constraints; public service and infrastructure availability; aesthetic considerations, such as views, terrain, 
and vegetation; the proximity to urban areas; and parcel size. Generally, more remote areas have less 
expensive land available and larger tracts of land, while smaller, more expensive parcels are located closer 
to urbanized areas. 


As of January 2021, the average cost for an acre lot of vacant land in Wildomar is $137,634, with prices 
ranging from $8,881 to $499,444 (according to a survey of Landwatch.com listings performed in 2020).  The 
maximum price range is significantly higher now compared to vacant land cost in 2013; however, there are 
a few lots available at a lower price range. While land prices declined during the economic recession, they 
have been increasing as shown by the current price range for available vacant land. Since there are lots 
available at a lower price range, land costs in the next several years may actually help keep the cost of some 
new housing affordable. While rising land costs tend to directly increase housing costs, declining land costs 
should give developers more options in serving the affordable housing market segment, recognizing that 
some land currently held by developers was purchased at substantially higher prices than may be the case 
now. 


CONSTRUCTION COSTS 
The cost of construction depends primarily on the cost of materials and labor, which are influenced by 
market demand. The cost of construction will also depend on the type of unit being built and on the quality 
of product being produced. The cost of labor is based on a number of factors, including housing demand, the 
number of contractors in the area, and the unionization of workers.  


The construction cost of housing affects the affordability of new housing and may be considered a constraint 
to affordable housing in the Riverside County region. A reduction in construction costs can be brought 
about in several ways. A reduction in amenities and quality of building materials in new homes (still above 
the minimum acceptability for health, safety, and adequate performance) may result in lower sales prices. 
State housing law provides that local building departments can authorize the use of materials and 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-122 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


construction methods if the proposed design is found to be satisfactory and the materials or methods are 
at least equivalent to that prescribed by the applicable building codes.  


In addition, prefabricated, factory-built housing may provide lower-priced products by reducing labor and 
material costs. As the number of units built at one time increases, savings in construction costs over the entire 
development are generally realized as a result of an economy of scale, particularly when combined with density 
bonus provisions.  


The City of Wildomar is in the process of completing an Economic Development market study and so far, 
the study indicates the average recent home sales price in the city is $399,332. Using current pricing sources, 
the average costs for a newly constructed 2,000-square-foot single-family home (not including land) in 
Wildomar would be calculated as shown in Table HNA-37. 


TABLE HNA-37: OVERALL CONSTRUCTION COST 
Item Cost 


Materials $159,003 
Labor $105,363 
Equipment $5,047 
Per Home Costs, Total $269,413 


   Source: Building-cost.net 2020 


AVAILABILITY OF FINANCING 


Interest rates are determined by national policies and economic conditions, and there is little that local 
governments can do to affect these rates. Jurisdictions can, however, offer interest rate write-downs to extend 
home purchase opportunities to lower-income households. In addition, government-insured loan programs 
may be available to reduce mortgage down-payment requirements. 


The cost of borrowing money to finance the construction of housing or to purchase a house affects the 
amount of affordably priced housing in Wildomar. First-time homebuyers are the group most impacted by 
financing requirements. As of January 2021, the current mortgage interest rate for new home purchases is 
approximately 3 percent for a fixed-rate 30-year loan. Lower initial rates are available with graduated payment 
mortgages, adjustable rate mortgages, and buy-down mortgages; however, the subprime crisis has affected the 
availability of dollars for home mortgages. Variable interest rate mortgages on affordable homes may increase 







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


Adoption Draft – October 2021 HNA-123 
 
 


to the point where the interest rate exceeds the cost of living adjustments, which is a constraint on 
affordability. Although rates are currently low, they can change significantly and substantially impact the 
affordability of housing stock. Fluctuating interest rates can eliminate many potential homebuyers from the 
housing market or render a housing project infeasible that could have been successfully developed or marketed 
at lower interest rates. Housing prices in Wildomar are unaffordable for persons of lower incomes, even with 
the lower interest rates. Housing prices are only affordable for persons with moderate or higher incomes. The 
constraint on homeownership in Wildomar is not the availability of financing, but the cost of housing, of 
which is unaffordable to lower-income households. Nor is the constraint on homeownership related to the 
availability of land. 


Interest rates at the present time are not a constraint to affordable housing. Financing for both construction 
and long-term mortgages is generally available in Riverside County subject to normal underwriting standards. 
A more critical impediment to homeownership involves both the affordability of the housing stock and the 
ability of potential buyers to fulfill down-payment requirements. Conventional home loans typically require 5 
to 20 percent of the sales price as a down payment, which is the largest constraint to first-time homebuyers. 
This indicates a need for flexible loan programs and a method to bridge the gap between the down payment 
and a potential homeowner’s available funds. The availability of financing for developers under current 
economic conditions may also pose a constraint on development outside of the City’s control. 


ENVIRONMENTAL AND INFRASTRUCTURE CONSTRAINTS 
Environmental and infrastructure issues affect the amount, location, and timing of new residential 
development. New housing opportunities create challenges regarding public infrastructure extensions and 
expansions, and encroachment into agricultural land. In addition, the availability of adequate water, public 
infrastructure, such as wells and wastewater treatment facilities, and other public services and facilities can 
impact the feasibility of new residential development.  


Environmental 
Earthquake risk is high in western Riverside County (which includes Wildomar), due to the presence of two 
of California’s most active faults, the San Andreas and San Jacinto Faults. Environmental constraints were 
considered when determining the realistic capacity for sites listed in Table HNA-23.  







 


 


  


HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 


   


HNA-124 Adoption Draft – October 2021 
 
 


Infrastructure 
Wildomar Southwestern Riverside County – The Southwest Riverside County Analysis Area encompasses the 
cities of Wildomar, Lake Elsinore, Murrieta, and Temecula. Significant unincorporated areas include Temescal 
Canyon, El Cerrito, and French Valley.  


Primary water and sewer providers include Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD), Western Municipal 
Water District (WMWD), Rancho California Water District, Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District 
(EVMWD), and Lee Lake Water District. Both EMWD and WMWD comply with the California Water 
Conservation Council and best management practices. Within this area, WMWD provides only water services 
and does not operate a sewer treatment plant or sewer collection facilities. All of the service districts stated 
that they have adequate current capacity to meet demand and adequate capacity to expand to meet projected 
development. The current facilities and/or infrastructure are reported to be in good operating condition. 
Therefore, it is determined that the City has enough capacity to meet the 2021-2029 regional housing need.  


To comply with SB 1087, the City will immediately forward its adopted Housing Element to its water and 
wastewater provider (EVMWD) so they can grant priority for service allocations to proposed developments 
that include units affordable to lower-income households. 


Senate Bill 244 
SB 244 requires cities and counties, prior to adoption of the Housing Element, to address the infrastructure 
needs of disadvantaged unincorporated communities outside the city’s limits but within the city’s planning 
area. Because the city’s planning area does not contain any unincorporated areas, no such conditions exist. 















O R A N G E  C O U N T Y    •    B AY  A R E A    •    S A C R A M E N TO    •    C E N T R A L  C O A S T    •    L O S  A N G E L E S    •    I N L A N D  E M P I R E    •    S A N  D I E G O


101 Parkshore Drive, Suite 112
Folsom, California 95630


 t 916.245.7500


www.placeworks.com







CITY OF 


WILDOMAR


SAFETY
ELEMENT 


August 2021











SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-i 
 


1.  Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................. 1 


Purpose, Scope, and Content ....................................................................................................................................... 1 
Regulatory Framework ................................................................................................................................................ 2 
Relationship to Other Documents ................................................................................................................................ 3 
Relationship to the Emergency Management Department .......................................................................................... 4 
Hazard Reduction ........................................................................................................................................................ 4 
Vulnerable Communities ............................................................................................................................................. 5 
Climate Change Vulnerability ..................................................................................................................................... 7 


2.  Existing Conditions ................................................................................................................................................... 10 


Code Conformance and Development Regulations ................................................................................................... 11 
Seismic and Geologic Hazards .................................................................................................................................. 13 
Flood and Inundation Hazards ................................................................................................................................... 27 
Fire Hazards  .............................................................................................................................................................. 40 
Air pollution  .............................................................................................................................................................. 53 
Hazardous Waste and Materials ................................................................................................................................ 59 
Disaster Preparedness, Response, and Recovery ....................................................................................................... 63 
Additional Climate-Related Hazards ......................................................................................................................... 73 
Implemenation Measures ........................................................................................................................................... 79 


Appendices 


Appendix A: Vulnerability Assessment Results........................................................................................................ 89 


 


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-ii 
 


Tables  


Table S-1: Chances of Significant Earthquakes on Major  Riverside County Faults ................................................ 15 
Table S-2: Fires in Wildomar, 1950-2019 ................................................................................................................. 44 
Table S-3: Implementation Measures ........................................................................................................................ 80 


Figures 


  Regional Fault Lines ............................................................................................................................ 16 
  Seismic Hazard Program Liquefaction Zone ....................................................................................... 18 
  Landslide Susceptibility ....................................................................................................................... 19 
  Subsidence Zone .................................................................................................................................. 22 
  Flood Hazard Zones ............................................................................................................................. 30 
  Dam Inundation .................................................................................................................................... 33 
  Fire Hazard Severity Zones .................................................................................................................. 42 
  Wildland/Urban Interface ..................................................................................................................... 43 
  Historical Wildfire Perimeters .............................................................................................................. 45 
 Diesel Particulate Percentile ................................................................................................................. 56 
 Ozone Percentile .................................................................................................................................. 57 
 PM2.5 Percentile .................................................................................................................................... 58 
 Residential Parcels with Evacuation Constraints ................................................................................. 66 


 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-1 
 


1. INTRODUCTION 
PURPOSE, SCOPE, AND CONTENT 


The Safety Element conveys the City of Wildomar’s (City’s) goals, policies, and actions to minimize the hazards 
to safety in and around Wildomar. This Safety Element will replace the 2003 County/City Safety Element upon 
adoption. It identifies the natural and human-caused hazards that affect existing and future development and 
provides guidelines for protecting residents, employees, visitors, and other community members from injury 
and death. It describes present and expected future conditions and sets policies and standards for improved 
public safety. The Safety Element also seeks to minimize physical harm to the buildings and infrastructure in 
and around Wildomar to reduce damage to local economic systems, community services, and ecosystems.  


Some degree of risk is inevitable because the potential for many disasters cannot be completely eliminated and 
the ability to predict such disasters is limited. The goal of the Safety Element is to reduce the risk of injury, 
death, property loss, and other hardships to acceptable levels.  One of the fundamental values of the Vision for 
Wildomar, as adopted by the City Council on April 12, 2017 (via Resolution No. 2017-12), highlights the 
importance of safety to the people of Wildomar: 


“The City of Wildomar will be a safe and active community with responsible growth and 
quality infrastructure while keeping a hometown feel.” 


This “value” underlies the policy direction of the Safety Element and is further defined by the following Vision 
statement: 


“Considerable protection from natural hazards such as earthquakes, fire, flooding, slope 
failure, and other hazardous conditions is now built into the pattern of development authorized 
by the General Plan.” 


Based on the direction provided by the Vision, and in compliance with state law, the primary objective of the 
Safety Element is to “reduce death, injuries, property damage, and economic and social impact from hazards.”  
The Safety Element serves the following functions: 


 Develops a framework by which safety considerations are introduced into the land use planning process. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-2 
 


 Facilitates the identification and mitigation of hazards for new development, and thus strengthens 
existing codes, project review, and permitting processes. 


 Presents policies directed at identifying and reducing hazards in existing development. 


 Strengthens earthquake, flood, inundation, and wildland fire preparedness planning and post-disaster 
reconstruction policies. 


 Identifies how hazards are likely to increase in frequency and intensity in the future and provides policies 
to increase community resilience.  


REGULATORY FRAMEWORK 


Under state law, all counties and incorporated communities in California must prepare a General Plan, which 
must address several topics, one of which is public health and safety. The Safety Element addresses this topic 
in accordance with state requirements, which are laid out in California law, particularly Section 65302(g) of the 
California Government Code. State law requires that the Safety Element address the following:  


 Protect the community from risks associated with a variety of hazards, including seismic activity, 
landslides, flooding, and wildfire, as required by the California Government Code Section 65302(g)(1). 


 Map and assess the risk associated with flood hazards, develop policies to minimize the flood risk to 
new development and essential public facilities, and establish effective working relationships among 
agencies with flood protection responsibilities, as required by California Government Code Section 
65302(g)(2). 


 Map and assess the risk associated with wildfire hazards, develop policies to reduce the wildfire risk to 
new land uses and essential facilities, ensure there is adequate road and water infrastructure to respond 
to wildfire emergencies, and establish cooperative relationships between wildfire protection agencies, as 
required by California Government Code Section 65302(g)(3). 


 Assess the risks associated with climate change on local assets, populations, and resources. Note existing 
and planned development in at-risk areas and identify agencies responsible for providing public health 
and safety and environmental protection. Develop goals, policies, and objectives to reduce the risks 
associated with climate change impacts, including locating new public facilities outside of at-risk areas, 
providing adequate infrastructure in at-risk areas, and supporting natural infrastructure for climate 
adaptation, as required by California Government Code Section 65302(g)(4). 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-3 
 


 Identify residential developments in any hazard area identified that do not have at least two emergency 
evacuation routes, as required by California Government Code Section 65302(g)(5). 


RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER DOCUMENTS 


The Wildomar Safety Element does not exist in a vacuum but is instead one of several plans that address public 
safety and related topics. The Safety Element must be consistent with these other plans to minimize conflicts 
between documents and ensure that the City has a unified strategy to address public safety issues. The Safety 
Element incorporates information, technical analyses, and policies from these other documents where 
appropriate to help support this consistency. 


OTHER GENERAL PLAN ELEMENTS 


The Safety Element is one of several elements of the Wildomar General Plan. Other social, economic, political, 
and aesthetic factors must be considered and balanced with safety needs. Rather than compete with the policies 
of related elements, the Safety Element provides policy direction and designs safety improvements that 
complement the intent and policies of other General Plan elements. Crucial relationships exist between the 
Safety Element and the other General Plan elements. How land uses are determined in areas prone to natural 
hazards, what regulations limit development in these areas, and how hazards are mitigated for existing 
development, are all issues that tie the elements together. For instance, Land Use Element diagrams and policies 
must consider the potential for various hazards identified in the Safety Element and must be consistent with the 
policies to address those hazards. The Multipurpose Open Space Element is also closely tied to the Safety 
Element. Floodplains, for example, are not only hazard areas, but often serve as sensitive habitat for threatened 
or endangered species or provide recreation or passive open space opportunities for residents and visitors. As 
such, flood and inundation policies balance the need to protect public health and safety with the need to protect 
habitat and open space. Safety Element policies, especially those concerning evacuation routes and critical 
facilities, must also be consistent with those of the Circulation Element. The City’s Circulation Plan routes are 
considered the backbone routes for evacuation purposes. Policies and information in this Safety Element should 
not conflict with those in other elements. 


CITY OF WILDOMAR LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 


The City of Wildomar’s Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) is a plan to identify and profile hazard 
conditions, analyze risk to people and facilities, and develop mitigation actions to reduce or eliminate hazard 
risks in Wildomar. The City prepared the LHMP in accordance with the federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-4 
 


and the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA’s) LHMP guidance. The mitigation actions in the 
LHMP include both short-term and long-term strategies, and involve planning, policy changes, programs, 
projects, and other activities. The LHMP and Safety Element address similar issues, but the Safety Element 
provides a higher-level framework and set of policies, while the LHMP focuses on more specific mitigation, 
often short-term, actions. The LHMP, as its name implies, focuses on mitigation-related actions, while the Safety 
Element also includes policies related to emergency response, recovery, and preparation activities. The current 
LHMP is incorporated into this Safety Element by reference, as permitted by California Government Code 
Section 65302.6. 


RELATIONSHIP TO THE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT 


The County of Riverside Emergency Management Department (EMD) is responsible for providing emergency 
management services. EMD has four divisions that combine traditional emergency management, public health 
disaster management, and emergency medical services into a single, comprehensive, all hazards department. 
EMD works with local cities such as Wildomar, fire and law enforcement agencies, and special districts to 
support and implement emergency mitigation and preparation activities across Riverside County, secure 
resources for first responders, and coordinate with state and federal emergency agencies. EMD’s emergency 
preparation and response activities, including many of the Safety Element policies implemented by the City in 
coordination with EMD, are laid out in this Safety Element.  


HAZARD REDUCTION 


Hazard-reduction programs are designed to improve the safety of existing development. For example, older 
structures, built to superseded code standards, may need seismic upgrading. Owners of older structures may 
voluntarily upgrade, be strongly incentivized to upgrade, or be required to do so. Additional examples of hazard-
reduction programs include: 


 Strengthening pipelines and developing emergency back-up capability by public utilities serving the City 
of Wildomar; 


 Collaborating with water purveyors to ensure adequate fire flow during emergencies; 


 Creating defensible space around buildings to prevent damage from wildfires; 


 Planning for emergency response at the government and individual level to reduce the risk to the public 
from hazards; and 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-5 
 


 Identifying unsafe structures and posting public notices. 


To reduce hazards in areas mapped as hazard zones, the City of Wildomar uses a combination of methods: 


 Special investigation and reporting requirements; 


 Land use planning; 


 Real-estate disclosure; 


 Incentives to encourage hazard mitigation; 


 Public education; and 


 Disincentives, including fines and fees for those who choose to take the risk of that hazard. 


VULNERABLE COMMUNITIES 


Due to financial limitations, mobility challenges, and lack of access to medical care, the most vulnerable 
populations to environmental pollution and other hazards include households in poverty, seniors living alone, 
outdoor workers, and persons experiencing homelessness. Based on the CalEnviroScreen 3.0 model, which uses 
pollution and population characteristic indicators to assess pollution burden within communities, overall 
pollution burden is relatively low.1 However, there are communities that may be disproportionately impacted 
by pollution and hazards. 


Low-income communities in Wildomar provide an effective lens for assessing where pollution and hazards may 
disproportionately be affecting vulnerable communities. Therefore, this Safety Element defines vulnerable 
communities as low-income areas that are disproportionately affected by environmental pollution and other 
hazards that can lead to negative health effects. A low-income area is defined as an area with household incomes 
at or below 80 percent of the statewide median income or with household incomes at or below the threshold 
designated as low income by the Department of Housing and Community Development’s list of state income 
limits, which is approximately $59,993 in Wildomar.  


 


1 California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment. 2018. CalEnviroScreen 3.0. 
https://oehha.ca.gov/calenviroscreen/report/calenviroscreen-30. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-6 
 


Vulnerable communities in Wildomar are particularly affected by pollution and hazards in the northwest region 
of the city, along Corydon Road and Mission Trail. Vulnerable communities are often affected first and at greater 
levels by pollution and climate-related impacts. These communities are burdened with poorer air quality and 
pollution and face a higher risk of flood and wildfire hazards. More specifically, air quality impacts are 
associated with elevated concentration levels of diesel particulate, ozone, and particulate matter 2.5 (PM2.5). 
Although flood risk is present, the 100- and 500-year flood zone is limited to areas along the city boundary, near 
Corydon Road and Mission Trail. To the east of Interstate 15 (I-15), vulnerable communities are within a very 
high wildfire hazard severity zone. 


Some hazards, such as toxins or traffic hazards, may be dangerous enough to harm human health in isolation. 
However, some hazards may not be harmful to health by themselves, but become harmful when combined with 
other health risks to a community. This is a compounded health risk, often referred to as cumulative risk. Today, 
people are often exposed to multiple health risks, such as ozone and particulate matter, while concurrently living 
in unhealthy housing conditions and/or experiencing poverty and other socioeconomic stressors that are 
associated with negative health outcomes. These conditions are experienced more often by vulnerable 
communities.  


“Environmental justice” is defined in California law as the fair treatment of people of all races, cultures, and 
incomes with respect to the development, adoption, implementation, and enforcement of environmental laws, 
regulations, and policies. “Environmental justice” includes, but is not limited to, all of the following: 


 The availability of a healthy environment for all people. 


 The deterrence, reduction, and elimination of pollution burdens for populations and communities 
experiencing the adverse effects of that pollution, so that the effects of the pollution are not 
disproportionately borne by those populations and communities. 


 Governmental entities engaging and providing technical assistance to populations and communities most 
impacted by pollution to promote their meaningful participation in all phases of the environmental and 
land use decision-making process. 


 At a minimum, the meaningful consideration of recommendations from populations and communities 
most impacted by pollution into environmental and land use decisions. 


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-7 
 


Environmental justice in the community can be implemented in various ways, such as through policies and 
actions that improve sustainability and resilience, protect community health, and prioritize safety. This Safety 
Element identifies where vulnerable communities experience existing and likely future hazardous conditions 
and other public safety issues in Wildomar and incorporates environmental justice into its policies and actions 
to address specific hazards for vulnerable communities in Wildomar. These policies and actions aim to reduce 
the unique or compounded health risks.  


CLIMATE CHANGE VULNERABILITY 


Changes to the global climate system are expected to affect future occurrences of natural hazards in and around 
Wildomar. Many hazards are projected to become more frequent and more intense in coming years and decades, 
and in some cases, these trends have already begun. According to California’s Fourth Climate Change 
Assessment,2 Wildomar can expect the following changes to climate-related hazard events: 


 Both droughts and floods are expected to become more frequent as precipitation is expected to occur in 
fewer, more intense storms due to climate change. Although Wildomar is likely to experience little 
change in overall precipitation levels from climate change, the region is also expected to see an increase 
in the number of extreme precipitation events. As a result, floods are expected to occur more often in 
Wildomar, and climate change may expand the parts of the city that are considered flood-prone. Climate 
change is expected to increase the frequency and severity of droughts that cause soil to dry out and 
condense. When precipitation does return, more water runs off the surface rather than being absorbed 
into the ground, which can lead to floods. 


 Warmer temperatures are projected to cause an increase in extreme heat events. Because extreme heat is 
relative to the area, this means that extreme heat events may occur anywhere in Riverside County. The 
number of extreme heat days, defined in Wildomar as a day when the high temperature is at least 105 
degrees Fahrenheit (°F), is expected to rise from a historical annual average of 4 to between 25 and 37 
by the middle of the century (2041 to 2060), and to between 34 and 58 by the end of the century (2070 
to 2099). In addition to the increases in extreme heat events, Wildomar is expected to see an increase in 
the average daily high temperatures. Extreme heat poses a significant human health risk, especially to 
senior citizens, outdoor workers, and persons who do not have access to adequate cooling, including 


 


2 Bedsworth, Louise, Dan Cayan, Guido Franco, Leah Fisher, Sonya Ziaja. (California Governor’s Office of Planning and Research, 
Scripps Institution of Oceanography, California Energy Commission, California Public Utilities Commission). 2018. Statewide 
Summary Report. California’s Fourth Climate Change Assessment. Publication number: SUMCCCA4-2018-013. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-8 
 


people experiencing homelessness. Some buildings and infrastructure systems may be damaged by very 
high temperatures, constraining their ability to meet community needs.  


 Climate change can increase the rates of infection for various diseases because many of the animals that 
carry diseases are more active during warmer weather. There are a number of diseases that are linked to 
climate change and can be harmful to the health of Wildomar community members, such as hantavirus 
pulmonary syndrome, Lyme disease, West Nile fever, and influenza. Many of these diseases are carried 
by animals, such as mice and rats, ticks, and mosquitos, which are usually seen as pests even if they do 
not cause infections. Warmer temperatures earlier in the spring and later in the winter can cause these 
animals to be active for longer periods, increasing the time that these diseases can be transmitted. 


 Wildomar is expected to see an increase in wildfires due to hotter, drier weather. Although the risk is 
greatest in the forested areas of western Riverside County along the San Jacinto Mountains, Wildomar 
may still experience an increase in wildfire activity. More frequent regional wildfires may also create 
poor air quality. Wildfire activity across Riverside County is expected to increase approximately 16 
percent above historic levels by the middle of the century. 


 Severe weather events, such as strong storms and high winds, may become more frequent and intense 
due to climate change. Climate change is expected to cause an increase in intense rainfall, which is 
usually associated with strong storm systems. Heavy rainfall may also contribute to an increased risk of 
landslides in the hills around Wildomar. In western Riverside County, most severe weather is linked to 
high winds. The types of dangers posed by severe weather vary widely and include injuries or deaths, 
damage to buildings and structures, fallen trees, roads blocked by debris, and fires sparked by lightning. 


VULNERABILITY ASSESSMENT RESULTS 


Under California law, the Safety Element is required to include a vulnerability assessment that looks at how 
people, buildings, infrastructure, and other key community assets may be affected by climate change. The City 
conducted a Climate Change Vulnerability Assessment in spring of 2021, to analyze Wildomar’s susceptibility 
to climate-related hazards. The City of Wildomar’s vulnerability assessment, prepared in accordance with the 
most recent available guidance in the California Adaptation Planning Guide, assesses how eight different 
climate-related hazards (air quality, drought, extreme heat, flooding, human health hazards, landslides, severe 
weather, and wildfire) may affect 56 different population groups and community assets. Each population or 
asset received a score of V1 (minimal vulnerability) to V5 (severe vulnerability) for each climate-related hazard. 
The Climate Change Vulnerability Assessment indicates that Wildomar’s populations and assets are most 
vulnerable to wildfires, extreme heat, severe weather, and drought.  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-9 
 


Populations in Wildomar tend to be vulnerable to extreme heat, human health hazards, and wildfire, which 
directly affect health outcomes. As discussed previously, the most vulnerable communities include households 
in poverty, seniors living alone, outdoor workers, and persons experiencing homelessness. Vulnerable 
populations, especially those located on single-access roads, are also highly vulnerable to hazards, such as 
landslides, severe weather, flooding, and wildfire. 


Citywide, energy delivery is vulnerable to multiple hazards, including severe weather, such as high winds that 
can trigger public safety power shutoff (PSPS) events, extreme heat that reduces the capacity and strains the 
system, and wildfires that damage the system, ultimately disrupting energy service. These conditions can 
damage communication infrastructure, decreasing network capacity. There may be a higher demand for 
communication services during severe weather, potentially putting stress on the network and increasing the risk 
of service interruptions. Furthermore, energy delivery services, specifically electricity delivery, is subject to 
harm during extreme heat events. Extreme heat can lead to power outages by causing mechanical failure of grid 
equipment, heat damage to power lines, and by creating a high demand for electricity to power air conditioners, 
all of which place stress on the network. This is likely to lead to greater service disruptions.  


An increase in droughts, extreme heat, and wildfire create higher vulnerabilities for chaparral, woodland, and 
grassland habitat. Drought and extreme heat can stress vegetation, weakening or killing a variety of native 
species and habitats. Although chaparral, woodland, and grassland in the region are adapted to infrequent, low-
intensity wildfire, many native species are still vulnerable to large and intense wildfire events. Moreover, 
grasslands pose an extreme risk due to their high, easily ignitable fuel loads and the invasion of non-native 
species has greatly increased the risk of severe wildfire events. Pests, such as shot hole borers, have increased 
due to drought and higher temperatures that impact tree health and make them more vulnerable to pests. Such 
pests can decimate woodland habitats and these species may not be able to recover. This can in turn affect local 
economic activities in Wildomar, such as outdoor recreation activities and commercial activity from visitors 
that travel through the city to get to state and national parks and forests.  


PSPS events can also create vulnerabilities for Wildomar community members. The vast majority of homes and 
businesses do not have backup power supplies, so a loss of electricity can cause a loss of refrigeration for food 
and medical supplies, limit cooking, cause loss of heating or cooling (particularly dangerous during extreme 
heat or cold events), lighting, and limited or no access to the Internet or other information systems. Many 
businesses are forced to close during a PSPS, causing economic hardships and depriving community members 
of important services, such as grocery stores, gas stations, and banks/ATMs. PSPS events may also be harmful 
to people who depend on electrically powered medical devices. Some property owners have purchased backup 
power generators, although these produce high levels of noise, pollution, and odors.  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-10 
 


The Safety Element includes goals, policies, and implementation measures to increase community resilience 
and help lower vulnerability scores, particularly for the populations and assets that received a score of V4 or V5 
in the Vulnerability Assessment. A full list of the Vulnerability Assessment results can be found in Appendix 
A. 


2. EXISTING CONDITIONS 
This section outlines the existing and likely future hazardous conditions and other public safety issues in 
Wildomar, including:  


 Code conformance and development regulations 


 Seismic and geologic hazards  


 Flood and inundation hazards 


 Fire hazards (urban and wildland)  


 Hazardous waste and materials  


 Disaster preparedness, response, and recovery 


 Drought  


 Extreme heat  


 Severe weather   


This section provides details pertaining to probable locations each hazard or issue is likely to occur (per 
availability of data), past notable events in and around Wildomar, agencies responsible for providing protection 
from these public safety issues, and other background information required by the State of California 
Government Code Section 65302(g)(4). Goals and policies are identified following the discussion of each hazard 
identified, and implementation measures that support one or more of the Safety Element policies are provided 
in Table S-3 at the end of this Safety Element. 


Additionally, the City has prepared a Vulnerability Assessment that analyzes how climate-related hazards may 
harm the City of Wildomar. This assessment was prepared in accordance with the California-recommended 
guidance in the current California Adaptation Planning Guide. It incorporates the findings from a subregional 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-11 
 


vulnerability assessment prepared for western Riverside County as part of the Resilient IE project. This 
Vulnerability Assessment refines the findings from Resilient IE to focus on the City of Wildomar, thus more 
accurately reflecting the conditions and characteristics unique to Wildomar.   


The Vulnerability Assessment considers the threats from all relevant climate-related hazards, which are events 
or physical conditions that have the potential to cause harm or loss and emphasizes changes to hazard frequency 
and severity due to climate change. The Vulnerability Assessment also assesses populations or assets facing 
potential harm from the hazards. This includes the risk of physical damage to buildings and infrastructure, social 
vulnerability of persons likely to be disproportionately harmed by hazards, potential disruption to the City’s 
economic engines, loss of important services, and damage to sensitive ecosystems. The results of the 
Vulnerability Assessment are integrated into the hazards and other public safety issues previously mentioned. 
A full list of the Vulnerability Assessment results is also provided in Appendix A. 


CODE CONFORMANCE AND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 


The City of Wildomar Department of Building and Safety provides technical expertise in reviewing and 
enforcing the City Building and Fire Codes. These codes establish site-specific investigation requirements, 
construction standards, and inspection procedures to ensure that development does not pose a threat to the health, 
safety, and welfare of the public. Every three years, the City’s Building and Fire Codes are adopted from the 
California Building and Fire Codes. These codes contain baseline minimum standards to guard against unsafe 
development.  


At a minimum, it is imperative to enforce the most recently adopted regulatory codes for new development and 
significant redevelopment, including the City’s Zoning Ordinance and Land Use Ordinance (e.g., Water-
Efficient Landscape Ordinance), which support the California Building and Fire Codes. The California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) adds another level of safety review, requiring that environmental 
constraints be considered prior to approval of development projects. Additional guidelines and standards are 
introduced through the Safety Element. Special development regulations can reinforce and augment existing 
code standards by raising the level of hazard-conscious project design and mitigation engineering. Examples 
include additional geologic/geotechnical investigation and additional reinforcement of foundations in areas of 
potential ground failure.  


While foundation investigations are required by the City of Wildomar’s Building Code, it is important to 
emphasize expected levels of investigation and protection. Furthermore, some requirements may only apply to 
critical facilities, such as detailed seismic analyses, could be expanded to include other structures and lifelines. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-12 
 


Where engineering methods cannot mitigate the hazards, avoidance of the hazard is appropriate, such as where 
ground rupture along active or potentially active fault traces are identified during project investigation. Special 
minimum setbacks away from active faults, which are already required for critical facilities, can also be defined 
for other structures and lifelines. 


GOAL S-1: To provide development regulations consistent with State of California 
requirements and best practices. 


POLICY S-1 Enforce state laws aimed at identification, inventory, and retrofit of existing 
vulnerable structures and mitigate hazard impacts through adoption and strict 
enforcement of current building codes, which will be amended as necessary when 
local deficiencies are identified. 


POLICY S-2 Continue to enforce penalties against grading without permits and ensure the 
restoration of land damaged or degraded from grading activities. Continue to educate 
the public about the benefits of grading with permits and the penalties for grading 
without them. If the penalties are determined to be ineffective, explore whether 
levying greater penalties would be more effective in deterring illegal grading and 
ensuring proper restoration of damaged lands. 


POLICY S-3 Incorporate the current City of Wildomar Local Hazard Mitigation Plan into this 
Safety Element by reference, as permitted by California Government Code Section 
65302.6. 


POLICY S-4 Require structural and non-structural assessment and, when necessary, mitigation of 
other types of potentially hazardous buildings that:  


(1)  Are undergoing substantial repair or improvements resulting in more than half of the 
assessed property value, or  


(2)  Are considered an element of blight in a redevelopment district. Potential 
implementation measures may include: 


 Use of variances, tax rebates, fee waivers, credits, or public recognition as 
incentives.  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-13 
 


 Inventory and structural assessment of potentially hazardous buildings based on 
screening methods developed by the Federal Emergency Management Agency.  


 Development of a mandatory retrofit program for hazardous, high-occupancy, 
essential, dependent, or high-risk facilities. 


 Development of a mandatory program requiring public posting of seismically 
vulnerable buildings. 


SEISMIC AND GEOLOGIC HAZARDS 


Seismic and geologic hazards are risks caused by the movement of different parts of the Earth’s crust, or surface. 
Seismic hazards include earthquakes and hazardous events caused by them. Geologic hazards are other hazards 
involving land movements that are not linked to seismic activity and are capable of inflicting harm to people or 
property.  


SEISMIC HAZARDS 


Seismic activity occurs along boundaries in the Earth’s crust, called faults. Pressure along the faults build over 
time and is ultimately released, resulting in ground shaking that we refer to as an earthquake. Earthquakes can 
also trigger other hazards, including surface rupture (cracks in the ground surface), liquefaction (causing loose 
soil to lose its strength), landslides, and subsidence (sinking of the ground surface). Earthquakes and other 
seismic hazards often damage or destroy property and public infrastructure, and falling objects or structures 
pose a risk of injury or death.  


While Wildomar is at risk from many natural and human-caused hazards, the event with the greatest potential 
for loss of life or property and economic damage is an earthquake. This is true for most of Southern California, 
since damaging earthquakes affect widespread areas, trigger many secondary effects that can overwhelm the 
ability of local jurisdictions to respond. In Wildomar, earthquake-triggered effects include ground shaking, fault 
rupture, landslides, liquefaction, subsidence, and seiches. Earthquakes can also cause human-caused hazards 
such as urban fires, dam failures, and toxic chemical releases. 


Earthquake risk is very high in the western portion of Riverside County, including the City of Wildomar, due to 
the presence of two of California’s most active faults, the San Andreas and San Jacinto Faults. Most of the loss 
of life and injuries from earthquakes are due to damage and collapse of buildings and structures. Building codes 
for new construction have generally been made more stringent following damaging earthquakes. However, in 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-14 
 


Wildomar, structures built prior to the enactment of these improved building codes have generally not been 
upgraded to current standards and are vulnerable in earthquakes. Comprehensive hazard mitigation programs 
that include the identification and mapping of hazards, prudent planning and enforcement of building codes, and 
expedient retrofitting and rehabilitation of weak structures can significantly reduce the scope of an earthquake 
disaster. 


Western Riverside County contains parts of several known active and potentially active earthquake faults, 
including the San Andreas Fault, San Jacinto Fault, and Elsinore Fault. The San Andreas Fault, the largest fault 
in California, runs from the Salton Sea north along the east side of the Coachella Valley, continuing north along 
the Transverse and Coast Ranges until running offshore in Mendocino County. The San Jacinto Fault runs from 
the Imperial Valley northwest through western Riverside County until it ends at the Cajon Pass. The Elsinore 
Fault zone extends from western Imperial County to the Chino Hills and runs along Riverside County’s western 
border with Orange County. Historically, the San Andreas Fault is the most active among the fault network that 
cuts through rocks of the California coastal region. The San Jacinto Fault has had a higher level of moderate to 
large earthquakes during the past 50 to 100 years, although the rate of slip is not as high. The main trace of the 
Elsinore Fault zone has only seen one historical event greater than magnitude 5.2 – the earthquake of 1910, a 
magnitude 6 near Temescal Valley. Wildomar has experienced several noticeable ground movement incidents 
over the past years, but no local damage was sustained. Active faults located in close proximity to the city or 
that can cause damage to the city, include the following: 


 Elsinore Fault Zone: This fault zone, which includes the Wildomar and Wolf Valley Faults, passes 
through the city on the west side of I-15. The fault zone is capable of generating earthquakes ranging in 
magnitude between 6.5 and 7.5. 


 Wildomar Fault: As depicted on Figure 1-0, this fault strand of the Elsinore Fault zone runs 
northwest/southeast and is located in the city approximately 2,000 to 4,000 feet west of I-15.  The areas 
adjacent to the fault are within a “Special Studies Zone,” as designated under the Alquist-Priolo Special 
Study Zone Act of 1972.   


 San Andreas Fault Zone: This fault zone, located approximately 50 miles northeast of the city, is the 
dominant active fault in California. The maximum credible earthquake from this fault zone is a 
magnitude 8.3. 


 San Jacinto Fault Zone:  This fault zone is located approximately 30 miles northeast of the city and has 
a maximum credible earthquake magnitude of 7.5. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-15 
 


In addition to these active faults, two potentially active faults, the Agua Caliente Fault zone and the Murrieta 
Hot Springs Fault, are also located near the city. In the event of an earthquake, the location of the epicenter, as 
well as the time of day and season of the year, would have a profound effect on the number of deaths and 
casualties, as well as property damage. There are a number of small-scale earthquakes that happen weekly, but 
larger scale or catastrophe shaking is less likely. Property and human life in Wildomar are at risk for a significant 
earthquake causing catastrophic damage and strains on response and mitigation resources. The county 
experiences hundreds of minor quakes and tremblers each month from the myriad of faults in the area. Studies 
indicate that stress is building up in major faults like the San Andreas. A major quake could happen at any time.  


The San Andreas, San Jacinto, and Elsinore Faults are all capable of producing significant earthquakes, with a 
magnitude of 6.7 or greater. Table S-1 shows the chances of a major earthquake on these three faults within 
Riverside County by 2045, according to the Third California Earthquake Rupture Forecast. Other faults, both in 
and outside Riverside County, may also be capable of generating significant earthquakes with damaging effects 
in the county. 


TABLE S-1: CHANCES OF SIGNIFICANT EARTHQUAKES ON MAJOR  
RIVERSIDE COUNTY FAULTS 


Fault 


Mean Chance by 2045 


Magnitude 6.7 or 
greater 


Magnitude 7.0 or 
greater 


Magnitude 7.5 or 
greater 


Magnitude 8.0 or 
greater 


San Andreas 24.21% 21.29% 11.62% 3.15% 


San Jacinto 6.71% 6.43% 5.29% 2.75% 


Elsinore 3.66% 1.82% 0.95% Less than 0.01% 


Chances shown are the maximum mean probability for segments of these faults within Riverside County. 


Source: Third California Earthquake Rupture Forecast 


Figure 1-0 shows the fault lines in and around Wildomar. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-16 
 


 REGIONAL FAULT LINES 


 


 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-17 
 


Portions of the city are susceptible to liquefaction, which is a potentially destructive secondary effect of strong 
seismic shaking. Liquefaction occurs primarily in saturated, loose, fine- to medium-grained soils in areas where 
the groundwater table is within approximately 50 feet of the surface. Shaking causes the soils to lose strength 
and behave as liquid. Excess water pressure is vented upward through fissures and soil cracks and can result in 
a water-soil slurry flowing onto the ground surface. Liquefaction-related effects include loss of bearing strength, 
ground oscillations, lateral spreading, and flow failures or slumping. Site-specific geotechnical studies are the 
only practical and reliable way of determining the specific liquefaction potential of a site; however, a 
determination of general risk potential can be provided based on soil type and depth of groundwater. The City 
has delineated areas of known and suspected liquefaction hazard. In general, liquefaction susceptibility ranges 
from very low in the former lake footprint to moderate on much of the remainder of the valley floor and very 
high in the valley floor corridor formerly occupied by the axial riverine drainage. Areas identified as susceptible 
to liquefaction are identified in Figure 2-0. 


Areas are susceptible to liquefaction based on a combination of known factors in some areas and the absence of 
known factors in other areas. Additionally, these potential hazard zones are not an absolute indication that the 
hazard truly exists nor are they an indicator of the extent of damage that may or may not occur at a given site. 
Research confirms there is a potential for liquefaction to occur; however, this research also confirms minimal 
liquefaction-induced ground settlement is anticipated to occur for the areas that were studied. In most cases, 
proper design and construction of subgrade soils and building foundations provides a mechanism to mitigate the 
risk of seismic hazards to an acceptable level in conformance with the California Building Code. The 
representation of areas having a liquefaction potential is only intended as notification to seek further site-specific 
information and analysis of this potential hazard as part of future site development. It should not be solely relied 
upon, without site-specific information and analysis, for design or decision-making purposes. 


GEOLOGIC HAZARDS 


Geologic hazards, such as landslides and erosion, depend on the geologic composition of the area. Landslides 
and rock falls may occur in sloped areas, especially areas with steep slopes, and usually in areas of loose and 
fragmented soil. Landslides, rockfalls, and debris flows occur continuously on all slopes; some processes act 
very slowly, while others occur very suddenly, often with disastrous results. They often occur as a consequence 
of seismic activity or heavy rainfall, either of which may cause slopes to lose structural integrity and slide. There 
are predictable relationships between local geology and landslides, rockfalls, and debris flows. Slope stability 
is dependent on many factors and interrelationships, including rock type, pore water pressure, slope steepness, 
and natural or human-made undercutting. Figure 3-0 shows the landslide risk in and around Wildomar. 
Landslide risk is greatest south of Grand Avenue and throughout a majority of the land east of I-15, particularly 
along hillsides. Landslide susceptibility presents a significant risk to vulnerable communities as well.  The 
highest threat for these communities occurs in the northern region of the city, north of Lemon Street and to the 
west and east of I-15. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-18 
 


 SEISMIC HAZARD PROGRAM LIQUEFACTION ZONE 


 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-19 
 


 LANDSLIDE SUSCEPTIBILITY 


 
  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-20 
 


Expansive soils have a significant amount of clay particles that can give up water (shrink) or take on water 
(swell). The change in volume exerts stress on buildings and other loads placed on these soils. The occurrence 
of these soils is often associated with geologic units having marginal stability. Expansive soils can be widely 
dispersed and can be found in hillside areas as well as low-lying alluvial basins. Although expansive soils are 
now routinely alleviated through the City’s adopted Building Code, problems related to past, inadequate codes 
constantly appear. Expansive soils are not the only cause of structural distress in existing structures. Poor 
compaction and construction practices, settlement, and landslides can cause similar damage, but require different 
mediation efforts. Once expansion has been verified as the source of the problem, mitigation can be achieved 
through reinforcement of the existing foundation, or alternatively, through the excavation and removal of 
expansive soils in an affected area. 


Hydroconsolidation, or soil collapse, typically occurs in recently deposited, Holocene (less than 10,000 years 
old) soils that were deposited in an arid or semi-arid environment. Soils prone to collapse are commonly 
associated with human-made fill, wind-laid sands and silts, and alluvial fan and mudflow sediments deposited 
during flash floods. When saturated, collapsible soils undergo a rearrangement of their grains, and the water 
removes the cohesive (or cementing) material. Rapid, substantial settlement results. In Wildomar, collapsible 
soils occur predominantly at the base of the mountains, where Holocene-age alluvial fan and wash sediments 
have been deposited during rapid runoff events. Typically, differential settlement of structures occurs when 
lawns or plantings are heavily irrigated in close proximity to the structure’s foundation. Forensic indications of 
collapsible soils include tilting or sagging floors, cracking or separating structures, and windows and doors that 
cannot open due to shifts in the building. 


Erosion is the geological process in which earthen materials are worn away and transported by natural forces 
such as water or wind, causing the soil to deteriorate. Eroded topsoil can be transported into streams and other 
waterways. Water erosion is the removal of soil by water and transportation of the eroded materials away from 
the point of removal. The severity of water erosion is influenced by slope, soil type, soil water storage capacity, 
nature of the underlying rock, vegetation cover, and rainfall intensity and period. The impact of soil erosion on 
water quality becomes significant, particularly as soil surface runoff. Wind erosion is a serious environmental 
problem attracting global attention. Soil movement is initiated as a result of wind forces exerted against the 
surface of the ground. Dust particles in the air create major health problems. Atmospheric dust causes respiratory 
discomfort, may carry pathogens that cause eye infections and skin disorders, and reduces highway and air 
traffic visibility. Dust storms can cause additional problems. Buildings, fences, roads, crops, trees, and shrubs 
can all be damaged by abrasive blowing soil. 


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-21 
 


Slope instability can include deep-seated landslides, rockfalls, soil slumps, and debris flows. Without the 
presence of extensive flood-control devices, including large debris basins, areas with slope instability may be 
subject to debris flow inundation. Most often, debris flow inundation results in roadways and improvements 
blocked by boulders. Rarely do debris-flow-generating storms affect Wildomar. However, most areas with slope 
instability are within areas designated for open space or rural development. 


Subsidence refers to the sudden sinking or gradual downward settling and compaction of soil and other surface 
material with little or no horizontal motion. It may be caused by a variety of human and natural activities, 
including earthquakes and water saturation. Areas identified as susceptible to subsidence are identified in Figure 
3-0. Land subsidence and related issues have been well-documented in western Riverside County. Most of the 
early documented cases of subsidence affected only agricultural land or open space. As urban areas have 
expanded, so too have the impacts of subsidence on structures for human occupancy. Ground subsidence and 
associated fissuring in Wildomar have resulted from both falling and rising groundwater tables. In addition, 
many fissures have occurred along active faults that bound the San Jacinto Valley and Elsinore Trough. 
Subsidence typically occurs throughout a susceptible valley. In addition, differential displacement and fissures 
occur at or near the valley margin and along faults. In western Riverside County, the worst damage to structures 
as a result of regional subsidence may be expected at the valley margins. Alluvial valley regions are especially 
susceptible. Figure 4-0 shows the subsidence zones in and around Wildomar. As illustrated in Figure 4-0, areas 
near Palomar Street, Corydon Road, and Bundy Canyon Road are within a subsidence zone. Notably, vulnerable 
communities in the city reside in this subsidence zone and are at risk to ground subsidence impacts.







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-22 
 


 SUBSIDENCE ZONE 


 
  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-23 
 


POTENTIAL CHANGES TO GEOLOGIC AND SEISMIC RISK IN FUTURE YEARS 


Likelihood of Future Occurrence 


Seismic Risk 


Earthquakes are likely to continue to occur on an occasional basis and are likely to be small. They may cause 
no substantive damage and may not even be felt by most people. Major earthquakes are rare, but a possibility in 
the region. No major earthquakes have been recorded with epicenters within the city, although the city has felt 
ground shaking from earthquakes with epicenters located elsewhere. Large earthquakes from faults such as the 
San Andreas Fault may cause significant damage to homes and businesses in the city. Based on historical data 
and the location of Wildomar relative to active and potentially active faults, the city will likely experience a 
significantly damaging earthquake in the next two decades. 


If serious shaking does occur, newer construction is in general more earthquake resistant than older construction 
because of improved building codes. Manufactured housing is very susceptible to damage because the 
foundation systems are rarely braced for earthquake motions.  


Geologic Risk 


Minor landslides have occurred in the past, probably over the last several hundred years, as evidenced by both 
past deposits exposed in erosion gullies and recent landslide events. Western Riverside County has a history of 
landslides during seasons of high precipitation. With significant rainfall, additional failures are likely in 
landslide hazard areas and minor landslides will likely continue to impact the area when heavy precipitation 
occurs, as they have in the past. In addition, areas affected by recent fires show an increased landslide risk. 


Climate Change and Geologic and Seismic Hazards 


While climate change is unlikely to increase earthquake frequency or strength, the threats from seismic and 
geologic hazards are expected to continue. Climate change may result in precipitation extremes (i.e., wetter 
rainfall periods and drier dry periods). While total average annual rainfall may not change significantly, rainfall 
may be concentrated in more intense precipitation events. Heavy rainfall could cause an increase in the number 
of landslides or make landslides larger than normal. Increased wildfire frequency can destabilize hillsides due 
to loss of vegetation and change soil composition, which can contribute to greater runoff and erosion. The 
combination of a generally drier climate in the future, which will increase the chance of drought and wildfires, 
and the occasional extreme downpour, is likely to cause more mudslides and landslides. Impacts from these 
conditions would compound landslide potential for the most susceptible locations. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-24 
 


GOAL S-2: To avoid the loss of life and injury and minimize property damage from 
seismic and related geological hazards. 


Fault Rupture 


POLICY S-5 Minimize fault rupture hazards through enforcement of Alquist-Priolo Earthquake 
Fault Zoning Act provisions and the following policies: 


(1) Require geologic studies or analyses for critical structures, and lifeline, high-
occupancy, schools, and high-risk structures, within 0.5 miles of all Quaternary to 
historic faults shown on the Earthquake Fault Studies Zones map. 


(2) Require geologic trenching studies within all designated Earthquake Fault Studies 
Zones, unless adequate evidence, as determined and accepted by the City of Wildomar 
Engineering Geologist, is presented. The City of Wildomar may require geologic 
trenching of non-zoned faults for especially critical or vulnerable structures or 
lifelines. 


(3) Require that infrastructure systems, such as energy, communications, and 
transportation infrastructure, be designed to resist, without failure, their crossing of a 
fault, should fault rupture occur. 


(4) Support efforts by the California Department of Conservation, California Geological 
Survey, to develop geologic and engineering solutions in areas of ground deformation 
due to faulting and seismic activity, in those areas where a fault cannot be reliably 
located. 


(5) Encourage and support efforts by the geologic research community to better define the 
locations and risks of faults in and around the City of Wildomar. Such efforts could 
include data sharing and database development with regional entities, other local 
governments, private organizations, utility agencies or companies, and local 
universities. 


POLICY S-6  Require automatic natural gas shutoff earthquake sensors in high-occupancy 
industrial and commercial facilities, as well as new homes, and encourage them for 
all existing residences. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-25 
 


Seismically-Induced Liquefaction, Landslides, and Rockfalls 


POLICY S-7 Require geological and geotechnical investigations in areas with potential for 
earthquake-induced liquefaction, landslides, or settlement, for any building proposed 
for human occupancy and any structure whose damage would cause harm, except for 
accessory buildings. 


POLICY S-8 Require that a state-licensed civil engineer investigate the potential for liquefaction 
in areas designated as underlain by “Susceptible Sediments” and/or “Shallow 
Groundwater” for all general construction projects and proposed critical facilities, 
except for accessory buildings. 


POLICY S-9 Require that engineered slopes be designed to resist seismically-induced failure as 
appropriate. For lower-risk projects, this may include requiring slope design to be 
based on pseudo-static stability analyses using soil engineering parameters that are 
established on a site-specific basis. For higher-risk projects, appropriate standards 
may include requiring the stability analyses to factor in the intensity of expected 
ground-shaking.  


POLICY S-10  Within landslide susceptibility areas or liquefaction zones shown in Figure 2-0 and 
Figure 3-0, require that cut-and-fill transition lots be over-excavated to mitigate the 
potential of seismically-induced differential settlement.  


Landslides, Rockfalls, and Debris Flows 


POLICY S-11 Require the following in landslide susceptibility classes III and above, or when 
deemed necessary by the California Environmental Quality Act, prior to the issuance 
of development permits or approval of project designs:  


(1) Preliminary geotechnical and geologic investigations, including certification 
regarding the stability of the site against adverse effects of earthquake and subsidence. 


(2) Evaluations of site stability, including any possible impact on adjacent properties. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-26 
 


(3) Consultant reports, investigations, and design recommendations required for grading 
permits, building permits, and subdivision applications, prepared by state-licensed 
professionals. 


POLICY S-12 Require new development in areas prone to geologic hazards (e.g., landslides, steep 
topography, slope instability) to be designed to adequately reduce these hazards and 
loss of native vegetation. Grading plans, environmental assessments, engineering and 
geologic technical reports, irrigation and landscaping plans, including ecological 
restoration and revegetation plans, shall be required as appropriate, to ensure the 
adequate demonstration of a project’s ability to mitigate these potential impacts. Any 
development in hillside areas shall prepare drainage plans to direct runoff and 
drainage away from potentially unstable slopes.     


POLICY S-13 During permit review, identify and require mitigation of on-site slope instability, 
debris flow, and erosion hazards on lots undergoing substantial improvements. 
“Substantial improvements” means any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or 
other improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of 
the market value of the structure before the start of construction of the improvement. 


POLICY S-14 Conduct slope stabilization practices on existing public property and support slope 
stabilization activities on private property located on unstable hillside areas, 
especially slopes with recurring failures where City property or public right-of-way 
is threatened from slope instability, or where considered appropriate and urgent by 
the City of Wildomar Engineer, Fire Department, or Sheriff Department.  


POLICY S-15  Encourage building retrofits that improve resiliency to geologic and seismic hazards.  


Subsidence and Expansive and Collapsible Soils 


POLICY S-16 Require geotechnical studies within documented subsidence zones, as shown in Figure 
4-0, as well as zones that may be susceptible to subsidence, prior to the issuance of 
development permits. Within the documented subsidence zones of the Elsinore 
Valley, the studies must address the potential for reactivation of these zones, consider 
the potential impact on the project, and provide adequate and acceptable mitigation 
measures. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-27 
 


POLICY S-17 Coordinate with the County of Riverside and the Elsinore Valley Municipal Water 
District to develop a liaison program with all Riverside County water districts to 
prevent water extraction-induced subsidence. 


POLICY S-18 Encourage and support efforts for long-term, permanent monitoring of topographic 
subsidence in the Elsinore Valley Groundwater Basin, irrespective of past subsidence. 


FLOOD AND INUNDATION HAZARDS 


Flooding is considered the rising and overflowing of a body of water onto normally dry land. History highlights 
floods as one of the most frequent natural hazards impacting communities in western Riverside County. Floods 
are among the costliest natural disasters in terms of human hardship and economic loss nationwide, causing 
substantial damage to structures, landscapes, and utilities, as well as life-safety issues. Flooding can be 
extremely dangerous, and even six inches of moving water can knock a person over given a strong current. 
Floodwaters can transport large objects downstream, which can damage or remove stationary structures, such 
as dam spillways. Ground saturation can result in instability, collapse, or other damage. Objects can also be 
buried or destroyed through sediment deposition. Floodwaters can also break utility lines and interrupt services. 
Standing water can cause damage to roads, foundations, and electrical circuits. 


Floods are usually caused by large amounts of precipitation, either from a period of very intense precipitation 
or a long period of steady precipitation. Historically, Wildomar has been at risk of flooding primarily during the 
winter and spring months when stream systems swell with heavy rainfall. This type of flood results from 
prolonged, heavy rainfall and is characterized by high peak flows of moderate duration and by a large volume 
of runoff. Flooding is more severe when prior rainfall has resulted in saturated ground conditions. Flooding 
susceptibility in Wildomar is primarily associated with the Murrieta Creek as well as smaller-scale and flash 
flood events.  


Flash flooding is a common problem for western Riverside County and typically associated with short-duration, 
high-intensity precipitation events often during summer thunderstorms. Such events can occur even during a 
drought. Localized flooding also occurs in Wildomar at various times throughout the year, especially in the 
western side of the city and along Murrieta Creek. These areas are primarily a result of little or no drainage 
infrastructure, undersized pipes where runoff exceeds pipe capacity even for minor storms, obstructions, or 
damaged drainpipes. The majority of the damaged lines are on the west side of the city, where there are limited 
storm drainpipes and some of the oldest infrastructure in the system.  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-28 
 


Historically, precipitation in and around Wildomar has been low to moderate. Precipitation occurs mainly in the 
fall, winter, and spring months, from November through April. Although Wildomar occasionally experiences 
periods of significant drought, the city can also experience periods of substantial rainfall. When Wildomar does 
experience heavy rain, or rain over a period of days or weeks, many areas of the city are subject to flooding. 
Runoff from rain drains either naturally into creeks or flood-control facilities.   


Both earthquake faults and developments reduce the total ground absorption area. Earthquake faults include 
bedrock features that create barriers to subsurface percolation, thus increasing the velocity and erosive capacity 
of stormwater runoff on hillsides. Development also creates impermeable surfaces (structures, pavement, 
streets). Stormwater runoff is augmented by water flows from development contributing to street flooding. 
Moreover, developed areas generate irrigation water runoff from landscaping, which may channel stormwater 
and other runoff flows into nearby underdeveloped areas and street gutters. Areas at an elevated risk of flooding 
are generally divided into 100- and 500-year flood zones. A 100-year flood zone has a 1-percent chance of 
experiencing a major flood in any given year, a 200-year flood zone has a 0.5-percent chance of flooding in any 
given year, a 500-year flood zone has a 0.2-percent chance of flooding in any given year. Figure 5-0 shows the 
100- and 500-year flood zones in and around Wildomar, as well as the flood hazard zones overlayed by 
vulnerable communities. The highest threat for these communities occurs in the northwestern region of the city, 
along Corydon Road and Mission Trail. A small portion of this community along Corydon Road is within the 
500-year flood zone and to the north along Mission Trail, a small portion is within both the 100- and 500-year 
flood zone.  


Agencies responsible for flood control in Wildomar include FEMA, the Federal Insurance Administration (FIA), 
and the Department of Water Resources (DWR). 


 FEMA: FEMA manages the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), providing insurance to the 
public in communities that participate in the program. FEMA is the main federal government agency 
contact during natural disasters and publishes the Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM), which identify 
the extent of flood potential in flood-prone communities based on a 100-year flood (or base flood) event.  


 FIA: The FIA is the primary agency that delineates potential flood hazard areas and floodways through 
the FIRMs and the Flood Boundary and Floodway Map. Flood insurance is required of all homeowners 
who have federally subsidized loans.  


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-29 
 


 DWR: DWR is responsible for managing and protecting California’s water. DWR works with other 
agencies to benefit the state’s people, and to protect, restore, and enhance the natural and human 
environments. DWR also works to prevent and respond to floods, droughts, and catastrophic events that 
would threaten public safety, water resources and management systems, the environment, and property. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-30 
 


 FLOOD HAZARD ZONES 


 


 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-31 
 


Dam failure also poses a risk to the City of Wildomar. Dam break floods are usually associated with intense 
rainfall or prolonged flood conditions. A dam failure is an uncontrolled release of water from a reservoir through 
a dam as a result of structural failures or deficiencies in the dam. Dam failures can range from fairly minor to 
catastrophic and can potentially harm human life and property downstream from the failure. In addition, 
ecosystems and habitats are destroyed as a result of waters flooding them. Although dam failures are very rare, 
these events are not unprecedented. Additionally, the older that dams get, the more potential exists for 
catastrophic dam failures. There are four major causes of dam failures, which include the following: 


 Overtopping: These failures occur as a result of poor spillway design, leading to a reservoir filling too 
high with water, especially in times of heavy rainfall. Other causes of this type of failure include settling 
of the crest of the dam or spillway blockage. 


 Foundation defects: These failures occur as a result of settling in the foundation of the dam, instability 
of slopes surrounding the dam, uplift pressures, and seepage around the foundation. All of these failures 
result in structural instability and potential dam failure. 


 Piping and seepage failures: These failures occur as a result of internal erosion caused by seepage and 
erosion along hydraulic structures such as the spillways. As well, erosion as a result of animal burrows 
and cracks in the dam structure contribute to these failures. 


 Conduit and valve failure: These failures occur as a result of problems with valves and conduits. 


Other dam failures arise as a result of other miscellaneous causes. Many dam failures are also the secondary 
result of other natural disasters, such as earthquakes, landslides, extreme storms, or heavy snow-melt. Other 
causes include equipment malfunction, structural damage, and sabotage. 


In Wildomar, a major earthquake could cause a dam failure. Dams are constructed with safety features known 
as “spillways” that allow water to overtop the dam if the reservoir fills too quickly. Spillway overflow events, 
often referred to as “design failures,” result in increased discharges downstream and increased flooding 
potential. In a dam failure scenario, the greatest threat to life and property typically occurs in those areas 
immediately below the dam since flood depths and discharges generally decrease as the flood wave moves 
downstream. The primary danger associated with dam failure is the high-velocity flooding downstream of the 
dam and limited warning times for evacuation. The Diamond Valley Dam presents a downstream hazard to the 
City of Wildomar. Figure 6-0 identifies the areas at risk from dam failure. Dam failure risk extends from Mission 
Trail, in the northern portion of the city, to Grand Avenue, in the southern portion of the city. A majority of the 
area at risk is adjacent to Murrieta Creek. Dam failure presents a significant risk to vulnerable communities as 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-32 
 


well.  The highest threat for these communities occurs in the northwestern region of the city, along Corydon 
Road and Mission Trail. To the north of Lemon Street (Sedco Hills), dam failure presents a risk for populations 
living to the west of I-15.  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-33 
 


 DAM INUNDATION 


 
  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-34 
 


POTENTIAL CHANGES TO FLOOD RISK IN FUTURE YEARS 


Likelihood of Future Occurrence 


Wildomar is traversed by Murrieta Creek and is at risk to both creek flooding and localized stormwater flooding. 
Historically, Riverside County and the City of Wildomar have been subject to previous flooding events primarily 
during the winter and spring months when river systems swell with heavy rainfall runoff. Normally, stormwater 
is kept within defined limits by a variety of storm drainage and flood-control measures. Occasionally, extended 
heavy rains result in floodwaters that exceed normal high-water boundaries and cause damage. Flooding has 
occurred both within the 100- and 500-year floodplains and in other localized areas. As land uses and climate 
conditions shift and as improvements are made to flood-control channels, the size of these flood zones is likely 
to change.  


In the City of Wildomar, much of the flood damage occurs in the floodplains of Murrieta Creek.  Other problems 
connected with flooding and stormwater runoff include erosion, sedimentation, degradation of water quality, 
losses of environmental resources, and certain health hazards.  


Climate Change and Flooding  


Floods are among the most damaging natural hazards in Riverside County, and climate change is expected to 
make flood events worse. Although climate change may not change average precipitation levels significantly, 
scientists expect that it will cause more years with extreme precipitation events. This means that more years are 
likely to see particularly intense storm systems that drop enough precipitation over a short enough period to 
cause flooding. Although Southern California is likely to experience a decrease in overall precipitation levels 
from climate change, the region is also expected to see an increase in the number of extreme precipitation events. 
A meteorological phenomenon known as the “atmospheric river,” a narrow stream of extremely moist air, is 
frequently responsible for the more intense storms that strike California. Atmospheric rivers generally deliver 
high levels of precipitation, up to 50 percent of the state’s total precipitation in any given year. 


Because of this, floods are expected to occur more often in Wildomar and climate change may expand the parts 
of the city that are considered flood-prone. Although there are no specific flooding projections for the city, flood 
events are expected to become more frequent, and it is possible that the areas subject to flooding will expand. 


There are some indirect effects of climate change that may also increase flooding in the city. Climate change is 
expected to increase the frequency and severity of droughts that cause soil to dry out and become hard. When 
precipitation does return, more water runs off the surface than is absorbed into the ground, which can lead to 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-35 
 


floods. Wildfires, which are also expected to become more frequent due to climate change, cause a similar effect 
by baking the surface of the ground into a harder and less-penetrable layer. Trees and other vegetation help slow 
water down, which lets the water absorb into the soil and prevents it from turning into runoff. Because of this, 
the loss of trees and other plants from wildfires, or other climate-related exposures can also increase flooding 
risk. 


While the risk and associated short- and long-term impacts of climate change are uncertain, experts in this field 
tend to agree that among the most significant impacts include those resulting from increased heat and 
precipitation events that cause increased frequency and magnitude of flooding. Increases in damaging flood 
events will cause greater property damage, public health and safety concerns, displacement, and loss of life. 
Displacement of residents can include both temporary and long-term displacement, increase in insurance rates, 
or restriction of insurance coverage in vulnerable areas. 


GOAL S-3: To avoid the risk of loss of life and injury, and  min imize  the  r i sk  o f  
damage to property, and economic and social dislocations resulting from flooding and 
inundation hazards. 


Flood and Inundation Hazard Abatement 


POLICY S-19 For new construction and proposals for substantial improvements to residential and 
nonresidential development within 100-year floodplains as mapped by the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) or as determined by site-specific 
hydrologic studies for areas not mapped by FEMA, Wildomar shall apply a minimum 
level of acceptable risk and disapprove projects that cannot mitigate the hazard to 
the satisfaction of the Building Official or other responsible agency. 


POLICY S-20 All residential, commercial, and industrial structures shall be flood-proofed from the 
mapped 100-year storm flow, or to an appropriate level determined by site-specific 
hydrologic studies for areas mapped by the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 
This may require that the finished floor elevation be constructed at such a height as 
to meet this requirement. Nonresidential (commercial or industrial) structures may 
be allowed with a “flood-proofed” finished floor below the Base Flood Elevation (i.e., 
100-year flood surface) to the extent permitted by state, federal, and local regulations. 
New critical facilities shall be constructed above-grade to the satisfaction of the 
Building Official, based on federal, state, or other reliable hydrologic studies. To the 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-36 
 


extent that residential, commercial, or industrial structures cannot meet these 
standards, they shall not be approved. 


POLICY S-21 Prohibit alteration of floodways and channelization unless alternative methods of 
flood control are not technically feasible or alternative methods are used to the 
maximum extent practicable. The intent is to balance floodway protection with 
prudent land use solutions, recreational needs, and habitat requirements, and as 
applicable to provide incentives for natural watercourse preservation.  


(1) Prohibit the construction, location, or substantial improvement of structures in areas 
designated as floodways, except upon approval of a plan that provides that the 
proposed development will not result in any significant increase in flood levels during 
the occurrence of a 100-year flood discharge. 


(2) Prohibit the filling or grading of land for nonagricultural purposes and for non-
authorized flood-control purposes in areas designated as floodways, except upon 
approval of a plan that provides that the proposed development will not result in any 
significant increase in flood levels during the occurrence of a 100-year flood 
discharge. 


POLICY S-22  Prohibit substantial modification to watercourses, unless the modification does not 
adversely affect adjacent wetlands or riparian habitat or become detrimental to 
adjacent property as a result of increased erosion, sedimentation, or water velocity.  
Modifications to watercourses shall be done in the least environmentally damaging 
manner practicable and shall restore natural conditions to the greatest extent 
possible, to maintain adequate wildlife corridors and linkages and maximize 
groundwater recharge.  


POLICY S-23 Development within the floodway fringe shall only be allowed if the proposed 
structures can be adequately flood-proofed and will not contribute to property 
damage or risks to public safety. Such developments shall be required to be capable 
of withstanding flooding and minimize the use of fill. Compatible uses shall not, 
however, obstruct flows or adversely affect upstream or downstream properties with 
increased velocities, erosion backwater effects, or concentrations of flows.  


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-37 
 


POLICY S-24 Require all projects in Wildomar to address and mitigate adverse impacts to the 
carrying capacity of local and regional storm drain systems. 


POLICY S-25 Collaborate with neighboring jurisdictions to mitigate the impacts of new 
development in the City of Wildomar that could increase runoff onto parcels 
downstream in a neighboring jurisdiction and encourage neighboring jurisdictions to 
require development occurring adjacent to the city to consider the impact of flooding 
and flood-control measures on properties within Wildomar. 


POLICY S-26 Ensure that new development and infrastructure projects do not create or exacerbate 
flood risks elsewhere in Wildomar or in neighboring communities.  


POLICY S-27 Update stormwater infrastructure design requirements as needed to maintain 
consistency with federal, state, and local regulatory requirements, prioritizing 
vulnerable communities.  


POLICY S-28 Ensure that new development projects and retrofits to existing large-scale projects 
incorporate design strategies and features to reduce the area of impervious surfaces 
and flood risks with natural drainage, as well as groundwater replenishment. 


POLICY S-29 Identify areas of poor drainage and install new or upgrade existing drainage systems 
to accommodate drainage needs. Use natural infrastructure to the extent possible. 


High-Risk Facilities 


POLICY S-30 Projects, including public facilities and other facilities essential for emergencies and 
large public assembly, within the area mapped as the City Regulatory Floodplain by 
the Federal Emergency Management Agency, shall not be approved unless the project 
is adequately protected from flood hazards, incorporates all required flood protection 
specific to that area in accordance with City ordinances and guidelines, and will not 
result in any increase in flood levels during the occurrence of a flood event. Such 
facilities shall have at least two routes for emergency egress and ingress, and the 
project design shall minimize the potential for debris or flooding to block emergency 
routes, either through the construction of dikes, bridges, or large-diameter storm 
drains under roads used for primary access.  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-38 
 


POLICY S-31 Existing essential, dependent-care, and high-risk facilities not in conformance with 
provisions of the City of Wildomar zoning shall be required to upgrade or modify 
building use to a level of safety consistent with the inundation risk. 


POLICY S-32 Development using, storing, or otherwise involved with substantial quantities of on-
site hazardous materials shall not be permitted within a 100-year floodplain or dam 
inundation zone, unless all standards for evaluation, anchoring, and flood-proofing 
have been satisfied. Hazardous materials shall be stored in watertight containers, not 
capable of floating, to the extent required by state and federal laws and regulations. 
Facilities storing substantial quantities of hazardous materials within inundation 
zones shall be adequately flood-proofed and hazardous materials containers shall be 
anchored and secured to prevent flotation and contamination.  


POLICY S-33 Dependent-care facilities shall be required to have all flood-vulnerable electrical 
circuitry flood-proofed.  


POLICY S-34 High-risk facilities, such as essential public and quasi-public facilities and hazardous 
materials sites, shall be required to maintain and rehearse inundation response plans.  


POLICY S-35 Use power of public land acquisition and other land use measures to create open space 
zoning of inundation zones in non-developed areas subject to flooding, as mapped by 
the Federal Emergency Management Agency. In areas that are destined for 
redevelopment and subject to flooding, low-density land uses should be encouraged 
and developers shall be required to meet Wildomar’s minimum level of acceptable 
risk and incorporate mitigation measures, where feasible.  


Risk Assessment 


POLICY S-36 Continue to assess the flood risk within Wildomar and upgrade facilities and 
infrastructure at risk, prioritizing vulnerable communities.  


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-39 
 


POLICY S-37 Designs and upgrades of street storm drains shall be based on the depth of inundation, 
relative risk to public health and safety, the potential for hindrance of emergency 
access and regress from excessive flood depth, and the threat of contamination of the 
storm drain system with sewage effluent. In general, the 10-year flood flows shall be 
contained within the top of curbs and the 100-year flood flows within the street right-
of-way. 


POLICY S-38 During updates to the Safety Element, the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, or at other 
times as appropriate, review the 500-year, 100-year, and 10-year flood hazard in the 
city by state, federal, county, and other standards, and use such sources to improve 
existing protection, review protection standards proposed for new development and 
redevelopment, update emergency response plans, and evaluate how low-income 
areas may be disproportionately affected.  


POLICY S-39 Promote flood-control measures that maintain natural conditions within Wildomar’s 
regulatory floodplain of rivers and streams.  


POLICY S-40 Encourage the use of Specific Plans to allow increased densities in certain areas of a 
proposed development or apply Transfer of Development Credits to encourage the 
placement of appropriate land uses in natural hazard areas, including open space, 
passive recreational uses, or other development capable of better adapting to these 
hazards. 


POLICY S-41 Take an active role in acquiring property in high-risk flood zones and designating the 
land as open space for public use or wildlife habitat.  


POLICY S-42 Coordinate with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, 
the Resource Conservation District, the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the 
California Department of Water Resources, and the Riverside County Flood Control 
and Water Conservation District, in defining existing and potential flood problem 
areas. 


POLICY S-43 Continue to assess the dam inundation risk within Wildomar and upgrade facilities 
and infrastructure at risk. 


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-40 
 


FIRE HAZARDS 


Fire hazards include both wildfires and urban fires. California is recognized as one of the most fire-prone and 
consequently fire-adapted landscapes in the world. The combination of complex terrain, Mediterranean climate, 
and productive natural plant communities, along with ample natural ignition sources, has created conditions for 
extensive wildfires. Wildfire is an ongoing concern for the City of Wildomar. Generally, the fire season extends 
from early spring through late fall of each year during the hotter, dryer months. Fire conditions arise from a 
combination of high temperatures, low-moisture content in the air and plant matter, an accumulation of 
vegetation, and high winds. Three types of fires are of concern to Wildomar: (1) wildfires, (2) wildland-urban 
interface fires, and (3) structural fires.  


WILDFIRES 


Wildfires occur on mountains, hillsides, and grasslands. Vegetation, wind, temperature, humidity, and slope are 
all factors that affect how these fires spread. In Wildomar, native vegetation, such as chaparral, sage, and 
grassland provide fuel that allows fire to spread easily across large tracts of land. These plant species are capable 
of regeneration after a fire, making periodic wildfires a natural part of the ecology of these areas. Portions of the 
city are undeveloped and consist of rugged topography with highly flammable vegetation. In particular, the 
hillside terrain in the southwestern region near the Elsinore Mountains, as well as the hillside terrain east of I-
15, have a substantial fire risk. Undeveloped hillside areas in and adjacent to the city present a serious hazard 
because of the potential for large-scale wildland fires. Fire potential for Riverside County is typically greatest 
in the months of August, September, and October, when dry vegetation coexists with hot, dry Santa Ana winds. 
However, in Wildomar, fires with conflagration potential can occur at any time of the year. Seasonal drought 
conditions exacerbate fire hazards. 


WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE FIRES 


The wildland-urban interface is an area where buildings and infrastructure (e.g., cell towers, schools, water 
supply facilities) mix with areas of flammable wildland vegetation. This interface is sometimes divided into the 
defense zone (areas in close proximity to communities, usually about a quarter-mile-thick) and threat zones (an 
approximately one-and-a-quarter-mile buffer around the defense zone). Hundreds of homes now border major 
forests and brush areas. With thousands of people living near and visiting wildland areas, the probability of 
human-caused fires is growing. Wildfires and urban interface fires have occurred close to or encroached into 
the city, especially in large areas of grassland, scrub, and chapparal. The most recent fire was the 2019 Tenaja 
Fire, located south of Wildomar in the rural community of La Cresta. The fire burned approximately 1,926 acres 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-41 
 


and damaged three structures but did not encroach into the city. Other notable fires that occurred within 
Wildomar are listed in Table S-2. 


In the wildland-urban interface, efforts to prevent ignitions and limit wildfire losses hinge on hardening 
structures and creating defensible space through a multi-faceted approach, which includes engineering, 
enforcement, education, emergency response, and economic incentive. Different strategies in the defense and 
threat zones of the wildland-urban interface help to limit the spread of fire and reduce the risk to people and 
property. 


Wildfire threat within  California is described by Wildfire Hazard Severity Zones, which designate hazardous 
areas within State Responsibility Areas (SRAs) as moderate, high, or very high. However, incorporated areas 
such as Wildomar are considered Local Responsibility Areas (LRAs) and only designate very high fire hazard 
severity zones. Significant portions of the city are located within a very high fire hazard severity zone. Figure 
7-0 shows the wildfire risk zones in and around Wildomar and Figure 8-0 identifies the wildland-urban interface.  
The highest threat occurs along the eastern side of I-15, as well as the western side of Grand Avenue, on land 
that is on and adjacent to hillsides with large areas of dry grass and chapparal. Areas adjacent to the city that are 
susceptible to wildfires are also of concern as these conditions could exacerbate vulnerabilities within the city. 
As illustrated in Figure 7-0, the highest threat for vulnerable communities occurs in the northern region of the 
city, north of Lemon Street and east of I-15. These communities are entirely within a very high fire hazard 
severity zone.  


STRUCTURAL FIRES 


Urban fires occur in built-up environments, destroying buildings and other human-made structures. These 
disasters are often due to faulty wiring or mechanical equipment, combustible construction materials, or the 
absence of fire alarms and fire sprinkler systems. Structural fires are largely from human accidents, although 
deliberate fires (arson) may be a cause of some events. Older buildings that lack modern fire safety features may 
face greater risk of damage from fires. To minimize fire damage and loss, the City’s Fire and Building Codes, 
based on the California Fire and Building Codes, sets standards for building and construction. It requires the 
provision of adequate water supply for firefighting, fire-retardant construction, and minimum street widths, 
among other things. Fire prevention awareness programs and fire drills are conducted to train residents to 
respond quickly and correctly to reduce injury and losses during fires.







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-42 
 


 FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONES 


 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-43 
 


 WILDLAND/URBAN INTERFACE 


 
  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-44 
 


PAST OCCURRENCES  


Table S-2 contains a list of fires that have occurred in the city dating back to 1950. Figure 9-0 shows the areas 
burned by historical wildfires in and around Wildomar. 


TABLE S-2: FIRES IN WILDOMAR, 1950-2019  


Fire Name 
Date Acres 


Burned  
Vegetation  


Type Cause 
Structures 


Start End Destroyed Damaged 


Morrell Fire 8/4/1950 N/A 5,118 Grass/Brush Undetermined N/A N/A 


Gilbert Fire 7/26/1955 N/A 486 Grass/Brush Undetermined N/A N/A 


Sandia Fire 9/11/1956 N/A 2,053 Grass/Brush Undetermined N/A N/A 


Pederson Fire 6/16/1957 N/A 1,979 Brush Undetermined N/A N/A 


Howell Fire 5/15/1959 N/A 369 Grass/Brush Undetermined N/A N/A 


Lemon Fire 8/22/1978 N/A 2,943 Grass/Brush Undetermined N/A N/A 


Wildomar Fire 6/14/1979 6/15/1979 101 Grass/Brush Undetermined N/A N/A 


Turner Fire 11/15/1980 N/A 31,447 Grass/Brush Undetermined N/A N/A 


Cottonwood Fire 6/14/1981 N/A 1,279 Grass/Brush Undetermined N/A N/A 


1981 Fire 6/14/1981 N/A 9,182 Grass/Brush Arson N/A N/A 


Rail Fire 9/2/1982 N/A 476 Grass/Brush Undetermined N/A N/A 


1987 State Fire 10/2/1987 N/A 3,276 Grass/Brush Equipment Use N/A N/A 


1999 State Fire 3/13/1999 N/A 127 Grass/Brush Undetermined N/A N/A 


Gafford Fire 5/1/2004 5/2/04 406 Brush Undetermined 2 0 


Lakeview Fire 7/12/2004 7/12/04 361 Grass/Brush Undetermined 0 0 


Wright Fire 10/5/2007 10/5/07 31 Grass/Brush Undetermined 0 0 


Rock Fire 8/18/2010 8/19/10 39 Brush Human 0 0 


Sources: California Fire Perimeters 1878 – 2019: Fire and Resource Assessment Program; Hartford Courant, 2004 


 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-45 
 


 HISTORICAL WILDFIRE PERIMETERS  


 
  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-46 
 


FIRE PROTECTION 


Fire protection in Wildomar is provided by the Riverside County Fire Department and the California Department 
of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE). The City has a partnership with the Riverside County Fire 
Department and CAL FIRE to provide fire suppression, emergency medical, technical rescue, fire prevention, 
and related services to the city. The Riverside County Fire Department and CAL FIRE participate in a 
Cooperative Fire Response Agreement, where fire agencies have agreed to automatically support each other on 
incidents using the closest available resource.  


The Riverside County Fire Department is one of the largest regional fire service organizations in California. It 
is staffed with a combination of County of Riverside and CAL FIRE personnel and responds to both urban and 
wildland emergencies. The Riverside County Fire Department serves a vast geographic area and diverse 
communities. Wildomar Fire Station 61 is located at 32637 Gruwell Street in the City of Wildomar. 


POTENTIAL CHANGES TO FIRE RISK IN FUTURE YEARS 


Likelihood of Future Occurrence 


Wildomar is at a high risk from wildfire, especially in the areas of grassland and chapparal along hillsides. High 
fuel loads in the city, along with geographical and topographical features, create the potential for both natural 
and human-caused fires that can result in loss of life and property. These factors, combined with natural weather 
conditions common to the area, including periods of drought, high temperatures, low relative humidity, and 
periodic winds, can result in frequent and sometimes catastrophic fires. During the historic fire season, August 
to October, the dry vegetation combined with continued growth in the wildland-urban interface areas, resulted 
in wildfire ignitions. Any fire, once ignited, has the potential to quickly become a large, out-of-control fire. As 
development continues throughout the city, especially in these interface areas, the risk and vulnerability to 
wildfires will likely increase. 


Fire hazard is among the highest-priority hazards in the city and is the hazard with the greatest potential for 
catastrophic loss. Wildfires can cause short-term and long-term disruption to the City, such as devastating effects 
on watersheds through loss of vegetation and soil erosion, which may impact the city by changing runoff 
patterns, increasing sedimentation, reducing natural and reservoir water storage capacity, and degrading water 
quality. Fires may also result in casualties and can destroy buildings and infrastructure. 


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-47 
 


Although the physical damages and casualties arising from wildland-urban interface fires may be severe, it is 
important to recognize that they also cause significant economic impacts by resulting in a loss of function of 
buildings and infrastructure. In some cases, the economic impact of this loss of services may be comparable to 
the economic impact of physical damages or, in some cases, even greater. Economic impacts of loss of 
transportation and utility services may include traffic delays/detours from road and bridge closures and loss of 
electric power, potable water, and wastewater services. Fires can also cause major damage to power plants and 
power lines needed to distribute electricity to operate facilities. The effects can be far-reaching in terms of the 
number of acres involved, the toll on human life, and the economic consequences. Fire will continue to be a 
high-risk hazard for the City of Wildomar. 


Climate Change and Wildfire 


Changing climate conditions are expected to increase the wildfire risk in and around Wildomar. Warmer 
temperatures brought on by climate change can exacerbate drought conditions. Droughts can kill or dry out 
plants, creating more fuel for wildfires. Warmer temperatures are also expected to increase the number of pest 
outbreaks, such as the shot hole borer, creating more dead trees and increasing the fuel load. Warmer 
temperatures are also expected to occur later in the year, extending the wildfire season, which is likely to begin 
earlier in the year and extend later than it has historically. Wildfire occurring later or earlier in the year are more 
likely to occur during Santa Ana wind events, which can cause wildfires to move more quickly and increase the 
likelihood to burning in the wildland-urban interface areas. According to the California Fourth Climate Change 
Assessment, overall burned area may increase by as much as 60 percent during Santa Ana wind events (typically 
October to March), and 75 percent during periods without Santa Ana winds (typically April to September).  


GOAL S-4: To avoid the risk of loss of life and injury and minimize risk of property 
damage, community disruption, and economic loss resulting from urban and wildland 
fires. 


Building Code and Performance Standards  


POLICY S-44 All proposed development and construction within Fire Hazard Severity Zones shall 
be reviewed by the Riverside County Fire Department and Wildomar Building and 
Safety Department for consistency with the following requirements before the 
issuance of any building permits:  


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-48 
 


(1) All proposed development and construction shall meet minimum state, county, and 
local standards for fire safety, as defined in the City of Wildomar Building or Fire 
Codes, or by City zoning, or as dictated by the Building Official or the Transportation 
Land Management Agency based on building type, design, occupancy, and use.  


(2) In addition to the standards and guidelines of the California Building Code, California 
Fire Code, the Wildomar Municipal Code, and other appropriate fire safety provisions, 
developments shall incorporate additional standards for high-risk, high-occupancy, 
and dependent facilities where appropriate under the City of Wildomar Fire Code. 
These shall include assurance that structural and nonstructural architectural elements 
of the building will not impede emergency egress for fire safety staffing/personnel, 
equipment, and apparatus; nor hinder evacuation from fire, including potential 
blockage of stairways or fire doors. 


(3) Proposed development and construction in Very Fire Hazard Severity Zones shall 
provide secondary public access, in accordance with City of Wildomar ordinances. 
There shall be multiple points of ingress and egress that allow for emergency response 
vehicle access. Points of access shall also include visible street signs and sufficient 
water supplies and infrastructure for structural fire suppression. 


(4) Proposed development and construction in Very Fire Hazard Severity Zones shall use 
single loaded roads to enhance fuel modification areas, unless otherwise determined 
by the Riverside County Fire Chief. 


(5) Proposed development and construction in Very Fire Hazard Severity Zones shall 
provide a fire protection plan that includes defensible space or fuel modification zones 
to be located, designed, constructed, and maintained to provide adequate defensibility 
from wildfires. 


(6) Prior to the approval of all parcel maps and tentative maps, the City shall require as a 
condition of approval, the developer meet or exceed the California Fire and Building 
code including Title 14 Regulations, particularly those regarding road standards for 
ingress, egress, and fire equipment access (see California Government Code, Section 
66474.02.).  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-49 
 


POLICY S-45 Monitor fire-prevention measures (e.g., fuel reduction) required through a site-
specific fire-prevention plan to reduce long-term fire risks in Very High Fire Hazard 
Severity Zones. 


POLICY S-46 For existing non-conforming development, the City shall work with property owners 
to improve or mitigate access, water supply and fire flow, signing, and vegetation 
clearance to meet current State and/or locally adopted fire safety standards. 


POLICY S-47 Require proposed development in Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones to be 
located where fire and emergency services are available or will be constructed as part 
of the proposed development activities. These services shall meet the minimum travel 
times identified in Riverside County Fire Department Fire Protection and Emergency 
Management Services’ Strategic Master Plan. 


POLICY S-48 The City shall require all new development projects with land classified as state 
responsibility areas (Public Resources Code Section 4102), land classified as very high 
fire hazard severity zones (VHFHSZs; Section 51177), or within areas defined as a 
“wildland urban interface” (WUI), to prepare a long-term comprehensive fuel 
reduction and management program, including provisions for multiple points of 
ingress and egress to improve evacuation and emergency response access and 
adequate water infrastructure for water supply and fire flow, and fire equipment 
access. 


POLICY S-49 Require that conceptual landscaping plans for development in Very Fire Hazard 
Severity Zones identified by CAL FIRE and shown in Figure 7-0 be reviewed by 
Planning and Fire Departments prior to the issuance of development permits. The 
conceptual landscaping plan of the proposed development shall, at a minimum, 
include: 


(1) Site plan, planting plan, planting palette, and irrigation plan to reduce the risk of fire 
hazards with consideration to site conditions, including slope, structures, and 
adjacencies. 


(2) Defensible space maintenance plan. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-50 
 


(3) Provision of multiple points of ingress and egress to improve evacuation and 
emergency response access and adequate water infrastructure for water supply and fire 
flow, and fire equipment access. 


POLICY S-50 Site design for development in Very Fire Hazard Severity Zones shall be required to 
account for topographical conditions and reduce the increased risk for sites located 
near ridgelines, plateau escarpments, saddles, hillsides, peaks, or other areas where 
the terrain or topography affect its susceptibility to wildfires by: 


(1) Providing fuel modification zones with removal of combustible vegetation while 
minimizing visual impacts and limiting soil erosion. 


(2) Replacing combustible vegetation with fire-resistant vegetation to stabilize slopes. 


(3) Submitting topographic map with site-specific slope analysis. 


(4) Submitting erosion and sedimentation control plans. 


(5) Providing a minimum 30-foot setback from the edge of the fuel modification zones. 


(6) Minimizing disturbance of 25 percent or greater natural slopes. 


POLICY S-51 Locate new critical public facilities outside of Fire Hazard Severity Zones. Critical 
facilities include emergency shelters, emergency command and communication 
facilities, and hospital and healthcare centers. If no feasible alternative site exists, 
ensure that these facilities incorporate all necessary protections to allow them to 
continue to serve community needs during and after disaster events. 


POLICY S-52 Site all new non-critical public facilities in areas outside of identified fire hazard 
severity zones and wildland-urban interface or fire threat areas, as feasible.  


Wind-Related Hazards 


POLICY S-53 Use ongoing brush clearance fire inspections to educate homeowners and residents 
on fire prevention tips by implementing an annual citywide weed abatement program, 
especially in vulnerable communities.  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-51 
 


POLICY S-54 Coordinate with the County of Riverside Fire Department and CAL FIRE to develop 
high-visibility fire prevention programs, including those offering voluntary home 
inspections and promoting awareness of home fire prevention measures. 


General and Long-Range  


POLICY S-55 Conduct and implement long-range fire safety planning, including stringent building, 
fire, subdivision, and municipal code standards, improved infrastructure, evacuation 
plans, and improved mutual-aid agreements with the private and public sector. 


POLICY S-56 Continue to work cooperatively with CAL FIRE to maintain existing fuel breaks and 
emergency access routes for effective fire suppression, and to strengthen fire-fighting 
capabilities and successfully respond to multiple fires.   


POLICY S-57 The City shall identify existing multifamily housing, emergency shelters, residential 
care homes (seven or more clients) located within an area classified as an SRA (Public 
Resources Code Section 4102) or land classified as VHFHSZ (Section 51177) with 
inadequate access/evacuation routes, and implement an evacuation plan consisting of 
evacuation routes and or shelter-in-place plans. 


POLICY S-58 Maintain inter-jurisdictional cooperation and coordination, including automatic aid 
agreements with fire protection/suppression agencies in Riverside County. 


POLICY S-59 Develop a program to use existing nearby reservoirs, such as Railroad Canyon, tanks, 
and water wells in the city for emergency fire suppression water sources. 


POLICY S-60 When updating the Safety Element, the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, or at other 
times as appropriate, review inter-jurisdictional fire response agreements, and 
improve firefighting resources as recommended in the Riverside County Fire 
Department Fire Protection Plan and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Strategic 
Master Plan to keep pace with development, to ensure that: 


 Fire reporting and response times do not exceed the goals listed in the Riverside 
County Fire Department Fire Protection Plan and EMS Strategic Master Plan 
identified for each of the development densities described. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-52 
 


 Fire-flow requirements (e.g., water for fire protection) are consistent with City of 
Wildomar Fire Code. 


 The planned deployment and height of aerial ladders and other specialized equipment 
and apparatus are sufficient for the intensity of development desired. 


POLICY S-61 Continue to use the Riverside County Fire Department Fire Protection Plan and 
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Strategic Master Plan as the foundational 
document to implement the Safety Element’s goals and objectives. 


POLICY S-62 Encourage property owners to use clustering and Transfer of Development Rights 
(TDR) program when developing lands within Fire Hazard Severity Zones by: 


 Restricting the development of a property through placement of conservation 
easement. 


 Acquiring conservation easements similar to that of the Western Riverside County 
Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP). 


POLICY S-63 Identify, map, and update Fire Hazard Severity Zone maps on an ongoing and as-
needed basis. 


POLICY S-64 Coordinate with the Riverside County Fire Department to ensure that the 
Department has appropriate municipal staffing and Office of the Fire Marshal staff 
to address development pressure and adequately respond to long-range fire safety 
planning.  


POLICY S-65 Implement a coordination program with fire protection and emergency service 
providers to reassess fire hazards after wildfire events and adjust fire prevention and 
suppression needs. 


POLICY S-66 The City shall develop policies and provide updates, as appropriate, that ensure 
recovery and redevelopment after a large fire reduces future vulnerabilities to fire 
hazard risks through site preparation, redevelopment layout design, fire-resistant 
landscape planning, and fire retarding building design and materials. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-53 
 


POLICY S-67 Coordinate with the Riverside County Fire Department to implement a long-term fire 
protection training and education program for the City of Wildomar and its citizens. 


POLICY S-68 Require automatic natural gas shutoff earthquake sensors in high-occupancy 
industrial and commercial facilities and encourage these sensors for all residences. 


AIR POLLUTION 


Healthy air quality can be defined as the degree to which ambient air is pollution free. Although air pollution 
has been regulated for decades, California still has some of the worst air in the country. Air pollution can cause 
many serious health effects. For example, inhaling small particles called particulate matter can lead to asthma 
attacks and heart and lung disease with smaller particles capable of traveling farther into the lungs. 


The specific pollutants of concern in Wildomar include diesel particulate, ozone, and PM2.5. Diesel particulate 
is considered a toxic air contaminant (TAC). TACs are air pollutants that can cause serious health effects from 
exposure at extremely low levels – a safe level of exposure may not even exist. Diesel particulate is a particulate 
matter from diesel-fueled engines. Ozone and PM2.5 are two of six criteria air pollutants that harm health and 
the environment for which the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and California set acceptable 
concentration levels for ambient air. Criteria and toxic air pollutants can cause some of the most severe health 
impacts.  


 People exposed to diesel particulate at sufficient concentrations and durations may have an increased 
chance of getting cancer or experiencing other serious health effects. Health effects can include damage 
to the immune system as well as neurological, reproductive (e.g., reduced fertility), developmental, 
respiratory, and other health problems. Almost all diesel exhaust particles are 10 microns or less in 
diameter. Because of their extremely small size, these particles can be inhaled and eventually trapped in 
the bronchial and alveolar regions of the lungs. Long-term (chronic) inhalation of diesel particulate 
matter is likely a lung cancer risk. Short-term (i.e., acute) exposure can cause irritation and inflammatory 
responses and may exacerbate existing allergies and asthma. 


 Ozone is a key ingredient of “smog” and is a gas that is formed when volatile organic compounds (VOCs) 
and oxides of nitrogen (NOX), both by-products of internal combustion engine exhaust, undergo 
photochemical reactions in sunlight. Ozone is a secondary criteria air pollutant. Ozone concentrations 
are generally highest during the summer months when direct sunlight, light winds, and warm 
temperatures create favorable conditions for its formation. Ozone poses a health threat to those who 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-54 
 


already suffer from respiratory diseases as well as to healthy people. Breathing ozone can trigger a 
variety of health problems, including chest pain, coughing, throat irritation, and congestion. It can 
worsen bronchitis, emphysema, and asthma. Ground-level ozone also can reduce lung function and 
inflame the linings of the lungs. Repeated exposure may permanently scar lung tissue. Ozone also affects 
sensitive vegetation and ecosystems, including forests, parks, wildlife refuges, and wilderness areas. 


 PM2.5 is a suspended particulate matter that consists of finely divided solids or liquids such as soot, dust, 
aerosols, fumes, and mists. Inhalable fine particles, or PM2.5, have an aerodynamic diameter of 
2.5 microns or less (i.e., ≤2.5 millionths of a meter or 0.0001 inch). Particulate discharge into the 
atmosphere results primarily from industrial, agricultural, construction, and transportation activities. 
PM2.5 may adversely affect the human respiratory system, especially in people who are naturally 
sensitive or susceptible to breathing problems. The EPA’s scientific review concluded that PM2.5, which 
penetrates deeply into the lungs, is more likely than PM10 to contribute to health effects and at far lower 
concentrations. These health effects include premature death in people with heart or lung disease, 
nonfatal heart attacks, irregular heartbeat, aggravated asthma, decreased lung function, and increased 
respiratory symptoms. Particulate matter can also cause environmental effects, such as visibility 
impairment, environmental damage, and aesthetic damage.   


Vulnerable communities in Wildomar face compounded health risk from exposure to elevated concentration 
levels of diesel particulate, ozone, and PM2.5. These communities are exposed to multiple health risks from 
pollutants such as these, while concurrently living in unhealthy housing conditions and/or experiencing poverty 
and other socioeconomic stressors that are associated with negative health outcomes. Although these conditions 
can occur anywhere throughout Wildomar, they are more often experienced by vulnerable communities. As 
illustrated in Figures 10-0 through 12-0, air pollution impacts to vulnerable communities is greatest in the 
northwest region of the city, along Corydon Road and Mission Trail. According to these figures, over 15 percent 
of the population’s income in this region is below the 2019 poverty level. 


Figure 10-0 shows that the diesel particulate percentile is 1 to 20 percent (lowest scores) for vulnerable 
communities living near Palomar Street, Corydon Road, and Bundy Canyon Road. To the north of Lemon Street 
(Sedco Hills), diesel particulate percentile is 41 to 60 percent for vulnerable communities living to the west and 
east of I-15. 


Figure 11-0 shows that the ozone percentile is 71 to 80 percent for vulnerable communities living near Palomar 
Street, Corydon Road, and Bundy Canyon Road. To the north of Lemon Street (Sedco Hills), ozone percentile 
is 81 to 90 percent for vulnerable communities living to the west and east of I-15. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-55 
 


Figure 12-0 shows that the PM2.5 percentile is 11 to 40 percent for vulnerable communities living near Palomar 
Street, Corydon Road, and Bundy Canyon Road. Similarly, to the north of Lemon Street (Sedco Hills), ozone 
percentile is 11 to 40 percent for vulnerable communities living to the west and east of I-15. 


Among the vulnerable communities in this region of the city, air pollution impacts from exposure to elevated 
concentration levels of diesel particulate, ozone, and PM2.5 are greatest to the north of Lemon Street (Sedco 
Hills) for populations living to the west and east of I-15.  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-56 
 


 DIESEL PARTICULATE PERCENTILE 


 
  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-57 
 


 OZONE PERCENTILE 


 
  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-58 
 


 PM2.5 PERCENTILE 


 


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-59 
 


GOAL S-5: Equitable and healthy air quality so that no community bears the 
disproportionate burden of environmental hazards and health risks.   


POLICY S-69 Require a cumulative health risk assessment, including consideration of truck traffic 
impacts, when a project potentially affects sensitive receptors in vulnerable 
communities, and require appropriate mitigation based on the findings of the 
assessment. 


POLICY S-70 Require new development to locate sensitive receptors, such as homes, schools, 
playgrounds, sports fields, childcare centers, senior centers, and long-term health 
care facilities as far away as possible from significant pollution sources. 


POLICY S-71 When evaluating air quality impacts of projects in vulnerable communities, use 
thresholds of significance that match or are more stringent than the air quality 
thresholds of significance identified in the current South Coast Air Quality 
Management District (SCAQMD) Air Quality Guidelines. 


POLICY S-72 Preserve, restore, and enhance natural landscapes in and near vulnerable 
communities for their role in improving air quality and community health. 


POLICY S-73 Prioritize new street tree plantings and increase the tree canopy in vulnerable 
communities, in particular areas with high elevated concentration levels of diesel 
particulate, ozone, and PM2.5. 


HAZARDOUS WASTE AND MATERIALS 


Hazardous materials are materials that pose a significant risk to public safety or human or environmental health. 
These include toxic chemicals, flammable or corrosive materials, petroleum products, and unstable or 
dangerously reactive materials. They can be released through human error, malfunctioning or broken equipment, 
or as an indirect consequence of other emergencies (e.g., if a flood damages a hazardous material storage tank). 
Hazardous materials can also be released accidentally during transportation, as a consequence of vehicle 
accidents.  


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-60 
 


A release or spill of bulk hazardous materials could result in fire, explosion, toxic cloud, or direct contamination 
of water, people, and property. The effects may involve a local site or many square miles. Health problems may 
be immediate, such as corrosive effects on skin and lungs, or gradual, such as the development of cancer from 
a carcinogen. Damage to property could range from immediate destruction by explosion to permanent 
contamination by a persistent hazardous material. 


Most hazardous materials in the region are being transported on truck routes along major roadways, such as I-
15. Southern California Edison is currently in the process of decommissioning the San Onofre Nuclear 
Generating Station. The site is in Pendleton, California, approximately 22 miles southwest of Wildomar. 
Decommissioning is a well-defined Nuclear Regulatory Commission process that involves safely transferring 
the used nuclear fuel into storage, followed by the eventual removal and disposal of radioactive components and 
materials from the site. Decommissioning removes radiological material from the site and eliminates potential 
industrial hazards. Radiological material, including low-level radioactive waste from the site, and other 
hazardous materials could potentially be transported via I-15 through Wildomar to be disposed of in other 
locations.   The most vulnerable areas along this route are considered the on-/off-ramps and interchanges. Since 
1970, there have been no reported roadway hazardous materials incidents. 


Several state agencies monitor hazardous materials/waste facilities. Potential and known contamination sites are 
monitored and documented by the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) and the Department of 
Toxic Substances and Controls (DTSC). A review of the leaking underground storage tank list produced by the 
RWQCB and the DTSC EnviroStor database indicates two leaking underground storage tanks in the city at 
33986 Orange Street and 36485 Inland Valley Drive and three school investigation cleanup sites at La Estrella 
Road/George Porras Road, 35450 Frederick Street, and Bundy Canyon Road/Orchard Street. 


If an imminent public health threat is posed by an outside factor, the City will support local regulating agencies 
in notifying the public. The transport of hazardous materials/wastes and explosives through the city is regulated 
by the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). I-15 is open to vehicles carrying hazardous 
materials/wastes. City streets are generally not designated as hazardous materials/waste transportation routes, 
but a permit may be granted on a case-by-case basis. Transporters of hazardous wastes are required to be certified 
by the United States Department of Transportation (DOT) and manifests are required to track the hazardous 
waste during transport. The danger of hazardous materials/waste spills during transport does exist and will 
potentially increase as transportation of these materials increase on I-15. The Riverside County Sheriff’s 
Department, Riverside County Fire Department, CAL FIRE, Riverside County EMD, and Riverside County 
Division of Environmental Health are responsible for hazardous materials accidents at all locations within the 
city. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-61 
 


POTENTIAL CHANGES TO HAZARDOUS MATERIALS IN FUTURE YEARS 


Likelihood of Future Occurrence 


Given that there have been no hazardous materials incidents in transport through the city in the past 50 years, it 
is unlikely a hazardous materials incident will occur in Wildomar every year. Moreover, according to Caltrans, 
most incidents are related to releases of fluids from the transporting vehicles themselves and not the cargo, thus 
the likelihood of a significant hazardous materials release within the city is more limited and difficult to predict. 


Climate Change and Hazardous Materials  


Climate change is unlikely to affect hazardous materials transportation incidents. However, increases in the 
frequency and intensity of hazards, such as floods, landslides, and severe storms, may create a greater risk of 
hazardous materials releases during these events. 


GOAL S-6: To avoid the risk of loss of life, injury, and serious illness and minimize 
damage to property and economic and social dislocations resulting from the use, 
transport, treatment, and disposal of hazardous materials and hazardous materials 
wastes. 


POLICY S-74 Enforce land use policies and siting criteria related to hazardous materials and waste 
through ongoing implementation of the programs identified in the County of 
Riverside Hazardous Waste Management Plan (CHWMP).  


POLICY S-75 Review all proposed development projects that manufacture, use, or transport 
hazardous materials for compliance with the CHWMP. Such projects shall provide a 
buffer zone, to be determined by the City, between the installation and property 
boundaries sufficient to protect public safety. 


POLICY S-76 Require that applications for discretionary development projects that will generate 
hazardous wastes or use hazardous materials include detailed information on 
hazardous waste reduction, recycling, and storage. 


POLICY S-77 Ensure that industrial facilities are constructed and operated in accordance with 
current safety and environmental protection standards. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-62 
 


POLICY S-78 Regulate the storage of hazardous materials and wastes and require secondary 
containment and period examination for all such materials. 


POLICY S-79 Require that any business that handles a hazardous material prepare a plan for 
emergency response to a release or threatened release of a hazardous material, 
including providing updated information to emergency responders on the type and 
quantity of hazardous materials kept on-site. 


POLICY S-80 Identify sites that are inappropriate for hazardous material storage, maintenance, 
use, and disposal facilities due to potential impacts on adjacent land uses and the 
surrounding natural environment. Prohibit the siting of new or expanded hazardous 
material sites on such sites, including areas identified as vulnerable communities. 


POLICY S-81 Ensure that the use and disposal of hazardous materials in Wildomar complies with 
local, state, and federal safety standards. 


POLICY S-82 Require commercial businesses, utilities, and industrial facilities that handle 
hazardous materials to install automatic fire and hazardous materials detection, 
reporting, and shut-off devices, and install an alternative communication system in 
the event power is out or telephone service is saturated following an earthquake, as 
required by the Wildomar Fire Code. 


POLICY S-83 Prohibit any new facilities using, storing, or producing hazardous materials from 
being located directly adjacent to existing residential or school uses. 


POLICY S-84 Encourage use of on-site green infrastructure to protect and enhance community 
water quality with landscape design (e.g., berms, grasslands, plantings) to either 
contain released hazardous materials or to process and/or absorb pollutants from 
infiltrating the soil or watershed. 


POLICY S-85 Advocate for and coordinate with local, regional, and state agencies in efforts to 
remediate or treat contaminated surface water, groundwater, or soils in or affecting 
vulnerable communities. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-63 
 


POLICY S-86 Coordinate with state and federal agencies to ensure community safety from any 
radioactive material transported on Interstate 15. 


DISASTER PREPAREDNESS, RESPONSE, AND RECOVERY 


Riverside County Emergency Services establishes the responsibilities of the various Riverside County agencies 
in times of a disaster. Disaster preparedness and response planning includes identifying short-term actions to 
reduce the scope of an emergency and managing necessary resources in the event of a disaster. After any disaster, 
particularly an earthquake, short-term disaster recovery requires many operations that are less urgent than fire 
suppression or medical attention but are equally important. 


EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 


Emergency preparedness activities in Wildomar are conducted through the County of Riverside EMD. EMD, in 
cooperation with the City, and fire and law enforcement agencies, provides emergency management services. 
EMD prepares emergency and contingency plans, ranging from evacuation plans to emergency operations plans 
that help specify the roles and responsibilities of first responders and emergency management personnel for an 
incident. Moreover, EMD plans and organizes trainings and exercises involving the City of Wildomar as well 
as other local, state, federal, and regional agencies. 


The Riverside County Fire Department and CAL FIRE are prepared to handle most everyday emergencies, such 
as all types of fire, medical, or hazardous situations. However, during a disaster, the number and scope of 
incidents may exceed the fire department’s and CAL FIRE’s ability to provide effective emergency services. 
For this reason, Wildomar provides the public with access to a community emergency response team (CERT) 
training program. The CERT Program provides for community and employee self-sufficiency to meet the 
general public’s urgent life-saving and sustenance needs until emergency personnel arrive. The CERT Program 
educates people about disaster preparedness and trains them in basic response skills, such as fire safety, light 
search and rescue, and disaster medical operations. CERT members assist their fellow citizens/coworkers in 
their community or workplace following a disaster. CERT members take an active role in their community by 
preparing for a disaster, thus reducing their own impact risk. 


The City of Wildomar uses Alert RivCo, a phone alert system to alert residents and businesses in Riverside 
County who are affected, threatened, or might be endangered by an emergency event or a disaster, such as 
wildfires, floods, hazardous materials, severe weather, and certain law enforcement incidents. Alert RivCo is 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-64 
 


part of a group of alert and warning tools used in the county. Other systems include the Emergency Alert Systems 
(EAS) and the Emergency Digital Information System (EDIS).  


The EAS is a national public warning system commonly used by state and local authorities to deliver important 
emergency information, such as weather and AMBER alerts, to affected communities. EAS participants – radio 
and television broadcasters, cable systems, satellite radio and television providers, and wireline video providers. 
FEMA, the Federal Communications System, and National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration’s 
(NOAA’s) National Weather Service (NWS) work collaboratively to maintain the EAS and Wireless 
Emergency Alerts, which are the two main components of the national public warning system and enable 
authorities at all levels of government to send urgent emergency information to the public. The  EDIS is 
a wireless data cast-based emergency and disaster information service operated by the State of California 
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services and is an enhancement to the EAS. These systems are available in 
multiple languages. With advanced warning, evacuation can be effective in reducing injury and loss of life 
during a catastrophic event. Figure 13-0 shows residential parcels with evacuation constraints. All parcels within 
an evacuation constraint are located in a least one hazard-prone area and may have only one emergency 
evacuation route. The lack of multiple emergency access points limits roadway access for these properties, 
which may create difficulties if there is a need to evacuate, especially in vulnerable communities. Notably, the 
Farm Specific Plan project area (east of I-15 and south of Bundy Canyon Road) is within a hazard-prone area 
that lacks multiple emergency access points. 


DISASTER PREPAREDNESS 


In recent years, the County of Riverside has expanded its emergency preparedness planning. The County of 
Riverside is required under state law to prepare and maintain a Standardized Emergency Management System 
(SEMS) Multi-hazard Functional Plan. The California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services has extensive 
guidelines outlining the requirements of the Riverside County SEMS. 


PUBLIC SAFETY POWER SHUTOFFS 


The City of Wildomar is served by Southern California Edison (SCE). Electricity utilities throughout California, 
including SCE, have begun to occasionally “de-energize,” or turn off the electricity for, power lines that run 
through areas where there is an elevated fire risk. This is intended to reduce the risk of power lines sparking or 
being damaged and starting a wildfire. These activities, called public safety power shutoffs (PSPSs), result in a 
loss of power for customers served by the affected power lines. A PSPS may occur at any time of the year, 
usually during high wind events, high temperatures, and dry conditions. PSPS events may be limited to specific 
communities or they may affect broad swaths of the state.  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-65 
 


In January 2021, SCE conducted one large-scale event in response to a Santa Ana wind event, shutting off power 
to approximately 114,000 customers, including those in Riverside County. In December 2020, SCE conducted 
two large-scale events shutting off power to approximately 95,000 customers, including those in Riverside 
County. The largest PSPS event during this time occurred on December 4 and ended on December 14, 2020. 
During this event, 197,729 customers in seven counties (San Bernardino, Riverside, Orange, Kern, Los Angeles, 
Tuolumne, and Ventura) were identified as under consideration for PSPS. During this event, SCE de-energized 
circuits not originally in scope when unexpected high wind conditions were observed in the areas of concern. 
Ultimately, SCE proactively de-energized 73,137 customers in areas of Inyo, Kern, Mono, Los Angeles, Orange, 
Riverside, San Bernardino, and Ventura Counties. 


In October 2019, SCE conducted four large-scale events, shutting off power to approximately 160,000 
customers, including those in Riverside County. The largest PSPS event during this time occurred on October 
27 and ended on October 31, 2019. During this event, 498,660 customers in 12 counties (Fresno, Inyo, Kern, 
Los Angeles, Madera, Mono, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, Tulare, Tuolumne, and Ventura) served by 
352 distribution circuits and seven transmission lines were identified as under consideration for PSPS. 
Ultimately, proactive de-energization was required for 126 circuits (including three transmission lines) affecting 
126,364 customers, including some in Riverside County, over two weather systems. PSPS events can impact 
emergency management activities. A loss of power can make it more difficult for homes or businesses to receive 
emergency notifications if needed. PSPS events can also create vulnerabilities for community members that lack 
backup power supplies and depend on electricity for heating or cooling homes and buildings, lighting, and 
internet. PSPS events may also be harmful to people who depend on electrically powered medical devices. 
Additionally, community members may be faced with economic hardships and be deprived of important 
services, such as grocery stores, gas stations, and banks/ATMs. Traffic lights and other traffic control systems 
may not work, which can complicate any evacuation needs and may hinder emergency response (see Figure 13-
0  for evacuation constraints). Although critical public health and safety facilities often have backup generators, 
the loss of power may also disable other key infrastructure systems.  


MUTUAL-AID AGREEMENTS 


Additional emergency management and response services in Wildomar are provided through a mutual-aid 
agreement with the Riverside County Fire Department and CAL FIRE. The Riverside County Fire Department 
and CAL FIRE provide a variety of public safety services, including fire protection, medical aid, rescue, 
hazardous materials response, and educational safety programs.   







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-66 
 


 RESIDENTIAL PARCELS WITH EVACUATION CONSTRAINTS  


 
  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-67 
 


GOAL S-7: To ensure the maintenance of an Emergency Management Response Plan 
to effectively prepare for, respond to, recover from, and mitigate the effects of natural 
and human-caused disasters. 


Disaster Preparedness 


POLICY S-87 Implement and update the City of Wildomar’s Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, as 
directed by the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services and the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency, and maintain mutual-aid agreements with federal, 
state, and local agencies, as well as the private sector, to assist in: 


(1) Clearance of debris in the event of widespread slope failures, collapsed buildings or 
structures, or other circumstances that could result in blocking emergency access or 
regress 


(2) Heavy search and rescue 


(3) Fire suppression 


(4) Hazardous materials response 


(5) Temporary shelter 


(6) Geologic and engineering needs 


(7) Traffic and crowd control 


(8) Building inspection 


POLICY S-88 Provide alerts about potential, developing, and ongoing emergency situations through 
extensive early-warning and notification systems that convey information to all 
residents, in multiple languages and formats to ensure it is widely accessible. 


POLICY S-89 Ensure residents that speak languages other than English have access to 
communication, educational materials, and assistance in evacuation, short-term, and 
long-term recovery activities. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-68 
 


POLICY S-90 Encourage private businesses, consortiums, and neighborhoods to be self-sufficient in 
an emergency by maintaining a fire control plan, including an on-site firefighting 
capability and volunteer fire response teams to respond to small fires, evacuation 
plans, and identifying medical personnel or residents capable and certified in first-
aid and CPR. 


POLICY S-91 Conduct citywide drills for earthquakes and other hazards as appropriate. Use the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency’s HAZUS Program to develop internal 
scenarios for emergency response and test back-up power generators in public 
facilities and other critical facilities taking part in the earthquake drill. During 
emergency drills, encourage communication and cooperation between emergency 
response staff and designated contacts at hospitals, high-occupancy buildings, and 
dependent-care facilities.  


POLICY S-92 Develop a system to respond to short-term increases in hazard on the southern San 
Andreas Fault, based on probabilities associated with foreshocks.  


POLICY S-93 As feasible, install solar energy and battery backup systems at critical public and 
private facilities to ensure continuation of services if the power grid is disrupted. 


POLICY S-94 Maintain and continue to improve management and emergency dissemination of 
information using portable computers with geographic information systems (GIS) 
and disaster-resistant Internet access, to obtain: 


 Hazardous Materials Disclosure Program Business Plans regarding the location and 
type of hazardous materials; 


 Real-time information on seismic, geologic, or flood hazards; and 


 The locations of high-occupancy, immobile populations, potentially hazardous 
building structures, utilities, and other lifelines. 


POLICY S-95 Continue to improve information sharing, coordination, and collaboration among 
public agencies, disadvantaged and vulnerable communities, and community-based 
organizations. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-69 
 


POLICY S-96 Regularly review and clarify emergency evacuation plans for dam failure, flood 
inundation, fire, and hazardous materials releases. The City shall also continue to 
maintain, periodically update, and test the effectiveness of the Emergency Operations 
Plan and develop plans for short-term and long-term post-disaster recovery. 


POLICY S-97 Maintain a City Emergency Operations Plan to include the National Incident 
Management System (N.I.M.S.). 


POLICY S-98 Coordinate with local and State Emergency Management agencies using the 
Standardized Emergency Management System (S.E.M.S.) and N.I.M.S. to facilitate 
multi-agency emergency response. 


POLICY S-99 Monitor the effectiveness of public safety, preparedness, and hazard mitigation 
policies under changing climate conditions to continue to protect the community as 
local and regional conditions change.  


POLICY S-100 Regularly update all appropriate planning documents, including the Safety Element, 
the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, emergency operations plans, and other public 
safety plans, and ensure these updates integrate adaptation considerations for 
climate-related hazards.  


POLICY S-101 Develop a blueprint for managing evacuation plans, including allocation of buses, 
designation and protection of disaster routes to maximize capacity and redundancy, 
and creation of traffic-control contingencies. Ensure that evacuation transportation 
services are available for those with limited mobility or lacking access to a personal 
vehicle.  


POLICY S-102 Coordinate with utility companies to minimize service interruptions, such as Public 
Safety Power Shutoffs, before, during, and after hazardous conditions, including 
options to harden and underground utility lines.  


POLICY S-103 Adopt inundation alert and readiness levels corresponding with official forecasts by 
the State Office of Emergency Services, regarding earthquake prediction and 
potential for dam failure. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-70 
 


Critical Facilities and Lifelines 


POLICY S-104 Strengthen the project permit and review process to ensure that proper actions are 
taken to reduce hazard impacts and encourage structural and nonstructural design 
and construction. Damage must be minimized for critical facilities, and susceptibility 
to structural collapse must be minimized, if not eliminated. 


(1) Ensure that special development standards, designs, and construction practices reduce 
risk to tolerable levels for projects involving critical facilities, large-scale residential 
development, and major commercial or industrial development through conditional 
use permits and the subdivision review process. If appropriate, impact fees should be 
assessed to finance required actions. 


(2) Require mitigation measures to reduce potential damage caused by ground failure for 
sites determined to have potential for liquefaction. Such measures shall apply to 
critical facilities, utilities, and large commercial and industrial projects as a condition 
of project approval. 


(3) Require that planned lifeline utilities, as a condition of project approval, be designed, 
located, structurally upgraded, fit with safety shutoff valves, designed for easy 
maintenance, and have redundant backup lines where unstable slopes, earth cracks, 
active faults, or areas of liquefaction cannot be avoided. 


(4) Review proposed uses of fault setback areas closely to ensure that county 
infrastructure (roads, utilities, drains) are not unduly placed at risk by the developer. 
Insurance, bonding, or compensation plans should be used to compensate the County 
of Riverside for the potential costs of repair. 


POLICY S-105 Promote strengthening of planned and existing utilities and lifelines, the retrofit and 
rehabilitation of existing weak structures, and the relocation of certain critical 
facilities. 


POLICY S-106  Identify critical facilities in hazard-prone areas and work to relocate or harden these 
facilities to reduce risk of damage and loss of service.  


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-71 
 


POLICY S-107 Coordinate with the Public Utilities Commission (PUC) and/or use the Capital 
Improvement Program, to strengthen, relocate, or take other appropriate measures 
to safeguard high-voltage lines, water, sewer, natural gas and petroleum pipelines, 
and trunk electrical and telephone conduits that: 


 Extend through areas of high liquefaction potential. 


 Cross active faults. 


 Traverse earth cracks or landslides. 


POLICY S-108 Require additional design considerations for lifelines within subsidence areas. 


POLICY S-109 Communicate climate risks to energy utilities and request they ensure that new and 
upgraded infrastructure is climate resilient. 


POLICY S-110 During the development review process, when developing alternatives and adaptation 
projects for consideration, the city shall require applicants to identify natural 
infrastructure that may be used through the conservation, preservation, or 
sustainable management of open space to reduce climate change hazards, where 
feasible.  


POLICY S-111 Establish a network of equitably located resilience hubs throughout Wildomar and 
ensure that resilience hubs are situated outside of areas at risk from hazard impacts 
to the extent possible, offer refuge from extreme heat and extreme weather events, as 
well as poor air quality and disasters, and are equipped with renewable energy 
generation and backup power supplies. Such facilities should be in easily accessible 
locations and be available to all community members, including vulnerable 
communities, as needed. Resilience hubs consist of well‐used, existing community‐
serving facilities that are upgraded to provide local communities with shelter, water, 
and electricity during these events or disasters. 


POLICY S-112 Ensure that all public services, municipal operations, and critical facilities can 
continue operating during and after a hazard or emergency event to meet community 
needs to the greatest extent possible. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-72 
 


POLICY S-113 Prohibit development of critical facilities that are proposed in dam failure inundation 
areas unless no feasible alternative exists and apply hazardous materials safety 
guidelines within such zones. 


POLICY S-114 The City will require development applications in and adjacent to the Farm Specific 
Plan project area to evaluate the feasibility of the extension of Sunset Avenue to 
connect with La Estrella Street and provide additional ingress and egress for 
emergency response vehicles and residents. 


Public Information and Outreach 


POLICY S-115 Conduct public outreach and education efforts to inform people in Wildomar of the 
hazard risks, vulnerabilities, and threats in the community, especially in vulnerable 
communities, and what steps community members should take to reduce their risks 
and provide all materials and information in both English and Spanish by default, as 
well as any other languages, as requested. 


POLICY S-116 Forge productive working relationships and foster good communication with 
researchers, other government agencies, and providers of mitigation services. 


POLICY S-117 The City shall coordinate and share data, experience, and strategies with other 
emergency management agencies in state or regional efforts on disaster preparedness 
coordination and disaster response procedures. 


POLICY S-118 Maximize use of technology and the Internet to effectively distribute emergency 
communications and alerts to members of the public to improve resiliency. 


POLICY S-119 Ensure that communication systems used by emergency responders and key City staff 
have sufficient redundancy and resiliency to meet City needs during and after a 
hazard event. 


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-73 
 


ADDITIONAL CLIMATE-RELATED HAZARDS  


DROUGHT 


A drought is a long period when precipitation levels are well below normal. Wildomar chronically experiences 
drought cycles. Since the 1950s, Riverside County has received an average of 8 inches of rainfall per year, 
although that number can vary greatly between years.  


Drought makes less water available for people, businesses, agricultural activities, and natural systems. Less 
snow falling in mountainous areas causes water levels in lakes and reservoirs to drop, which can affect recreation 
activities. Local ecosystems that are not well adapted to drought conditions can be more easily harmed by it. 
During drought events, the flow of water in creeks and streams is reduced, creating more slow-moving or 
standing water. This can concentrate sediment and toxins in the low water levels, causing harm to plants and 
animals. Many fish species also prefer specific stream flow speeds, especially for spawning and egg incubation, 
and changes to stream velocity as a result of drought conditions can affect reproduction. Droughts can also 
indirectly lead to more wildfires, and the stress caused by water shortages can weaken plants, making them more 
susceptible to pests and diseases. 


The U.S. Drought Monitor recognizes a five-point scale for drought events: D0 (abnormally dry), D1 (moderate 
drought), D2 (severe drought), D3 (extreme drought), and D4 (exceptional drought). According to the U.S. 
Drought Monitor, the most intensive drought conditions in recent years occurred during most of 2007, when all 
of Riverside County was classified as being in “extreme” drought. As of spring 2021, western Riverside County, 
including Wildomar, was classified as being in “moderate” drought. For 74 percent of the time since 2000, at 
least half of Riverside County has been under some level of drought conditions and 48 percent of the time since 
2000, all of Riverside County has faced drought conditions. These figures do not include times when sources of 
Riverside County’s imported water may have also been under drought events. 


Potential Changes to Drought in Future Years 


Likelihood of Future Occurrence 


Drought is different than many of the other natural hazards in that it is not a distinct event and usually has a 
slow onset. Drought can severely impact a region both physically and economically. Drought affects different 
sectors in different ways and with varying intensities. Adequate water is the most critical issue for commercial 
and domestic use. As the population in the city continues to grow, so will the demand for water. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-74 
 


Based on historical information, the occurrence of drought in California, including Riverside County, is cyclical, 
driven by weather patterns. Drought has occurred in the past and will occur in the future. Periods of actual 
drought with adverse impacts can vary in duration, and the period between droughts is often extended. Although 
an area may be under an extended dry period, determining when it becomes a drought is based on impacts to 
individual water users. The impacts of Wildomar to drought include reduction in water supply and an increase 
in dry fuels. 


Most of the imported water used comes from the State Water Project via the Sierra Nevada range and the 
Colorado River Aqueduct. Reduced winter precipitation levels and warmer temperatures have greatly decreased 
the size of the Sierra Nevada snowpack (the volume of accumulated snow), which in turn makes less fresh water 
available for communities throughout California. Continued decline in the Sierra Nevada snowpack volume is 
expected, which may lead to lower volumes of available imported water. 


Climate Change and Drought  


Although droughts are a regular feature of California’s climate, scientists expect that climate change will lead 
to more frequent and more intense droughts statewide. Overall, precipitation levels are expected to stay similar, 
and may even increase in some places. However, the state’s current data say that there will be more years with 
extreme levels of precipitation, both high and low, as a result of climate change. This is expected to cause more 
frequent and intense droughts compared to historical norms. Higher air temperatures are expected to increase 
evaporation, causing more water loss from lakes and reservoirs, exacerbating drought conditions. 


EXTREME HEAT 


While there is no universal definition of extreme heat, California guidance documents define extreme heat as 
temperatures that are hotter than 98 percent of the historical high temperatures for the area, as measured between 
April and October of 1961 to 1990. Days that reach this level are called extreme heat days.  In Wildomar, the 
extreme heat threshold is 105°F. An event with five extreme heat days in a row is called a heat wave. 


Health impacts are the primary concern with this hazard, though economic impacts are also an issue. The Centers 
for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) recognizes extreme heat as a substantial public health concern. 
Historically, NOAA data indicates that about 175 Americans succumb to the demands of summer heat, although 
this number has increased in recent years. From 2004 to 2018, studies by the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services indicate that there is an average of 702 deaths annually that are directly or indirectly linked to 
extreme heat. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-75 
 


Extreme heat events are dangerous because people exposed to extreme heat can suffer a number of heat-related 
illnesses, including heat cramps, heat exhaustion, and (most severely) heat stroke. Elderly persons, small 
children, chronic invalids, those on certain medications or drugs, and persons with weight and alcohol problems 
are particularly susceptible to heat reactions. The elderly and individuals below the poverty level are the most 
vulnerable to extreme heat. Nursing homes and elder-care facilities are especially vulnerable to extreme heat 
events if power outages occur, and air conditioning is not available. In addition, individuals below the poverty 
level may be at increased risk to extreme heat if use of air conditioning is not affordable. Areas with lower 
extreme heat thresholds are not necessarily at lower risk, as persons and community assets used to cooler 
temperatures may be less prepared for extreme heat events. 


Very high temperatures can harm plants and animals that are not well adapted to them, including natural 
ecosystems. Extreme heat can increase the temperature of water in lakes, streams, creeks, and other water bodies, 
especially during drought events when water levels are lower. In some cases, water temperatures may exceed 
comfortable levels for a number of plants and animals, causing ecological harm. Outdoor workers in 
construction or landscaping are also much more exposed to the elements than most people, so they are more 
susceptible to extreme heat conditions and the potential illnesses associated with very high temperatures.  


Indirectly, extreme heat puts more stress on power lines, causing them to run less efficiently. The heat also 
causes more demand for electricity (usually to run air conditioning units), and in combination with the stress on 
the power lines, may lead to brownouts and blackouts. 


Potential Changes to Extreme Heat in Future Years 


Likelihood of Future Occurrence 


Extreme heat tends to occur on an annual basis and is likely to continue occurring annually. As Wildomar is 
located in western Riverside County and at relatively low elevation, extremely high temperatures will continue 
to be a more common occurrence than cold temperatures.  


Climate Change and Extreme Heat 


The warmer temperatures brought on by climate change are likely to cause an increase in extreme heat events. 
Depending on the location and emissions levels, the state Cal-Adapt database indicates the number of extreme 
heat days is expected to rise from a historical annual average of 4 to between 25 and 37 by the middle of the 
century (2041 to 2060), and to between 34 and 58 by the end of the century (2070 to 2099).  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-76 
 


Overall, Wildomar is expected to see an increase in the average daily high temperatures. Although the 
temperature increases may appear modest, the projected high temperatures are substantially greater than 
historical norms. These increases also make it more likely that an above-average high temperature will cross the 
extreme heat threshold. As temperatures increase, Wildomar will face increased risk of death from dehydration, 
heat stroke, heat exhaustion, heart attack, stroke, and respiratory distress caused by extreme heat.  


SEVERE WEATHER 


Severe weather is generally any destructive weather event, but usually occurs in Wildomar as localized storms 
that bring heavy rain, hail, lightning, and strong winds. Severe weather is usually caused by intense storm 
systems, although types of strong winds can occur without a storm. The types of dangers posed by severe 
weather vary widely and may include injuries or deaths, damage to buildings and structures, fallen trees, roads 
and railways blocked by debris, and fires sparked by lightning. Severe weather often produces high winds and 
lightning that can damage structures and cause power outages. Lightning from these storms can ignite wildfires 
and structure fires that can cause damage to buildings and endanger people. Objects can also be struck directly, 
which may result in an explosion, burn, or total destruction. Lightning happens occasionally and there have been 
six injuries and one death reported from lightning events since 1950. Hail events are rare and there have been 
no reported injuries from hail in Wildomar. In Riverside County, most severe weather is linked to high winds. 
High winds, often accompanying severe storms, can cause significant property and crop damage, threaten public 
safety, and have adverse economic impacts from business closures and power loss.  


Santa Ana winds have caused large amounts of damage and increased the fire damage level dramatically. Santa 
Ana winds are generally defined as warm, dry winds that blow from the east or northeast (offshore). These 
winds occur below the passes and canyons of the coastal ranges of Southern California. Santa Ana winds often 
blow with exceptional speed in the Santa Ana Canyon. The complex topography of Southern California, 
combined with various atmospheric conditions, creates numerous scenarios that may cause widespread or 
isolated Santa Ana events. Commonly, Santa Ana winds develop when a region of high pressure builds over the 
Great Basin (the high plateau east of the Sierra Nevada and west of the Rocky Mountains, including most of 
Nevada and Utah). Santa Ana winds commonly occur between October and April with December having the 
highest frequency of events. Summer events are rare. Wind speeds are typically north to east at 40 miles per 
hour (mph) through and below passes and canyons with gusts to 58 mph. Stronger Santa Ana winds can have 
gusts greater than 69 mph over widespread areas and, in rare instances, gusts greater than 115 mph in specific 
areas. Frequently, the strongest winds in the basin occur during the night and morning hours due to the absence 
of a sea breeze.  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-77 
 


All wind events, including Santa Ana winds, pose several different types of threats. By themselves, the winds 
pose a threat to the health of people and structures in the county. Dust and plant pollen blown by the wind can 
create breathing problems. The winds can blow roofs off buildings and cause tree limbs to fall on structures. 
High winds also increase the threat of wildfires. Winds may dry out brush and forest areas, increasing the fuel 
load in fire-prone areas. Winds may spark wildfires by knocking down power lines or causing them to arc. If 
fires do start, high winds can push flames quickly into new areas, contributing to rapid spread of wildfires and 
making them harder to control. 


Potential Changes to Severe Weather in Future Years 


Likelihood of Future Occurrence 


According to historical hazard data, severe weather is an annual occurrence in western Riverside County. 
Damage and disaster declarations related to severe weather have occurred and will continue to occur in the 
future. Heavy rain and thunderstorms are the most frequent type of severe weather occurrences in the county. 
Wind and lightning often accompany these storms and have caused damage in the past. However, actual damage 
associated with the primary effects of severe weather have been limited. It is the secondary hazards caused by 
severe weather, such as floods and fire, that have had the greatest impact on the county. In general, any severe 
storm that affects Riverside County has local effects in Wildomar as well. Thunderstorms, high winds, and 
lightning can each have localized impacts on infrastructure, properties, and public safety. Transportation, 
including freight shipping, faces increased congestion when severe storms occur. 


Climate Change and Severe Weather 


Climate change is expected to cause an increase in intense rainfall, which is usually associated with strong storm 
systems. This means that Wildomar could see more intense storms in the coming years and decades. Such an 
increase may not affect all forms of severe weather and may not always be apparent.  


While average annual rainfall may increase only slightly, climate change is expected to cause an increase in the 
number of years with intense levels of precipitation. Heavy rainfall can increase the frequency and severity of 
other hazards, including flooding and landslides. Climate change is also expected to increase the total number 
of intense storms that affect Wildomar, possibly causing an increase in the frequency of severe weather events 
and any associated hazards. Some already-rare forms of severe weather, such as tornados, are not expected to 
increase in a noticeable way.  


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-78 
 


GOAL S-8: To ensure a resilient community able to adapt to climate-related hazards. 


POLICY S-120 Collaborate with local governments and special districts in western Riverside County 
as well as with Inland Southern California Climate Collaborative to develop and 
implement regional climate change adaptation and resilience initiatives. 


POLICY S-121 Support implementation of the Resilient IE project to foster increased community 
resilience to climate-related hazards in Wildomar and across the wider region. 


POLICY S-122 Use the reported data and findings of applicable local, regional, or state documents 
or plans pertaining to climate-related hazards that could impact the City of 
Wildomar, including the California Climate Change Assessment, the California 
Adaptation Planning Guide, and the Safeguarding California Plan. 


POLICY S-123 Prepare for a reduced, long-term water supply resulting from more frequent and 
severe drought events, including working with regional water providers to implement 
extensive water conservation measures and ensure sustainable water supplies.  


POLICY S-124 Renovate existing City-owned assets and design future facilities to incorporate 
renewable energy generation systems, battery storage systems, and energy-efficient 
design and features, as feasible. 


POLICY S-125 Coordinate with water agencies and irrigation districts to explore ways to improve 
and increase storage capacity and generation efficiency. 


POLICY S-126 Work with healthcare providers to support free or reduced-cost vaccinations for 
vector-borne diseases that are widely available for Wildomar residents. 


POLICY S-127 Coordinate with local governments and Riverside Transit Agency to increase shading 
and heat-mitigating materials on pedestrian walkways and transit stops. 


POLICY S-128 Ensure that unhoused persons or groups in the City of Wildomar have access to 
temporary and/or emergency housing, food, and other essential living materials to 
keep them safe during anticipated hazard events. 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-79 
 


POLICY S-129 Encourage new developments and existing property owners to incorporate 
sustainable, energy-efficient, and environmentally regenerative features into their 
facilities, landscapes, and structures to reduce energy demands and improve on-site 
resilience. Support financing efforts to increase community access to these features. 


POLICY S-130 Ensure that lower-income households have access to low-cost programs (e.g., 
subsidies for National Flood Insurance Program participation, air-conditioning, low-
cost healthcare) to protect their homes and wellbeing from climate-related hazards.  


POLICY S-131 Promote and expand the use of drought‐tolerant green infrastructure, including 
street trees and landscaped areas, as part of cooling strategies in public and private 
spaces.  


POLICY S-132 Use natural resources and infrastructure to absorb the impacts of climate-related 
hazards and associated natural hazards, as feasible. 


POLICY S-133 Ensure that workers in outdoor industries have the training and resources to be 
adequately protected from environmental hazards, including extreme heat, poor air 
quality, and diseases. 


POLICY S-134 Encourage the use of high-reflectivity pavement in new or significantly retrofitted 
large-scale paving projects, such as parking lots. 


Implementation Measures Table S-3 identifies implementation measures and the policies that they support, as 
well implementation guidance, including responsible departments, time frames, and funding sources.   







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-80 
 


TABLE S-3: IMPLEMENTATION MEASURES 


Implementation Measure 
Applicable 


Policy 
Responsible 
Department 


Time Frame Funding Source 


S-1 The City shall conduct an evaluation of City-owned 
buildings and facilities in areas prone to flood, 
landslide/debris flows, and wildfire to maximize defensible 
space and outdoor fireproofing, improve drainage systems, 
stabilize nearby slopes, and take actions to harden the 
property as needed. The evaluation shall be reviewed 
biannually and updated as needed. 


S-1 Planning Department Ongoing General Fund /  
Capital Improvement 


Program / Bonds 


S-2 Continue to implement the City’s most currently adopted 
Building Codes to ensure that development is constructed 
in a structurally and seismically safe manner. To the extent 
feasible, conduct periodic seismic safety inspections to 
ensure compliance with adopted codes. 


S-12 Building and Safety 
Department 


Ongoing General Fund /  
Fines 


S-3 The City shall require and review preliminary soils reports 
submitted by applicants for every major subdivision and 
for each individual lot or project site where critically 
expansive soils have been identified or are expected to 
exist. 


S-16 Building and Safety 
Department /  


Planning Department 


Ongoing General Fund /  
Development Fees 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-81 
 


Implementation Measure 
Applicable 


Policy 
Responsible 
Department 


Time Frame Funding Source 


S-4 The City shall update the Zoning Ordinance as necessary to 
comply with state requirements for flood control. 


S-19 


S-27 


S-28 


S-30 


S-39 


Planning Department Ongoing General Fund 


S-5 Consult with the Riverside County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District as well as upstream and downstream 
jurisdictions regarding regional approaches for the 
planning, construction, operation, and maintenance of 
drainage and flood-control facilities. Include these entities 
in the referral of project applications as appropriate. 


S-25 


S-26 


S-29 


S-35 


S-42 


Planning Department / 
Public Works Department / 


Engineering Department 


Ongoing General Fund 


S-6 The City shall annually provide flood protection safety 
information via social media and posting on the City 
website to educate citizens about safety during flood 
conditions, including the dangers of driving on flooded 
roads. 


S-36 Planning Department Ongoing General Fund /  
Grant Programs 


S-7 The City shall conduct regular cleaning and maintenance of 
storm drains along key roadways, especially in advance of 
the rainy season. The City shall address potential ponding 
and the need for storm drain improvements on major 
roadways. 


S-36 Public Works Department Ongoing General Fund 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-82 
 


Implementation Measure 
Applicable 


Policy 
Responsible 
Department 


Time Frame Funding Source 


S-8 Continue to implement the City’s most currently adopted 
Fire Codes to ensure that development is constructed in a 
structurally safe manner. To the extent feasible, conduct 
periodic fire safety inspections to ensure compliance with 
adopted codes. 


S-44 


S-50 


Fire Department Ongoing General Fund /  
Fines 


S-9 Coordinate with Southern California Edison (SCE) to ensure 
areas below and adjacent to power lines are kept clear of 
plant matter and other accumulated debris. 


S-45 Fire Department / Planning 
Department / Public Works 


Department 


Ongoing General Fund 


S-10 Require continued operation of programs for fuel breaks, 
brush management, controlled burning, revegetation, and 
fire roads. 


S-45 Fire Department / Planning 
Department 


Ongoing General Fund 


S-11 When reviewing long-term comprehensive fuel reduction 
and management programs for discretionary projects, the 
City shall require these plans to include a risk analysis; fire 
response capabilities discussion; fire safety requirements, 
including defensible space, infrastructure, and building 
ignition resistance; mitigation measures and design 
considerations for non-conforming fuel modification; 
wildfire education; and maintenance and limitations. Fire 
hazard reduction measures shall be incorporated into the 
design of development projects in fire hazard areas and 
incorporated into the covenants, conditions, and 
restrictions (CC&Rs) as appropriate.  


S-46 Planning Department Ongoing General Fund 
Development Fees 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-83 
 


Implementation Measure 
Applicable 


Policy 
Responsible 
Department 


Time Frame Funding Source 


S-12 Develop a Defensible Space Ordinance or Landscape 
Ordinance that provides specific guidelines and 
requirements for the design and maintenance of public 
and private landscapes in Very High Fire Severity Zones, as 
defined by CAL FIRE. 


S-49 Planning Department / 
Public Works Department/ 


CAL FIRE 


Ongoing General Fund 


S-13 Encourage and identify opportunities to incentivize owners 
of existing properties and new development projects, to 
adopt the defensible space landscaping zones as defined 
by CAL FIRE. When needed, clear excess dried vegetation 
across the city in areas identified by the Riverside County 
Fire Department. 


S-49 Fire Department / CAL FIRE / 
Planning Department / 


Public Works Department 


Ongoing General Fund /  
Developer Cost /  


Bureau of Reclamation 
Drought Resiliency 


Grants 


S-14 Maintain automatic aid agreements with other fire 
protection/suppression agencies in Riverside County. 


S-55 


S-57 


Fire Department Ongoing General Fund 


S-15 The City shall work with CAL FIRE to develop a plan that 
includes an assessment and projection of future 
emergency service needs and emergency training 
opportunities. 


S-55 Planning Department / CAL 
FIRE 


Ongoing General Fund 


S-16 The City shall work with the Elsinore Valley Municipal Water 
District to maintain adequate water supply and identify 
areas lacking adequate water service for firefighting, 
including capacity for peak load under a reasonable worst-
case wildland fire scenario, to be determined by CAL FIRE. 
The City shall identify areas lacking adequate water service, 
where future development may occur. 


S-56 Planning Department / Fire 
Department / CAL FIRE 


Ongoing General Fund 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-84 
 


Implementation Measure 
Applicable 


Policy 
Responsible 
Department 


Time Frame Funding Source 


S-17 The City shall periodically evaluate fire protection services 
in the city to determine if fire protection resources are 
being effectively and efficiently used. 


S-64 Planning Department / CAL 
FIRE 


Ongoing General Fund 


S-18 The City shall work with CAL FIRE and the Riverside County 
Fire Department to maximize the use of resources to 
develop functional and/or operational consolidations and 
standardization of services and to maximize the efficient 
use of fire protection resources. 


S-64 Planning Department / CAL 
FIRE 


Ongoing General Fund 


S-19 Assist the South Coast Air Quality Management District in 
establishing and implementing Community Air Monitoring 
Plans for vulnerable communities. 


S-68 


S-71 


Planning Department Ongoing General Fund 


S-20 Coordinate with State and regional regulatory entities and 
community members to fund citizen-led data collection, 
monitor pollution exposure, and identify and implement 
solutions in disadvantaged communities. 


S-70 


S-73 


Planning Department Ongoing General Fund 


S-21 Prepare an urban forest master plan for the city that 
includes quantified goals and tracking methods, 
prioritizing vulnerable communities. 


S-72 


S-73 


Planning Department By 2025 General Fund /  
Grant Funding 


S-22 Develop and adopt a set of landscaping-as-
remediation/mitigation guidelines for sites engaging with 
hazardous materials as well as contaminated sites in the 
city. 


S-75 Planning Department By 2025 General Fund 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-85 
 


Implementation Measure 
Applicable 


Policy 
Responsible 
Department 


Time Frame Funding Source 


S-23 Require existing and new commercial and industrial uses 
involving the use, handling, transport, or disposal of 
hazardous materials in the city to disclose their activities in 
accordance with Riverside County guidelines and the 
requirements of California law. 


S-77 


S-81 


Planning Department / Fire 
Department / Engineering 
Department / Public Works 


Department 


Entitlement 
process and 


through routine 
inspections 


General Fund 


S-24 Designate the Riverside County Fire Department as the 
keeper of a database of all properties in Wildomar 
engaging with hazardous materials and include such 
information as their address, their owner’s contact 
information, and a list of all the hazardous materials on site. 


S-80 Fire Department Ongoing General Fund 


S-25 Require that construction activities cease if ground or 
water contamination is discovered during construction 
until the contamination is reported and the extent of the 
contamination, as well as necessary actions for 
remediation, have been identified to the satisfaction of the 
appropriate agency. Require that remediation activities be 
completed to the satisfaction of the appropriate 
responsible agency (i.e., Riverside County Department of 
Environmental Health, San Diego Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, Department of Toxic Substances Control, or 
the City of Wildomar, depending upon the type of 
contamination). 


S-81 Fire Department Entitlement 
process and 


through routine 
inspections 


General Fund 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-86 
 


Implementation Measure 
Applicable 


Policy 
Responsible 
Department 


Time Frame Funding Source 


S-26 Provide informational and educational materials on the 
City’s website for residents and vulnerable communities 
living near areas with hazardous materials or contaminated 
sites discussing the potential hazard risks associated with a 
hazardous materials release. 


S-85 Planning Department Ongoing General Fund / Fines 


S-27 The City shall develop and maintain agreements with other 
local, state, and federal agencies to ensure coordinated 
disaster response. 


S-87 


S-95 


S-99 


S-117 


Fire Department / Police 
Department / Planning 


Department 


Ongoing General Fund 


S-28 The City shall continue to work with the County to update 
the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan upon its expiration to 
ensure that Wildomar maintains eligibility for pre-disaster 
mitigation funding. 


S-87 Planning Department Ongoing General Fund 


S-29 The City shall support hiring multi-lingual staff and offer 
language training to existing staff to improve 
communication and assistance with non-English-speaking 
residents 


S-89 Planning Department Ongoing General Fund 


S-30 The City shall adopt and implement current emergency 
management principles and practices in all aspects of its 
emergency operations plan. 


S-96 Planning Department Ongoing General Fund 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-87 
 


Implementation Measure 
Applicable 


Policy 
Responsible 
Department 


Time Frame Funding Source 


S-31 The City shall work with local schools and community 
centers to create resilience hubs that can serve as 
gathering places during emergencies and interruptions in 
services, and contain access to water, electricity, and other 
necessary services. 


S-111 Planning Department / 
Public Works Department 


Ongoing General Fund 


S-32 The City shall work with local medical providers and the 
Inland Valley Medical Center to ensure that medical 
facilities are prepared to meet any increased demand from 
hazardous events. 


S-112 Planning Department / 
Public Works Department 


By 2022 General Fund 


S-33 Join the Inland Southern California Climate Collaborative to 
effectively address and build resilience to climate-related 
hazards that pose a threat to the community. 


S-120 


S-121 


Planning Department By 2023 General Fund 


S-34 The City shall integrate the results and adaptive policies of 
the Climate Vulnerability Assessment into other City 
planning documents where feasible, including this General 
Plan Safety Element, the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, 
Zoning Ordinance, building code, and other applicable 
codes. 


S-122 Planning Department By 2022 General Fund 


S-35 The City shall annually review the climate adaptation and 
resiliency strategies and shall update them as needed to 
ensure compliance with state laws and community needs. 


S-123 


S-124 


S-128 


Planning Department Annually General Fund 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-88 
 


Implementation Measure 
Applicable 


Policy 
Responsible 
Department 


Time Frame Funding Source 


S-36 The City shall update the Vulnerability Assessment every 
three to five years to incorporate new technology, 
programs, and policies to improve adaptation to climate-
related hazards. 


S-123 


S-124 


S-128 


Planning Department Ongoing General Fund 


S-37 Where feasible, the City shall encourage the use of existing 
natural features and ecosystem processes, or the 
restoration of, when considering alternatives and 
adaptation projects through the conservation, 
preservation, or sustainable management of open space. 
This includes, but is not limited to, the conservation, 
preservation, or sustainable management of any form of 
aquatic or terrestrial vegetated open space, such as parks, 
rain gardens, and urban tree canopies. It also includes 
systems and practices that use or mimic natural processes, 
such as permeable pavements, bioswales, and other 
engineered systems, such as levees that are combined with 
restored natural systems, to provide clean water, conserve 
ecosystem values and functions, and provide a wide array 
of benefits to people and wildlife. 


S-129 


S-131 


S-132 


Planning Department Ongoing General Fund / 
Development Fees 


 


  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-89 
 


 


APPENDIX A: VULNERABILITY ASSESSMENT RESULTS 
The table below shows the results of the Vulnerability Assessment prepared for Wildomar, in accordance with the requirements of Senate Bill 379. For each population or asset that may be vulnerable to each climate-related 
hazard, the population or asset is scored on a scale of zero to five: 


0:  Not vulnerable 


V1: Minimal vulnerability 


V2: Low vulnerability 


V3: Moderate vulnerability 


V4: High vulnerability 


V5: Severe vulnerability 


The vulnerability scores reflect both the severity of climate-related impacts and the ability of populations and assets to resist and recover from these effects. Refer to the “Climate Change” and “Vulnerable Populations and 
Assets” sections of the Safety Element for additional details on the Vulnerability Assessment method. 


POPULATIONS AND ASSETS AIR QUALITY DROUGHT EXTREME HEAT FLOOD 
HUMAN 
HEALTH 


HAZARDS 
LANDSLIDES SEVERE 


WEATHER WILDFIRE 


POPULATIONS 


Children age <10 V4  V4  V2   V4 


Linguistically isolated populations V2  V2 V1 V2  V3 V2 


Healthcare workforce (doctors, nurses)   V1 V1 V3  V1 V2 


Homeless persons V5 V3 V5 V4 V5  V5 V5 


Household renters V2 V3 V2 V2  V2 V3 V2 


Householders age >65 V3  V4 V3 V3 V4 V2 V4 


Households in poverty V4 V4 V4 V4 V3 V3 V3 V4 


Households overpaying for housing (>30% of income) V3 V2 V2 V3 V1 V2 V1 V2 


Individuals chronically ill V4 V1 V4 V3 V5 V3 V4 V4 


Individuals uncertain about available resources because of citizenship V2  V2 V2 V2  V3 V2 


Individuals with disabilities V2  V3 V3 V2 V3 V3 V4 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-90 
 


POPULATIONS AND ASSETS AIR QUALITY DROUGHT EXTREME HEAT FLOOD 
HUMAN 
HEALTH 


HAZARDS 
LANDSLIDES SEVERE 


WEATHER WILDFIRE 


Individuals without access to lifelines V3  V3 V4 V3 V3 V3 V4 


Low-income individuals V3 V4 V4 V4 V3 V2 V2 V3 


Outdoor workers V5 V4 V5 V2  V1 V3 V4 


Overcrowded households V2 V1  V2 V2  V1 V2 


Pregnant or nursing women V4  V3 V1 V5  V1 V2 


Seasonal residents/migrant workers V5 V4 V4 V2 V2 V2 V3 V4 


Senior citizens living alone V4  V5 V4 V4 V5 V3 V5 


Bridges      V3 V3 V2 


City Halls and government offices       V1 V2 


Commercial structures    V4  V1 V3 V3 


Communication infrastructure   V1 V2  V2 V2 V2 


Community gathering areas    V1  V1 V1 V2 


Dams    V1  V4 V1 V1 


Energy transmission/delivery   V4 V3  V3 V4 V4 


Evacuation routes      V3 V2 V4 


Fire stations       V1  


Fueling infrastructure and pipelines   V1 V3  V3 V2 V3 


Healthcare facilities   V1   V1 V2 V3 


Major roads and highways   V3   V3 V2 V3 


Natural gas pipelines    V2  V4  V3 


Parks  V1 V2   V3 V3 V2 


Police/sheriff stations    V2   V1  


Public open space and protected land  V3 V1 V1  V2 V3 V4 


Residential structures    V4  V4 V2 V4 


Schools and childcare centers    V3  V3 V2 V2 







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-91 
 


POPULATIONS AND ASSETS AIR QUALITY DROUGHT EXTREME HEAT FLOOD 
HUMAN 
HEALTH 


HAZARDS 
LANDSLIDES SEVERE 


WEATHER WILDFIRE 


Senior care centers    V3  V2 V1  


Sidewalks, bikeways, trails    V2  V3 V1 V2 


Transit infrastructure    V3  V2 V3 V2 


Transportation facilities and infrastructure   V1 V3  V2 V2 V3 


Water and wastewater treatment  V2 V1 V4  V3 V2 V1 


Chaparral  V3 V3   V2 V2 V3 


Coastal sage scrub  V2 V3 O  V3 V1 V3 


Grassland  V3 V2 O  V2 V2 V2 


Riparian scrub, woodland, and forest  V4 V3 O  V3 V3 V5 


Woodland and forests  V3 V3   V3 V2 V4 


State and federally owned land V2 V3 V3 V1 V2 V3 V1 V3 


Education and health services   V2 V3 V3 V1 V2 V2 


Retail shopping centers   V1 V1 V3 V1 V1 V1 


Major employers   V1 V3 V1 V1 V2 V2 


Communications   V2 V1  V1 V2 V3 


Energy Delivery  V2 V4 V2  V3 V4 V4 


Emergency medical response   V1 V2 V2 V2 V2 V2 


Government administration V1   V1 V1   V1 


Public safety   V1 V2 V2 V3 V2 V3 


Transit access   V3 V2  V2 V3 V2 


Water and wastewater  V3 V2 V4  V3 V3 V4 


 
  







SAFETY ELEMENT  
 


 


Wildomar Safety Element – August 2021 SE-92 
 


This page intentionally left blank. 











2040 Bancroft Way, Suite 400
Berkeley, California 94704


 t 510.848.3815


www.placeworks.com


O R A N G E  C O U N T Y    •    B AY  A R E A    •    S A C R A M E N TO    •    C E N T R A L  C O A  S T    •    L O S  A  N G E L E S    •    I N L A  N D  E M P I R E    •    S A N  D I E G O







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #2.4 


PUBLIC HEARING 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 


 


TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Matthew Bassi, Planning Director 


Abdu Lachgar, AICP, Associate Planner  
 
SUBJECT: Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-02: 


A proposed amendment to Section 17.188 (Off-Street Vehicle Parking 
Standards) related to off-street parking standards for single-family, multi-family 
and commercial developments 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council introduce and approve the 
first reading of an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A GENERAL 
RULE EXEMPTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 
15061(B)(3) OF THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL 


QUALITY ACT (CEQA) GUIDELINES, AND APPROVAL OF 
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. 2021-02 TO 


MODIFY SECTION 17.188 (OFF-STREET VEHICLE 
PARKING STANDARDS) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL 


CODE RELATED TO PARKING STANDARDS FOR 
SINGLE-FAMILY, MULTI-FAMILY AND COMMERCIAL 


DEVELOPMENTS IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 


BACKGROUND: 
The City Council approved a $10,000 budget and directed the planning department to 
prepare a parking code amendment to address single family and multifamily parking 
standards.  The City Council also appointed Council Members Ben Benoit and Marsha 
Swanson to a 2-person Ad-Hoc Committee to direct staff in the research and preparation 
of the parking code amendment effort.  The scope of the amendment was to be minor in 
nature and address only single family, multifamily and commercial parking standards.  
The Ad-Hoc Committee and staff met several times since its formation.  The result of this 
effort is a draft Ordinance for Planning Commission and City Council review.  
 







Planning Commission Review/Action: 
The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed code amendment at its August 18, 
2021 meeting.  There were no public speakers either for or against the proposed code 
amendment.  The Commission expressed support for the code amendment and was 
pleased with the updated regulations, especially the addition of a new visitor parking 
standard.  After Commission discussion, they voted 4-0-1 (Lloyd Absent) to adopt PC 
Resolution No. 2021-17 recommending City Council approval of Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment No. 2021-02. 


DISCUSSION: 
The Ad-Hoc committee meetings included review of our existing parking regulations and 
evaluation of our adjacent cities.  
 
Adjacent City Research Results: 
This research is the basis for the changes the Ad-Hoc committee is proposing and is in 
Attachment C. The research focused on parking regulations of several surrounding cities. 
Each surrounding city had varying parking standards, especially for residential uses. The 
Ad-Hoc committee along with Planning staff determined that based on the research, 
several changes to the City of Wildomar parking standards could be made to improve the 
parking code for residential as well as commercial uses. The proposed changes are 
located below. 
 
Proposed Changes: 
The proposed changes relate to off-street single/multifamily residential and commercial 
parking standards as outlined in Section 17.188 of the Zoning Ordinance. The complete 
parking code amendment is provided for Commission consideration in Attachment A, 
Exhibit 1.  A summary of the proposed text changes in the draft ordinance is provided 
below: 


 Section 17.188.030.B.2 (Number of Required Parking Spaces Table) is proposed to 
be amended in several places as follows: 


o revise single family parking standard to require 2 spaces/dwelling unit in a 
garage or covered carport on-site.  


o reduce the parking standard for 3 bedroom multi-family units from 2.75 to 2.5 
spaces/unit; 


o add a parking standard requiring 15% of the required parking to be dedicated 
for visitor parking in multi-family developments that may be covered or open 
and located on-site.   


 Section 17.188.030.B.2 (Number of Required Parking Spaces) is proposed to be 
amended to delete references to planned residential developments and senior 
citizen developments as these are duplicative with other multifamily standards. 


 Section 17.188.030.B.2 (Number of Required Parking Spaces) related to 
commercial/retail projects is proposed to be amended as follows: 







o increase the number of commercial spaces from 5.5 per 1,000 square feet 
of net leasable floor area to 6.0 spaces per 1,000 square feet of net leasable 
floor area.  This will apply to new retail projects to address under parking 
concerns being experienced in some of our current retail centers.  


o require a parking analysis for any new use locating in an existing retail 
center that requires separate approval of a CUP or Plot Plan.  This will allow 
staff to assess whether the new use will impact the current parking spaces. 


o the drive-thru restaurant stacking standard of 6 vehicles behind the menu 
board will be changed to 12 vehicles total whether in a single lane or double 
lane.  This essentially doubles the stacking availability and reduces 
overcrowding. 


 Section 17.188.030.B.5 (Alternative Programs for Parking) is proposed to be 
amended to modify the shared parking requirements to better encourage efficient 
use of parking and more clear incentives, and to require shared parking agreements. 


 Section 17.188.030.B.5 (Alternative Programs for Parking) is proposed to delete 
reference to the Rubidoux Village policy area as this does not apply to Wildomar 
(clean-up legislation). 


 Section 17.188.030.B.6 (Special Review of Parking) is proposed to be amended to 
add language clarifying criteria for approval for parking reductions by the Planning 
Director. 


Conclusion: 
Staff believes this code amendment is consistent with Ad-Hoc committee’s direction and 
recommendation.  The regulations for off-street parking will help reduce current issues 
that have arisen in our current retail centers as well as with multi-family projects.  If ZOA 
No. 2021-02 is approved by Council, the 2nd reading will be scheduled for the November 
10, 2021 Council meeting with an effective date of December 10, 2021.  


ENVIRONMENTAL/CEQA DISCUSSION: 
In accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code § 21000, et seq. (“CEQA”)), a review of the potential environmental 
impacts was conducted by the Planning Department for Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
No. 2021-02.  Based on this review, the Planning Department has determined that the 
adoption of the proposed amendment (which provides for only text changes) has no 
potential to impact the environment.  Parking impacts are not considered environmental 
impacts under CEQA. Therefore, Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-02 meets the 
criteria to be exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3), which states that 
CEQA applies only to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on 
the environment, and where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that 
the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not 
subject to CEQA. 
  







Given this factor, Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-02 meets the criteria for a 
General Rule and Categorical Exemption pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3). As a result, 
staff is recommending the Planning Commission make a determination that Zoning 
Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-02 has no potential to negatively impact the 
environment and recommend to the City Council adoption of the general rule exemption 
as stated above. 


ZOA NO. 2021-02 FINDINGS OF FACT: 
In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17.280 of the Zoning Ordinance, the 
Planning Commission recommends the City Council make the following finding approving 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-02. 
 
A. The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar General Plan and 


Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Evidence:  The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar 
General Plan in that the proposed amendment will allow for individual businesses to 
better receive customers who are able to find parking on site which in turn will 
enhance economic vitality (Goal LU 7.1).  Further, the updated parking standards 
outlined in the amendment will allow parking lots to function better and be visually 
integrated and connected better (Goal LU 4.1).  The amendment is also consistent 
with the Zoning Ordinance in that the City is allowed to amend its parking 
requirements from time to time to address changes in the marketplace and to keep 
up with current parking and traffic trends.  Nothing in the proposed amendment will 
impact any residential or commercial development which is solely regulated within 
the parking ordinance. 


PUBLIC NOTICING: 
In accordance with Chapter 17.04 and 17.280 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, the 
Planning Department on October 1, 2021 published a legal notice in the Press Enterprise, 
a local newspaper of general circulation, notifying the general public of the October 13, 
2021 City Council hearing where the Council would discuss Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment No. 2021-02.  Since this code amendment is not a development project, the 
provisions of Ordinance 135 requiring public hearing sign boards do not apply. 


FISCAL IMPACTS: 
There are no fiscal impacts. 


Respectfully Submitted,    Reviewed By, 
Gary Nordquist     Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager      City Attorney 


  







ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Draft Council Ordinance for ZOA No. 2021-02 
B. Code Amendment Redline-Strikeout Version 
C. Adjacent City Research document 


 
 
 
INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE THE FOLLOWING: 


• City of Wildomar General Plan and General Plan EIR 
• City of Wildomar Zoning Ordinance (Title 17 of the WMC) 


 
  







ATTACHMENT A 
Council Ordinance for ZOA 2021-02 


 
 







ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A GENERAL RULE 
EXEMPTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15061(B)(3) 
OF THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 
(CEQA) GUIDELINES, AND APPROVAL OF ZONING 
ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. 2021-02 TO MODIFY 
SECTION 17.188 (OFF-STREET VEHICLE PARKING 
STANDARDS) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 
RELATED TO PARKING STANDARDS FOR SINGLE-FAMILY, 
MULTI-FAMILY AND COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN THE 
CITY OF WILDOMAR 


WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 17.280 of the Wildomar Municipal Code 
and California Government Code, Section 65800, et seq., the City Council has the 
authority to take action on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-02; and 


WHEREAS, the City Council directed the Planning Department to amend Chapter 
17.188 of the Wildomar Municipal Code to amend the regulations for residential and 
commercial parking standards in the City of Wildomar; and   


WHEREAS, the City Council appointed an Ad-Hoc committee to direct staff in the 
research and preparation of the parking code amendment effort; and 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 18, 2021 
for Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-02, and adopted PC Resolution No. 2021-
17 recommending City Council approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-02; 
and 


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.280.040 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code, the Planning Department, on October 1, 2021, published a legal notice in the Press 
Enterprise, a local newspaper of general circulation, notifying the general public of the 
City Council public hearing set for October 13, 2021, regarding Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment No. 2021-02; and  


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.280.040 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public hearing on October 13, 2021, at 
which time interested persons had an opportunity to testify in support of, or opposition to 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-02, and at which time the City Council received 
public testimony concerning Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-02.  
  



http://qcode.us/codes/othercode.php?state=ca&code=gov





THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR HEREBY DOES ORDAIN 
AS FOLLOWS:  


SECTION 1:  ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION.  
In accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 


(Public Resources Code § 21000, et seq. (“CEQA”)), a review of the potential 
environmental impacts was conducted by the Planning Department for Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment No. 2021-02.  Based on this review, the Planning Department has 
determined that the adoption of the proposed amendment (which provides for only text 
changes) has no potential to impact the environment. Parking impacts are not 
environmental impacts under CEQA. Therefore, Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 
2021-02 meets the criteria to be exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3), 
which states that CEQA applies only to projects that have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment, and where it can be seen with certainty that there 
is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the 
environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.  Given this factor, Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment No. 2021-02 meets the criteria for a General Rule and Categorical 
Exemption pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3). As a result, the City Council hereby 
determines that Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-02 has no potential to 
negatively impact the environment and adopts the general rule exemption as stated 
above. 


SECTION 2.  REQUIRED ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT FINDING. 
In accordance with Chapter 17.280 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, the City 


Council hereby makes the following findings approving Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
No. 2021-02.  
 
A. The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar General Plan and 


Zoning Ordinance. 
 


Evidence. The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar General 
Plan in that the proposed amendment will allow for individual businesses to better 
receive customers who are able to find parking on site which in turn will enhance 
economic vitality (Goal LU 7.1).  Further, the updated parking standards outlined in 
the amendment will allow parking lots to function better and be visually integrated 
and connected better (Goal LU 4.1). The amendment is also consistent with the 
Zoning Ordinance in that the City is allowed to amend its parking requirements from 
time to time to address changes in the marketplace and to keep up with current 
parking and traffic trends. Nothing in the proposed amendment will impact any 
residential or commercial development which is solely regulated within the parking 
ordinance. 


  







SECTION 3. AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
Section 17.188.030.B.2 (parking standards table) is hereby amended to modify the 


certain Categories and Notes to read as follows: 
 
 


NUMBER OF REQUIRED PARKING/STACKING SPACES 
GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL/RETAIL USES 


PER SQUARE 
FOOT OR UNIT 


PER 
EMPLOYEE 
OR 
STUDENT 


OTHER 
CRITERIA 


FOR 
VEHICLE 
STACKING 


general retail; including but not 
limited to, neighborhood, 
community and regional 
shopping centers, including 
those with restaurants 


6.0 spaces / 
1,000 square 
feet of net 
leasable floor 
area 


 When a use will 
be locating 
within an 
existing retail 
center and 
requires a CUP 
or Plot Plan, the 
applicant shall 
prepare a 
parking 
analysis plan to 
demonstrate 
there is 
sufficient 
parking 
available on-
site to serve the 
new use 
without 
impacting 
existing parking 
demand.  Said 
plan shall be 
reviewed and 
approved by 
the Planning 
Commission. 


 


restaurants, drive-thrus, walk-
ups, cafes, lounges, bars and 
other establishments for the sale 
and consumption on the 
premises of food and 
beverages: 


1 space/45 sq. 
ft. of serving 
area 


1 space/2 
employees 


 drive-thru 
restaurants 
shall have 
stacking for 
12 vehicles 
total behind 
the menu 
board either in 
a single lane 
or double 
lane. 


  







RESIDENTIAL USES PER SQUARE 
FOOT OR UNIT 


PER 
EMPLOYEE 
OR 
STUDENT 


OTHER 
CRITERIA 


FOR 
VEHICLE 
STACKING 


Single-family dwelling, including 
mobile home or manufactured 
home not within a mobile home 
park 


2 
spaces/dwelling 
unit in an 
enclosed garage 
or covered 
carport onsite. 


 
May be 
attached or 
detached. 


Tandem 
space allowed 
if a third 
space is 
provided. 


Multiple-family dwelling units 
such as apartments, 
townhomes, or condominiums. 
(Parking must be conveniently 
distributed throughout the site, 
and within 200 feet of the 
building/unit they serve) 


 
1 space per 
employee 
required. 


  


              Studio and One (1) Bedroom 
Units. 


1.25 spaces/unit  1 space must 
be in an 
enclosed 
garage 


 


              Two (2) Bedroom Units. 2.25 spaces/unit 
 


2 spaces must 
be in an 
enclosed 
garage 


 


              Three or more Bedroom Units. 2.50 spaces/unit 
 


2 spaces must 
be in an 
enclosed 
garage 


Tandem 
parking 
allowed for 3rd 
space 


              Visitor Parking 15% of total 
required spaces 


 Visitor parking 
may be covered 
or open but 
must be located 
on-site. 


 


Mobile Home Parks (including 
mobile home subdivisions) 


2 spaces/travel 
trailer or mobile 
home space; 
Parking spaces 
may be tandem. 


 
1 guest space / 
8 mobile home 
spaces 


 


NOTES: 
• The columns, working left to right, are generally additive unless otherwise indicated. 
• Unless otherwise specified, all parking must be within 300 feet of the use served on the same parcel 


as the use, or on an adjoining appropriately zoned parcel. 
• All vehicle storage (stacking) spaces shall be located off-street. A driveway for stacking leading to a 


drive-up window shall be designed so as not to interfere with the free or orderly circulation of the 
parking area. 


• Required parking for any uses outlined in Sec. 17.188.030.A above may be reduced in accordance 
with the “Alternative Programs for Parking” allowances outlined Section 17.188.030.B.5&6 of this 
code.   


  







SECTION 4.  AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
Section 17.188.030.B.5 (Alternative Programs for Parking) of the Wildomar 


Municipal Code is hereby amended in its entirety and replaced with the following to read 
as follows: 


 
5. Alternative Programs for Parking. 


a. A residential, commercial or industrial project may provide for alternative 
programs which reduce parking demand in return for a reduction in the number 
of off-street parking spaces required. 


b. Alternative programs that may be considered by the Planning Director under this 
provision include, but are not limited to, the following: 
i. Private Carpool/Vanpool Operations. Office or industrial developments 


which guarantee preferred parking spaces to employees who participate 
regularly in a car or van pool may have their parking requirement reduced 
by two parking spaces for every one space which is marked for car or van 
pool at a preferred location. 


ii. Mass Transit. Developments which are located within 150 feet of a mass 
transit facility may have their parking requirement reduced by two percent 
of the total number of required parking spaces. 


iii. Planned Residential Development—Senior Citizen. A 20% reduction in the 
total number of required parking spaces may be allowed when an 
alternative senior citizen transportation program is proposed. 


iv. Bicycle Parking. Developments which provide secured bicycle parking 
facilities exceeding the minimum requirement may reduce the number of 
required parking spaces by one vehicle space for every three additional 
bicycle spaces provided. 


v. Shared Parking Requirements. In order to encourage efficient use of 
parking spaces and good design practices, the total parking requirements 
for conjunctive uses shall be based on the number of spaces adequate to 
meet various needs of the individual uses operating during the peak parking 
period. 
(A) The Planning Director may, upon application by the owner or lessee 


of any property, authorize shared use of parking facilities under the 
following conditions: 
(1) Sufficient evidence shall be presented to the Planning Director to 


demonstrate that the peak hours of parking demand from all uses 
combined do not coincide/conflict with the principal hours or peak 
parking demand which propose to share parking.  The efficiency 
of parking provided will equal or exceed the level that can be 
expected if parking for each use were provided separately. 







(2) The building or use for which an application for shared parking is 
being made shall be located within 150 feet of the parking area 
to be shared. 


(3) No more than 50% of the parking space requirement shall be met 
through shared parking. 


(4) Parties sharing off-street parking facilities shall provide evidence 
of a reciprocal parking agreement for such joint use by a proper 
legal instrument recorded in the office of the County Recorder 
with the number of copies as required and thereof filed with the 
Building and Safety Department. 


vi. Shared parking agreement.  A written agreement between the landowners 
and in some cases the city that runs with the land shall be filed, in a form 
satisfactory to the city attorney, and include: 
(A) A guarantee that there will be no substantial alteration in the uses that 


will create a greater demand for parking without application for 
approval of an amended conditional use permit, plot plan, or other 
discretionary approval as appropriate. 


(B) A reciprocal grant of nonexclusive license among the business 
operator(s) and the landowner(s) for access to and use of the shared 
parking facilities. 


(C) Evidence that the agreement has been recorded in the county 
recorder’s office. 


SECTION 5.  AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
Section 17.188.030.B.6 (Special Review of Parking) of the Wildomar Municipal Code 


is hereby amended in its entirety and replaced with the following to read as follows:  
6. Special Review of Parking  


The Planning Director may reduce the parking requirement, as required above, for 
any use or combination of uses as part of the review of a development plan 
including, but not limited to, a plot plan, conditional use permit, public use permit, 
planned residential development or specific plan, based on the following 
conditions: 
a. The applicant shall submit a request for modification of parking standards, 


including sufficient evidence and documentation, to demonstrate to the 
Planning Director that unusual conditions warrant a parking reduction.  
Evidence shall include, but is not limited to, the following: 
i. Information showing that the parking area serves uses having peak 


parking demands which occur at different times; 
ii. Floor plans which indicate that the floor area devoted to customer or 


employee use is less than typical for the size building proposed; 







iii. Documentation that other programs which will be implemented by the 
developer or tenant(s) will result in a reduced parking demand, such as 
the provision of monetary incentives to employees who regularly utilize 
public transit or participate in a car or van pool. 


b. As a condition of approval for a parking reduction, the applicant may be 
required to record agreements or covenants prior to issuance of a building 
permit, which assure that appropriate programs are implemented for the 
duration of the parking reduction. 


c. Criteria for approval.  The planning director shall only grant approval if it is 
determined that the project meets three or more of the circumstances listed 
below and are true. 


i. The use will be adequately served by the proposed parking due to the 
nature of the proposed operation; proximity to frequent transit service; 
transportation characteristics of persons residing, working, or visiting the 
site; or because the applicant has undertaken a travel demand 
management program that will reduce parking demand at the site. 


ii. Parking demand generated by the project will not exceed the capacity of 
or have a detrimental impact on the supply of on-street parking in the 
surrounding area. 


iii. The site plan is consistent with the objectives of the zoning district and 
incorporates features such as unobtrusive off-street parking placed below 
the ground level of the project with commercial uses above or enclosed 
parking on the ground floor. 


iv. The applicant has provided on-site parking for car-share vehicles via a 
recorded written agreement between the landowner and the city that runs 
with the land. Agreement shall provide for proof of a perpetual agreement 
with a car-share agency to provide at least one car share vehicle on-site. 


d. The Planning Director, at his/her discretion, may elevate the request for a 
reduction of parking requirements as outlined above to the Planning 
Commission for review and approval.  If the request is part of a proposed plot 
plan, conditional use permit, public use permit, planned residential 
development or a specific plan, the request shall automatically be reviewed 
and approved by the Planning Commission as part of the underlying 
discretionary action. 


SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY 
If any chapter, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 


ordinance, is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such decision will not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted 
this ordinance, and each Chapter, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or 
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more Sections, subsections, 







subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional.” 
 
SECTION 7.  EFFECTIVE DATE.   


This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its passage by the City 
Council. 


SECTION 8.  CITY CLERK ACTION 
The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published 


within fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation and 
circulated within the City in accordance with Government Code Chapter 36933(a) or, to 
cause this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law using the alternative 
summary and posting procedure authorized under Government Code Chapter 39633(c). 


 INTRODUCED FOR FIRST READING this 13th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
 
 


_____________________ 
Dustin Nigg 
Mayor 


 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________  ___________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 
 
 







ATTACHMENT B 
Draft Redline-Strikeout Version of Text Only 


 
 
 
Section 17.188.030.B.2  –  Residential & Commercial Parking Standards – Proposed Revisions 
 
 Existing text language (no changes proposed) 
 Strikeout Changes (to be deleted) 
 New text language (to be added) 
 


NUMBER OF REQUIRED PARKING/STACKING SPACES 
RESIDENTIAL USES PER SQUARE 


FOOT OR UNIT 
PER EMPLOYEE 
OR STUDENT 


OTHER CRITERIA FOR VEHICLE 
STACKING 


Single-family dwelling, including mobile 
home or manufactured home not within 
a mobile home park 


2 spaces/dwelling 
unit in an enclosed 
garage or covered 
carport onsite. 


 
May be attached or 
detached. 


Tandem space 
allowed if a third 
space is 
provided. 


Multiple-family dwelling units such as 
apartments, townhomes, or 
condominiums. (Parking must be 
conveniently distributed throughout the 
site, and within 200 feet of the 
building/unit they serve) 


 
1 space per 
employee 
required. 


  


Studio and One (1) Bedroom Units. 1.25 spaces/unit  1 space must be in 
an enclosed 
garage 


 


Two (2) Bedroom Units. 2.25 spaces/unit 
 


2 spaces must be 
in an enclosed 
garage 


 


Three or more Bedroom Units. 2.75 spaces/unit 
2.50 spaces/unit 


 
2 spaces must be 
in an enclosed 
garage 


Tandem parking 
allowed for 3rd 
space 


Visitor Parking 15% of total 
required spaces 


 Visitor parking may 
be covered or open 
but must be located 
on-site. 


 


Planned residential development: 
• single bedroom dwelling unit: 
• two or more bedroom dwelling unit: 


 
1.5 spaces/unit 
2.5 spaces/unit 


   


Senior Citizen (parking spaces shall be 
located no more than 150 feet from the 
unit they serve) 


Refer to single 
family and multiple 
family residential 
requirements 
stated above 


   


Mobile Home Parks (including mobile 
home subdivisions) 


2 spaces/travel 
trailer or mobile 
home space; 
Parking spaces 
may be tandem. 


 
1 guest space / 8 
mobile home 
spaces 


 


  







General Commercial / Retail Uses PER SQUARE 
FOOT OR UNIT 


PER EMPLOYEE 
OR STUDENT 


OTHER CRITERIA FOR VEHICLE 
STACKING 


general retail; including but not limited to, 
neighborhood, community and regional 
shopping centers, including those with 
restaurants 


5½ spaces / 
1,000 sq. ft. of net 
leasable floor 
area 
6.0 spaces / 
1,000 square feet 
of net leasable 
floor area 


 When a use will be 
locating within an 
existing retail center 
and requires a CUP 
or Plot Plan, the 
applicant shall 
prepare a parking 
analysis plan to 
demonstrate there is 
sufficient parking 
available on-site to 
serve the new use 
without impacting 
existing parking 
demand.  Said plan 
shall be reviewed 
and approved by the 
Planning 
Commission as part 
of the revised permit 
approval process. 


 


restaurants, drive-thrus, walk-ups, cafes, 
lounges, bars and other establishments 
for the sale and consumption on the 
premises of food and beverages: 


1 space/45 sq. ft. 
of serving area 


1 space/2 
employees 


 stacking for 6 
vehicles behind the 
menu board 
drive-thru 
restaurants shall 
have stacking for 
12 vehicles total 
behind the menu 
board either in a 
single lane or 
double lane. 


 
NOTES: 
• The columns, working left to right, are generally additive unless otherwise indicated. 
• Unless otherwise specified, all parking must be within 300 feet of the use served on the same parcel as the use, 


or on an adjoining appropriately zoned parcel. 
• All vehicle storage (stacking) spaces shall be located off-street. A driveway for stacking leading to a drive-up 


window shall be designed so as not to interfere with the free or orderly circulation of the parking area. 
• Required parking for any uses outlined in Sec. 17.188.030.A above may be reduced in accordance with the 


“Alternative Programs for Parking” allowances outlined Section 17.188.030.B.5&6 of this code.   
 
 
Section 17.188.030.B.5 & 6  –  Alternative Programs for Parking – Proposed Revisions 
 
 Existing text language (no changes proposed) 
 Strikeout Changes (to be deleted) 
 New text language (to be added) 
 
 
B.5 Alternative Programs for Parking. 


a. A residential, commercial or industrial project may provide for alternative programs which reduce 
parking demand in return for a reduction in the number of off-street parking spaces required. 


b. Alternative programs that may be considered by the Planning Director under this provision include, 
but are not limited to, the following: 







i. Private Carpool/Vanpool Operations. Office or industrial developments which guarantee 
preferred parking spaces to employees who participate regularly in a car or van pool may have 
their parking requirement reduced by two parking spaces for every one space which is marked 
for car or van pool at a preferred location. 


ii. Mass Transit. Developments which are located within 150 feet of a mass transit facility may 
have their parking requirement reduced by two percent of the total number of required parking 
spaces. 


iii. Planned Residential Development—Senior Citizen. A 20% reduction in the total number of 
required parking spaces may be allowed when an alternative senior citizen transportation 
program is proposed. 


iv. Bicycle Parking. Developments which provide secured bicycle parking facilities exceeding the 
minimum requirement may reduce the number of required parking spaces by one vehicle space 
for every three additional bicycle spaces provided. 


v. Shared Parking Requirements.  In order to encourage efficient use of parking spaces and good 
design practices, the total parking requirements for conjunctive uses shall be based on the 
number of spaces adequate to meet various needs of the individual uses operating during the 
peak parking period. 


(A) The Planning Director may, upon application by the owner or lessee of any property, 
authorize shared use of parking facilities under the following conditions: 
(1) Sufficient evidence shall be presented to the Planning Director to demonstrate that 


the peak hours of parking demand from all uses combined do not coincide/conflict 
no substantial conflict with the principal hours or peak parking demand will exist 
between the uses or structures which propose to share parking.  The efficiency of 
parking provided will equal or exceed the level that can be expected if parking for 
each use were provided separately. so that peak demand will not be greater than 
the parking provided. 


(2) The building or use for which an application for shared parking is being made shall 
be located within 150 feet of the parking area to be shared. 


(3) No more than 50% of the parking space requirement shall be met through shared 
parking. 


(4) Parties sharing off-street parking facilities shall provide evidence of a reciprocal 
parking agreement for such joint use by a proper legal instrument recorded in the 
office of the County Recorder with the number of copies as required and thereof filed 
with the Building and Safety Department. 


(B) For projects within the Rubidoux village policy area of the Jurupa Community Plan which 
are zoned R-VC (Rubidoux-Village commercial), the Planning Director may, upon 
application by the owner or the lessee of any property, having 50 feet or more of street 
frontage or 7,500 square footage in building area, authorize shared use of parking facilities 
under the following conditions: 


(1) Individual lots of less than 50 feet in width or 7,500 square feet in area are exempt 
from the on-site parking requirement. 


(2) Individual lots with areas between 7,500 and 15,000 square feet may use street and 
public parking to meet no more than 75% of the parking requirement. 


(3) Individual lots in excess of 15,000 square feet may use street and public area 
parking to meet no more than 50% of the parking requirement. 


(4) When street parking is used to meet the parking requirement, all regular and 
handicap stalls on the street within 600 feet of the boundaries of the project may be 
counted. This provision applies to parking along Mission Boulevard as well as the 
local streets that serve Mission Boulevard. 







(5) Parking within public parking lots created as a function of the Jurupa Valley 
redevelopment plan (JVRP) already in existence may also be counted toward the 
shared parking allowance if located within 600 feet of the boundaries of the parcel 
in question. 


(6) An exemption from the off-street parking requirements is granted for all existing uses 
and structures undergoing remodeling or improvements that do not propose to alter 
the existing permitted uses, expand the area devoted to such uses or alter the 
existing parking arrangement. 


(7) Parking Area Improvement Standards. In situations where off-street parking is 
required, the design of the parking area must respond to the following criteria: 


(a) Access to parking areas over public or private sidewalks must be indicated by 
a change in paving texture. 


(b) A landscape buffer of a minimum five feet in width must separate the parking 
area from a public right-of-way or the building setback line. 


vi. Shared parking agreement.  A written agreement between the landowners and in some cases 
the city that runs with the land shall be filed, in a form satisfactory to the city attorney, and 
include: 


(A) A guarantee that there will be no substantial alteration in the uses that will create a greater 
demand for parking without application for approval of an amended conditional use permit, 
plot plan, or other discretionary approval as appropriate. 


(B) A reciprocal grant of nonexclusive license among the business operator(s) and the 
landowner(s) for access to and use of the shared parking facilities. 


(C) Evidence that the agreement has been recorded in the county recorder’s office. 


B.6 Special Review of Parking.  
The Planning Director may reduce the parking requirement, as required above, for any use or 
combination of uses as part of the review of a development plan including, but not limited to, a plot plan, 
conditional use permit, public use permit, a surface mining permit, planned residential development or 
specific plan, based on the following conditions: 


a. The applicant shall submit a request for modification of parking standards, including sufficient 
evidence and documentation, to demonstrate to the Planning Director that unusual conditions 
warrant a parking reduction.  Evidence shall include, but is not limited to, the following: 


i. Information showing that the parking area serves uses having peak parking demands which 
occur at different times; 


ii. Floor plans which indicate that the floor area devoted to customer or employee use is less 
than typical for the size building proposed; 


iii. Documentation that other programs which will be implemented by the developer or tenant(s) 
will result in a reduced parking demand, such as the provision of monetary incentives to 
employees who regularly utilize public transit or participate in a car or van pool. 


b. As a condition of approval for a parking reduction, the applicant may be required to record 
agreements or covenants prior to issuance of a building permit, which assure that appropriate 
programs are implemented for the duration of the parking reduction. 


c. Criteria for approval.  The planning director shall only grant approval if it is determined that the 
project meets three or more of the circumstances listed below and are true. 


i. The use will be adequately served by the proposed parking due to the nature of the proposed 
operation; proximity to frequent transit service; transportation characteristics of persons 
residing, working, or visiting the site; or because the applicant has undertaken a travel demand 
management program that will reduce parking demand at the site. 







ii. Parking demand generated by the project will not exceed the capacity of or have a detrimental 
impact on the supply of on-street parking in the surrounding area. 


iii. The site plan is consistent with the objectives of the zoning district and incorporates features 
such as unobtrusive off-street parking placed below the ground level of the project with 
commercial uses above or enclosed parking on the ground floor. 


iv. The applicant has provided on-site parking for car-share vehicles via a recorded written 
agreement between the landowner and the city that runs with the land. Agreement shall 
provide for proof of a perpetual agreement with a car-share agency to provide at least one car 
share vehicle on-site. 


d. The Planning Director, at his/her discretion, may elevate the request for a reduction of parking 
requirements as outlined above to the Planning Commission for review and approval.  If the request 
is part of a proposed plot plan, conditional use permit, public use permit, planned residential 
development or a specific plan, the request shall automatically be reviewed and approved by the 
Planning Commission as part of the underlying discretionary action. 


 


End….. 







ATTACHMENT C 
 


Adjacent City Research Document 
 







Canyon Lake (SFR) 


SRO/efficiency, studio, and 1-
bedroom units 


One covered parking space 


Two-bedroom units One covered parking space plus one uncovered parking 
space 


Three- and four-bedroom 
units 


One covered parking space and one and one-half 
uncovered parking space. 


 


(1)   Covered parking space must be in a garage or carport. 


(2)   Multi-family developments of ten or more dwelling units shall provide one 
visitor parking space for every ten dwelling units. 


 


Murrieta 


Single family 
housing 


Two spaces in a fully enclosed garage. 


Duplex housing 
units 


Two spaces for each unit, with at least one space in a fully 
enclosed garage. 


Multi-family 
dwellings and other 
attached dwellings 


a) Studio and one bedroom units: 1.5 spaces for each unit, with 
one space for each unit in a fully enclosed garage, plus guest 
parking.   


b) Two bedrooms or more: 2 spaces for each unit, plus 0.5 
additional spaces for each bedroom over 2, with one space for 
each unit in a fully enclosed garage, plus guest parking equal to 
25% of the total number of units. 


Mobile homes (in 
mobile home parks) 


Two spaces for each mobile home (tandem parking allowed in an 
attached carport), plus one guest parking space for each four units. 


Condominiums a) Studio, one bedroom and two bedroom units: Two covered 
spaces for each unit, with one space for each unit in a fully 
enclosed garage, plus guest parking.   
 


b) Three bedrooms or more:  Two spaces for each unit with one 
space for each unit in a fully enclosed garage; plus 0.5 
additional spaces for each bedroom over two; plus guest 
parking equal to 33% of the total number of units evenly spread 
throughout the entire project. 


Mixed-use 
developments 
(residential portion) 


Determined by conditional use permit. 


 







Menifee 


Single family housing 2 spaces per dwelling unit 
Duplex (two-family dwelling) 2 spaces per dwelling unit 
Multiple-family: single bedroom or studio 1.00 spaces per unit 


1 guest space per each 10 dwelling units 
Multiple-family: two bedrooms 1.50 spaces per unit 


1 guest space per each 10 dwelling units 
Multiple-family: three or more bedrooms 2.50 spaces per unit 


1 guest space per each 10 dwelling units 
1 space per employee 


Planned residential development: single-
bedroom or studio 


1.25 spaces per unit 


Planned residential development: two or 
more bedrooms 


2.5 spaces per unit 


Senior citizen development 1.25 per unit 
 


Residential parking requirements set forth in this Chapter shall be provided within a 
parking structure or enclosed one- and two-car garages, except that for multiple family 
residences, condominiums, planned residential developments  and senior citizen 
planned residential developments, at least one of the required parking spaces per unit 
shall be located in a garage or carport. Parking spaces shall be assigned to each 
individual unit. Individual one- and two-car garages shall maintain a minimum clear 
parking area of not less than 10 feet by 20 feet for a one-car garage and not less than 
20 feet by 20 feet for a two-car garage. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Lake Elsinore 


Single family housing Two spaces per dwelling unit in a garage, plus two open 
spaces, which may be located in the driveway in a 
tandem position, in front of the garage door. 


Multifamily and 
attached single-family 
dwellings, duplexes 


(1) For studio and one-bedroom units: one covered 
space, plus two-thirds open space per dwelling unit; 
 
(2) For two or more bedrooms: one covered space, plus 
one and one-third open space per dwelling unit. 


 


 


Perris 


Single family housing a) Light agricultural zone: Two spaces, one within 
a garage. 


b) Rural residential/agricultural zone: Two spaces, 
one within a garage. 


c) Detached residential, R-4 zone: Two garage 
spaces. 


d) Detached residential, R-7 zone: Two garage 
spaces. 


Apartments: One space per 
unit shall be within a carport 
or an enclosed garage. 


e) Studio unit: 1.5 spaces 
f) One bedroom unit: 1.5 spaces 
g) Two bedroom unit: 2 spaces 
h) Three bedroom unit or more: 2.5 spaces 
i) One guest parking space per five units. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Temecula 


Single family housing 2 enclosed spaces 
Duplexes, triplexes 2 covered spaces/unit, plus 1 guest space/4 units 
Multiple-family residential—3 
or fewer bedrooms (12 or less 
units) 


2—5 units: 2 covered spaces/unit, plus 2 guest spaces 
 
6—12 units: 2 covered spaces/unit plus 3 guest spaces 


Multiple-family residential—13 
or more units 


1 covered parking space plus 0.5 uncovered parking 
space for 1 bedroom units. In addition, 1 guest space 
for every 6 units. 
 
1 covered parking space plus 1 uncovered parking 
space for 2 bedroom units. In addition, 1 guest space 
for every 6 units. 
 
2 covered parking spaces and 0.5 uncovered parking 
space for three bedroom (or more) units. In addition, 1 
guest space for every 6 units. 
 
A minimum of 4 guest spaces is required for all 
multifamily residential with 13 or more units. 


Senior citizens housing 
complex 


0.5 covered space/unit plus 1 uncovered space per 5 
units for guest parking 


 







 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #2.5 


PUBLIC HEARING 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021  


________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the Abatement of all Weeds 


Declared as a Public Nuisance 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - ____ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
AUTHORIZING THE ABATEMENT OF WEEDS AND/OR CAUSING THE 


REMOVAL OF RUBBISH, REFUSE OR DIRT DECLARED TO BE A PUBLIC 
NUISANCE, TO KEEP AN ACCOUNT OF THE COSTS OF ABATING SUCH 


NUISANCE, AND TO FILE SUCH ACCOUNT IN A REPORT AND 
ASSESSMENT LIST WITH THE CITY COUNCIL 


 
BACKGROUND: 
The City Council on September 8, 2021 approved Resolution No. 2021-48 
declaring weeds, rubbish, refuse and dirt upon private property and adjacent 
public rights of way a public nuisance, initiating Abatement Proceedings.  A 
Public Hearing was set for October 13, 2021 to consider objections to the 
proposed removal of weeds pursuant to Government Code Section 39568.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
Staff noticed the properties identified in Resolution No. 2021-48 informing them 
that the weeds constitute a public nuisance that must be abated by removal 
otherwise the nuisance will be abated by the city that will constitute a lien upon 
the property.  The notice informed the property owners of the Public Hearing set 
for October 13, 2021 to hear objections to the abatement.  
 
Following the Public Hearing, staff recommends the City Council adopt the 
attached Resolution.  Adoption of the Resolution provides the City legal authority 
to abate the weeds.  Fire inspection will re-inspect the properties included in 
Attachment A of the Resolution prior to sending a work order to their contractor to 
abate the weeds.  After the city abates the weeds, staff will bring back to the City 
Council a report of the costs to abate for each property and a Resolution to 
collect the costs through tax assessment. 







 


 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
The fiscal impacts have been appropriated in the Operating Budget and include 
staff and fire inspection time associated with the Abatement process.  Costs 
associated with the abatement performed by the city will be brought back to the 
City Council.  
 
 
Submitted by:     Approved by: 
Daniel York                         Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager    City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Exhibit “A” Weed Abatement List of Properties  







 


 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - ____ 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
AUTHORIZING THE ABATEMENT OF WEEDS AND/OR CAUSING THE 


REMOVAL OF RUBBISH, REFUSE OR DIRT DECLARED TO BE A PUBLIC 
NUISANCE, TO KEEP AN ACCOUNT OF THE COSTS OF ABATING SUCH 


NUISANCE, AND TO FILE SUCH ACCOUNT IN A REPORT AND 
ASSESSMENT LIST WITH THE CITY COUNCIL 


 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Wildomar adopted Resolution 


No. 2021-48 on the 8th day of September, 2021, declaring weeds and/or the 
accumulation of rubbish, refuse or dirt on the properties listed on the annual list 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A" to be a public nuisance and setting a hearing. 
 


WHEREAS, a hearing was duly noticed as required by law and such a 
hearing was held on 13th day of October, 2021, to hear comments and consider 
any objections to the proposed removal of weeds, rubbish, refuse and/or dirt; and  
 


WHEREAS the City Council duly considered and overruled any objections 
to the proposed nuisance abatement. 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Wildomar does hereby 
resolve that: 


SECTION 1. The City Council has considered the full record before it, which may 
include but is not limited to such things as staff reports, testimony by staff and the 
public, and other materials and evidence submitted or provided to it. 
Furthermore, the recitals set forth above are found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by reference. 


SECTION 2. The City Council hereby orders and authorizes the responsible 
employee to abate such public nuisances existing on those properties included in 
Exhibit "A'". The responsible employee shall keep an account of the cost of 
abatement on each listed parcel and submit to the City Clerk, for confirmation by 
the City Council, an itemized written report showing such costs to be assessed 
on the listed properties.   


  


  







 


 


PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 13th day of October, 2021. 


 


__________________________ 
Dustin Nigg, Mayor 


 


ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


 


 
________________________________ __________________________ 
Janet Morales, City Clerk Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney 
 
 







Parcel 


Number Homeowner's Mailing Address Homeowner's Name 1st Letter 


Re-


Inspection 


City 


Council
361-044-003 31702 RAILROAD CANYON RD, CANYON LAKE 92587 HELEN M. SCOTT 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-061-003 PO BOX 894131, TEMECULA 92589 RONALD D. CASSINI 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-061-017 PO BOX 894131, TEMECULA 92589 RONALD D. CASSINI 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-061-018 31702 RAILROAD CANYON RD, CANYON LAKE 92587 HELEN M. SCOTT 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-062-020 14359 HAVER FORD AVE., CHINO 91710 MIGUEL CHAVEZ VALLES; DELIA D. CHAVEZ 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-081-012 11028 JURUPA RD., MIRA LOMA 91752 HIBBARD CHARLENE B FAMILY TRUST; DOUGLAS HIBBARD 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-083-015 24182 OLIVE ST., MENIFEE 92584 J B ELITE 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-112-005 28761 AVENIDA PACIFIC, MENIFEE 92584 HBS FINANCIAL TAX & LAW INC 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-112-011 13587 VICTORIA ST., ETIWANDA 91739 MICHAEL N. PEREZ 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-112-012 4564 JONES AV NO 125, RIVERSIDE 92505 JOSE LUIS ROBLES 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-114-006 24601 GLEN IVY RD APT 136, CORONA 92883 MEHDI MOGHBELALHOSSEIN; NARGES SAATSAZ 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-172-013 23640 CIRCLE DR., QUAIL VALLEY 92587 GREGORIO BOTELLO 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-204-021 24570 BETHEL ST, WILDOMAR 92595 ISMAEL MARQUEZ 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-221-007 25351 NOELLE CT., LOMITA 90717 MICHELLE L FALCON HUBER 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-221-008 25351 NOELLE CT., LOMITA 90717 MICHELLE L FALCON HUBER 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
366-021-001 27134 TUBE ROSE ST., MURRIETA 92562 MARIO F. ZAVALA; MARCIA BERNARDA GRANJA 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
366-023-007 19800 OLD COACH RD., LAKE ELSINORE 92530 CECILIA E. MONTANO 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
366-112-007 6 N MICHIGAN AVE UNIT 1403, CHICAGO 60602 J BRUCE HASCH 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
366-270-029 4629 CASS ST NO 9, PACIFIC BEAC 92109 BEVERLY A. JUBALA 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
366-280-030 6476 E VIA ARBOLES, ANAHEIM 92807 STEPHEN L. OBRIEN 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
367-090-035 711 E IMPERIAL HWY, BREA 92821 NEXXGEN INC. 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-090-036 711 E IMPERIAL HWY, BREA 92821 NEXXGEN INC. 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-090-037 711 E IMPERIAL HWY, BREA 92821 NEXXGEN INC. 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-090-038 711 E IMPERIAL HWY, BREA 92821 NEXXGEN INC. 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-150-017 3857 BIRCH ST STE 501, NEWPORT BEACH 92660 WEST COAST FUND 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-180-040 622 FELLOWS DR., ORANGE 92865 BRIAN M. JOHNSON; DARLENE RUE LOWE 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-250-007 2910 S ARCHIBALD AVE A350, ONTARIO 91761 23263 BUNDY CANYON ROAD 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-280-022 33290 TRANQUIL LN, WILDOMAR 92595 ARTURO GARCIA NAVA; MARIBEL DIAZ 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-310-002 9402 WELDON DR, GARDEN GROVE 92841 DUK SOOK CHOI 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
368-110-057 4340 VON KARMAN AVE 110, NEWPORT BEACH 92660 WILDOMAR HOUSING PARTNERS 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
368-110-058 4340 VON KARMAN AVE 110, NEWPORT BEACH 92660 WILDOMAR HOUSING PARTNERS 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
368-110-059 4340 VON KARMAN AVE 110, NEWPORT BEACH 92660 WILDOMAR HOUSING PARTNERS 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
368-110-060 4340 VON KARMAN AVE 110, NEWPORT BEACH 92660 WILDOMAR HOUSING PARTNERS 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
370-060-003 9341 HAZEL CIR, VILLA PARK 92861 BEL AIR ENTERPRISES INC 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
370-230-033 33070 TRANQUIL LN, WILDOMAR 92595 PEDRO GARCIA 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
370-371-007 20691 GRAND AVE, WILDOMAR 92595 GEORGE WALTERS 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
370-400-009 1003 FOXGLOVE VIEW, CARLSBAD 92011 LOMA LINDA RENTALS INC. 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
380-040-005 3606 FRONT ST, SAN DIEGO 92103 RONALD AUERBACHER; DAVID P. WOLSKE 6/28/21 8/4/21 X


EXHIBIT A







380-120-013 43180 CORONA CALA CAMINO, MURRIETA 92562 CRAZY EIGHTS 6/28/21 8/4/21 X
380-150-011 35690 IODINE SPRINGS RD., WILDOMAR 92595 BRUCE E. RESTAD; KIM B. RESTAD 6/28/21 8/4/21 X
380-160-018 26111 SALLY DR, LAKE FOREST 92630 R & H WILDOMAR 1 6/28/21 8/4/21 X
380-160-021 PO BOX 976, ORANGE, 92856 KAREN GONZALES 6/28/21 8/4/21 X
380-183-013 PO BOX 610, MURRIETA 92564 STONEHURST HOMEOWNERS ASSN 6/28/21 8/4/21 X
380-210-016 26111 SALLY DR, LAKE FOREST 92630 R & H WILDOMAR 1 6/28/21 8/4/21 X
380-290-002 1526 ZARA STREET, GLENDORA 91741 SHIBA YAMAMOTO & PARTNERS 6/28/21 8/4/21 X


376-043-027 3173 VERA VALLEY RD., FRANKLIN, TN 37064
GHEVOND HOOKASSIAN; WAKELIN MCNEEL; ZARAH 


HOOKASSIAN; PARVANEH ZOLNOUNI
8/2/21 9/1/21 X


376-051-006 35431 MEADOW PARK CR., WILDOMAR 92595 JALEEL KARIMI 8/2/21 9/1/21 X


376-150-002 27174 NEWPORT RD. #3, MENIFEE 92584
LA CRUZ RODRIGEZ LEOVE DE; MONICA R. RODRIGUEZ; 


DEVEN OWEN; KELLY OWEN
8/2/21 9/1/21 X


376-150-003 27174 NEWPORT RD. #3, MENIFEE 92584
LA CRUZ RODRIGEZ LEOVE DE; MONICA R. RODRIGUEZ; 


DEVEN OWEN; KELLY OWEN
8/2/21 9/1/21 X


376-150-014 21618 PALOMAR RD., WILDOMAR 92595 SAUL AYALA 8/2/21 9/1/21 X
376-320-010 14530 CORNISHCREST RD., WHITTIER 90604 JAMES A. TANQUARY; KATHRYN S. TANQUARY 8/2/21 9/1/21 X


362-240-005 16391 HARWICH CR., RIVERSIDE 92503
STEPHEN E. MACIE; MARIA S. MACIE; ELLEN P. MERKIN; 


JOSEPH D. MERKIN
8/2/21 9/1/21 X


362-240-008 16391 HARWICH CR., RIVERSIDE 92503
STEPHEN E. MACIE; MARIA S. MACIE; ELLEN P. MERKIN; 


JOSEPH D. MERKIN
8/2/21 9/1/21 X


382-150-046 22961 FAWN LAKE PL., CANYON LAKE 92587 CALEB JOHNSON 8/2/21 9/1/21 X
382-150-048 22961 FAWN LAKE PL., CANYON LAKE 92587 CALEB JOHNSON 8/2/21 9/1/21 X







 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.1 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 


TO: Mayor and City Council Members 


FROM: Gary Nordquist, City Manager 


SUBJECT: COVID-19 Update  


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the COVID-19 update and 
provide direction as desired. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Staff will be providing an update on actions taken by the City in response to COVID-19 
and is requesting Council to provide direction as desired.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted & Approved by:      
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager   
     
ATTACHMENTS: 
None. 







  


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item 3.2 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
 Meeting Date:  October 13, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 
PREPARED BY: Adam J. Jantz, Administrative Analyst II 
  
SUBJECT:  FY 2021-22 1st Quarter Budget Report 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends that the City Council review and consider approval of the Fiscal Year 
2021-22 First Quarter Report, and adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE FY 2021-22 BUDGETED 
REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND UPDATE THE FY 2021-22 AUTHORIZED 


POSITION SCHEDULE 
 
1st QUARTER BUDGET REPORT 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This 1st Quarter budget report for Fiscal Year 2021-22 reflects the Finance Division of the 
Administrative Services Department’s continued efforts to provide timely, accurate, and 
understandable financial information to assist the City Council with the decision-making 
process.  All funds have been reviewed in preparing this report.  
 
Also considered in this 1st Quarter budget report, are the current and future effects of the 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) situation and its impacts on businesses and other activities 
within the City. 


The emphasis of this report is on the General Fund (100) which funds most of the 
government services such as public safety, general administrative services, building, 
planning, economic development, etc., and the significant recommended adjustments 
related to the Non-General Funds. This report also discusses prior year results, budget 
trends, and the economic/political outlook that may impact the City's resources. 


The primary purposes of this 1st Quarter Budget report are to: 







  
 


  


• Recommend budgetary changes to address known budget deficiencies 
• Recommend budget changes to align the budget with projected fiscal year-end 


actual costs 
• Identify changes which materially impact fund balances 
• Recommend additions and changes to the Authorized Position Schedule 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 
On June 9, 2021, the City Council adopted the biennial operating budget for fiscal years 
2021-22 and 2022-23 for the City of Wildomar. That budget plan represented a 
conservative and balanced budget for fiscal year 2021-22 totaling $14,889,100 in General 
Fund revenue and $14,837,100 in General Fund expenditures. Other General Fund 
revenues, which include Measure AA, were budgeted at $7,367,200 with Other General 
Fund expenditures totaling $4,684,200. Non-General Fund revenues summed from all 
other funds totaled $15,411,400 and expenditures were budgeted at $17,554,900. 
 
In this FY 2020-21 1st Quarter budget presentation, General Fund revenue projections 
are $14,894,700, a net increase of $5,600. This is due to a $5,000 increase resulting from 
receiving a higher amount of fixed engineering permits.  
 
For Other General Funds, no changes are recommended for Measure AA. The City 
received the first half of its ARPA distribution in July 2021. The amount was higher than 
initially anticipated at $4,452,984 and the revenue has been increased $953,000. 
 
For Non-General Funds, the anticipated revenues are $15,748,800, which is a net 
increase of $337,400. Most of this is related to the award of a $300,000 grant for Bundy 
Canyon Sidewalk in Fund 203. The City also has entered into a reimbursement 
agreement to cover $59,300 of Bundy Canyon costs in fund 501.  
 
For General Fund expenditures, staff is recommending a net increase of $83,100 for a 
total expenditure budget of $14,996,500. Part of this increase is due to higher than 
anticipated Workers Comp and City insurance premiums in the amount of $35,900. Staff 
also recommends adding $20,300 in additional budget for new Code Enforcement 
software and supplies. An additional $14,000 is also being added to Non-Departmental 
for Temporary City Hall concept work. 
 
For Other General Funds, American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Fund 115 is recommended 
to increase $96,700 to cover additional Covid-19 related expenditures including certain 
aspects of the new front lobby which will reduce Covid-19 exposure. For Measure AA, the 
only significant addition is an addition of $115,000 for the Palomar Widening capital 
project.   
 
Non-General Fund expenditures are recommended to increase a net $363,700. This is 
primarily due to the award of a $300,000 grant in fund 203 for Bundy Canyon Sidewalks 
CIP092. Fund 501 Capital Investment is also recommended to increase $59,300 due to 







  
 


  


the City entering a reimbursement agreement with Elsinore Valley Municipal Water 
District to cover certain costs relating to Bundy Canyon Widening. 
 
Regarding personnel adjustments, and to continue the work on the City’s organizational 
structure plans, staff is recommending Council approval to add a Senior Engineer position 
to Public Works to assist with the management of our Capital Improvement Projects (CIP). 
This position was originally in the FY 2022-23 Authorized Position Schedule; however, 
staff has determined that it would be in the City’s best interest to move this position from 
a contract labor agency employee to City employment now. 
 
Staff is also recommending that the Administrative Analyst I position currently listed in 
Building be moved to Code Enforcement. This move completes the staffing needs of the 
City’s Code Enforcement Division without affecting the Building & Safety Division. 
 
In addition to these adjustments, staff are also submitting 3 decision packages to the City 
Council for approval. The funding distribution for FY2021/22 is as follows: $25,000 
General Fund 100 - $110,100 Measure AA Fund 120.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
1st QUARTER BUDGET REPORT: 
$5,600 General Fund Revenue net increase  
$83,100 General Fund Expenditures net increase 
$953,000 Other General Fund Revenue net increase  
$219,500 Other General Fund Expenditures net increase  
$337,400 Non-General Fund Revenue net increase  
$363,700 Non-General Fund Expenditures net increase  
 
 
Submitted by:         Approved by: 
Robert Howell        Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director      City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 2021-XX 
FY 2021-22 1st Quarter Budget Financial Reports and Proposed Adjustments 
FY 2021-22 Schedule of Authorized Positions 
FY 2021-22 1st Quarter Decision Packages 
  







  
 


  


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE FY 2021-22 BUDGETED 
REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND UPDATE THE FY 2021-22 AUTHORIZED 
POSITION SCHEDULE 
 


WHEREAS, The City of Wildomar Biennial Budget for FY 2021-22 and 2022-23 
was approved by the Wildomar City Council on June 9, 2021; 


 
WHEREAS, The Wildomar City Council approved on June 30, 2021, the 


Authorized Position Schedules for FY 2021-22 and 2022-23; 
 


WHEREAS, changing economic conditions, program and service reviews require 
that the original approved budget and authorized position schedule be regularly monitored 
and updated: and 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 


Wildomar authorizes the amendment to the FY 2021-22 Budgets increasing the total 
amount of projected revenues to $38,963,700 and total projected expenditures to 
$37,842,600, and to approve the proposed changes to the FY 2021-22 Authorized 
Position Schedule. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 13th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Dustin Nigg 
       Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 


 







Estimated Fund 
Balance


Approved 
Revenues


Proposed 1st Qtr 
Revenue 


Adjustments


Estimated Funds 
Available


Approved 
Appropriations


Proposed 1st Qtr 
Expenditure 
Adjustments


Estimated 
Available Fund 


Balance


6/30/2021 + 2021-22 + 2021-22 = 2021-22 - 2021-22 - 2021-22 6/30/2022
General Fund


100 General Fund 1,005,864$         14,889,100$         5,600$                  15,900,564$               14,913,400$            83,100$                904,064$              
110 Development Agreement 41,620                389,600                 -                        431,220                       82,500                      -                         348,720                
115 ARPA Fund -                       3,500,000             953,000                4,453,000                   698,400                    96,700                   3,657,900             
120 Measure AA 2,252,178           3,477,600             -                        5,729,778                   3,912,100                 122,800                1,694,878             


Total General Funds 3,299,662           22,256,300           958,600                26,514,562                 19,606,400              302,600                6,605,562             


Non-General Funds
200 Gas Tax (614,972)             952,500                 -                        337,528                       936,200                    -                         (598,672)               
201 Measure A 85,551                703,100                 -                        788,651                       554,900                    20,000                   213,751                
203 TDA Fund -                       275,000                 300,000                575,000                       275,000                    300,000                -                         
210 AQMD 157,237              46,000                   -                        203,237                       51,800                      -                         151,437                
251 LLMD 89-1C 1,116,183           332,000                 -                        1,448,183                   467,500                    -                         980,683                
252 CSA-22 (80,561)               31,400                   -                        (49,161)                       45,500                      -                         (94,661)                 
253 CSA-103 (313,211)             173,700                 -                        (139,511)                     199,500                    -                         (339,011)               
254 CSA-142 96,808                36,800                   -                        133,608                       34,800                      -                         98,808                  
255 Measure Z Parks Fund 221,853              429,400                 -                        651,253                       477,000                    -                         174,253                
259 CFD 2017-1 DIF Deferral 19,886                89,300                   -                        109,186                       83,800                      -                         25,386                  
260 CFD 2013-1 Maintenance 199,651              54,200                   -                        253,851                       54,100                      -                         199,751                
261 CFD 2013-1 Annex 1 Zone 3 229,759              61,500                   -                        291,259                       61,500                      -                         229,759                
262 CFD 2013-1 Annex 2 Zone 4 (3,328)                 300                        -                        (3,028)                          200                           -                         (3,228)                   
263 CFD 2013-1 Annex 3 Zone 5 127,743              40,700                   -                        168,443                       40,600                      -                         127,843                
264 CFD 2013-1 Annex 4 Zone 6 -                       -                         -                        -                               -                            -                         -                         
265 CFD 2013-1 Annex 5 Zone 7 -                       -                         -                        -                               -                            -                         -                         
266 CFD 2013-1 Annex 6 Zone 8 25,715                8,900                     -                        34,615                         8,900                        -                         25,715                  
267 CFD 2013-1 Annex 7 Zone 9 40,362                11,100                   -                        51,462                         11,100                      -                         40,362                  
268 CFD 2013-1 Annex 8 Zone 10 -                       -                         -                        -                               -                            -                         -                         
269 CFD 2013-1 Spec Tax B 197                      126,100                 -                        126,297                       17,300                      -                         108,997                
270 CFD 2013-1 Zone 11 31,810                16,800                   -                        48,610                         16,800                      -                         31,810                  
271 CFD 2013-1 Zone 13 1,727                  1,200                     -                        2,927                           1,100                        -                         1,827                     
272 CFD 2013-1 Zone 14 12,876                6,900                     -                        19,776                         6,800                        -                         12,976                  
273 CFD 2013-1 Zone 15 17,249                16,500                   -                        33,749                         16,500                      -                         17,249                  
274 CFD 2013-1 Zone 16 -                       7,000                     -                        7,000                           7,000                        -                         -                         
275 CFD 2013-1 Zone 17 (17,600)               -                         -                        (17,600)                       -                            -                         (17,600)                 
276 CFD 2013-1 Zone 18 5,600                  19,800                   -                        25,400                         19,800                      -                         5,600                     
277 CFD 2013-1 Zone 19 23,000                15,700                   -                        38,700                         15,600                      -                         23,100                  
278 CFD 2013-1 Zone 20 -                       -                         -                        -                               -                            -                         -                         
279 CFD 2013-1 Zone 21 -                       2,400                     -                        2,400                           2,400                        -                         -                         
280 Grants (166,990)             315,000                 -                        148,010                       240,400                    -                         (92,390)                 
281 SLESF (54)                       150,000                 -                        149,946                       150,000                    -                         (54)                         
282 CDBG (114,433)             35,000                   -                        (79,433)                       32,500                      -                         (111,933)               
283 PEG Grant 28,191                35,000                   -                        63,191                         26,800                      -                         36,391                  
284 Streetlights 129,070              175,400                 -                        304,470                       173,700                    -                         130,770                
290 COVID-19 (94,132)               -                         -                        (94,132)                       -                            -                         (94,132)                 
300 Cemetery 1,215,277           653,500                 -                        1,868,777                   934,900                    11,800                   922,077                
301 Cemetery Endowment 303,407              29,000                   -                        332,407                       -                            -                         332,407                
302 Cemetery CIP (34,863)               50,000                   -                        15,137                         50,000                      -                         (34,863)                 
410 Administrative Svs - Dif (89,729)               4,600                     -                        (85,129)                       15,000                      -                         (100,129)               
420 Public Facilities - Dif 249,067              30,100                   -                        279,167                       -                            -                         279,167                
421 Police - Dif 502,413              17,800                   -                        520,213                       -                            -                         520,213                
422 Animal Shelter - Dif (738,049)             19,600                   -                        (718,449)                     48,800                      -                         (767,249)               
423 Corporate Yard  - Dif (11,153)               6,200                     -                        (4,953)                          -                            -                         (4,953)                   
430 Fire Facilities - Dif 700,673              34,500                   -                        735,173                       -                            -                         735,173                
440 Trans & Roads - Dif 3,009,562           242,100                 -                        3,251,662                   1,732,400                 -                         1,519,262             
450 Trans & Signals -Dif 583,660              31,500                   -                        615,160                       534,100                    -                         81,060                  
451 Drainage - Dif 676,470              144,400                 -                        820,870                       123,600                    -                         697,270                
460 Park Land Acquisitions-Dif (111,693)             46,800                   -                        (64,893)                       -                            -                         (64,893)                 
461 Park Improvements-Dif 644,687              307,700                 -                        952,387                       256,800                    -                         695,587                
470 Community Center - Dif 320,151              37,200                   -                        357,351                       -                            -                         357,351                
480 Multi-purpose Trails - Dif 349,576              59,100                   -                        408,676                       -                            -                         408,676                
490 Library - Dif 53,606                -                         -                        53,606                         19,000                      -                         34,606                  
500 RMRA Capital Projects 602,701              714,300                 -                        1,317,001                   1,100,000                 -                         217,001                
501 Capital Reinvestment -                       200,000                 59,300                  259,300                       200,000                    59,300                   -                         
502 RCFC Fund 103,083              206,300                 -                        309,383                       206,300                    -                         103,083                
503 TUMF Fund (93,510)               4,746,100             27,500                  4,680,090                   4,658,000                 22,000                   90                          
504 CMAQ Fund -                       -                         -                        -                               -                            -                         -                         
505 MSRC Fund 50,000                -                         -                        50,000                         -                            -                         50,000                  
506 HSIP Fund 37,249                114,400                 (49,400)                102,249                       114,400                    (49,400)                 37,249                  
507 Misc State Funded Projects 12,174                31,500                   -                        43,674                         31,500                      -                         12,174                  
508 Local Capital Grants -                       3,516,000             -                        3,516,000                   3,516,000                 -                         -                         


Total Non-General Funds 9,499,946$         15,411,400$         337,400$             25,248,746$               17,569,900$            363,700$              7,315,146$           


Total City Funds 12,799,608$       37,667,700$         1,296,000$          51,763,308$               37,176,300$            666,300$              13,920,708$         


38,963,700$        37,842,600$         


FY 2021-22 Budget Review
1st Quarter FY2021-22


Total City of Wildomar Budget Summary


Total Adjusted Expenditures:Total Adjusted Revenue:


Page 1







City of Wildomar
Revenue Group Budget Report
1st Quarter Report FY 2020/21
July 1st, 2021 to September 30th, 2021


3 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed
Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


100  General Fund


3100   Sales & Use Tax 2,413,100                   -                              2,413,100                   0% -                              2,413,100                   
3101   Sales & Use Tax TFL -                              -                              -                                  0% -                              -                              
3102   Property Tax in Lieu of Sales Tax -                              -                              -                                  0% -                              -                              
3103   ERAF Sales Tax -                              -                              -                                  0% -                              -                              
3104   Pass-Through Property Tax 175,000                      -                              175,000                      0% -                              175,000                      
3105   Property Tax-Secured 4,304,700                   -                              4,304,700                   0% -                              4,304,700                   
3106   Property Tax-Unsecured 186,600                      -                              186,600                      0% -                              186,600                      
3107   Property Tax-Prior Year 126,700                      -                              126,700                      0% -                              126,700                      
3108   Property Tax-HOPTR 43,800                        -                              43,800                        0% -                              43,800                        
3109   Property Tax-Supplemental, SBE 68,600                        -                              68,600                        0% -                              68,600                        
3110   Real Property Transfer Tax 193,800                      29,056                        164,744                      15% -                              193,800                      
3112   Property Tax VLF Swap -                              -                              -                                  0% -                              -                              
3113   Property Tax-Misc Adjustments 1,000                          -                              1,000                          0% -                              1,000                          
3120   Franchise Fee-Solid Waste 380,000                      -                              380,000                      0% -                              380,000                      
3121   Franchise Fee-Electricity 388,000                      -                              388,000                      0% -                              388,000                      
3122   Franchise Fee-Gas 93,000                        -                              93,000                        0% -                              93,000                        
3123   Franchise Fee Cable-Charter 180,000                      -                              180,000                      0% -                              180,000                      
3124   Franchise Fee-Telecomm-Frontier 110,000                      -                              110,000                      0% -                              110,000                      
3200   Business Registration Fee 50,000                        3,226                          46,774                        6% -                              50,000                        
3201   NPDES Inspection Fee 8,000                          975                             7,025                          12% -                              8,000                          
3210   Planning Fee 500                             -                              500                             0% -                              500                             
3220   Cannabis Application Fee 96,000                        -                              96,000                        0% -                              96,000                        
3221   Cannabis Regulatory Fee 214,000                      38,625                        175,375                      18% -                              214,000                      
3230   Develop/Engineering Permit Fee 3,000                          4,903                          (1,903)                         163% 5,000                          8,000                          
3235   Encroachment Permit 92,900                        16,125                        76,775                        17% -                              92,900                        
3240   Building & Safety Fee 350,000                      52,939                        297,061                      15% -                              350,000                      
3244   MSHCP Admin Fee 2,700                          -                              2,700                          0% -                              2,700                          
3250   Fire Fees 65,500                        1,334                          64,166                        2% -                              65,500                        
3260   Private Development Fee - Pln & Bld 753,500                      -                              753,500                      0% -                              753,500                      
3261   Development Engineering Fee 490,800                      -                              490,800                      0% -                              490,800                      
3265   Animal Control Fee -                              -                              -                                  0% -                              -                              
3268   Code Enforcement Revenue 25,000                        1,123                          23,878                        4% -                              25,000                        
3270   Fines & Forfeitures 55,000                        4,935                          50,065                        9% -                              55,000                        
3271   AMR Fines 20,000                        -                              20,000                        0% -                              20,000                        
3300   Abandoned Property Registration 1,000                          100                             900                             10% -                              1,000                          
3310   Public Safety Revenue 16,000                        2,465                          13,535                        15% -                              16,000                        
3320   Special Event Revenue 3,000                          125                             2,875                          4% -                              3,000                          
3321   Community Room Rental Fee 500                             -                              500                             0% -                              500                             
3322   Parks & Recreation -                              -                              -                                  0% -                              -                              
3323   Farmers Market -                              -                              -                                  0% -                              -                              
3324   RTA Bus Pass 200                             -                              200                             0% -                              200                             
3500   Motor Vehicle License Fee 30,000                        -                              30,000                        0% -                              30,000                        
3501   Vehicle License Fee Replacement SB130 2,960,000                   -                              2,960,000                   0% -                              2,960,000                   
3525   SB90 State Mandated Cost Reimb 15,000                        -                              15,000                        0% -                              15,000                        
3535   County/Special Dist. Reimb. 16,500                        -                              16,500                        0% -                              16,500                        
3800   Interest Income 20,000                        240                             19,760                        1% -                              20,000                        
3803   NSF Fees 100                             -                              100                             0% -                              100                             
3848   Breakfast with Santa 2,000                          125                             1,875                          6% -                              2,000                          
3850   Miscellaneous Income 15,000                        -                              15,000                        0% -                              15,000                        
3852   Donations -                              520                             (520)                            0% 600                             600                             
3900   Transfers In 723,300                      -                              723,300                      0% -                              723,300                      
3903   DAERF Administrative Services Fees 200                             -                              200                             0% -                              200                             
3960   Canyon Lake Building Services 195,100                      -                              195,100                      0% -                              195,100                      


Total General Fund 14,889,100                 156,816                      14,732,284                 1% 5,600                          14,894,700                 


Page 2







City of Wildomar
Revenue Group Budget Report
1st Quarter Report FY 2020/21
July 1st, 2021 to September 30th, 2021


3 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed
Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


110  Development Agreement


3222   Cannabis Development Agreement Fee 142,000                      -                              142,000                      0% 142,000                      
3232   Development Agreement Fee 247,500                      -                              247,500                      0% 247,500                      
3800   Interest Income 100                             -                              100                             0% 100                             


Total Development Agreement 389,600                      -                              389,600                      0% -                              389,600                      


115  ARPA Fund


3540   American Rescue Plan Act Revenue 3,500,000                   4,452,984                   (952,984)                     127% 953,000                      4,453,000                   
Total ARPA Fund 3,500,000                   4,452,984                   (952,984)                     127% 953,000                      4,453,000                   


120  Measure AA Fund


3100   Sales & Use Tax 3,476,100                   -                              3,476,100                   0% -                              3,476,100                   
3800   Interest Income 1,500                          -                              1,500                          0% -                              1,500                          


Total Measure AA Fund 3,477,600                   -                              3,477,600                   0% -                              3,477,600                   


200  Gas Tax


3503   Gas Tax 2103 286,600                      70,790                        215,810                      25% -                              286,600                      
3505   Gas Tax 2105 210,500                      36,119                        174,381                      17% -                              210,500                      
3506   Gas Tax 2106 131,700                      23,680                        108,020                      18% -                              131,700                      
3507   Gas Tax 2107 267,700                      38,657                        229,043                      14% -                              267,700                      
3508   Gas Tax 2107.5 6,000                          6,000                          -                              100% -                              6,000                          
3509   Gas Tax Loan Repayment -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              
3535   County/Special Dist. Reimb. -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              
3540   Grant Revenue -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              
3850   Miscellaneous Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              
3900   Transfers In 50,000                        -                              50,000                        0% -                              50,000                        


Total Gas Tax 952,500                      175,247                      777,253                      18% -                              952,500                      


201  Measure A


3520   Measure A Revenue 703,000                      -                              703,000                      0% -                              703,000                      
3540   Grant Revenue -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              
3800   Interest Income 100                             -                              100                             0% -                              100                             
3850   Miscellaneous Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              


Total Measure A 703,100                      -                              703,100                      0% -                              703,100                      


203  TDA Fund


3524   TDA Article 3 Rev 275,000                      -                              275,000                      0% 300,000                      575,000                      
3540   Grant Revenue -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              
3850   Miscellaneous Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              


Total TDA Fund 275,000                      -                              275,000                      0% 300,000                      575,000                      


Page 3







City of Wildomar
Revenue Group Budget Report
1st Quarter Report FY 2020/21
July 1st, 2021 to September 30th, 2021


3 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed
Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


210  AQMD


3510   AQMD-AB2766 46,000                        -                              46,000                        0% 46,000                        
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total AQMD 46,000                        -                              46,000                        0% -                              46,000                        


250  LMD 2006-1


3550   Special Assessment -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3850   Miscellaneous Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3851   Save Our Park Donation -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900  Transfer In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total LMD 2006-1 -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              


251  LLMD 89-1C


3550   Special Assessment -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
8181   Zone 181 Special Assessment 26,400                        -                              26,400                        0% 26,400                        
8800   Zone 0 Special Assessment -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
8801   Special Assessment Zone 1 -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
8802   Special Assessment Zone 2 -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
8803   Zone 3 Special Assessment 107,700                      -                              107,700                      0% 107,700                      
8818   Zone 18 STL Special Assessment 900                             -                              900                             0% 900                             
8826   Zone 26 STL Special Assessment 1,200                          -                              1,200                          0% 1,200                          
8827   Zone 27 STL Special Assessment 1,400                          -                              1,400                          0% 1,400                          
8829   Zone 29 Special Assessment 1,100                          -                              1,100                          0% 1,100                          
8830   Zone 30 Special Assessment 33,900                        -                              33,900                        0% 33,900                        
8835   Zone 35 STL Special Assessment 100                             -                              100                             0% 100                             
8842   Zone 42 Special Assessment 36,000                        -                              36,000                        0% 36,000                        
8850   Zone 50 STL Special Assessment 400                             -                              400                             0% 400                             
8851   Zone 51 Special Assessment 8,500                          -                              8,500                          0% 8,500                          
8852   Zone 52 Special Assessment 68,600                        -                              68,600                        0% 68,600                        
8859   Zone 59 Special Assessment 5,400                          -                              5,400                          0% 5,400                          
8862   Zone 62 Special Assessment 18,400                        -                              18,400                        0% 18,400                        
8867   Zone 67 Special Assessment 7,900                          -                              7,900                          0% 7,900                          
8870   Zone 70 STL Special Assessment 1,300                          -                              1,300                          0% 1,300                          
8871   Zone 71 Special Assessment 11,400                        -                              11,400                        0% -                              11,400                        
8872   Zone 71 Spec. Assess-Lighting 500                             -                              500                             0% 500                             
8873   Zone 73 STL Special Assessment 900                             -                              900                             0% 900                             
8888   Zone 88 STL Special Assessment -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
8890   Zone 90 Special Assessment -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total LLMD 89-1C 332,000                      -                              332,000                      0% -                              332,000                      


Page 4







City of Wildomar
Revenue Group Budget Report
1st Quarter Report FY 2020/21
July 1st, 2021 to September 30th, 2021


3 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed
Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


252  CSA-22


3550   Special Assessment 31,400                        -                              31,400                        0% 31,400                        
Total CSA-22 31,400                        -                              31,400                        0% -                              31,400                        


253  CSA-103


3557   Special Assessment - Street Lights 151,100                      -                              151,100                      0% 151,100                      
3558   Special Assessment - Landscape 22,600                        -                              22,600                        0% 22,600                        


Total CSA-103 173,700                      -                              173,700                      0% -                              173,700                      


254  CSA-142


3550   Special Assessment 36,800                        -                              36,800                        0% 36,800                        
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3850   Miscellaneous Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total CSA-142 36,800                        -                              36,800                        0% -                              36,800                        


255  Measure Z Park


3320   Special Event Revenue 26,400                        1,710                          24,690                        6% 26,400                        
3550   Special Assessment 392,700                      -                              392,700                      0% 392,700                      
3553   Marna O'Brien Park-Facility Rent 10,000                        3,867                          6,133                          39% 10,000                        
3554   Heritage Park-Facility Rent -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3555   Windsong Park-Facility Rent 100                             -                              100                             0% 100                             
3556   Breakfast With Santa -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income 200                             -                              200                             0% 200                             
3850   Miscellaneous Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3852   Donations -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3855   GDS Park Rehab -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Measure Z Park 429,400                      5,577                          423,823                      1% -                              429,400                      


259  CFD 2017-1 DIF Deferral


3552  Special Assessment 89,300                        -                              89,300                        0% 89,300                        
Total CFD 2017-1 89,300                        -                              89,300                        0% -                              89,300                        


260  CFD 2013-1


3551   Special Assessment Tax - Zone 1 33,200                        -                              33,200                        0% 33,200                        
3552   Special Assessment Tax - Zone 2 21,000                        -                              21,000                        0% 21,000                        
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3850   Miscellaneous Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total CFD 2013-1 54,200                        -                              54,200                        0% -                              54,200                        


Page 5







City of Wildomar
Revenue Group Budget Report
1st Quarter Report FY 2020/21
July 1st, 2021 to September 30th, 2021


3 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed
Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


261  CFD 2013-1 Annex 1 Zn 3


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 61,500                        -                              61,500                        0% 61,500                        
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total CFD 2013-1 Annex 1 Zn 3 61,500                        -                              61,500                        0% -                              61,500                        


262  CFD 2013-1 Annex 2 Zn 4


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 300                             -                              300                             0% 300                             
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total CFD 2013-1 Annex 2 Zn 4 300                             -                              300                             0% -                              300                             


263  CFD 2013-1 Annex 3 Zn5


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 40,700                        -                              40,700                        0% 40,700                        
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total CFD 2013-1 Annex 3 Zn5 40,700                        -                              40,700                        0% -                              40,700                        


264  CFD 2013-1 Annex 4 Zn6


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
Total CFD 2013-1 Annex 4 Zn6 -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              


265  CFD 2013-1 Annex 5 Zn7


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
Total CFD 2013-1 Annex 5 Zn7 -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              


266  CFD 2013-1 Annex 6 Zn8


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 8,900                          -                              8,900                          0% 8,900                          
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total CFD 2013-1 Annex 6 Zn8 8,900                          -                              8,900                          0% -                              8,900                          


267  CFD 2013-1 Annex 7 Zn9


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 11,100                        -                              11,100                        0% 11,100                        
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total CFD 2013-1 Annex 7 Zn9 11,100                        -                              11,100                        0% -                              11,100                        


268  CFD 2013-1 Annex 8 Zn10


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
Total CFD 2013-1 Annex 8 Zn10 -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              


Page 6







City of Wildomar
Revenue Group Budget Report
1st Quarter Report FY 2020/21
July 1st, 2021 to September 30th, 2021


3 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed
Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


269  CFD 2013-1 Special Tax B


3552   Special Assessment Tax B- Public Safety 126,100                      -                              126,100                      0% 126,100                      
Total CFD 2013-1 Special Tax B 126,100                      -                              126,100                      0% -                              126,100                      


270  CFD 2013-1 Zn11


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 16,800                        -                              16,800                        0% 16,800                        
Total CFD 2013-1 Zn11 16,800                        -                              16,800                        0% -                              16,800                        


271  CFD 2013-1 Zn13


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 1,200                          -                              1,200                          0% 1,200                          
Total CFD 2013-1 Zn13 1,200                          -                              1,200                          0% -                              1,200                          


272  CFD 2013-1 Zn14


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 6,900                          -                              6,900                          0% 6,900                          
Total CFD 2013-1 Zn14 6,900                          -                              6,900                          0% -                              6,900                          


273  CFD 2013-1 Zn15


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 16,500                        -                              16,500                        0% 16,500                        
Total CFD 2013-1 Zn15 16,500                        -                              16,500                        0% -                              16,500                        


274  CFD 2013-1 Zn16


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 7,000                          -                              7,000                          0% 7,000                          
Total CFD 2013-1 Zn16 7,000                          -                              7,000                          0% -                              7,000                          


275  CFD 2013-1 Zn17


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
Total CFD 2013-1 Zn17 -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              


276  CFD 2013-1 Zn18


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 19,800                        -                              19,800                        0% 19,800                        
Total CFD 2013-1 Zn18 19,800                        -                              19,800                        0% -                              19,800                        


277  CFD 2013-1 Zn19


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 15,700                        -                              15,700                        0% 15,700                        
Total CFD 2013-1 Zn19 15,700                        -                              15,700                        0% -                              15,700                        


Page 7







City of Wildomar
Revenue Group Budget Report
1st Quarter Report FY 2020/21
July 1st, 2021 to September 30th, 2021


3 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed
Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


278  CFD 2013-1 Zn20


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
Total CFD 2013-1 Zn20 -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              


279  CFD 2013-1 Zn21


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 2,400                          -                              2,400                          0% 2,400                          
Total CFD 2013-1 Zn21 2,400                          -                              2,400                          0% -                              2,400                          


280  Grants


3535   County/Special Dist. Reimb. -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3540   Grant Revenue 315,000                      -                              315,000                      0% 315,000                      
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Grants 315,000                      -                              315,000                      0% -                              315,000                      


281  SLESF


3521   SLESF Revenue 150,000                      -                              150,000                      0% -                              150,000                      
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total SLESF 150,000                      -                              150,000                      0% -                              150,000                      


282  CDBG


3540   Grant Revenue 35,000                        -                              35,000                        0% 35,000                        
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total CDBG 35,000                        -                              35,000                        0% -                              35,000                        


283 Public Education & Government (PEG) Fund


3125   PEG Fee - Cable-Charter Comm 35,000                        -                              35,000                        0% 35,000                        
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total PEG 35,000                        -                              35,000                        0% -                              35,000                        


284 Streetlight Fund


3700   Streetlight Pole Cost Reimbursement 173,900                      -                              173,900                      0% -                              173,900                      
3800   Interest Income 1,500                          -                              1,500                          0% -                              1,500                          


Total Streetlight 175,400                      -                              175,400                      0% -                              175,400                      


Page 8







City of Wildomar
Revenue Group Budget Report
1st Quarter Report FY 2020/21
July 1st, 2021 to September 30th, 2021


3 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed
Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


300  Cemetery


3104   RPTTF Redevelopment Property Tax 21,000                        -                              21,000                        0% 21,000                        
3105   Property Tax-Secured 509,200                      -                              509,200                      0% 509,200                      
3106   Property Tax-Unsecured 22,500                        -                              22,500                        0% 22,500                        
3107   Property Tax-Prior Year 3,500                          -                              3,500                          0% 3,500                          
3108   Property Tax-HOPTR 5,300                          -                              5,300                          0% 5,300                          
3109   Property Tax-Supplemental, SBE 13,400                        -                              13,400                        0% 13,400                        
3110   Real Property Transfer Tax -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3111   Property Tax-Teeter 9,800                          -                              9,800                          0% 9,800                          
3113   Property Tax-Misc Adjustments 200                             -                              200                             0% 200                             
3800   Interest Income 1,500                          -                              1,500                          0% 1,500                          
3810   Insurance Proceeds -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3850   Miscellaneous Income 100                             -                              100                             0% 100                             
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
4100   Cemetery - Plots 32,000                        9,500                          22,500                        30% 32,000                        
4101   Cemetery - Vaults 7,000                          900                             6,100                          13% 7,000                          
4102   Cemetery - Niche Walls 1,000                          -                              1,000                          0% 1,000                          
4103   Cemetery - Open/Close 16,000                        2,450                          13,550                        15% 16,000                        
4104   Cemetery - Setting fees 3,000                          520                             2,480                          17% 3,000                          
4105   Cemetery - Out of District 6,000                          2,000                          4,000                          33% 6,000                          
4106   Cemetery - Vases 1,000                          150                             850                             15% 1,000                          
4107   Saturday Service Fees 1,000                          -                              1,000                          0% 1,000                          


Total Cemetery 653,500                      15,520                        637,980                      2% -                              653,500                      


301  Cemetery Endowment


3536   Endowment 25,000                        6,800                          18,200                        27% 25,000                        
3537   Proceeds from Cemetery -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income 4,000                          301                             3,699                          8% 4,000                          
3801   Gain or Loss on Investment -                              1,569                          (1,569)                         0% -                              
3850   Miscellaneous Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Cemetery Endowment 29,000                        8,670                          20,330                        30% -                              29,000                        


302  Cemetery CIP


3900  Transfer In 50,000                        -                              50,000                        0% -                              50,000                        
Total Cemetery CIP 50,000                        -                              50,000                        0% -                              50,000                        


Page 9







City of Wildomar
Revenue Group Budget Report
1st Quarter Report FY 2020/21
July 1st, 2021 to September 30th, 2021


3 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed
Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


410  Admin DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 4,600                          -                              4,600                          0% 4,600                          
3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3563   DIF-Commercial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Admin DIF 4,600                          -                              4,600                          0% -                              4,600                          


420  Public Facilities DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 30,100                        768                             29,332                        3% 30,100                        
3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3563   DIF-Commercial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3564   DIF-Industrial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3565   DIF-Office -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Public Facilities DIF 30,100                        768                             29,332                        3% -                              30,100                        


421  Police DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 17,800                        454                             17,346                        3% 17,800                        
3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3563   DIF-Commercial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3564   DIF-Industrial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3565   DIF-Office -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Police DIF 17,800                        454                             17,346                        3% -                              17,800                        


422  Animal Shelter DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 19,600                        658                             18,942                        3% 19,600                        
3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3563   DIF-Commercial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3564   DIF-Industrial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3565   DIF-Office -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Animal Shelter DIF 19,600                        658                             18,942                        3% -                              19,600                        


423  Corp Yard DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 6,200                          -                              6,200                          0% 6,200                          
3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3563   DIF-Commercial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3564   DIF-Industrial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3565   DIF-Office -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Corp Yard DIF 6,200                          -                              6,200                          0% -                              6,200                          


Page 10







City of Wildomar
Revenue Group Budget Report
1st Quarter Report FY 2020/21
July 1st, 2021 to September 30th, 2021


3 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed
Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


430  Fire Facilities DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 34,500                        880                             33,620                        3% 34,500                        
3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3563   DIF-Commercial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3564   DIF-Industrial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3565   DIF-Office -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Fire Facilities DIF 34,500                        880                             33,620                        3% -                              34,500                        


440  Trans-Roads DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 242,100                      6,176                          235,924                      3% 242,100                      
3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3563   DIF-Commercial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3564   DIF-Industrial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3565   DIF-Office -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Trans-Roads DIF 242,100                      6,176                          235,924                      3% -                              242,100                      


450  Trans-Signals DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 31,500                        802                             30,698                        3% 31,500                        
3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3563   DIF-Commercial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3564   DIF-Industrial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3565   DIF-Office -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3570   Developer Cash-In-Lieu - Traffic Signals -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Trans-Signals DIF 31,500                        802                             30,698                        3% -                              31,500                        


451  Drainage DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 144,400                      2,762                          141,638                      2% 144,400                      
3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3563   DIF-Commercial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3564   DIF-Industrial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3565   DIF-Office -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3570   Developer Cash-In-Lieu - Line F Ext. -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Drainage DIF 144,400                      2,762                          141,638                      2% -                              144,400                      


Page 11







City of Wildomar
Revenue Group Budget Report
1st Quarter Report FY 2020/21
July 1st, 2021 to September 30th, 2021


3 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed
Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


460  Park Land Acquisition DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 46,800                        1,194                          45,606                        3% 46,800                        
3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3563   DIF-Commercial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3564   DIF-Industrial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3565   DIF-Office -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Park Land Acquisition DIF 46,800                        1,194                          45,606                        3% -                              46,800                        


461  Park Improvements DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 307,700                      7,852                          299,848                      3% 307,700                      
3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3563   DIF-Commercial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3564   DIF-Industrial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Park Improvements DIF 307,700                      7,852                          299,848                      3% -                              307,700                      


470  Community Ctr DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 37,200                        948                             36,252                        3% 37,200                        
3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3563   DIF-Commercial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3564   DIF-Industrial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3565   DIF-Office -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Community Ctr DIF 37,200                        948                             36,252                        3% -                              37,200                        


480  Multipurpose Trails DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 59,100                        1,508                          57,592                        3% 59,100                        
3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3563   DIF-Commercial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3564   DIF-Industrial -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3565   DIF-Office -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3800   Interest Income -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              


Total Multipurpose Trails DIF 59,100                        1,508                          57,592                        3% -                              59,100                        


490  Library DIF


3900   Transfers In -                              -                              -                              0% -                              
Total Library DIF -                              -                              -                              0% -                              -                              


Page 12







City of Wildomar
Revenue Group Budget Report
1st Quarter Report FY 2020/21
July 1st, 2021 to September 30th, 2021


3 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed
Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


500  RMRA Capital Projects


3540   RMRA Revenue 714,300                      -                              714,300                      0% 714,300                      
Total RMRA Capital Projects 714,300                      -                              714,300                      0% -                              714,300                      


501 Capital Reinvestment


3540   Grant Revenue -                              -                              -                              0% 59,300                        59,300                        
3900  Transfer In 200,000                      -                              200,000                      0% 200,000                      


Total Capital Reinvestment 200,000                      -                              200,000                      0% 59,300                        259,300                      


502 RCFC Fund


3540 Grant Revenue 206,300                      -                              206,300                      0% 206,300                      
Total RCFC 206,300                      -                              206,300                      0% -                              206,300                      


503 TUMF Fund


3540 Grant Revenue 4,746,100                   -                              4,746,100                   0% 27,500                        4,773,600                   
Total TUMF 4,746,100                   -                              4,746,100                   0% 27,500                        4,773,600                   


506 HSIP Fund


3540 Grant Revenue 49,400                        -                              49,400                        0% (49,400)                       -                              
3900 Transfers In 65,000                        -                              65,000                        0% 65,000                        


Total HSIP 114,400                      -                              114,400                      0% (49,400)                       65,000                        


507 Misc State Funded Projects


3540 Grant Revenue 31,500                        -                              31,500                        0% 31,500                        
Total Misc State Funded Projects 31,500                        -                              31,500                        0% -                              31,500                        


508 Local Capital grants-Misc


3540 Grant Revenue 3,516,000                   -                              3,516,000                   0% 3,516,000                   
Total Local Capital Grants-Misc 3,516,000                   -                              3,516,000                   0% -                              3,516,000                   


Total 37,667,700$         4,838,816$           32,828,884$         13% 1,296,000             38,963,700$         


Page 13







       


Fund Budget  3 Month Actual 
Expenditure 


Remaining 
Budget


Percent 
Used


 Requested 
Budget 
Change 


Proposed 
Budget


General Fund
100 General Fund


 General Government
City Council 282,800$      8,341$                274,459         3% -$               282,800          


City Manager 571,800        3,566                  568,234         1% -                 571,800          
City Clerk 282,000        201                     281,799         0% -                 282,000          


City Attorney 272,800        -                      272,800         0% -                 272,800          
Economic Development 316,800        1,229                  315,571         0% -                 316,800          
 Administrative Services 690,100        24,938                665,162         4% 2,200             692,300          


Human Resources 110,300        314                     109,986         0% -                 110,300          
Community Services 69,100          4,519                  64,581           7% -                 69,100            


O'Brien Park -                -                      -                 0% 1,500             1,500              
Heritage Park -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  


Windsong Park -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  
Ball Fields 23,700          2,014                  21,686           8% -                 23,700            


Malaga Park -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  
11 Acre Park 900               -                      900                0% -                 900                 
27 Acre Park 2,000            -                      -                 0% -                 2,000              


Non-Departmental/Facilities 1,181,200     247,155              934,045         21% 56,200           1,237,400       
 General Government Total 3,803,500     292,277              3,511,223      8% 59,900           3,863,400       


Community Development
Community Development Administration 162,200        12,717                149,483         8% -                 162,200          


Planning Commission 17,100          1,185                  15,915           7% -                 17,100            
Building and Safety 701,100        7,928                  693,173         1% (83,700)          617,400          


Planning 264,600        306                     264,294         0% -                 264,600          
Private Development (Incl. Cannabis) 275,400        31,824                243,576         12% -                 275,400          


Development Engineering 558,100        -                      558,100         0% -                 558,100          
Cannabis Compliance 77,400          -                      77,400           0% -                 77,400            


Code Enforcement 287,900        13,276                274,624         5% 104,000         391,900          
Community Development Total 2,343,800     67,235                2,276,565      3% 20,300           2,364,100       


Public Works/Engineering 661,200        28,199                633,001         4% 2,900             664,100          


Public Safety


Office of Emergency Mgmt 25,100          -                      25,100           0% -                 25,100            
Police 5,319,700     37,246                5,282,454      1% -                 5,319,700       


Fire 2,264,500     2,688                  2,261,812      0% -                 2,264,500       
Animal Control 495,600        76,890                418,710         16% -                 495,600          


Public Safety Total 8,104,900     116,824              7,988,076      1% -                 8,104,900       
 100 General Fund Total 14,913,400   504,535              14,408,865    3% 83,100$         14,996,500     


CITY OF WILDOMAR
Expenditure Status Report


1st Quarter FY 2021-22
July 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021


Page 14







       


Fund Budget  3 Month Actual 
Expenditure 


Remaining 
Budget


Percent 
Used


 Requested 
Budget 
Change 


Proposed 
Budget


CITY OF WILDOMAR
Expenditure Status Report


1st Quarter FY 2021-22
July 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021


110 Development Agreement
Bundy Canyon/Sellers Traffic Signal CIP077 82,500          -                      82,500           0% -                 82,500            


Total Development Agreement 82,500          -                      82,500           0% -                 82,500            


115 American Rescue Plan Act
General Government 482,600        59,179                423,421         12% 92,700           575,300          


Public Safety 215,800        -                      215,800         0% -                 215,800          
Cemetery -                2,042                  (2,042)            0% 4,000             4,000              


Total ARPA 698,400        61,220                637,180         9% 96,700           795,100          


120 Measure AA
 Public Works/Engineering 425,000        20,000                405,000         5% -                 425,000          


Palomar/Clinton Keith Sidewalk CIP059 26,000          -                      26,000           0% -                 26,000            
Right-of-Way Enhancement Program CIP066 100,000        -                      100,000         0% -                 100,000          


Bundy/Sellers Traffic Signal CIP077 30,400          -                      30,400           0% -                 30,400            
Bundy/Monte Vista Traffic Signal CIP078 133,600        -                      133,600         0% -                 133,600          
Monte Vista/Wall at Line C Basin CIP079 25,000          -                      25,000           0% -                 25,000            


New Fire Station Site Planning CIP093 50,000          -                      50,000           0% -                 50,000            
Palomar Widening CIP028-2 -                -                      -                 0% 115,000         115,000          


Auditing/Admin Services 2,800            -                      2,800             0% -                 2,800              
Non-Departmental/City Facilities -                52                       (52)                 0% 100                100                 


Bundy Canyon/Scott Road Widening 274,500        -                      274,500         0% -                 274,500          
Slurry Seal 200,000        -                      200,000         0% -                 200,000          


Code Enforcement 88,700          2,500                  86,201           3% 2,500             91,200            
Police 882,800        235                     882,565         0% 3,500             886,300          


Fire 1,516,300     1,629                  1,514,671      0% 1,700             1,518,000       
Community Services-Homeless Program 157,000        20,990                136,010         13% -                 157,000          


Total Measure AA 3,912,100     45,406                3,866,694      1% 122,800         4,034,900       


All General Funds Total: 19,606,400   611,161              18,995,239    3% 302,600         19,909,000     


Page 15







       


Fund Budget  3 Month Actual 
Expenditure 


Remaining 
Budget


Percent 
Used


 Requested 
Budget 
Change 


Proposed 
Budget


CITY OF WILDOMAR
Expenditure Status Report


1st Quarter FY 2021-22
July 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021


Non-General Funds


200-GAS TAX
Public Works/Engineering 936,200        52,486                883,714         6% -                 936,200          


Total Gas Tax 936,200        52,486                883,714         6% -                 936,200          


201-MEASURE A


Public Works/Engineering 554,900        4,713                  550,187         1% 20,000           574,900          
Total Measure A 554,900        4,713                  550,187         1% 20,000           574,900          


203 TDA


Palomar/Clinton Keith Sidewalk & Bike Trail CIP059 275,000        -                      275,000         0% -                 275,000          
Bundy Canyon Sidewalk & Bike Lane CIP092 -                -                      -                 0% 300,000         300,000          


Total TDA 275,000        -                      275,000         0% 300,000         575,000          
210 AQMD


 Public Works/Engineering 6,800            -                      6,800             0% -                 6,800              
Right-of-Way Enhancement Program CIP066 45,000          -                      45,000           0% -                 45,000            


Total AQMD 51,800          -                      51,800           0% -                 51,800            


251 LLMD 89-1C


General Government -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  
Public Works/Engineering -                2,458                  (2,458)            0% -                 -                  


Zone 3 Landscaping 116,200        12,359                103,841         11% -                 116,200          
Zone 18 600               -                      600                0% -                 600                 
Zone 26 700               -                      700                0% -                 700                 
Zone 27 1,300            36                       1,264             3% -                 1,300              
Zone 29 1,400            79                       1,321             6% -                 1,400              
Zone 30 15,100          762                     14,338           5% -                 15,100            
Zone 35 300               -                      300                0% -                 300                 
Zone 42 29,800          5,512                  24,288           18% -                 29,800            
Zone 50 300               -                      300                0% -                 300                 
Zone 51 11,600          346                     11,254           3% -                 11,600            
Zone 52 14,800          299                     14,501           2% -                 14,800            


Zone 59 Streetlights 2,200            31                       2,169             1% -                 2,200              
Zone 59 Landscape 700               -                      700                0% -                 700                 


Zone 62 14,400          506                     13,894           4% -                 14,400            
Zone 67 4,100            238                     3,862             6% -                 4,100              
Zone 70 600               -                      600                0% -                 600                 


 Zone 71 Streetlights 300               -                      300                0% -                 300                 
Zone 71 Landscape 4,500            773                     3,727             17% -                 4,500              
Zone 73 Streetlights 500               -                      500                0% -                 500                 


Zone 88 -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  
Zone 90 -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  


Zone 181 Streetlights 1,600            50                       1,550             3% -                 1,600              
Zone 181 Landscape 4,500            -                      4,500             0% -                 4,500              


CIP091 Catch Basin Retrofit Project 242,000        -                      242,000         0% -                 242,000          
LLMD 89-1C Total 467,500        23,449                444,051         5% -                 467,500          


252 CSA-22
Street Lights 45,500          1,288                  44,212           3% -                 45,500            


CSA-22 45,500          1,288                  44,212           3% -                 45,500            


Page 16







       


Fund Budget  3 Month Actual 
Expenditure 


Remaining 
Budget


Percent 
Used


 Requested 
Budget 
Change 


Proposed 
Budget


CITY OF WILDOMAR
Expenditure Status Report


1st Quarter FY 2021-22
July 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021


253 - CSA 103
Public Works -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  


Landscape & Drainage 19,200          695                     18,505           4% -                 19,200            
Street Lights 180,300        4,171                  176,129         2% -                 180,300          


CSA-103 199,500        4,866                  194,634         2% -                 199,500          


254 - CSA 142
Public Works 3,100            -                      3,100             0% -                 3,100              
Street Lights 31,700          936                     30,764           3% -                 31,700            


 CSA-142 34,800          936                     33,864           3% -                 34,800            
255 Measure Z - Parks


Community Services 112,200        217                     111,983         0% -                 112,200          
O'Brien Park 210,200        26,920                183,280         13% -                 210,200          


Heritage Park 66,500          4,050                  62,450           6% -                 66,500            
Windsong Park 67,200          5,761                  61,439           9% -                 67,200            


Ball Field -                -                 0% -                 -                  
Malaga Park 20,900          1,956                  18,944           9% -                 20,900            


Total Measure Z Park 477,000        38,903                438,097         8% -                 477,000          


CFD's
259 CFD 20171 DIF Deferral 83,800          583                     83,217           1% -                 83,800            
260 CFD 2013-1 Maintenance 54,100          3,450                  50,650           6% -                 54,100            
261 CFD 2013-1 Annex 1 Zone 3 61,500          848                     60,652           1% -                 61,500            
262 CFD 2013-1 Annex 2 Zone 4 200               98                       102                49% -                 200                 
263 CFD 2013-1 Annex 3 Zone 5 40,600          592                     40,008           1% -                 40,600            
264 CFD 2013-1 Annex 4 Zone 6 -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  
265 CFD 2013-1 Annex 5 Zone 7 -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  
266 CFD 2013-1 Annex 6 Zone 8 8,900            81                       8,819             1% -                 8,900              
267 CFD 2013-1 Annex 7 Zone 9 11,100          -                      11,100           0% -                 11,100            
268 CFD 2013-1 Annex 8 Zone 10 -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  
269 CFD 2013-1 Spec Tax B 17,300          -                      17,300           0% -                 17,300            
270 CFD 2013-1 Zone 11 16,800          86                       16,714           1% -                 16,800            
271 CFD 2013-1 Zone 13 1,100            -                      1,100             0% -                 1,100              
272 CFD 2013-1 Zone 14 6,800            -                      6,800             0% -                 6,800              
273 CFD 2013-1 Zone 15 16,500          -                      16,500           0% -                 16,500            
274 CFD 2013-1 Zone 16 7,000            -                      7,000             0% -                 7,000              
275 CFD 2013-1 Zone 17 -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  
276 CFD 2013-1 Zone 18 19,800          -                      19,800           0% -                 19,800            
277 CFD 2013-1 Zone 19 15,600          -                      15,600           0% -                 15,600            
278 CFD 2013-1 Zone 20 -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  
279 CFD 2013-1 Zone 21 2,400            -                      2,400             0% -                 2,400              


Total CFD's 363,500        5,739                  357,761         2% -                 363,500          
280-Grants
280-430 Housing Element Study 2020/21 131,200        -                      131,200         0% -                 131,200          
280-990 Multi-Family Design Guidelines 16,300          -                      16,300           0% -                 16,300            
280-991 Zoning Consistency Program 92,900          5,350                  87,550           6% -                 92,900            


Total Grants 240,400        5,350                  235,050         2% -                 240,400          


281-SLESF-COPS Grant 150,000        -                      150,000         0% -                 150,000          
SLESF 150,000        -                      150,000         0% -                 150,000          


282-CDBG
Sedco Sidewalk Improvement III 32,500          798                     31,703           2% -                 32,500            


 CDBG 32,500          798                     31,703           2% -                 32,500            


Page 17







       


Fund Budget  3 Month Actual 
Expenditure 


Remaining 
Budget


Percent 
Used


 Requested 
Budget 
Change 


Proposed 
Budget


CITY OF WILDOMAR
Expenditure Status Report


1st Quarter FY 2021-22
July 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021


283 PEG Grant
Services and Equipment 26,800          -                      26,800           0% -                 26,800            


Total PEG Grant 26,800          -                      26,800           0% -                 26,800            


284 Streetlight
Public Works 173,700        -                      173,700         0% -                 173,700          


Total Streetlight Fund 173,700        -                      173,700         0% -                 173,700          


290 COVID-19
General -                680                     (680)               -                 -                  


Total COVID-19 Fund -                680                     (680)               0% -                 -                  


300 Cemetery 934,900        34,409                900,491         4% 11,800           946,700          
Cemetery 934,900        34,409                900,491         4% 11,800           946,700          


301-Cemetery Endowment -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  
Cemetery Endowment -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  


302-Cemetery Capital Improvement Projects
Cemetery Frontage Improvements CIP067-1 50,000          -                      50,000           0% -                 50,000            


Cemetery CIP 50,000          -                      50,000           0% -                 50,000            


410-Admin DIF 15,000          2,514                  12,486           17% -                 15,000            
Total Admin DIF 15,000          2,514                  12,486           17% -                 15,000            


422-Animal Shelter DIF 48,800          -                      48,800           0% -                 48,800            
Total Animal Shelter  DIF 48,800          -                      48,800           0% -                 48,800            


440-Trans-Road DIF 1,732,400     4,106                  1,728,295      0% -                 1,732,400       
Total Trans - Road  DIF 1,732,400     4,106                  1,728,295      0% -                 1,732,400       


450- Trans -Signals DIF
Bundy Canyon Rd. Widening -                -                      -                 0% -                  


Bundy Canyon/Orchard St. Traffic Signal CIP075 36,000          -                      36,000           0% -                 36,000            
Bundy Canyon/Sellers TS CIP 077 276,100        -                      276,100         0% -                 276,100          


Bundy Canyon/Monte Vista TS CIP 078 222,000        -                      222,000         0% -                 222,000          
Total Trans - Signals DIF 534,100        -                      534,100         0% -                 534,100          


451- Drainage DIF
Storm Drain Line F Extension CIP039 123,600        -                      123,600         0% -                 123,600          


Total Drainage  DIF 123,600        -                      123,600         0% -                 123,600          


461- Park Improvements DIF
New 27 Acre Park 256,800        -                      256,800         0% -                 256,800          


Total Park Improvement DIF 256,800        -                      256,800         0% -                 256,800          


470 Community Center DIF
Public Works -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  


Total Community Center  DIF -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  


480-Multipurpose Trails DIF -                -                      -                 -                 -                  
Total Multipurpose Trails DIF -                -                      -                 0% -                 -                  


490-Library DIF 19,000          -                      19,000           0% -                 19,000            
Total Library DIF 19,000          -                      19,000           0% -                 19,000            


Page 18







       


Fund Budget  3 Month Actual 
Expenditure 


Remaining 
Budget


Percent 
Used


 Requested 
Budget 
Change 


Proposed 
Budget


CITY OF WILDOMAR
Expenditure Status Report


1st Quarter FY 2021-22
July 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021


500-RMRA Capital Projects
500-057 Pavement Rehab Program CIP057 930,000        -                      930,000         0% -                 930,000          
500-060 Lemon St Drainage and Pavement CIP060 170,000        -                      170,000         0% -                 170,000          
500-913 Clinton Keith Widening CIP025 -                -                      -                 0% -                  


Total RMRA Capital Projects 1,100,000     -                      1,100,000      0% -                 1,100,000       


501-Capital Reinvestment
501-410 ERP Replacement 200,000        -                      -                 0% -                 200,000          
501-909 Bundy Canyon EVMWD Reimbursement -                -                      -                 0% 59,300           59,300            


Total Capital Reinvestment 200,000        -                      200,000         0% 59,300           259,300          


502-Riverside County Fund Control (RCFC) - Local
502-039 Line F Extension CIP039 206,300        -                      206,300         0% -                     206,300          


Total RCFC 206,300        -                      206,300         0% -                     206,300          


503-Transformation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) - Local
503-001 Palomar/Clinton Keith Bike Path CIP059 724,800        7,990                  716,810         1% -                     724,800          
503-039 Line F Extension CIP039 81,900          -                      81,900           0% -                     81,900            
503-909 Bundy Canyon/Scott Rd Widen CIP026 1,371,200     8,883                  1,362,317      1% -                     1,371,200       
503-070 Bundy Canyon/I-15 Interchange Study CIP070 512,300        -                      512,300         0% -                     512,300          
503-078 Baxter Rd/I-15 Interchange Study CIP074 512,400        -                      512,400         0% -                     512,400          
503-090 Bundy Canyon West - Widen & ATP CIP090 30,000          -                      30,000           0% -                     30,000            
503-092 Bundy Canyon Widening Sidewalks -                -                      -                 0% 42,000           42,000            
503-912 Palomar Widening CIP028 648,500        3,534                  644,966         1% (20,000)          628,500          
503-913 Clinton Keith Widen CIP025 776,900        -                      776,900         0% -                     776,900          


Total TUMF 4,658,000     20,407                4,637,593      0% 22,000           4,680,000       


506-Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) - Federal
506-450 Public Works -                -                      -                 -                  
506-088 Harvest Way/Bundy Canyon TS CIP088 47,700          -                      47,700           0% (20,700)          27,000            
506-089 Traffic Signal Retrofits & Upgrd. CIP089 66,700          -                      66,700           0% (28,700)          38,000            


Total HSIP 114,400        -                      114,400         0% (49,400)          65,000            


507-State Funded Capital Projects - Miscellaneous - State
507-051 Local Road Safety Plan CIP051 31,500          -                      31,500           0% -                     31,500            


Total Miscellaneous State Funded Projects 31,500          -                      31,500           0% -                     31,500            


508-Local Capital Grants
508-909 Bundy Canyon Widening CIP026 RCTC 3,516,000     -                      3,516,000      0% -                     3,516,000       


Total Local Capital Grants 3,516,000     -                      3,516,000      0% -                     3,516,000       


Non-GF Funds Total: $17,569,900 $200,641 $17,369,259 1.14% 363,700         $17,933,600


Grand Total- All Funds $37,176,300 $811,802 $36,364,498 2% 666,300$       37,842,600$   


Page 19







Position
Approved 
Positions Budgeted Salary


Health Insurance 
Allocation


Other 
Compensation, 
Retirement & 
Payroll Taxes


Total Budgeted 
Position Cost


City Council


City Council Member (each) 5 4,800$              14,400$            7,937$              27,137$            


City Manager


City Manager 1 225,527            14,400              88,707              328,634            
Sr. Administrative Analyst - Admin 1 93,387              14,400              25,142              132,929            
Sr. Administrative Analyst - Emg Mgmt Svcs 1 96,611              14,400              11,957              122,968            


City Clerk's Office


City Clerk 1 121,890            14,400              34,237              170,527            
Administrative Analyst I 1 56,778              14,400              9,574                80,752              


Economic Development Office


Economic Development Director 1 131,113            14,400              34,071              179,584            


Administrative Services


Administrative Services Director 1 184,381            14,400              22,298              221,078            
Administrative Assistant II 1 85,527              14,400              7,094                107,022            
Human Resources Administrator 1 72,890              14,400              9,666                96,955              
Administrative Analyst II (July 2021 - April 2022) 1 52,705              12,000              8,127                72,831              
Sr. Administrative Analyst (April 2022) 1 20,185              2,400                2,165                24,750              
Accounting Specialist I 1 52,401              14,400              8,439                75,240              
Accounting Specialist I (Jan 2022) 1 26,042              7,200                3,338                36,580              


Community Services/Cemetery District


Community Services Director 1 124,721            14,400              35,632              174,753            
Administrative Assistant I 1 41,345              14,400              6,932                62,678              
Grounds Keeper II 1 46,893              14,400              9,930                71,223              
Grounds Keeper II 1 42,802              14,400              8,708                65,910              
Grounds Keeper I 1 41,345              14,400              6,202                61,947              
Recreation Leader I (each) 2 3,750                -                    287                   4,037                


Planning


Planning Director 1 189,165            14,400              51,244              254,809            
Associate Planner 1 95,074              14,400              15,036              124,510            


Public Works Adminstration & Engineering


Assistant City Manager/Public Works Director 1 236,537            14,400              30,665              281,602            
Senior Engineer - Land Development 1 113,210            14,400              13,429              141,039            
Associate Engineer - Land Development 1 43,514              7,200                5,540                56,254              
Senior Engineer - CIP 1 113,210            14,400              13,429              141,039            
Associate Engineer - CIP 1 87,012              14,400              22,631              124,042            
Associate Engineer - CIP 1 86,637              14,400              11,027              112,064            
Senior Administrative Analyst - Engineering 1 94,333              14,400              11,723              120,455            


Building


Chief Building Official 1 134,186            14,400              15,325              163,911            
Building Inspection Supervisor 1 102,738            14,400              27,307              144,445            
Building Inspector I/II/III 1 76,701              14,400              11,650              102,751            
Senior Administratve Analyst - Building 1 87,313              14,400              11,866              113,579            
Development Services Technician I 1 53,770              14,400              9,070                77,240              


Code Enforcement


Code Enforcement Supervisor 1 84,516              14,400              24,553              123,469            
Senior Code Enforcement Officer 1 78,571              14,400              22,650              115,621            
Code Enforcement Technician 1 54,098              14,400              9,100                77,597              
Administrative Analyst I (moved from Building) 1 59,635              14,400              18,600              92,636              


FY 2021-22 - Effective 10/13/2021


City of Wildomar
Schedule of Authorized Positions







Proposed Amount


Item 
No.                                           Description Department FY 2021-22                  100 General 115 ARPA 120 Measure AA


1
Repeal Corridor Study with Preliminary General Plan 
Update Scoping/Work


Planning 25,000                       25,000           


2 Upgrade Street Name Signs at Signalized Intersections Public Works 75,000                       75,000                    


3 Enhanced Radio Communication Services Code Enforcement 35,100                       35,100                    


 Grand Total: 135,100$                   25,000$         -$          110,100$               


City of Wildomar
Decision Packages Summary
Proposed Decision Packages FY 2021-2022
1st Quarter Budget


Fund


1







1 


 
 


City of Wildomar 
 


1st Quarter FY2021/22 
 


Detailed Decision Package  
 
Decision Package Title: General Plan Update/EIR  -  Preliminary Scoping/Budget 


Work  
 
Service Impact:   __Safety, _X_ Development,  ___Recreation,   
     __Transportation, __Other  
 
Department:    Planning Department 
 
Budget Period:   1st Quarter FY2021/22 
 
 
Recommendation Summary Text 
Repeal $50,000 Preliminary Clinton Keith Corridor Study Funding Approved on June 9th, 2021 
and reallocate towards Preliminary Scoping and Budget Work for Comprehensive General 
Plan Update/EIR and add $25,000 additional funding from General Fund. 
 
 
Fiscal Summary of Costs and Funding Source 
 
 


Operating Expenditures Fund FY 2021/22  Total 
General Plan Update 
(Add) 
100-430-4300-52136 


100 $75,000     


Clinton Keith Corridor 
Study (Cancel) 
100-430-4300-52135 


100 -$50,000     


Total Net Additional Cost  $25,000    $25,000 
       
Revenue or Funding 
Source 


 FY 2021/22  Total 


ARPA Funding – Lost 
Revenue Reimb. To GF 


115      


General Fund (Add) 100 $25,000     
Total Revenue/Funds  $25,000    $25,000 


 
 


2







2 


Package Description: 
(Please provide a description of why we need this, solution to what problem, and comparison to existing levels of 
funding and output.) 
 
The City has been incorporated for nearly 13 years and we are still using the 2003 Riverside 
County General Plan as our guiding land use and circulation policy document.  Nearly 20 years 
old now, a comprehensive General Plan update is warranted to reflect the current development 
and land use trends solely specific to the City of Wildomar and our Residents. 
 
Narrative Justification and Impact Statement: 
(In the sections below, thoroughly describe the impacts that will result from this request.) 


 
Describe the way in which way this package contributes to the City of Wildomar. 


 
This preliminary “seed money/funding” will facilitate the initial steps for a “Comprehensive 
General Plan Update” and EIR project.  Specifically, this initial funding will be used to prepare a 
detailed scope of work and budget and support preliminary Visioning efforts working with our on-
call planning/consulting team (PlaceWorks), Community, Planning Commission and City 
Council. 
 
The final scope of work and budget for the GP Update and EIR will then be brought to the City 
Council for formal review and adoption (anticipated to be Q2 of 2022).  Estimated GP Update 
and EIR total cost is between $1.5 - $2 million). 


 


 
Project Approach: 
(In the sections below, thoroughly describe the benefits that will result from this request.) 


The following steps outline staff’s approach & tasks for this preliminary effort.  A full scope of 
work and budget will be presented to the Council at the end of this effort (anticipated by 
March 2022 +/-). 


1) Create an online website for the GP update that will allow comments & questions 
from the community. 


2) Evaluation of existing GP Elements that need to be updated to determine scope and 
work effort. 
Note:  The Housing Element, Safety Element & Circulation/Mobility Elements (3 of 
the 7 required) have already been approved and updated (via grant $$) and would 
only need to be integrated into the new GP Update.  Further, the WRCOG Regional 
Climate Action Plan (CAP) should be completed soon, and the City would only need 
to adopt it as part of the GP Update and EIR.  This would help streamline CEQA 
review for future projects approved via grant monies. 


3) Preliminary policy review meetings with Planning Commission and City Council to 
see what policies work now, and identify those that need work moving forward. 


4) 4 public workshops/open houses (in person if possible) to get quality of life 
information and to begin preparation of a draft visioning statement and defining 
principles. 


3







3 


5) Online surveys to establish: 1) a “wish list” for the GP update, and 2) to receive 
feedback from residents, property owners and businesses on the draft land use 
concepts. 


6) Pop-ups events at different locations throughout the City to present the GP update. 
7) Craft a draft vision statement, prepare vision boards letting people weigh in on them, 


creating use types and place making ideas.  
8) Preparation of a final summary report for Council consideration on these preliminary 


efforts and a detailed scope of work and cost budget to prepare the comprehensive 
General Plan Update….  


4







1 


City of Wildomar 
1st Quarter FY2021/22 


Detailed Decision Package 
Decision Package Title: Upgrade Street Name Signs at Signalized Intersections 


Service Impact: X Safety, __Development, __Recreation, 
X Transportation, Other  


Department:   PUBLIC WORKS  


Budget Period:  1ST QUARTER FY 21/22 


Recommendation Summary Text 


Staff recommends funding the replacement of all Illuminated Street Name Signs (ISNS) with 
reflective Street Name Signs (SNS) at all intersections where SNS is not currently installed.  


Fiscal Summary of Costs and Funding Source 
(Provide the funding source) 


Operating Expenditures Fund FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 Total 
120-450-4500-52115 120 $ 75,000 $  $75,000 


Total Cost $ 75,000 $  $75,000 


Revenue or Funding 
Source 


FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 Total 


Total Revenue/Funds $  $ $ 


Package Description: 
(Please provide a description of why we need this, solution to what problem, and comparison to existing levels of funding and output.) 


Replacing ISNS with SNS at all signalized intersections where SNS is not currently installed 
would standardize the routine maintenance performed at each intersection. This solution would 
standardize the look and appearance of intersections with the community and decrease energy 
costs with the replacement of illumination with reflective signs. 


$75,000120Measure AA


75,000 75,000


5







 


2 
 


Narrative Justification and Impact Statement: 
(In the sections below, thoroughly describe the impacts that will result from this request.) 
• Describe the way in which way this package contributes to the City of Wildomar. 
 


Cost Savings or Revenue Increases.        


City Maintenance will see some savings over time in low energy costs at each intersection, as signs will 
no longer need to be illuminated at night. SNS and are also more cost effective to replace once worn. 
SNS has also been adopted and implemented by several neighboring cities recently for these reasons. 


 
Public Safety. 


 


ISNS Signs are effective when illuminated but are not as visible when the internal lamps go out. SNS is 
more consistent for driver visibility at night and is easier for public works maintenance crews to access. 


 
Customer Service. 
 


 


Not applicable 


 
Commitment to Effective Management.     


 


Replacing ISNS with SNS at all intersections where SNS is not currently installed would standardize the 
routine maintenance performed at each intersection. This would also help differentiate City maintained 
intersections from those maintained by other Agencies (Caltrans, Riverside County, Murrieta, and Lake 
Elsinore). 


 
Appropriate Staffing and Support.  


 


This Decision Package would be performed by the City’s Signal Maintenance Contractor, Yunex Traffic 
(Siemens).  
 
• Measure Detail. 


(Describe and quantify any changes to output, outcome or performance measures that would result from this request) 
 


 


14 of the City’s 18 signalized intersections would receive this improvement. Within these 14 intersections, 
an estimated 45 existing ISNS would be replaced with SNS. SNS provides a more consistency for driver 
visibility at night and is easier for public works maintenance crews to access than ISNS. 
 
• Impact on Residents/Customers and Services. 
 


Aesthetically, making all Street Signs the same style would create a now consistent appearance at all 
intersections within the community, and enhance the City’s identity within the region. Replacing worn 
ISNS with new SNS is an improvement on the quality of life of residents. 
 
• Impact on Other City Programs. 
 


Not applicable 
 


• Relationship to Capital Budget. 
 
 


Not applicable 
 
 


 
• Alternatives Explored. 


 


Replacement of County Standard ISNS blades (Green background, white text) to be City Standards (Blue 
background, white text, City Logo) was explored, as well as retrofitting the sodium lamp lighting to LED 
lamps was considered to lower energy costs. Both options were not as cost effective as replacing ISNS 
for SNS. LED lighting materials were also not readily available due to COVID-19 supply chain impacts.  
 


 


6







 


3 
 


• Distinction between One-Time (non-recurring) and Ongoing (recurring) Costs and 
Impacts to Future Budgets. 


 


This $75,000 request would be One-Time (non-recurring) cost. 
 
$30,000 is budgeted for Yunex Traffic (Siemens) to retrofit each signalized intersection.  
$25,000 is budgeted for Material acquisition. 
$10,000 is budgeted for Project Administration and Inspection. 
$10,000 is budgeted for contingencies for the above line items. 


 
 


• Effects of Not Funding this Request. 
 


None, but the City would continue to have multiple variations of Street Signs at intersections, with some 
ISNS or SNS, some being either County Standard or City Standard, and all in various wear conditions.  
 
• Revenue and Expenditure Calculations and Assumptions and Staffing (FTE) 


Assumptions.  (Thoroughly describe how costs/revenues were determined and what assumptions were used in that process, as 
well as the assumptions used to determine the number of FTEs required including costs by account category.) 


 
Not applicable 


 
Please submit completed form to jriley@cityofwilodmar.org when completed. 


7







1 
 


 
 


City of Wildomar 
 


1st Quarter FY2021/22 
 


Detailed Decision Package  
 
Decision Package Title:    Enhanced Radio Communication Services   


 
Service Impact:   __Safety, _X_Development, __Recreation,    
     __Transportation, __Other  
 
Department: Code Enforcement      
 
Budget Period: 1st Quarter FY2021/22     
 
Recommendation Summary Text 
 
Purchase Enhanced Radio Equipment and Subscribe to the County Public Safety Radio 
System. 
 
Fiscal Summary of Costs and Funding Source 
 


Operating Expenditures Fund FY 2021/22  FY 2022/23  Total 
120-430-4350-58100 
Equipment 


120 $33,000    $33,000 


120-430-4350-53028 
Communications 


120 $2,100  $2,100  $4,200 


Total Cost     $35,100       $2,100      $37,200 
       
Revenue or Funding 
Source 


 FY 2021/22  FY 2022/23  Total 


Measure AA 120   $35,100       $2,100     $37,200 
Total Revenue/Funds     $35,100       $2,100      $37,200 


 
Package Description: 
(Please provide a description of why we need this, solution to what problem, and comparison to existing levels of funding and output.) 
 


The City would like purchase a Motorola radio system for the Code Enforcement and 
Emergency Management Department in order to provide enhanced services. The City will 
purchase new devices for the staff as well a connection service to the County of Riverside 
Public Safety Enterprise Communication (PSEC) system. This will enable staff to access 
County Sheriff channels and also establish channels for City-specific use.   
 
Narrative Justification and Impact Statement: 
• Describe the way in which way this package contributes to the City of Wildomar. 


8







2 
 


 
 
Public Safety. 


 


This package will allow the City provide better enhanced Code Enforcement services to the City. It 
will improve staff response time and personnel safety in the field. The City will also be able to 
receive public safety updates from surrounding agencies sooner.  
 
 


 
• Funding Detail: 
 


The initial purchase cost will be $33,000 for initial equipment to be paid out of Measure AA under 
Code Enforcement. To subscribe to the County radio system will cost $2,100 annually. That will 
make the total Fiscal Year 2021/22 cost $35,100.  
 
The recurring cost for the subscription will be $2,100 and is recommended to be paid out of 
Measure AA. Alternatively, the Council may elect to pay the recurring subscription costs out of the 
General Fund.   


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please submit completed form to ajantz@cityofwildomar.org when finished. 


9







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.3 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Gary Nordquist, City Manager 
 Dan York, Assistant City Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance Repealing and Replacing Chapter 8.48 (Hazardous Vegetation) 


of the Wildomar Municipal Code  
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council introduce and waive further reading of an 
Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, REPEALING CHAPTER 
8.48 (HAZARDOUS VEGETATION) OF THE WILDOMAR 
MUNICIPAL CODE, AND ADDING CHAPTER 8.48 
(HAZARDOUS VEGETATION AND RUBBISH ABATEMENT 
PROGRAM) TO THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 


 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Wildomar’s Hazardous Vegetation Abatement program is designed to 
reduce fire hazards on private properties during the spring and early summer months. 
This program seeks to remove weeds, rubbish, litter or other flammable material from 
private properties where such flammable material endangers the public safety by 
creating a public nuisance and a fire hazard.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
The primary goal of the proposed ordinance is to streamline the existing Hazardous 
Vegetation Abatement program, and clarify when the City is authorized to enter property 
impacted by hazardous vegetation to perform abatement.   
 
There are two statutory avenues under the California Government Code that address 
hazardous vegetation abatement:  (1) Gov. Code 39501 et seq., and (2) Gov. Code 
39560 et seq.  Government Code 39560 et seq. sets forth defined procedures for the 
City to follow, including a resolution declaring the nuisance and a noticed public hearing 
for all impacted properties.  The other statutory scheme, Gov. Code 39501 et seq., 







provides flexibility and allows the City to craft its Own Hazardous Vegetation Abatement 
process. 
 
The proposed ordinance has been prepared in accordance with Government Code 
39501 et seq., which allows a city to craft its own hazardous vegetation program.  In the 
proposed ordinance hazardous vegetation abatement would be handled entirely at the 
staff level.  Upon the issuance of a Notice and Order to abate, a property owner would 
be required to remove hazardous vegetation from their property in accordance with the 
specifications set forth in the ordinance.  Property owners would have an opportunity to 
appeal the Notice and Order to a hearing officer designated by the City Manager.  The 
determination of the hearing officer would be final.   
 
If the property owner does not appeal the Notice and Order, or if the Notice and Order is 
upheld by the hearing officer, City personnel or contractors may enter the subject 
property to abate the nuisance.  In accordance with the proposed ordinance, entry onto 
an improved parcel, excepting instances of an imminent hazard, shall be pursuant to a 
warrant from a court of competent jurisdiction.  The ordinance provides for a mechanism 
to place liens on the impacted property in order to recover the costs associated with the 
abatement. 
 
As noted, the proposed ordinance has been prepared in accordance with Government 
Code section 39501 et seq.  The alternative, Government Code 39560 et seq., requires 
a more cumbersome abatement process that would include a public hearing before the 
City Council for the abatement notices.  That Government Code section also explicitly 
authorizes a public entity to enter onto private property to abate the hazardous 
vegetation.  Government Code section 39501 et seq., on the other hand, provides the 
City with the flexibility to create its own streamlined abatement procedures, and keep 
the process at the staff level.  However, Government Code section 39501 et seq. does 
not contain explicit authorization for the public entity to enter onto private property to 
abate the nuisance, but is instead silent on the issue.  As a result, the abatement 
process in the proposed ordinance does not provide the same level of express statutory 
protection to the City in the event a property owner challenges the City’s entry onto their 
unimproved property to abate hazardous vegetation.  However, the process proposed 
by this ordinance this is consistent with the process used by many cities and counties 
throughout California.  Further, the draft ordinance has been reviewed by Cal Fire and is 
consistent with their preferred approach. 
 
 
Submitted by: 
Gary Nordquist, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance  







  - 1 - 
 
IRV #4819-6400-2035 v2  


ORDINANCE NO. ________ 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, REPEALING CHAPTER 8.48 (HAZARDOUS VEGETATION) 
OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE, AND ADDING CHAPTER 8.48 
(HAZARDOUS VEGETATION AND RUBBISH ABATEMENT PROGRAM) 
TO THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 


WHEREAS, the City desires to amend the City of Wildomar Municipal Code to 
regulate weed abatement in accordance with Government Code Sections 39501 and 
39502 in order to promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the residents and 
businesses within the City. 


 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Wildomar ordains as follows: 


SECTION 1.  GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY 


The City Council has reviewed and analyzed the proposed amendments to the 
Municipal Code and finds and determines that the ordinance is in compliance with the 
goals and policies of the City of Wildomar General Plan, that the ordinance will not be 
detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, convenience, or general welfare of the 
city; and that it is internally consistent with other applicable provisions of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code. 


SECTION 2.  CEQA 


 The City Council hereby finds and determines that the proposed amendments to 
the Wildomar Municipal Code are exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(Cal. Publ. Res. Code §§21000 et seq. “CEQA”) and the State CEQA Guidelines (14. 
Cal. Code Regs §§15000 et seq.), specifically pursuant to pursuant to Sections 
15060(c)(2), 15060(c)(3), and 15061(b)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines because it 
will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the 
environment, because there is no possibility that it may have a significant effect on the 
environment, and because it is not a “project” as that term is defined in Section 15378 
of the State CEQA Guidelines. 


SECTION 3.  REPEAL OF CHAPTER 8.48 AND ADDITION OF CHAPTER 8.48 


The City Council approves the repeal of Chapter 8.48 (Hazardous Vegetation) of the 
Wildomar Municipal Code, and the addition of Chapter 8.48 (Hazardous Vegetation and 
Rubbish Abatement Program), attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein, to 
the Wildomar Municipal Code. 


SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY. 


If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of 
this Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would 
have adopted this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, 







  - 2 - 
 
IRV #4819-6400-2035 v2  


clause, phrase, or portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, 
subsections, subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared 
invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE. 


This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days from its passage by the City 
Council. 


SECTION 6.  PUBLICATION. 


The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published 
within fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation and 
circulated within the City in accordance with Government Code Section 36933(a) or, to 
cause this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law using the 
alternative summary and posting procedure authorized under Government Code 
Section 36933(c). 


 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this __ day of ________, 2021 


 
 


       _________________________ 
       Dustin Nigg 
 Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________   ________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk 


 


 


 


  







  - 3 - 
 
IRV #4819-6400-2035 v2  


Exhibit “A” 


 


CHAPTER 8.48 - HAZARDOUS VEGETATION AND RUBBISH ABATEMENT 
PROGRAM. 


8.48.010  Hazardous vegetation and rubbish abatement program. 


A. Findings 


1. The City of Wildomar generally has an arid climate conducive to 
wildfires and is prone to periodic Santa Ana wind events. Many of 
the City’s native and non-native plant species can be highly 
flammable during normal dry periods and have contributed to 
significant wildfires within the City and surrounding area. Drought 
and Santa Ana wind events further exacerbate the fire danger and 
have resulted in catastrophic fire losses to life, property and the 
environment throughout the region; and 


2. Of paramount importance to the City Council and the citizens of the 
City of Wildomar is the protection of lives and property from the 
threat of fire and the safety of fire and law enforcement personnel 
during wildfires; and 


3. It is the purpose of this ordinance to establish a hazardous 
vegetation abatement program that protects the lives and property 
of the citizens of Wildomar; and 


4. The City Council finds that hazardous vegetation or combustible 
material poses a danger to the health, safety and welfare of the 
residents in the vicinity of any real property located throughout the 
City of Wildomar for the reasons set forth above.  


B. Pursuant to Government Code Sections 39501 and 39502, the City of 
Wildomar adopts the following procedures making it the responsibility and 
duty of the property owners, lessees, and occupants of real property within 
the City to prevent and abate public nuisances caused by weeds, 
hazardous vegetation or rubbish on or about any parcel. 


C. The following definitions apply to the City’s hazardous vegetation and 
rubbish abatement program: 


1. “Weeds” include (a) any vegetation or plants which when mature 
bear seeds of a downy or wingy nature; (b) sagebrush, chaparral 
and any other brush or weeds which attain such large growth as to 
become, when dry, a fire menace; (c) poison oak and poison ivy 



http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=39501

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=39502





  - 4 - 
 
IRV #4819-6400-2035 v2  


when the conditions of growth are such as to constitute a menace 
to the public health, and weeds that are otherwise noxious or 
dangerous; (d) overgrown vegetation which is likely to harbor rats 
or vermin, or which constitutes a fire hazard; (e) dry grass, stubble, 
brush, or other flammable material which endangers the public 
safety by creating a fire hazard; (f) large amounts of dead, dying or 
diseased vegetation; and (g) any other brush, vines, trees, grass, 
plants, or vegetation that is injurious to public health, safety, welfare 
or is otherwise hazardous or unsightly to the community. 


2. “Rubbish” includes, but is not limited to, trash or refuse consisting 
of uncontained paper, cardboard, wood, dry grass or brush, dirt, 
plastic, rubber, metal or ceramic wreckage, glass, junk, 
disassembled automobiles, machinery, or parts thereof, or any 
other discarded material which may be combustible or deleterious 
to the public health, safety, or welfare, or any material which by 
reason of its location and/or character may hamper or interfere with 
the prevention or suppression of fire upon the premises or adjacent 
premises. 


3. “Fire Chief” means the Fire Chief of the City of Wildomar or 
designee. 


4. “Hazardous vegetation” means vegetation that is flammable and 
endangers the public safety by creating a fire hazard, including, but 
not limited to, seasonal and recurrent weeds, stubble, brush, dry 
leaves and tumbleweeds. 


5. “Improved parcel” means a portion of land of any size, the area of 
which is determined by the County Assessor’s maps and records 
and may be identified by an assessor’s parcel number upon which 
a structure is located. 


6. “Parcel” means a portion of land of any size, the area of which is 
determined by the County Assessor’s maps and records and may 
be identified by an assessor’s parcel number. 


7. “Structure” means any dwelling, house, building or other type of 
flammable construction, including, but not limited to, a wood fence 
attached to or near any other structure. 


D. It shall be unlawful, and is hereby declared a public nuisance, for the 
owner(s), lessee(s), or occupant(s) of real property within the City to 
maintain, permit, or allow such premises to be maintained in such a 
condition where weeds, hazardous vegetation or rubbish negatively affect 
the public health, safety, or welfare. It is also hereby declared the duty and 
responsibility of the owner(s), lessee(s), and occupant(s) of real property 







  - 5 - 
 
IRV #4819-6400-2035 v2  


within the City to prevent and abate any and all conditions of weeds, 
hazardous vegetation or rubbish that negatively affect the public health, 
safety, or welfare. 


E. It shall be the duty of every owner, lessee and occupant of real property 
within the City, parcel of land or interest therein which is in the City to clear 
therefrom, including sidewalks and parkways adjacent to such property, all 
weeds, hazardous vegetation and rubbish. 


F. The Fire Chief, or his or her designee, shall have authority to declare 
violations of this section and to enforce the same against the owner(s), 
lessee(s) and occupant(s) of the real property upon which such conditions 
exist. 


G. The Fire Chief, or his or her designee, shall enforce the duty set forth in 
this subsection hereof, by issuing and serving a notice and order to abate 
by personal service or by US mail or by private carrier to the property 
owner as his or her name appears on the most recent equalized 
assessment roll and to the address as shown in the records of the County 
Assessor. The notice and order shall contain: 


1. A reasonable description of the lot or parcel of real property upon 
which the violation exists; 


2. A reasonable description of the violating conditions constituting the 
nuisance; 


3. The relevant standards for maintenance, prevention, and 
abatement of weeds, hazardous vegetation and rubbish adopted 
pursuant to this section; 


4. Reference to this section; 


5. An order to remove the violating conditions and bring the property 
into compliance within 20 calendar days; 


6. A description of the consequences of failure to comply as 
prescribed in this section; and 


7. A statement that a written appeal may be filed with the City 
Manager or designee thereof. 


H. The requirements of subsection (D) of this section shall be satisfied if the 
owner, lessee or occupant clears the property by disking, mowing or any 
other method described in said notice as follows: 


1. A 100-foot-wide strip of land at the boundary of an unimproved 
parcel, and/or parcel frontage adjacent to a roadway. 







  - 6 - 
 
IRV #4819-6400-2035 v2  


2. A 100-foot-wide strip of land around structure(s) located on an 
adjacent improved parcel (some or all of this clearance may be 
required on the unimproved parcel depending upon the location of 
the structure on the improved parcel). 


3. The Fire Chief may require more than a 100-foot width or less than 
a 100-foot width for the protection of public health, safety or welfare 
or the environment. The determination for appropriate clearance 
distances will be made based upon a visual inspection of the parcel 
and shall consider all factors that place the property or adjoining 
structure(s) at risk from a fire. These factors shall include local 
weather conditions, fuel type(s), topography and the environment 
where the property or adjoining structure(s) is located. 


4. Where the parcel’s terrain is such that it cannot be disked or 
mowed, the Fire Chief may require, or authorize, that other means 
of removal be used. 


I. If after 20 calendar days from the date the notice and order was issued the 
nuisance upon the property has not been abated and no written appeal 
has been filed in accordance with this chapter, the right to appeal is 
waived and the notice and order shall be final, conclusive, and binding.  In 
such instances, the City may, without any administrative hearing, enter the 
subject property and cause the abatement with City personnel or 
contractors of any or all of the nuisance conditions or activities stated in 
the notice and order. Notwithstanding the above, entry onto an improved 
parcel shall, excepting instances of an imminent hazard, be pursuant to a 
warrant from a court of competent jurisdiction. The City shall follow the 
procedures stated in this chapter for recovery of all abatement costs, fees 
and expenses (incidental or otherwise). 


J. Abatement of any nuisance under this section may, in the discretion of the 
City, be contracted to an outside contractor. Should the City contract the 
abatement process, the City may assign its interest in collecting payment 
for the work to the contractor which performed the work, as payment to the 
contractor. 


8.48.020  Appeals. 


A. The recipient of the notice and order issued pursuant to this chapter, or the 
owner of the property on which the nuisance is located, may request a hearing 
on the notice and order to abate by filing a written appeal with the City Manager 
or designee within 20 calendar days of the date of the notice to abate. The 
appeal shall state the reasons why the notice and order to abate is incorrect. 


B. If a request for hearing is not timely and properly filed, or if a hearing is held and 
a nuisance is confirmed, City personnel or contractors may enter the subject 







  - 7 - 
 
IRV #4819-6400-2035 v2  


property to abate the nuisance.  Notwithstanding the above, entry onto an 
improved parcel, excepting instances of an imminent hazard, shall be pursuant to 
a warrant from a court of competent jurisdiction. 


C. Failure to timely and properly appeal constitutes a waiver of the right to appeal 
and a failure to exhaust administrative remedies.   


D. If a request for hearing is timely and properly filed, a hearing shall be conducted 
to hear the appeal and render a determination on the existence of the public 
nuisance(s) identified in the notice. The City Manager shall appoint a hearing 
officer.  The hearing officer shall be an individual that had no involvement in the 
determination to issue or issuance of the notice and order to abate. 


E. Notice of Hearing. A notice of the hearing date, time and location shall be served 
on the person requesting the hearing and the owner of the property on which the 
violation occurred. 


F. Conduct of the Hearing. On the date and time stated in the notice of the hearing, 
the hearing officer shall hear and consider all relevant evidence relating to the 
conditions on the property as identified in the notice. The hearing may be 
continued from time to time at the discretion of the City or upon a written request 
from the appellant based on good cause. The appealing party shall have the 
opportunity to present relevant evidence and testimony on his or her behalf, and 
shall have the opportunity to examine relevant City witnesses. The rules of 
evidence shall not apply. 


G. Determination. Within a reasonable time following conclusion of the hearing, the 
hearing officer shall issue a written determination as to whether the conditions 
identified in the notice constitute a public nuisance that negatively affects the 
public health, safety, or welfare. If the hearing officers determines that a public 
nuisance exists, it shall declare such premises to be a public nuisance, uphold 
the notice to abate in full or in part, and order complete abatement within a 
specified time. If the hearing officer determines that none of the conditions 
identified in the notice to abate constitute a public nuisance, then the notice to 
abate shall be withdrawn. The determination of the hearing officer is final. 


H. Notice of Determination. Notice of the determination of the hearing officer shall 
be served on the appealing party and the owner of the property on which the 
violation. 


 


8.18.030   Service. 


Unless otherwise specified, any notice, order or statement issued pursuant to this 
chapter may be served by personal service, by US mail or by private carrier to the 







  - 8 - 
 
IRV #4819-6400-2035 v2  


violator’s last known address or address as shown on the County’s Assessor’s most 
recent tax rolls. Service shall be completed at the time of deposit in the U.S. mail or with 
the private carrier. 


8.18.040   Collection. 


The City shall keep an itemized accounting of the associated costs incurred by the City 
to abate the nuisance. All abatement and administrative costs incurred by the City, 
including all costs, may be recovered by any manner authorized by law, including by 
lien or assessment pursuant to the procedures set forth in Municipal Code Section 
1.16.080.  As used herein, “associated costs” includes, but is not limited to, costs 
incurred in preparation of notices, specifications and contracts; inspection and other 
staff enforcement activities; printings and mailings; recordings and court costs; 
hearings; actual costs of abatement; and attorney’s fees, whether through civil, criminal 
or administrative action, or otherwise. 


 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.4 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 James R. Riley, Project Consultant  
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance amending and restating Chapter 8.104 (Solid Waste Collection 


and Disposal) of the City of Wildomar Municipal Code  
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council introduce and waive further reading of an 
Ordinance entitled: 


ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA AMENDING AND 
RESTATING CHAPTER 8.104 (SOLID WASTE 
COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL) OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 


 
DISCUSSION: 
The Legislature of the State of California, by enactment of the California Integrated 
Waste Management Act of 1989, (“AB 939” or the “Act”) (codified at Public Resources 
Code §§ 4000 et seq.) established a solid waste management process which requires 
cities and other local jurisdictions to implement plans for source reduction, reuse and 
recycling as integrated waste management practices for solid waste attributed to 
sources within their respective jurisdictions. 
 
The Act provides that aspects of solid waste handling of local concern include but are 
not limited to frequency of collection, means of collection and transportation, level of 
services, charges and fees, and nature, location and extent of providing solid waste 
services. The Act encompasses mandates including Assembly Bill (AB) 341 and AB 
1826, as well as the newly adopted Short-Lived Climate Pollutants mandate, Senate Bill 
(SB) 1383.  
 
Senate Bill 1383 builds on existing legislation, AB 341 and AB 1826. The stated 
purpose of SB 1383 is to reduce organic waste disposal, recover edible food waste from 
the waste stream and reduce methane emissions. The goal of SB 1383 is to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions to 40% below 1990 levels by the year 2030. To achieve this, 
the target is to reduce organic waste that ends up in the landfill by 50% by the year 







2020 and 75% by the year 2025. In addition to reducing landfilled organics by 75%, the 
State will also be required to recover edible food that is currently thrown away by 20% 
through programs such as establishing edible food recovery programs. In order to 
achieve the reduction of landfilled waste and to increase recovery, the State has 
mandated the following: 
 


1. Provide Organics Collection Services to All Residents, Multi-family Complexes 
and Businesses 


2. Establish Edible Food Recovery Programs 
3. Conduct Education and Outreach to the Community 
4. Procure Recyclable and Recovered Organics Products 
5. Monitor Compliance and Conduct Enforcement 


 
The proposed ordinance maintains the same structure as the existing Code, but adds 
and addresses the required elements of SB 1383, including: 
 
Collection Services: Trash, recyclable and organic collection services for all commercial, 
multi-family and residential accounts are required unless a commercial waiver is 
granted. 
 
Commercial Edible Food Generator: These generators are required to recover the 
maximum amount of edible food that would otherwise be disposed in the waste stream 
and implement related programs. These generators shall maintain and provide record 
access to City staff. 
 
Food Recovery Organizations: Shall maintain and provide record access to City staff. 
 
Inspections and Investigations: City representative are authorized to conduct 
inspections and investigations to confirm compliance. Regulated entities shall provide 
access and cooperate with staff during the process. 
 
Enforcement: Violation of any provision of the provisions of the ordinance shall be a 
misdemeanor that may be enforced by City in any manner authorized by law, including 
but not limited to an administrative citation, criminal citation, nuisance abatement action, 
or civil action. 
 
FUTURE ACTION: 
At a future City Council meeting, staff will be presenting the Council with a proposed 
amendment to the Franchise Agreement between the City and Waste Management and 
CC&R for Council consideration. The Franchise Agreement will address the 
franchisee’s responsibilities regarding education and outreach to the community. Staff 
will also be presenting a procurement policy to address the procurement of recyclable 
and recovered organic products as required by SB 1383. 
 
 
 







CEQA: 
Staff determined that proposed ordinance is exempt from California Environmental 
Quality Act (Cal. Pub. Resources Code, § 21000 et seq., “CEQA”) and the regulations 
promulgated thereunder (14 Cal. Code of Regs., § 15000 et seq., the “CEQA 
Guidelines”) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Sections 15061(b)(3) and 15308 on the 
grounds that it can be seen with certainty that the enhanced solid waste regulations, as 
provided for in the proposed ordinance will not have a significant effect on the 
environment and that the new requirements, which strengthen requirements for the 
handling of solid waste, represent actions by a regulatory agency (the City) for the 
protection of the environment.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The adoption of this ordinance will have the following fiscal impact: 


1. Increase in Franchise Fees to the City for Trash Services 
2. Increase in cost of City services to administer new requirements of the 


ordinance. 
 
The increase in franchise fees is estimated to be offset by the increase in City costs. 
Amount to be determined. 
 
 
Submitted by:                   Approved by: 
Robert Howell                  Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director                 City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance No. ___ 







 -1-  


ORDINANCE NO. __ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 


OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA AMENDING AND 
RESTATING CHAPTER 8.104 (SOLID WASTE 


COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL) OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 


 
 WHEREAS, State recycling law, Assembly Bill 939 of 1989, the California 
Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (California Public Resources Code Section 
40000, et seq., as amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time), 
requires cities and counties to reduce, reuse, and recycle (including composting) Solid 
Waste generated in their jurisdictions to the maximum extent feasible before any 
incineration or landfill disposal of waste, to conserve water, energy, and other natural 
resources, and to protect the environment; and 


 WHEREAS, State recycling law, Assembly Bill 341 of 2011 (approved by the 
Governor of the State of California on October 5, 2011, which amended Sections 41730, 
41731, 41734, 41735, 41736, 41800, 42926, 44004, and 50001 of, and added Sections 
40004, 41734.5, and 41780.01 and Chapter 12.8 (commencing with Section 42649) to 
Part 3 of Division 30 of, and added and repealed Section 41780.02 of, the Public 
Resources Code, as amended, supplemented, superseded and replaced from time to 
time), places requirements on businesses and Multi-Family property owners that generate 
a specified threshold amount of Solid Waste to arrange for recycling services and requires 
the City to implement a Mandatory Commercial Recycling program; and  


 WHEREAS, State organics recycling law, Assembly Bill 1826 of 2014 (approved 
by the Governor of the State of California on September 28, 2014, which added Chapter 
12.9 (commencing with Section 42649.8) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the Public Resources 
Code, relating to Solid Waste, as amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced 
from time to time), requires businesses and Multi-Family property owners that generate a 
specified threshold amount of Solid Waste, Recycling, and Organic Waste per week to 
arrange for recycling services for that waste, requires the City to implement a recycling 
program to divert Organic Waste from businesses subject to the law, and requires the 
City to implement a Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling program; and 


 WHEREAS, SB 1383, the Short-lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Act of 2016, 
requires CalRecycle to develop regulations to reduce organics in landfills as a source of 
methane. The regulations place requirements on multiple entities including the City, 
residential households, Commercial Businesses and business owners, Commercial 
Edible Food Generators, haulers, Food Recovery Organizations, and Food Recovery 
Services to support achievement of Statewide Organic Waste disposal reduction targets; 
and 


 WHEREAS, SB 1383, the Short-lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Act of 2016, 
requires the City to adopt and enforce an ordinance or enforceable mechanism to 
implement relevant provisions of SB 1383 Regulations. This ordinance will also help 
reduce food insecurity by requiring Commercial Edible Food Generators to arrange to 







 -2-  


have the maximum amount of their Edible Food, that would otherwise be disposed, be 
recovered for human consumption.  


 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR HEREBY DOES ORDAIN 
AS FOLLOWS:  


SECTION 1:  CEQA ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION.  


 The City Council exercises its independent judgment and finds that this ordinance 
is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to the State 
CEQA Guidelines, California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15308, 
which exempts "actions by regulatory agencies for protection of the environment."  This 
Ordinance is consistent with the goals of California State Assembly Bills 939, 341, and 
1826, and Senate Bill 1383. 


SECTION 2. AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 8.104, “SOLID WASTE 
COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL” 


 Chapter 8.104, Solid Waste Collection and Disposal, is hereby amended in 
restated in its entirety as set forth in Exhibit A.  


SECTION 3. MODEL WATER EFFICIENT LANDSCAPING ORDINANCE 
REQUIREMENTS 


The following Section 17.276.035 is hereby added to Chapter 17.276 (Water-
Efficient Landscapes): 


“17.276.035 Landscape Design Plan 


As applicable, all persons and/or entities subject to the State Model Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance (23 CCR, Division 2, Chapter 2.7) shall comply with Sections 
492.6(a)(3)(B), (C), (D), and (G), of the State Model Water Efficient Landscape 
Ordinance, as amended September 15, 2015, and as it may be amended in the future.” 


SECTION 4. AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 3.24 (PURCHASING OF SUPPLIES 
AND EQUIPMENT) 


 The following Section 3.24.130 is hereby added to Chapter 3.24 (Purchasing of 
Supplies and Equipment) 


“3.24.130 Recovered Organic Material Product Procurement and Recycled-Content 
Paper Procurement 


A. All City departments, and direct service providers to the Jurisdiction, as 
applicable, must comply with the City’s Recovered Organic Material Produce and 
Recycled-Content Paper Procurement Policy, as amended. 







 -3-  


B. All vendors providing paper products and printing and writing paper shall: 


 1. If fitness and quality are equal, provide recycled-content paper 
products and recycled-content printing and writing paper that consists of at least 
30 percent, by fiber weight, postconsumer fiber instead of non-recycled products 
whenever recycled paper products and printing and writing paper are available at 
the same or lesser total cost than non-recycled items or at a total cost of no more 
than one percent (1%) of the total cost for non-recycled items. 


2. Provide paper products and printing and writing paper that meet 
Federal Trade Commission recyclability standard as defined in 16 Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Section 260.12. 


3. Certify in writing, under penalty of perjury, the minimum percentage 
of postconsumer material in the paper products and printing and writing paper 
offered or sold to the City. This certification requirement may be waived if the 
percentage of postconsumer material in the paper products, printing and writing 
paper, or both can be verified by a product label, catalog, invoice, or a 
manufacturer or vendor internet website. 


4. Certify in writing, on invoices or receipts provided, that the paper 
products and printing and writing paper offered or sold to the City is eligible to be 
labeled with an unqualified recyclable label as defined in 16 Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Section 260.12 (2013). 


5. Provide records to the City’s recordkeeping designee, of all paper products and 
printing and writing paper purchases (both recycled-content and non-recycled content, if 
any is purchased).  Records shall include a copy (electronic or paper) of the invoice or 
other documentation of purchase, written certifications as required in this Section, 
quantity purchased, date purchased, and recycled content (including products that 
contain none), and if non-recycled content paper products or printing and writing papers 
are provided, include a description of why recycled-content paper products or printing and 
writing papers were not provided.” 


SECTION 5. SEVERABILITY 


If any Chapter, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 
ordinance, is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such decision will not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted 
this ordinance, and each Chapter, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or 
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more Sections, subsections, 
subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional.” 







 -4-  


SECTION 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE.   


This ordinance shall take on January 1, 2022. 


SECTION 7.  CITY CLERK ACTION 


The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published 
within fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation and 
circulated within the City in accordance with Government Code Chapter 36933(a) or, to 
cause this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law using the alternative 
summary and posting procedure authorized under Government Code Chapter 39633(c). 


 INTRODUCED FOR FIRST READING this 13th day of October, 2021. 


 


 


_____________________ 


Dustin Nigg  


Mayor 


 


 


APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 


 


 


____________________________  ___________________________ 


Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 


City Attorney      City Clerk 


 


 


  







 -5-  


EXHIBIT A 


“Chapter 8.104 SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 
 


ARTICLE I. GENERAL PROVISIONS  


ARTICLE II. SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 


ARTICLE III. FRANCHISES 


ARTICLE IV. SELF-HAULING 


ARTICLE V. NON-ORGANIC RECYCLABLES, GREEN WASTE, AND C&D MATERIALS  


ARTICLE VI. ORGANIC WASTE 


ARTICLE VII. PROHIBITED ACTS  


ARTICLE VIII. ENFORCEMENT 


ARTICLE I. – GENERAL PROVISIONS 


Sec. 8.104.010. – Purpose; Findings. 


Sec. 8.104.020. – Definitions. 
 


Sec. 8.104.010. – Purpose; Findings. 


A. Purpose.  The management and proper disposal of Solid Waste is a matter of great 
importance to the City, its citizens, visitors, property owners and businesses. The City finds that 
the public health, safety, and well-being require the generation, accumulation, handling, collection, 
transportation, conversion and disposal of Solid Waste be controlled and regulated by the City 
through the comprehensive system provided in this Chapter.  This Chapter is intended to ensure 
Solid Waste Handling Services are readily available, adhere to uniform standards, and are reliable, 
clean, and efficient. The City has a strong interest in reducing the harboring and breeding of rodents 
and insects, reducing the spread of disease, and preventing pollution and other unsightly 
degradation of the environment, which can occur with the improper handling of Solid Waste and 
the excess accumulation of Solid Waste. 


B. Findings.  The City finds and declares: 


1. Article XI, § 7 of the California Constitution authorizes cities to make and enforce 
within their limits all local, police, sanitary, and other ordinances and regulations 
not in conflict with general laws. 


2. The Legislature of the State of California, by enactment of the California Integrated 
Waste Management Act of 1989, (“AB 939” or the “Act”) (codified at Public 







 -6-  


Resources Code §§ 4000 et seq.) established a solid waste management process that 
requires cities and other local jurisdictions to adopt and implement plans to reduce 
the amount of solid waste generated within their jurisdiction and to maximize reuse 
and recycling. 


3. AB 939 states that the frequency of solid waste collection, the means of solid waste 
collection and transportation, levels of services, charges and fees for services, and 
the nature, location and extent of providing solid waste services, are matters of local 
concern. 


4. AB 939 expressly allows cities to provide solid waste services to its residents by its 
own forces or by authorizing a private entity to provide those services. 


5. This Chapter implements Article XI, § 7 of the California Constitution and AB 939 
in the City of Wildomar and protects public health and safety by authorizing the 
City Council to provide solid waste handling service itself or to award one or more 
franchises to private entities. 


Sec. 8.104.120. - Definitions. 
 
“AB 939” or “Act” means the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989, codified in 
part at Public Resources Code, §§ 40000 et seq. as it may be amended, and as implemented by the 
regulations of CalRecycle or its successor agency. 


“Account Holder” means the persons or entities whose name(s) are on a Solid Waste Franchisee’s 
account for a Premises.  


“Authorized Collector” means a private contractor authorized to provide collection services on 
behalf of the City through contract, exclusive franchise agreement, or non-exclusive franchise 
agreement. 


“Bin” means a receptacle, typically between one and six cubic yards, provided by a Solid Waste 
Franchisee for the collection of Solid Waste. 


“Blue Container” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(5) and shall be used for 
the purpose of storage and collection of Source Separated Recyclable Materials or Source 
Separated Blue Container Organic Waste.  


“Bulky Waste” means Solid Waste that would not typically fit within a Container, including, but 
not limited to, furniture, carpets, mattresses, and oversized green material such as tree trunks and 
large branches if no larger than two feet in diameter and four feet in length, and similar large items 
discarded from a single family dwelling.  “Bulky Waste” does not include Covered Electronic 
Devices, such as televisions, radios, computers, monitors, and the like, which are regarded as 
Universal Waste, the disposal of which is governed by regulation of the Department of Toxic 
Substances Control.  







 -7-  


“CalRecycle” means California's Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, which is the 
Department designated with responsibility for developing, implementing, and enforcing SB 1383 
Regulations on jurisdictions (and others).  


“California Code of Regulations” or “CCR” means the State of California Code of Regulations. 
CCR references are preceded with a number that refers to the relevant Title of the CCR (e.g., “14 
CCR” refers to Title 14 of CCR). 


“City” means the City of Wildomar, California, a municipal corporation, and all of the territory 
lying within the municipal boundaries of the City as presently existing and all geographic areas 
which may be added or annexed to the City.  


“City Manager” means a person having that title in the employ of the City of Wildomar, or the 
City Manager’s designated representative. 


“City Premises” means City-owned or operated Premises where Solid Waste is generated or 
accumulated. 


“Commercial Business” or “Commercial” means a firm, partnership, proprietorship, joint-stock 
company, corporation, or association, whether for-profit or nonprofit, strip mall, industrial facility, 
or a multifamily residential dwelling as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(6). A Multi-Family 
Residential Dwelling that consists of fewer than five (5) units is not a Commercial Business for 
purposes of implementing this Chapter.   


“Commercial Edible Food Generator” includes a Tier One or a Tier Two Commercial Edible Food 
Generator as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) and (a)(74). For the purposes of this 
definition, Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services are not Commercial Edible 
Food Generators. 


“Compliance Review” means a review of records by the City to determine compliance with this 
Chapter. 


“Community Composting” means any activity that composts green material, agricultural material, 
food material, and vegetative food material, alone or in combination, and the total amount of 
feedstock and Compost on-site at any one time does not exceed 100 cubic yards and 750 square 
feet, as specified in 14 CCR Section 17855(a)(4); or, as otherwise defined by 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(8). 


“Compost” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 17896.2(a)(4), as may be amended from 
time to time. 


“Compost Facility” means a Solid Waste facility that processes Organic Waste to produce 
Compost or mulch. 


“Compostable Plastic” means food-service and food-packaging plastic materials or plastic bags 
used for collecting organics material that are placed in the Green Container and transported to a 
compostable material handling operations or facilities, in-vessel digestion operations or other 
facility provided the organic waste processing facility accepts the material and has provided 







 -8-  


written notification annually to the City stating that the facility can process and recover that 
material for composability, as defined in 14 CCR Section 18984.1(a)(1)(A) for three container 
systems, and 18984.2(a)(1)(C) for two container systems. 


“Construction and Demolition Material” or “C&D Material” means discarded building materials, 
“inert wastes” as defined in Public Resources Code § 41821.3(a)(1) (e.g. rock, concrete, brick, 
sand, soil ceramics and cured asphalt), recyclable construction and demolition materials, 
packaging, plaster, drywall, rubble resulting from construction, remodeling, repair and demolition 
operations, but does not include asbestos-containing materials or Hazardous Waste.    


“Container” means any container, regardless of color.  


“Container Contamination” or “Contaminated Container” means a container, regardless of color, 
that contains Prohibited Container Contaminants, as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(55).  


“Debris Box” means a Container, typically ten to forty cubic yards, provided by a Solid Waste 
Franchisee for the collection of Solid Waste that is normally tipped loaded onto a motor vehicle 
and transported to an appropriate facility. 


“Designee” means an entity that the City contracts with or otherwise arranges to carry out any of 
the City’s responsibilities of this Chapter as authorized in 14 CCR Section 18981.2. A Designee 
may be a government entity, a hauler, a private entity, or a combination of those entities. 


“Edible Food” means food intended for human consumption, as defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(18). For the purposes of this Chapter as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18), 
“Edible Food” is not Solid Waste if it is recovered and not discarded. Nothing in this Chapter or 
in 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 requires or authorizes the Recovery of Edible Food that does 
not meet the food safety requirements of the California Retail Food Code. 


“Enforcement Action" means an action by the City to address non-compliance with this Chapter 
including, but not limited to, issuing administrative citations, fines, penalties, or using other 
remedies. 


“Enforcement Official” means the city manager or their authorized designee(s) who is/are 
partially or wholly responsible for enforcing this Chapter.  


“Excluded Waste” means hazardous substance, hazardous waste, infectious waste, designated 
waste, volatile, corrosive, medical waste, infectious, regulated radioactive waste, and toxic 
substances or material that facility operator(s), which receive materials from the City and its 
generators, reasonably believe(s) would, as a result of or upon acceptance, transfer, processing, 
or disposal, be a violation of local, State, or Federal law, regulation, or ordinance, including: land 
use restrictions or conditions, waste that cannot be disposed of in Class III landfills or accepted 
at the facility by permit conditions, waste that in the City, or its Designee’s reasonable opinion 
would present a significant risk to human health or the environment, cause a nuisance or 
otherwise create or expose the City, or its Designee, to potential liability; but not including de 
minimis volumes or concentrations of waste of a type and amount normally found in Single-
Family or Multi-Family Solid Waste after implementation of programs for the safe collection, 







 -9-  


processing, recycling, treatment, and disposal of batteries and paint in compliance with Sections 
41500 and 41802 of the California Public Resources Code.  


“Food Distributor” means a company that distributes food to entities including, but not limited 
to, Supermarkets and Grocery Stores, as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(22). 


“Food Facility” has the same meaning as in Section 113789 of the Health and Safety Code. 


“Food Recovery” means actions to collect and distribute food for human consumption that 
otherwise would be disposed, as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(24). 


“Food Recovery Organization” means an entity that engages in the collection or receipt of Edible 
Food from Commercial Edible Food Generators and distributes that Edible Food to the public for 
Food Recovery either directly or through other entities as defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(25), including, but not limited to: 


(1) A food bank as defined in Section 113783 of the Health and Safety Code; 


(2) A nonprofit charitable organization as defined in Section 113841 of the Health and 
Safety code; and, 


(3) A nonprofit charitable temporary food facility as defined in Section 113842 of the 
Health and Safety Code. 


A Food Recovery Organization is not a Commercial Edible Food Generator for the 
purposes of this Chapter and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 pursuant 
to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7).  


If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) for Food Recovery Organization differs 
from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) shall apply to this 
Chapter. 


“Food Recovery Service” means a person or entity that collects and transports Edible Food from 
a Commercial Edible Food Generator to a Food Recovery Organization or other entities for Food 
Recovery, as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(26). A Food Recovery Service is not a 
Commercial Edible Food Generator for the purposes of this Chapter and implementation of 14 
CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7). 


“Food Service Provider” means an entity primarily engaged in providing food services to 
institutional, governmental, Commercial, or industrial locations of others based on contractual 
arrangements with these types of organizations, as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(27). 


“Gray Container” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(28) and shall be used 
for the purpose of storage and collection of Gray Container Waste. 







 -10-  


“Gray Container Waste” means Solid Waste that is collected in a Gray Container as specified in 
14 CCR Sections 18984.1(a) and (b), as defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(6.5). Gray 
Container Waste may specifically include carpet, Non-Compostable Paper and textiles. 


“Green Container” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(29) and shall be used 
for the purpose of storage and collection of Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste.  


“Green Material” and “Yard Waste” means leaves, grass clippings, brush, branches and other 
forms of organic materials generated from maintenance or alteration of landscapes or gardens 
including, but not limited to, tree trimmings, prunings, brush and weeds and incidental pieces of 
untreated scrap lumber.  “Green Material” includes holiday trees (except such trees which are 
frosted, flocked or which contain tinsel or metal), but does not include stumps or branches 
exceeding four inches (4”) in diameter or four feet (4’) in length, or palm fronds, or yucca, which 
are not suitable for composting.  


“Grocery Store” means a store primarily engaged in the retail sale of canned food; dry goods; 
fresh fruits and vegetables; fresh meats, fish, and poultry; and any area that is not separately 
owned within the store where the food is prepared and served, including a bakery, deli, and meat 
and seafood departments, as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(30). 


“Hauler Route” means the designated itinerary or sequence of stops for each segment of the 
City’s collection service area, as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(31.5). 


“Hazardous Waste” means any waste materials or mixture of wastes defined as a “hazardous 
substance” or “hazardous waste” pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 
(“RCRA”), 42 U.S.C. §§ 6901 et seq., the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation and Liability Act (“CERCLA”), 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 et seq., the Carpenter-Presley-
Tanner Hazardous Substance Account Act (“HSAA”), codified at California Health & Safety Code 
§§ 25300 et seq.; the Electronic Waste Recycling Act of 2003, codified at California Health & 
Safety Code §§ 25214.9et seq. and California Public Resources Code §§ 41516 et seq., laws 
governing Universal Waste, all future amendments to any of them, or as defined by CalRecycle or 
the Department of Toxic Substances Control, or by their respective successor agencies. If there is 
a conflict in the definitions employed by two or more agencies having jurisdiction over hazardous 
or Solid Waste, the term “Hazardous Waste” shall be construed to have the broader, more 
encompassing definition. 


“High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility” has the same meaning as defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(33). 


“Household Hazardous Waste” means Hazardous Waste, including Universal Waste or Covered 
Electronic Devices, generated at a Single-Family or Multifamily Residential Premises, including 
but not limited to dry cell household batteries; cell phones and PDAs; used motor oil; used oil 
filters when contained in a sealed plastic bag; cooking oil; compact fluorescent light bulbs 
contained in a sealed plastic bag; cleaning products; pesticides; herbicides; insecticides; painting 
supplies; automotive products; solvents; stripes; and adhesives; auto batteries; and Universal 
Waste generated at a Single-Family or Multifamily Residential Premises. 







 -11-  


“Inspection” means a site visit where the City reviews records, containers, and an entity’s 
collection, handling, recycling, or landfill disposal of Organic Waste or Edible Food handling to 
determine if the entity is complying with requirements set forth in this Chapter, as defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(35). 


“Large Event” means an event, including, but not limited to, a sporting event or a flea market, 
that charges an admission price, or is operated by a local agency, and serves an average of more 
than 2,000 individuals per day of operation of the event, at a location that includes, but is not 
limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned park, parking lot, golf course, street system, or 
other open space when being used for an event. If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(38) 
differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(38) shall apply. 


“Large Venue” means a permanent venue facility that annually seats or serves an average of 
more than 2,000 individuals within the grounds of the facility per day of operation of the venue 
facility. For purposes of this Chapter and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, a 
venue facility includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned or operated 
stadium, amphitheater, arena, hall, amusement park, conference or civic center, zoo, aquarium, 
airport, racetrack, horse track, performing arts center, fairground, museum, theater, or other 
public attraction facility. For purposes of this Chapter and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 
7, Chapter 12, a site under common ownership or control that includes more than one Large 
Venue that is contiguous with other Large Venues in the site, is a single Large Venue. If the 
definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(39) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(39) shall apply. 


“Local Education Agency” means a school district, charter school, or county office of education 
that is not subject to the control of city or county regulations related to Solid Waste, as defined in 
14 CCR Section 18982(a)(40). 


“Multi-Family Residential Dwelling” or “Multi-Family” means of, from, or pertaining to 
residential premises with five (5) or more dwelling units. Multi-Family premises do not include 
hotels, motels, or other transient occupancy facilities, which are considered Commercial 
Businesses.  


“MWELO” refers to the Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELO), 23 CCR, 
Division 2, Chapter 2.7. 


“Non-Compostable Paper” includes but is not limited to paper that is coated in a plastic material 
that will not breakdown in the composting process, as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(41).  


“Non-Organic Recyclables” means non-putrescible and non-hazardous recyclable wastes 
including but not limited to bottles, cans, metals, plastics and glass, as defined in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(43).  


“Notice of Violation (NOV)” means a notice that a violation of this Chapter has occurred that 
includes a compliance date to avoid an action to seek penalties, as defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(45) or further explained in 14 CCR Section 18995.4.  







 -12-  


“Organic Waste” means Solid Wastes containing material originated from living organisms and 
their metabolic waste products, including but not limited to food, green material, landscape and 
pruning waste, organic textiles and carpets, lumber, wood, Paper Products, Printing and Writing 
Paper, manure, biosolids, digestate, and sludges as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(46). 
Biosolids and digestate are as defined by 14 CCR Section 18982(a). Notwithstanding the 
foregoing definition, Paper Products, Printing and Writing Paper, organic textiles, and carpets 
shall not be placed in the Green Container as Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste 
(SSGCOW). 


“Organic Waste Generator” means a person or entity that is responsible for the initial creation of 
Organic Waste, as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(48). 


“Owner” means the persons or entities listed on the last equalized assessment roll as the owner 
of a lot or parcel of real property within the City. 


“Paper Products” include, but are not limited to, paper janitorial supplies, cartons, wrapping, 
packaging, file folders, hanging files, corrugated boxes, tissue, and toweling, as defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(51). Paper Products, when source separated, shall be considered Source 
Separated Recyclable Materials. 


“Person in Charge” means an Owner, tenant, occupant or other person or persons responsible for 
the day to day operation of a Premises.   


“Premises” means place where any person resides, or any business is carried on or conducted, or 
any other place upon which Solid Waste is generated or accumulated. 


“Printing and Writing Papers” include, but are not limited to, copy, xerographic, watermark, 
cotton fiber, offset, forms, computer printout paper, white wove envelopes, manila envelopes, 
book paper, note pads, writing tablets, newsprint, and other uncoated writing papers, posters, 
index cards, calendars, brochures, reports, magazines, and publications, as defined in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(54). Printing and Writing Papers, when source separated, shall be considered 
Source Separated Recyclable Materials. 


“Prohibited Container Contaminants” means the following: (i) discarded materials placed in the 
Blue Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated Recyclable Materials for 
the City’s Blue Container; (ii) discarded materials placed in the Green Container that are not 
identified as acceptable Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste for the City’s Green 
Container; (iii) discarded materials placed in the Gray Container that are acceptable Source 
Separated Recyclable Materials and/or Source Separated Green Container Organic Wastes to be 
placed in the City’s Green Container and/or Blue Container; and, (iv) Excluded Waste placed in 
any container.  


“Recovered Organic Waste Products” means products made from California, landfill-diverted 
recovered Organic Waste processed in a permitted or otherwise authorized facility, as defined in 
14 CCR Section 18982(a)(60). 







 -13-  


“Recovery” means any activity or process described in 14 CCR Section 18983.1(b), as defined in 
14 CCR Section 18982(a)(49). 


“Recycled-Content Paper” means Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper that consists of 
at least 30 percent, by fiber weight, postconsumer fiber, as defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(61). 


“Remote Monitoring” means the use of the internet of things (IoT) and/or wireless electronic 
devices to visualize the contents of Blue Containers, Green Containers, and Gray Containers for 
purposes of identifying the quantity of materials in containers (level of fill) and/or presence of 
Prohibited Container Contaminants. 


“Restaurant” means an establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of food and drinks for 
on-premises or immediate consumption, as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(64). 


“Route Review” means a visual Inspection of containers along a Hauler Route for the purpose of 
determining Container Contamination, and may include mechanical Inspection methods such as 
the use of cameras, as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(65). 


“SB 1383” means Senate Bill 1383 of 2016 approved by the Governor on September 19, 2016, 
which added Sections 39730.5, 39730.6, 39730.7, and 39730.8 to the Health and Safety Code, 
and added Chapter 13.1 (commencing with Section 42652) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the Public 
Resources Code, establishing methane emissions reduction targets in a Statewide effort to reduce 
emissions of short-lived climate pollutants as amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced 
from time to time.  


“SB 1383 Regulations” or “SB 1383 Regulatory” means or refers to, for the purposes of this 
Chapter, the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants: Organic Waste Reduction regulations developed by 
CalRecycle and adopted in 2020 that created 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 and amended 
portions of regulations of 14 CCR and 27 CCR. 


“Self-Hauler” means a person, who, in compliance with all applicable requirements of the City 
Code, hauls Solid Waste, Organic Waste or recyclable material he or she has generated directly 
to the appropriate facility, as required by this Chapter.  


“Self Haul Permit” means a permit issued by the City to Self Hauler under this Chapter. 


“Self Haul Permitee” means a person who has received a Self Haul Permit. 


“Single-Family” means of, from, or pertaining to any residential premises with fewer than five 
(5) units.  


“Solid Waste” has the same meaning as defined in State Public Resources Code Section 40191.  
Solid Waste includes, but is not limited to, Gray Container Waste, Non-Organic Recyclables, 
and Organic Waste. 







 -14-  


“Solid Waste Enterprise” means any individual, partnership, joint venture, unincorporated 
private organization, or private corporation, which is regularly engaged in the business of 
providing Solid Waste Handling Services.   


“Solid Waste Franchisee” means a Solid Waste Enterprise that has been granted the right and 
privilege by the City in accordance with a franchise agreement by and between the Solid Waste 
Enterprise and the City, or by operation of law, to perform one or more Solid Waste Handling 
Services within the City or a portion thereof.   


“Solid Waste Handling Services” means the collection, transportation, processing, recycling, 
composting, conversion, retention and disposal of solid waste, construction and demolition 
materials, bulky waste, Household Hazardous Waste, and/or Universal Waste. 


“Source Separated” means materials, including commingled recyclable materials, that have been 
separated or kept separate from the Solid Waste stream, at the point of generation, for the 
purpose of additional sorting or processing those materials for recycling or reuse in order to 
return them to the economic mainstream in the form of raw material for new, reused, or 
reconstituted products, which meet the quality standards necessary to be used in the marketplace, 
as defined in 14 CCR Section 17402.5(b)(4). For the purposes of this Chapter, Source Separated 
shall include separation of materials by the generator, property owner, property owner’s 
employee, property manager, or property manager’s employee into different containers for the 
purpose of collection such that Source Separated materials are separated from Gray Container 
Waste or other Solid Waste for the purposes of collection and processing. 


“Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste” means Source Separated Organic Wastes that 
can be placed in a Blue Container that is limited to the collection of those Organic Wastes and 
Non-Organic Recyclables as defined in Section 18982(a)(43), as defined by Section 
17402(a)(18.7).  


“Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste” means Source Separated Organic Waste that 
can be placed in a Green Container that is specifically intended for the separate collection of 
Organic Waste by the generator, excluding Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste, 
carpets, Non-Compostable Paper, and textiles.  


“Source Separated Recyclable Materials” means Source Separated Non-Organic Recyclables and 
Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste.  


“Spilled” means deposited, released, spilled, leaked, pumped, poured, emitted, emptied, 
discharged, injected, dumped or disposed into the environment, or which otherwise has come to 
be located outside an authorized container.  The term “disposed into the environment” shall 
include, but is not limited to, the abandonment or discarding of barrels, bags, cans and other 
closed receptacles containing solid waste.  


“State” means the State of California.  







 -15-  


“Supermarket” means a full-line, self-service retail store with gross annual sales of two million 
dollars ($2,000,000), or more, and which sells a line of dry grocery, canned goods, or nonfood 
items and some perishable items, as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(71). 


“Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator” means a Commercial Edible Food Generator that 
is one of the following: 


(1) Supermarket. 


(2) Grocery Store with a total facility size equal to or greater than 10,000 square feet. 


(3) Food Service Provider. 


(4) Food Distributor. 


(5) Wholesale Food Vendor. 


If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) of Tier One Commercial Edible Food 
Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) shall 
apply. 


“Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator” means a Commercial Edible Food Generator 
that is one of the following: 


(1) Restaurant with 250 or more seats, or a total facility size equal to or greater than 
5,000 square feet. 


(2) Hotel with an on-site Food Facility and 200 or more rooms. 


(3) Health facility with an on-site Food Facility and 100 or more beds. 


(4) Large Venue. 


(5) Large Event. 


(6) A State agency with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or total cafeteria facility size 
equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet. 


(7) A Local Education Agency facility with an on-site Food Facility. 


If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) of Tier Two Commercial Edible Food 
Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) shall 
apply. 


“Universal Waste” means and includes, but is not limited to, Universal Waste Electronic 
Devices” or “UWEDs,” (i.e., electronic devices subject to the regulation of the Department of 
Toxic Substances Control, 23 CCR §§ 66273.1, et seq.), and other Universal Wastes, including, 
but not limited to non-empty aerosol cans, fluorescent tubes, high intensity discharge lamps, 
sodium vapor lamps, and any other lamp exhibiting a characteristic of a hazardous waste, 







 -16-  


batteries (rechargeable nickel-cadmium batteries, silver button batteries, mercury batteries, small 
sealed lead acid batteries [burglar alarm and emergency light batteries] alkaline batteries, carbon-
zinc batteries and any other batteries which exhibit the characteristic of a hazardous waste), 
mercury thermometers, and mercury-containing switches. 


“Wholesale Food Vendor” means a business or establishment engaged in the merchant wholesale 
distribution of food, where food (including fruits and vegetables) is received, shipped, stored, 
prepared for distribution to a retailer, warehouse, distributor, or other destination, as defined in 
14 CCR Section 189852(a)(76). 


  







 -17-  


ARTICLE II. – SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 


Sec. 8.104.100. – Collection Arrangements or Self-Haul Permit Required. 


Sec. 8.104.110. – Containers – Use, Placement for Collection, Storage. 


Sec. 8.104.120. – Clean-Up. 


Sec. 8.104.130. – Disposal Frequency 


 


Sec. 8.104.100. – Collection Arrangements or Self-Haul Permit Required. 


In order to protect the public health, safety, and well-being, and to prevent the spread of vectors, 
the Person in Charge of a Premises in the City shall either:   


A. Make arrangements with a Solid Waste Franchisee for Solid Waste Handling services, 
and keep such arrangement in good standing; or  


B. Obtain a Self-Haul permit from the City and abide by the operational standards and all 
applicable provisions of this Chapter. 


A violation of this Section is a misdemeanor and punishable as provided in Article VII of this 
Chapter. 


Sec. 8.104.110. – Containers – Use, Placement for Collection, Storage. 


A. Use.  Every Person in Charge of a Premises shall: 


1. Keep on the Premises a sufficient number of Containers to hold all Solid Waste, 
including Gray Container Waste, Non-Organic Recyclables, and Organic Waste that 
accumulate on the Premises each week without spilling, leaking, or emitting odors. 


2. Deposit or cause to be deposited all Solid Waste, including Gray Container 
Waste, Non-Organic Recyclables, and Organic Waste generated or accumulated on the 
Premises into the proper Containers in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter. 


B. Placement for Collection.  To minimize interference with public rights-of-way, no person 
shall place a Container in a public right-of-way for collection by the appropriate Solid Waste 
Franchisee more than 24 hours prior to the normal collection time.  Containers placed in a public 
right-of-way for collection shall be removed from the right-of-way within 24 hours after 
collection. 


C. Storage.  Except during the time a Container is placed for collection, no Container shall 
be visible from the public right of way.  A Debris Box may be placed in a location that is visible 
from the public right of way at a Single-Family Residential Premises for up to thirty (30) 
consecutive days and for no more than sixty (60) total days during any twelve (12) month period.   







 -18-  


Sec. 8.104.120. – Clean-Up. 


A. Until Solid Waste has been picked up by the appropriate Solid Waste Franchisee, or is 
Self Hauled in accordance with a valid Self Haul Permit, each Person in Charge of a Premises 
shall be responsible for the cleanup of any and all Solid Waste generated, accumulated, or 
Spilled on the Premises. This cleanup responsibility includes the cleanup of Solid Waste Spilled 
for any reason, including but not limited to human or animal interference with a Container, wind 
or other natural forces, at any time during storage, collection, removal, or transfer of the 
materials.  


B. The City’s Solid Waste Franchisee(s) shall clean up any Solid Waste Spilled during its 
collection, removal, or transfer, as soon as the Spill occurs. 


Sec. 8.104.130. – Disposal Frequency. 


All Solid Waste accumulating upon a Premises must be disposed of as frequently as required to 
avoid an accumulation of Solid Waste in violation of this Chapter, but in no case shall disposal 
occur less frequently than one (1) time per week, except that less than weekly disposal may be 
permitted during any period of time the Premises is temporarily unoccupied and Solid Waste is 
not accumulating on the Premises due to out-of-town travel or other similar situations. 


 


  







 -19-  


ARTICLE III. – FRANCHISES 


 


Sec. 8.104.200. – Provision of Solid Waste Handling Service. 


Sec. 8.104.210. – Solid Waste Franchises. 


Sec. 8.104.220. – Manner, Time and Frequency of Collection 


Sec. 8.104.230. – Liability for Solid Waste Collection Fees. 


Sec. 8.104.240. – AB 939 Fees. 


Sec. 8.104.200. – Provision of Solid Waste Handling Service. 


A. The City Council may grant franchises to one or more Solid Waste Enterprises to make 
arrangements with the Persons in Charge of Premises within the City for Solid Waste Handling 
Services. It shall be a violation of this Chapter for any person to collect Solid Waste or provide 
any services related thereto unless such person is an Authorized Collector. 


B. The City Council may determine Solid Waste collection services approach and 
categories, (e.g., single-family, commercial, construction & demolition materials, household 
hazardous waste, Universal Waste, Covered Electronic Devices, recyclable materials, and others) 
and may make or impose franchise, license, contract or permit requirements which may vary for 
such categories.  


Sec. 8.104.210. – Solid Waste Franchises. 


A. The City Council may award exclusive, partially exclusive, or non-exclusive franchises 
for one or more types of Solid Waste Handling Services for all or a portion of the Premises in the 
City.  Any such franchise shall be in the form of a written agreement, approved by the City 
Council by written resolution, and shall be subject to all of the continuation rights, if any, held by 
any other Solid Waste Enterprise pursuant to Public Resources Code § 49520 et seq.  Where a 
franchise agreement is silent on an issue, the provisions of this Chapter shall govern. To the 
extent permitted by law, where a franchise agreement predates the effective date of this Chapter, 
the provisions of the franchise agreement shall govern over any inconsistent provisions contained 
in this Chapter. 


B. Any franchise granted pursuant to paragraph A of this section shall be granted on such 
terms and conditions as the City Council shall establish in its sole discretion. At a minimum, the 
franchise shall provide:  


1. The Solid Waste Franchisee shall comply with the provisions of this Chapter; and, 


2. The Solid Waste Franchisee shall  protect, defend, indemnify and hold the City 
harmless such acts, omissions, liabilities and damages related to the agreement as the 
City Attorney and City Manager determined to be reasonable necessary to adequately 
protect the City; and  







 -20-  


3. The Solid Waste Franchisee shall be required to cooperate with City in Solid 
Waste disposal characterization studies and the preparation of waste stream audits, and to 
submit information required by the City to meet the reporting requirements of AB 939, or 
any other law or regulation, and to implement measures consistent with the City’s Source 
Reduction and Recycling Element to reach the Solid Waste and recycling goals mandated 
by the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989, as it may be amended from 
time to time.  


Sec. 8.104.220. – Manner, Time and Frequency of Collection. 


A. Regular Collection.  The City’s Solid Waste Franchisee(s) shall make arrangements with 
its Account Holders specifying the manner in which Solid Waste Handling Services are to be 
regularly provided, subject to the terms of its franchise. 


B. Special Collections.  The City’s Solid Waste Franchisee(s) may provide on-call collection 
of Bulky Waste and Household Hazardous Waste to its Account Holders, and shall provide its 
Account Holders with Debris Boxes when requested and collect the Debris Box when the 
Account Holder no longer requires the Debris Box.  The terms and conditions upon which such 
special collections are provided to Account Holders shall be arranged between the Solid Waste 
Franchisee and the Account Holder, subject to the terms of the Solid Waste Franchisee’s 
franchise from the City. 


Sec. 8.104.230. – Liability for Solid Waste Collection Fees. 


A. Joint and Several Liability.  The Owner of a Premises and the Account Holder for a 
Premises are jointly and severally liable for Solid Waste Handling Services provided to the 
Premises by a Solid Waste Franchisee, including any related fees, charges, and penalties. 


B. Delinquencies - Single Family and Multifamily Residential Premises.  An Account 
Holder for a Single Family or Multifamily Premises who has not remitted required payment for 
Solid Waste Handling Services within one hundred twenty (120) days after the date of billing 
shall be notified by the Solid Waste Franchisee servicing the Premises on forms that contain a 
statement that if payment is not received within fifteen (15) days from the date of the notice, a 
10% penalty and 1.5% monthly interest will begin to accrue and the City will be informed of the 
delinquency in an annual report.  The Solid Waste Franchisee will deliver a report of the 
delinquencies in May of each year with a request that the City place the delinquencies on the tax 
roll. 


Pursuant to Sections 38790.1 and 25831 of the Government Code, the City may collect 
delinquent fees or charges for Solid Waste Handling Services on the property tax roll for the 
Premises.  The City may charge a Solid Waste Franchisee for any and all costs and expenses it 
incurs in connection with placing delinquencies on the tax roll.  If the City decides to collect 
delinquent Solid Waste Handling fees or charges on the property tax roll, it shall adhere to the 
following procedures: 


1. City will fix a time, date and place for hearing the report of delinquencies 
submitted by the Solid Waste Franchisee and any objections and protests to the report.  







 -21-  


The Solid Waste Franchisee shall mail notice of the hearing to the Owner of every 
Premises listed on the report not less than ten (10) days prior to the date of the hearing.  
At the hearing, City shall hear any objections or protests of Owners liable to be assessed 
for delinquent fees.  The City may make revisions or corrections to the report as it deems 
just, after which, by resolution, the report shall be confirmed. 


2. The delinquent fees set forth in the report as confirmed shall constitute special 
assessments against the Premises listed in the report and are a lien on the Premises for the 
amount of the delinquent fees.  A certified copy of the confirmed report shall be filed 
with the Riverside County Auditor for the amounts of the respective assessments against 
the respective Premises as they appear on the current assessment roll.  The lien created 
attaches upon recordation, in the office of the Riverside County Recorder, of a certified 
copy of the resolution of confirmation.  The assessment may be collected at the same 
time and in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem property taxes are collected and 
shall be subject to the same penalties and the same procedure and sale in case of 
delinquency as provided for those taxes. 


C. Delinquencies - Commercial Premises (Excluding Multi-Family Premises).  Solid Waste 
Franchisee(s) may discontinue service to a Commercial Premises, excluding Multi-Family 
Premises, if the Account Holder of the Commercial Premises has not remitted required payment 
for Solid Waste Handling Services within sixty (60) days after the date of billing.  If a Solid 
Waste Franchisee terminates service to any non-paying Premises, the Solid Waste Franchisee 
may require as a condition precedent to re-establishment of such service, that the Owner of the 
Premises and the Account Holder must comply fully with all of the billing policies and practices 
of the Solid Waste Franchisee, including, but not limited to, requirement of payment by cash or 
cash equivalent, prepayment of one full billing cycle, a security deposit, payment of all costs of 
collection of monies owed to the Solid Waste Franchisee, and payment of a reinstatement fee. 
Delinquent Commercial Premises accounts shall be charged a 1.5% monthly late fee on the 
delinquent balance.  If a Solid Waste Franchisee discontinues service for non-payment, the Solid 
Waste Franchisee shall, upon City request, give written notice to the City Manager of any 
discontinuance of service for nonpayment, giving the name and address of the Account Holders. 


Sec. 8.104.240. – AB 939 Fees. 


Pursuant to Division 30, Part 2, Chapter 8 of the Public Resources Code, Section 41900 et seq., 
the City may impose fees on Solid Waste Franchisees and/or Premises in amounts sufficient to 
pay the costs of preparing, adopting, and implementing a countywide integrated waste 
management plan, including the costs of preparing, adopting and implementing the City’s 
required Source Reduction and Recycling Element, Household Hazardous Waste Element, and 
Nondisposal Facility Element, and the costs of setting and collecting the fees.  Any new or 
increased AB 939 fees imposed on a Solid Waste Franchisee shall be cause for a corresponding 
rate adjustment to the franchisee’s then current rate structure. 


 


  







 -22-  


ARTICLE IV. – SELF-HAULING 


Sec. 8.104.300 – Applicability. 


Sec. 8.104.310. – Self-Haul Permit 


Sec. 8.104.320. – AB 939 Fees 


Sec. 8.104.300. – Applicability 


Self-Haul Permits are available only to Single-family Premises because Commercial Premises 
generate larger volumes of Solid Waste.  It would pose an unwarranted threat to the public 
health, safety and welfare if the Person in Charge of a Commercial Premises attempted to Self-
Haul the Solid Waste on their Premises because it is more difficult to transport large volumes of 
Solid Waste in a manner that is safe and sanitary.  The difficultly posed by Self-Hauling larger 
volumes of Solid Waste could lead to increased illegal dumping and burning, failure to segregate 
Gray Container Waste, Non-Organic Recyclables, and Organic Waste, and the accumulation of 
Solid Waste at a Premises for more than one (1) week. 


Sec. 8.104.310. – Self-Haul Permit 


A. Permit required. The Person in Charge of a Single-family Premises may apply for and 
obtain a permit to Self-Haul, and shall not Self-Haul without a valid Self-Haul Permit issued 
pursuant to this section. Every Person in Charge of a Single-family Premises who desires to Self-
Haul in lieu of making arrangements with the appropriate Solid Waste Franchisee for Solid 
Waste Handling Services shall obtain a Self-Haul permit from the City's Public Works Director 
or his or her designee prior to commencing Self-Hauling.  


B. Term. A permit to Self-Haul shall be good for one calendar year, or such part of the 
calendar year that is remaining after the issuance of the permit. All Self-Haul permits shall expire 
on December 31, and may be renewed annually. Application for a renewal permit must be filed 
at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration date of the permit to allow adequate time for 
processing, inspection and verifications required to issue the permit.  


C. Issuance of permit. An applicant for a Self Haul Permit shall submit a completed 
application, on a form approved by the City’s Public Works Director, to the Public Works 
Department.  The Public Works Director or his or her designee shall determine whether the 
application is complete within five (5) working days of the receipt of the application.  If the 
director or his or her designee finds the application incomplete, the applicant shall be given a list 
of further information needed to complete the application. 


After it is determined that an application for a Self Haul Permit is complete, the applicant 
shall produce the items listed in numbers 1 through 7 below.  The Director of Public Works or 
his or her designee shall issue a Self Haul Permit within five (5) working days of the production 
of all of the required items.   


1. The applicant produces for inspection the vehicle the applicant intends to use for 
Self-Hauling, and the vehicle meets the following standards:  







 -23-  


a. The vehicle is capable of safely hauling a minimum of 32 gallons (4.3 
cubic feet) of Gray Container Waste, Non-Organic Recyclables, and Organic 
Waste in a safe and sanitary manner so that such matter will not Spill; 


b. If the vehicle is not fully enclosed, the applicant produces a tarp or other 
material that is demonstrated to completely secure the materials being Self 
Hauled. 


2. The applicant produces evidence that he or she owns or leases the vehicle 
produced for inspection or has a written agreement to use the vehicle for Self-Hauling 
with the vehicle’s owner or lessor;  


3. The applicant produces evidence that he or she has a valid California driver's 
license to operate the vehicle produced for inspection and that the vehicle is registered in 
the State of California;  


4. The applicant provides the City with a certificate of automobile insurance for the 
vehicle; 


5. The vehicle is operational and meets all applicable Vehicle Code standards; 


6. The applicant provides the City with proof that the applicant has Containers for 
the storage of Gray Container Waste, Non-Organic Recyclables, and Organic Waste on 
the applicant's Premises before the materials are hauled to a disposal facility; and  


7. The applicant pays the fee for a Self-HaulPermit authorized by resolution of the 
City Council. The fee shall reflect the City’s reasonable costs of issuing and monitoring 
compliance with the permit. Permits issued between January 1 and March 31 shall pay 
one hundred percent (100%) of the permit fee; permits issued between April 1 and June 
30 shall pay seventy-five percent (75%) of the permit fee; permits issued between July 1 
and September 30 shall pay fifty percent (50%) of the permit fee; permits issued between 
October 1 and December 31 shall pay twenty-five percent (25%) of the permit fee. 


D. Appeal of denial. An applicant whose application for a Self-Haul permit has been denied 
may appeal that decision. An appeal may be filed within five (5) days of the date the applicant 
was notified of the denial. Appeals shall be heard by the City Manager. The decision of the City 
Manager is final.  


E. Operational standards.  


1. Self Haul Permittees must dispose of Solid Waste weekly at a licensed or 
permitted landfill or disposal facility and shall procure and retain weekly receipts from 
such landfill or other disposal facility. Receipts shall be submitted to the City monthly.  
Failure to show proof of Solid Waste disposal for each week that a person is permitted to 
Self Haul shall constitute a public health and safety nuisance sufficient to permit City to 
revoke the permittees' Self Haul Permit. 







 -24-  


2. Authorized Self-Haulers shall source separate all non-organic recyclable materials 
and Organic Waste generated on-site from other Solid Waste in a manner consistent with 
14 CCR Sections 18984.1 and 18984.2, or shall haul Organic Waste to a High Diversion 
Organic Waste Processing Facility as specified in 14 CCR Section 18984.3. 


3. Self-Haulers shall haul their Source Separated Recyclable Materials to a facility 
that recovers those materials; and haul their Source Separated Green Container Organic 
Waste to a Solid Waste facility, operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers 
Source Separated Organic Waste. Alternatively, Self-Haulers may haul Organic Waste to 
a High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility. 


4. Self Haul Permittees must notify the City of any change in the vehicle being used 
to haul Solid Waste by the permittee.  Permittees must bring the new vehicle in for an 
inspection and demonstrate compliance with items 1 through 5 of paragraph B of this 
section before the new vehicle is used to haul any Solid Waste under the permit.  


5. Self Haul Permittee must keep on file with the City copies of the current 
automobile insurance and registration for the vehicle used to Self-Haul and the 
permittee's current California driver's license. Permittee must provide proof to City of 
renewed automobile insurance, vehicle registration, and California driver's license within 
five days of expiration of respective document.  


6. Failure to show proof of disposal for each week that a person is permitted to Self 
Haul shall constitute a public health and safety nuisance sufficient to permit City to 
revoke the permittees' Self Haul Permit. 


5. Self Haul Permittees are liable for any damages and clean-up costs resulting from 
any Solid Waste Spills during the course of the permittees' Self Hauling activity.  


F. Revocation of permit. The Self-Haul Permit shall be subject to revocation if the permittee 
violates any provision of this Chapter. A notice of revocation shall be mailed to the permittee 
informing them that their Self-Haul Permit is being revoked, identifying the violations of this 
Chapter that have occurred, and informing the permittee that he or she has the right to dispute the 
revocation by an appeal to the City Manager. An appeal of a revocation must be filed within five 
(5) calendar days of the mailing of notice of the revocation. A revocation appeal hearing will be 
scheduled within five (5) days of the date the City receives the request for an appeal. The City 
Manager will issue a decision on the appeal within five (5) days of the hearing and provide the 
permittee written notice of the decision. The decision of the City Manager on the appeal shall be 
final.  A person whose Self-Haul Permit has been revoked pursuant to this Section may not 
obtain another Self-Haul Permit for one (1) year from the date of the revocation. 


Sec. 8.104.320. – AB 939 Fees 


Pursuant to Division 30, Part 2, Chapter 8 of the Public Resources Code, Section 41900 et seq., 
the City may impose fees on persons with a Self-Haul permit in amounts sufficient to pay the 
costs of preparing, adopting, and implementing a countywide integrated waste management plan, 
including the costs of preparing, adopting and implementing the City’s required Source 







 -25-  


Reduction and Recycling Element, Household Hazardous Waste Element, and Nondisposal 
Facility Element, and the costs of setting and collecting the fees. 


 


 


  







 -26-  


ARTICLE V. – NON-ORGANIC RECYCLABLES, GREEN WASTE, AND C&D 
MATERIALS 


 


Sec. 8.104.400. – Non-Organic Recyclables – Ownership, Right to Dispose. 


Sec. 8.104.410. – Landscapers – Disposal of Green Waste. 


Sec. 8.104.420. – Licensed Contractors – Disposal of C&D Materials. 


Sec. 8.104.430. – Mandatory Commercial/Multifamily Recycling. 


 


Sec. 8.104.400. – Recyclable Materials – Ownership, Right to Dispose. 


A. Upon placement by the owner of Non-Organic Recyclables at a designated recycling 
collection location, or placement of Non-Organic Recyclables in a Container provided by the 
appropriate Solid Waste Franchisee, the Non-Organic Recyclables becomes the property of the 
recycler or Solid Waste Franchisee, by operation of state law.  


B. Nothing in this Chapter shall limit the right of any person, organization or other entity to 
donate, sell or otherwise dispose of any Non-Organic Recyclables segregated from the Solid 
Waste stream owned by that person, organization or other entity, provided that the person, 
organization or other entity does not pay the buyer or donee any consideration for collecting, 
processing or transporting such Non-Organic Recyclables, or a consulting or broker’s fee for 
recycling services. 


Sec. 8.104.410. – Landscapers – Disposal of Green Waste. 


Landscapers may collect, transport and compost or dispose of Green Waste without obtaining a 
Self Haul Permit, provided that any such Green Waste is generated by their own specific work 
site and transported to a site permitted by CalRecycle or exempt from permitting. 


Landscapers shall not contract with a Solid Waste Enterprise to collect, transport and compost or 
dispose of Green Waste unless that Solid Waste Enterprise has a franchise from the City to 
perform said services.   


Sec. 8.104.420. – Licensed Contractors – Disposal of C&D Materials. 


Licensed contractors performing work within the scope of their licenses/permits within the City 
may collect, transport and dispose or recycle of Construction and Demolition Materials 
generated within their own specific work sites, without obtaining a Self Haul Permit, provided 
that the licensed contractor adheres to the standards for disposal of Construction and Demolition 
Material provided in the California Green Building Standards Code (California Code of 
Regulations Title 24, Part 11).  Construction and Demolition Materials must be transported to a 
recycling facility permitted by CalRecycle whenever possible. Landfilling of Construction and 
Demolition Materials shall be a last resort. 







 -27-  


Licensed contractors shall not contract with a Solid Waste Enterprise or Construction and 
Demolition Clean-Up Enterprise to collect, transport and dispose or recycle of Construction and 
Demolition Materials unless that Solid Waste Enterprise has a franchise from the City to perform 
said services. 


Sec. 8.104.430. Mandatory Commercial/Multifamily Recycling. 
 


A. A Commercial Premises that generates four cubic yards or more of Solid Waste per week 
shall arrange for recycling services for Non-Organic Recyclables by subscribing to a Solid Waste 
Franchisee for the pick-up of Non-Organic Recyclables. 


 
B. A business subject to subsection (a) and that provides customers access to the business 
shall provide, customers with a Non-Organic Recyclables Container to collect material purchased 
on the premises and that fulfills all of the following requirements: 
 


1. Is adjacent to Gray Container Waste container, except in restrooms. 


2. Is visible and easily accessible. 


3. Is clearly marked with educational signage indicating what is appropriate to place 
in the Non-Organic Recyclables Container in accordance with state law and the 
City’s solid waste ordinances and practices. 


Full-service restaurants are exempt from the requirements of this subdivision if the full-service 
restaurant, provides its employees a Non-Organic Recyclables Container to collect material 
purchased on the premises and implements a program to collect Non-Organic Recyclables .  


For a park that is subject to subsection (a), this subsection shall apply on and after January 1, 2022. 


 


  







 -28-  


ARTICLE VI. – ORGANIC WASTE 


 


Sec. 8.104.500. – Compliance with AB 1826 and SB 1383 


Sec. 8.104.510. – Requirements for Single-Family Generators. 


Sec. 8.104.520. – Requirements for Commercial Businesses. 


Sec. 8.104.530. – Waivers for Generators. 


Sec. 8.104.540. – Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators. 


Sec. 8.104.550. – Requirements for Food Recovery Organizations and Services. 


Sec. 8.104.560. – Requirements for Haulers, Facility Operators and Community Composting 
Operations. 


Sec. 8.104.570. – Compliance with CALGreen Recycling Requirements. 


 


Sec. 8.104.500.  Compliance with AB 1826 and SB 1383 
 
Single-Family Premises and Commercial Premises shall comply with the Organic Waste recycling 
provisions of AB 1826 and SB 1383, and all regulations associated therewith. 


 
Sec. 8.104.510. Requirements for Single-Family Generators.  
 
Single-Family Organic Waste Generators, except Single-Family generators that meet all 
applicable Self-Hauler requirements in this Chapter: 


A. Shall subscribe to the City’s three-container Organic Waste collection services. The City 
shall have the right to review the number, size, and location of a generator’s containers to evaluate 
adequacy of capacity provided for each type of collection service for proper separation of materials 
and containment of materials; and, generator shall adjust its service level for its collection services 
as requested by the City.  


B. Shall participate in the City’s three-container system for Source Separated Recyclable 
Materials, Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste, and Gray Container Waste collection 
services. Generator participation in the collection programs requires that generators place only 
approved materials in the appropriate colored containers: 


1. The Gray Container is provided solely for the placement and collection of non-
organic Solid Waste. No Organic Material or Recyclable Material is permitted in 
the Gray Container.  







 -29-  


2. The Blue Container is provided solely for the placement and collection of 
Recyclable Material.  No Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste or non-
Recyclable Material is permitted in the Blue Container.  


3. The Green Container is provided solely for the placement and collection of Source 
Separated Green Container Organic Waste. No Recyclable Material or non-organic 
Solid Waste is permitted in the Green Container. 


 It shall be unlawful and a violation of this Chapter to place Prohibited Container 
Contaminants in a collection container, and may subject the generator of Organic Material to a 
contamination processing fee or enforcement action as set forth in this Chapter. 


Notwithstanding the above, and in accordance with the SB 1383 Regulations, the City is not 
required to replace functional containers, including containers purchased prior to January 1, 2022, 
that do not comply with the color requirements of this Chapter and the Regulations, prior to the 
end of the useful life of those containers, or prior to January 1, 2036, whichever comes first. Labels 
will be placed on new containers indicating the primary materials accepted and the primary 
materials prohibited in the containers. Until SB 1383 compliant colored containers are provided 
(Blue Container, Green Container, and Gray Container), Single-Family Waste Generators shall 
comply with the container label requirements. 


C. Nothing in this Section prohibits a generator from preventing or reducing waste generation, 
managing Organic Waste on site, and/or using a Community Composting site pursuant to 14 CCR 
Section 18984.9(c).  


Sec. 8.104.520.  Requirements for Commercial Businesses. 
 
Commercial Businesses, which includes Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, shall: 
 
A. Subscribe to the City’s three-container Organic Waste collection services. The City shall 
have the right to review the number, size, and location of a generator’s containers and frequency 
of collection to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for each type of collection service for 
proper separation of materials and containment of materials; and, Commercial Business shall 
adjust its service level for its collection services as requested by the City. 


B. Participate in and comply with the City’s three-container (Blue Container, Green 
Container, and Gray Container) collection service by placing designated materials in designated 
containers. Generator shall place only approved materials in the appropriate colored containers: 


1. The Gray Container is provided solely for the placement and collection of non-
organic Solid Waste. No Organic Material or Recyclable Material is permitted in 
the Gray Container.  


2. The Blue Container is provided solely for the placement and collection of 
Recyclable Material.  No Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste or non-
Recyclable Material is permitted in the Blue Container.  







 -30-  


3. The Green Container is provided solely for the placement and collection of Source 
Separated Green Container Organic Waste. No Recyclable Material or non-organic 
Solid Waste is permitted in the Green Container. 


 It shall be unlawful and a violation of this Chapter to place Prohibited Container 
Contaminants in a collection container, and may subject the generator of Organic Material to a 
contamination processing fee or enforcement action as set forth in this Chapter. 


Notwithstanding the above, and in accordance with the SB 1383 Regulations, the City is not 
required to replace functional containers, including containers purchased prior to January 1, 2022, 
that do not comply with the color requirements of this Chapter and the Regulations, prior to the 
end of the useful life of those containers, or prior to January 1, 2036, whichever comes first. Labels 
will be placed on new containers indicating the primary materials accepted and the primary 
materials prohibited in the containers. Until SB 1383 compliant colored containers are provided 
(Blue Container, Green Container, and Gray Container), Commercial Businesses shall comply 
with the container label requirements. 


C. Supply and allow access to adequate number, size, and location of collection containers 
with sufficient labels or colors (conforming with subsections (d)(1) and (d)(2) below), for 
employees, contractors, tenants and customers, consistent with the City’s Blue Container, Green 
Container, and Gray Container collection service. 


D. Excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, provide containers for the collection of 
Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste, and Source Separated Recyclable Materials in 
all indoor and outdoor areas where disposal containers are provided for customers, for materials 
generated by that business. Such containers do not need to be provided in restrooms. If a 
Commercial Business does not generate any of the materials that would be collected in one type 
of container, then the business does not have to provide that particular container in all areas where 
disposal containers are provided for customers. Pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(b), the 
containers provided by the business shall have either:  


(1) A body or lid that conforms with the container colors provided through the 
collection service provided by the City, with either lids conforming to the color 
requirements or bodies conforming to the color requirements or both lids and bodies 
conforming to color requirements. A Commercial Business is not required to replace 
functional containers, including containers purchased prior to January 1, 2022, that do not 
comply with the requirements of the subsection prior to the end of the useful life of those 
containers, or prior to January 1, 2036, whichever comes first. 


(2) Container labels that include language or graphic images or both indicating the 
primary material accepted and the primary materials prohibited in that container or 
containers with imprinted text or graphic images that indicate the primary materials 
accepted and primary materials prohibited in the container. Pursuant 14 CCR Section 
18984.8, the container labels are required on new containers commencing January 1, 2022. 


E. Multi-Family Residential Dwellings are not required to comply with container placement 
requirements or labeling requirement set forth in 14 CCR Section 18984.9(b).   







 -31-  


F. To the extent practical through education, training, Inspection, and/or other measures, 
excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, prohibit employees from placing materials in a 
container not designated for those materials per the City’s Blue Container, Green Container, and 
Gray Container collection service. 


G. Excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, periodically inspect Blue Container, Green 
Container, and Gray Containers for contamination and inform employees if containers are 
contaminated and of the requirements to keep contaminants out of those containers pursuant to 14 
CCR Section 18984.9(b)(3).  


H. Annually provide information to employees, contractors, tenants, and customers about 
Organic Waste Recovery requirements and about proper sorting of Source Separated Green 
Container Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable Materials.  


I. Provide education information before or within fourteen (14) days of new tenants entering 
into an Agreement for or requesting collection services from the City’s Authorized Collector, 
whichever occurs later, that describes requirements to keep Source Separated Green Container 
Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable Materials separate from Gray Container Waste 
(when applicable) and the location of containers and the rules governing their use at each property.  


J. Provide or arrange access for the City or its agent to their properties during all Inspections 
conducted in accordance with this Chapter to confirm compliance with the requirements of this 
Chapter. 


K. If implemented, accommodate and cooperate with the City’s Remote Monitoring program 
for Inspection of the contents of containers for Prohibited Container Contaminants, to evaluate 
generator’s compliance with this Chapter.  


L. Nothing in this Section prohibits a generator from preventing or reducing waste generation, 
managing Organic Waste on site, or using a Community Composting site pursuant to 14 CCR 
Section 18984.9(c). 


M. Commercial Businesses that are Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators 
shall comply with Food Recovery requirements of this Chapter. 


Sec. 8.104.530.   Waivers for Generators. 


A. De Minimis Waivers: The City may, at its discretion or in concert with its Solid Waste 
Franchisee, waive a Commercial Business’ obligation (including Multi-Family Residential 
Dwellings) to comply with some or all of the Organic Waste requirements of this Chapter if the 
Commercial Business: 


(1) Submits an application specifying the services that they are requesting a waiver 
from; and 


(2) Provides documentation that either: 







 -32-  


(A) The Commercial Business’ total Solid Waste collection service is two cubic 
yards or more per week and Organic Waste subject to collection in a Blue Container 
or Green Container comprises less than 20 gallons per week per applicable 
container of the business’ total waste; or, 


(B) The Commercial Business’ total Solid Waste collection service is less than 
two cubic yards per week and Organic Waste subject to collection in a Blue 
Container or Green Container comprises less than 10 gallons per week per 
applicable container of the business’ total waste; and 


(3) Notifies the City if circumstances change such that Commercial Business’s Organic 
Waste exceeds the threshold required for waiver, in which case waiver will be rescinded; 
and 


(4) Provides written verification of eligibility for de minimis waiver every 5 years, if 
the City has approved de minimis waiver. 


B. Physical Space Waivers: The City may, at its discretion or in concert with its Solid Waste 
Franchisee, waive a Commercial Business’ or property owner’s obligations (including Multi-
Family Residential Dwellings) to comply with some or all of the recyclable materials and/or 
Organic Waste collection service requirements if the City has evidence from its own staff, a hauler, 
licensed architect, or licensed engineer demonstrating that the premises lack adequate space for 
the collection containers required for compliance with the Organic Waste collection requirements 
of this Chapter. 


A Commercial Business or property owner may request a physical space waiver through the 
following process:  


(1) Submit an application form specifying the type(s) of collection services for which 
they are requesting a compliance waiver. 


(2) Provide documentation that the premises lack adequate space for Blue Containers 
and/or Green Containers, including documentation from its hauler, licensed architect, or 
licensed engineer.  


(3) Provide written verification to the City that it is still eligible for physical space 
waiver every five years, if the City has approved application for a physical space waiver.  


C. Collection Frequency Waiver: The City, at its discretion or in concert with its Solid Waste 
Franchisee, and in accordance with 14 CCR Section 18984.11(a)(3), may allow the owner or tenant 
of any residence, premises, business establishment or industry that subscribes to the City’s three-
container Organic Waste collection service to arrange for the collection of their Blue Container, 
Gray Container, or both once every fourteen days, rather than once per week.  


Sec. 8.104.540.  Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators. 







 -33-  


A. Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply with the below requirements 
commencing January 1, 2022, and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply 
commencing January 1, 2024, pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3.  


B. Large Venue or Large Event operators not providing food services, but allowing for food 
to be provided by others, shall require Food Facilities operating at the Large Venue or Large Event 
to comply with the requirements of this Section, commencing January 1, 2024. 


C. Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with the following requirements:  


(1) Arrange to recover the maximum amount of Edible Food that would otherwise be 
disposed. 


(2) Contract with, or enter into a written agreement with Food Recovery Organizations 
or Food Recovery Services for: (i) the collection of Edible Food for Food Recovery; or, 
(ii) acceptance of the Edible Food that the Commercial Edible Food Generator self-hauls 
to the Food Recovery Organization for Food Recovery.  


(3) Shall not intentionally spoil Edible Food that is capable of being recovered by a 
Food Recovery Organization or a Food Recovery Service. 


(4) Allow the City’s designated enforcement entity or designated third party 
enforcement entity to access the premises and review records pursuant to 14 CCR Section 
18991.4.  


(5) Keep records that include the following information, or as otherwise specified in 
14 CCR Section 18991.4: 


(A) A list of each Food Recovery Service or organization that collects or 
receives its Edible Food pursuant to a contract or written agreement established 
under 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b). 


(B) A copy of all contracts or written agreements established under 14 CCR 
Section 18991.3(b). 


(C) A record of the following information for each of those Food Recovery 
Services or Food Recovery Organizations: 


(i) The name, address and contact information of the Food Recovery 
Service or Food Recovery Organization. 


(ii) The types of food that will be collected by or self-hauled to the Food 
Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization. 


(iii) The established frequency that food will be collected or self-hauled. 







 -34-  


(iv) The quantity of food, measured in pounds recovered per month, 
collected or self-hauled to a Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery 
Organization for Food Recovery.  


(6) Commencing no later than January 1, 2022, for Tier One Commercial Edible Food 
Generators and January 1, 2024, for Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators, 
Commercial Edible Food Generators shall provide a quarterly Food Recovery report to the 
City which includes the information required in 14 CCR Section 18991.4 “Record Keeping 
Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators.” 


D. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to limit or conflict with the protections provided 
by the California Good Samaritan Food Donation Act of 2017, the Federal Good Samaritan Act, 
or share table and school food donation guidance pursuant to Senate Bill 557 of 2017 (approved 
by the Governor of the State of California on September 25, 2017, which added Article 13 
[commencing with Section 49580] to Chapter 9 of Part 27 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Education 
Code, and to amend Section 114079 of the Health and Safety Code, relating to food safety, as 
amended, supplemented, superseded and replaced from time to time). 


Sec. 8.104.550.  Requirements for Food Recovery Organizations and Services. 
 
A. Food Recovery Services collecting or receiving Edible Food directly from Commercial 
Edible Food Generators, via a contract or written agreement established under 14 CCR Section 
18991.3(b), shall maintain the following records, or as otherwise specified by 14 CCR Section 
18991.5(a)(1): 


(1) The name, address, and contact information for each Commercial Edible Food 
Generator from which the service collects Edible Food. 


(2) The quantity in pounds of Edible Food collected from each Commercial Edible 
Food Generator per month. 


(3) The quantity in pounds of Edible Food transported to each Food Recovery 
Organization per month. 


(4) The name, address, and contact information for each Food Recovery Organization 
that the Food Recovery Service transports Edible Food to for Food Recovery. 


B. Food Recovery Organizations collecting or receiving Edible Food directly from 
Commercial Edible Food Generators, via a contract or written agreement established under 14 
CCR Section 18991.3(b), shall maintain the following records, or as otherwise specified by 14 
CCR Section 18991.5(a)(2): 


(1) The name, address, and contact information for each Commercial Edible Food 
Generator from which the organization receives Edible Food. 


(2) The quantity in pounds of Edible Food received from each Commercial Edible 
Food Generator per month. 







 -35-  


(3) The name, address, and contact information for each Food Recovery Service that 
the organization receives Edible Food from for Food Recovery. 


C. Commencing January 1, 2022, Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services 
that have their primary address physically located in the City and contract with or have written 
agreements with one or more Commercial Edible Food Generators pursuant to 14 CCR Section 
18991.3(b) shall report to the City the total pounds of Edible Food recovered in the previous 
calendar year from the Tier One and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators they have 
established a contract or written agreement with pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b), as 
applicable.  


D. Food Recovery Capacity Planning  


Food Recovery Services and Food Recovery Organizations operating in the City shall provide 
information and consultation to the City, upon request, regarding existing, or proposed new or 
expanded, Food Recovery capacity that could be accessed by the City and its Commercial Edible 
Food Generators. A Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization contacted by the City 
shall respond to such request for information within 60 days, unless a shorter timeframe is 
otherwise specified by the City.  


E. Commencing no later than January 1, 2022, Food Recovery Services and Organization 
shall provide a quarterly report to the City which includes the information required in 14 CCR 
Section 18991.5 “Food Recovery Services and Organizations.”  


 
Sec. 8.104.560.  Requirements for Solid Waste Franchisee, Facility Operators and 


Community Composting Operations. 


A. Requirements for Haulers. 


(1) Solid Waste Franchisee providing residential, Commercial or Organic Waste 
collection services to generators within the City’s boundaries shall meet the following 
requirements and standards as a condition of approval of a contract, agreement, or other 
authorization with the City to collect Organic Waste: 


A. Through written notice to the City annually on or before June 1, identify the 
facilities to which they will transport Organic Waste including the facilities for 
Source Separated Recyclable Materials and Source Separated Green Container 
Organic Waste, as applicable. 


B. Transport Source Separated Recyclable Materials and Source Separated 
Green Container Organic Waste to a facility, operation, activity, or property that 
recovers Organic Waste, as defined in 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Article 2. 


C. Obtain approval from the City to haul Organic Waste, unless it is 
transporting Source Separated Organic Waste to a Community Composting site or 
lawfully transporting C&D in a manner that complies with 14 CCR Section 
18989.1. 







 -36-  


D. Solid Waste Franchisee shall comply with education, equipment, signage, 
container labelling, container color, contamination monitoring, reporting, and other 
requirements contained within its Franchise Agreement, as may be amended from 
time to time.  


E. Notwithstanding any the foregoing, nothing in this Chapter shall restrict or 
otherwise prohibit Solid Waste Franchisee from meeting its compliance 
requirements by any alternative methods or procedures, provided it complies with 
SB 1383, the SB 1383 Regulations, and/or any other applicable law, as may be 
amended from time to time.   


B. Requirements for Facility Operators and Community Composting Operations. 


(1) Owners of facilities, operations, and activities that recover Organic Waste, 
including, but not limited to, Compost facilities, in-vessel digestion facilities, and publicly-
owned treatment works shall, upon the City’s request, provide information regarding 
available and potential new or expanded capacity at their facilities, operations, and 
activities, including information about throughput and permitted capacity necessary for 
planning purposes. Entities contacted by the City shall respond within 60 days.  


(2) Community Composting operators, upon City request, shall provide information to 
the City to support Organic Waste capacity planning, including, but not limited to, an 
estimate of the amount of Organic Waste anticipated to be handled at the Community 
Composting operation. Entities contacted by the City shall respond within 60 days. 


Sec. 8.104.570. Compliance with CALGreen Recycling Requirements.  
 
As applicable, all persons and/or entities subject to California Green Building Standards Code, 24 
CCR, Part 11, known as CALGreen, shall comply with the following provisions of CALGreen, as 
amended July 1, 2019 and effective January 1, 2020: 


(1) Section 4.410.2 Recycling by Occupants Residential and Section 5.410.1 Recycling 
by Occupants Non-residential.  


(2) For organic waste commingled with construction and demolition debris, Section 
4.408.1 Construction Waste Management Residential and Section 5.408.1 Construction 
Waste Management non-residential.  


If, after the adoption of this Chapter, Sections 4.408.1, 4.410.2, 5.408.1, and 5.410.1 of CALGreen 
are amended in a manner that requires the City to incorporate the requirements in an updated local 
ordinance, and the amended requirements include provisions more stringent than those required in 
this Section, the revised requirements of Sections 4.408.1, 4.410.2, 5.408.1, and 5.410.1 of 
CALGreen shall be enforced. 


 


  







 -37-  


ARTICLE VI. – PROHIBITED ACTS 


 


Sec. 8.104.600. – Removal of Solid Waste. 


Sec. 8.104.610. – Bulky Waste. 


Sec. 8.104.620. – Hazardous Waste. 


Sec. 8.104.630. – Solid Waste Burning. 


Sec. 8.104.640. – Franchise Required. 


Sec. 8.104.650. – Public Nuisance. 


Sec. 8.104.660. – Unauthorized Disposal. 


Sec. 8.104.670. – Spills. 


Sec. 8.104.680. – Unlawful Dumping. 


Sec. 8.104.690. – Solid Waste Facilities 


 


 


Sec. 8.104.600. – Removal of Solid Waste. 


No person other than the Person in Charge of any Premises or a City Solid Waste Franchisee shall: 


1. Provide or place any Container for the collection of Solid Waste at any location in the City; 
or 


2. Remove any Container from the location where the Container was placed for storage or 
collection by the Person in Charge of the Premises; or  


3. Remove any Solid Waste from any Container; or  


4. Move a Container from the location in which it was placed for storage or collection without 
the prior written approval of the Person in Charge of the Premises.  


Sec. 8.104.610. – Bulky Waste. 


No person shall place Bulky Waste adjacent to or in a street or public right-of-way for collection 
or removal purposes without first making arrangements with the appropriate Solid Waste 
Franchisee for the collection or removal of such Bulky Waste. 


Sec. 8.104.620. – Hazardous Waste. 


No person shall place or deposit Hazardous Waste, Household Hazardous Waste, or Universal 
Waste in any Container provided by a Solid Waste Franchisee, or deposit, release, spill, leak, 







 -38-  


pump, pour, emit, empty, discharge, inject, dump or dispose into the environment any Hazardous 
Waste, Household Hazardous Waste or Universal Waste. 


Sec. 8.104.630. – Solid Waste Burning. 


No person shall burn any Solid Waste within the City, except in an approved incinerator or 
transformation facility or other device for which a permit has been issued, and which complies 
with all applicable permit and other regulations of air pollution control authorities, and provided 
any such act of burning in all respects complies with all other laws, rules and regulations.  


Sec. 8.104.640. – Franchise Required. 


No person except a Solid Waste Franchisee, a person with a Self-Haul Permit, a landscaper 
hauling green waste, or a licensed contractor performing work within the scope of that license, 
shall collect or remove any Solid Waste from any Premises within the City. 


Sec. 8.104.650. – Public Nuisance. 


It is unlawful and a public nuisance if any one of the following conditions exists at a Premises: 


1. The Person in Charge of the Premises has not made arrangements with the appropriate 
Solid Waste Franchisee for Solid Waste Handling Services, and the Person in Charge of the 
Premises does not have a valid Self Haul Permit; 


2. The Person in Charge of the Premises has made arrangements with the appropriate Solid 
Waste Franchisee for Solid Waste Handling Services, but the Solid Waste Franchisee has 
terminated services to the Premises due to the Account Holder’s failure to pay for such services; 
and 


3. The Person in Charge of the Premises has obtained a Self Haul Permit from the City, but 
the permittee has violated one or more of the operational standards contained in Section 
8.104.310(E). 


Sec. 8.104.660. – Unauthorized Disposal. 


No person shall place anything in another person’s Containers without the permission of such 
other person. 


Sec. 8.104.670. – Spills. 


It is unlawful for any person transporting Solid Waste not to clean up, or arrange for the cleanup, 
of any Solid Waste during removal or transport within the City by such person. If any person 
transporting Solid Waste Spills any such materials and does not clean up or arrange for the 
cleanup of the Spill, the City may clean up the Spill and charge the person responsible for the 
Spill 100 percent of the costs the City incurred in cleaning up the Spill. 


Sec. 8.104.680. – Unlawful Dumping. 







 -39-  


It is unlawful for any person to negligently or intentionally Spill upon any property within the 
City any Solid Waste, or to cause, suffer, or permit Solid Waste to be located upon any property 
in the City, except as authorized by law. 


Sec. 8.104.690. – Solid Waste Facilities. 


No person shall construct or operate a Solid Waste management facility, including but not 
limited to a materials recovery facility, Solid Waste transfer or processing station, composting 
facility, a buy-back or drop-off center, disposal facility or a recycling center without first 
satisfying all City requirements for land use, environmental and other approvals.  


  







 -40-  


ARTICLE VII. – ENFORCEMENT 


Sec. 8.104.700. – Inspections and Investigations by the City. 


Sec. 8.104.710. – Enforcement. 


Sec. 8.104.720. – Violation. 


Sec. 8.104.730. – Misdemeanor. 


Sec. 8.104.740. – Attorneys’ fees. 


 


Sec. 8.104.700. – Inspections and Investigations by the City. 


A. City employees, Designee, and/or its Solid Waste Franchisee are authorized to conduct 
Inspections and investigations, at random or otherwise, of any collection container, collection 
vehicle loads, or transfer, processing, or disposal facility for materials collected from generators, 
or Source Separated materials to confirm compliance with this Chapter, subject to applicable laws. 
This Section does not allow the City to enter the interior of a private residential property for 
Inspection. For the purposes of inspecting Commercial Business containers for compliance with 
this Chapter, the City may conduct container Inspections for Prohibited Container Contaminants 
using Remote Monitoring, and Commercial Businesses shall accommodate and cooperate with the 
Remote Monitoring, where applicable. 


B. Persons in charge shall provide or arrange for access during all Inspections (with the 
exception of residential property interiors) and shall cooperate with City employees, Designee, 
and/or its Solid Waste Franchisee during such Inspections and investigations.  Such Inspections 
and investigations may include confirmation of proper placement of materials in containers, Edible 
Food Recovery activities, records, or any other requirement of this Chapter described herein.  
Failure to provide or arrange for: (i) access to an entity’s premises; (ii) installation and operation 
of Remote Monitoring equipment, where required; or (ii) access to records for any Inspection or 
investigation is a violation of this Chapter and may result in penalties described.   


C. Any records obtained by a City during its Inspections, Remote Monitoring, and other 
reviews shall be subject to the requirements and applicable disclosure exemptions of the Public 
Records Act as set forth in Government Code Section 6250 et seq.  


D. City employees, Designee, and/or its Solid Waste Franchisee are authorized to conduct any 
Inspections, Remote Monitoring or other investigations as reasonably necessary to further the 
goals of this Chapter, subject to applicable laws.   


E. The City shall receive written complaints from persons regarding an entity that may be 
potentially non-compliant with this Chapter, including receipt of anonymous complaints.  


Sec. 8.104.710. – Enforcement. 


A. Pursuant to California Penal Code Section 836.5, any City code enforcement officer is 
authorized to enforce the provisions of this Chapter and as well as those of California Penal Code 







 -41-  


Sections 374, 374a, 374.2, 374.3, 374.4, 374d, 374.7, and 375; California Government Code 
Section 68055 et seq.; and California Vehicle Code Sections 23111 and 23112. 


B. Any violation of this Chapter may be enforced in any manner authorized by law, 
including but not limited to an administrative citation, criminal citation, nuisance abatement 
action, or civil action.   


Sec. 8.104.720. – Violation. 


Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, violations of this Chapter are punishable as set out 
in Chapter 1.16 of this Code.  


Sec. 8.104.730. – Misdemeanor. 


Violation of this Chapter shall be a misdemeanor.  


Sec. 8.104.740. – Attorneys’ Fees. 


In any action or proceeding brought to enforce a violation of this Chapter, including but not 
limited to a nuisance abatement action and an action to foreclose on a special assessment, the 
prevailing party shall recover its reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. 


 


 


 
 







Agenda Item #4.1 
 


WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 
 
CALL TO ORDER THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
The Regular meeting of September 8, 2021, of the Wildomar Cemetery District 
was conducted in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith 
Road, Suite 106, Wildomar, California, and electronically pursuant to the 
provisions of Governor’s Executive Orders N-08-21 and was called to order by 
Chair Nigg at 9:22 p.m.  
 
District Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Trustees Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Benoit, 
Chair Nigg 
 
Members absent: None 
 
Staff in attendance: Assistant General Manager York, District Counsel Jex, Clerk 
of the Board Morales, Planning Director Bassi, Administrative Services Director 
Howell, Project Consultant Riley, Economic Development Director Davidson, 
Associate Engineer Luna and Cemetery District Manager Torres. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments. 
 
 
BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 
There were no board communications. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
There were no changes to the agenda as presented. 
 
 
4.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
A MOTION was made by Trustee Moore seconded by Trustee Swanson, to 
approve the Consent Calendar. 
 
MOTION carried, 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Benoit, Chair Nigg 
NAY:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 







  
City of Wildomar 


Cemetery Minutes 
September 8, 2021 


2 


  
 
ABSENT: None 
 
4.1 Minutes – August 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 


Approved the Minutes as presented. 
 
4.2 Warrant Register 


Approved the following: 
 
For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
1. Warrant Register dated 08-26-2021 in the amount of $715.28; 
 
For Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
2. Warrant Register dated 08-04-2021 in the amount of $1,224.62; 
3. Warrant Register dated 08-19-2021 in the amount of $9,425.15; 
4. Warrant Register dated 08-26-2021 in the amount of $410.66. 
 


4.3 Treasurer’s Report 
Approved the Treasurer’s Report for July 2021. 
 


5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 There were no items scheduled. 
 
 
6.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 


There were no items scheduled. 
 
 


GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 There was no report given. 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 There were no future agenda items added. 


  







  
City of Wildomar 


Cemetery Minutes 
September 8, 2021 


3 


  
 
 
 
 
ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT MEETING   
There being no further business, Vice Chair Benoit declared the meeting adjourned 
at 9:23 p.m.  
 
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Janet Morales    Dustin Nigg 
Clerk of the Board    Chair 
 
 







      WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
Agenda Item #4.2 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date:  October 13, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Chairperson and Members of the Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Warrant Register 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the following: 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 09-02-2021 in the amount of $1,432.91. 
2. Warrant Register dated 09-09-2021 in the amount of $6,009.47. 
3. Warrant Register dated 09-16-2021 in the amount of $250.15. 
4. Warrant Register dated 09-29-2021 in the amount of $789.10. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Wildomar Cemetery District requires that the Trustees audit payments of demands 
and direct the General Manager to issue checks.  The Warrant Registers are submitted 
for approval.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
These Warrant Registers will have a budgetary impact in the amount and fiscal year noted 
in the recommendation section of this report.  These costs are included in the Fiscal Year 
2021/22 Budget. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director    General Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Voucher List 09/02/2021   
Voucher List 09/09/2021 
Voucher List 09/16/2021 
Voucher List 09/29/2021    







09/02/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:46:35AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214103 9/2/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4094506983 STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE  74.13


Total :  74.13


 214104 9/2/2021 001338  DEANZA TERMITE & PEST CONTROL, INC578396B PEST CONTROL (08/26/21)  25.00


Total :  25.00


 214105 9/2/2021 000342  FENCE MASTERS 1202728 INSTALL NEW INDUSTRIAL DROP ROD  540.00


Total :  540.00


 214106 9/2/2021 000378  TEMECULA VALLEY PIPE & SUPPLY 612716B CEMETERY DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES  793.78


Total :  793.78


Bank total :  1,432.91 4 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 1,432.91Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 4







09/09/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:19:00AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214135 9/9/2021 001692  AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 14GN-HNKN-4PXQ CEMETERY DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES  2,041.65


Total :  2,041.65


 214136 9/9/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4095223902 STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE  74.13


Total :  74.13


 214137 9/9/2021 001429  DANIEL PEST CONTROL 21-2288 AUGUST 2021 PESTICIDE FOR 


ANTS/GOPHERS


 500.00


Total :  500.00


 214138 9/9/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT11249510 07/18/21-08/17/21 CEMETERY WATER 


SERVICE


 2,916.46


Total :  2,916.46


 214139 9/9/2021 000941  FRONTIER 81921 08/19/21-09/18/21 CEMETERY 


VOICE/INTERNE


 65.98


Total :  65.98


 214140 9/9/2021 000186  RIGHTWAY 289182 08/30/21-09/26/21 CEMETERY RESTROOM 


MAIN


 411.25


Total :  411.25


Bank total :  6,009.47 6 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 6,009.47Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 6







09/16/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:45:45AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214167 9/16/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4095829343 STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE  74.13


Total :  74.13


 214168 9/16/2021 000904  EMERGENCY RESPONSE SYSTEMS INC R59524 10/01/21-12/31/21 CEMETERY ALARM 


MONITOR


 60.00


Total :  60.00


 214169 9/16/2021 001258  SUNBELT RENTALS, INC. 117323789-0001 CEMETERY EQUIPMENT RENTAL  116.02


Total :  116.02


Bank total :  250.15 3 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 250.15Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 3







09/29/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 1:41:39PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214218 9/29/2021 000011  CR&R INC. 339510 JULY-SEPT 2021 WASTE SERVICES - 3 YD 


COM


 789.10


Total :  789.10


Bank total :  789.10 1 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 789.10Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 1







WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
Agenda Item #4.3 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date:  October 13, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Chairperson and Members of the Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, City Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:  Treasurer’s Report  
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Treasurer’s Report for August 
2021. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for Cash and Investments for the month of August 
2021.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None.   
  
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
City Treasurer      General Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 







PERCENT
OF DAYS STATED


BOOK VALUE FACE VALUE MARKET VALUE PORTFOLIO TO MAT. RATE


$ 268,404.96 $ 268,404.96 $ 268,404.96 100.00% 0 Variable


$ 268,404.96 $ 268,404.96 $ 268,404.96 100.00%


+ WITHDRAWALS/
BEGINNING DEPOSITS/ SALES/ ENDING STATED
BALANCE PURCHASES MATURITIES BALANCE RATE


$ 268,428.23 $ -                         $ (23.27) $ 268,404.96 Variable


$ 268,428.23 $ -                         $ (23.27) $ 268,404.96


$ 268,404.96              


TOTAL


 WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT
   TREASURER'S REPORT FOR


CASH AND INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
August 2021


DISTRICT INVESTMENT


EDWARD JONES


ISSUER


ISSUER


EDWARD JONES


TOTAL


TOTAL INVESTMENT


Administrative Services Director


In compliance with the California Code Section 53646, as City Treasurer for the Wildomar Cemetery District, I hereby certify that sufficient 
investment liquidity and anticipated revenues are available to meet the District's expenditure requirements for the next six months.


I also certify that this report reflects all Government Agency pooled investments and all of the District's Bank Balances.


Robert Howell 10/6/2021
Robert Howell Date







WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT – BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Agenda Item #4.4 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: October 13, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Chairperson and Members of the Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Daniel Torres, Community Services Director 
  
SUBJECT: Third Amendment of the Use Permit for COVID-19 Testing and Vaccines 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees approve and authorize the General 
Manager to sign the third amendment to the Use Permit for RUHS through CURATIVE 
to provide COVID-19 testing and vaccinations. 
 
BACKGROUND/ DISCUSSION: 
The Riverside University Health System had entered in an agreement with CURATIVE to 
provide COVID-19 testing services within the County of Riverside. RUHS had requested 
that the County of Riverside to locate and host sites throughout Riverside County. The 
County had determined the City of Wildomar as a location to fulfill the agreement. The 
permit was first presented during the January 2021 council meeting to allow these 
services to be conducted at the Wildomar Little League parking lot and Marna O’Brien as 
a possible secondary location. 
 
Throughout the timeframe of the agreement, Curative has transition from solely providing 
testing to providing vaccination in phases are they became more readily available. 
Currently, the city location is not being utilized by the Curative team as they have 
transition to testing to limited location within this area. Continuing this agreement with 
RUHS will allow for this site to be readily available when Curative expands services. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
CURATIVE staff conducts all services per their agreement with the RUHS. City staff 
manages the unlocking and locking of gates to the site parking lot during normal business 
hours. If additional staff hours are needed to fulfil these services, ARPA funds will be used 
to cover the cost. 
 
Submitted by: Approved by: 
Daniel Torres Gary Nordquist 
Community Services Director  General Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
COVID-19 Use Permit - City of Wildomar - Curative – AATF 





























		10-13-2021 Agenda-cc

		1.2 07-14-2021 Minutes

		1.3 08-11-2021 Minutes

		1.4 Warrant Reg September 2021

		Meeting Date: October 13, 2021



		1.4 Warrant Reg September 2021 Voucher Listings

		090221 fy 21

		090921 fy 21

		091621 fy 21

		092321 fy 21

		092921 fy 21

		090221 fy 22

		090921 fy 22

		091621 fy 22

		092321 fy 22

		092921 fy 22



		1.5 Treasurers Report August 2021

		1.5 Treasurers Report August 2021 Detail

		T August 2021



		1.6 Ord No 203 - 2nd Reading CC Report 10-13-21

		The approval of Change of Zone No. 20-0039 is in compliance with requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), in that on September 8, 2021, at a duly noticed public hearing, the City Council certified an Environmental Impact Repo...

		SECTION 2. Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP)

		SECTION 5. Effective Date of the Ordinance.

		SECTION 6  Severability.

		SECTION 7.  City Clerk Action



		1.7 Attachments

		2. Attachments

		Attachment A

		Infinity - First Amendment to Agreement.20211013

		RECITALS

		A. City and Service Provider entered in an agreement for Information Technology Services on May 26, 2021 (“Agreement”).  The Agreement provides that Service Provider will perform Information Technology services.

		B. Section 2 of the Agreement provides that Scope and Cost for the performance of the services.

		C. This First Amendment amends Section 2 to provide Geographic Information System (GIS) services.

		OPERATIVE PROVISIONS

		1. AMENDMENT.  The Agreement is hereby modified and amended as follows:

		Exhibit A Scope of Services is hereby modified to add the following:

		Scope of Services are outlined in the attached Exhibit A proposal from Infinity Technologies dated August 24, 2021, for Monthly Geographic Information System (GIS) Support.

		The following monthly services include:

		 Quarterly updates of parcel, address, and street GIS data

		 As-needed data updates Public Works asset layers, planning layers, and districts

		 Custom hardcopy/digital mapping requests

		 Analysis and report creation

		 Maintenance of the existing WebGIS applications for staff and public use

		 ArcGIS Online administration

		 Fulfilling GIS Data requests.

		Exhibit B Compensation is hereby modified to add as follows:

		I. Service Provider Shall use the following rates of pay in the performance of the Services:

		The monthly flat fee for the Geographic Information System support is $2,000

		II. The hourly rates for GIS Staff for Special Project Requests follow:



		Project Manager $160

		Sr. GIS Analyst $125

		GIS Analyst  $105

		GIS Tech  $95

		III. This section is blank

		IV. The Compensation for the added Services shall not exceed $2,000 per month, in addition to as provided in Section 4 Compensation and Method of Payment of this Agreement.  The Total Compensation amount listed in Section 4 (a) of the original agreeme...

		2.  GENERAL PROVISIONS

		V. Remainder Unchanged.  Except as specifically modified and amended in this First Amendment, the Agreement remains in full force and effect and binding upon the parties.

		VI. Integration.  This First Amendment consists of pages 1 through 4 inclusive, which constitute the entire understanding and agreement of the parties and supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the parties with respect to all or an...

		VII. Effective Date.  This First Amendment shall not become effective until the date it has been formally approved by the City Council and executed by the appropriate authorities of the City and Service Provider.

		VIII. Applicable Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the interpretation and enforcement of this First Amendment.

		IX. References.  All references to the Agreement include all their respective terms and provisions.  All defined terms utilized in this First Amendment have the same meaning as provided in the Agreement, unless expressly stated to the contrary in this...





		EXHIBIT A

		Wildomar - GIS Services Proposal

		Attachment B



		Infinity Technologies - May 21

		Infinity_Technologies.docx

		SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT.

		SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE.

		(a) Scope of Services.  Service Provider agrees to perform the services set forth in Exhibit “A” “Scope of Services” (hereinafter, the “Services”) and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.

		(b) Schedule of Performance.  The Services shall be completed pursuant to the schedule specified in Exhibit “A.”  Should the Services not be completed pursuant to that schedule, the Service Provider shall be deemed to be in Default of this Agreement. ...



		SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.

		SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT.

		(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Service Provider the amounts specified in Exhibit “B” “Compensation” and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.  The total compensation, including reimbursement f...

		(b) Each month Service Provider shall furnish to City an original invoice for all work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice shall detail charges by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, material...

		(c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by Service Provider which are disputed by City, City will use its best efforts to cause Service Provider to be paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Service Provider’s corre...

		(d) Payment to Service Provider for work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Service Provider.



		SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

		SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.

		SECTION 7. SERVICE PROVIDER'S BOOKS AND RECORDS.

		(a) Service Provider shall maintain any and all documents and records demonstrating or relating to Service Provider’s performance of the Services.  Service Provider shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled che...

		(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during regular business hours, upon request by City or its designated representative.  Copie...

		(c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to dissolution or termination of Service Provider’s business, City may, by written request, requi...



		SECTION 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

		(a) Service Provider is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent contractor and not an officer, employee or agent of City.  Nothing in this Agreement may be construed to be inconsistent with this relationship or status.  Service Provider sha...

		(b) Service Provider shall perform all Services as an independent contractor of City and shall remain at all times as to City a wholly independent contractor with only such obligations as are consistent with that role.  Service provider shall be solel...

		(c) Neither Service Provider, nor any of Service Provider’s officers, employees or agents, shall obtain any privileges or rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may otherwise accrue to City’s employees.  Service Provider express...



		SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.

		SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND LICENSES.

		SECTION 11. PREVAILING WAGE LAWS

		SECTION 12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

		SECTION 13. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS.

		SECTION 14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

		(a) Service Provider covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its firm, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner with the interests of City or which would in any way hinder Service...

		(b) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider is, as of the date of execution of this Agreement, independently involved in the performance of non-related services for other governmental agencies and private parties.  Service Provider is ...

		(c) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider will perform non-related services for other governmental agencies and private Parties following the completion of the Services under this Agreement.  Any such future service shall not be cons...



		SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION.

		(a) All information gained or work product produced by Service Provider in performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information is in the public domain or already known to Service Provider.  Service Provider shall no...

		(b) Service Provider, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall not, without prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the City Attorney of City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testi...

		(c) If Service Provider, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of Service Provider, provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, then City shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Service Provide...



		SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION.

		(a) Indemnification for Professional Liability.  Where the law establishes a professional standard of care for Service Provider’s services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless Cit...

		(b) Indemnification for Other than Professional Liability.  Other than in the performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of it...

		(c) Indemnification from Sub-Service Providers.  Service Provider agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth in this section from each and every sub-Service Provider or any other person or entity involv...

		(d) City’s Negligence.  The provisions of this section do not apply to claims occurring as a result of City’s sole negligence. The provisions of this section shall not release City from liability arising from gross negligence or willful acts or omissi...



		SECTION 17. INSURANCE.

		SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT.

		SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL.

		SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.

		(a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Service Provider.  In the event such notice is given, Service Provider shall cease immediately all work in progress.

		(b) Service Provider may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice of termination to City.

		(c) If either Service Provider or City fail to perform any material obligation under this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Service Provider, or City may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice.

		(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Service Provider or City, all property belonging exclusively to City which is in Service Provider’s possession shall be returned to City.  Service Provider shall furnish to City a final invoice for work...



		SECTION 21. DEFAULT.

		SECTION 22. EXCUSABLE DELAYS.

		SECTION 23. COOPERATION BY CITY.

		SECTION 24. NOTICES.

		SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE.

		SECTION 26. ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION.

		This Agreement shall be administered and executed by the City Manager or his or her designated representative.  The City Manager shall have the authority to issue interpretations and to make amendments to this Agreement, including amendments that comm...



		SECTION 27. BINDING EFFECT.

		SECTION 28. AMENDMENT.

		SECTION 29. WAIVER.

		SECTION 30. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE.

		SECTION 31. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES.

		SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

		SECTION 33. SEVERABILITY.

		SECTION 34. CONFLICTING TERMS.



		Summary





		1.7 Staff Report - Infinity First Amendment.GIS services

		1.8 SR Wildomar SB 1205 Resolution FY 2020-2021

		1.8 Wildomar SB 1205 list of facilities

		Sheet1



		1.9 SR TUMF Palomar Street Amend. 3 & I-15 Interchanges (draft)

		1.9 Attachments TUMF

		Attachment A-1

		PalomarAve-Wildomar-c1

		Attachment A-2

		Bundycanyon agreement-c1

		Attachment A-3

		Wildomar Trail agreement-c1



		1.10 Staff Repot - Use Pemit - RUHS third amendement

		1.10 COVID - 19 Use Permit - City of Wildomar

		1.11 SR - Villa Sienna Park and Overall Grading Agreements

		1.11 Attachments combined

		1.12-1 Staff Report Construction Award

		Meeting Date: October 13, 2021



		1.12-2 Attachments (combined)

		Attachment B

		Site Plan-Exhibit (2021-09-23) - Delta 1

		Attachment C

		Bid Proposal (Beckco)

		Attachment D

		CIP 026-2A - Public Works Contract



		1.13-1 SR - Palomar Street ROW Acquisition.final

		1.13-2 Attachments (combined)

		2. Attach. A - Project Exhibit

		3. Attach. B - ROW Exhibit



		2.1-1 Staff Report- Annexation No. 21 (McVicar)

		Meeting Date: October 13, 2021



		2.1-2 Resolution Calling an Election

		2.1-3 Resolution Declaring Election Results

		2.1-4 Assembled Exhibits

		Petition.pdf

		Petition and Waiver Form Ekrem

		Petition and Waiver Form Keays

		Petition and Waiver Form Maresca

		Petition and Waiver Form Mudge

		Petition and Waiver Form Orbis

		Petition and Waiver Form Polakoff

		Petition and Waiver Form Wolski Lanes

		Petition_and_Waiver_Form_Auerbacher

		Signed Petition - OMNI





		2.2-1 Staff Report- Annexation No. 22 (Beazer)

		Meeting Date: October 13, 2021



		2.2-2 Resolution Calling an Election

		2.2-3 Resolution Declaring Election Results

		2.2-4 Assembled Exhibits

		Petition.pdf

		FM_TR31667_3-22-17.pdf

		FM_SHT_1 Layout1 (1)

		FM_SHT_2 Layout1 (1)

		FM_SHT_3 Layout1 (1)

		FM_SHT_4 ACAD_fm4 (1)

		FM_SHT_5 Layout1 (1)

		FM_SHT_6 Layout1 (1)

		FM_SHT_7 Layout1 (1)

		FM_SHT_8 Layout1 (1)

		ECS Layout1 (1)







		2.3-1 GPA 2021-03 CC Rept-HE-SE-final 10-13-21

		2.3-2 Attach A - Council Resolution for EIR Addendum

		SECTION 1 CEQA FINDINGS.

		SECTION 2. CITY COUNCIL ACTION.



		2.3-3 Attach A-Ex 1 - EIR Addendum for Housing-Safety Element

		1. Addendum to the Adopted Housing Element EIR

		1.1 Background

		1.2 Housing Element EIR

		1.3 Project Summary

		1.4 Purpose of an EIR Addendum



		2. CEQA Analysis

		2.1 Environmental Analysis

		2.2 Finding





		2.3-4 Attach B - Council Resolution for GPA 2021-03 HE-SE

		SECTION 1. CEQA:

		The approval of General Plan Amendment No. 2021-03 for the 2021/2029 Housing and Safety Element updates is in compliance with requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), in that on October 13, 2021, at a duly noticed public hear...



		2.3-5 Attach B-Ex 1 - 2021-2029 Housing Element Document

		Adoption_Draft_Cover_title.pdf

		WILDOMAR_Housing Element_ADOPTION DRAFT_10.13.pdf

		Appendix Divider .pdf

		WILDOMAR_Housing Needs Assessment_ADOPTION DRAFT_10.13.pdf

		Adoption_Back_Cover.pdf

		Blank Page

		Blank Page

		Blank Page

		Blank Page

		Blank Page



		2.3-6 Attach B-Ex 2 - 2021-2029 Safety Element Document

		2.4-1 ZOA 2021-02 - CC Report Packet-Final 10-13-21

		2.4-2 Attachment B-C Combined 10-13-21

		2.5 2nd SR  and Reso PH for Weed Abatement

		Meeting Date: October 13, 2021

		SECTION 1. The City Council has considered the full record before it, which may include but is not limited to such things as staff reports, testimony by staff and the public, and other materials and evidence submitted or provided to it. Furthermore, t...

		SECTION 2. The City Council hereby orders and authorizes the responsible employee to abate such public nuisances existing on those properties included in Exhibit "A'". The responsible employee shall keep an account of the cost of abatement on each lis...





		2.5 Round 1 Non_Compliance Parcel List for City Council

		3.1 COVID-19 Update

		3.2-1 SR 1st Quarter Budget Review FY21-22 bh additions v2

		Meeting Date:  October 13, 2021



		3.2-2 FY21-22 1st Quarter Budget Report

		City Budgets Summary

		1st Q Revenues

		Summary 1st Qtr -Expenditure 



		3.2-3 Schedule of Authorized Positions - FY 2021-22 - Movement of Admin Analyst and adding Sr Engineer CIP

		3.2-4 Decision Package Packet 10-13-2021

		FY21-22 1st Quarter Decision Package Summary-Revised

		1st Quarter Summary



		1 - v2 Gen Plan Update Dec Package 10-13-21

		2 - 1st qtr Decision Package - Upgrade Street Name Signs at Signalized Intersections (rev 9.16.21)

		3 - Code Enforcement Radios Decision Package



		3.3-1 Staff Report Re Weed Abatement Ordinance

		3.3-2 Weed Abatement Ordinance

		A. Findings

		1. The City of Wildomar generally has an arid climate conducive to wildfires and is prone to periodic Santa Ana wind events. Many of the City’s native and non-native plant species can be highly flammable during normal dry periods and have contributed ...

		2. Of paramount importance to the City Council and the citizens of the City of Wildomar is the protection of lives and property from the threat of fire and the safety of fire and law enforcement personnel during wildfires; and

		3. It is the purpose of this ordinance to establish a hazardous vegetation abatement program that protects the lives and property of the citizens of Wildomar; and

		4. The City Council finds that hazardous vegetation or combustible material poses a danger to the health, safety and welfare of the residents in the vicinity of any real property located throughout the City of Wildomar for the reasons set forth above.



		B. Pursuant to Government Code Sections 39501 and 39502, the City of Wildomar adopts the following procedures making it the responsibility and duty of the property owners, lessees, and occupants of real property within the City to prevent and abate pu...

		C. The following definitions apply to the City’s hazardous vegetation and rubbish abatement program:

		1. “Weeds” include (a) any vegetation or plants which when mature bear seeds of a downy or wingy nature; (b) sagebrush, chaparral and any other brush or weeds which attain such large growth as to become, when dry, a fire menace; (c) poison oak and poi...

		2. “Rubbish” includes, but is not limited to, trash or refuse consisting of uncontained paper, cardboard, wood, dry grass or brush, dirt, plastic, rubber, metal or ceramic wreckage, glass, junk, disassembled automobiles, machinery, or parts thereof, o...

		3. “Fire Chief” means the Fire Chief of the City of Wildomar or designee.

		4. “Hazardous vegetation” means vegetation that is flammable and endangers the public safety by creating a fire hazard, including, but not limited to, seasonal and recurrent weeds, stubble, brush, dry leaves and tumbleweeds.

		5. “Improved parcel” means a portion of land of any size, the area of which is determined by the County Assessor’s maps and records and may be identified by an assessor’s parcel number upon which a structure is located.

		6. “Parcel” means a portion of land of any size, the area of which is determined by the County Assessor’s maps and records and may be identified by an assessor’s parcel number.

		7. “Structure” means any dwelling, house, building or other type of flammable construction, including, but not limited to, a wood fence attached to or near any other structure.



		D. It shall be unlawful, and is hereby declared a public nuisance, for the owner(s), lessee(s), or occupant(s) of real property within the City to maintain, permit, or allow such premises to be maintained in such a condition where weeds, hazardous veg...

		E. It shall be the duty of every owner, lessee and occupant of real property within the City, parcel of land or interest therein which is in the City to clear therefrom, including sidewalks and parkways adjacent to such property, all weeds, hazardous ...

		F. The Fire Chief, or his or her designee, shall have authority to declare violations of this section and to enforce the same against the owner(s), lessee(s) and occupant(s) of the real property upon which such conditions exist.

		G. The Fire Chief, or his or her designee, shall enforce the duty set forth in this subsection hereof, by issuing and serving a notice and order to abate by personal service or by US mail or by private carrier to the property owner as his or her name ...

		1. A reasonable description of the lot or parcel of real property upon which the violation exists;

		2. A reasonable description of the violating conditions constituting the nuisance;

		3. The relevant standards for maintenance, prevention, and abatement of weeds, hazardous vegetation and rubbish adopted pursuant to this section;

		4. Reference to this section;

		5. An order to remove the violating conditions and bring the property into compliance within 20 calendar days;

		6. A description of the consequences of failure to comply as prescribed in this section; and

		7. A statement that a written appeal may be filed with the City Manager or designee thereof.



		H. The requirements of subsection (D) of this section shall be satisfied if the owner, lessee or occupant clears the property by disking, mowing or any other method described in said notice as follows:

		1. A 100-foot-wide strip of land at the boundary of an unimproved parcel, and/or parcel frontage adjacent to a roadway.

		2. A 100-foot-wide strip of land around structure(s) located on an adjacent improved parcel (some or all of this clearance may be required on the unimproved parcel depending upon the location of the structure on the improved parcel).

		3. The Fire Chief may require more than a 100-foot width or less than a 100-foot width for the protection of public health, safety or welfare or the environment. The determination for appropriate clearance distances will be made based upon a visual in...

		4. Where the parcel’s terrain is such that it cannot be disked or mowed, the Fire Chief may require, or authorize, that other means of removal be used.



		I. If after 20 calendar days from the date the notice and order was issued the nuisance upon the property has not been abated and no written appeal has been filed in accordance with this chapter, the right to appeal is waived and the notice and order ...

		J. Abatement of any nuisance under this section may, in the discretion of the City, be contracted to an outside contractor. Should the City contract the abatement process, the City may assign its interest in collecting payment for the work to the cont...

		The City shall keep an itemized accounting of the associated costs incurred by the City to abate the nuisance. All abatement and administrative costs incurred by the City, including all costs, may be recovered by any manner authorized by law, includin...



		3.4-1 Staff Report Re Solid Waste Ordinance (SB 1383) 4824-1437-6702 v.1

		3.4-2 Organic Waste Ordinance (SB 1383) 4831-4910-5652 v.3-Final 10-13-2021

		4.1 09-08-2021 Minutes

		4.2 Warrant Reg CEM September 2021

		4.2 Warrant Reg CEM September 2021 Voucher Listings

		090221 cemetery district fy 22

		090921 cemetery district fy 22

		091621 cemetery district fy 22

		092921 cemetery district fy 22



		4.3 Treasurers Report CEM August 2021

		4.3 Treasurers Report CEM August 2021 Detail

		T August 2021



		4.4 WCD Staff Repot - Use Pemit - RUHS third amendement

		4.4 COVID - 19 Use Permit - City of Wildomar








